
ADVISORY COMMITTEE
ON

BANKRUPTCY RULES

Marco Island, FL
March 29-30, 2007



ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES
Meeting of March 29-30, 2007

Marco Island, Florida

Draft Agenda 3/6/07

Introductory Items

Approval of minutes of Seattle meeting of September 14-15, 2006 (Judge Zilly)

2. Oral reports on meetings of other Rules Committees:

(A) January 2007 meeting of the Committee on Rules of Practice and Procedure, (Judge
Zilly and Professor Morris).

Possible revision of proposed amendments to Rules 7052 and 9021 and new Rule
7058.

(B) November 2006 meeting of the Advisory Committee on Appellate Rules Committee.
(Judge Zilly)
(C) January 2007 meeting of the Committee on the Administration of the Bankruptcy
System. (Judge Klein)
(D) September 2006 meeting of Advisory Committee on Civil Rules. (Judge Walker)
(E) November 2006 meeting of Advisory Committee on Evidence. (Judge Klein)
(F) Bankruptcy CM/ECF Working Group (Judge McFeeley)

Action Items

3. Report on comments to proposed amendments to the Bankruptcy Rules and Official
forms published in August 2006. Lists of the 2005 comments on the Interim Rules and
Forms and 2006/2007 comments on the published Rules and Forms. (Professor Morris)

(A) No comments were submitted on the following published rules:

Bankruptcy Rules 1005, 1009, 1015, 2007.1, 2015, 3003, 3017.1, 3019, 5001,
9006, and 9009, and new Bankruptcy Rule 2015.2.

(B) No comments were submitted on the following published Official Forms:

Official Forms 3A, 3B, 10, 16A, 19A, 19B.

(C) Comments were submitted on the following rules but the subcommittee to which each
comment was assigned recommends that no change be made in the published rule:

Page -1-



Bankruptcy Rules 1006, 1010, 1011, 1017, 1020, 2003, 3016, 3017.1, 4006, 4007,
4008, and 8001; and new Bankruptcy Rules 1021, 2007.2, 2015.1, 2015.3, 5008,
and 5012.

Comments in which changes in the published rule or Committee Note are recommended
are set out below by subcommittee. Comments on the Interim Rules and Forms are
included with the discussion of the comments on the published rules and forms.

(D) Comments or suggested changes to the following rules (not published for comment in
August 2006) have been received and are recommended for referral to the following
subcommittees for study:

Rule 1010 Subcommittee on Technology and Cross Border Insolvency
Rule 1011 Subcommittee on Technology and Cross Border Insolvency
Rule 5009 Subcommittee on Consumer Matters
Procedure to implement "automatic dismissal" under § 521

Subcommittee on Consumer Matters
Rule 7065 Subcommittee on Technology and Cross Border Insolvency
Rule 8005 Subcommittee on Privacy, Public Access, and Appeals.

4. Report by the Subcommittee on Attorney Conduct and Health Care. (Judge Schell and
Professor Morris)

(A) Proposed changes to Rule 9011 and Official Form 1 (possible republication).
(B) Comments on the proposed health care rules and proposed change to Rule 6011 (b).

5. Report by the Subcommittee on Consumer Issues. (Judge Wedoff and Professor Morris)

(A) Comments on the means test and related rules; proposed changes to Rule 1007(b)(4)
and Official Forms 22A, 22B, and 22C. Annotated copies of the forms including
proposed changes.
(B) Additional comments on the consumer rules and proposed changes to Rules 1007,
4003, and 4004; existing Rules 5009 and 7001; the Committee Notes to Rules 1019 and
4003; and Official Forms 61, 6J, 8, and 23.
(Proposed changes to Rule 1007, the existing rules, and the Official Forms may require
publication or further study.)

6. Report by the Subcommittee on Business Issues. (Judge Swain and Professor Morris)

(A) Proposed changes to Rules 2002, 3002, 3007, 5003, and 6004, and the Committee
Note to Rule 4002; and proposed changes in new Official Forms 26A and 26B.
(Proposed changes to Rules 2002(g)(2), 3002(c), and 3007(a) may require publication.)

Page -2-



(B) The revised Baker & Hostetler proposal on investing estate funds has been
withdrawn.

7. Report by the Subcommittee on Technology and Cross Border Insolvency. (Judge
McFeeley and Professor Morris)

(A) Comments on the proposed cross border rules and proposed changes to Rules 1007
and 2002; the Committee Note for new Rule 5012; and Official Forms 9A - I. (Some
proposed changes to Rule 1007 may require republication or further study.)

8. Report of Subcommittee on Privacy, Public Access, and Appeals. (Professor Morris and
Judge Pauley)

(A) No proposed changes as result of comments on the appeals rules; possible change to
the Committee Note for Rule 8001(f).
(B) Possible changes to published Rule 8003 and existing Rule 8005.

9. Report of Subcommittee on Forms. (Judge Klein, Professor Morris)

(A) Comments on the Official Forms. Memo with copies of proposed changes. (Judge
Klein, Professor Morris)

(1) Possible designation of Director's Form 240, Reaffirmation, as Official Form
27. Memo with copy of the proposed form.
(2) Proposed amendments to Official Forms 1, 4, 6, 7, 8.
(3) Proposed technical amendments to Official Forms 1, 6, 7, 22A, 22B, 22C, 24,
and 25A.
(4) Comments were submitted on Official Forms 5, 6, 16A and 23, but the
subcommittee recommends that no change be made in the published forms.

(Possible new Form 27 and proposed changes to Official Forms 1 and 8 may require
publication or further study.)
(B) Automatic, statutory adjustments to certain dollar amounts on Official Forms 6E, 7,
10, 22A, and 22C on April 1, 2007. Report on the changes, list of the dollar amounts
adjusted, and excerpts from the revised Official Forms. (Mr. Wannamaker)
(C) Proposed amendments to Director's Procedural Forms. Report on privacy
amendments to the captions of Forms 13S, 15S, 132, 204, 205, 206, 207, 231A, 231B,
253, and 270; revision of bankruptcy subpoena forms 254, 255, and 256; abrogation of
Forms 130A and 130B; and additional amendments to Forms 13S, 104, 202, 204, and
240. (Mr. Wannamaker)

Page -3-



Discussion Items

10. Report of the ad hoc group on time computation and the discussion of time computation
at the Standing Committee meeting. Memo from Judge Mark R. Kravitz, chair of the
Standing Committee's Time Computation Committee, and a copy of the revised draft
template rule. (Judge Zilly and Professor Morris)

11. Proposed amendments to the Bankruptcy Rules as a result of the restyling of the Civil
Rules. Report by Professor Morris including draft amendments to Rules 7012, 7022,
7023.1, and 9024; copy of the Advisory Committee's December 15, 2005, comment to
the Civil Committee on the restyled rules. (Professor Morris)

Information Items

12. Rules Docket.

13. Bull Pen: proposed chapter 15 amendments to Rules 1004.2, 1010, 2002(p), 5009, 5012,
and 9001 and the proposed combination of Official Forms 19A and 19B are in the "bull
pen" awaiting transmission to the Standing Committee.

14. Next meeting reminder: September 6-7, 2007, at the Teton Mountain Lodge, Jackson
Hole, WY.

Page -4-



ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

Chair: Honorable William H. Pauley III
United States District Judge

Honorable Thomas S. Zilly United States District Court

United States District Judge 2210 Daniel Patrick Moynihan

United States District Court United States Courthouse

United States Courthouse 500 Pearl Street
700 Stewart Street, Suite 15229 New York, NY 10007-1581
Seattle, WA 98101

Honorable Mark B. McFeeley

Members: Chief Judge
United States Bankruptcy Court

Honorable R. Guy Cole, Jr. 500 Gold Avenue, S.W., 13th Floor

United States Circuit Judge Albuquerque, NM 87102-3118
United States Court of Appeals
127 Joseph P. Kinneary Honorable Eugene R. Wedoff

United States Courthouse Chief Judge
85 Marconi Boulevard United States Bankruptcy Court

Columbus, OH 43215 Everett McKinley Dirksen
United States Courthouse

Honorable Irene M. Keeley 219 South Dearborn Street

Chief Judge Chicago, IL 60604
United States District Court
500 West Pike Street, 2 nd Floor Honorable Kenneth J. Meyers

Clarksburg, WV 26301 Chief Judge
United States Bankruptcy Court

Honorable Laura Taylor Swain Melvin Price Federal Building

United States District Judge and United States Courthouse

United States District Court 750 Missouri Avenue, 1st Floor

Thurgood Marshall United States East St. Louis, IL 62201
Courthouse, Room 1205

40 Foley Square Honorable Christopher M. Klein
New York, NY 10007 United States Bankruptcy Judge

United States Bankruptcy Court

Honorable Richard A. Schell 3-200 United States Courthouse
United States District Judge 501 I Street
United States District Court Sacramento, CA 95814-2322
United States Courthouse Annex
Chase Bank Building Dean Lawrence Ponoroff
200 North Travis Street Tulane University School of Law

Sherman, TX 75090 Weinmann Hall
6329 Freret Street
New Orleans, LA 70118-6231

March 14, 2007
Projects



ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES (CONTD.)

J. Michael Lamberth, Esquire Donald Walton, Acting Deputy Director

Lamberth, Cifelli, Stokes & Stout, P.A. Executive Office for United States Trustees

3343 Peachtree Road, N.E., Suite 550 20 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W., Suite 8000

Atlanta, GA 30326 Washington, DC 20530

G. Eric Brunstad, Jr., Esquire Patricia S. Ketchum, Esquire

Bingham McCutchen LLP 1607 2 2nd Street, N.W.

One State Street Washington, DC 20008-1921

Hartford, CT 06103
Liaison Member:

John Rao, Esquire
National Consumer Law Center Honorable James A. Teilborg

77 Summer Street, 10 th Floor United States District Judge

Boston, MA 02110 United States District Court
523 Sandra Day O'Connor

Director, Commercial Litigation Branch, United States Courthouse

Civil Division, U.S. Dept. of Justice (ex officio) 401 West Washington Street

J. Christopher Kohn, Esquire Phoenix, AZ 85003-2146

P.O. Box 875, Ben Franklin Station
Washington, DC 20044-0875 Liaison from Committee on the

(1100 L Street, N.W., 10th Floor, Room 10036 Administration of the Bankruptcy System:

Washington, DC 20005)
Honorable Jacqueline P. Cox

Reporter: United States Bankruptcy Judge
United States Bankruptcy Court

Professor Jeffrey W. Morris 656 Everett McKinley Dirksen

University of Dayton United States Courthouse

School of Law 219 South Dearborn Street

300 College Park Chicago, IL 60604

Dayton, OH 45469-2772
Secretary:

Advisors and Consultants:
Peter G. McCabe

James J. Waldron Secretary, Committee on Rules of

Clerk, United States Bankruptcy Court Practice and Procedure

Martin Luther King, Jr. Federal Building Washington, DC 20544

and United States Courthouse
Third Floor
50 Walnut Street
Newark, NJ 07102-3550

March 14, 2007
Projects



ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

SUBCOMMITTEES

Subcommittee on Attorney Conduct and Subcommittee on Privacy, Public Access,

Health Care and Appeals

Judge Richard A. Schell, Chair William H. Pauley III, Chair

Judge William H. Pauley, III Judge Christopher M. Klein

Judge Mark B. McFeeley Judge Richard A. Schell

John Rao, Esquire G. Eric Brunstad, Jr., Esquire

J. Michael Lamberth, Esquire
Subcommittee on Style

Subcommittee on Business Issues Dean Lawrence Ponoroff, Chair

Judge Laura Taylor Swain, Esquire Judge Irene M. Keeley

Judge Eugene R. Wedoff Judge Christopher M. Klein

Judge Mark B. McFeeley Judge Kenneth J. Meyers

J. Christopher Kohn, Esquire J. Michael Lamberth, Esquire

J. Michael Lamberth, Esquire
James J. Waldron, ex officio Subcommittee on Technology and Cross

Border Insolvency

Subcommittee on Consumer Issues Judge Mark B. McFeeley, Chair

Judge Eugene R. Wedoff, Chair Judge R. Guy Cole, Jr.

Judge R. Guy Cole Judge Irene M. Keeley

Judge Laura Taylor Swain Dean Lawrence Ponoroff

Judge William H. Pauley III G. Eric Brunstad, Jr., Esquire

John Rao, Esquire
G. Eric Brunstad, Jr., Esquire CM/ECF Working Group

James J. Waldron, ex officio Judge Mark B. McFeeley

Subcommittee on E-Government
Judge Thomas S. Zilly
Judge Laura Taylor Swain
Professor Jeffrey W. Morris

Subcommittee on Forms
Judge Christopher M. Klein, Chair
Judge Irene M. Keeley
Judge Kenneth J. Meyers
J. Christopher Kohn, Esquire
James J. Waldron, ex officio
Patricia S. Ketchum, Esquire, Consultant

March 14, 2007
Projects



ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

Start Date End Date
Thomas S. Zilly D Washington (Western) Member: 2000 ----

Chair Chair: 2004 2007

G. Eric Brunstad, Jr. ESQ Connecticut 2005 2008
Ransey Guy Cole, Jr. C Sixth Circuit 2003 2009
Irene M. Keeley D West Virginia (Northern) 2002 2008
Christopher M. Klein B California (Eastern) 2000 2007
J. Christopher Kohn* DOJ Washington, DC Open
J. Michael Lamberth ESQ Georgia 2005 2008
Mark B. McFeeley B New Mexico 2001 2007
Kenneth J. Meyers B Illinois (Southern) 2006 2009
William H. Pauley III D New York (Southern) 2005 2008
Lawrence Ponoroff ACAD Louisiana 2004 2007
John Rao ESQ Massachusetts 2006 2009
Richard A. Schell D Texas (Eastern) 2003 2009
Laura Taylor Swain D New York (Southern) 2002 2008
Eugene R. Wedoff B Illinois (Northern) 2004 2007
Jeffrey W. Morris ACAD Ohio 1998 Open

Reporter

Principal Staff: John K. Rabiej (202) 502-1820

Jim H. Wannamaker (202) 502-1910

* Ex-officio



JUDICIAL CONFERENCE RULES COMMITTEES

Chairs Reporters

Honorable David F. Levi Professor Daniel R. Coquillette

Chief Judge, United States District Court Boston College Law School

United States Courthouse 885 Centre Street

501 I Street, 14th Floor Newton Centre, MA 02159

Sacramento, CA 95814

Honorable Carl E. Stewart Professor Catherine T. Struve

United States Circuit Judge University of Pennsylvania Law School

United States Court of Appeals 3400 Chestnut Street

2299 United States Court House Philadelphia, PA 19104

300 Fannin Street
Shreveport, LA 71101-3074

Honorable Thomas S. Zilly Professor Jeffrey W. Morris

United States District Judge University of Dayton School of Law

United States District Court 300 College Park

United States Courthouse Dayton, OH 45469-2772

700 Stewart Street, Suite 15229
Seattle, WA 98101

Honorable Lee H. Rosenthal Professor Edward H. Cooper

United States District Judge University of Michigan Law School

United States District Court 312 Hutchins Hall

11535 Bob Casey U.S. Courthouse Ann Arbor, MI 48109-1215

515 Rusk Avenue
Houston, TX 77002-2600

Honorable Susan C. Bucklew Professor Sara Sun Beale

United States District Judge Duke University School of Law

United States District Court Science Drive and Towerview Road

United States Courthouse Box 90360

801 North Florida Avenue, Suite 1430 Durham, NC 27708-0360

Tampa, FL 33602

Honorable Jerry E. Smith Professor Daniel J. Capra

United States Circuit Judge Fordham University School of Law

United States Court of Appeals 140 West 62nd Street

12621 Bob Casey U.S. Courthouse New York, NY 10023
515 Rusk Avenue
Houston, TX 77002-2698

March 14, 2007
Projects





ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE UNITED STATES COURTS

Staff:

John K. Rabiej Phone 202-502-1820

Chief, Rules Committee Support Office

Administrative Office of the Fax 202-502-1766

United States Courts
Washington, DC 20544

James N. Ishida Phone 202-502-1820

Attorney-Advisor
Office of Judges Programs Fax 202-502-1766

Administrative Office of the

United States Courts
Washington, DC 20544

Jeffrey N. Barr Phone 202-502-1820

Attorney-Advisor
Office of Judges Programs Fax 202-502-1766

Administrative Office of the
United States Courts
Washington, DC 20544

Timothy K. Dole Phone 202-502-1820

Attorney-Advisor
Office of Judges Programs Fax 202-502-1766

Administrative Office of the

United States Courts
Washington, DC 20544

Judith W. Krivit Phone 202-502-1820

Administrative Specialist
Rules Committee Support Office Fax 202-502-1766

Administrative Office of the
United States Courts

Washington, DC 20544

James H. Wannamaker III Phone 202-502-1900

Senior Attorney
Bankruptcy Judges Division Fax 202-502-1988

Administrative Office of the
United States Courts

Washington, DC 20544

March 14, 2007
Projects



FEDERAL JUDICIAL CENTER

Staff:

Joe Cecil (Committee on Rules of Practice and Procedure) Phone 202-502-4084

Senior Research Associate
Research Division Fax 202-502-4199

One Columbus Circle, N.E.
Washington, DC 20002-8003 <jcecil@fjc.gov>

Marie Leary (Appellate Rules Committee) Phone 202-502-4069

Research Associate
Research Division Fax 202-502-4199

One Columbus Circle, N.E.
Washington, DC 20002-8003 <mleary@fjc.gov>

Robert J. Niemic (Bankruptcy Rules Committee) Phone 202-502-4074

Senior Research Associate
Research Division Fax 202-502-4199

One Columbus Circle, N.E.
Washington, DC 20002-8003 <bniemic@fjc.gov>

Thomas E. Willging (Civil Rules Committee) Phone 202-502-4049

Senior Research Associate
Research Division Phone 202-502-4199

One Columbus Circle, N.E.
Washington, DC 20002-8003 <twillgin@fjc.gov>

Laural L. Hooper (Criminal Rules Committee) Phone 202-502-4093

Senior Research Associate
Research Division Phone 202-502-4199

One Columbus Circle, N.E.
Washington, DC 20002-8003 <lhooper@fjc.gov>

Tim Reagan (Evidence Rules Committee) Phone 202-502-4097

Senior Research Associate
Research Division Phone 202-502-4199

One Columbus Circle, N.E.
Washington, DC 20002-8003 <treagan@fjc.gov>

March 14, 2007
Projects



ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

Meeting of September 14-15, 2006
Seattle, WA

Draft Minutes

The following members attended the meeting:

District Judge Thomas S. Zilly, Chairman
District Judge Irene M. Keeley
District Judge Richard A. Schell
District Judge William H. Pauley, III
Bankruptcy Judge Mark B. McFeeley
Bankruptcy Judge Eugene R. Wedoff
Bankruptcy Judge James D. Walker, Jr.
Bankruptcy Judge Christopher M. Klein
Dean Lawrence Ponoroff
K. John Shaffer, Esquire
J. Michael Lamberth, Esquire
G. Eric Brunstad, Jr., Esquire
J. Christopher Kohn, Esquire

The following persons also attended the meeting:

Professor Jeffrey W. Morris, Reporter
Circuit Judge Harris L. Hartz, liaison from the Committee on Rules of Practice

and Procedure (Standing Committee)
Bankruptcy Judge Karen Overstreet, as liaison from the Committee on the

Administration of the Bankruptcy System (Bankruptcy Administration Committee)
Peter G. McCabe, secretary of the Standing Committee
Clifford J. White, III, Acting Director, Executive Office for U.S. Trustees

(EOUST)
Donald F. Walton, Acting Deputy Director, EOUST
Mark A. Redmiles, National Civil Enforcement Coordinator, EOUST
Monique Bourque, Chief Information Officer, EOUST
James J. Waldron, Clerk, U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the District of New Jersey
Matthew I. Hall, Rules Clerk for Judge David F. Levi
John K. Rabiej, Chief, Rules Committee Support Office, Administrative Office of

the U.S. Courts (Administrative Office)
James Ishida, Rules Committee Support Office, Administrative Office
James H. Wannamaker, Bankruptcy Judges Division, Administrative Office
Stephen "Scott" Myers, Bankruptcy Judges Division, Administrative Office
Robert J. Niemic, Federal Judicial Center (FJC)
Philip S. Corwin, Butera & Andrews, Washington, D.C.
Matthew R. Goldman, Baker & Hostetler LLP, Cleveland, OH

5



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

The following persons were unable to attend the meeting:

Circuit Judge R. Guy Cole, Jr., member
District Judge Laura Taylor Swain, member
Bankruptcy Judge Dennis Montali, liaison from the Bankruptcy Administration

Committee
Patricia S. Ketchum, advisor to the Committee

The following summary of matters discussed at the meeting should be read in
conjunction with the memoranda and other written materials referred to, all of which are on file
in the office of the Secretary of the Standing Committee. Votes and other action taken by the
Committee and assignments by the Chairman appear in bold.

IntroductorV Matters

The Chairman welcomed the members, liaisons, advisers, staff, and guests to the
meeting. He expressed the regrets of Judge Cole, Judge Swain, Judge Montali and Ms. Ketchum
who were unable to attend the meeting.

Agenda Item 1; Approval of Minutes for Chapel Hill Meeting

The Chairman directed the Committee's attention to the draft minutes of the
March 9-10, 2006 meeting in Chapel Hill (Agenda Item 1). Judge Wedoff moved that language
be inserted in the minutes to reflect that in approving the Small Business Disclosure Statement
form recommended by the Business Subcommittee, the Committee discussed and acknowledged
that its recommendation did not preclude the adoption of a similar form prepared by the EOUST
as an alternative. The Committee approved the Chapel Hill minutes as revised by Judge
Wedoff's suggestion without objection.

Agenda Item 2; Oral Reports on Meetings of other Rules Committees

The Chairman and Mr. McCabe briefed the Committee on the June 2006 meeting of the
Standing Committee. Copies of the Standing Committee minutes were included in the materials
at Agenda Item 2.

In Judge Montali's absence, the Chairman asked Judge Overstreet to report on the most
recent meeting of the Bankruptcy Administration Committee (the "Bankruptcy Committee").
The Chairman asked that the minutes reflect Judge Montali's strong contributions to the
Committee over the years.

Judge Overstreet described a number of issues considered by the Bankruptcy Committee
including budget issues related to the low level of case filings post-BAPCPA. She also recapped
recent fee increases, and fee increases under consideration.

2 6



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

Judge Walker reported on the most recent meeting of the Advisory Committee on Civil
Rules. He said the Civil Rules Committee discussed Rule 12 notice pleading, and the need for
particularity in summary judgment motions. He said there was also a lot of discussion about
Rule 26 with respect to the admissibility of expert work product. Finally, he said the Civil Rules
Committee had also been busy with the time computation project.

Judge Klein reported on most recent meeting of the Advisory Committee on Evidence
Rules. He said the primary issue before the Evidence Committee concerned waivers, and that it
had published a new proposed Rule 502, dealing with waiver of attorney-client privilege and
work product.

Action Items

Agenda Item 3A; Rule 9011 Amendment Proposals

The Chairman and the Reporter recapped a letter sent by Senators Grassley and Sessions
suggesting that the rules be amended to ensure that attorneys comply with the addition of
§707(b)(4)(C) and (D) to the Bankruptcy Code.

By way of background, the Chairman reminded the Committee that it had previously
considered a similar suggestion from Senator Grassley made shortly after the Interim Rules were
published, and had concluded that it was not necessary to amend Rule 9011 to simply restate the
statute. Despite this conclusion, however, the Committee asked the Subcommittee on Attorney
Conduct to consider, in light of the amendments to § 707, as well as the sense of Congress
provision set forth at § 319 of the 2005 Act, whether the forms or Rule 9011 should be amended.

Although the subcommittee believed that the statement of Congressional intent at § 319
was sufficiently strong to consider a change to Rule 9011, it was unable to recommend specific
language. Further, it identified a number of drafting problems that would impact the current
reach of Rule 9011. For example, Rule 9011 already contains language similar, but not identical
to the language found in § 707(b)(4)(C). However, while Rule 9011 applies to all attorneys in all
chapters, § 707(b)(4)(C) only applies in chapter 7. Repeating the § 707(b)(4)(C) statutory
language in Rule 9011, and limiting its effect to chapter 7 cases, might infer that that there is
different standard for the applicability of Rule 9011 outside of chapter 7. And the standard could
change in cases that convert from chapter 11 or 13 to chapter 7. Ultimately, the subcommittee
drafted alternative proposed changes to Rule 9011 for the Committee to consider. The
subcommittee also recommended including language from § 707(b)(4)(D) in the debtor attorney
certification at Exhibit B on Form 1.

Mr. Lamberth , a member of the subcommittee, elaborated on the subcommittee's
proposal to enhance the debtor attorney certification on the petition. He thought adding the
language from § 707(b)(4)(D) would reinforce the notion (new under the 2005 Act) that in
signing the petition the attorney was representing that he or she "has no knowledge after an
inquiry that the information in the schedules filed with such petition is incorrect."

3 7



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

Judge Wedoff agreed that a "Miranda type" warning in the Chapter 7 version of the
petition would probably benefit attorneys and remind them of their obligations under the statute.
He noted, however, that § 704(b)(4)(D) only applies in chapter 7 consumer cases, and he
wondered whether the Committee should consider expanding the reach of the warning to all
petitions. A majority of members agreed in concept with a warning of some sort on the petition,
but thought it should be limited to chapter 7 consumer cases. And Mr. Brunstad suggested that
the problem of creating a special petition form for use only in chapter 7 consumer cases could be
avoided by using the underlined language at the top of page 94 of the materials, but changing the
first clause from in-a ehpter- 7 .eas to "In a case in which § 707(b)(4)(D) applies, "

The Chairman asked whether the rule could or should be amended to parrot the language
in § 704(b)(4)(C) and (D) and § 319 of the 2005 Act. Mr. Lamberth, said he thought that Rule
9011 (a) already implements § 707(b)(4)(C), although with slightly different wording. He noted
that the subcommittee recommended against expanding Rule 9011 to cover papers submitted to
the trustee because it would dramatically expand the scope of the rule and could create situations
that might actually delay delivery of documents requested by the trustee while the debtor's
counsel undertook steps to verify the information in the requested documents. Instead, he
recommended that if a change was made to Rule 9011 that it be limited to papers submitted to
the court, similar to Alternative A of the Reporter's memo (at pages 85-86 of the Agenda book).

On behalf of the EOUST, Mr. White agreed with member comments that putting a notice
in the petition would likely help educate the bar and would generally improve the accuracy of the
schedules. He disagreed with the subcommittee's limited suggested change to the rule, however
and instead supported expanding any change to include papers submitted to the trustee, as
suggested by the § 319 sense of Congress, and also expanding the reach of any change to all
attorneys, not just consumer debtor attorneys in chapter 7. In response, a number of committee
members reiterated concerns that attorney fees in "Enron style cases" would skyrocket and case
progress could grind to a halt if every paper submitted to the trustee in a case was "submitted
only after ... debtors' attorneys ... made reasonable inquiry to verify ... " the information in the
papers.

Judge Klein identified a new issue of sanctions he thought the Committee should
consider before recommending any change to Rule 9011. He noted that §704(b)(4)(A) and (B),
which are new in the 2005 Act, give the bankruptcy judge the ability to shift fees "on its own
initiative" if it finds a violation of §707(b) or Rule 9011. Because Rule 9011 currently requires
that motion requesting sanctions be filed before fees can be awarded, Judge Klein wondered
whether there could be any change to the rule without incorporating all of the language in
§ 707(b)(4), as opposed to just that set out in § 707(b)(4)(C) and/or (D).

After additional discussion, the Committee considered the following motions:
" Should the attorney certification on the petition be modified to include §

707(b)(4)(D) language "in any case where § 707(b)(4)(D) applies"? The motion
carried without opposition.

* Should the Consumer Subcommittee be directed to draft a change to Rule 9011 to
apply the § 707(b)(4)(D) language in all consumer cases? Six members voted
for the motion and six voted against the motion.

4 8



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

" Should any change to the rule be limited to incorporating language from § 707 (as
opposed to § 319)? Eight members voted in favor of limiting any change in
the rule to incorporating language from § 707.

* Should the Consumer Subcommittee be directed to draft a change in the rule to
incorporate the statutory language "in a case where § 707(b)(4)(D) applies?"
Seven members voted in favor, four against.

" Judge Schell moved that the Committee consider incorporating § 707(b)(4)(C)
language in Rule 9011 as well. Mr. Brunstad said that the issue should be
returned to the subcommittee to consider along with the sanctions issue identified
by Judge Klein. The Committee voted against incorporating § 707(b)(4)(C)
language in the rule at this time.

In light of the alternative votes, the Chairman asked the subcommittee to draft an
amendment to Rule 9011 incorporating the statutory language "in a case where § 707(b)(4)(D)
applies;" to consider whether the change should be made applicable to all consumer cases
regardless of chapter; to consider incorporating § 707(b)(4)(C) language in the rule; and to
consider the applicability of the court's sanctioning power under § 707(b)(4)(A) and (B) in light
of the various proposed changes to Rule 9011.

Agenda Item 3B; Judge Mannes's Corporate Representation Proposal

The Reporter summarized the Subcommittee on Attorney Conduct's review of a renewed
request from Judge Paul Mannes to allow non-lawyer representation of corporations in matters
involving less that $5,000. In his proposal, Judge Mannes noted that many states now allow such
representation in small claims courts. He suggested a rule change that would allow the court to
authorize non-attorney corporate appearance in small matters if such representation would be
permitted under state law.

The subcommittee was spilt in its recommendation and ultimately recommended that no
action be taken. No subcommittee member was in favor of changing the national rules; however
two members were in favor of suggesting to Judge Mannes that a local rule might be adopted.
And one subcommittee member voted against recommending either a national or local rule on
the basis that actual practice may already reflect Judge Mannes's proposal. After discussion,
the Committee agreed with the subcommittee that no action should be taken.

Agenda Item 4A.; Chapter 15 Rules

The Reporter provided an overview of the work by the Subcommittee on Technology and
Cross Border Insolvency regarding several new rules recommended by Judge Samuel Bufford
for use in chapter 15 cases. He stated that after deliberation, the subcommittee suggested three
new chapter 15 specific rules for the Committee's consideration: (i) a new Rule 15001 that
would require the debtor to identify its center of main interests on the petition, and that would
establish a procedure for challenging the debtor characterization; (ii) a new Rule 15002 that
would make all Part 7 rules of the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure applicable in chapter
15 cases; and (iii) a new Rule 15003 that would govern the establishment of protocols
concerning coordination of the case with an ancillary of cross-border case. The Reporter said

5 9



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

that the subcommittee recommended adoption of the new Rules 15001 and 15003, but that it was
split over the need for proposed Rule 15002.

After discussion, the Committee decided that proposed Rule 15002 was unnecessary
because Rule 7001 already sets out the scope of the Part 7 rules, and nothing in Rule 7001
suggests that the Part 7 rules would not apply in a chapter 15 case.

With respect to proposed Rule 15003, Mr. Brunstad thought that 10 days notice of a
hearing on a protocols motion was too short. Judge Klein agreed that 10 days notice was too
short and suggested 20 days instead. He also suggested putting the proposed 15003 language in
place of the existing language in Interim Rule 5012. Judge Overstreet suggested extending
notice to parties who had made filings in the case requesting special notice, and Judge Klein
suggested changing the title of the new Rule 5012.

In light of Judge Klein's suggestion that proposed 15003 be redesignated as Rule 5012
(to replace existing Interim Rule 5012 as the national rule in 2008), the Committee asked the
Reporter to redesignate proposed Rule 15001 as a new proposed rule within the current rules
numbering scheme.

The Reporter said the subcommittee also reviewed chapter 15 related comments to
existing rules (as modified by the Interim Rules) received from the Commercial Law League of
America ("CLLA") (comments at tab 18 of the materials), and from Daniel Glosband, the
principal drafter of the model law that became chapter 15 (Mr. Glosband's comments are
described in the Reporter memo at tab 4A).

The CLLA suggested changes to existing interim rules so that language would more
closely track the terms used in chapter 15. The Reporter said that the CLLA suggestions were
stylistic and would be considered at the March meeting along with other comments on the
published rules.

Mr. Glosband suggested a change to Rule 1010 to prevent gamesmanship by eliminating
any differences in service based on whether the petition designated the proceeding as a "foreign
main" or a "foreign nonmain" proceeding. The Reporter recommended Mr. Glosband's
suggested change.

And Mr. McCabe suggested a technical change to Rule 9001 to add 11 U.S.C. § 1502 to
the list of definitional sections in that rule that govern the meaning of statutorily defined words
and phrases when the same phrases are used in the rules.

The Committee approved all subcommittee suggested changes to the "chapter 15
rules" as modified by the member suggestions at the meeting. The Reporter compiled and
distributed the changes in a handout the next day and the Committee approved proposed
new Rules 1004.2 (in place of proposed Rule 15001 in the agenda materials), Rule 5012 (in
place of proposed Rule 15003 and Interim Rule 5012), and also approved changes to Rules
5009, 1010, 9001 and 2002. The Chairman referred all changes to the Style Subcommittee
for final revisions.

6 10



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

Agenda Item 4B,; Smart Forms

The Chairman provided the Committee with an overview of the efforts by the AO and the
EOUST to implement a voluntary standard for data-enabled forms, also known as "smart forms."
He explained that smart forms, a subset of "fillable forms," use a programming code to "tag" and
store the data entered in the form in a manner that makes the tagged information easily
retrievable.

The Chairman said that the EOUST and the AO had held several meetings with forms
vendors seeking voluntary adoption of a smart forms standard to facilitate the capture of certain
statistical data required under BAPCPA. So far, however, only one of the software vendors
appeared able or willing to implement smart forms unless such forms were mandatory. He said
that because of the lack of vendor interest in a voluntary standard, the EOUST had recently
approached him and staff at the AO and requested that the Committee consider amending the
rules to require the use of smart forms.

The Chairman said that he, the Reporter, and AO staff discussed the EOUST's request
and concluded that it was probably not necessary propose a new rule requiring the use of smart
forms because Rule 5005 (as amended effective December 1, 2006) allows courts to require that
documents filed electronically conform to technical standards established by the Judicial
Conference. They also thought that the EOUST's request raised policy issues and should be
considered by the Bankruptcy Committee, the Information Technology Committee, and the
Court Administration Case Management Committee instead of the Rules Committee.

The Chairman said the EOUST was actively pursuing a smart forms agenda item with the
appropriate committees, but was attempting to "fast track" its efforts as much as possible, and
that it was seeking this Committee's endorsement of its effort to change the technical standard.

Mr. White, acting director of EOUST, distributed a letter he recently sent to James Duff,
the Director of the Administrative Office, regarding the need for smart forms. He said that the
technical standards were set, but that he did not think vendors would implement smart forms
unless they were mandatory. He said that the EOUST needs smart forms to facilitate new
statutory duties including: automatic sorting of cases above and below state income medians;
establishing asset and liability norms - and deviations from such norms - so that debtor audits
can be done; and to facilitate studies on such things as household goods valuations and
identification of domestic support orders.

Mr. White said that earlier in the week he had spoken with Mr. McCabe and received a
commitment from the AO to put this matter before the Bankruptcy Administration Committee
and the IT Committee with the purpose of getting the issue in front of the Judicial Conference as
soon as possible. He said that although he did not believe there was significant opposition to
smart forms, he thought some sort of endorsement from this Committee would facilitate their
adoption. He asked that the Committee either endorse the letter he had just sent to the Director,
authorize the Chairman to endorse the letter, or possibly send its own letter to the Director
recommending smart forms.

7



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

Mr. McCabe said from the AO's perspective, adoption of smart forms was more of a
long-term solution to its statutory data-gathering obligations, and that it had already made
changes to CM/ECF to address its current obligations under BAPCPA. He reported that the AO
was working with the EOUST, and was trying to get the smart forms agenda item in front of the
appropriate committees as soon as possible. Although Mr. McCabe thought there were still some
problems with the current technical standards, he did not think there was significant opposition
to the concept of smart forms.

Judge Walker suggested that the Committee make a "Sense of Committee" motion that
smart forms should be mandatory. And Mr. Waldron suggested that the Committee should also
consider whether smart forms would be mandatory just for vendors, or for all parties. After
additional discussion, the Committee unanimously passed a motion establishing that it was
the Sense of the Committee that the Committee and others take all necessary steps to
advance the cause of data enabled forms in conjunction with the efforts of the AO and the
Bankruptcy Administrator Committee.

Agenda Item 5A; Separate Document Rule

The Chairman said that the Subcommittee on Privacy, Public Access, and Appeals had
met be teleconference to discuss whether to recommend amending the bankruptcy rules that
require a separate document for every judgment in a contested matter or adversary proceeding.
He said that subcommittee recommended that the separate document rule continue to be applied
in adversary proceedings, but that it was split on whether it should be applied in contested
matters.

Committee members expressed strong opinions on both sides of the issue. Judges Klein
and Walker thought that entry of a separate document for the judgment (distinct from the
opinion) clarifies when a judgment takes effect and when time for an appeal begins to run. Mr.
Waldron said that from the clerk's perspective, a separate document was very helpful because it
eliminated guesswork by deputy clerks who might otherwise have to review orders and decisions
in detail to determine whether a judgment had been made.

Judge Wedoff, and Mr. Brunstad argued against a separate document rule in contested
matters. Judge Wedoff pointed out that unlike district court, there are many instances in
contested matters where a separate document doesn't make sense, and there are lots of courts that
do not enforce the requirement in some contested matters, such as a lift stay that is settled
through a consent order. He said that in such courts the separate document rule merely creates a
trap for the unwary. Mr. Brunstad added that even in district court practice, Rule 58 carves out a
number of situations where a separate document is not required. And although it might be
possible to carve out similar "bankruptcy specific" contested matters that don't require a separate
document, Mr. Brunstad thought the better approach would be eliminate the requirement in
contested matters altogether.

There were several comments about how the separate document requirement currently in
Rule 9021 is being interpreted. One member believed that a strict reading of Rule 9021 requires

8 12



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

the judge to essentially sign two pieces of paper (the decision, and then the judgment) before an
appeal could be taken. Even if such a reading were inaccurate, the member thought it would
create unnecessary litigation. Other members (who supported the separate document rule)
thought the "separate document" requirement in Rule 9021 could be satisfied with a minute entry
from the bench which could be docketed separately from the decision, or that the clerk's entry
itself could satisfy the requirement.

After additional discussion, the Committee voted to eliminate the separate
document rule in contested matters by a vote of 7-6.

The Committee then discussed how to amend Rule 9021 to eliminate the requirement for
a separate document in contest matters, while leaving it in effect for adversary proceedings.
After discussion, the Committee voted 6-2 in favor of creating a new Rule 7058 that would
make Rule 58 applicable in adversary proceedings. The Committee then voted, without
dissent, in favor of: (i) amending Rule 9021 to say "A judgment or order is effective when
entered under Rule 5003", and (ii) amending Rule 7052 to clarify that the reference in Civil
Rule 52 to Civil Rule 58 should be construed in bankruptcy cases as a reference to Rule
5003.

The Reporter provided a draft of new Rule 7058 and the changes to Rules 7052 and
9021 in a handout the next day. After reviewing drafts, the Committee approved the
changes and directed that they be submitted to the Style Subcommittee.

Agenda Item 5B; Disclosure Statements and Modified Plans Under Rule 3019

Tabled.

Agenda Item 6; Report of the Forms Subcommittee

The Reporter said that the Forms Subcommittee had met by teleconference to consider
possible amendments to Official Forms 10, 19A and 19B, and to consider whether to recommend
that Director's Form 240 be revised and promulgated as an official form.

Form 240. Judge Walker reviewed suggested changes to Form 240 described at Agenda
Item 6. He noted that the form was completely rewritten in 2005 to incorporate changes required
by BAPCPA and that there had been several modifications to the form over the past year. He
said that the AO was now asking the Committee to review and comment on a reorganization of
the boxes on page one of the form, and changes to the attached order.

Judge Walker said the Forms Subcommittee approved all the described changes to Form
240, but that it did not recommend making the form an official form at this time because it would
be harder to modify in the future. Judge Wedoff thought making the form an official form would
be a good idea. After additional discussion the Committee approved all the changes set
forth at Agenda Item 6, and decided to table the issue of whether the form should be an
official form until the fall meeting of 2007.

9 13



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

Form 10. The Reporter described an issue in Form 10 with respect to the hanging
paragraph at § 1325(a)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code. He said that there was a concern by some
creditors that if they correctly described that value of their collateral as being less than the
amount of their claim (as required by the form) that they might waive the right to "hanging
paragraph" treatment of the claim as fully secured when the claim was based on purchase money
security interest created in a motor vehicle within 910 days of the petition date.

Some subcommittee members suggested that a box could be put on Form 10 that would
allow the creditor to identify its claim as a "910 claim." But the majority of the subcommittee
thought such a box would likely be confusing and that the information was not really useful.
After discussion, the Committee agreed with the subcommittee and voted against making
any change to Form 10 with respect to the 910 claim issue.

Forms 19A and 19B. The Reporter said § 110(b) of the Bankruptcy Code requires
bankruptcy petition preparers to sign the documents prepared for filing in bankruptcy cases and
to list their name and address on the document as well. He said that Form 19A was designed to
meet that statutory requirement. However § 11 0(b)(2) places additional requirements on
bankruptcy petition preparers including the requirement that "before preparing any document for
filing ... , the bankruptcy petition preparer shall provide to the debtor a written notice ...

Official Form 19B was designed to address the § 1 10(b)(2) requirement. Because all of the
information in Official Form 19A is also in Official From 19B, and because 19B must be filed
along with any document petition preparer prepares for filing in the case, the AO has been asked
whether Form 19A could be abrogated and Form 19B be redesignated as Form 19. A motion to
combine both forms into a redesignated Form 19 (as described in the agenda materials)
carried without opposition.

Agenda Item 7; Review of Possible Change to Interim Rule 1007(c)

Judge Klein provided an overview of a problem with Interim Rule 1007. He said that
some debtors fail to file the required statement concerning completion of a personal financial
management course before the Rule 1007(c) deadline and the case is closed without a discharge.
The debtor then attempts to reopen and the court is required to find cause to allow reopening.
The Reporter suggested a change to 1007(c) that would allow the debtor to reopen the case
without a showing of cause.

Some members thought getting rid of the deadline would be a better idea. But Judge
Klein said that one reason to maintain the deadline is so the clerk has a date certain to close the
case. The Chairman moved to table the matter until the spring meeting so that the consumer
subcommittee could draft a fix. The motion to table carried without opposition.

Agenda Item 8; Review of Time Computation Template

Judge Klein reported on the efforts of the Time-Computation Subcommittee to establish a
uniform method of counting time throughout all federal rules. He said a template has already
been created (proposed Civil Rule 6 at page 232 of the agenda materials), and that the
Committee has been asked to review the template and determine its applicability to the
bankruptcy rules. Mr. Kohn suggested that there would be a need to ensure that the proposed

10 14



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

changes did not override a proscribed statutory period. And there was an extensive discussion
among Committee members about whether the proposed changes adequately addressed many of
counting problems that occur in bankruptcy cases. The Reporter suggested that a committee note
to a bankruptcy version of proposed Civil Rule 6 could address certain counting problems by
adding examples.

After additional discussion, the Chairman said he would divide up the list of
deadlines complied by the Reporter among several committee members and ask for reports
at the spring meeting.

Information and Discussion Matters

Azenda Item 9; Civil Rules Restyling Project.

The Chairman said that only a few bankruptcy rules would be impacted by the civil rules
restyling project. He said that he and the Reporter would address changes and would report back
to the Committee at the spring meeting.

Agenda Item 10: Oral Report on Joint Subcommittee on Venue and Chapter 11 Matters.

The Chairman and John Shaffer provided an oral report of the joint subcommittee's work.

Agzenda Item 11 - Judge Walker Letter Regarding Future Format of Forms

The Chairman said Judge Walker's letter was a long range look at how information
currently collected through forms could be collected and utilized more efficiently. Judge Walker
added that one problem with the form format in the electronic era is fitting information into a
particular box. He thought that developing an input system that allowed the filer to enter the
information once so that the court or a program could develop produce forms as needed would be
much less cumbersome.

Mr. McCabe suggested creating a working group that would develop a prototype to
illustrate the concept, and then bring in vendors to develop how it could be implemented. In his
view, a change in the way forms information was collected raised issues beyond the scope of the
rules process and he thought that the working group should include members from outside the
rules committees. And Mr. Shaffer said the project would likely require as much thought about
how information comes out of the system as to how it gets into the system.

Agenda Item 12; Rules Tracking' Docket.

The Chairman asked to Committee to review the rules tracking docket for any needed
changes.

Agenda Item 13; Oral Report on Electronic Submission ofAgenda Materials.

The Chairman told the Committee that there would likely be a shift in the future toward
distributing agenda materials in electronic from only.

11 15



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

Agenda Item 14; Report on "fillable PDF" Forms on the U.S. Courts Website.

The Chairman said that this item was addressed in the context of the EOUST's report on
smart forms.

Agenda item 15: Report on Pending Legislation to Increase Chapter 7 Filing Fees.

Mr. Wannamaker reported on proposed changes to filing fees that are currently being
considered in Congress. If implemented, the changes would require some changes to Form 3B
(the existing in forma pauperis form) and possibly to some Director's Forms.

Agenda Item 16: Report on Director's Forms 104 and 281.

Mr. Wannamaker reported on recent changes to Director's Forms 104 and 281. He
explained that the change to Form 104, the adversary proceeding coversheet, was timed to
coincide with the implementation of CM/ECF 3.1. He said that the primary change was to
increase and regroup the nature of suit codes to correspond with the subdivisions of Rule 7001.
The changes to Form 281, Appearance of Child Support Creditor, dealt with privacy matters. All
members voted in favor the changes.

Agenda Item 17,; Comment by Judge Geraldine Mund.

The Chairman reviewed Judge Mund's comment that the rules currently do not provide
for any restriction on payment to a bankruptcy petition preparer in situations where the debtor
subsequently seeks a waiver of the filing fee. The effect of granting the waiver would be that the
petition preparer would be paid, but the chapter 7 trustee would not. Judge Mund doubted that
Congress intended such a result. There was a split of opinion on the Committee as to whether a
change was needed. The Chairman referred the matter to the Consumer Subcommittee.

Agenda Item 18: Commercial Law Leagaue Position Paper on Chapter 15.

The Reporter indicated that the suggested stylistic changes were in the nature of
comments and would be considered along with any other comments to the affected rules.

Agenda Item 19; Request from CM/ECF Working Group to Review Rules 8006 and 8007
Concerning Transmission of the Record on Appeal.

The Chairman referred the matter to the Appeals Subcommittee.

Agenda Item 20; Next Meeting Reminder

The Spring Meeting will be March 29 and 30, 2007 in Marco Island, Florida. The
Chairman asked members to e-mail suggested locations for the Fall 2007 meeting. He said the
current dates under consideration were September 6 and 7, 10 and 11, or 12 and 13.

12 16



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

Supplemental Agenda Item A; ABA Attorney Discipline Proposal.

The Chairman reviewed an ABA proposal to amend the rules to clarify the authority of
the bankruptcy courts to discipline attorneys. He said he was not sure the proposal was really a
rules issue, and suggested referring it to the Attorney Conduct Subcommittee.

Mr. Brunstad provided background for the proposal stating that he thought ABA was
attempting to head-off a legislative response. Mr. Rabiej said that the Judicial Conference first
addressed this issue about 25 years ago and came up with model local rules. He said that
Standing Committee also attempted to address the issue about 15 years ago but that it turned into
a quagmire because so many players were involved.

Several members were in favor of the Chairman's suggestion that the matter should
considered by a subcommittee. And Mr. Walton said that a representative of the EOUST should
participate in any subcommittee meetings on the matter. After additional discussion, the
Chairman referred the matter to the Attorney Conduct Subcommittee and requested a
report in the spring.

Supplemental Agenda Item B: Possible Rule 4004 Amendment

Judge Wedoff described a need to amend Rule 4004. He said that § 1328(f) provides a
limitation on a chapter 13 discharges that did not exist before, which raises several issues. For
example, does the 2 or 4 year limitation period begin on the filing date of the prior case, or on the
date of the prior discharge? And how will the change be enforced?

In anticipation of this agenda item, Mr. Waldron surveyed the court clerks and found that
most courts will deny a discharge in a chapter 7 case (which has historically had time-related
discharge limitations) only if someone initiates an objection to discharge complaint. He said that
many courts, however, will close the case without a discharge if no complaint is filed.

Judge Wedoff suggested revising Rule 4004 to require an objection to deny the discharge
in chapter 13, as most courts already require in chapter 7. Mr. Brunstad suggested sending the
matter to a subcommittee. Judge Overstreet agreed the issue should be considered by a
subcommittee, and she suggested that the complaint procedure is too cumbersome to deal with
this matter, and that a motion procedure might be better. The Chairman referred the matter to
the Consumer Subcommittee.

Supplemental C: Proposed Revision to Form 8

The Reporter reviewed a suggestion from Bankruptcy Judge Elizabeth L. Perris to revise Form 8,
Debtor's Statement of Intention, to clarify that debtors must indicate both whether the property is
claimed as exempt, and whether the debtor intends to surrender, reaffirm, or redeem the property.
The Chairman referred the matter to the Consumer Subcommittee.

17
13



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

Supplemental D; Recommendation to Adopt Rule Expanding Methods to Invest Estate
Funds

The Reporter reviewed a suggestion from the law firm of Baker & Hostetler that the rules
be amended to allow for the investment of estate funds in certain approved accounts without the
need to post a bond. Providing background, the Reporter said that 11 U.S.C. §345 generally
requires the trustee or DIP to seek a court order to invest estate funds in a non-FDIC insured
account without posting a bond or collateral for the investment. Baker & Hostetler suggested a
rule that would provide investment safe harbors that the trustee could use without providing a
bond or collateral. The Reporter identified at least two problems with the proposal: first, it was
unclear whether a rule could be drafted that does not conflict with the statutory language in §
345; second, because the issue seemed to address policy, he thought it might more appropriately
be considered by the Bankruptcy Administration Committee.

Mr. Walton advocated giving the matter to a subcommittee to determine whether an
appropriate rule could be drafted. But Judge Wedoff questioned whether any rule could be
drafted that would comply with § 345. Both Judge Wedoff and Judge Overstreet thought that it
might make more sense for the EOUST to create a proposed general order that could be adopted
by courts locally.

Judge Hartz indicated that the standing committee is currently looking at the limits of a
standing order vs. a local rule. Mr. Shaffer thought that this was not rules issue. And Mr.
Brunstad thought it should be considered by a subcommittee.

The Chairman referred the matter to the Business Subcommittee and indicated that
he would send a copy to the chair of the Bankruptcy Administration Committee, Circuit
Judge Marjorie 0. Rendell. Judge Overstreet said she would present the matter to Judge
Rendell.

Potential Changes to Schedules I and J and the IFP Waiver Form.

Mr. Wannamaker said he thought there would be a need to make certain technical
changes to schedules I and J and the IFP notice with respect to net income. He said he would
prepare something for review by the Forms Subcommittee.

Administrative Matters

The Chairman informed the Committee that a hearing on the rules published for comment
in August, 2006 is tentatively scheduled for January 22, 2007. He requested that members keep
their calendars clear in case hearings were held.

Judge Walker moved that the meeting be adjourned. Judge Wedoff seconded the motion.
The Chairman commented that this would be Judge Walker's last meeting, as his second term on
the Committee was expiring. And he thanked Judge Walker for his service. He then asked that
the minutes reflect that for the first time in six years, Judge Walker made a motion that was
seconded by Judge Wedoff. The meeting was adjourned.

1s
14



September 2006 Bankruptcy Rules Committee - Draft Minutes

Respectfully submitted,

Stephen "Scott" Myers

15 19





MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: JUDGE ZILLY, CHAIR

RE: STANDING COMMITTEE'S CONCERNS ABOUT RULES 7052, 9021, AND
NEW RULE 7058

DATE: FEBRUARY 27, 2007

In 2002, Rule 58 F.R.Civ.P. was amended to provide that if the court did not issue a

judgment on a separate document, then appeal of the judgment must be taken not later than 150

days after the docketing of the judgment or order being appealed. Bankruptcy Rules 9021 and

5003 have governed the entry of judgments in the bankruptcy case as well as in adversary

proceedings and contested matters. The amendment to Civil Rule 58 provided an impetus for the

Bankruptcy Rules Committee to study the issue anew.

The following is the text of Rules 7052, 9021 and proposed new Rule 7058 approved at

our September 2006 meeting and presented in January 2007 to the Standing Committee for

publication. These rules were recommended as a package of amendments to implement changes

to the Bankruptcy Rules regarding the application of the "separate document" requirement for

judgments.

RULE 7052. Findings by the Court

Rule 52 F. R. Civ. P. applies in adversary proceedings. The

reference in Rule 52 F. R. Civ. P. to the entry of judgment under

Rule 58 F. R. Civ. P. means the entry of a judgment or order under

Rule 5003(a).

20



COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to clarify that the reference in Rule 52
F. R. Civ. P. to Rule 58 F. R. Civ. P. and its provisions is construed
as a reference to the entry of a judgment or order under Rule
5003(a).

RULE 7058. Entry of Judgment

Rule 58 F. R. Civ. P. applies in adversary proceedings. The

reference in Rule 58 F. R. Civ. P. to the civil docket means the

docket maintained by the clerk under Rule 5003(a).

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule makes Rule 58 F. R. Civ. P. applicable in
adversary proceedings and is added in connection with the
amendments to Rule 9021.

Rule 9021. Entry of Judgment

Exce. a s otherwie pro.vided he1re, Rule 58 F. R. Civ. P.

applies in c 1-e unde. t.. Every judgm1nt 1 e.ntered in ..

adversary prcedn or con1 tested miattern shall be set fibrth onp

separ ate dv,.,u-ctt. A judgment or order is effective when entered

p ed in under Rule 5003. Thel ... ..... in Rule 58 F. R.

Civ. P. to Rukl 79(a) F. K. Civ. P. shall b•.i I ad as a i•refernce tU

Rule 5003 of ths um

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended in connection with the amendment that
adds Rule 7058. The entry of judgment in adversary proceedings is
governed by Rule 7058, and the entry of a judgment or order in all
other proceedings is governed by this rule.

21



The Standing Committee approved the recommendations of our Committee which will

have the effect of making Rule 58 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure only applicable in

adversary proceedings. Without changing the effect of the proposed rule changes, some

members of the Standing Committee asked us to reconsider the use of certain words in the

proposed rules we had presented for approval. This memo outlines the issues raised and

suggests some changes. These proposals have also been reviewed by Dean Ponoroff and Jeff

Morris and I believe they concur in the recommendation.

Rule 7052

Add "In such proceedings," at the beginning of the second sentence. I recommend we

make this change but use the words "In these proceedings" and avoid using "such".

Change "means" in the second sentence to "shall be read as". We use similar wording in

present Rule 9021 when we say "The reference in Rule 58 F.R.Civ. P. to Rule 79(a) F.R.Civ.P.

shall be read as a reference to Rule 5003 of these rules". Dean Ponoroff had recommended to the

Style Committee changing "means" to "shall be read as a reference to" to conform to Rule 9021.

In light of the Standing Committee concerns and the Dean's recommendations, I recommend we

change "means" to "shall be read as a reference to".

Rule 7058

Add "In these proceedings," at the beginning of the second sentence. I recommend we

make this change.

22



Rule 9021

Change the word "effective" in the first sentence of the proposed rule. No substitute was

suggested by members of the Standing Committee. No change is recommended here. This

would be a change to the existing language of Rule 9021. Please note here that this has never

been discussed by the Style Subcommittee.

23



MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: COMMENTS SUBMITTED PRIOR TO JANUARY 10, 2007 ON PROPOSED
RULES AND FORMS

DATE: FEBRUARY 28, 2007

We have received 12 comments up to January 10, 2007, regarding the rules and forms
published in August 2006. Four of the comments are addressed to the means test forms, Official
Forms 22A, 22B, and 22C. These are comments 06-BK-003, 06-BK-005, 06-BK-009, and 06-
BK-0 11. The remaining comments, as well as a portion of one of the comment 06-BK-0Il on
the means test forms, address other rules or forms. This memo summarizes the comments on
matters other than the means test and will recommend whether to send the comments to a
Subcommittee for consideration prior to the March meeting. The Subcommittees have taken
action on these comments and have recommendations for the Advisory Committee. A separate
memo will summarize the comments submitted hereafter and up to the February 15 deadline for
the submission of comments.

Judge Geraldine Mund (Bankr. C.D. Cal.) submitted Comment 06-BK-001 in which she
asked the Committee to reconsider Rule 1006 to prevent the payment of fees to petition preparers
when debtors obtain a waiver of the filing fee. She suggests that it is improper to allow the
petition preparer to recover a fee in the case when the court has to take its action without any
funding by the debtor. The Advisory Committee had an opportunity to consider this suggestion
at the meeting in Seattle in September, 2006, and concluded that the rule should not be amended.
The Committee determined that the debtor's access to the bankruptcy courts should not be barred
on the grounds that the debtor had paid a petition preparer to assist in the preparation of the case.
Thus, no further action is necessary regarding this comment.

Judge Elizabeth Perris (Bankr. D.Ore.) Submitted Comment 06-BK-002. She has asked
the Committee to consider revising Official Form 8 which is the Chapter 7 Individual Debtor's
Statement of Intention. She suggests that the existing form is confusing to many debtors who do
not complete the form fully. For example, they often indicate that they intend to claim the listed
property as exempt, but they may need to take further action (redemption or reaffirmation) in
order to be entitled to retain the property. The matter is pending before the Consumer
Subcommittee which will be making a recommendation to the Advisory Committee for
changing Form 8.

Mr. Thomas Yerbich of Alaska submitted Comment 06-BK-003. This comment is

1

24



addressed to the means test and will be forwarded to Judge Wedoff for his review.

Mr. Mark Diamond, Operations Manager of the Bankruptcy Court for the Southern
District of New York, submitted Comment 06-BK-004 which is addressed to Official Form 23,
the form by which individual debtors certify that they have completed an instructional course in
personal financial management. Completion of such a course is a condition to the entry of a
discharge, and the form is intended to advise the court that the condition has been met. Mr.
Diamond suggests that the form be expanded to separate disability and incapacity as grounds for
a debtor to be exempted from meeting the requirement, and he proposes that the form incorporate
the statutory definitions of those terms. He also recommends that the form include a reference to
the United States trustee website which presumably would identify any districts in which there is
a waiver of the course completion requirement. I think that the slight expansion of the form is a
valuable suggestion and could serve to better focus debtors' attention on the standards they must
meet to be exempted from the personal financial management course requirement. I do not think
it is necessary to provide a cross reference to the United States trustee website for debtors to
determine if their district is exempt from the requirement. The clerk in each district will be very
much aware of whether any exemption exists for their particular district, so I do not believe any
amendment is necessary to implement that suggestion. I would suggest that the matter be
forwarded to the Forms Subcommittee for its review.

Mr. Thomas Yerbich of Alaska submitted Comment 06-BK-005. This comment is
addressed to the means test and will be forwarded to Judge Wedoff for his review.

Mr. George Kamen of Texas submitted Comment 06-BK-006 which is addressed to the
amendments to Rule 4003(b)(2) which would permit a trustee to object to a fraudulently claimed
exemption at any time up to one year after the case is closed. Mr. Kamen suggests that since the
trustee is no longer serving in the case once it is closed, the rule should refer to the "former
trustee" rather than the "trustee." I do not believe that any confusion will result from referring to
the trustee rather than the "former trustee," so I do not believe any action is necessary to be taken
on this comment. In any event, I do not believe it is necessary to forward the comment to any
subcommittee for consideration prior to the March meeting.

Mr. Henry Sommer of Pennsylvania, and a former member of the Committee, submitted
Comment 06-BK-007 which is addressed to Official Form 24, the Certification to Court of
Appeals By All Parties. He suggests that the form should include a signature line for the
Appellee of the Attorney for the Appellee. The form currently has a signature line only for the
Appellant and the Appellant's attorney. I believe that the form should be changed as he
suggests, and I do not believe that it is necessary for any subcommittee consider the matter
prior to the March meeting.

Comment 06-BK-008 was submitted by an unnamed person who apparently is a
bankruptcy petition preparer. The comment urges that the Committee take action to increase the
fees paid to petition preparers. The Rules do not govern the fees allowed to petition preparers,

2

25



and I believe that there is no need to take action on this proposal.

Judge Keith Lundin (Bankr. W.D. Tenn.) submitted Comment 06-BK-009. It is a
lengthy commentary with extensive suggestions for amendments to the means test forms. Since
this comment is addressed to the means test, it will be forwarded to Judge Wedoff for his
review.

Mr. Jack Horsley submitted Comment 06-BK-010. Mr. Horsley regularly comments on
the published rules, and his comments in this instance involve several rules. His comments
generally are brief, and in many instances they are focused on language in the rule that has not
been changed. For example, he suggests that Rule 2002(b) be amended to provide that notices be
given to the "current trustee" as opposed to the "trustee" as is set out in the current version of the
rule. I do not believe that the rule needs to be changed in the manner suggested. He also
proposes that Rule 1007(b)(1)(B) be amended from its existing language that is not proposed to
be changed to include a statement that the debtors expenditures "be described." Since the rule is
directing the debtor to use an official form which itself would include descriptions of the
expenditures (e.g., the categories of expenses), I do not believe that there is any need to adopt
this proposed change. Mr. Horsley also suggests that Proposed Rule 4002(b)(2)(A) be amended
to add "or other relevant information" after the rule's listing of payment advices as evidence of
current income. I believe that making the addition he suggests would be redundant and should
not be adopted because the rule already asks for evidence of current income. He also suggests a
change to a portion of Rule 9006(b)(1) that was not changed from the current version of the rule.
He proposes that the rule include a service requirement for notices. That portion of the rule,
however, only addresses the general procedure for the court to follow when it determines whether
to enlarge a time period. It does not include any service requirement, so I do not believe that this
suggestion of Mr. Horsley be adopted. Finally, he recommends that a portion of Rule 2003 that
was not recommended for change be altered by clarifying that locations other than courtrooms
might be appropriate to include in the rule. The rule concerns the location of meetings of
creditors, and it already includes locations other than courtrooms, so I do not believe that the
Committee should adopt this recommendation. Consequently, I recommend that the
Committee not adopt any of the suggestions submitted by Mr. Horsley, and I do not believe
that it will be necessary to have a subcommittee consider the proposals prior to the March
meeting.

Judge Marvin Isgur (Bankr. S.D. Tex.) submitted Comment 06-BK-011. The comment
addresses a number of matters, but it can be broken down into four primary parts. The first is a
suggestion that Rule 1007 be amended in a variety of ways that would also require the revision of
a number of existing forms and the adoption of new forms. The second part of the proposal is a
suggestion to amend Rule 2007.2 to require the debtor to file a motion at the start of the case to
seek a determination of whether a patient care ombudsman needs to be appointed. The third
recommendation concerns proposed changes to Rule 4004 to prevent the improper issuance of a
discharge in cases in which the debtor claims an excessive discharge under § 522(q) or if a
chapter 13 debtor has failed to make all required domestic support obligation payments. His

3

26



fourth recommendation is that Exhibit D to Official Form 1 (the "warning to debtors that they
generally must have prepetition credit counseling) is misleading and should be changed.

As to the first issue, I believe that Judge Isgur has made a number of excellent points. He
is suggesting that the forms should be renumbered so that all of the forms necessary in the bulk
of consumer cases under chapters 7 and 13 are bundled together for ease of use by debtors. He
also suggests that Rule 1007 be revised to refer to the specific Official Forms that debtors must
file rather than simply directing persons to file the appropriate Official Form. As to these
suggestions, I think that they should be forwarded to the subcommittee that will be
studying the forms generally. Judge Walker's previous suggestion for a more global study of
the forms is similar in many ways to this part of Judge Isgur's proposal, so putting them together
is appropriate.

As to his suggestion for the amendment to Rule 2007.2, I do not believe that the change is
necessary. The statute, § 333 of the Code, requires the court to appoint a patient care
ombudsman unless the court concludes that the appointment is unnecessary in the specific case.
Also, the petition includes a requirement that the debtor identify itself as a health care business,
so the court should know in every instance whether it needs either to appoint the ombudsman or
to make the determination that such an appointment is unnecessary. Although I do not believe
that the change should be made, the Subcommittee on Attorney Conduct and Health Care
should also consider the suggestion about the revision of Rule 2007.2 prior to the March
meeting.

Judge Isgur's suggested amendments to Rule 4004 regarding the delay in the entry of a
discharge seem appropriate to me. We do not want to allow debtors who are not eligible to
obtain a discharge to have one issued in error. A couple of adjustments along the lines he
suggests may improve the rules and prevent the inadvertent entry of a discharge when a debtor is
not eligible to receive a discharge. I believe that the Consumer Subcommittee should
consider this suggestion prior the March meeting.

Finally, I think that the Consumer Subcommittee also should consider Judge Isgur's
suggested changes to Exhibit D to the Voluntary Petition. The case law is still developing on
the effect of a petition filed when the debtor has not completed prepetition credit counseling.
The Exhibit is intended to protect debtors (especially those who file pro se) from filing a case
improvidently and suffering whatever consequences follow from an improper filing. Those
consequences may be different from or additional to the ones set out in the warning, and the form
should be as accurate a possible.

Ms. Robin Hunt of Colorado has suggested a change in Proposed Official Form 5, the
Involuntary Petition form. In Comment 06-BK-012, she suggests changing the statutory
reference in the filing fee box which refers to the waiver of certain fees for child support
creditors. The form refers to § 304(g) of the Bankruptcy Reform Act of 1994, and Ms. Hunt
suggests that the reference should be to § 303(g). I believe she is referring to § 303(g) of the

4

27



Code which governs involuntary cases. The reference in the form is correct. It was § 304(g) of
the 1994 legislation (Pub. L. No. 103-394) that includes the waiver of fees for child support
creditors. That provision, however, is not codified in title 11. Perhaps a reference to the Public
Law Number would be helpful, but I do not think it is necessary. The Forms Subcommittee
could be asked to consider the matter.

5

28





MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: COMMENTS SUBMITTED AFTER JANUARY 10, 2007 ON PROPOSED

RULES AND FORMS

DATE: FEBRUARY 28, 2007

Since January 10, 2007, there were an additional 46 comments received on the Proposed

Rules and Official Forms published in August 2006. Twenty-nine of the comments were nearly

identical submissions indicating support for the comments offered by Bankruptcy Judge Keith

Lundin in Comment 06-BK-009. 1 Thus, there were seventeen additional comments that were

submitted. Of these seventeen, two are more properly addressed as a suggestion for an

amendment to the rules without regard to the currently Published Proposed Rules. In Comment

06-BK-054, Bankruptcy Judge Dennis Montali recommends an amendment to Rule 1019 that

would establish a new time period to object to exemptions upon the conversion of a case to

chapter 7. This is a matter that the Committee has not considered, and, as Judge Montali

The twenty-nine comments are Comments 06-BK-021 to 048, and Comment 06-BK-
058. With the exception of a very few, these comments literally state that they support the
comment submitted by Judge Lundin. Several add very brief additional statements, usually
voicing specific support for a particular part of Judge Lundin's analysis. For example, Comment
06-BK-048 submitted by Henry Hildebrand, III, Esq., specifically urges that Judge Lunidn's
suggestions about revising Lines 3 and 4 of Form 22C be adopted. Mr. Hildebrand also notes
that subsequent legislation regarding charitable contributions rendered one of Judge Lundin's
suggestions no longer appropriate. In Comment 06-BK-041, on the other hand, Wendell Sherk,
Esq., opposes Judge Lundin's recommendations for amending Lines 3 and 4 on the form. Mr.
Sherk otherwise supports the proposals. Several of these comments suggested that they
supported the comments of NACBA or Henry Sommer, and it appears that Judge Lundin's
recommendations were presented to a NACBA audience which may explain some minor
differences in the way in which the support was identified.

29



requests, should be studied by the Committee in the future. In Comment 06-BK-016,

Bankruptcy Judge Colleen Brown of the District of Vermont also offered suggested revisions that

are more in the nature of changes that are not the result of the 2005 amendments to the

Bankruptcy Code. Judge Brown makes recommendations relating to the protection of privacy

beyond social security numbers as well as changes to improve the rules governing interlocutory

appeals. I recommend that these issues as well be considered by the appropriate Subcommittees

(Forms and Appeals) hereafter. The remaining comments are summarized below.

Comment 06-BK-013. (Susan Thruston, Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court, District of Rhode

Island) In this comment, Ms. Thruston suggests that Rule 1019 be amended to require

specifically that Form 22A be filed whenever a case is converted to chapter 7. The Consumer

Subcommittee considered this matter and concluded that no amendment should be made to

Rule 1019, although the Subcommittee did recommend that the Committee Note be

amended to reflect that the establishment of a deadline for filing a motion under § 707(b)

does not mean that such motions are appropriate.

Comment 06-BK-014. (Bankruptcy Judges Wesley Steen and Marvin Isgur, Southern District of

Texas) Judges Steen and Isgur recommended that the Committee address the problem of debtors

who claim that their debts are not primarily consumer debts and the application of the means test

and § 521 when a court later concludes that the debts are primarily consumer debts. The

Consumer Subcommittee considered this suggestion and adopted a solution different than

the specific solution recommended by Judges Steen and Isgur, but intended to accomplish

the same result. Form 22A would be amended to insert a check box at the beginning of the

form to permit the debtor to state that his or her debts are not primarily consumer debts.

2

30



Proposed Rule 1007 (b)(4) would also be amended by deleting the words "with primarily

consumer debts" from line 65 of the published rule. This results in all individual debtors

having to file a means test form, but a debtor who claims that his or her debts are not primarily

consumer debts can simply check the appropriate box and ignore the remainder of the form.

Importantly, if the court later concludes that the debts are primarily consumer debts, the case

would not be dismissed under § 521(i) for failure to file the required form.

Comment 06-BK-015 (Internal Revenue Service) The IRS submitted this comment with several

suggested amendments to the Proposed Rules, and other suggestions as to rules for which no

amendments were published in 2006. The IRS recommended that Proposed Rule 2002(g)(2) be

amended to include Rule 5003(e) as an exception to the rule governing designated addresses for

creditors, and the Business Subcommittee accepted that proposal. The Subcommittee also

addressed several other comments and proposals submitted by the IRS. The first issue relates to

the ability of the IRS to seek an enlargement of time within which to file a § 1308 claim. The

proposed rule, Rule 3002(c), permits the IRS to seek the enlargement of other time periods, but

does not permit the enlargement of the time to file a § 1308 claim. The Subcommittee

concluded that there is no basis for distinguishing between §1308 claims and other claims,

so that the rule should be revised as suggested by the IRS to permit the enlargement of time

to fe §1308 claims.

The IRS also recommended a change in the Committee Note to Rule 4002. The

Subcommittee approved a proposed revision to that Committee Note to clarify that the

debtor must obtain a copy of a tax return or a tax transcript even if the debtor does not

have possession of those documents. This distinguishes the tax returns from other

3

31



documents that the debtor must file. The next issue raised by the IRS was the need to amend

Rule 5003 to permit the IRS and governmental units to have separate addresses in a register

maintained by the clerk for §505(b) notices, as well as for other notices. The Subcommittee

discussed the matter at some length, and concluded that the statute requires a separate

register for §505(b) addresses. Therefore, the Subcommittee recommends that the rule be

rewritten to recognize those distinctions.

The IRS then offered two additional suggestions for amendments to rules based on

§716(e) of BAPCPA. That section recommends both that the IRS be allowed more time to

object to confirmation of Chapter 13 plans than is applicable to other parties, as well as to

prohibit the filing of objections to any IRS claim for § 1308 taxes until a return for those taxes has

been filed. The Subcommittee discussed each of these measures, and concluded that Rule

3007 should be amended to prohibit the filing of an objection to a §1308 claim unless and

until a return for those taxes has been filed.

The Subcommittee concluded that it would not be appropriate to amend Rule 3015 to

permit the IRS to file an objection to confirmation after a Chapter 13 Plan had already been

confirmed. Nevertheless, the Subcommittee concluded that it should study the issue further

for the purpose of making a recommendation to the Advisory Committee on the topic at the

September meeting.

Comment 06-BK-017 (National Conference of Bankruptcy Judges) This comment is a

resolution of the NCBJ that the guidelines for court to court communication published jointly by

the III and ALI be consulted by the Advisory Committee in the consideration of rules governing

these matters. The Subcommittee has considered these guidelines, and has concluded that

4

32



they should not be directly adopted by the rules. Rather, the courts should be accorded

fairly broad discretion to adopt whatever guidelines they believe necessary and appropriate in

the circumstances. The Cross Border Subcommittee, however, does recommend that the

Committee Note to Proposed Rule 5012 be revised to mention specifically that these

guidelines are available for adoption should the court see fit to do so.

Comment 06-BK-018 (National Bankruptcy Conference "NBC") This comment addresses a

number of rules and forms. The comment makes recommendations concerning the patient care

ombudsman, notices to creditors with foreign addresses, and consumer bankruptcy issues. These

matters may be considered by the Consumer Subcommittee prior to the March meeting and any

recommendations following therefrom will be provided to the Advisory Committee by a

supplemental report.

As to consumer matters, the NBC suggests on pages 4-5 of the comment that Exhibit D to

the Voluntary Petition be amended to delete any requirement that the debtor file a motion with

the court to obtain a postponement of the credit counseling obligation. The NBC argues that §

109(h)(3) differs from (h)(4) in that subsection (h)(4) specifically requires a notice and hearing,

while (h)(3) does not. Thus, they suggest that the debtor only be required to submit the

certification that exigent circumstances exist to warrant the postponement. I do not believe that

we should adopt this proposal. The two subsections differ in their language, but subsection

(h)(3)(A)(iii) requires that the certification be satisfactory to the court. That requirement means

that the court must render a decision on the certification. Requests for court action are made by

motion (or application), and I think it is more manageable for the debtor to file the motion. This

will then appear separately on the docket, and it will be easier to keep track of the court's action

5

33



if it is tied to the motion. The trustee would be aware of the debtor's intention to seek the

postponement since it would be included with the petition. Therefore, I do not believe that

Rule 1007(b)(3)(D) should be changed. I also do not believe that the instructions in the

nature of a warning as to the consequences of seeking a postponement should be changed.

The Subcommittee has considered these issues in response to other comments and has

concluded that no change should be made.

The NBC also suggests that a new rule be proposed that would require the court to act

within 21 days after the filing of the certification. This is necessary, because if the request is

granted, the debtor still must obtain the counseling within 30 days after the commencement of

the case. While this accurately describes the operation of the postponement mechanism, I do not

believe it is necessary to include this directive in a rule. The statute is self executing, and

the courts are aware of the deadline facing the debtor. Therefore, I do not believe this

suggestion should be adopted. Even if the Subcommittee believes that the proposal should

be adopted, I think that the proposed rule would have to be published for comment in

August 2007.

The NBC next recommends that Proposed Rule 1007(b)(7) and the sentence in Proposed

Rule 1007(c) referring back to (b)(7) be deleted. These provisions require the debtor to file a

statement of completion of a personal financial management course. The NBC recommends that

the rule and Official Form 23 be deleted in favor of a system in which the trustee would be

required to come forward to prevent the entry of a discharge for a debtor who has not completed

the course. They assert that this is appropriate because the United States trustee would have

access to a computer data base of persons who have completed the course. The course providers,

6

34



according to the regulations of the United States trustee, must have sufficient computer

capabilities to provide certificates of completion of the course, so the trustee would have that

information available. The NBC asserts that this should be sufficient, and that Rule 4004(c)

could be amended to require a party in interest to come forward to move for the withholding of a

discharge in the absence of a certificate being awarded to the debtor. The Subcommittee

considered such a regime and concluded that it would be more workable to have the debtor (who

has the greatest interest in obtaining the discharge) file the Official Form 23. I think we should

continue that practice, and would not recommend that we adopt this portion of the NBC

recommendation. I do believe, however, that we should consider adopting the

recommendation of the NBC that Rule 5009 be amended to insert a new subdivision that

would direct the court to notify the debtor that the case may be closed without the entry of

a discharge. This would provide the debtor with notice that some additional action may

need to be taken. This would be a new rule, however, and it would be necessary to publish

the rule for comment in August 2007.

The NBC recommends at pages 7-9 of the comment that the Committee adopt an Official

Form for reaffirmation agreements. They recommend that a portion of the Official Form set out

in an accessible manner the information necessary to determine if the proposed reaffirmation

agreement would create a presumption of an undue hardship. The Subcommittee has already

approved, in principle, such a form, and the Forms Subcommittee will be presenting the

Form to the Advisory Committee.

Finally, the NBC opposes the extension of the time to object to exemptions from 30 to 60

days in Proposed Rule 4003(b)(1). They assert that the additional 30 days (which runs from the

7

35



conclusion of the § 341 meeting) would leave a debtor's property in limbo and would delay the

prompt administration of cases. Moreover, trustees currently are known to hold the § 341

meetings open to allow for the resolution of questions about the propriety of exemption claims.

They also suggest that the new deadline set out in Proposed Rule 4003(b)(2) (trustee has up to

one year after the closing of the case to object to a fraudulently claimed exemption) provides

insufficient notice to the debtor of the filing of the objection. They suggest that the last sentence

of subdivision (b)(2) provide that "The trustee shall deliver or mail the objection to the debtor

and the debtor's attorney, and, if the debtor did not file the list, to the person filing the list and to

that person's attorney." I think this additional notice to the debtor is appropriate, but I

would recommend that the last sentence state that "The trustee shall deliver or mail the

objection to the debtor and the debtor's attorney, and, to any person filing the list of

exempt property and to that person's attorney." I also believe that there is no need to

amend Rule 4003(b)(1) to extend the time to object to exemptions, although the Advisory

Committee has already adopted that position.

The NBC's first comment on the rules relating to patient care ombudsmen is that

Proposed Rule 1021 should be amended to require that whenever a petition is filed in which the

debtor or the petitioning creditors in an involuntary case identify the debtor as a health care

business, that notice of that status be sent to the persons listed in Proposed Rule 1021(b). The

not would advise that the debtor is a health care business and that parties have a limited time to

move that the court not appoint a patient care ombudsman. However, Proposed Rule 2007.2(d)

permits any party in interest to move for the termination of the appointment of the ombudsman at

any time during the case. There may be some problem of inertia if an ombudsman is appointed

at the start of the case and a party in interest moves thereafter for the termination of the

appointment, but I do not believe that constitutes a sufficient reason to amend either Proposed

8

36



Rules 1021 or 2007.2. The NBC also suggests inserting into Proposed Rule 2015.1 a directive

that the court may excuse the obligation to notify patients that the patient care ombudsman will

be submitting a report to the court. The suggestion is that some patients in psychiatric or acute

care facilities may be injured by receiving the notice, so the court should be authorized to limit

the notice to prevent the injury. Proposed Rule 2015.1 already beings with the words "Unless the

court orders otherwise," so I do not believe it would be necessary to add them to the next

sentence of the rule as well. Therefore, I would not recommend that we adopt that change to

Proposed Rule 2015.1.

Finally, as to health care businesses, the NBC recommends that Proposed Rule 6011 be

amended in three ways. First, it recommends that "request" be substituted for "direct" on line 18

of the rule as published. The suggestion is based on concerns that a family member who is

"directed" as opposed to "requested" to inform a patient of a particular notice could be

susceptible to sanctions including contempt. The NBC also notes that § 351(1)(B) requires only

that the trustee "attempt" to notify patients that their records will be destroyed. I do not believe

that this language in the statute justifies adopting the recommended change. Inserting "request"

instead of "direct" could permit family members to withhold the information from the patient

when the court expects the patient to be informed. Therefore, I would not recommend that we

adopt this amendment that the NBC suggests to Proposed Rule 6011. The NBC also

recommends two other changes for Proposed Rule 6011. They recommend that the last sentence

of Proposed Rule 6011 (b) be amended to provide that the notice be sent to the patient or a family

member or contact person rather than to the patient and the family member of contact person. As

the suggestion notes, this is more consistent with the statute, but I believe that in the

Committee's discussion of the issue, the prevailing view was that there should be notice to

both groups to improve the likelihood that the notices will be received and effective. I see

no reason to change that position, and recommend that the Committee not adopt this

proposed amendment to Proposed Rule 6011(b). The last recommendation on Proposed Rule

6011 is that subdivision (c) should be amended to provide a one year deadline rather than a

"reasonable time" for the trustee to retain proof of compliance with the notice requirements of

the rule whenever the proof of service is not filed under seal. The Advisory Committee

9

37



considered this issue previously, and concluded that the trustee would be in the best

position to determine what a reasonable time would be to retain the proof of compliance. If

a trustee has particular concerns, the proof of compliance could be filed under seal, and the

trustee would not be governed by the "reasonable time" requirement. Thus, I would not

recommend that this suggestion be adopted.

The last category of comments submitted by the NBC in 06-BK-0 18 relates to notices to

foreign creditors. In particular, the Conference recommends that the instructions on Forms 9E

and 9F be revised slightly to clarify that in those cases the court will later set a bar date for the

filing of claims, and that the order will apply to all creditors unless the order specifically states

otherwise. Nonetheless, if the notice is sent to a creditor at a foreign address, the creditor may

file a motion for an extension of the deadline. I recommend that this proposal be adopted and

that Forms 9E and 9F be amended accordingly.

The NBC also suggests that even though the Code uses the phrases "foreign creditor" and
"creditor with a foreign address" without any apparent distinction, that the Rules and the

headings should just use the phrase "creditor with a foreign address" throughout. Again, I

believe this change should be made as proposed by the NBC.

Comment 06-BK-019 (Eric Froisland, Esq.) Mr. Froisland is the attorney for a chapter 13

trustee. He submitted this 20 page comment which includes a number of issues that were raised

in Judge Lundin's comment (06-BK-009) and were considered by the Consumer Subcommittee.

The Consumer Subcommittee also considered those aspects of the means test forms raised

only by Mr. Froisland, and the Subcommittee's recommendations on those issues set out in

a separate memo.

Comment 06-BK-020 (National Association of Consumer Bankruptcy Attorneys "NACBA")

This comment was submitted by Henry Sommer, Esq. as President of NACBA. The comment

includes a number of proposals submitted by others. For example, NACBA joins with the NBC

to oppose the lengthening of the time to object to exemptions and the lack of notice to the debtor

if the trustee files an objection under Proposed Rule 4003(b)(2). As to the second matter, notice
to the debtor, I have recommended that we make that change to the rule. NACBA also supports

the NBC in its suggestion that the court be directed to warn debtors prior to the entry of the

10

38



discharge that they have not filed a certificate of completion of the personal financial

management course, as well as in its opposition to the requirement that the debtor file a motion

to obtain a postponement of the prebankruptcy credit counseling requirement. Each of these

matters is discussed above under Comment 06-BK-018. NACBA also suggests that the rules

provide a process by which debtors could cure the failure to complete the personal financial

management course, but I do not see how that can be accomplished beyond what is already

available to debtors. They can seek to reopen the case, but they must pay a filing fee to do so.

The NBC likewise suggests that debtors be allowed to reopen their cases without additional

costs, but the Judicial Conference has already taken a contrary position.

There are two additional proposals offered by NACBA. The first is that Proposed Rule

4004(c)(1)(K) be amended to provide that a motion to approve a reaffirmation agreement would

also constitute grounds for the delay of the discharge. I believe that this is a good suggestion,

and I recommend that the proposed subparagraph (J) rather than (K) be changed as

follows: "a motion for approval of a reaffirmation agreement or a motion to enlarge the

time to file a reaffirmation agreement under Rule 4008(a) is pending;". Secondly, NACBA

recommends that Proposed Rule 1007(b)(1)(F) be amended to provide that the listing of the

relevant information about the education accounts described in § 521 (c) of the Code constitutes a

"record" sufficient to meet the requirements of the Code. The Committee has discussed this

issue and concluded that the specific inclusion of these assets in § 521 and the reference to a

"record" of the interest suggests that mere listing of the asset on the debtor's schedules

would not meet the requirements of the Code. I do not believe that we should change our

position on that matter.

NACBA also offers a suggestion on a matter that we have not addressed to date in the

rules. That is, it suggests that the rules adopt a procedure that would implement the "automatic

dismissal" provision of § 521. They note that some courts have adopted procedures that

implement the provision, and they suggest that a process be proposed that would establish a

warning for debtors that the case will be dismissed if particular papers are not filed. I would

treat this as a suggestion, rather than a comment on the Proposed Rules, and recommend

that it be addressed by the Consumer Subcommittee prior to the next meeting. This is a

11

39



matter of great significance for debtors, and the case law is just beginning to develop on the

issue. There could be a wide variety of ways to resolve the matter, so the Subcommittee will

need time to consider those options.

Comment 06-BK-49 (Commercial Law League) The comment of the Commercial Law League

is addressed entirely to the form plan and disclosure statement in small business chapter 11 cases.

These are Proposed Official Forms 25A and 25B, respectively. The first recommendation is that

the plan and disclosure statement be amended to more specifically provide for the retention and

prosecution of avoidance actions by the debtor. The recommendation is that Article IX of the

plan be amended to insert a provision that explicitly provides that the reorganized debtor is

retaining the right to pursue avoidance actions under § § 542-551 of the Code with a

corresponding insertion to Part VI of the disclosure statement that describes the plan provision.

Currently, Part II(F) of the disclosure statement sets out the debtor's expected actions regarding

the recovery of transfers through the use of the avoiding powers. The discussion of the debtor's

actions regarding the avoiding powers in the disclosure statement is intended to provide creditors

with notice prior to the casting of their ballots as to whether the debtor intends to pursue avoiding

power actions. The form plan does not include a provision expressly addressing the matter.

Instead, the matter is left for possible inclusion in Article IX of the plan. The Business

Subcommittee in preparing the form plan and disclosure statement intended to leave open the

possibility of additional provisions, including a provision governing the post-confirmation

prosecution of avoiding powers actions. The plan proponent can certainly include such a

provision. Including some provisions and not others that might be included in Article IX of the

plan could be misleading to debtors, so no examples of additional provision are given either in

the instructions or the Committee Notes for the plan and disclosure statement. Here again,

providing examples of possible provisions creates the risk of excluding some provisions that are

also worthy of inclusion. Consequently, I do not believe that the form plan or disclosure

statement should be revised as suggested by the Commercial Law League as to the

inclusion of a provision for the prosecution of avoidance actions.

The League next suggests that the form plan and disclosure statement should include a

section that describes in detail the means by which the debtor intends to implement the plan.

12

40



Section 1123(a)(5) requires that the plan include adequate means for its implementation, and the

plan as proposed seems more than adequate with respect to the treatment of claims and interests,

but there is little besides the references to executory contracts and unexpired leases in Article VI

of the plan that sets out what the debtor intends to do to generate the funds necessary to make the

payments called for under the plan. Inserting a section in the plan and disclosure statement

directing the plan proponent to complete such a section would be helpful to the court and

creditors. Therefore, I believe the form plan and disclosure statement should be amended

to include such a section as suggested by the Commercial Law League.

The League also suggests that the Section 5.03 of the proposed plan be amended to

authorize the settlement of disputed claims without court approval if they are below a certain

amount or if the settlement is at or below a maximum discount of the claim. While such

provisions may be sensible, and the League asserts that they may be particularly appropriate in

small cases, I think that such a provision is best left to addition by plan proponents who have a

specific need for the provision. I would not recommend making the settlement without court

approval provision a part of the form plan.

Finally, the League suggests that Section 6.01 of the plan be amended by inserting a new

subsection (b) into the section and redesignating existing subsection (b) as a new subsection (c).

The new subsection (b) would set out the dates by which the necessary payments would be made

to cure any defaults under the contracts. The league points out that § 365(b) of the Code requires

that any defaults be cured at the time of assumption (or at least be promptly cured), and it

suggests that the cure payments be set out in the plan. Under § 1123(b)(2), the assumption,

rejection, or assignment of executory contracts and unexpired leases is subject to § 365, so I do

not believe it would be necessary for the plan to set out the specific payment dates for the debtor

to effect a cure of defaults under executory contracts and unexpired leases. Creditors and lessors

could raise the issue if they are sufficiently concerned about the timing and amount of payments.

Therefore, I would not recommend that this section of the form plan be amended as

suggested by the League.

Comment 06-BK-050 (American Institute of Certified Public Accountants "AICPA") This

comment addresses two new forms adopted as a response to the 2005 amendments to the

13

41



Bankruptcy Code. The first form is Proposed Official Form 25C, the Small Business Monthly

Operating Report. The AICPA suggests that the form be expanded to provide substantially more

information about the status of the debtor's tax filings including explanations for any

delinquencies and the information that may be forthcoming, expanded of payables and

receivables, accrued and unpaid expenses, and more elaborate disclosures about the debtor's

inventory including aging and different values. The second form is Proposed Form 26 which sets

out the Value, Operations, and Profitability of entities in which the debtor owns a substantial or

controlling interest. As to each comment, the AICPA notes that the positions taken in the forms

may not comport with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and that the trigger point for

the presumption of a substantial or controlling interest (20% ownership in Proposed Rule 2015.3)

differs from similar rules followed by the accounting profession. These comments point out that

Form 26 is not what an accountant would adopt if writing on a clean slate. However, the forms

are intended for a different audience and are likely to be completed by the debtor rather than a

professional accountant. The Business Subcommittee worked with the United States Trustee

Program to prepare the Form such that it would be accessible to the small business debtor. I

believe that the Forms strike the proper balance in collecting the necessary information while still

being sufficiently user friendly that the debtor will be able to complete them in a timely, efficient,

and cost effective manner. Therefore, I recommend that the Committee not adopt the

changes proposed by the AICPA.

Comment 06-BK-051 (Financial Services Roundtable) This comment submits four

recommendations for amendments to the Proposed Rules and Forms. First, it suggests that the

requirement that motions to dismiss under § 707(b)(1) and (3) be stated with particularity be

rejected. The Committee has considered this suggestion in the past and determined that

Proposed Rule 1017(e)(1) should not be changed. Second, the Roundtable recommends that

debtors be required to file a certificate that they have completed the personal financial

management course rather than be allowed to file a statement that they have completed the

course (Form 23). The Committee has also considered this matter in the past, and I do not

believe that there is any reason to change that position. Third, it recommends that

certifications by debtors' attorneys be made more explicit on the forms, and the Forms

14

42



Committee has made such a recommendation for a change to the petition. Finally, the

Roundtable recommends that the means test forms should not allow a debtor to claim any

expenses above the amount they actually spend. The Committee has addressed this issue as well,

and has responded to Senator Grassley on this topic. The language of § 707(b)(2) specifically

directs the courts to use the amounts set out in the relevant IRS standards as the expense amounts

allowed in determining a debtor's disposable income. Thus, I do not believe the means test

forms should be changed as suggested by the Roundtable. The Consumer Subcommittee

also recommends that this suggested revision not be adopted.

Comment 06-BK-052 (State Bar of California Committee on Federal Courts) The State Bar

Committee submitted comments on the proposed rules published by each of the Advisory

Committees. Its comment addressed rules relating to consumer cases, health care cases, chapter

11 cases, and notices to creditors with foreign addresses. In the consumer area, the Committee

suggests that Proposed Rule 4003(b)(3) be made explicitly subject to subdivision (b)(2). That is,

the trustee should still have the power to object to a fraudulently asserted exemption within one

year after the closing of the case. I believe that this misunderstands the nature of an objection

governed by subdivision (b)(3). There is no need to correlate the two subdivisions. Even in the

absence of introductory language like "Except as provided in subdivision (b)(2)," the language of

subdivision (b)(3) would not prevent the trustee from acting under (b)(2). Therefore, I do not

believe that we should adopt this suggestion.

The Committee also suggests that Proposed Rule 5008 should not require the court to

send a notice of the presumption of abuse if that notice is required by the late filed statement of

presumption of abuse by the debtor. In that instance, they suggest that the debtor send the notice.

I do not believe that this would necessarily be the best solution. First, the court already has the

mailing or other contact information for all of the creditors. Second, this circumstance should

not arise in too many cases. Thus, the expense should not be that extensive, especially as to

those creditors who are receiving notices electronically. Therefore, I do not believe that we

should adopt the recommendation of the California State Bar Committee regarding

Proposed Rule 5008.

The Committee also recommended that Rule 6011 governing notices of the proposed

15

43



destruction of patient records in health care cases. The State Bar Committee urges that the rule

should provide that the cost of the notice should not be a factor in determining whether the notice

should be sent, and if there are insufficient funds in the estate to pay for the notice, that the cost

of the notice should be paid by the United States trustee or the court. The problem identified in

this comment could be significant in a case where there are no assets available in the estate to

cover the costs of notice. However, the Code provides specifically that this is an obligation of

the trustee, and I think it would be inconsistent with the Code to shift that cost to another party.

Instead, I would assume that if there are no assets available to pay for the notice, noone would be

willing to serve as trustee (or would seek to resign if they were already serving), and the United

States trustee would be required to serve as the trustee under 28 U.S.C. § 586(a)(2). Therefore,

I do not believe that we should adopt the recommendation of the State Bar Committee.

The Committee also suggests that Proposed Rule 2015.3(e) may be inconsistent with

Rule 2003(a). Under Rule 2003(a), the meeting of creditors can be held between 20 and 40 days

after the commencement of the case. Under Proposed Rule 2015.3(e), the debtor must provide at

least 20 days notice to the entity about which the debtor intends to file a financial report that such

a report is to be filed. This is intended to give that entity an opportunity to seek a protective

order under § 107 of the Code. The Committee rightly notes that it is almost impossible to

provide 20 days notice, unless the notice is given on the same day as the filing of the petition.

While this is possible, it would seem better to reduce the notice time to 10 days which should be

a sufficient period to determine whether to seek a protective order. I recommend that we

amend Proposed Rule 2015.3 to reduce the notice period from 20 days to a shorter period,

and I think 10 days would be sufficient.

Finally, the Committee recommends that Proposed Rule 3002(c)(6) be amended

presumably to allow an extension of the filing time only if the request is made after the

expiration of the period. They assert that if the creditor knows of the deadline prior to its

expiration, it is easier just to file the proof of claim rather than to move for an extension. I do not

believe that we should amend the Proposed Rule as they suggest. This rule applies only to a

creditor to whom the notice of the time to file a proof of claim has been mailed to a foreign

address. It is possible, and I believe that the Advisory Committee considered, that the notice

16

44



might be received a short time prior to the expiration of the time period. The rule was written to

allow the creditor with a foreign address to seek an extension in that situation rather than to

permit the time to expire and then seek an extension. The creditor would have to wait for the

time to expire before asking for additional time if we were to adopt the recommendation of the

State Bar Committee. Moreover, I believe that the rule as proposed better implements § 1514(d)

of the Code. Therefore, I recommend that Proposed Rule 3002(c)(6) be approved as

published.

Comment 06-BK-053 (William McNeal, Esq.) This comment objects to the treatment of

secured debt payments under the means test form. It asserts that these amounts are allowed

deductions only if they are reasonable and necessary. The Advisory Committee considered this

issue previously and concluded that since § 707(b)(2) requires that the amounts set out in § 707

(b)(2)(A)(iii) must be deducted from the debtor's current monthly income to determine the

debtor's disposable income, and that sub-subparagraph (iii) has no limitation on the nature of the

secured claim or the collateral, that these amounts must be deducted. Hence, Line 42 on Form

22A and Line 47 on Form 22C each provide for the 1/60th deduction of the secure payments

from the debtor's current monthly income. I do not believe that the form should be changed

and recommend that the proposed amendment be rejected.

Comment 06-BK-055 (American Bankers Association, et.al.) This comment was submitted by

several trade groups of lenders. They suggest amendments to a wide range of rules and forms,

both as regards consumer and business bankruptcies. As to the comments offered on the means

test, the Consumer Subcommittee has considered these suggestions, and its recommendations are

set out separately. The comment (page 8) urges that Exhibit D to the Voluntary Petition be

amended to state more clearly that the debtor must have obtained credit counseling prior to the

commencement of the case if he or she is to check either the first or second box on the form. I

believe that this information is already sufficiently stated on the form (it is in bold print in

the first two boxes of the form) and recommend that this suggestion of the Bankers

Association not be adopted.

The Bankers Association also recommends the adoption of an Official Form for

reaffirmation agreements. The Forms Committee is recommending such a form, though it

17

45



may not be as extensive as the Bankers Association wishes.

The Bankers Association, like the Financial Services Roundtable in Comment 06-BK-

051, also suggests that Proposed Rule 1017(e)(1) be amended to delete the requirement that

motions under § 707(b)(1) and (3) be made with particularity. As noted above, the Advisory

Committee has considered this issue specifically in the past, and I do not believe there is any

reason to change the Committee's position. Thus, I would not recommend that Rule

1017(e)(1) be amended as suggested by the Bankers Association.

The Bankers Association also proposes that the rules be amended to include provisions

that would direct the courts to enter orders under § 362(c)(3)(A) and § 362(c)(4) which limit the

effect of the automatic stay based on prior bankruptcy cases of the debtor. As the Bankers

Association notes, however, these provisions of the Code are self executing. Consequently, I do

not recommend that the Advisory Committee propose any addition to the rules to

implement these sections of the Code.

The Association also urges that the Voluntary Petition be amended to require a debtor's

attorney to make a certification regarding the petition as set out in § 707(b)(4). The Attorney

Conduct Subcommittee has recommended that the language of § 707(b)(4)(D) be added to

the Voluntary Petition immediately above the signature line for the debtor's attorney.

The Bankers Association generally supports the provision in Proposed Rule 4002 (b)(2)

(A) that requires the debtor to bring the most recent payment advice to the § 341 meeting of

creditors, but it suggests two further amendments. First, it suggests that the rule should excuse

the debtor from this obligation only if "the debtor has no reasonable opportunity to obtain the

payment advices" rather than as the rule provides, the payment advices are not in the debtor's

possession. This specific matter was the subject of discussion in the Committee, and the

compromise reached was that possession was the best alternative standard for these documents.

By way of contrast, the debtor must take action to obtain tax returns or tax transcripts that are not

in the debtor's possession. I believe that we should maintain the distinction between these

kinds of documents and that the rule should not be amended as suggested by the Bankers

Association. The Association also suggests that the rule provide a more streamlined process for

parties in interest to obtain these documents from the debtor, but I do not believe that would be

18

46



an appropriate change to the rule. As was discussed in the Committee, this could place a

significant additional burden on the debtor who has already provided the documents to the

creditors' representative, the trustee. Therefore, there is little reason to required the debtor to

make these materials available to any creditor who might request them. Thus, I recommend

that we make no change to Proposed Rule 4002(b)(2)(A).

Under Proposed Rule 4002(b)(4), a creditor can obtain a copy of the debtor's tax return or

tax transcript at the § 341 meeting of creditors if the creditor makes a request to the debtor at

least 15 days before the meeting. The Association notes that this is eight days prior to the time

that the debtor must submit the documents to the trustee, so it proposes that the deadline for

requesting the documents be changed to ten days prior to the meeting of creditors. This would

still be three days prior to the time that the return is due to the trustee, and the Association

suggests that this still provides the debtor with a reasonable opportunity to copy the documents

and provide them to the creditor. Given that Rule 2003(a) permits the meeting of creditors to be

scheduled as early as 20 days after the order for relief, the 15 day notice requirement could be

difficult to meet if the creditor receives notice of the filing by mail. Also, the debtor already has

the tax documents for delivery to the trustee, so I think that a slightly shorter notice period under

Rule 4002(b)(4) would not be too burdensome for the debtor. Therefore, I recommend that the

notice deadline in Proposed Rule 4002(b)(4) be changed from 15 days to 10 days.

The Bankers Association's final recommendation for amendments to the rules governing

consumer cases is to promulgate a rule to ensure the uniform application of the provision in §

1325(a) that has been referred to as the "hanging paragraph" or the "910 provision." This

provision applies to certain purchase money security interests, and there has been some variety of

application of this section in the courts. I do not believe, however, that there is a rules based

solution to the differences in the courts' decisions under the statute. That is a purely

substantive matter that cannot be resolved by adoption of a rule of procedure. Therefore, I

recommend that the Advisory Committee take no action in response to the Association's

recommendation regarding § 1325(a) of the Code.

The Association also suggests revisions to two of the Proposed Rules that operate in

business cases. First, it urges that the deadline for creditors to object to a debtor's

19

47



characterization that it either is or is not a small business debtor. The Voluntary Petition includes

check boxes in which the debtor must make the designation, and under Proposed Rule 1020 a

creditor has up to 30 days after the conclusion of the meeting of creditors or 30 days after any

amendment to the designation within which to object to this characterization. This seems to be

ample time. The Association recognizes that 30 days after the conclusion of the creditors'

meeting is sufficient, but it suggests that there may not be sufficient time for creditors to respond

to amendments. I would expect that any change in designation by a chapter 11 debtor out of the

small business category would be unusual, and the creditors either would already have had an

opportunity to question the debtor at the creditors' meeting, so they would have much of the

information necessary to evaluate the debtor. The most likely reason for the change in

designation would be that a creditors' committee is actively participating in the case, so in that

instance, there would seem to be less need to allow more time to object to the designation of the

debtor. There is very little likelihood of changing to a small business debtor because the time

restrictions built into chapter 11 for small business debtors would generally operate against the

debtor. Consequently, I do not believe that the Committee should change the deadline in

Proposed Rule 1020(b) as suggested by the Bankers Association.

The Association also recommends that Proposed Rule 1020(c) be amended by deleting

the requirement that a request by the United States trustee or a party in interest for a

determination as to whether a creditors' committee is sufficiently active be made within a

reasonable time after the committee fails to be sufficiently active. Instead, the Association

proposes that the deadline be not less than 90 days and that the court be authorized to extend the

deadline if circumstances warrant. I believe that such a change is not warranted. Moreover, I

think that substituting a 90 day deadline would not bring the certainty to the deadline that it

might suggest. The problem with the deadline is not so much when the period ends as it is with

when the period begins. It may be quite difficult to determine when the period should commence

running, and stating that it ends in 90 days tells you very little. It seems unlikely, however, that

90 days would be an appropriate amount of time in any event because of the deadlines included

in the Code for a small business debtor to file and confirm a plan. Ninety days is nearly one-third

of the "life span" of a small business chapter 11 debtor, and permitting a creditor who knows or

20

48



should know that it can act to challenge the debtor's status to use up so much of that time is

inappropriate. The Committee recognized that setting "a reasonable time" as a deadline is

inherently uncertain, but I believe it is a more appropriate deadline than one that would permit if

not encourage strategic behavior by objecting creditors. I recommend that the Committee not

adopt the recommendation of the Bankers Association to impose a new deadline under

Proposed Rule 1020(c).

The Bankers Association also recommends that Proposed Rule 3017.1 be amended to

provide specifically that the deadlines being set by the court under that rule be "a reasonable time

that fully protects the substantive and procedural rights of all holders of claims and interests."

This recommendation relates to a portion of the rule that was not amended. Moreover, it urges

the addition of language to the rule that I believe is inherent in the action that the court would be

taking. There is no need, in my opinion, to remind the courts that when they set deadlines that

the deadlines need to be reasonable. In fact, if there was a need to include such language in the

rule, it would raise questions about the need of the courts to set reasonable deadlines in other

situations. I recommend that the Committee not adopt this proposal suggested by the

Bankers Association.

The Bankers Association's comment also includes references to a number of proposed

rules and forms amendments that the Association believes are proper. These range from matters

governing the appointment of a privacy ombudsman and the rules governing the sale of

personally identifiable information, to the small business plan and disclosure statement and the

reports on entities in which the debtor holds a substantial or controlling interest. The Association

also noted its support of proposed rules governing the election of chapter 11 trustees and the

small business reporting requirements.

Comment 06-BK-056 (American Bankruptcy Institute "ABI") The ABI conducted a survey of

its membership regarding the Proposed Rules and Forms. The survey consisted of questions

about 17 rules. Rule 2002 appears twice in the survey for different reasons. The survey broke

the rules down into different topical categories, and Rule 2002 was considered in both the

consumer area as well as under the cross border case section of the survey. The ABI has in

excess of 10,000 members, and a total of 150 members submitted responses. Not all of the

21

49



members completed the entire survey, and in fact as many as 141 respondents answered one or

more questions on rules that are generally applicable, and as few as 34 members answered

questions on cross border cases. The survey itself would ask for the respondents agreement or

disagreement with a statement, and the strength of a respondents agreement or disagreement with

a particular statement about the rule. It also allowed for individual commentary. Given the

limited response, it is difficult to assess the significance of the positions. The respondents are

not identified (other than as presumably being ABI members), and the questions sometimes are

more directed to the provisions of the Code than to the Rules.2 Consequently, I believe that the

Survey and its results should not be evaluated in the same manner as the comments submitted

directly concerning the language of the Proposed Rules and Forms. They may be consulted for

some guidance as to the views of a small group in response to a question that may or may not

bear on the matters before the Advisory Committee. Perhaps as the ABI has more experience in

the application of the survey process, the questions and comments will be more specifically

directed to the pending proposed rules and forms, and may be of even greater assistance to the

Advisory Committee in the future.

Comment 06-BK-057 (Ms. Margaret Grammar Gay, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Bankruptcy

Court for the District of New Mexico) Ms. Grammar Gay offered comments on several rules and

forms relating to consumer issues. As to Rule 1007(b)(7) and Official Form 23, she notes that

many debtors seem to confuse the prebankruptcy credit counseling requirement and the

predischarge personal financial management course completion requirement. Her suggestion is

that the rule require the debtor to file a certificate of completion of the personal financial

management course rather than simply a statement to that effect. Also, she proposes that Official

Form 23 at least be amended so that it is titled "Debtor's Certification of Completion of

Postpetition Instructional Course." Her suggestion that the debtor be required to file the

2 For example, on page 23 of the submitted comment, the question asks whether a party
(other than the United States trustee) moving for dismissal of a case under § 707 must establish
the harm that the movant has suffered in order to prevail. Such a question may be relevant to a
court that is determining whether to dismiss or grant the motion, but it does not seem appropriate
for the consideration of the Advisory Committee in the act of recommending rules of procedure
to implement the Code.

22

50



certificate (and amend Proposed Rule 4004(c)(1)(H)) is the same as was suggested by the

NBC, and I do not believe that this should be the result. I do, however, believe that the title

to Form 23 should be changed as she recommends. That would also be consistent with the

position of the Forms Subcommittee in its consideration of the form.

Ms. Grammar Gay proposes that Rule 1007 be rewritten so that the list of filing

requirements be stated in a different format. Items would be identified as to when they are due,

such as with the petition, within 15 days after the filing of the petition, and so on. This

suggestion is stylistic and can be considered by the Style Subcommittee. She makes another

suggestion as to Rule 2003 to better accommodate providing notice to creditors in involuntary

cases, but this part of the Rule is not being amended, so this is better treated as a suggestion for

amendment to the rule rather than a comment on the proposed rules.

Ms. Grammar Gay also suggests that Exhibit D to the Voluntary Petition delete the

portion of the form that asks the debtor to summarize the exigent circumstances that warrant the

postponement of completion of the credit counseling requirement because the debtor's motion

will include the same language. Including that statement on the form, however, makes it

available to the trustee and the United States trustee rather than requiring the debtor to serve

those parties with the motion which would actually delay the receipt of the information by the

trustee and United States trustee. Therefore, I do not believe that we should amend Exhibit D

as she recommends.

Ms. Grammar Gay included comments on two other rules. One issue relates to Proposed

Rule 8001 (f)(2) which was published in August 2006. She suggests that the "bright line" test

that the rule attempts to employ may not establish such a bright line. She notes that in New

Mexico, the clerk of the district court requests the clerk of the bankruptcy court to serve the

district court clerk with the certificate of service under Rule 8004. Ms. Grammar Gay asserts that

this has created some confusion as to when the appeal is docketed because the clerk of the district

court apparently "dockets" the matter when it receives the certificate of service of the notice of

appeal rather than when the clerk of the bankruptcy court transmits a copy of the complete record

in the case. This does seem to create some uncertainty, but it would appear that the uncertainty is

a consequence of the clerk of the district court moving more quickly than Rule 8007(b)

23

51



anticipates in the docketing of appeals. I do not believe that this situation warrants a change

in any of the Proposed Rules published for comment in August 2006.

Ms. Grammar Gay recommends that Rule 2003 be amended to establish different

deadlines for the clerk to provide notices to creditors of the § 341 meeting in voluntary and

involuntary cases. She asserts that the common deadlines in the two types of cases present

difficulties for clerks when an involuntary case is commenced. While a proposed amendment to

Rule 2003 was included in the August published rules, the amendment is unrelated to the issue

raised by Ms. Grammar Gay. Therefore, I recommend that the matter be sent to the

Business Subcommittee for its consideration prior to the September meeting of the

Advisory Committee.

Ms. Grammar Gay also made several suggestions for amendments to the forms. In

particular, she recommends that the forms be amended generally to make several stylistic

changes. These suggestions should be forwarded to the Forms Subcommittee for its

consideration prior to the September meeting.

24

52



Comments on Published Amendments to Bankruptcy Rules and Forms

Comment # Name Rule/Form Assignment Status

06-BK-001 Judge Mund Rule 1006

06-BK-002 Judge Perris Form 8

06-BK-003 Thomas Yerbich Form 22C attorney fees

06-BK-004 Mark Diamond Form 23

06-BK-005 Thomas Yerbich Form 22B
§ 1325(b)(2) deductions

06-BK-006 George Kamen Rule 4003(b)(2)

06-BK-007 Henry Sommer Form 24

06-BK-008 Sharon Williams Bankruptcy petition preparer

06-BK-009 Judge Lundin Form 22C attorney fees

Form 22B spousal income

Form 22B business & rental
expenses

Form 22 amounts. paid by
others for household
expenses.

Forms 22 EOUST web
reference

Form 22C use of word
"clothing"

Form 22C gross monthly
income

Form 22C real estate taxes

Form 22C mandatory payroll
deductions

Form 22C Life insurance

Form 22C court-ordered
payments

Form 22C education

53



Form 22C medical expenses

Form 22C use of "total"

Form 22C optional telephone
and internet

Form 22C omitted categories

Form 22C heading for
subpart B of Part IV

Form 22C line 39 instruction

Form 22C line 40 instruction

Form 22C line 42 instruction

Form 22C line 43 instruction

Form 22C line 44 instruction

Form 22C line 45 instruction

Form 22C line 47 instruction

Form 22C line 48 instruction

Form 22C line 49 instruction

Form 22C line 50

Form 22C special
circumstances

Form 22C line 54 instruction

Form 22C line 55 instruction

Form 22C income received
by debtor

06-BK-010 Jack Horsley Rule 1021

06-BK-011 Judge Isgur Renumbering forms

Automatic Dismissal

Rule 2007.2

Form 1 Exhibit D

54



Rule 4004 delay for finan.
Mgmt course § 522(q)

06-BK-012 Robin Hunt Form 5

06-BK-013 Susan Thurston Form 22A cases converted to
chapter 7

06-BK-014 Judges Isgur and Form 22A determination of
Steen consumer debts

06-BK-015 Deborah Butler on Rule 2002(g)(2) govt
behalf of the IRS address, Rule 5003(e)

interplay

Rule 3002(c) extension of
time for § 1308 claims

Rule 4002 clarify Committee
Note

Rule 5003(e) govt. units may
designate more than one
address

Forms 1 and 6

Rule 4002 Committee Note

Rule 3007 objection to
chapter 13 claim

Rule 3015 time for objection
confirmation chapter 13
confirmation re tax returns

06-BK-016 Judge Brown Rule 3001, Form 10

Rules 8003, 8005

06-BK-017 Judge Hopkins on III-ALI Guidelines Rule
behalf of NCBJ 5012

06-BK-018 Richard Levin on Rule 2002(p),(q) and Forms
behalf of the NBC 9E and 9F "creditors with a

foreign address"

Rules 1021

Form 22C

55



Exhibit D to Form 1

Rules 1007 and 4004 and
Form 23

Form 240 as Official Form

Rule 4003(b)

06-BK-019 Eric Froisland on Form 22C marital status
behalf of trustee
Kevin Anderson

Form 22C, line 3 income
from operation of business,
line 4 rental income

Form 22C line 7 amounts
paid by others

Form 22C line 9 income
from other sources

Form 22C line 11 total

Form 22C lines 12-17
commitment period

Form 22C line 19 disposable
income

Form 22C line 24

Form 22C lines 25a, 25b, 26

Form 22C line 27

Form 22C lines 28-29

Form 22C lines 30-37 other
necessary expenses

Form 22C line 31 payroll
deductions

Form 22C line 33 court-
ordered payments

Form 22C line 36 health care

56



Form 22C line 37
telecommunication services

Form 22C line 39 insurance
HSA expenses

Form 22C line 41 protect
against family violence

Form 22C line 42 home
energy costs

Form 22C line 43 education
expenses

Form 22C line 44 additional
food clothing expense

Form 22C line 45 charity

Form 22C line 47 payment
on secured claims

Form 22C line 49 payments
on priority claims

Form 22C line 52 total
deductions under 707(b)(2)

Form 22C line 53 total CMI

Form 22C line 54 support
income

Form 22C line 55 retirement
deductions

Form 22 line 56 total
deductions under 707(b)(2)

Form 22 line 57 total adjust-
ment disposable income

Form 22 line 59 other
expenses

06-BK-020 Henry Sommer on Rules 4002, 1007(b)(1)(F),
behalf of NACBA 4003(b)(1), 4004; automatic

dismissal; Forms 22A, 22C

06-BK-21 Robert Toomey Endorsed 06-BK-009

57



06-BK-22 David Baker Endorsed 06-BK-0048

06-BK-23 Christopher M. Endorsed 06-BK-009
Kerney

06-BK-24 David E. Phillips Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-25 Pamela Stewart Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-26 Jimmy Eaton Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-27 Lee M. Perlman Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-28 Robert J. Haeger Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-29 Marvin Wolf Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-30 J. Robert Harlan Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-31 Perry R. Happell Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-32 Linda E. Merritt Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-33 Joseph Angus Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-34 Maria M. Salas Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-35 Elizabeth H. Parrott Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-36 Stephen M. Otto Endorsed 06-BK-0020

06-BK-37 Chris Mills Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-38 Andy Miofsky Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-39 Alan C. Lee Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-40 John Vos Endorsed 06-BK-0018 and

06-BK-020

06-BK-41 Wendell J. Sherk Form 22C, lines 3, 4,
endorsed 06-BK-009
(generally) and 06-BK-020

06-BK-42 Scott Wilson Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-43 Lyssette Morales Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-44 Paula M. Powers Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-45 David F. Cannon Form 22C, Schedules I and J
endorsed 06-BK-009

58



06-BK-46 Brett Weiss Endorsed 06-BK-009 and
06-BK-020

06-BK-47 Erik Clark Endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-48 Henry E. Form 22C, lines 3, 4,
Hildebrand, III endorsed 06-BK-009

06-BK-49 John R. Strout Forms 25A and 25B

06-BK-50 Steve Winters on Forms 25C and 26
behalf of the
Consulting
Services Executive
Committee of the
American Institute
of Certified Public
Accountants

06-BK-51 Steve Bartlett on Rules 1017, 4006; Forms
behalf of Financial 22A and 22C
Services
Roundtable

06-BK-52 The State Bar of Rules 2015.3, 3002, 4003,
California 5008, and 6011
Committee on
Federal Courts

06-BK-53 William Andrew Forms 22A and 22C
McNeal

06-BK-54 Judge Montali Rule 1019

59



06-BK-55 American Bankers Forms 1, 1 -Exhibit D, 22A,
Association, 22C, 240; Rules 1017 and
America's 1029
Community
Bankers, The
Financial Services
Roundtable,
American Financial
Services
Association,
Consumer Bankers
Association, and
Independent
Community
Bankers of
America

06-BK-56 American Rules 6004, 8001, 3002,
Bankruptcy 1007, 1017, 2002, 4003,
Institute Task Force 4007, 4008, 5008, 1020,
on Bankruptcy 2015.3, 3016, 1021, 2015.1,
Rules 6011, 5012

06-BK-57 Margaret Grammar Rules 1007(b)(7),
Gay 4001 (c)(1)(H), 1007, 2003,

8001 (f)(2), Official Forms 1,
5, 91, 16A, 23

06-BK-58 Robert J. Warren Endorsed 06-BK-009

Comments on Interim Bankruptcy Rules and Forms

05-BR-001 Senator Grassley Rules 1017 and 9011 and
Form 1 re § 319 of BAPCPA

05-BR-002 Gary Neustadter Rule 1007(b)(4)

05-BR-003 Carl Barnes Schedule D

05-BR-004 Terry Dunn Rule 1007(c) typo

05-BR-005 Annette Crawford Means test car ownership
costs

05-BR-006 Judge McManus Form 5 Committee Note
typo

05-BR-007 Victor Karl Creditor

60



05-BR-008 Thomas Yerbich Inclusion of minors on Form
6

05-BR-009 Carl Barnes Form 6 Summary

05-BR-010 Carl Barnes Schedule F typo

05-BR-01 1 Judge Grant Rule 4003(b)

Timing for filing
reaffirmation agreements

05-BR-012 Judge Markell Adoption of Interim Rules

05-BR-013 Derek Hong 45-day limit for filing
documents

05-BR-014 William Redden Rules 2001.2(a), 2015.1(b)
typos

05-BR-015 Judge Mund Small business checkbox

05-BR-016 Judge Nugent Congratulations

05-BR-017 Mark Diamond Rule 8001(f)(2)

05-BR-018 Prof. Culhane Non-filing spouse's income
Prof. White

Other necessary expenses

Admissions by debtor
(checkbox)

05-BR-019 Thomas Yerbich Rules 4002(b)(1)(B),
4002(b)(3)

05-BR-020 Donald Bernstein Means test compells debtors
on behalf of NBC to make legal statements

05-BR-021 Thomas Yerbich Form 22C - disposable
income when § 1325(b)(3)
doesn't apply

05-BR-022 Brian Barash Providing copies of tax
returns

05-BR-023 Chip Trimmier Form 240 credit unions

05-BR-024 Judge Williamson New filing period in cases
converted to chapter 7

61



05-BR-025 Judge Bufford Chapter 15 rules

05-BR-026 Don Walton Credit Counseling

05-BR-027 Richard Levin on Credit counseling warning,
behalf of the NBC time for filing certificate

Means test - other
deductions and adjustments

§ 707(b) safe harbor

05-BR-028 Richard Levin on § 342(g) notice
behalf of the NBC

notice standard for
"reasonableness"

05-BR-029 Judge Teel Rule 2002(f) § 727(a)(12)
motion deadline

05-BR-030 Judge Teel §§ 727 (a)(12) 522(q)
interplay

05-BR-031 Henry Sommer on CMI for means test safe
behalf of NACBA harbor

Include warning on
completing financial
management course on § 341
notice

Form 22C ch 13 disposable
income

Means test - other necessary
expenses

Deadlines, Form 1

05-BR-032 Steve Bartlett on Rule 1017(e)(1)
behalf of Financial "particularity"
Service Roundtable

Form 23 should be a
"certificate" not a
"statement"

Debtor's attorney certifies
schedules

62



Mortgage payment in means
test

05-BR-033 Sen. Grassley and Rule 1017(e)(1)
Sen. Sessions "particularity"

Form 23 should be a
"certificate" not a
"statement"

Rule 9011 & Form I re
§ 319 of BAPCPA

05-BR-034 Phil Corwin on Means test unemployment
behalf of American compensation
Bankers Assoc.

All consumer debtors
complete full means test

Local standards for housing
and transportation

Chapter 13 administrative
expenses

Additional expense claims

Form 22C marital
adjustment

Form 240 as Official Form

Rule 1017(e)(1)
"particularity"

Automatic stay

Debtor's attorney certifies
schedules

Rule 4002(b)(2)(A)
documents

Uniform application of
§ 1325(a)

Small business designation

_Rule 3017.1 deadlines

63



05-BR-035 Judge Teel Form 1 statement residential
tenant

05-BR-036 Judge Walker

05-BR-037 Paul Pascuzzi on Rule 1019, new filing period
behalf of the in cases converted to chapter
Insolvency Law 7
Committee of
Business Law
Section of State
Bar of California

Rule 2002(f)(9), (10) incl.
trustee

Rule 2002(c) clarification

Rule 2007.2

Rule 5003

Rule 6004(g) sales of
personally identifiable info

Rule 6004(g)(2) motions

Foreign representatives
file corporate ownership
stint.

Rule 1007(a)(4)

Rules 1007(a)(4) and
2002(q) foreign
representatives

Rule 5009 closing chapter 15
cases

Rule 7065 and § 1519(e)

Rule 9006(b)(3) and Rule
4004(b)

05-BR-038 David Goch on Rules 1007(a)(4) and
behalf of the 2002(q) foreign
Commercial Law representatives
League of America

Rules 1010 and 1011

64



Rule 2002(q)(1) and (q)(2)

Rule 2002(q)(1) and (q)(2)
and § 1514(d)

Rule 6004 sales

Rule 8001(f)(2)(B)

Rule 8001(f)(3)(B)

Rule 8001(f)(4)(B)

65





MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: RECOMMENDATIONS FOR AMENDMENTS TO RULE 9011

DATE: JANUARY 10, 2007 / Revised February 27, 2007 (TSZ)

The Subcommittee on Attorney Conduct met by teleconference to consider amendments

to Rule 9011. This action followed from the discussion of these issues at the meeting of the

Advisory Committee in Seattle in September. The Subcommittee addressed two issues during

the teleconference. The first was the proposal of the American Bar Association that the

Bankruptcy Rules be amended to include a rule or rules governing attorney conduct in

bankruptcy cases. The second issue is whether to amend Rule 9011 either to adopt the Sense of

Congress set out in § 319 of the Bankruptcy Abuse Prevention and Consumer Protection Act of

2005 or to amend Rule 9011 in other ways that reflect the enactment of § 707(b)(4)(C/D).

1. ABA PROPOSAL

The ABA submitted a resolution to the Advisory Committee recommending that the

Bankruptcy Rules be amended to govern attorney conduct in bankruptcy cases. The ABA argued

that a bankruptcy specific rule is appropriate because in districts that include such a local rule,

enforcement of the rules of conduct are more effective and frequent than in districts in which

such matters are governed by the rules of the district court. Moreover they assert that Rule 9011

is insufficient to address the matter because that rule applies in each case, and much of the

problem with attorney conduct is the result of repeated actions in a number of cases.

Consequently, they argue that another rule should be adopted that would be easier to use across

1

66



cases as opposed to within individual cases. The ABA also noted that the enactment of

BAPCPA increased the need for an attorney conduct rule because it includes a number of

provisions that govern attorney conduct and could lead to substantially more actions pending in

the courts implementing those provisions. They suggest that a rule specifically establishing

procedures governing these matters would benefit the bankruptcy system.

The Subcommittee concluded that the Bankruptcy Rules should not be amended to add

such a provision. First, the matter is addressed in large part by Rule 9011 to the extent that

actions are taken in a specific case. Secondly, most district courts already have such rules, and

they are often if not generally applicable to the bankruptcy courts for that district. Thirdly,

adopting a rule of attorney conduct in bankruptcy cases would be inconsistent with the Civil

Rules. An Ad Hoc Subcommittee of the Standing Committee has previously studied the prospect

of adopting an attorney conduct rule, and it declined to go forward with the rule for a variety of

reasons. If the bankruptcy rules were to include such a rule, it would arguably conflict with a

previous position taken by the Standing Committee in a comparable situation. Finally, a study

conducted by the Federal Judicial Center found that a significant majority of bankruptcy judges

did not believe that any need existed for the adoption of a bankruptcy specific attorney conduct

rule. Thus, the Subcommittee recommends that no action be taken on the proposal

submitted by the ABA regarding a rule governing attorney conduct in bankruptcy cases.

2. RULE 9011 AND SECTION 319 OF BAPCPA

BAPCPA included a section expressing the sense of Congress that Rule 9011 should be

amended in several ways. In its entirety, that section states that

2

67



It is the sense of Congress that rule 9011 of the Federal Rules of
Bankruptcy Procedure (11 U.S.C. App.) should be modified to include a
requirement that all documents (including schedules), signed and unsigned,
submitted to the court or to a trustee by debtors who represent themselves
and debtors who are represented by attorneys be submitted only after the
debtors or the debtors' attorneys have made reasonable inquiry to verify
that the information contained in such documents is -

(1) well grounded in fact; and
(2) warranted by existing law or a good faith argument for the

extension, modification, or reversal of existing law.

The Subcommittee discussed at length whether Rule 9011 should be amended to

implement these changes, and it concluded that the rule should not be amended in that manner.

Concern was expressed that the amendments proposed in § 319 would have an adverse affect on

the efficient administration of bankruptcy cases. They would also interject different standards of

conduct for debtors and their attorneys as compared to the standards governing creditors,

trustees, the United States trustee, and their attorneys. Other parties in interest such as

purchasers of estate assets, plan proponents in chapter 11 cases, and the like, also would be

governed by standards different from those governing debtors and their representatives. The

Subcommittee believes that such a rule would be unfair and inappropriate.

The Subcommittee also concluded that the provision of § 319 that the rule be expanded to

apply to all documents submitted to trustees is unwise. Making the rule applicable to these

documents could lead to significant delays in the submission of documents due to the need for

debtor's counsel to conduct due diligence investigations to ensure that they are complying with

the rule. This delay would often be more detrimental to the estate than the benefit gained by the

application of a revised rule to these documents. Furthermore, it would seem that if the rule were

to be amended to apply to these submissions, then it would also apply to submissions made by

3

68



the debtor to the creditors' committee or other committees or examiners. This would also likely

cause delays in the delivery of information to the non-debtor parties with relatively little benefit

to be derived from the application of the rule to these documents. Thus, the Subcommittee

recommends against amending Rule 9011 to implement the changes suggested in § 319 of

BAPCPA.

3. RULE 9011 AND BANKRUPTCY CODE § 707(B)(4)(D)

Section 707(b)(4)(D) of the Code provides that "the signature of the debtor's attorney on

the petition constitutes a certification that the debtor's attorney has no knowledge after an inquiry

that the information in the schedules filed with the petition is incorrect." Unlike § 319 of

BAPCPA, however, this section applies directly and solely to chapter 7 cases. Consequently, the

Subcommittee concluded that the form of the petition, Official Form 1, should be amended to

include a statement, immediately above the space for the attorney's signature on the form, that

highlights that the signature is a certification as provided in § 707(b)(4)(D). The Subcommittee

recommends that the statement be as follows:

SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY

In a case in which § 707(b)(4)(D) applies, this signature constitutes a certification
that the attorney has no knowledge after an inquiry that the information in the
schedules filed with the petition is incorrect.

X

Signature of Attorney

The Subcommittee recognized that this certification applies only to the information on

schedules that are filed with the petition and would not apply to the information in schedules

4

69



filed at a later date as allowed under Rule 1007. The Subcommittee also noted that in some cases

the attorney who signed the petition may not be the attorney for the debtor when schedules are

filed in a particular case. Thus, § 707(b)(4)(D) is in some ways deficient if its purpose is to

require that in every chapter 7 case of an individual debtor whose debts are primarily consumer

debts that the debtor's attorney certify that the attorney has no knowledge that the information in

the schedules is incorrect. Instead, the Subcommittee concluded that a more appropriate

solution, consistent with the intent of Congress in its enactment of § 707(b)(4)(D), would be an

amendment to Official Form 6 (Schedules) that would add a signature requirement for the

attorney for any debtor whose debts are primarily consumer debts. This would connect the

certification to the document about which Congress has expressed concern. It also avoids the

problem presented when the attorney who signed the petition is no longer the debtor's attorney at

the point in the case when the schedules or amendments thereto are filed with the court. The

appropriate attorney's signature will be present on the schedules.

While § 707 applies only in chapter 7 cases, the Subcommittee concluded that the

obligation that the attorney certify that the attorney has no knowledge that the information in the

schedules is incorrect should not be limited to chapter 7 cases. Section 707(b) applies in cases in

which the debtor is an individual whose debts are primarily consumer debts. If the rule were

amended to apply to all cases, regardless of the chapter under which they are brought, it would

cover all of the cases governed by § 707(b) and would also apply to cases filed under chapters 11

and 13 when the debtor is a consumer debtor. The Subcommittee believes that this is a more

sensible solution as compared to providing in the rules that the certification requirement applies

only in chapter 7 cases. The minimum level of scrutiny by the debtor's attorney of the

5

70



information contained in the schedules should be the same under any chapter. Moreover, the

attorney often will not even know which chapter the case will be filed under when he or she is

preparing the schedules. Finally, many cases in chapter 13 are converted to chapter 7, so

confusion could arise as to whether the debtor's attorney would have to certify the schedules at

the point of conversion. This may be impossible given the potential passage of time between the

filing of the schedules and the conversion of the case.

The Subcommittee recommends that Rule 9011 be amended to include a debtor and

attorney certificate on all papers filed by an individual whose debts are primarily

consumer debts in accord with the requirements of Section 707(b) (which will include

Chapter 7, 11 and 13. The following is the proposed language proposed by the Subcommittee

to amend Rule 9011.

Rule 9011. Signing of Papers; Representations to the Court;

Sanctions; Verification and Copies of Papers

1 (a) SIGNING OF PAPERS. Every petition, pleading, written

2 motion, and other paper, except a list, schedule, or statement, or

3 amendments thereto, shall be signed by at least one attorney of

4 record in the attorney's individual name. A party who is not

5 represented by an attorney shall sign all papers. Each paper shall

6 state the signer's address and telephone number, if any. An

7 unsigned paper shall be stricken unless omission of the signature is

6

71



8 corrected promptly after being called to the attention of the

9 attorney or party.

10 (b) REPRESENTATIONS TO THE COURT BY ALL PARTIES

11 AND ATTORNEYS: REPRESENTATIONS BY DEBTORS

12 WHOSE DEBTS ARE PRIMARILY CONSUMER DEBTS AND

13 BY THEIR ATTORNEYS.

14 (1) REPRESENTATIONS BY ALL PARTIES AND

15 THEIR ATTORNEYS. By presenting to the court, whether by

16 signing, submitting, or later advocating a petition, pleading, written

17 motion, or other paper, an attorney or unrepresented party is

18 certifying that to the best of the person's knowledge, information,

19 and belief, formed after an inquiry reasonable under the

20 circumstances, -

21 (-1-) LA) it is not being presented for any improper purpose, such

22 as to harass or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in

23 the cost of litigation;

24 (2) Qj• the claims, defenses, and other legal contentions therein

25 are warranted by existing law or by a nonfrivolous argument for

26 the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law or the

27 establishment of new law;

28 (-3-) n_) the allegations and other factual contentions have

29 evidentiary support or, if specifically so identified, are likely to

7

72



30 have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further

31 investigation or discovery; or

32 (4) (D) the denials of factual contentions are warranted on the

33 evidence or, if specifically so identified, are reasonably based on a

34 lack of information or belief.

35 (2) REPRESENTATIONS BY A DEBTOR WHOSE DEBTS

36 ARE PRIMARILY CONSUMER DEBTS AND BY THE

37 DEBTOR'S ATTORNEY. In a case in which the debtor is an

38 individual whose debts are primarily consumer debts, any schedule

39 or amended schedule shall be accompanied by a certification by the

40 debtor's attorney that the attorney has no knowledge after an

41 inquiry that the information in the schedule or amended schedule is

42 incorrect.

43

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (b) of the rule is amended by adding a new
subparagraph that establishes obligations on counsel for debtors
whose debts are primarily consumer debts. The former provisions
of subdivision (b) are renumbered as subparagraphs (b)(1)(A)
through (D), and a new subparagraph (2) is added to the
subdivision. Subparagraph (b)(1) continues to apply to all
attorneys and unrepresented parties. Subparagraph (b)(2) makes
the standards of § 707(b)(4)(D) applicable to all cases under all
chapters as long as the debtor has primarily consumer debts. Thus,
counsel for consumer debtors in chapter 7, 11 and chapter 13 cases
each have the same standard of conduct in submitting the petition
regarding the information contained in the schedules submitted
with the petition.

8

73



(Official Form 1) (12/08) Form BI, Page 3
Voluntary Petition Name of Debtor(s):
(This page must be completed andfiled in every case.)

Signatures
Signature(s) of Debtor(s) (Individual/Joint) Signature of a Foreign Representative

I declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this petition is true I declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this petition is true
and correct, and correct, that I am the foreign representative of a debtor in a foreign proceeding,
[If petitioner is an individual whose debts are primarily consumer debts and has and that I am authorized to file this petition.
chosen to file under chapter 71 I am aware that I may proceed under chapter 7, 11, 12
or 13 of title 11, United States Code, understand the relief available under each such (Check only one box.)
chapter, and choose to proceed under chapter 7. E I request relief in accordance with chapter 15 of title 11, United States Code.
[If no attorney represents me and no bankruptcy petition preparer signs the petition] I Certified copies of the documents required by 11 U.S C. § 1515 are attached.
have obtained and read the notice required by II U.S.C. § 342(b).

D] Pursuant to II U.S.C. § 1511, 1 request relief in accordance with the
I request relief in accordance with the chapter of title 11, United States Code, chapter of title 11 specified in this petition. A certified copy of the
specified in this petition. order granting recognition of the foreign main proceeding is attached.

X x
Signature of Debtor (Signature of Foreign Representative)

X
Signature of Joint Debtor (Pnnted Name of Foreign Representative)

Telephone Number (if not represented by attorney)

Date 
41 Date

Signature of Attorney Signature of Non-Attorney Bankruptcy Petition Preparer

In a case in which § 707(bX4XD) applies, this signature constitutes a certification I declare under penalty of perjury that: (1) 1 am a bankruptcy petition preparer as
that the attorney has no knowledge after an inquiry that the information in the defined in II U.S.C. § 110; (2) 1 prepared this document for compensation and have
schedules filed with the petition is incorrect. provided the debtor with a copy of this document and the notices and infonnation

required under 11 U.S.C. §§ 10(b), 10(h), and 342(b); and, (3) if rules or
X guidelines have been promulgated pursuant to II U.S.C. § 110(h) setting a maximum

Signature of Attorney for Debtor(s) fee for services chargeable by bankruptcy petition preparers, I have given the debtor
notice of the maximum amount before preparing any document for filing for a debtor

Pnnted Name of Attorney for Debtor(s) or accepting any fee from the debtor, as required in that section. Official Form 19B
is attached.

Firm Name

Address Printed Name and title, if any, of Bankruptcy Petition Preparer

Social Security number (If the bankruptcy petition preparer is not an individual,
state the Social Security number of the officer, principal, responsible person or

Telephone Number partner of the bankruptcy petition preparer) (Required by II U.S.C. § 110.)

Date

Address

X
Signature of Debtor (Corporation/Partnership)

I declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this petition is true Date
and correct, and that I have been authorized to file this petition on behalf of the
debtor Signature of bankruptcy petition preparer or officer, principal, responsible person, or

The debtor requests the relief in accordance with the chapter of title 1I, United States partner whose Social Security number is provided above.

Code, specified in this petition. Names and Social Security numbers of all other individuals who prepared or assisted

X in preparing this document unless the bankruptcy petition preparer is not an
Signature of Authorized Individual individual

Printed Name of Authorized Individual If more than one person prepared this document, attach additional sheets conforming
to the appropriate official form for each person.

Title of Authorized Individual
A bankruptcy petition preparer's failure to comply with the provisions of title 1 I and

Date the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure may result in fines or imprisonment or
both. 11 USC. § 1 10; 18 U.SC. C § 156.

74





MEMORANDUM

TO: SUBCOMMITTEE ON ATTORNEY CONDUCT & HEALTH CARE

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: COMMENTS ON INTERIM AND PUBLISHED RULES RELATING TO
HEALTH CARE CASES

DATE: FEBRUARY 23, 2007

The comments on the Interim Rules and the Rules Published for Comment in August

2006 include comments on the rules governing attorney conduct and those applicable to health

care cases. This memo sets out those comments and recommends action by the Subcommittee as

to matters relating to health care cases. A separate memo will set out the issues relating to

attorney conduct in bankruptcy cases.

There were two comments to the Interim Rules relating to health care cases. The first

was submitted by William Redden, the Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern District of

Virginia. In Comment 05-BK-014, he correctly noted that the rule should refer to a "patient care

ombudsman" rather than a "health care ombudsman." That change has been made, so no

further action is necessary regarding that comment.

The second comment on the Interim Rules, Comment 05-BK-037, was submitted by the

Insolvency Law Committee of the Business Law Section of the California State Bar. On pages 2-

3 of that comment, the Committee suggests that Interim Rule 2007.2 should include a reference

to the interests of patients as well as the quality of health care. The Committee states that § 333

of the Code provides that the ombudsman has the responsibility to consider the interests of

patients. While that is true, the statute also provides that the determination of whether the

appointment of an ombudsman is not necessary is based only on whether the appointment is "not

75



necessary for the protection of patients under the specific circumstances of the case." Thus, the

rule adopts the direct language of the statute, and the Insolvency Law Committee's reference to

another portion of the statute is not relevant to the specific action governed by Rule 2007.2.

Therefore, I do not believe that we should adopt this recommendation.

We have received two additional comments on health care issues among the comments

on the rules that were published in August 2006. In Comment 06-BR-052, the California State

Bar Committee on Federal Courts offered a comment on proposed Rule 6011 governing the

disposal of patient records. Section 351 of the Code includes an elaborate procedure governing

these matters, and proposed Rule 6011 implements the statute. The Code allows the trustee to

dispose of patient records if the estate does not have sufficient funds to pay for their storage.

The statute directs the trustee to publish notice of the proposed destruction of the records. The

State Bar Committee urges that the rule should provide that the cost of the notice should not be a

factor in determining whether the notice should be sent, and if there are insufficient funds in the

estate to pay for the notice, that the cost of the notice should be paid by the United States trustee

or the court. The problem identified in this comment could be significant in a case where there

are no assets available in the estate to cover the costs of notice. However, the Code provides

specifically that this is an obligation of the trustee, and I think it would be inconsistent with the

Code to shift that cost to another party. Instead, I would assume that if there are no assets

available to pay for the notice, noone would be willing to serve as trustee (or would seek to

resign if they were already serving), and the United States trustee would be required to serve as

the trustee under 28 U.S.C. § 586(a)(2). Therefore, I do not believe that we should adopt the

recommendation of the State Bar Committee.

2

76



The American Bankruptcy Institute's Task Force on Bankruptcy Rules submitted

Comment 06-BK-056. The Task Force compiled comments on a number of rules, including

proposed Rules 1021, 2015.1, and 6011. These comments essentially consist of the responses of

40 members of the ABI to a survey regarding the proposed rules. The ABI has over 10,000

member, so the responses of 40 of their members cannot be considered necessarily

representative. As to proposed Rule 1021, approximately 75% of the respondents believed that

the rule should be amended to include a deadline for parties in interest to object to the debtor's

self-designation as a health care business. Once the debtor identifies itself as a health care

business on the petition, then the court must take action on the appointment of a patient care

ombudsman under Rule 2007.2 within the first 20 days of the case. The significance of being a

health care business is thus largely resolved once the court makes its determination about the

appointment of the ombudsman. Therefore, there would not seem to be any need for the court to

decide that the debtor is not a health care business. On the other hand, if the debtor did not

identify itself as a health care business, parties in interest should be allowed to raise that issue

with the court. Proposed Rule 1021 permits them to do so without a deadline. There is no

deadline because the parties in interest may not know what designation the debtor has selected in

the petition, and requiring the debtor to defend its designation as an entity other than a health care

business seems appropriate whenever it is first raised in the case. Therefore, I do not believe

that we should adopt the recommendation that a deadline be inserted into proposed Rule

1021.

The comment also suggests that proposed Rule 2015.1 be amended to provide more

details about the form and contents of reports to be provided by the patient care ombudsman.

3

77



These reports are required under § 333(b) of the Code, and Rule 2015.1 establishes a notice

requirement so that parties in interest can obtain access to the reports. I do not believe that it

would be appropriate to set standards or provide a form for these reports in a rule. The

circumstances under which these reports would be provided to the court could vary greatly, and

since these are reports to be given to the court, I believe that the court would be in the best

position in each case to direct the ombudsman as to the nature and form of the report. Thus, I do

not believe that we should adopt the recommendation that Rule 2015.1 be amended to

include guidelines for the contents of the reports.

Finally, the ABI comments raise two matters concerning proposed Rule 6011. First, its

suggests that the rule be amended to require that the notice of the disposal of patient records be

sent as well to the state attorney general in the state in which the records are located. Since the

attorney general may have responsibility for the operation of health care facilities, it may be

appropriate to add the attorney general to the notice list under Rule 6011 (b). The ABI also

suggests that rule should set out the mechanism by which persons can object to the proposed

destruction of patient records. I believe that proposed Rule 6011 (a) already provides that

mechanism. It provides for notice to affected parties that includes directions as to how they can

obtain those records. This should be a sufficient protection for persons with legitimate interests

in the records. Therefore, I do not recommend that Rule 6011 be amended to provide a

mechanism for filing objections to the proposed destruction of patient records, but I

recommend that the attorney general for the state in which a health care facility is located

be added to the list of persons entitled to notice under Rule 6011(b).

4
78



Analysis of the 2006 Means Test Comments (Final version,
3/5/07)

1. Chapter 13 Attorney Fees.

a. Substance of the comments.

i. Tom Yerbich (06-BK-003) and Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at
26) suggest that the following statement in the Committee Com-
ment be deleted:

The Chapter 13 form does not provide a deduction from
disposable income for the Chapter 13 debtor's antici-
pated attorney fees. No specific statutory allowance
for such a deduction exists, and none appears neces-
sary. Section 1325(b) (1) (B) requires that disposable
income contributed to a Chapter 13 plan be used to pay
"unsecured creditors." A debtor's attorney who has not
taken a security interest in the debtor's property is
an unsecured creditor who may be paid from disposable
income.

ii. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 26) alternatively suggests
that an instruction be added to From 22C, Line 49 specifying
that projected attorney's fees may be deducted as "Payments on
priority claims." Eric Froisland, on behalf of Standing Trustee
Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 18) also makes this suggestion.

iii. As a second alternative, Judge Lundin suggests (06-
BK-009 at 27) that "[i]f attorneys fees are excluded at Line 49

then attorneys fees should be a line item added to average
monthly administrative expenses at Line 50."

b. Suggested response. The only change should be to the
instruction in Line 49, which should be amended to make it clear
that only existing (not anticipated) priority claims are to be
deducted.

c. Explanation. Omitting the discussion of Chapter 13
debtors' attorneys' fees would leave substantial uncertainty as
to how these fees should be treated. As indicated by Judge
Lundin's comments, a debtor might think that projected attor-
neys' fees could properly be included either as a priority claim
on Line 49 of Form 22C or as an expense of administration of a
Chapter 13 case on Line 50. However, neither of those possi-

79



bilities is consonant with the relevant provisions of the means
test.

Line 49 of Form 22C effectuates § 707(b) (2) (A) (iv), which
provides a deduction from current monthly income (CMI) for "pri-
ority claims (including child support and alimony claims)." At
the time of filing a case, a debtor could not be liable on a
priority claim for attorneys' fees to the debtor's current coun-
sel, because such fees would only gain priority status if later
approved by the court under § 330. Moreover, the fact that
there is a separate provision for deducting the prospective ad-
ministrative expenses in Chapter 13 (§ 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (III),
discussed below), indicates that the priority claims dealt with
by § 707(b) (2) (A) (iv) are existing prepetition claims, not an-
ticipated administrative claims. An amendment to the instruc-
tion to make this clear would be appropriate. See Point 12,
below.

Line 50 of Form 22C effectuates § 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (III),
which provides a deduction from CMI for "the actual administra-
tive expenses of administering a chapter 13 plan for the dis-
trict in which the debtor resides, up to an amount of 10 percent
of the projected plan payments, as determined under schedules
issued by the Executive Office for United States Trustees."
This provision caps the amount of the administrative expense al-
lowance at the percentage of projected plan payments set by the
EOUST. Perhaps because ten percent of plan payments is the
maximum fee that can be allowed standing trustees for adminis-
tering Chapter 13 cases (pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 586(e) (1) (B)),
the EOUST appears to be setting the administrative expense cap
at the fee percentage allowed to standing trustees, leaving lit-
tle if anything for debtors' attorneys' fees. See
http://www.usdoj.gov/ust/eo/bapcpa/2007020l/bci data/chl3 exp mu
lt.htm. In any event, Line 50 instructs debtors to deduct the
full amount of the percentage of projected monthly Chapter 13
payments allowed by the EOUST. No additional amount for attor-
neys' fees can be claimed consistent with the statutory lan-
guage.

It is helpful for the Committee Comment to point out that
Form 22C (consistent with the statutory language) does not pro-
vide for deducting debtor's attorneys' fees, but at the same
time, it is important to note that this omission does not make
it impossible for above-median income debtors (who must use the
means test deductions) to pay their attorneys through a Chapter
13 plan. Pursuant to § 1325(b)(1)(B), the disposable income
that is left after the allowed deductions from income must be

2 80



paid, upon objection, "to unsecured creditors under the plan."
As the Committee Note indicates, unless an attorney has taken
collateral to secure fee payment, the claim of the debtor's at-
torney will be unsecured. Disposable income is not required to
be paid exclusively to non-priority unsecured claims, as Mr.
Yerbich's comment appears to assume.1

2. Deductions from CMI in Chapter 11.

a. Substance of the comment. Tom Yerbich (06-BK-005) sug-
gests that Form 22B include deductions from current disposable
income specified in § 1325(b) (2), because these deductions are
applicable in Chapter 11, pursuant to § 1129(b) (15) (B).

b. Suggested response. No action is necessary, but the
suggestion could be adopted without difficulty and would not
cause the form to be inaccurate.

c. Explanation. We determined that a current monthly in-
come form was needed in individual Chapter 11 cases because
§ 1129(b) (15) (B) requires that, upon objection, an individual
debtor's Chapter 11 plan must distribute property equal to "the
projected disposable income of the debtor (as defined in section
1325(b) (2)) to be received" during a defined period. Section
1325(b) (2), in turn, specifies the use of CMI in calculating
disposable income. However, § 1325(b) (2) does not specify use
of the means test deductions in calculating disposable income,
leaving disposable income in Chapter 11 to be determined accord-
ing to judicially determined standards. As Mr. Yerbich sug-
gests, a calculation of disposable income for purposes of § 1325
is required to include certain special deductions from CMI-such
as child support payments received by the debtor. However, be-
cause the form does not calculate disposable income, it is not
necessary to include these special deductions. If we were to do
so, Mr. Yerbich is correct in suggesting that the deductions

1 Indeed, if all disposable income were required to be paid

to non-priority unsecured claims, there would be substantial
difficulty in paying Chapter 13 debtors' attorneys in many cases
even if the fees could be deducted as a priority claim, since
such claims are only deductible at 1/60 of the total amount
monthly. Assuming that the other means test deductions accu-
rately measure necessary payments, a "priority" deduction for
debtors' attorneys would pay the debtor's attorney in full only
if the plan paid all creditors in full or only if the debtor
completed all payments under a five-year plan.

3 81



currently set out in Part V of Form 22C could accurately be in-
cluded in Form 22B.

3. Calculation of spousal current monthly income.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009) and
Eric Froisland (06-BK-019 at 1-2. 5-6) make suggestions relating
to the treatment of spousal income in Form 22C. A group of or-
ganizations representing consumer credit providers (06-BK-055 at
8) suggests that debtors not be allowed to remove the income of
a non-filing spouse from the calculation of current monthly in-
come for purposes of determining the applicable commitment pe-
riod. Judge Lundin's comments, which appear to include all of
the points made by Mr. Froisland, suggest the following:

i. Include in Line 1 a provision for joint debtors to des-
ignate which one is "debtor" and which is "debtor's spouse" (p.
5). This recommendation is consistent with the later suggestion
(pp. 7-8) that the current monthly income of a jointly filing
"debtor's spouse" does not include payments received on a regu-
lar basis for the support of that spouse's dependents who are
not also dependents of the debtor. To accommodate this view,
all of the means test forms would have to be amended to allow a
joint debtor to declare him or herself the "debtor's spouse" and
thereby avoid counting as current monthly income any contribu-
tions to the household expenses of his or her individual depend-
ents. (To preserve the question for decision by the court, the
forms would have to require disclosure of the amount of such
support payments with an option to exclude that amount from in-
come, as with the treatment of unemployment compensation in Line
8 of existing Form 22C.)

ii. Modify Line 1 to indicate that Column B should be com-
pleted only by married debtors filing jointly (pp. 5, 8).

iii. For married debtors not filing jointly, provide that
spousal income be counted only in Line 7 (amounts contributed on
a regular basis for the household expenses of the debtor or the
debtor's dependents) (id.).

iv. Either eliminate Line 13 (marital adjustment for the
applicable commitment period) (p. 5) or change it to add what-
ever income of a nonfiling spouse the debtor believes should be
part of the combined current monthly income of the debtor and
the debtor's spouse pursuant to § 1325(b)(4) (p.11).

4 82



v. Eliminate Line 19 (marital adjustment for calculating
disposable income) (id.) (pp. 5, 13).

vi. Alternatively, reverse parts II and III, so that the
marital adjustment of Line 19 is part of the determination of
current monthly income for the applicable commitment period (p,
12-13).

b. Suggested response. No action.

c. Explanation. The treatment of spousal income in the
means test forms was thoroughly discussed by the Advisory Com-
mittee in connection with the original adoption of the forms and
again in response to earlier comments by the National Bankruptcy
Conference; the suggestion of the consumer finance group and
most of the suggestions made in Judge Lundin's comments were re-
jected in that discussion. A summary of the points in favor of
the current version of the form is attached as an appendix to
this memorandum.

The one suggestion not previously advanced is the idea that
the means test forms should distinguish in joint cases between
the debtor and the debtor's spouse. I noted the drafting prob-
lem that gives rise to this suggestion in an article for the
American Bankruptcy Law Journal, Means Testing in the New
§ 707(b), 79 Am. Bankr. L.J. 231, 246 n.36:

Section 101(10A) (B) recognizes, as part of the [defi-
nition of current monthly] income used to determine
CMI, regular contributions made by a non-debtor (1) to
the household expenses of "the debtor," (2) to the
household expenses of dependents of "the debtor," and
(3) to household expenses of "the debtor's spouse" in

a joint case, but not (4) to the household expenses of
dependents of the debtor's spouse in a joint case.
Literally then, if the individual listed in a joint
petition as the "debtor's spouse" has dependents not
shared with the individual listed as the "debtor"-for
example, children from a prior marriage-any regular
support payments to those dependents would not be part
of the CMI of the joint debtors, but if the listing of
the spouses on the petition were reversed, the support
payments would be included in calculating CMI. This is
an absurd result, since both spouses are equally
"debtors." See 11 U.S.C. § 302(b) (2000) ("After the
commencement of a joint case, the court shall deter-
mine the extent, if any, to which the debtors' estates

5 83



shall be consolidated."). Because, in a joint case,
there is no reasonable policy basis for distinguishing
support payments made to dependents of the debtor from
support payments made to dependents of the debtor's
spouse, this implication of the statutory language may
be safely discarded. See Nelson v. Scala, 192 F.3d 32,
35 (Ist Cir.1999) (rejecting a literal application of
§ 522(f) (2) of the Bankruptcy Code on the basis that
"I[c]ourts are not required to follow literal language
where it would produce an outcome at odds with the
purpose of Congress and where the result stems merely
from an unintended quirk in drafting.")

4. Treatment of business and rental expenses.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at
6) and Eric Froisland (06-BK-019 at 3) suggest that Lines 3 and
4 of Form 22C include the gross receipts of a business or rental
property as income, without deduction for the costs of doing
business or maintaining the rental property, with those costs
considered as "expenses" deducted from current monthly income.
This suggestion would apply to each of the means test forms.

b. Suggested response. No action.

c. Explanation. The question of accounting for business
and rental costs was discussed by the Advisory Committee at the
time that the means test forms were initially adopted. We de-
termined that these costs should be deducted from gross receipts
principally because this is the method used by the Census Bureau
in calculating the median income levels to which current monthly
income under the Code is compared. Moreover, the Internal Reve-
nue Manual, which sets out the general deductions for living ex-
penses used in the means test also employs "net income from
self-employment" and "net rental income" as the base from which
deductions are made. See Manual § 5.15.1.II(2C-D). Including
ordinary business or rental costs in current monthly income
would cause individuals with business or rental income to be put
into artificially higher income categories.

5. Amounts paid by others for household expenses of the debtor
or debtor's dependents.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009, at
7-8) suggests that Line 7 of Form 22C improperly includes child
or spousal support and that support payments should be a sepa-

6 84



rate line item. The suggestion would be applicable to all of
the means test forms. Eric Froisland (06-BK-019 at 3-4) sug-
gests that Line 7 should require the inclusion of regular pay-
ments from a non-filing spouse.

b. Suggested response. Judge Lundin's suggestion should be
implemented in part.

c. Explanation. The definition of current monthly income
("CMI") in § 101(10A) has two parts. The first part, (10A) (A),
is general, defining CMI as "average monthly income from all
sources that the debtor receives . . . without regard to whether
such income is taxable." The second part, (10A) (B) contains
specific inclusions and exclusions from CMI, beginning with the
provision that CMI "includes any amount paid by any entity other
than the debtor . . . on a regular basis for the household ex-
penses of the debtor or the debtor's dependents." The comment
is correct in part: some support payments-alimony and separate
maintenance payments-are within the general (10A)(A) definition
(income received by the debtor) and so should not be limited by
the provision of (10A) (B) that includes only regular payments of
household expenses. See 26 U.S.C. § 71(a) (alimony and separate
maintenance are "gross income" for tax purposes). Child sup-
port, however, is not considered income to the recipient. See 26
U.S.C. § 71(c) (excluding child support payments from the scope
of § 71(a)) ; Preston v. Commissioner, 209 F.3d 1281, 1284 (11th
Cir. 2000) (child support payments do not constitute income to
the recipient spouse and cannot be deducted from the income of
the paying spouse). Thus, child support payments are properly
included in CMI only to the extent regularly paid for the house-
hold expenses of the debtor's dependents under (10A) (B). To
deal properly with this distinction, Line 7 of Form 22C would
have to be modified to include the average of all alimony and
separate maintenance payments received by the debtor in the six
calendar months before filing, regardless of whether they were
paid on a regular basis or were for household expenses. Child
support payments, however, would continue to be subject to the
(10A) (B) limitations.

To avoid changing line numbers, alimony and separate main-
tenance payments could be set out in a Line 7A, with child sup-
port on Line 7B and other payments of household expenses in Line
7C. In addition to better implementing the definition of CMI,
providing for a report of formal support payments on a separate
line would simplify deduction of child support payments from
disposable income, as required by § 1325(b) (2) and implemented
in Line 54 of Form 22C.

7 85



Mr. Froisland's suggestion is based on his proposed overall
restructuring of the treatment of spousal income. Since the
current forms use the income of a non-filing spouse for calcu-
lating current monthly income under §§ 707(b) (7) and 1326(b) (4),
it is essential that payments from the non-filing spouse not be
included in the debtor's income, to avoid double-counting.

6. References to the website of the Executive Office for United
States Trustees.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009, at
11, 14, 15, 23) suggests that references to data posted on the
website of the EOUST be deleted from Lines 16, 24, 25A, 25B, 27,
and 29 of Form 22C. The comment focuses particularly on Lines
25A and 25B, which direct the debtor to state components of the
IRS Local Standard for housing and utilities, because these com-
ponents of the IRS housing and utilities standard are issued by
the EOUST based on information provided by the IRS rather than
by the IRS directly. The suggestion would require changes to
the parallel lines of Form 22A.

b. Suggested response. No action.

c. Explanation. The substance of this suggestion has been
considered by the Advisory Committee. With the exception of
Lines 25A and 25B, Form 22C only directs the debtor to the web-
site of the EOUST as a convenient source of information that is
otherwise be available through the agencies that generate the
information-the Census Bureau and the IRS. The form does not
mandate the use of the EOUST as a source of the required infor-
mation. The EOUST's website is cited because the originating
agencies do not provide a consistent web addresses for access to
the required information. There is no reason to believe that
the EOUST would incorrectly transcribe the information available
from the other agencies or that it would not immediately correct
any error in its transcription.

Lines 25A and 25B do require the use of one type of data
issued originally by the EOUST-a separation of the IRS Local
Standard for housing and utilities into components for non-
mortgage expenses and mortgage/rent expense. Line 26 accommo-
dates the suggestion that the use of this data is inappropriate
by allowing the debtor to claim a larger deduction. The Advi-
sory Committee discussed this matter at length and approved this
approach. The Committee's rationale is set out in the Appendix
to this memorandum.

8 86



7. References to the IRS National Standards.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009, at
13, 23) suggests changes in references to the IRS National Stan-
dards in Lines 24 and 44 of Form 22C. In Line 24, Judge Lundin
suggests that "clothing" be changed to "apparel & services" and
that "household supplies" be changed to "housekeeping supplies."
In Line 44, Judge Lundin suggests that "food and apparel" be
changed to "food and apparel and services." Eric Froisland, on
behalf of Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 6-7)
makes similar suggestions.

b. Suggested response. The suggestions should be imple-
mented with a minor modification.

c. Explanation. The comments correctly identify instances
in which Form 22C uses language deviating from the language of
the Internal Revenue Manual, which sets out the National Stan-
dards for expense deductions employed in the means test. The
Advisory Committee has previously amended Form 22 to comport
more closely to the Internal Revenue Manual and the suggested
changes would be consistent with this approach. However, Judge
Lundin's suggestion for Line 44 might be improved by changing
"food and apparel and services" to "food and clothing (apparel
and services)" since the statute itself uses "clothing" to de-
scribe the "apparel and services" category of the National Stan-
dards. These wording changes will have no substantive effect
but will make references to the National Standards clearer. The
changes should also be made in the corresponding lines of Form
22A.

8. Determining "gross monthly income" for application of the IRS
National Standards.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009, at
13-14) suggests that Line 24 of Form 22C be amended to include
an instruction for determining the amount of the debtor's "gross
income" under the IRS National Standards. Judge Lundin does not
suggest the content of such an instruction. Eric Froisland, on
behalf of Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 7) sug-
gests that debtors be required to "disclose what gross income
figure was used in determining the applicable National Stan-
dard."

b. Suggested response. No definition of "gross monthly in-
come" should be given. However, the instruction in Line 24 and

9 87



the other lines dealing with the IRS standards (as well as the
corresponding line of Form 22A) should be changed to refer to
"household" rather than "family" size, and other non-
definitional changes to the form may be appropriate.

c. Explanation. The IRS National Standards allow varying
deductions for food, clothing and other specified expenses de-
pending on the number of persons in the taxpayer's household and
the "gross monthly income" of the household. 2 Line 24 of Form
22C instructs debtors to deduct the applicable amount for their
"family size and income level." Although not commented on by
Judge Lundin, the reference to "family size" should be changed
to "household size," both because this is the statistic used by
the IRS Standards and because the means test itself uses the
size of the debtor's "household" in comparing current monthly
income to state medians. See, e.g., § 707(b)(2)(6). Moreover
"family" is ambiguous, and could be understood to include mem-
bers of the debtor's family who do not reside in the debtor's
household.

On the other hand, there is no clear basis for determining
what "monthly gross income" should be used in applying the Na-
tional Standard expense deductions.
The Internal Revenue Manual sets out a lengthy definition of
"income" for purposes of determining a taxpayer's ability to re-
pay debt. Manual § 5.15.1.11(2) (set out in the Appendix to
this memorandum). This definition varies in some respects from
the definition of current monthly income set out in § 101(10A)
of the Code. For example, the IRS definition calls for an an-
nual (rather than six-month) averaging of interest and dividend
income, it expressly includes social security benefits, and it

2 "Household" size is not expressly specified by the Inter-
nal Revenue Manual, but the manual's expense deductions are
based on the Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) Consumer Expendi-
ture Survey (see Internal Revenue Manual § 5.15.1.7(3)) and the
BLS Survey expressly reports its data based on "household" size,
defining "household" in detail. See Bureau of Labor Statistics,
Consumer Expenditures in 2004 (Report 992) at 7, defining "con-
sumer unit" as "Members of a household consisting of (a) occu-
pants related by blood, marriage, adoption, or some other legal
arrangement; (b) a single person living alone or sharing a
household with others, but who is financially independent; or
(c) two or more persons living together who share responsibility
for at least 2 out of 3 major types of expenses-food, housing,
and other expenses. Students living in university-sponsored
housing also are included in the sample as separate consumer
units."

10 88



includes all child support received, regardless of its regular-
ity. The monthly income calculated in Schedule I presents yet
a third possible statement of "monthly gross income." A debtor
could reasonably employ any of these possibilities in choosing
the applicable National Standard expense allowance.

Consistent with the general policy of the Advisory Commit-
tee to avoid choosing from among reasonable alternatives, it
would not be appropriate for Form 22 to direct which of these
possibilities should be followed. However, the Committee Note
to the forms (or an expanded instruction sheet made part of the
forms) might discuss the ambiguity here. It might also be ap-
propriate to direct the debtor to indicate on the form how the
debtor determined "monthly gross income," so that the matter
could be raised more easily in the event of a dispute.

9. Deductions for tax payments.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009, at
15-16) suggests that Line 30 of Form 22C be amended to remove
the exclusion of real estate and sales taxes from deductible tax
payments and that Line 47 be amended to instruct debtors to de-
duct all real estate taxes at Line 30.

b. Suggested response. None of the actions suggested by
the comment should be implemented. Instead, Line 47 should be
amended to allow deduction only of principal and interest pay-
ments involved in a mortgage.

c. Explanation. (a) The IRS Local Standards provide an
allowance for all housing expenses, including real estate taxes.
See Internal Revenue Manual § 5.15.1.9(lA) ("Local standards in-
clude the following expenses: . . . mortgage or rent, property
taxes, interest, parking, necessary maintenance and repair,
homeowner's or renter's insurance, homeowner dues and condomin-
ium fees."). This Local Standard deduction for housing is pro-
vided for in Lines 25A-26 of Form 22C. Line 30 of the form pro-
vides a separate deduction reflecting the IRS's "Other Necessary
Expense" category for tax payments, described in the Internal
Revenue Manual at § 5.15.1.10(3) as involving "current federal,
FICA, Medicare, state and local taxes." 3 Similarly, real estate
taxes on income producing property would have been removed from
rental income in Line 4. The Advisory Committee has adopted a

3 The complete text of § 5.15.1.10 is set out in the Appen-
dix to this memorandum. The tax category is the twelfth listed.

11 89



policy of reading the "Other Necessary Expense" categories of
the Internal Revenue Manual as not providing for duplicative ex-
pense deductions. This policy is based on the understanding
that "other" expenses are meant to be expenses that are not cov-
ered by the IRS's National and Local Standards. Consistent with
this policy, the Committee has previously decided that the Line
30 deduction should not include real estate taxes.

(b) The IRS National Standards provide an allowance for
general living expenses (food, clothing, personal care, enter-
tainment, etc.). This allowance is based on a survey conducted
by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, which reports "transaction
costs, including excise and sales taxes, of goods and services
acquired during the interview period." Thus, again consistent
with the policy of avoiding duplicate deductions, Line 30 in-
structs debtors not to include sales taxes.

(c) Judge Lundin's comment points out that Line 47 is in-
consistent with the non-duplication policy, because it allows
deduction of property taxes included in a mortgage. The Advi-
sory Committee may have provided that deduction for simplicity,
allowing a deduction of the debtor's entire monthly mortgage
payment rather than only the principal and interest portion.
The comment would have the inconsistency resolved by allowing
double deduction of all property taxes; a better resolution
would be to change Line 47 to allow deduction only of the prin-
cipal and interest payments on the mortgage. In addition to
avoiding double deduction, limiting Line 47 to the principal and
interest payable on a mortgage would better implement the se-
cured debt deduction provided by § 707(b) (2) (A) (iii), which is
based on "amounts scheduled as contractually due to secured
creditors." Property taxes are not due "to secured creditors"
under a contract, but rather are due to governmental bodies un-
der applicable law.

10. "Other Necessary Expense" deduction for employment expenses.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009, at
16-17) and Eric Froisland, on behalf of Standing Trustee Kevin
Anderson (06-BK-019 at 13) suggest that Line 31 of Form 22C be
amended to be titled "involuntary deductions" rather than "man-
datory deductions" and that the word "payroll" be omitted from
the instruction,

b. Suggested response. The suggestion should be imple-
mented.

12 90



c. Explanation. Judge Lundin correctly points out that
the IRS "Other Necessary Expense" category implemented by Line
31 is titled "Involuntary Deductions" and is not limited to
"payroll" deductions. See item 8 in § 5.15.1.10(3) of the In-
ternal Revenue Manual, set out in the Appendix hereto. The Ad-
visory Committee has previously adopted a policy of tracking, to
the extent reasonable, the language of the Manual describing the
"Other Necessary Expense" categories. To effectuate this policy
in Line 31, the line would be titled "Other Necessary Expenses:
involuntary deductions for employment" and the instruction would
begin "Enter the total average monthly deductions that are re-
quired for your employment . . . ." The same change should be
made in the corresponding line of Form 22A.

11. "Other Necessary Expense" deduction for life insurance.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009, at
17) suggests that Line 32 of Form 22C be amended to remove the
limitation to term insurance and to allow a deduction for the
debtor's spouse in a joint case.

b. Suggested response. No action.

c. Explanation. The IRS "Other Necessary Expense" cate-
gory for insurance is expressly limited to term life insurance.
See item 9 in § 5.15.1.10(3) of the Internal Revenue Manual, set
out in the Appendix hereto. None of the expense lines in Forms
22A and 22C distinguish between "debtor" and "debtor's spouse"
in a joint case; rather, if both spouses are debtors the word
"you" in the line instructions would plainly refer to both.

12. "Other Necessary Expense" deduction for court ordered pay-
ments.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at
17-18) and Eric Froisland, on behalf of Standing Trustee Kevin
Anderson (06-BK-019 at 513-14) suggest that the instruction for
Line 33 of Form 22C be amended (i) to include payments ordered
by an administrative agency as well as by a court, and (ii) to
eliminate the exclusion of past due payments or else to remove a
perceived overlap with the priority debt deduction of Line 49.

b. Suggested response. The addition of agency-ordered pay-
ments is appropriate; however, the restriction of Line 33 to

13 91



current payments is correct; a clarification to the instruction
in Line 49 would be helpful to avoid the perception of overlap.

c. Explanation. (i) As Judge Lundin points out, the IRS
category for court ordered payments includes "orders made by the
state," a phrase which reasonably covers agency-ordered support
payments. The instruction in Line 33 should thus be amended to
refer to "the total monthly amount that you are paying for cur-
rent obligations pursuant to the order of a court or administra-
tive agency, such as spousal or child support payments."

(ii) All of the IRS expense deductions (National Standards,
Local Standards, and Other Necessary Expenses) are employed in
the means test subject to the proviso of § 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (I)
that "[n]otwithstanding any other provision of this clause, the
monthly expenses of the debtor shall not include any payments
for debts." Any payments that a debtor made pursuant to court
order reflecting past-due amounts would be "payments for debts"
and so cannot be deducted in Line 33. The instruction in Line
33 reflects this limitation, but refers only to spousal or child
support payments. It should not be so limited. Any court-
ordered payments on account of a past due obligations would re-
fer to debt payment and so should not be included in Line 33.
Accordingly, the last sentence of the instruction should read
"Do not include payments on past due obligations included in
Line 49." Finally, as Judge Lundin points out, a debtor might
conclude that current support obligations (properly deducted in
Line 33) are also "priority claims" deductible in Line 49. To
avoid that error, the instruction in Line 49 should be amended
to read "Enter the total amount, divided by 60, of all priority
claims, including only past due obligations. Do not include
current obligations set out in Line 33."

13. "Other Necessary Expense" deduction for education.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 18-
19) suggests that the instruction for Line 34 of Form 22C be
amended (i) to include payments for education that would in-
crease a debtor's wages, and (ii) to include payments for educa-
tion expenses of a non-filing spouse's physically or mentally
challenged child.

b. Suggested response. No action.

c. Explanation. The instruction properly reflects the con-
tent of the IRS "Other Necessary Expense" category for educa-
tion. See item 6 in § 5.15.1.10(3) of the Internal Revenue Man-

14 92



ual, set out in the Appendix hereto. It is not appropriate to
allow a deduction for educational expenses of a non-filing
spouse's dependents. For purposes of applying the means test
(with its IRS deductions), the income of a non-filing spouse is
included in current monthly income of the debtor only to the ex-
tent it is paid for the household expenses of the debtor or the
debtor's dependents. See Lines 19, 20, and 53 of Form 22C.

14. "Other Necessary Expense" deduction for health care.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at
19) suggests that the instruction for Line 36 of Form 22C is ac-
curate in excluding reimbursed medical expenses only if insur-
ance reimbursement is excluded from income in Line 7. Con-
versely, Eric Froisland, on behalf of Standing Trustee Kevin
Anderson (06-BK-019 at 14) suggests that the instruction limit
the deduction to those health care expenses "required for the
health and welfare of the family" and that the debtor be re-
quired to provide proof of such payments.

b. Suggested response. The instruction for Line 36 should
be amended to include the limitation to necessary health care:
"Enter the average monthly amount that you actually expend on
health care that is necessary for the welfare of yourself or
your dependents and that is not reimbursed by insurance or paid
by a health savings account." A similar change should be made
in the corresponding line of Form 22A.

c. Explanation. The instruction for Line 36, in main part,
reflects the content of the IRS "Other Necessary Expense" cate-
gory for health care. See item 7 in § 5.15.1.10(3) of the In-
ternal Revenue Manual, set out in the Appendix hereto ("Ensure
that the amount used is out of pocket after insurance claims are
paid."). The forms are not reasonably able to address the ques-
tion of whether particular insurance proceeds are within the
definition of "current monthly income" as payments made on a
regular basis for the household expenses of the debtor or the
debtor's dependents, and so Judge Lundin's suggestion cannot be
implemented. Mr. Froisland is correct in reading the Internal
Revenue Manual's discussion of health care expenses as limited
to "necessary" expenses. The question of what proof should be
required for such expenses, however, is not addressed by the
Code (in contrast to other specified deductions) and there is no
reason why documentation required by the Manual should be refer-
enced in the form. (Of course, a Chapter 13 trustee or inter-
ested party may obtain relevant documentation from the debtor

15 93



whenever a question arises regarding the debtor's financial con-
dition.)

15. Consistent use of "total" in "Other Necessary Expense" de-
duction instructions.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 19)
suggests that the word "total" should be used for applicable de-
ductions in all of the instructions for Lines 30 through 37 of
Form 22C.

b. Suggested response. The suggestion should be imple-
mented.

c. Explanation. The instructions for several of the IRS
"Other Necessary Expense" categories (Lines 30-37 of Form 22C)
refer to the "total" expense that the debtor incurs in the given
category, but Lines 32, 35, 36, and 37 do not. There is no rea-
son for the distinction. The word can properly be added to each
of these lines, and to the corresponding lines of Form 22A.

16. "Other Necessary Expense" deductions for optional telephone
and internet service.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at
19-20) suggests (i) that the instruction for Line 37 of Form 22C
should be divided into separate lines for optional telephones
and telephone service and for internet provider /email and (ii)
that the instruction for Line 37 should be amended to remove
both the exclusion of basic telephone service and the limitation
of other service to that necessary for the health or welfare of
the debtor and the debtor's dependents. Eric Froisland, on be-
half of Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 14-15)
makes similar suggestions.

b. Suggested response. No action.

c. Explanation. (i) The combination of the two IRS "Other
Necessary Expense" categories was done to avoid changing line
numbers when internet service was added to an earlier version of
the form. It has no substantive impact. (ii) Basic telephone
service is included in the Local Standard for housing/utilities
and so cannot be deducted in Line 37 without violating the pol-
icy against duplicative deductions. The limitation to services
necessary for health and welfare is part of the Internal Revenue
Manual's "necessary expense test" which is expressly applicable

16 94



to both the phone and internet categories. See items 13 and 15
in § 5.15.1.10(3) of the Internal Revenue Manual, set out in the
Appendix hereto. The necessary expense test is set out in
§ 5.15.1.10(l) of the Manual, also in the Appendix. The test
allows expenses for both health and welfare and income-
generating purposes, but the use of the optional phone and
internet services for business is taken into consideration in
the netting of business and rental income provided for in Lines
3 and 4.

17. Omitted "Other Necessary Expense" categories

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at
20-21) and Eric Froisland, on behalf of Standing Trustee Kevin
Anderson (06-BK-019 at 9-13) suggest that Form 22C be amended to
include additional lines (or perhaps a single line) to accommo-
date several categories of IRS "Other Necessary Expense" catego-
ries not now included in the form.

b. Suggested response. No action.

c. Explanation. This issue was previously discussed by the
Advisory Committee. As described in the Internal Revenue Man-
ual, none of the categories omitted would generate an appropri-
ate deduction for purposes of the means test. The omitted cate-
gories, set out in § 5.15.1.10(3) of the Manual and included in
the Appendix to this memorandum, are the following:

[1] accounting and legal fees, omitted because the Manual
limits the category to fees generated in connection with repre-
sentation before the IRS, with any other accounting or legal
fees disallowed;

[2] charitable contributions, omitted because separately
treated in Line 45 (and discussed below in connection with Judge
Lundin's comment regarding Line 45);

[10] secured or legally perfected debts, omitted pursuant
to the proviso of § 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (I) that IRS expense allow-
ances in the means test "shall not include any payments for
debts";

[11] unecured debts, omitted pursuant to the
§ 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (I) proviso;

[14] student loans, omitted pursuant to the
§ 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (I) proviso;

17 95



[16] repayment of loans made for payment of Federal Taxes,
omitted pursuant to the § 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (I) proviso.

18. Headings for Deduction Sections

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 21)
suggests that the heading for Subpart B of Part IV of Form 22C
be changed from "Additional Expense Deductions under § 707(b)"
to "Additional Expense Deductions under § 707(b) (2)".

b. Suggested response. Rather than the suggested action,
the heading of Part IV should be changed to "CALCULATION OF
DEDUCTIONS FROM CURRENT MONTHLY INCOME," the heading for Subpart
B should be changed to "Additional Living Expense Deductions,"
and the heading for Subpart D should be changed to "Total Deduc-
tions from Current Monthly Income."

c. Explanation. The deduction for charitable contributions
does not appear in § 707(b) (2). In determining abuse under
§ 707(b), the court is prohibited from giving consideration to
the debtor's charitable contributions by a provision in
§ 707(b) (1). For determining disposable income for above-median
income debtors in Chapter 13, a charitable contribution allow-
ance of up to 15% of gross income is allowed by § 1325(b) (3).
See Religious Liberty and Charitable Donation Clarification Act
of 2006, Pub.L. 109-439, 120 Stat. 3285, effective December 20,
2006).' To be accurate, then, a limiting reference to
§ 707(b) (2) should be eliminated both in the heading of Part IV
and the headings of Subparts B and D. The same changes should
be made in the corresponding headings of Form 22A.

19. Deduction for Health Insurance, Disability Insurance, and
Health Savings Account Expenses.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at
21) suggests that the instruction for Line 39 of Form 22C be
changed to remove the limitation allowing a deduction only for

4 As amended by this enactment, § 1325(b) (3) now provides,
for above-median income debtors that "[a]mounts reasonably nec-
essary to be expended under paragraph (2), other than subpara-
graph (A) (ii) of paragraph (2), shall be determined in accor-
dance with subparagraphs (A) and (B) of section 707(b) (2).." In
turn, § 1325(b) (2) (A) (ii) provides a charitable donation deduc-
tion "in an amount not to exceed 15 percent of gross income of
the debtor for the year in which the contributions are made."

18 96



expenses actually paid. Similarly, Eric Froisland, on behalf of
Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 15) suggests that
the deduction be limited to "reasonably necessary" expenditures.

b. Suggested response. The suggestions should be imple-
mented.

c. Explanation. Section 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (I), after direct-
ing that the debtor's monthly expenses are to be determined un-
der IRS standards, states, "Such expenses shall include reasona-
bly necessary health insurance, disability insurance, and health
savings account expenses for the debtor, the spouse of the
debtor, or the dependents of the debtor." Because the IRS stan-
dards make no explicit allowance for such expenses, Forms 22A
and 22C set out a separate line item covering them. The in-
struction for this line allows a deduction for amounts "that you
actually pay." That limitation does not appear in the statutory
language; a debtor could argue that a reasonable amount should
be allowed for health and disability insurance and a health sav-
ings account even if the debtor does not actually make use of
the allowance-the approach taken by the IRS National Standards
for food and clothing. In keeping with the policy of the Advi-
sory Committee not to resolve interpretative questions unneces-
sarily, the phrase "that you actually pay" should be removed
from the instruction in Line 39 of Form 22C and in the corre-
sponding line of Form 22A. The revised instruction would state,
tracking the statutory language: "List and total the monthly
expenses reasonably necessary for health insurance, disability
insurance, and health savings account expenses for yourself,
your spouse, or your dependents." It may be appropriate, if
this suggestion is implemented, to provide a check box for the
debtor to indicate whether these expenses are actually paid.

20. Deduction for contributions to the care of household or fam-
ily members.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 21-
22) suggests that the instruction for Line 40 of Form 22C be
changed to remove the prohibition against double deductions.

b. Suggested response. No action

c. Explanation. The Advisory Committee has consistently in-
terpreted the expense deductions of the means test so as to
avoid duplicative deductions. Section 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (II), al-
lows a deduction for continued payments for the care and support
of certain household members. Judge Lundin suggests that this

19 97



deduction, provided for in Line 40 of Form 22C, can reasonably
be taken even if the debtor has already deducted the payments in
Line 34 (dealing with an IRS "Other Necessary Expense: deduction
for the education of a physically or mentally challenged child).
However, in keeping with the statute's general prohibition
against duplicative deductions, the words "in addition"-which
introduce § 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (II)-can only reasonably be read as
adding a deduction that was not already covered by the IRS ex-
pense allowances. Also, if the suggestion were implemented, it
would be necessary-in order to identify the issue for judicial
determination-to direct the debtor to indicate whether there was
a duplication in the deductions and to specify the amount of the
duplication, adding further complexity to the forms.

21. Deduction for home energy costs.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at
22) suggests that the instruction for Line 42 of Form 22C be
changed to employ the actual wording of § 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (V):
"an allowance for housing and utilities, in excess of the allow-
ance specified by the Local Standards for housing and utilities
issued by the Internal Revenue Service, based on the actual ex-
penses for home energy costs if the debtor provides documenta-
tion of such actual expenses and demonstrates that such actual
expenses are reasonable and necessary." Eric Froisland, on be-
half of Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 15-16)
suggests a clarification of the documentation instruction.

b. Suggested response. The documentation instruction
should be modified to track the statutory language more closely.

c. Explanation. The statutory language is fairly summarized
in the first sentence of the present instruction: "Enter the av-
erage monthly amount, in excess of the allowance specified by
IRS Local Standards for Housing and Utilities, that you actually
expend for home energy costs." There is no indication, as sug-
gested by Judge Lundin, that the statutory language allows a de-
duction for home energy costs duplicative of the IRS Local Stan-
dards. However, the second sentence-"You must provide your case
trustee with documentation demonstrating that the additional
amount claimed is reasonable and necessary"-deviates somewhat
from the statute. To track the statutory language more closely,
the instruction should read: "You must provide your case trustee
with documentation of your actual expenses and demonstrate that
the additional amount claimed is reasonable and necessary."
The same change should be made in the corresponding line of Form
22A.

20 98



22. Deduction for educational expenses for dependent children
under 18.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at
22-23) suggests that the instruction for Line 43 of Form 22C be
changed to refer to the expenses for a child "to attend" a pri-
vate or public elementary or secondary school rather than the
current reference to "providing" elementary and secondary educa-
tion. Eric Froisland, on behalf of Standing Trustee Kevin Ander-
son (06-BK-019 at 16-17) makes the same suggestion and also sug-
gests a clarification of the documentation instruction.

b. Suggested response. Implement the suggestions.

c. Explanation. Although it is not clear that it produces
any substantive effect, the comments correctly note a difference
between the instruction and the statutory language of
§ 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (IV). The Advisory Committee has decided to
track the statutory language where this can reasonably be done.
The substantive relevant portion of the revised instruction
should state: "Enter the average monthly expenses that you actu-
ally incur, not to exceed $125 per child, for attendance at a
private or public elementary school by your dependent children
less than 18 years of age." The remainder of the instruction
would read: "You must provide your case trustee with documenta-
tion of your actual expenses and explain why the amount claimed
is reasonable and necessary and not already accounted for in the
IRS Standards." These changes should also be made in the corre-
sponding line of Form 22A.

21 99



23. Deduction for additional food and clothing expense.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 23)
suggests that the instruction for Line 43 of Form 22C be changed
to include "and services" in the description of the allowable
additional expense for clothing. Eric Froisland, on behalf of
Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 17-18) suggests a
correction of the documentation instruction.

b. Suggested response. The documentation instruction
should be modified to track the statutory language more closely.

c. Explanation. The language of § 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (I) im-
plemented by Line 44 allows an additional expense deduction only
for "food and clothing," not services connected with clothing.
The additional expense deduction is capped at 5% of the IRS Na-
tional Standards allowance for "food and clothing," and, for
clothing, the National Standards only have an "apparel and ser-
vices" category. That category therefore figures into the cap
on additional expenses, but it does define the type of addi-
tional expense subject to the cap. The present instruction cor-
rectly implements the statutory language. However, the statute
does not require "documentation," but only a "demonstration"
that the additional expense is reasonable and necessary. The
corrected instruction should read: "You must demonstrate that
the additional amount claimed is reasonable and necessary." This
change should also be made in the corresponding line of Form
22A.

24. Deduction for charitable contributions.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 24)
and Eric Froisland, on behalf of Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson
(06-BK-019 atl8) make suggestions regarding Line 45 of Form 22C
that have been rendered obsolete by the enactment of Religious
Liberty and Charitable Donation Clarification Act of 2006,
Pub.L. 109-439, 120 Stat. 3285, effective December 20, 2006).

b. Suggested response. Line 45 must be revised substan-
tially to comply with the Religious Liberty and Charitable Dona-
tion Clarification Act.

c. Explanation. As noted above (at 13 n.4), the Religious
Liberty and Charitable Donation Clarification Act adds language
to § 1325(b) (3) to provide, for above-median income debtors,
that ' [a]mounts reasonably necessary to be expended under para-
graph (2), other than subparagraph (A) (ii) of paragraph (2),

22 100



shall be determined in accordance with subparagraphs (A) and (B)
of section 707(b) (2)." In turn, § 1325(b) (2) (A) (ii) provides a
deduction "for charitable contributions (that meet the defini-
tion of 'charitable contribution' under section 548(d) (3) to a
qualified religious or charitable entity or organization (as de-
fined in section 548(d) (4)) in an amount not to exceed 15 per-
cent of gross income of the debtor for the year in which the
contributions are made."

Accordingly, the otherwise applicable means test deductions
of § 707(b) (2) are overridden by the capped allowance of
§ 1325(b) (2) (A) (ii). To reflect this change, the instruction for
Line 45 should read as follows:

Enter the amount reasonably necessary for you to ex-
pend on charitable contributions in the form of cash
or financial instruments to a charitable organization
as defined in 26 U.S.C. § 170(c)(1)-(2). Do not in-
clude any amount in excess of 15% of your gross
monthly income.

This instruction does not precisely track the language of
§ 1325(b) (2), which literally caps the debtor's monthly charita-
ble contributions at 15% of the debtor's annual gross income-
substantially more than an entire month's average income (8.33%
of annual income). The only reasonable interpretation is that
the 15% cap is intended to apply to monthly income, as the pro-
posed instruction provides. It is not possible to provide guid-
ance as to the meaning of "gross income," as discussed above at
Point 8. The reference to cash and financial instruments comes
from § 548(d) (3); the reference to the Internal Revenue Code
comes from § 548(d) (4), both specified in § 1325(b)(3). No
change is required in the corresponding line of Form 22A.

25. Deduction for future payments on secured claims.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at
24) and Eric Froisland, on behalf of Standing Trustee Kevin
Anderson (06-BK-019 at 18) suggest that the instruction in Line
47 of Form 22C include the phrase "as scheduled" in describing
future secured debt payments.

b. Suggested response. The suggestion should be imple-
mented.

c. Explanation. Judge Lundin correctly points out that the
phrase "scheduled as" appears in § 707(b) (2) (A) (iii) and has

23 101



been addressed in judicial decisions. Consistent with the Advi-
sory Committee's policy of tracking statutory language where
reasonably possible, the phrase should be added to the instruc-
tion, which would then read, in relevant part, as follows:
"The Average Monthly Payment is the total of all amounts sched-
uled as contractually due to each Secured Creditor . . . ." The
same change should be made in the corresponding line of Form
22A.

Judge Lundin made additional suggestions regarding Line 47
that are discussed at Point 9, above.

26. Deduction for other payments on secured claims.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 25)
suggests that the instruction in Line 48 of Form 22C direct
debtors that they may include in the amount needed to maintain
possession of necessary collateral "creditor's attorney's fees,
foreclosure expenses and the like."

b. Suggested response. No action.

c. Explanation. The instruction merely gives payment of
amounts in default as an example of amounts that would have to
be paid (in addition to contractually scheduled future payments)
in order to retain collateral. It is unclear how a debtor
could know the amounts that might be charged in attorney's fees
or foreclosure costs, and suggesting these items as additional
examples would likely be confusing. If a debtor is aware of
such charges, nothing in the instruction would prevent their be-
ing included in the deduction.

24 102



27. Deduction for priority claims.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 26)
suggests that the instruction in Line 49 of Form 22C direct
debtors that they may include anticipated tax liabilities and
attorneys' fees as priority claims. Eric Froisland, on behalf of
Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 18) makes the same
suggestion regarding anticipated attorney fees.

b. Suggested response. The instruction should be amended
to clarify that only existing priority claims are subject to the
deduction. See Point 12, above.

c. Explanation. See Point 12, above.

28. Deduction for Chapter 13 administrative claims.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 26-
27) suggests changes to Line 50 of Form 22C that are discussed
in connection with Point 1, above.

b. Suggested response. No action.

c. Explanation. See Point 1, above.

29. Deduction for special circumstances.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 27-
28) suggests the addition of a new line item allowing deduction
for "special circumstances." The National Bankruptcy Conference
(06-BK-018 at 4) similarly suggests that Form 22C be amended to
allow the debtor to deduct from disposable income "any adjust-
ment to which the debtor claims entitlement, together with an
explanation citing authority." Eric Froisland, on behalf of
Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 20) questions the
propriety of current Part VI, which allows a non-computation de-
duction for additional expense claims, and a group of organiza-
tions representing consumer credit providers (06-BK-055) sug-
gests that Part VI (and the corresponding Part V of Form 22A) be
omitted.

b. Suggested response. Judge Lundin's suggestion should be
implemented.

c. Explanation. For calculating disposable income for
above-median income Chapter 13 debtors, § 1326(b) (3) directs
that debtors' expense deductions be "determined in accordance

25 103



with subparagraphs (A) and (B) of section 707(b) (2)." Section
707(b) (2) (A) sets out the means test deductions, currently im-
plemented by Form 22C. Section 707(b) (2) (B) allows a Chapter 7
debtor to rebut a presumption of abuse arising under the means
test by "by demonstrating special circumstances, such as a seri-
ous medical condition or a call or order to active duty in the
Armed Forces." Because this "special circumstances" provision
is expressly included in the formula for determining disposable
income, it should be included as a potential deduction prior to
the determination of disposable income in Part V of Form 22C.
Such an addition would eliminate the need for Part VI. Line
numbers in Part V would have to be adjusted.

There is no need for a parallel change in Form 22A. Part
VII of that form merely gives the debtor an opportunity to as-
sert claims that arguably fall within the IRS's "Other Necessary
Expense" test, but are not within one of the categories speci-
fied in the Internal Revenue Manual. Part VII reflects a com-
promise reached by the Advisory Committee to deal with this is-
sue.

30. Exclusion of support income.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 28)
suggests that the instruction in Line 54 of Form 22C be amended
to eliminate the cross-reference to Line 7.

b. Suggested response. The instruction should be changed
to provide for exclusion of any of the defined types of income
that are reported in Part I of the form.

c. Explanation. It is unlikely that support income of the
sort excluded from disposable income by §1325(b) (2) would be re-
ported anywhere but in Line 7. However, because a debtor might
report such income in another line of Part I, it would be appro-
priate to change the instruction in Line 54 to allow exclusion
of any of the defined income "reported in Part I" rather than
"included in Line 7." There is no corresponding issue in Form
22A.

31. Retirement plan deductions.

a. Substance of the comments. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at
28-29) and Eric Froisland, on behalf of Standing Trustee Kevin
Anderson (06-BK-019 at 19-20) suggest changing the instruction
in Line 55 of Form 22C to more closely track the language of
§ 541(b) (7).

26 104



b. Suggested response. The suggestions should be imple-
mented.

c. Explanation. Section 541(b) (7) requires deductions from
disposable income in Chapter 13 for specified contributions and
loan repayments to retirement plans. Judge Lundin has suggested
that the instruction in Line 55 more closely follow the statu-
tory language. He also points out that the use of the term "av-
erage" in the instruction may be contrary to the requirement
that a Chapter 13 plan may not modify loans to qualified pension
plans. Beyond that concern, the instruction does not define how
an average payment would be calculated. The instruction should
be amended to read as follows: "Enter the monthly total of (a)
all amounts withheld by your employer from wages or received by
your employer as contributions for qualified retirement plans,
as specified in § 541(b) (7) and (b) all required repayments of
loans from retirement plans, as specified in § 362(b) (19)."
There is no corresponding issue in Form 22A.

32. Limitation of income to that "received by" the debtor.

a. Substance of the comment. Keith Lundin (06-BK-009 at 30)
suggests that a new line item be added to Form 22C allowing a
debtor to deduct income that was paid directly to suppliers of
goods and services benefiting the debtor or the debtor's depend-
ents, rather than "received" by the debtor directly.

b. Suggested response. No action.

c. Explanation. Judge Lundin's suggestion is based on the
language of § 1325(b) (2) that calculates disposable income by
providing for deductions from "current monthly income received
by the debtor." A distinction between income "received by" the
debtor directly, on one hand, and paid by others on behalf of
the debtor or the debtors dependents, on the other, does not ap-
pear to be supportable by any legislative purpose and would cre-
ate completely arbitrary distinctions. Accommodating this
unlikely interpretation would add substantial complexity to the
form.

33. Debtors without primarily consumer debts.

a. Substance of the comment. Wesley Steen and Marvin Isgur
(06-BK-014 at 30) suggest that Form 22A include an additional
check box allowing debtors to represent that their debts are not
primarily consumer debts (and thus that they are not required to

27 105



complete the remainder of the form), with the check box also
constituting a request for "an extension of time to file the
form if the Court subsequently determines that the representa-
tion is incorrect." The suggestion requests an appropriate
change in the rules.

b. Suggested response. (1) Amend Rule 1007(b) (4) to delete
the phrase "with primarily consumer debts," thus requiring all
individual Chapter 7 debtors to complete Form 22A. (2) Include
a check box at the beginning of Form 22A allowing debtors to
represent that their debts are not primarily consumer debts and
directing them not to complete the balance of the form in that
event.

c. Explanation. The suggestion properly notes that current
Rule 1007(b) (4) can present a problem for debtors without pri-
marily consumer debts. In its present version, this provision
excepts such debtors from the requirement of filing Form 22A.
However, if it were later determined that a debtor is incorrect
in asserting am absence of primarily consumer debts, the debtor
will likely be beyond the deadline for filing the form (15 days
under Rule 1007(c)), and so in danger of having the case dis-
missed-arguably automatically dismissed under § 521(i) (1).

This situation should be addressed by amendment to Rule
1107(b) (4) and Form 22A, but a simple requirement that all indi-
vidual Chapter 7 debtors complete Form 22A, amended to include a
non-consumer debt check-off, should be sufficient. Filing the
form with the checked representation of primarily non-consumer
debts will satisfy the requirement of § 707(b) (2) (C) that the
debtor file a statement reflecting whether the presumption of
abuse arises. If the representation is determined to be incor-
rect, the debtor can be required to amend the form; however, the
initial timely filing would avoid any difficulty with automatic
dismissal.

34. Limitation of deductions to actual expenses.

a. Substance of the comments. Eric Froisland, on behalf of
Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 8-10); Steve Bart-
lett, on behalf of the Financial Services Roundtable (06-BK-
051); and a group of organizations representing consumer credit
providers (06-BK-055) suggest that Forms 22A and 22C be amended
to allow expense deductions no greater than the debtor's actual
expenses.

b. Suggested response. No action.

28 106



c. Explanation. The issues raised by the comment were
thoroughly discussed in prior Advisory Committee meetings. The
Committee has determined to apply the language of
§ 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (I) granting a deduction in "amounts specified
under the National Standards and Local Standards . . . issued by
the internal Revenue Service" without limitation to actual ex-
penses.

35. Additional detail for "Other Income."

a. Substance of the comments. Eric Froisland, on behalf of
Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019) suggests that Line 9
of Form 22C be amended either to eliminate the "a and b boxes"
for identifying other sources of income or else to provide, in
cases of married debtors, some means of identifying which spouse
has received the income listed in the boxes. This would affect
the parallel line of Form 22C.

b. Suggested response. The to "Total and enter on Line 9"
should be amended to state "Enter on Line 9 the total income.
In cases of married debtors, divide this income between Columns
A and B to reflect the person to whom the income is attributed."

c. Explanation. The total income listed in boxes a and b
is intended to be divided by spouse in Columns A and B. A
clarifying instruction would remove any ambiguity here.

36. Instruction for deduction for protection against family vio-
lence.

a. Substance of the comments. Eric Froisland, on behalf of
Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 15) suggests that
Line 41 of Form 22C be amended to include a limitation of ex-
penses for protection against family violence to those that are
"reasonably necessary." A parallel change would be required for
Form 22A.

b. Suggested response. The suggestion should be imple-
mented.

c. Explanation. To more closely tract the statutory lan-
guage (§707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (I)), the instruction for Line 41 (and
the parallel provision of Form 22A) should be amended to refer
to "the average reasonably necessary expenses that you actually
incur."

29 107



37. Computation of the applicable commitment period.

a. Substance of the comments. Eric Froisland, on behalf of
Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 5) suggests that
Part II of Form 22C be amended to specify that an applicable
commitment period may be shorter than the 3 or 5 years otherwise
provided for if the debtor pays all allowed claims within the
shorter period. The comment also suggests that Part II improp-
erly excludes support, foster care, and disability payments from
the calculation of the applicable commitment period.

b. Suggested response. The instruction in the box at the
beginning of the form can be amended to track the statutory lan-
guage more closely.

c. Explanation. Section 1325(b) (4) (B) allows a shorter ap-
plicable commitment period in cases of full payment of all al-
lowed unsecured claims. Although it is unlikely that a debtor
would read Form 22C as extending a commitment period beyond the
time of full claim payment, the instruction at the beginning of
the form could be made more accurate, by introducing the check
boxes for applicable commitment period with the statement that
they apply "unless the debtor's plan pays all allowed unsecured
claims in full."

Contrary to the comment, Part II of Form 22C does not ex-
clude support, foster care, and disability payments from the
calculation of the applicable commitment period. The income
items are separately deducted in Part V the form, only in con-
nection with the calculation of disposable income.

38. Necessity for subtotals in disposable income computation.

a. Substance of the comments. Eric Froisland, on behalf of
Standing Trustee Kevin Anderson (06-BK-019 at 19-20) suggests
that Lines 53 and 56 of Form 22C be eliminated as unnecessary.

b. Suggested response. No action.

c. Explanation. Line 53 totals deductions from income set
out in § 707(b) (2) for use in the means test. (These deductions
are required to be used in calculating disposable income for
above median income Chapter 13 debtors, pursuant to
§ 1325(b)(3).) The total deductions are then added to statu-
tory exclusions from current monthly income in Line 56 and 57.
Although the subtotals in Lines 53 and 56 are not necessary (and

30 108



serve no purpose when the form is completed using computer soft-
ware), the subtotals do assist in manual computations.

39. Requests for reconsideration from organizations of consumer
finance providers.

a. Substance of the comments. In addition to the matters
discussed in Point 3, 29, and 34, above, a group consisting of
The American Bankers Association, the American Financial Ser-
vices Association, America's Community Bankers, the Consumer
Bankers Association, The Financial Services Roundtable, and the
Independent Community Bankers of America (06-BK-055 at 3-8) re-
quests reconsideration of the following issues previously de-
cided by the Advisory Committee:

i. Unemployment compensation (Form 22A, Line 9; Form 22C,
Line 8). The group suggests removing the option to claim that
unemployment compensation is a benefit received under the Social
Security Act and so excluded from current monthly income.

ii. Application of the § 707(b) (7) safe harbor (Form 22A,
Line 15). The group suggests that below median income debtors
(against whom no means test presumption can be asserted) be re-
quired to complete the entire means test form.

iii. Challenge to the split Local Standard for housing
(Form 22A, Line 21; Form 22C, Line 26). The group suggests that
debtors not be allowed to challenge the division of the IRS Lo-
cal Standard for housing into mortgage and non-mortgage compo-
nents, despite the fact that this division is not issued by the
IRS as part of the Local Standard for purposes of tax collec-
tion.

iv. Express limitation of Chapter 13 administrative ex-
penses (Form 22A, Line 45; Form 22C, Line 50). The organizations
suggest an express instruction limiting administrative expenses
for a potential Chapter 13 case to no more than 10% of projected
plan payments, even though the instructions require use of al-
lowances set by the Executive Office for United States Trustees,
which never exceed 10%).

b. Suggested response. No action.

c. Explanation. Each of these matters has been thoroughly
discussed by the Advisory Committee, and no new arguments are
advanced by the comment.

31 109





Appendix
Additional discussion of Point 3: Treatment of Spousal Income

The principal question involving spousal income Form 22C is
how to calculate current monthly income ("CMI") for purposes of
determining whether the "applicable commitment period" for the
debtor's Chapter 13 plan is three years or five.

"Applicable commitment period," as used in § 1325(b) (1) (B),
is the period during which projected disposable income must be
applied to plan payments to unsecured creditors. Section
1325(b) (4) provides that the applicable commitment period is
five years if "the current monthly income of the debtor and the
debtor's spouse combined" is not less than a defined median in-
come level. If the "combined" CMI is less than that median, the
applicable commitment period is three years.

BAPCPA uses CMI for other purposes without combining
spousal income. For example, § 1325(b) (3) requires use of the
Chapter 7 means test to determine disposable income if the CMI
that "the debtor has" exceeds the defined median.

Thus, a fair reading of § 1325(b) (4) is that the calculation
of CMI for determining the applicable commitment period includes
spousal income that is not included in the calculation of CMI
for determining disposable income. The current version of Form
22C accommodates this reading. Part I of the form reports the
CMI of both spouses, Part II compares the combined spousal CMI
to the defined median in order to determine the applicable com-
mitment period under § 1325(b) (4). Part III removes the CMI of a
non-filing spouse to determine disposable income under
§ 1325(b) (3).

However, there is another possible interpretation of
§ 1325(b) (4), which the form also accommodates. This reading
looks to the definition of CMI in § 101(10A), which provides that
CMI is specified "income . . . that the debtor receives (or in a
joint case the debtor and the debtor's spouse receive)," to-
gether with "any amount paid by any entity other than the debtor
(or in a joint case the debtor and the debtor's spouse), on a
regular basis for the household expenses of the debtor or the
debtor's dependents (and in a joint case the debtor's spouse if
not otherwise a dependent)." Based on this definition, it has
been contended that income of a non-filing spouse should not be
counted under § 1325(b) (4). The form allows a debtor to use this
"definitional" interpretation of § 1325(b) (4) by deducting the

1 110



CMI of a non-filing spouse in Part II (for § 1326(b)(4)'s compu-
tation of the applicable commitment period) as well as in Part
III (for § 1326(b)(3)'s determination of how to calculate dis-
posable income).

The proposal to reverse ("flip") the order of Parts II and
III does not challenge the concept underlying the existing form:
that information regarding spousal income should be presented in
all cases of married Chapter 13 debtors, whether or not there is
a joint filing, and that both readings of § 1325(b) (4) should be
accommodated. Rather the proposal is that the form should start
with the income of individual spousal income, and add to it the
income of a non-filing spouse if the debtor accepts the "com-
bined" reading. In other words, the debate is over which read-
ing should be the "default," for which adjustments are permit-
ted.

There are at least three reasons for preferring the current
form's treatment of the issue. First, this version of the form
will have been in use for several years before any new form
could be implemented, and the changes caused by the recommended
"flipping" would be confusing. New instructions and entry lines
would be required, since joint filers would begin their calcula-
tions of disposable income with a CMI different from married
debtors not filing jointly. Because the actual information be-
ing reported does not change, there is no compelling reason to
make these changes in the form.

Second, the proposed changes would make it more difficult
to determine when a debtor was using the definitional interpre-
tation of § 1326(a) (4). In the current form, a debtor's decision
to employ this interpretation is obvious, because the debtor
must enter a deduction in Line 13 for income that would other-
wise be counted. The debtor has an incentive to complete the
line because it is to the debtor's benefit to have a lower CMI
and a potentially shorter applicable commitment period. Under
the proposal, the debtor would have to add income if the debtor
"believes" that this is required. If there is nothing filled
in, it may simply mean that the spouse has no income not other-
wise paid for household expenses (and so part of the debtor's
CMI in any event). To determine whether the debtor is asserting
the definitional interpretation, one would have to compare the
spousal income added to CMI as payment of expenses to the total
spousal income shown on another page of the form.

Third, although the definitional interpretation of
§ 1325(a) (5) is supportable, "combining" spousal CMI is probably

2



more consistent with the statutory language and so provides the
more appropriate default. The definition's designation of the
relevant income recipient-"the debtor . . . or in a joint case
the debtor and the debtor's spouse"-is never adopted in the sub-
stantive provisions of BAPCPA. Rather, these provisions them-
selves always state the relevant income recipient, usually re-
ferring to "the debtor's" CMI (as in § 707(b) (2) (C)), but
sometimes referring to CMI of the debtor's spouse (as in
§707(b) (6) and (7)). Literally, this produces a double designa-
tion of the income recipient, resulting in linguistic nonsense.
If the definition of CMI is used in place of the term itself in
the substantive provisions, the phrase "the debtor's current
monthly income," becomes "the debtor's income received by the
debtor and in a joint case the debtor and the debtor's spouse."
Similarly the phrase "the current monthly income of the debtor's
spouse" would literally mean "the income of the debtor's spouse
received by the debtor and in a joint case the debtor and the
debtor's spouse." This meaningless duplication could not have
been intended; the drafters of the substantive provisions appar-
ently designated the individual whose income was to be consid-
ered in determining CMI without regard to the fact that the
definition already contained such a designation. The usual way
of resolving such conflicts is to use the designations contained
in the specific substantive provisions rather than the general
definition. See Fourco Glass Co. v. Transmirra Prod. Corp, 353
U.S. 222, 228 (1957) (quoting authority for the rule that
"[h]owever inclusive may be the general language of a statute,
it will not be held to apply to a matter specifically dealt with
in another part of the same enactment").s

Additional discussion of Point 6: References to the website of
the Executive Office for United States Trustees

5 The conflict between the definition of CMI and the sub-
stantive provisions using CMI is particularly evident in
§707(b)(7). Section 707(b) (7) (A) bases a safe harbor from the
means test on "the current monthly income of the debtor .
and the debtor's spouse combined"-the same language used in
§ 1325(b) (4). Section 707(b) (7) (B) contains an exception: the
spousal CMI is not included if the debtor makes a defined decla-
ration of separation. The exception only applies "[i]n a case
that is not a joint case." This necessarily means that the
phrase requiring a combining of the CMI of the debtor and the
debtor's spouse requires spousal CMI to be computed in non-joint
cases unless the exception for separated spouses applies-despite
the definition limiting spousal CMI to joint cases.

3 112



Forms 22A and 22C consistently avoid allowance of double
deductions for expenses covered by the IRS Local Standards and
payments on secured claims, as required by § 707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (I),
which allows deductions in the amounts specified by the Local
Standards but also provides "Notwithstanding any other provision
of this clause, the monthly expenses of the debtor shall not in-
clude any payments for debts."

In order to avoid a double deduction for payment of a mort-
gage and the IRS Local Standard allowance for housing, the
amount paid on a mortgage must be deducted from the amount that
the IRS Local Standard would provide for obtaining housing
(mortgage or rent). The mortgage payment, however, should not
be deducted from whatever amount the IRS Local Standard would
provide for other expenses-utilities, maintenance, insurance,
etc.-that must be paid separately from the mortgage. Unfortu-
nately, the IRS's Local Standards, specified for use in
§707(b) (2) (A) (ii) (I), present a single undifferentiated housing
allowance, which does not distinguish between the costs of ob-
taining housing and the other expenses. However, in response to
requests from the EOUST, the IRS provided information necessary
to make such a division for bankruptcy purposes. Lines 25A and
25B of Form 22C (and parallel lines in Form 22A) set out a for-
mula for deducting mortgage payments from the IRS housing ex-
pense allowance using the division of that allowance issued by
the EOUST. However, recognizing the argument that this division
is inappropriate (because not part of the Local Standard issued
by the IRS), the forms permit debtors to claim a special deduc-
tion for housing expenses in excess of the formula otherwise set
out in the forms.

Additional material for Point 8: Determining "gross monthly income" for
application of the IRS National Standards

Internal Revenue Manual § 5.15.1.11 (05-01-2004)

Determining Individual Income

1. For purposes of determining the taxpayers' ability to
pay, total household income must first be determined. Refer to
Section 5.1.15.1.4, Shared Expenses for a complete explanation
of determining proportionate income and expense calculations. If
the taxpayer refuses to provide total household income, allocate
50% (or an appropriate percentage based on the number of house-
hold individuals) of household expenses to the taxpayer.

2. Income consists of the following:

4 113



A. Wages - Wages include salary, tips, meal allowance,
parking allowance or any other money or compensation received by
the taxpayer as an employee for services rendered. This includes
the taxpayer and spouse. Note: Use the following formulas to
calculate gross monthly wages or salaries: If paid weekly, mul-
tiply weekly gross wages by 4.3. If paid bi-weekly (every 2
weeks), multiply bi-weekly gross wages by 2.17. If income is
sporadic or seasonal, use the annual income figure from the W-2
or the 1040 and divide by 12 to determine the average monthly
income.

B. Interest and Dividends. Includes any interest or
dividends that the taxpayer receives or that is credited to an
account and can be withdrawn by the taxpayer and used for house-
hold expenses. The annual total should be divided by 12 to de-
termine the average monthly income Look for brokerage accounts
for dividends from publicly traded corporations and look for un-
disclosed bank accounts for interest payers. Note: If the in-
terest bearing accounts are used as an asset, and the taxpayer
will be withdrawing the funds from the account to reduce the tax
liability, the dividends or interest would not be used in the
income stream.

C. Net Income from Self-Employment or Schedule C. The
amount the taxpayer earned after paying ordinary and necessary
business expenses. This amount may be determined from an analy-
sis of the Form 433-B or the Schedule C from the most current
Form 1040. If the net business is a loss, enter " zero". Do not
enter a negative number.

Note: If the 433-B is used or the taxpayer provides their
own income and expense statement, it must reflect a sufficient
time frame to accurately determine the monthly average that
could be expected for the entire year.

D. Net Rental Income. The amount earned after paying
ordinary and necessary monthly rental expenses. If it is a loss,
enter a "zero" Do not enter a negative number.

5 114



E. Pensions. Includes social security, IRA, profit
sharing plans, etc. Pensions could be used as an asset or as
part of the income stream. Refer to IRM 5.15.1.13, Business Ex-
penses.

F. Child Support. Include the actual amount received
in addition to other debts or bills the spouse is paying. For
example, the court order assigns $200 a week for support but
also requires all medical bills to be paid. In determining total
expense, adjust the expense accordingly.

G. Alimony. Includes the assigned payments made by the
non-resident spouse. However, consider if other bills are being
paid, such as the mortgage, and adjust the expense accordingly.

H. Other. This could include payments from a trust ac-
count, royalties, renting a room, gambling winnings, sale of
property, etc. Tax return information could include various
sources of income.

Additional material for Points 9-17, dealing with the IRS "Other
Expense" categories

Internal Revenue Manual § 5.15.1.10 (05-01-2004)

Other Expenses

1. Other expenses may be considered if they meet the neces-
sary expense test - they must provide for the health and welfare
of the taxpayer and/or his or her family or they must be for the
production of income. This is determined based on the facts and
circumstances of each case.

6 115



2. If other expenses are determined to be necessary and,
therefore allowable, document the reasons for the decision in
your history.

3. The amount allowed for necessary or conditional expenses
depends on the taxpayer's ability to full pay the liability
within five years and on the taxpayer's individual facts and
circumstances. If the liability can be paid within 5 years, it
may be appropriate to allow the taxpayer the excessive necessary
and conditional expenses. If the taxpayer cannot pay within 5
years, it may be appropriate to allow the taxpayer the excessive
necessary and conditional expenses for up to one year in order
to modify or eliminate the expense. (See IRM 5.14, Installment
Agreements)

Expense Item Expense is Necessary if: Notes/Tips
[1] Accounting and Representation before the Disallow any other accounting or legal fees.
legal fees. Service is needed or Disallow costs not related to solving current

meets the necessary ex- liability.
pense tests. Amount must
be reasonable.

[2] Charitable con- If it is a condition of em- Disallow any other charitable contributions
tributions (Dona- ployment or meets the that are not considered necessary. Example:
tions to tax exempt necessary expense tests. Review the employment contract.
organizations) Example: A minister is

required to tithe according
to his employment con-
tract.

[3] Child It meets the necessary ex- Cost of child care can vary greatly. Do not
Care(Baby-sitting, pense test. Only reason- allow unusually large child care expense if
day care, nursery able amounts are allowed, more reasonable alternatives are available.
and preschool) Consider the age of the child and if both par-

ents work.

7 116



[4] Court-Ordered If court ordered and being Review the court order.
Payments(Alimony, paid, they are allowable.
child support, in- If payments are not being
cluding orders made, do not allow the
made by the state, expense. Child support
and other court payments for natural chil-
ordered payments) dren or legally adopted

dependents may be al-
lowed.

[5] Dependent If there is no alternative to
Care(For the care the taxpayer paying the
of the elderly, in- expense.
valid, or handi-
capped.)

[6] Education It is required for a physi- Example: An attorney must take so many
cally or mentally chal- education credits each year or they will not be
lenged child and no public accredited and could eventually lose their li-
education providing simi- cense to practice before the State Bar. A
lar services is available, teacher could lose their position or in some
Also allowed only for the States their pay is commensurate with their
taxpayer and only if re- education credits.
quired as condition of
employment.

[7] Health Care Required for the health To determine monthly expenses, the total out
and welfare of the family. of pocket expenses would be divided by 12.
Elective surgery would The Schedule A may also be used to deter-
not be allowed such as mine the yearly expense. Ensure that the
plastic surgery or elective amount used is out of pocket after insurance
dental work. The taxpayer claims are paid. Substantiate that payments
must provide proof of ex- are being made.
cessive out of pocket
medical expenses.

[8] Involuntary If it is a requirement of To determine monthly expenses, the total out
Deductions the job; i.e. union dues, of pocket expenses would be divided by 12.

uniforms, work shoes.

[9] Life Insurance If it is a term policy on If there are whole life policies, these should
the life of the taxpayer be reviewed as an asset for borrowing against
only. or liquidating. Life insurance used as an in-

vestment is not a necessary expense.

8 117



[10] Secured or If it meets the necessary Taxpayer must substantiate that the payments
legally perfected expense test. are being made.
debts
[ 11] Unsecured If the taxpayer substanti- The necessary expense test of health and wel-
Debts ates and justifies the ex- fare and/or production of income must be met.

pense, the minimum pay- Except for payments required for the produc-
ment may be allowed. tion of income, payments on unsecured debts

will not be allowed if the tax liability, includ-
ing projected accruals, can be paid in full
within 90 days. [Example omitted.]

[12] Taxes It is for current federal, Current taxes are allowed regardless of
FICA, Medicare, state and whether the taxpayer made them in the past or
local taxes. not. Delinquent state and local taxes are al-

lowable depending on the priority of the FTL
and/or Service agreement with the state and
local taxing agencies.

[13] Optional It must meet the necessary
Telephones and expense test.
Telephone Ser-
vices (Cell phone,
pager, Call wait-
ing, caller identifi-
cation or long dis-
tance)

[14] Student Loans If it is secured by the fed- Taxpayer must substantiate that the payments
eral government and only are being made.
for the taxpayer's educa-
tion.

[15] Internet Pro- If it meets the necessary
vider/E-mail expense test - generally

for production of income.

[16] Repayment of If the loan is secured by
loans made for the taxpayer's assets when
payment of Federal those assets are of reason-
Taxes able value and are neces-

sary to provide for the
health and welfare of the
family.

9 118



10
119



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08)
In re According to the calculations required by this statement:

Debtor(s) El The presumption arises.

Case Number: __ The presumption does not arise.
(If known) (Check the box as directed in Parts I, III, and VI of this statement.)

CHAPTER 7 STATEMENT OF CURRENT MONTHLY INCOME
AND MEANS-TEST CALCULATION

In addition to Schedules I and J, this statement must be completed by every individual Chapter 7 debtor, whether or not filing
jointly, whose debts are primarily consumer debts. Joint debtors may complete one statement only.

-_PartI.EXLUSION FOR DI*SABED VETER~ANS ADNNCNUE ETR
If you are a disabled veteran described in the Veteran's Declaration in this Part I, (1) check the box at the beginning of the
Veteran's Declaration, (2) check the box for "The presumption does not arise" at the top of this statement, and (3) complete
the verification in Part VIII. Do not complete any of the remaining parts of this statement.1A
[I Veteran's Declaration. By checking this box, I declare under penalty of perjury that I am a disabled veteran (as de-
fined in 38 U.S.C. § 3741(1)) whose indebtedness occurred primarily during a period in which I was on active duty (as de-
fined in 10 U.S.C. § 101(d)(1)) or while I was performing a homeland defense activity (as defined in 32 U.S.C. §901(1)).

Part 11. CALCULWATION OF MONTHLY INCMEFOR§77b(7 XLSO
Marital/filing status. Check the box that applies and complete the balance of this part of this statement as directed.

a. El Unmarried. Complete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 3-11.
b. El Married, not filing jointly, with declaration of separate households. By checking this box, debtor declares under pen-

alty of perjury: "My spouse and I are legally separated under applicable non-bankruptcy law or my spouse and I are liv-

: 2 ing apart other than for the purpose of evading the requirements of § 707(b)(2)(A) of the Bankruptcy Code." Com-
plete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 3-11.

c. El Married, not filing jointly, without the declaration of separate households set out in Line 2.b above. Complete both
Column A ("Debtor's Income") and Column B (Spouse's Income) for Lines 3-11.

d. El Married, filing jointly. Complete both Column A ("Debtor's Income") and Column B ("Spouse's Income") for
Lines 3-11.

All figures must reflect average monthly income received from all sources, derived during the Column A Column B
six calendar months prior to filing the bankruptcy case, ending on the last day of the month Debtor's Spouse's
before the filing. If the amount of monthly income varied during the six months, you must Income Income
divide the six-month total by six, and enter the result on the appropriate line.

3 Gross wages, salary, tips, bonuses, overtime, commissions. $ $

Income from the operation of a business, profession or farm. Subtract Line b from Line
a and enter the difference in the appropriate column(s) of Line 4. If more than one business.
profession or farm, enter aggregate numbers and provide details on an attachment. Do not
enter a number less than zero. Do not include any part of the business expenses en-

4 tered on Line b as a deduction in Part V.

a. Gross receipts $

b. Ordinary and necessary business expenses $

c. Business income Subtract Line b from Line a

Rent and other real property income. Subtract Line b from Line a and enter the difference
in the appropriate column(s) of Line 5. Do not enter a number less than zero. Do not include
any part of the operating expenses entered on Line b as a deduction in Part V.

5 a. Gross receipts $

b. Ordinary and necessary operating expenses $

c. Rent and other real property income Subtract Line b from Line a
___ In e et ii e d$ $

.,6 Interest, dividends and royalties.

77 Pension and retirement income. $ $ 120



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08) 2
Any amounts paid by another person or entity, on a regular basis, for the household
expenses of the debtor or the debtor's dependents, including child support. bo not
finclude alimd or seart maitenancepayet oramunts pafd'6V~he deto' spouse if
Column B is completed. 1$ $

Unemployment compensation. Enter the amount in the appropriate column(s) of Line 9.
However, if you contend that unemployment compensation received by you or your spouse was
a benefit under the Social Security Act, do not list the amount of such compensation in Column

9 A or B, but instead state the amount in the space below:

Unemployment compensation claimed to
be a benefit under the Social Security Act Debtor $ Spouse $ ;

Income from all other sources. Specify source and amount. If necessary, list additional
sources on a separate page. Total and enter on Line 9. alm
04a~teateac Do not include any benefits received under the Social Security Act
or payments received as a victim of a war crime, crime against humanity, or as a victim of

10 international or domestic terrorism.
a. $
b. $
Total and enter on Line 10

Subtotal of Current Monthly Income for § 707(b)(7). Add Lines 3 thru 10 in
11 Column A, and, if Column B is completed, add Lines 3 through 10 in Column B. Enter the

total(s).

Total Current Monthly Income for § 707(b)(7). If Column B has been completed,
12 add Line 11, Column A to Line 11, Column B, and enter the total. If Column B has not been

completed, enter the amount from Line 11, Column A. $

SA§ 707(b)(7), MUM____
13 Annualized Current Monthly Income for § 707(b)(7). Multiply the amount from Line 12 by

the number 12 and enter the result.

Applicable median family income. Enter the median family income for the applicable state and
14 household size. (This information is available by family size at www.usdol.cqov/ust/ or from the clerk of

the bankruptcy court.)

a. Enter debtor's state of residence: b. Enter debtor's household size: $

Application of Section 707(b)(7). Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.

[:1 The amount on Line 13 is less than or equal to the amount on Line 14. Check the box for "The pre-
15 sumption does not arise" at the top of page 1 of this statement, and complete Part VIII; do not complete Parts IV, V, VI

or VII.

LI The amount on Line 13 is more than the amount on Line 14. Complete the remaining parts of this state-
ment.

Complete Parts IV, V, VI, and VII of this statement only if required. (See Line 15.)

PýatIV. CALCULATI CURENT MONTHLY INCOME FOR&-§707(1(2),
16 Enter the amount from Line 12. $

Marital adjustment. If you checked the box at Line 2.c, enter the amount of the income listed in Line
17 11, Column B that was NOT paid on a regular basis for the household expenses of the debtor or the

debtor's dependents. If you did not check box at Line 2.c, enter zero. $

18 Current monthly income for § 707(b)(2). Subtract Line 17 from Line 16 and enter the result. -r$

121



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08) 3

Pirt,.V, CALCuLAIrON OF DEDUCTIONS C MONT$LYZNCOE

Subpart A: Deductiohs, under Standards of the Intternal Revenu Servnice (IRS)
National Standards: food, ap nrvic h epp personal care,
and miscellaneous. Enter Intesp below your grss licthod ud
teýrmlne It. T••n enter in Line 19 the "Total" amount from IRS National Standards for Allowable Living Ex-
penses for the applicable ho size and income level. (This information is available at19 www usdoii cov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.)

Local Standards: housing and utilities; non-mortgage expenses. Enter the amount of the
20A IRS Housing and Utilities Standards; non-mortgage expenses for the applicable county and hueo size.

(This information is available at www.usdoi.qov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court). $
Local Standards: housing and utilities; mortgage/rent expense. Enter, in Line a below, the
amount of the IRS Housing and Utilities Standards; mortgage/rent expense for your county and hoshl
size (this information is available at www.usdoi.gov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court); enter
on Line b the total of the Average Monthly Payments for any debts secured by your home, as stated in Line
42; subtract Line b from Line a and enter the result in Line 20B. Do not enter an amount less than

208 zero.
a. IRS Housing and Utilities Standards; mortgage/rental expense $
b. Average Monthly Payment for any debts secured by your

home, if any, as stated in Line 42 $

C. Net mortgage/rental expense Subtract Line b from Line a. $

Local Standards: housing and utilities; adjustment. if you contend that the process set out in
Lines 20A and 20B does not accurately compute the allowance to which you are entitled under the IRS
Housing and Utilities Standards, enter any additional amount to which you contend you are entitled, and

21 state the basis for your contention in the space below:

Local Standards: transportation; vehicle operation/public transportation expense. You
are entitled to an expense allowance in this category regardless of whether you pay the expenses of operat-
ing a vehicle and regardless of whether you use public transportation.
Check the number of vehicles for which you pay the operating expenses or for which the operating ex-

22 penses are included as a contribution to your household expenses in Line 8.
0 n 1 [:12 or more.

Enter the amount from IRS Transportation Standards, Operating Costs & Public Transportation Costs for the
applicable number of vehicles in the applicable Metropolitan Statistical Area or Census Region. (This infor-
mation is available at www.usdoi.qov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.) $

Local Standards: transportation ownership/lease expense; Vehicle 1. Check the number
of vehicles for which you claim an ownership/lease expense. (You may not claim an ownership/lease ex-
pense for more than two vehicles.)
El 1 El 2 or more.
Enter, in Line a below, the amount of the IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, First Car (avail-
able at www.usdoi.oov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court); enter in Line b the total of the Aver-

23 age Monthly Payments for any debts secured by Vehicle 1, as stated in Line 42; subtract Line b from Line a
and enter the result in Line 23. Do not enter an amount less than zero.

a. IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, First Car $
b. Average Monthly Payment for any debts secured by Vehicle 1,

as stated in Line 42 $
C. Net ownership/lease expense for Vehicle 1 Subtract Line b from Line a. $

122



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08) 4
Local Standards: transportation ownership/lease expense; Vehicle 2. Complete this Line
only if you checked the "2 or more" Box in Line 23.
Enter, in Line a below, the amount of the IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, Second Car
(available at www.usdoi.aov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court); enter in Line b the total of the
Average Monthly Payments for any debts secured by Vehicle 2, as stated in Line 42; subtract Line b from

24 Line a and enter the result in Line 24. Do not enter an amount less than zero.

a. IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, Second Car $
b. Average Monthly Payment for any debts secured by Vehicle 2,

as stated in Line 42 $
C. Net ownership/lease expense for Vehicle 2 Subtract Line b from Line a. $

Other Necessary Expenses: taxes. Enter the total average monthly expense that you actually incur
25 for all federal, state and local taxes, other than real estate and sales taxes, such as income taxes, self em-

ployment taxes, social security taxes, and Medicare taxes. Do not include real estate or sales taxes.

Other Necessary Expenses: i 1,nv n jiI f ri Enter the total aver-
26 age monthly payroll deductions that are required for your employment, such as mandatory retirement con-

tributions, union dues, and uniform costs. Do not include discretionary amounts, such as non-
mandatory 401(k) contributions. $

Other Necessary Expenses: life insurance. Enter t4 average monthly premiums that you actu-
27 ally pay for term life insurance for yourself. Do not include premiums for insurance on your depend-

ents, for whole life or for any other form of insurance. $
Other Necessary Expenses: court-ordered payments. Enter the total monthly amount that you

28 are required to pay pursuant to o s intr ncy, such as spousal or child sup-
port payments. Do not include payments on past due obligations included in Line 44. $
Other Necessary Expenses: education for employment or for a physically or mentally

29 challenged child. Enter the total monthly amount that you actually expend for education that is a con-
dition of employment and for education that is required for a physically or mentally challenged dependent
child for whom no public education providing similar services is available. $
Other Necessary Expenses: childcare. Enter the total average monthly amount that you actually

30 expend on childcare-such as baby-sitting, day care, nursery and preschool. Do not include other edu-
cational payments. $

Other Necessary Expenses: health care. Enter the average monthly amount that you actu-
31 ally expend on health care a n d that is not

reimbursed by insurance or paid by a health savings account. Do not include payments for health
insurance or health savings accounts listed in Line 34. $

Other Necessary Expenses: telecommunication services. Enter the t41 average monthly
amount that you actually pay for telecommunication services other than your basic home telephone serv-

32 ice-such as cell phones, pagers, call waiting, caller id, special long distance, or internet service-to the
extent necessary for your health and welfare or that of your dependents. Do not include any amount
previously deducted. $

33 Total Expenses Allowed under IRS Standards. Enter the total of Lines 19 through 32. $

Health Insurance, Disability insurance, and Health Savings
... ..nt inict yu acua average monthses exedtrsInln eo

34 b. Disability Insurance $

C. Health Savings Account $

Total: Add Lines a, b, and c

di. Acua miprthly ex dtpre' (i ifrn.rmttl $ $
Continued contributions to the care of household or family members. Enter the actual

35 monthly expenses that you will continue to pay for the reasonable and necessary care and support of an
elderly, chronically ill, or disabled member of your household or member of your immediate family who is
unable to pay for such expenses. $

123



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08) 5

Protection against family violence. Enter any average monthly expenses that you actually incurred
36 to maintain the safety of your family under the Family Violence Prevention and Services Act or other appli-

cable federal law. The nature of these expenses is required to be kept confidential by the court. $

Home energy costs. Enter the average monthly amount, in excess of the allowance specified by IRS
Local Standards for Housing and Utilities, that you actually expend for home energy costs. Y mtt pro-

videyurc aetutew dcmnationo yunata exp~enses and ddeenent cildre les that #814•!1 •

Additional food and clothing expense. Enter the average monthly amount b which your food and
clothing expenses exceed the combined allowances for food and atedc a in the IRS

39 National Standards, not to exceed five percent of those combined allowances. (This 0information is available
at www.usdoi.qov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.) Y shaddi

40 Continued charitable contributions. Enter the amount that you will continue to contribute in the
form of cash or financial instruments to a charitable organization as defined in 26 U.S.C. § 170(c)(1)-(2). $

41 Total Additional Expense Deductions under § 707(b). Enter the total of Lines 34 through 40 $

SUbpart C;,Deductions or Debt Paymet
Future payments on secured claims. For each of your debts that is secured by an interest in prop-
erty that you own, list the name of the creditor, identify the property securing the debt, and state the Av-
erage Monthly Payment. The Average Monthly Payment is the total of all amounts se d contractu-
ally due to each Secured Creditor in the 60 months following the filing of the bankruptcy case, divided by
60. M " b sould icue only merrinsofpr ipal iret. If necessary, list additional
entries on a separate page.

42 Name of Creditor Property Securing the Debt 60-month Average Payment
a. $

. .b. $__ _ _ _ _ _

c. $

_"_Total: Add Lines a, b and c. $

Other payments on secured claims. If any of debts listed in Line 42 are secured by your primary
residence, a motor vehicle, or other property necessary for your support or the support of your depend-
ents, you may include in your deduction 1/60th of any amount (the "cure amount") that you must pay the
creditor in addition to the payments listed in Line 42, in order to maintain possession of the property. The
cure amount would include any sums in default that must be paid in order to avoid repossession or fore-
closure. List and total any such amounts in the following chart. If necessary, list additional entries on a
separate page.

43 Name of Creditor Property Securing the Debt 1/60th of the Cure Amount
a. $
b. $

c. $

Total: Add Lines a, b and c $

Payments on priority claims. Entell ph4 "••ori" "i sc as
44 priority hlid supportad alimny caim, Idi ps d

124



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08) 6
Chapter 13 administrative expenses. If you are eligible to file a case under Chapter 13, complete
the following chart, multiply the amount in line a by the amount in line b, and enter the resulting adminis-
trative expense.

a. Projected average monthly Chapter 13 plan payment. $
45 b. Current multiplier for your district as determined under schedules is-

sued by the Executive Office for United States Trustees. (This informa-
tion is available at www.usdoi.cov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bank-
ruptcy court.) x

c. Average monthly administrative expense of Chapter 13 case Total: Multiply Lines
I_ Ia and b $

46 j Total Deductions for Debt Payment. Enter the total of Lines 42 through 45. $

Sýubpairt D: Total Deductionsfo urn MnhyIcm

47 Total of all deductions allowed under § 707(b)(2). Enter the total of Lines 33, 41, and 46. $

,,Part VL c•ETE lNATEOtF4O § 707(b)(2) PRESUMPTION
48 Enter the amount from Line 18 (Current monthly income for § 707(b)(2)) $

49 Enter the amount from Line 47 (Total of all deductions allowed under § 707(b)(2)) $

50 Monthly disposable income under § 707(b)(2). Subtract Line 49 from Line 48 and enter the
result $

51 60-month disposable income under § 707(b)(2). Multiply the amount in Line 50 by the num-
ber 60 and enter the result. $
Initial presumption determination. Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.

ED The amount on Line 51 is less than $5 Check the box for "The presumption does not arise" at the top of
page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII. Do not complete the remainder of Part VI.

52 ED The amount set forth on Line 51 is more than $ , . Check the box for "The presumption arises" at the
top of page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII. You may also complete Part VII. Do not
complete the remainder of Part VI.

El The amount on Line 51 is at least $ , but not more than $. Complete the remainder of Part
VI (Lines 53 through 55).

53 Enter the amount of your total non-priority unsecured debt $

54 Threshold debt payment amount. Multiply the amount in Line 53 by the number 0.25 and enter
the result. $

Secondary presumption determination. Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.

Li The amount on Line 51 is less than the amount on Line 54. Check the box for "The presumption does not
55 arise" at the top of page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII.

El The amount on Line 51 is equal to or greater than the amount on Line 54. Check the box for "The pre-
sumption arises" at the top of page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII. You may also com-
plete Part VII.

Par VI: ADIIONL EPESE CLAIMS
Other Expenses. List and describe any monthly expenses, not otherwise stated in this form, that are required for the
health and welfare of you and your family and that you contend should be an additional deduction from your current
monthly income under § 707(b)(2)(A)(ii)(I). If necessary, list additional sources on a separate page. All figures should re-
flect your average monthly expense for each item. Total the expenses.

56
Expense Description Monthly Amount

a. $
b. $
c. $

Total: Add Lines a, b and c $

125



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08) 7

Part VIII: VERIFICATION'"
I declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this statement is true and correct. (If this is a joint case,
both debtors must sign.)

St
Date: Signature:

(Debtor)
Date: ______________Signature: _____________

(Joint Debtor, if any)

126





Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (12/08) According to the calculations required by this statement, uness he

debtrs pan pys al usecured ,dairs n full:
In re E_ The applicable commitment period is 3 years.

Debtor(s) E] The applicable commitment period is 5 years.

Case Number: E] Disposable income is determined under § 1325(b)(3).
(If known) EL Disposable income is not determined under § 1325(b)(3).

(Check the boxes as directed in Lines 17 and 23 of this statement.)

CHAPTER 13 STATEMENT OF CURRENT MONTHLY INCOME
AND CALCULATION OF COMMITMENT PERIOD AND DISPOSABLE INCOME

In addition to Schedules I and J, this statement must be completed by every individual Chapter 13 debtor, whether or not filing
jointly. Joint debtors may complete one statement only.

Par I.RPORTQ OF NCOME
Marital/filing status. Check the box that applies and complete the balance of this part of this statement as directed.

I a. El Unmarried. Complete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 2-10.
b. El Married. Complete both Column A ("Debtor's Income") and Column B ("Spouse's Income") for Lines 2-10.
All figures must reflect average monthly income received from all sources, derived during the Column A Column B
six calendar months prior to filing the bankruptcy case, ending on the last day of the month Debtor's Spouse's
before the filing. If the amount of monthly income varied during the six months, you must Income Income
divide the six-month total by six, and enter the result on the appropriate line.

2 Gross wages, salary, tips, bonuses, overtime, commissions. $ $

Income from the operation of a business, profession, or farm. Subtract Line b from
Line a and enter the difference in the appropriate column(s) of Line 3. If more than one busi-
ness, profession or farm, enter agareqate numbers and Drovide details on an attachment, Do
not enter a number less than zero. Do not include any part of the business expenses

3 entered on Line b as a deduction in Part IV.

a. Gross receipts $

b. Ordinary and necessary business expenses $

c. Business income Subtract Line b from Line a $ $
Rent and other real property income. Subtract Line b from Line a and enter the difference
in the appropriate column(s) of Line 4. Do not enter a number less than zero. Do not in-
clude any part of the operating expenses entered on Line b as a deduction in Part IV.

4 a. Gross receipts $

b. Ordinary and necessary operating expenses $

.• Rent and other real property income Subtract Line b from Line a $ $

S Interest, dividends, and royalties. $ $

6 Pension and retirement income. $

Any amounts paid by another person or entity, on a regular basis, for the household
7 expenses of the debtor or the debtor's dependents, including child support. D

Unemployment compensation. Enter the amount in the appropriate column(s) of Line 8.
However, if you contend that unemployment compensation received by you or your spouse
was a benefit under the Social Security Act, do not list the amount of such compensation in

8 Column A or B, but instead state the amount in the space below:

Unemployment compensation claimed to
be a benefit under the Social Security Act Debtor $ _ Spouse $ $ $

Income from all other sources. Specify source and amount. If necessary, list additional
sources on a separate page. Total and enter on Line 9. 'a y to l y
.4 rate• mainDo not include any benefits received under the Social Security Act

or payments received as a victim of a war crime, crime against humanity, or as a victim of
9 international or domestic terrorism.

a. $ s
b. $ $ $

10 Subtotal. Add Lines 2 thru 9 in Column A, and, if Column B is completed, add Lines 2
through 9 in Column B. Enter the total(s). $ $

127



Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (12/08) 2
Total. If Column B has been completed, add Line 10, Column A to Line 10, Column B, and

11 enter the total. If Column B has not been completed, enter the amount from Line 10, Col-
umn A. $

Part II. CALCULATION OF- § 132S(b)(4) COMMITMENT PERIOD
12 Enter the amount from Line 11.

Marital adjustment. If you are married, but are not filing jointly with your spouse, AND if you contend
13 that calculation of the commitment period under § 1325(b)(4) does not require inclusion of the income of

your spouse, enter the amount of the income listed in Line 10, Column B that was NOT paid on a regular
basis for the household expenses of you or your dependents. Otherwise, enter zero.

14 Subtract Line 13 from Line 12 and enter the result.

15 Annualized current monthly income for § 1325(b)(4). Multiply the amount from Line 14 by
the number 12 and enter the result. $

Applicable median family income. Enter the median family income for applicable state and house-
16 hold size. (This information is available by family size at www.usdoi.qov/ust/ or from the clerk of the

bankruptcy court.)
a. Enter debtor's state of residence: b. Enter debtor's household size: $

Application of § 1325(b)(4). Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.

17 El The amount on Line 15 is less than the amount on Line 16. Check the box for"The applicable commit-
ment period is 3 years" at the top of page 1 of this statement and continue with this statement.

Eli The amount on Line 15 is not less than the amount on Line 16. Check the box for "The applicable com-
mitment period is 5 years" at the top of page 1 of this statement and continue with this statement.

Part fIt'APPLICATIQN OF § k32S(b)(3) FoR" N. G DISPOSABLE INCOME

18 Enter the amount from Line 11. $

Marital adjustment. If you are married, but are not filing jointly with your spouse, enter the amount
19 of the income listed in Line 10, Column B that was NOT paid on a regular basis for the household expenses

of you or your dependents. If you are unmarried or married and filing jointly with your spouse, enter zero. $

20 Current monthly income for § 1325(b)(3). Subtract Line 19 from Line 18 and enter the result.

< 21 Annualized current monthly income for § 1325(b)(3). Multiply the amount from Line 20 by
the number 12 and enter the result. $

22 Applicable median family income. Enter the amount from Line 16. $

Application of § 1325(b)(3). Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.

- El The amount on Line 21 is more than the amount on Line 22. Check the box for "Disposable income is de-
23 termined under § 1325(b)(3)" at the top of page 1 of this statement and complete the remaining parts of this state-

ment.
Li The amount on Line 21 is not more than the amount on Line 22. Check the box for "Disposable income

is not determined under § 1325(b)(3)" at the top of page 1 of this statement and complete Part VII of this statement.
___ Do not complete Parts IV, V, or VI.

Part IV. CALCULAT[ION OF D FROM C R MNH INCOME

Subpart A: Deductions under Standard of th Intera ReeueSrvice (IRS)
National Standards: food, ap ppi ersonal
care, and miscellaneous. Es monhl icm an t
tdeemnei.hen enter in Line 24 the "Total" amount from IRS National Standards for Allowable Living

24 Expenses for the applicable hueo size and income level. (This information is available at
www.usdo. qov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.)

Local Standards: housing and utilities; non-mortgage expenses. Enter the amount of the
,25A IRS Housing and Utilities Standards; non-mortgage expenses for the applicable county and ,jjo size.

(This information is available at www.usdoi.oov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court). $12 8



Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (12/08) 3

Local Standards: housing and utilities; mortgage/rent expense. Enter, in Line a below, the
amount of the IRS Housing and Utilities Standards; mortgage/rent expense for your county and household
size (this information is available at www.usdoi.gov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court); enter
on Line b the total of the Average Monthly Payments for any debts secured by your home, as stated in Line
47; subtract Line b from Line a and enter the result in Line 25B. Do not enter an amount less than

258 zero.

a. IRS Housing and Utilities Standards; mortgage/rent expense $
b. Average Monthly Payment for any debts secured by your

home, if any, as stated in Line 47 $
c. Net mortgage/rental expense Subtract Line b from Line a. $

Local Standards: housing and utilities; adjustment. if you contend that the process set out in
Lines 25A and 25B does not accurately compute the allowance to which you are entitled under the IRS
Housing and Utilities Standards, enter any additional amount to which you contend you are entitled, and

26 state the basis for your contention in the space below:

$

Local Standards: transportation; vehicle operation/public transportation expense.
You are entitled to an expense allowance in this category regardless of whether you pay the expenses of
operating a vehicle and regardless of whether you use public transportation.

27 Check the number of vehicles for which you pay the operating expenses or for which the operating ex-
penses are included as a contribution to your household expenses in Line 7. El 0 El 1 El 2 or more.
Enter the amount from IRS Transportation Standards, Operating Costs & Public Transportation Costs for
the applicable number of vehicles in the applicable Metropolitan Statistical Area or Census Region. (This
information is available at www.usdoi.gov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.) $

Local Standards: transportation ownership/lease expense; Vehicle 1. Check the number
of vehicles for which you claim an ownership/lease expense. (You may not claim an ownership/lease ex-
pense for more than two vehicles.) El 1 El 2 or more.
Enter, in Line a below, the amount of the IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, First Car (avail-
able at www.usdoi.cov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court); enter in Line b the total of the Av-
erage Monthly Payments for any debts secured by Vehicle 1, as stated in Line 47; subtract Line b from

28 Line a and enter the result in Line 28. Do not enter an amount less than zero.

a. IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, First Car $

b. Average Monthly Payment for any debts secured by Vehicle 1,
as stated in Line 47 $

c. Net ownership/lease expense for Vehicle 1 Subtract Line b from Line a. $

Local Standards: transportation ownership/lease expense; Vehicle 2. Complete this Line
only if you checked the "2 or more" Box in Line 28.
Enter, in Line a below, the amount of the IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, Second Car
(available at www.usdoi.oov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court); enter in Line b the total of
the Average Monthly Payments for any debts secured by Vehicle 2, as stated in Line 47; subtract Line b

29 from Line a and enter the result in Line 29. Do not enter an amount less than zero.
a. IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, Second Car $

b. Average Monthly Payment for any debts secured by Vehicle 2,
as stated in Line 47 $

C. Net ownership/lease expense for Vehicle 2 Subtract Line b from Line a. $

Other Necessary Expenses: taxes. Enter the total average monthly expense that you actually incur
30 for all federal, state, and local taxes, other than real estate and sales taxes, such as income taxes, selfemployment taxes, social security taxes, and Medicare taxes. Do not include real estate or sales

taxes.

Other Necessary Expenses: nt. Enter the total aver-
31 age monthly deductions that are required for your employment, such as mandatory retirement contribu-tions, union dues, and uniform costs. Do not include discretionary amounts, such as non-mandatory

401(k) contributions. $

129



Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (12/08) 4

Other Necessary Expenses: life insurance. Enter tow, average monthly premiums that you ac-
32 tually pay for term life insurance for yourself. Do not include premiums for insurance on your

dependents, for whole life or for any other form of insurance. $
Other Necessary Expenses: court-ordered payments. Enter the total monthly amount that

33 you are required to pay pursuant to the orderf aourtoradmtr a such as spousal or child
support payments. Do not include payments on past due obligations included in Line 49. $
Other Necessary Expenses: education for employment or for a physically or mentally

34 challenged child. Enter the total monthly amount that you actually expend for education that is a
condition of employment and for education that is required for a physically or mentally challenged depend-
ent child for whom no public education providing similar services is available.

Other Necessary Expenses: childcare. Enter the ttal average monthly amount that you actually
35 expend on childcare-such as baby-sitting, day care, nursery and preschool. Do not include other

educational payments. $
Other Necessary Expenses: health care. Enter the ta average monthly amount that you actu-

36 ally expend on health care tha i thsaa fot we fpen tn(j that is not
reimbursed by insurance or paid by a health savings account. Do not include payments for health in-
surance or health savings accounts listed in Line 39. $
Other Necessary Expenses: telecommunication services. Enter the t average monthly
amount that you actually pay for telecommunication services other than your basic home telephone serv-

37 ice-such as cell phones, pagers, call waiting, caller id, special long distance, or internet service-to the
extent necessary for your health and welfare or that of your dependents. Do not include any amount
previously deducted. $

38 Total Expenses Allowed under IRS Standards. Enter the total of Lines 24 through 37. $

S oe ubpart 8: Addittonalin' Epes Ddutin!:• -. : Note:-Do• not ,ncl'ude any expenses thatI• 2=7, you have listedi~= ini' Lies243

Health Insurance, Disability Insurance, and Health Savin s Account Expenses. Lt

aount, Indicate your actua average onthly expeidi~tue inledblo
a. Health Insurance $

•39
b. Disability Insurance $
c. Health Savings Account $

Total: Add Lines a, b, and c

d, cta mnthly ependiture (tdfferent frm ttal) $$
Continued contributions to the care of household or family members. Enter the actual

40 monthly expenses that you will continue to pay for the reasonable and necessary care and support of an
elderly, chronically ill, or disabled member of your household or member of your immediate family who is
unable to pay for such expenses. Do not include payments listed in Line 34. $
Protection against family violence. Enter any average re monthly expenses

41 that you actually incurred to maintain the safety of your family under the Family Violence Prevention and
Services Act or other applicable federal law. The nature of these expenses is required to be kept confiden-
tial by the court. $
Home energy costs. Enter the average monthly amount, in excess of the allowance specified by IRS

2 Local Standards for Housing and Utilities, that you actually expend for home energy costs. Y s
vieyurcs ruste wth~l douetto$fyu cule s

Education expenses for dependent children under 18. Et'hargmnl "ps
tht you actually Icr no!•!t -to excee $13,5pe cild, forI atedac at a prvtrpbicemntr

43 school by your dependent childrenless than 18 years of agstewi
documnttion of your actual exene an exli hyteaout4 imdi eaoalndeessary and not a tr.Me tbndttpib4

130



Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (12/08) 5

Additional food and clothing expense. Enter the average monthly amount by which your food and
clothing expenses exceed the combined allowances for food and youppa ad sevices) in the IRS44 National Standards, not to exceed five percent of those combined allowances. (This information is available
at www.usdol.gov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.) Y ms eot .hte' a

Charitable contributions. on ritable
45 cu tiosin t charitable o i n n I

come., $
46 Total Additional Expense Deductions under § 707(b). Enter the total of Lines 39 through 45. $

Subpart C: iDeductins for Debt Paymn)t
Future payments on secured claims. For each of your debts that is secured by an interest in prop-
erty that you own, list the name of the creditor, identify the property securing the debt, and state the Av-erage Monthly Payment. The Average Monthly Payment is the total of all amounts s l contractu-
ally due to each Secured Creditor in the 60 months following the filing of the bankruptcy case, divided by
60. Mo d .1 I ncsr list additionallonalitionat. If necessary, list additional
entries on a separate page.

47
Name of Creditor Property Securing the Debt 60-month Average Payment

a. $
b. $
c. $

Total: Add Lines a, b, and c $
Other payments on secured claims. If any of debts listed in Line 47 are secured by your primary
residence, a motor vehicle, or other property necessary for your support or the support of your depend-
ents, you may include in your deduction 1/60th of any amount (the "cure amount") that you must pay the
creditor in addition to the payments listed in Line 47, in order to maintain possession of the property. The
cure amount would include any sums in default that must be paid in order to avoid repossession or fore-
closure. List and total any such amounts in the following chart. If necessary, list additional entries on a

48 separate page.

Name of Creditor Property Securing the Debt 1/60th of the Cure Amount
a. $

b. $
c. $

Total: Add Lines a, b, and c

Payments on riorit claims.

Chapter 13 administrative expenses. Multiply the amount in Line a by the amount in Line b, and
enter the resulting administrative expense.

a. Projected average monthly Chapter 13 plan payment. $
b. Current multiplier for your district as determined under sched-

ules issued by the Executive Office for United States Trustees.
(This information is available at www.usdoi.gov/ust/ or from the
clerk of the bankruptcy court.) x

c. Average monthly administrative expense of Chapter 13 case

Total: Multiply Lines a and b $
51 Total Deductions for Debt Payment. Enter the total of Lines 47 through 50. $

Sbpart D Total Deductions fo uretMotl Icm
52 Total of all deductions allowed under § 707(b)(2). Enter the total of Lines 38, 46, and 51. I$

131



Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (12/08) 6

Part V. DETERMINATION OF DISPOSABLE INCOME- UNER § 1325(b)(2)
53 Total current monthly income. Enter the amount from Line 20. $

Support income. Enter the monthly average of any child support payments, foster care payments, or
54 disability payments for a dependent child, rp t4d I Parr.1, that you received in accordance with applica-

ble nonbankruptcy law, to the extent reasonably necessary to be expended for such child. $

Qualified retirement deductions. E re thl t of ( all a u wh by yo.rem

56 Total of all deductions allowed under § 707(b)(2). Enter the amount from Line 52. $

e Total adjustments to determine disposablerheice ad the amounts on Lines 54, 55, 56, and
57 and enter the result. $

say Monthly Disposable Income Under § 1325(b)(2). Subtract Line 58 from Line 53 and enter thetotal in result. $

I declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this statement is true and correct. (If this is a joint case,
both debtors must sign.)

57 Date: ure _fspecialcircumstancesSignature: ofexpenseorIncome

(Debtor)
SDate: ______________Signature: _____________

Total: A d ,oint Debtor , f an d}

132



Item 5B will be distributed separately





Official Form 23 (10/06)

United States Bankruptcy Court Ad capter 11 as in:

_________________ • District Of

In re ,_Cas_0.
Debtor

~~Chapter __

DEBTOR'S CERTIFICATION OF COMPLET OF INSTRUCTIONAL COURSE CONCERNING
PERSONAL ANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Every individual debtor in a chapter 7 or chapter 13 case musifile this certification If ajoint petition is filed,
each spouse must complete and file a separate certification. Complete one of the following statements and file by the
deadline stated below:

1I. _- , the debtor in the above-styled case, hereby
(Printed Name of Debtor)

certify that on (Date), I completed an instructional course in personal financial management
provided by , an approved personal financial

(Name of Provider)
management provider.

Certificate No. :

D1 I, _, the debtor in the above-styled case, hereby
(Printed Name of Debtor)

certify that no personal financial management course is required because of [Check the appropriate box.]:
" Incapacity or disability, as defined in 11 U.S.C. § 109(h);
LI Active military duty in a military combat zone; or
LI Residence in a district in which the United States trustee (or bankruptcy administrator) has determined that

the approved instructional courses are not adequate at this time to serve the additional individuals who would otherwise
be required to complete such courses.

Signature of Debtor:

Date:

Instructions- Use this form only to certify whether you completed a course in personal financial management. (Fed. R.
Bankr. P. 1007(b)(7).) Do NOT use this form to file the certificate given to you by your prepetition credit counseling
provider and do NOT include with the petition when filing your case.

Filing Deadlines. In a chapter 7 case, file within 45 days of the first date set for the meeting of creditors under
§ 341 of the Bankruptcy Code. In a chapter 13 case, file no later than the last payment made by the debtor as required by
the plan or the filing of a motion for entry of a discharge under § 1328(b) of the Code. (See Fed. R. Bankr. P. 1007(c).)

133





MEMORANDUM

TO: SUBCOMMITTEE ON BUSINESS ISSUES

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS DEVELOPED DURING
CONFERENCE CALL AND SUBSEQUENT EMAIL VOTE

DATE: FEBRUARY 26, 2007 / Revised 3/3/07 (LTS)

This memorandum summarizes the actions and recommendations of the Subcommittee

relating to comments received on proposed Rules, and certain further Rules amendments

suggested by the Internal Revenue Service, as developed during the conference call on February

12, 2007, and in a subsequent email vote.

Issues 1-3:

The first three issues considered by the Committee relate to comments concerning the
scope of proposed Rule 6004(g). The comments were as follows:

Comment 05-BR-037. This comment was submitted by the Insolvency Law Committee of the
Business Law Section of the State Bar of California (the "Insolvency Committee").

The Insolvency Committee proposes changes to proposed Rule 6004(g). That rule
governs sales of personally identifiable information. Under § 363(b)(1) of the Code, the trustee
cannot sell such information if the debtor had agreed not to transfer the information to third
parties, unless the transfer is conducted in a manner consistent with the debtor's privacy policy (a
§ 363(b)(1)(A) transfer) or, where the proposed transfer is inconsistent with the existing policy, if
the court first appoints a consumer privacy ombudsman (a § 363(b)(1)(B) transfer). The
proposed Rule addresses the appointment of an ombudsman for a § 363(b)(1)(B) transfer.

The Insolvency Committee suggests that the rule should address both kinds of transfers
rather than just the § 363(b)(1)(B) transfer. It suggests adding a subdivision to the rule that
would require that a § 363(b)(1)(A) motion include evidence to support a finding by the court
that the transfer is consistent with the debtor's privacy policy.

The Insolvency Committee also proposes that the rule include a provision that, absent a
court order to the contrary, that the motion for the appointment of a consumer privacy
ombudsman must be filed and served at least 45 days prior to the hearing on the underlying sale

1

134



motion. Under current Rule 6004(a), there is a 20 day notice requirement of the sale under Rule
2002(a)(2), although that notice requirement explicitly applies only to the debtor, the trustee, all
creditors, and indenture trustees. The Insolvency Committee argues that the ombudsman would
need 45 days to review the matter prior to the sale. Under Proposed Rule 6004(g)(2), the sale
could take place as soon as 5 days after the United States trustee files and serves the notice of the
appointment of the ombudsman. The Insolvency Committee also recommends that proposed
Rule 6004(g)(2) be amended to require the United States trustee to serve the notice of
appointment of the ombudsman on all creditors and parties in interest in addition to filing it.
They suggest that these other parties should be informed directly of the appointment unless the
court orders otherwise.

Comment 05-BR-038. The Commercial Law League submitted this comment.
The Commercial Law League also recommends a change to Proposed Rule 6004(g). The
recommendation is to have the rule apply to all motions for authority to sell property under §
363(b)(1) rather than only to those under § 363(b)(1)(B). This comment is similar to one offered
by the Insolvency Committee.

The Subcommittee discussed these comments and determined that it would not
recommend a requirement that notice of the appointment of an ombudsman be served on
all creditors and parties in interest because such a notice requirement would be
cumbersome and would likely fail to reach those most directly affected by the treatment of
the personally identifiable information (i.e., those persons whose information is in the
possession of the debtor but who are not otherwise creditors or parties in interest within
the meaning of the Code). The Subcommittee determined that the ombudsman's function
was sufficient to protect the interest of such parties, and that the cost of requiring notice to
all creditors and parties in interest outweighed the benefit of such a broadened notice
requirement.

The Subcommittee framed the remaining issues raised by the comments on
proposed Rule 6004(g), and makes recommendations, as follows:

ISSUE 1: Whether proposed Rule 6004(g), which currently applies only in a sale under
§ 363(b)(1)(B), should be amended to address sales under subparagraph (A) of
that section as well.

After discussing the comments submitted by the California State Bar Insolvency Law
Committee and the Commercial Law League regarding sales under § 363(b)(1)(A), the
Subcommittee initially concluded that the proposed rule should be revised to apply to all
§ 363(b)(1) sales to the extent that it should require a statement regarding whether the sale is
consistent with the debtor's personally identifiable information transfer policy. After further
consideration of the reference in existing Rule 6004(a) to Rule 2002(c)(1) (which, with our
currently-proposed amendment, already includes a requirement that the notice of a § 363(b)(1)

2

135



sale include a statement as to consistency with the debtor's policy concerning the transfer of
personally identifiable information), the Subcommittee subsequently concluded that there is no
need for a similar amendment to Rule 6004.

The Subcommittee recommends that no amendment be made to broaden proposed
Rule 6004(g) to address § 363(b)(1)(A) sales.

ISSUE 2: Should the Committee Notes to the proposed amendments to Rules 2002 and
6004 (each of which includes provisions relating to the § 363(b)(1) procedures for
asset sales involving personally identifiable information) be revised to include a
cross reference in each Committee Note to the other Rule?

The Subcommittee recommends revising the proposed Committee Note to Rule 2002
to read as set out below. The Subcommittee concluded that the cross-reference to the Rule
6004(g) procedures for the appointment of a privacy ombudsman for a sale that is inconsistent
with the debtor's information transfer policy will facilitate statutory compliance in connection
with such sales.

The Subcommittee recommends that the proposed Committee Note to Rule 6004 not
be revised to include a cross reference to Rule 2002. The Subcommittee concluded that the
reverse cross-reference would not be helpful. Rule 6004(a) already clearly states that notice must
be given pursuant to Rule 2002(c)(1).

PROPOSED RULE 2002 COMMITTEE NOTE
[(recommended changes are marked)]

Subdivision (c)(1) is amended to require that a trustee leasing
or selling personally identifiable information under § 363(b)(1)(A)
or (B) of the Code, as amended in 2005, include in the notice of the
lease or sale transaction a statement as to whether the lease or sale
is consistent with a policy prohibiting the transfer of the
information. If the sale is inconsistent with the terms of a policy
prohibiting the transfer of personally identifiable information,
compliance with Rule 6004(g) is required.

ISSUE 3: Whether a new subdivision (g)(3) should be added to Rule 6004, to expressly provide
for a continuance of the hearing on the sale where necessary to enable a privacy
ombudsman to perform his or her duties in connection with the proposed transaction.

After considering the time needed to review the debtor's policy concerning the transfer of
personally identifiable information and the terms of the proposed sale, the Subcommittee
concluded that expressly providing for the continuance of a sale hearing to allow for full

3
136



participation by a privacy ombudsman would be useful. The Subcommittee recommends the
inclusion of a new subdivision 6004(g)(3) as set out below.

As an alternative, if the new subdivision (g)(3) is not added to the proposed rule, the
Committee Note could be revised as set out below in the Alternative Committee Note.

Rule 6004. Use, Sale, or Lease of Property [(recommended
changes are marked)]

2 (g) SALE OF PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE

3 INFORMATION.

4 (1) Motion. A motion for authority to sell or lease

5 personally identifiable information under § 363(b)(1)(B) shall

6 include a request for an order directing the United States trustee to

7 appoint a consumer privacy ombudsman under § 332. Rule 9014

8 governs the motion which shall be served on: any committee elected

9 under § 705 or appointed under § 1102 of the Code, or if the case is a

10 chapter 11 reorganization case and no committee of unsecured

11 creditors has been appointed under § 1102, on the creditors included

12 on the list of creditors filed under Rule 1007(d), and on such other

13 entities as the court may direct. The motion shall be transmitted to

14 the United States trustee.

15 (2) Appointment. If a consumer privacy ombudsman is

16 appointed under § 332, no later than 5 days before the hearing on the

17 motion under § 363(b)(1)(B), the United States trustee shall file a

4
137



18 notice of the appointment, including the name and address of the

19 person appointed. The United States trustee's notice shall be

20 accompanied by a verified statement of the person appointed setting

21 forth the person's connections with the debtor, creditors, any other

22 party in interest, their respective attorneys and accountants, the

23 United States trustee, or any person employed in the office of the

24 United States trustee.

25 (3) Continuation ofHearing. Upon the consumer privacy

26 ombudsman's request made at any time prior to the conclusion of the

27 hearing on the motion under § 363(b)(1)(B) or on its own motion,

28 the court may continue the hearing for a reasonable time to permit

29 the ombudsman to perform the ombudsman's duties under § 332.

30 (-g)-&h STAY OF ORDER AUTHORIZING USE, SALE, OR

31 LEASE OF PROPERTY. An order authorizing the use, sale, or

32 lease of property other than cash collateral is stayed until the

33 expiration of 10 days after entry of the order, unless the court orders

34 otherwise.

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended by inserting a new subdivision (g) to
implement §§ 332 and 363(b)(1)(B) of the Code, added by the 2005
amendments. This rule governs proposed sales of personally
identifiable information that are inconsistent with the debtor's policy
covering the transfer of such information. The rule also provides
that the court may. upon a request by the ombudsman or upon its
own motion, continue the hearing on the proposed sale if additional

5

138



time is needed to perform the tasks required of the ombudsman by §
332 of the Code.

Former subdivision (g) is redesignated as subdivision (h).

ALTERNATIVE COMMITTEE NOTE
(if proposed subdivision (g)(3) is not included in the rule)

The rule is amended by inserting a new subdivision (g) to
implement §§ 332 and 363(b)(1)(B) of the Code, added by the 2005
amendments. This rule governs proposed sales of personally
identifiable information that are inconsistent with the debtor's policy
covering such information. Section 332 of the Code provides that the
ombudsman must be appointed at least 5 days prior to the hearing on
the sale of the property. In an appropriate case, the court can
continue the hearing on the proposed sale to the extent additional
time is needed to perform the tasks required of the ombudsman by §
332 of the Code.

Former subdivision (g) is redesignated as subdivision (h).

Issues 4-8: The other five issues considered by the Committee relate to comments
by the Internal Revenue Service.

ISSUE 4: Whether proposed Rule 2002(g)(2) should be amended to ensure that a
designated address filed by a governmental unit under Rule 5003(e) will
be effective.

In Comment 05-BK-015, The IRS takes the position that, in light of newly-
enacted § 342(f) (which permits creditors to file a statement with the court
designating their address for use in chapter 7 and 13 cases), an amendment to Rule
2002(g)(2) is necessary to ensure that the designated address that a governmental
unit files with the court under Rule 5003(e) will continue to be effective. After
discussion, the Subcommittee agreed that Rule 5003(e) rather than Rule 2002(g)(2)
should govern as to the proper address for a governmental unit and that an
amendment to Rule 2000(g)(2) is necessary to make it clear that the Rule 5003(e)
address applies for a governmental unit.

The Subcommittee recommends approval of the proposed amendment set

6

139



out below. The Subcommittee does not believe that the amendment
necessitates republication of the proposed rule, because it is simply a
conforming or clarifying amendment.

1 (g) ADDRESSING NOTICES [(recommended changes are marked)]

2

3 (2) If a creditor or indenture trustee has not filed a request designating a

4 mailing address under § 342(f) of the Code, Rule 2002(g)(1), or Rule 5003(e). the

5 notices shall be mailed to the address shown on the list of creditors or schedule of

6 liabilities, whichever is filed later. If an equity security holder has not filed a

7 request designating a mailing address under Rule 2002(g)(1), the notices shall be

8 mailed to the address shown on the list of equity security holders.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (g)(2) of the rule is amended because the 2005 amendments to
§ 342(f) of the Code permit creditors in chapter 7 and 13 individual debtor cases
to file a notice with any bankruptcy court of the address to which the creditor
wishes all notices to be sent. This provision does not apply in cases of
nonindividuals in chapter 7 and in cases under chapters 11 and 12, so Rule
2002(g)(2) still operates in those circumstances. It also continues to apply in
cases under chapters 7 and 13 if the creditor has not filed a notice under § 342(f).
The amendment to Rule 2002(g)(2) therefore only limits that subdivision when a
creditor files a notice under § 342(f).

Subdivision (g)(2) is also amended to recognize that the address designated by
governmental units under Rule 5003(e) is the proper address to which notices
must be sent to that governmental unit in cases under all chapters. If a
governmental unit has not designated an address under Rule 5003(e), then notices
to it are sent to the address that Rule 2002 otherwise requires.

ISSUE 5: Whether Proposed Rule 3002(c) should be revised to permit taxing
authorities to request additional time to file claims relating to tax
returns required to be filed under § 1308 ("§ 1308 claims") as well as

7

140



other claims.

Section 1308 was added to the Code in 2005. It requires debtors to file all tax
returns for the taxable periods ending during the 4 years prior to the
commencement of the case no later than the first date set for the § 341 meeting of
creditors. The section also provides that, if the returns are not filed by that date,
the trustee may hold open the meeting for a limited time. Section 1325(a)(9) also
makes the filing of these tax returns a condition of confirmation. An amendment
to Rule 3002(c) was published in August 2006 to address the problem of the filing
of these tax returns during the case. That proposed amendment to the rule
provides that the IRS has the later of 180 days after the commencement of the
case, or 60 days after the filing of the return, within which to file a proof of claim
for those taxes, and does not provide any mechanism for the IRS to obtain an
extension of time for the filing of a § 1308 claim. The rule permits requests for
extensions of the time for filing other kinds of claims as long as the enlargement
is sought prior to the expiration of the filing period. In its comment, the IRS
asserts that it should be given the same opportunity to seek an extension, for
cause, to file a § 1308 claim.

The Subcommittee agrees that there is no reason to treat § 1308 claims
differently in terms of the enlargement of time, and recommends adoption of
the proposed further amendment set out below.

Rule 3002. Filing Proof of Claim or Interest [(recommended
changes are marked)]

2 (c) TIME FOR FILING. In a chapter 7 liquidation, chapter 12

3 family farmer's debt adjustment, or chapter 13 individual's debt

4 adjustment case, a proof of claim is timely filed if it is filed not

5 later than 90 days after the first date set for the meeting of creditors

6 called under § 341(a) of the Code, except as follows:

7 (1) A proof of claim filed by a governmental unit, other

8 than for a claim resulting from a tax return filed under § 1308, is

9 timely filed if it is filed not later than 180 days after the date of the

8
141



10 order for relief. On m.tion off a .. v...n.ntal u.nit before the.

1 I expiration of such period mid f c shown, th e uI c , ma,

12 eAxtend t tj111e for 1iU tlt fif1i of a claimIm by the g Iein, iietal unit.

13 A proof of claim filed by a governmental unit for a claim resulting

14 from a tax return filed under § 1308 is timely filed if it is filed not

15 later than 180 days after the date of the order for relief or 60 days

16 after the date of the filing of the tax return, whichever is later. On

17 motion of a governmental unit before the expiration of the period

18 in which a proof of claim may timely be filed and for cause shown,

19 the court may extend the time in which the governmental unit may

20 file a claim.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (c)(1) is amended to reflect the addition of § 1308
to the Bankruptcy Code in 2005. This provision requires that
chapter 13 debtors file tax returns during the pendency of the case,
and imposes bankruptcy-related consequences if debtors fail to do
so. Subdivision (c)(1) provides additional time for governmental
units to file a proof of claim for tax obligations with respect to tax
returns filed during the pendency of a chapter 13 case. The
amendment also allows the governmental unit to move for
additional time to file a proof of claim prior to the expiration of the
applicable filing period.

ISSUE 6: Whether the Committee Note to Rule 4002 should be revised to state that tax returns
and transcripts are treated differently from the debtor's other financial documents.

The IRS suggests that the Committee Note to Rule 4002, as published in August 2006, be
revised to clarify that the debtor must obtain copies of tax returns or tax transcripts and cannot

9

142



avoid the obligation to do so by claiming that he does not currently possess the materials.
Subdivisions (b)(2) and (b)(3) differ in that they both allow the debtor to state that the documents
do not exist, but (b)(2) also allows the debtor to state that the documents are not in his
possession. The second paragraph of the Committee Note does not make this distinction and,
after discussion, the Subcommittee agreed that it should.

The Subcommittee recommends amending the proposed Committee Note to Rule 4002
as follows.

COMMITTEE NOTE [(recommended changes are marked)]

Subdivision (b) is also amended to require the debtor to cooperate
with the trustee by providing materials and documents necessary to
assist the trustee in the performance of the trustee's duties.
Nothing in the rule, however, is intended to limit or restrict the
debtor's duties under § 521, or to limit the access of the Attorney
General to any information provided by the debtor in the case.
Subdivision (b)(2) of the The rule does not require that the debtor
create documents or obtain documents from third parties; rather,
the debtor's obligation is to bring to the meeting of creditors under
§ 341 the documents which the debtor possesses. Under
subdivision (b)(3), the debtor must obtain copies of tax returns or
tax transcripts and provide them to the appropriate person(s),
unless no such documents exist. Any written statement that the
debtor provides indicating either that documents do not exist or are
not in the debtor's possession must be verified or contain an
unsworn declaration as required under Rule 1008.

ISSUE 7: Whether proposed Rule 5003(e) should be revised to reflect the need for the clerk to
maintain separate lists for addresses of governmental units by adding a provision for
the maintenance of a list for addresses applicable in actions under § 505(b) of the
Code.

The 2005 amendments to the Code included revisions to § 505. Under § 505(b), the clerk is
directed to maintain a list of addresses for governmental units who are responsible for the
collection of taxes in the clerk's district. The IRS's comments indicate that it is concerned that
Rule 5003(e) authorizes the clerk to maintain only one address for the taxing authority, and that
the need for notices under § 505 of the Code is more time sensitive than other notices being
given in the case. It therefore seeks a further revision to Proposed Rule 5003(e) to ensure that a
governmental unit can provide separate addresses for the different purposes

10
143



The Subcommittee adopted the suggestion of the IRS on this issue and recommends the
approval of the proposed revision of the rule as set out below. The Subcommittee
concluded that the statute requires a separate register for § 505(b) addresses. The revision
breaks the rule into subparagraphs and is intended to create two registers and to limit
governmental units to one address per register.

Rule 5003. Records Kept By the Clerk [(recommended changes
are marked)]

2 (e) REGISTER OF MAILING ADDRESSES OF FEDERAL

3 AND STATE GOVERNMENTAL UNITS AND CERTAIN

4 TAXING AUTHORITIES. The United States or the state or

5 territory in which the court is located may file a statement

6 designating its mailing address. The United States, state, territory,

7 or local governmental unit responsible for the collection of taxes

8 within the district in which the case is pending may also file a

9 statement designating an address for service of requests under §

10 505(b) of the Code, and the designation shall describe where

11 further information concerning additional requirements for filing

12 such requests may be found. The clerk shall keep, in the form and

13 manner as the Director of the Administrative Office of the United

14 States Courts may prescribe, a register that includes these the

15 mailing addresses designated under the first sentence of this

16 subdivision, and a register of the addresses designated for the

17 service of requests under § 505(b) of the Code, but the clerk is not

11
144



18 required to include in the-register each of these registers more than

19 one mailing address for each department, agency, or

20 instrumentality of the United States or the state or territory. If

21 more than one address for a department, agency, or instrumentality

22 is included in the register, the clerk shall also include information

23 that would enable a user of the register to determine the

24 circumstances when each address is applicable, and mailing notice

25 to only one applicable address is sufficient to provide effective

26 notice. The clerk shall update the register annually, effective

27 January 2 of each year. The mailing address in the register is

28 conclusively presumed to be a proper address for the governmental

29 unit, but the failure to use that mailing address does not invalidate

30 any notice that is otherwise effective under applicable law.

31

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to implement the addition of
§ 505(b)(1) to the Code in 2005, which allows taxing authorities to
designate addresses to use for the service of a request under that
subsection. Under the amendment, the clerk is directed to maintain
a separate register for mailing addresses of governmental units
solely for the service of requests under § 505(b). This register is
in addition to the register of addresses of governmental units
already maintained by the clerk. The clerk is required to keep only
one address for a governmental unit in a register. That is, the
address of the governmental unit may differ between the two
registers, but only one address is required for any governmental
unit within a register.

12

145



ISSUE 8: Whether existing Rule 3007 should be amended to prohibit the filing of an objection
to a § 1308 claim unless the debtor has filed a return for those taxes.

The IRS offered two suggestions regarding rules that are not in the group of rules for which
amendments have been published. They believe that Rules 3007 and 3015 should be amended to
implement the Sense of Congress set out in § 716(e) of BAPCPA, which provides as follows:

(e) RULES FOR OBJECTIONS TO CLAIMS AND TO CONFIRMATION.--
It is the sense of Congress that the Judicial Conference of the United States
should, as soon as practicable after the date of enactment of this Act, propose
amended Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure that provide--
(1) notwithstanding the provisions of Rule 3015(f), in cases under chapter 13
of title 11, United States Code, that an objection to the confirmation of a plan
filed by a governmental unit on or before the date that is 60 days after the date
on which the debtor files all tax returns required under sections 1308 and
1325(a)(7) of title 11, United States Code, shall be treated for all purposes as
if such objection had been timely filed before such confirmation; and
(2) in addition to the provisions of Rule 3007, in a case under chapter 13 of
title 11, United States Code, that no objection to a claim for a tax with respect
to which a return is required to be filed under section 1308 of title 11, United
States Code, shall be filed until such return has been filed as required.

The IRS proposes an amendment to Rule 3015 regarding the timeliness of objections to
confirmation of chapter 13 plans. The sense of Congress is that governmental units should have
60 days after the day when the debtor files all required tax returns within which to object to a
debtor's plan, even if the plan has already been confirmed by that time. The Subcommittee
concluded, after discussion, that it would not be appropriate to amend Rule 3015 to permit
the IRS to file an objection to confirmation after a Chapter 13 plan has already been
confirmed. The Code already provides for motions to modify confirmed plans and to
dismiss cases. The Subcommittee will study BAPCPA § 716(e) further, with a view to
determining whether another approach to the problem may be viable, and intends to
report to the Advisory Committee on its further deliberations at the September meeting.

The IRS also suggests that Rule 3007 could be amended simply by adding a sentence to
the rule. They suggest: "In a chapter 13 case, no objection to a claim for a tax with respect to
which a return is required to be filed under § 1308 may be filed until after such return has been
filed." The Subcommittee approved the IRS proposal. The recommended proposed
amendment, as set out below, would be sent to the Advisory Committee with a
recommendation that it be forwarded to the Standing Committee for its approval to
publish the proposed amendment to the rule in August 2007.

13

146



Rule 3007. Objections to Claims' [(recommended changes are
marked)]

1 (a) An objection to the allowance of a claim shall be in

2 writing and filed. A copy of the objection with notice of the

3 hearing thereon shall be mailed or otherwise delivered to the

4 claimant, the debtor or debtor in possession and the trustee at least

5 30 days prior to the hearing. In a chapter 13 case, no objection to a

6 claim for a tax with respect to which a return is required to be filed

7 under & 1308 may be filed until after such return has been filed.

8

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (a) is amended to bar the filing of an objection

to a claim for taxes made under § 1308 of the Code until a tax

return for those taxes has been filed. This amendment implements

§ 716(e) of the Bankruptcy Abuse Prevention and Consumer

Protection Act of 2005, an uncodified provision, setting out the

This is the version of Rule 3007 that is currently before the Supreme Court for its
consideration. You may recall that the amended rule breaks the current rule into two
subdivisions and restricts the use of claims objections to pursue what would otherwise need to be
an adversary proceeding. The rule also includes the lengthy additions to the rule that authorize
omnibus claims objections. I think it is more sensible to set out the proposed IRS revisions as
they would apply to the soon to be effective version of the rule.

14

147



sense of Congress regarding this issue.

15

148





MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: SUBCOMMITTEE ON BUSINESS ISSUES

RE: PROPOSAL FOR RULE GOVERNING INVESTMENT OF ESTATE FUNDS

DATE: MARCH 6,2007

Since the September meeting, the Subcommittee has considered and discussed the Baker

& Hostetler proposal concerning the investment of estate funds that was Supplemental Agenda

Item D for that meeting, as well as a revised version of that proposal. Because Baker & Hostetler

has now withdrawn its proposal, the Subcommittee is not making a recommendation at this time

on the issue of investment of estate funds. A copy of the withdrawal letter is attached.

149





Baker Hostetler

Baker&Hostetler LLP

3200 National City Center
1900 East 9th Street
Cleveland, OH 44114-3485

T 216.621 0200March 1, 2007 F 216.696.0740

www.bakerlaw.com

The Honorable Thomas S. Zilly Matthew R. Goldman
United States District Court direct dial: 216.861.7797
700 Stewart Street mgoldman~bakedaw.com
Seattle, WA 98101

Re: Proposal for Bankruptcy Rule

Dear Judge Zilly:

Jeff Morris was kind enough to include me in his email correspondence regarding Baker &
Hostetler's request to the Advisory Committee. There may have been a misunderstanding of my
request. I had asked that the matter not be considered at the March meeting of the Advisory
Committee. We are aware, as your correspondence today confirms, that the March agenda is quite
full. In addition, our understanding was we would not, by that time, have received a written
statement from the Business subcommittee regarding its assessment of the issues implicated by our
proposal. As a result, we would have been unable to present to the Committee, prior to the March
meeting, any response to those concerns.

After consultation with our client, we respectfully request that the Advisory Committee simply allow
us to withdraw our proposal without reaching a final determination on its merits. Our client
represents hundreds of banks and other financial institutions, all of whom are anxious to see
progress made in having this product available to their customers. We are pursuing several different
means of accomplishing that goal and believe that, as time passes, there will be a recognition in
numerous jurisdictions of the value of a simplified procedure for establishing these kinds of safe
investments.

We understand that the Advisory Committee does not wish to consider a rule change at this time.
We also appreciate that, informally, many Committee members have recognized these kinds of safe
investments may provide great value to bankruptcy estates. At some future time, there may be
value in the Committee reconsidering this proposal. Until then, we request that the Committee allow
us to withdraw our proposal, without prejudice to its reconsideration at an appropriate time.

M -ttthhe wRGold a n
cc: Clifford . White, III, Esq. (via email and regular mail)

Prof sor Jeffrey W. Morris (via email and regular mail)
Peter G. McCabe, Esq. (via regular mail)

Cincinnati Cleveland Columbus Costa Mesa Denver Houston Los Angeles New York Orlando Washington, DC

150





MEMORANDUM

TO: CROSS BORDER INSOLVENCY SUBCOMMITTEE

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: RECOMMENDATIONS ON COMMENTS RELATING TO CROSS BORDER
INSOLVENCY

DATE: FEBRUARY 16, 2007 / revised 2/27/07 (JHW)

The deadline for the submission of comments on the Published Rules has now passed, but

it is possible that additional comments will be added due to delays in posting of the comments. I

would expect that all of the comments will be received and posted for review within the next

week. There are several comments addressing issues for this Subcommittee, including comments

submitted in the last few days. I believe that the Subcommittee can consider the comments

without the need for a teleconference, but if any member believes that a conference call is

appropriate, please let me know and we will schedule one. In this memo, I will summarize the

comments submitted on matters relevant to this Subcommittee and will ask for your vote on

recommendations to be made to the Advisory Committee.

COMMENTS ON THE INTERIM RULES AND FORMS

Conmnent 05-BR-037. This comment was submitted by the Insolvency Law Committee of the

Business Law Section of the State Bar of California. It addresses nine separate rules, and several

of the comments relate to cross border cases. First, the Insolvency Committee recommended that

the Advisory Committee consider adding a requirement to the rules that a foreign representative

file a corporate ownership statement in the same manner as those statements are required of

1

151



debtors under Rule 1007(a). I could not think of any reason why the foreign representative

should be excused from this obligation. I think this is a good suggestion and would

recommend that it be considered by the Subcommittee on Cross Border Cases after the

March meeting of the Advisory Conmnittee for consideration at the September meeting.

The Subcommittee accepted the Reporter's recommendation that Rule 1007(a) be

amended to require the foreign representative to file a corporate ownership statement.

The Insolvency Committee also recommends that Proposed Rule 1007(a)(4) be amended

by inserting "In addition to the documents required under section 1515 of the Code" to the

beginning of that subdivision of the rule. The comment does not offer any reason for including

this language in the rule other than noting that this statutory requirement is in addition to the

obligation under the rule to list certain parties. Given that the statute is self executing, I do not

believe it is necessary to amend the rule and recommend that the Subcommittee not

support this proposal.

The Subcommittee recommended that Proposed Rule 1007(a)(4) be amended by inserting

"In addition to the documents required under section 1515 of the Code" to the beginning

of that subdivision of the rule.

The Insolvence Committee also suggested amendments to Rules 1007(a)(4) and 2002(q).

Those rules each make reference to "administrators in foreign proceedings of the debtor." The

Insolvency Committee is concerned that the description may be too limited and could be

construed to exclude entities such as receivers, trustees, and the like. The Commercial Law

2

152



League has made a similar observation', and those rules could be amended to parallel the Code if

"administrators in foreign proceedings of the debtor" were replaced with the statutory language

of "all persons or bodies authorized to administer foreign proceedings of the debtor." I believe

that this would improve the rules and recommend that the Subcommittee on Cross Border

Cases consider the proposal and make an appropriate recommendation to the Advisory

Committee.

The Subcommittee accepted the Reporter's recommendation that Proposed Rules

1007(a)(4) and 2 002(q) be amended to delete "administrators in foreign proceedings of

the debtor" and replace it with "all persons or bodies authorized to administer foreign

proceedings of the debtor ".

The Insolvency Committee also recommends that Rule 5009 be amended to address the

closing of chapter 15 cases. The Advisory Committee has already taken action consistent

with this suggestion and approved an amendment Rule 5009 at the Seattle meeting.

The Insolvency Committee also recommends that the Advisory Committee study the need

to amend Rule 7065 to ensure that it is consistent with § 1519(e) of the Code. It is unclear to me

whether that Code provision creates a need to amend Rule 7065, but I think it should be studied

See Comment 05-BR-038. The Commercial Law League submitted this comment. It
addresses three different issues. The first recommendation is a series of proposed amendments to
rules to substitute "persons or bodies authorized to administer foreign proceedings" for
"administrators in foreign proceedings" in Proposed Rules 1007(a)(4), 2002(p)(1) and
2002(q)(1). This is consistent with the recommendation of the Insolvency Committee in its
Comment 05-BR-038. I would recommend that the Advisory Committee make that change
to those rules.

3

153



in greater detail and considered by the Subcommittee on Cross Border Cases. The comment does

not address any Proposed Rule, so I think it would be more appropriate for the Subcommittee to

address the matter separate from the pending rules amendments. The Subcommittee could

present its recommendations on the matter to the Advisory Committee at the September 2007

meeting.

Comment 05-BR-038. The Commercial Law League submitted this comment. In addition to its

proposal that parallels the recommendation of the Insolvency Committee as set out above, the

League raised two other issues. It recommends that Rule 1010 be amended to include "all

persons or bodies authorized to administer foreign proceedings" among the entities being served

with an involuntary petition against a debtor and that Rule 1011 be amended to include those

persons among the entities that can file a responsive pleading to an involuntary petition. These

are suggestions for additions to the rules and are not comments to the published rules

amendments. They should be added to the suggested rules revisions and studied by the

Subcommittee on Cross Border Insolvencies for consideration by the Advisory Committee

at the September meeting.

The League also suggests that Proposed Rule 2002(q)(1) and (q)(2) should be expanded

to include foreign administrators among the persons entitled to lengthier notice periods. Those

subdivisions implement § 1514(d) of the Code. That section requires that the Bankruptcy Rules

and any court orders that require notice to creditors with foreign addresses must provide

additional time "as is reasonable under the circumstances." Because the statute applies only to

creditors, I do not believe that any change should be made to those rules to include the

4

154



debtor's foreign representative among the class of persons to whom additional time must

be provided.

COMMENTS ON THE RULES PUBLISHED IN AUGUST 2006

We have received two comments on the published rules that raise matters for this

Subcommittee. First, the National Conference of Bankruptcy Judges submitted Comment 06-

BK-017. The NCBJ Board of Governors adopted a resolution encouraging courts to use the III-

ALI Guidelines for Court to Court Communications in Cross Border Cases, and the resolution

further encourages the various federal rules committees to consult those guidelines in considering

amendments to implement chapter 15 of the Bankruptcy Code. The comment attaches a copy of

the Guidelines. The guidelines are an excellent resource for the courts, and you may recall that

we had at one time considered including a reference to the Guidelines in the Committee Note to

Proposed Rule 5012. The Advisory Committee concluded that it would be inappropriate to refer

to the Guidelines in the Note because it would appear to provide some form of "official"

approval of these Guidelines, perhaps to the exclusion of others (although I am unaware of any

group that has offered a competing set of guidelines or protocols). Given the recommendation of

the NCBJ, the Subcommittee should reconsider that decision. The reason offered in support of

including the reference to the Guidelines in the Committee Note was to educate the bench and

bar regarding the existence of these materials. Arguably, the resolution by the NCBJ Board of

Governors would seem to resolve that matter, at least as far as the bankruptcy bench is

concerned. The issue thus seems to be whether it is necessary to include the reference in the

Committee Note for the benefit of other courts and the bar. I think that the Committee Note

5

155



could be improved and recommend the addition of a sentence along the following lines.

"The rule does not attempt to establish specific guidelines or protocols for these

communications. Rather, this is left to case by case development by the courts who also

have access to recommended guidelines for these communications prepared jointly by the

International Insolvency Institute and the American Law Institute."

The Subcommittee accepted the Reporter's recommendation to revise the Committee Note

to Proposed Rule 5012.

Comment 06-BK-018 was submitted by the National Bankruptcy Conference. It raises two

issues for the consideration of this Subcommittee, both of which are relatively minor. First, the

NBC suggests that the instruction on Forms 9E and 9F to creditors with foreign addresses should

be amended to avoid confusion. Those forms are used in chapter 11 cases where the court has

not yet set a bar date for filing claims. The forms currently state that "The deadlines for filing

claims set forth on the front of this notice apply to all creditors. If this notice has been mailed to

a creditor at a foreign address, the creditor may file a motion requesting the court to extend the

deadline." The NBC recommends that the instruction be as follows: "The deadline for filing

claims will be set in a later court order and will apply to all creditors unless the order provides

otherwise. If notice of the order setting the deadline is sent to a creditor at a foreign address, the

creditor may file a motion requesting the court to extend the deadline." I believe this is a more

accurate instruction and recommend that the Subcommittee support the proposal.

6

156



The Subcommittee accepted the Reporter's recommendation to revise the instruction to

foreign creditors on Official Forms 9E and 9F.

The second proposal of the NBC is that Proposed Rule 2002(p) and Official Form 9 be

amended to uniformly use the term "creditor with a foreign address" rather than to use both

"creditor with a foreign address" and "foreign creditor." Their comment notes that the Code uses

both phrases, but they urge that the rules use only a single designation. I think this is a good idea,

and I recommend that the Subcommittee support the proposal that the Rule and Form

identify the entity as a"creditor with a foreign address."

The Subcommittee accepted the Reporter's recommendation to amend proposed Rule

2 0 02(p) and Official Form 9 to identfy the entity as a "creditor with a foreign address."

7

157





Official Form 9E (Chapter II Individual or Joint Debtor Case) (12/08))

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT District of

Notice of
Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Case, Meeting of Creditors, & Deadlines

[A chapter II bankruptcy case concerning the debtor(s) listed below was filed on (date).]
or [A bankruptcy case concerning the debtor(s) listed below was originally filed under chapter on

(date) and was converted to a case under chapter I I on (date).]

You may be a creditor of the debtor. This notice lists important deadlines. You may want to consult an attorney to protect your
rights. All documents filed in the case may be inspected at the bankruptcy clerk's office at the address listed below.
NOTE: The staff of the bankruptcy clerk's office cannot give legal advice.

See Reverse Side for Important Explanations
Debtor(s) (name(s) and address) Case Number

Last four digits of Social Security or Individual Taxpayer ID (ITIN) No(s) /Complete EIN

All other names used by the Debtor(s) in the last 8 years Attorney for Debtor(s) (name and address)
(include marred, maiden, and trade names)

Telephone number

Meeting of Creditors Change to:

Date: / / Time: ( ) A. M. Location: "Creditor with a Foreign
( )P.M. Address"'

Deadlines:
Papers must be received by the bankruptcy clerk's office by the folio g deadlines: in all versions of Form 9.

Deadline to File a Proof of Claim-
Notice of deadline will be sent at a er time.

Foreign Creditors
A creditor to whom this notice is sent at a foreign address should read the information under "Claims" on the reverse side.

Deadline to File a Complaint to Determine Dischargeability of Certain Debts:

Deadline to File a Complaint Objecting to Discharge of the Debtor:

First date set for hearing on confirmation of plan
Notice of that date will be sent at a later time.

Deadline to Object to Exemptions:

Thirty (30) days after the conclusion of the meeting of creditors.

Creditors May Not Take Certain Actions:
In most instances, the filing of the bankruptcy case automatically stays certain collection and other actions against the debtor and
the debtor's property. Under certain circumstances, the stay may be limited to 30 days or not exist at all, although the debtor can
request the court to extend or impose a stay. If you attempt to collect a debt or take other action in violation of the Bankruptcy
Code, you may be penalized. Consult a lawyer to determine your rights in this case.

Address of the Bankruptcy Clerk's Office: For the Court:

Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court

Telephone number:

Hours Open: Date:

158



EXPLANATIONS Official Form 9E (12/08)
Filing of Chapter 11 A bankruptcy case under Chapter II of the Bankruptcy Code (title 11, United States Code) has been filed in this
Bankruptcy Case court by or against the debtor(s) listed on the front side, and an order for relief has been entered. Chapter 1 I

allows a debtor to reorganize or liquidate pursuant to a plan. A plan is not effective unless confirmed by the
court. You may be sent a copy of the plan and a disclosure statement telling you about the plan, and you might
have the opportunity to vote on the plan. You will be sent notice of the date of the confirmation hearing, and you
may object to confirmation of the plan and attend the confirmation hearing. Unless a trustee is serving, the debtor
will remain in possession of the debtor's property and may continue to operate any business.

Legal Advice The staff of the bankruptcy clerk's office cannot give legal advice. Consult a lawyer to determine your nights in
this case.

Creditors Generally May Prohibited collection actions are listed in Bankruptcy Code § 362. Common examples of prohibited actions
Not Take Certain Actions include contacting the debtor by telephone, mail, or otherwise to demand repayment; taking actions to collect

money or obtain property from the debtor; repossessing the debtor's property; starting or continuing lawsuits or
foreclosures; and garnishing or deducting from the debtor's wages. Under certain circumstances, the stay may be
limited to 30 days or not exist at all, although the debtor can request the court to extend or impose a stay.

Meeting of Creditors A meeting of creditors is scheduled for the date, time, and location listed on the front side The debtor (both
spouses in a joint case) must be present at the meeting to be questioned under oath by the trustee and by
creditors. Creditors are welcome to attend, but are not required to do so. The meeting may be continued and
concluded at a later date without further notice. The court, after notice and a hearing, may order that the United
States trustee not convene the meeting if the debtor has filed a plan for which the debtor solicited acceptances
before filing the case.

Claims A Proof of Claim is a signed statement describing a creditor's claim. If a Proof of Claim form is not included
with this notice, you can obtain one at any bankruptcy clerk's office. You may look at the schedules that have
been or will be filed at the bankruptcy clerk's office. If your claim is scheduled and is not listed as disputed,
contingent, or unliquidated, it will be allowed in the amount scheduled unless you filed a Proof of Claim or you
are sent further notice about the claim. Whether or not your claim is scheduled, you are permitted to file a Proof
of Claim. If your claim is not listed at all or if your claim is listed as disputed, contingent, or unliquidated, then
you must file a Proof of Claim or you might not be paid any money on your claim and may be unable to vote on a
plan. The court has not yet set a deadline to file a Proof of Claim. If a deadline is set, you will be sent another
notice. A secured creditor retains rights in its collateral regardless of whether that creditor files a Proof of Claim.
Filing a Proof of Claim submits the creditor to the jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court, with consequences a
lawyer can explain. For example, a secured creditor who files a Proof of Claim may surrender important
nonmonetary rights, including the right to a jury trial. Filing-Deadtine-for-a-F-eeign-Cr-teo-.-Tie-deadtines
for filing elaims-set-fofth-on t" font of this noti apply to all creditors. Ifthis no" tiee esbn-mailed to-a
efdtrat .. a ..edd .ss, the "r o may file motion rcqucsting thc .ourt to ext.nd.thed.adlin-.

Discharge of Debts Confirmation of a chapter I I plan may result in a disch e of debts, which may include all or part of your debt.
See Bankruptcy Code § 1141 (d). Unless the court orde- otherwise, Replace:with;-
until completion of all payments under the plan. A disch rge means ;
from the debtor except as provided in the plan. If you bel eve that a "Filing Deadline for a Creditor with a Foreign
Bankruptcy Code § 523 (a) (2), (4), or (6), you must start lawsuitb, b dr The i" "•'rfiln ims wilt e.. .... .. , , ,, • . tt•. , •Address: Tlie-deadline'f gcam
office by the "Deadline to File a Complaint to Determine ischargea -e-' a fo. fii, caims i be
side. The bankruptcy clerk's office must receive the compl imt and a order.and will apply to all
you beheve that the debtor is not entitled to receive a diseha . .-A-- r ,: ess,- h oIdep I r, ves
you ..believe.that. otherwise. If notice of the order setting the

I f 1 n/rdlnrI ,ll,'h 'h' equired filing fee in the bankruptcy clerk's deadline isa ent t a creditor at a foreign
EChange "foreign creditor" f the plan. You will be sent another notice a-ea&nie creor a moeiontto: , . . .. adrss, the preditor may file-a motion

Exempt Property y law to keep certain property as exempt. E. ma'....
ten if the debtor's case is converted to chapt requesting.fh, court toextend the deadhnes

[ Creditor with a Foreign may inspect that list at the bankruptcy clerk 1 .$

lAddress" ot authorized by law, you may file an objecONLY in 9 ,,and 9F
e the objection by the "Deadline to Object to Exemptions" listed on the front side.

Bankruptcy erk's Offic in ALL versions of Form this bankruptcy case should be filed at the bankruptcy clerk's office at the address listed
_.____________y inspect all papers filed, including the list of the debtor's property and debts and the

I list ot the property claimed as exempt, at the bankruptcy clerk's office.
Foreign Creditors Consult a lawyer familiar with United States bankruptcy law if you have any questions regarding your rights in

this case.

Refer To Other Side For Important Deadlines and Notices

159



Official Form 9F (Chapter 11 Corporation/Partnership Case) (12/08))

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT District of

Notice of
Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Case, Meeting of Creditors, & Deadlines

[A chapter I I bankruptcy case concerning the debtor(s) listed below was filed on _(date).]
or [A bankruptcy case concerning the debtor(s) listed below was originally filed under chapter on

_(date) and was converted to a case under chapter 11 on (date).]

You may be a creditor of the debtor. This notice lists important deadlines. You may want to consult an attorney to protect your
rights. All documents filed in the case may be inspected at the bankruptcy clerk's office at the address listed below.
NOTE: The staff of the bankruptcy clerk's office cannot give legal advice.

See Reverse Side for Important Explanations

Debtor(s) (name(s) and address) Case Number

Last four digits of Social Secunty or Individual Taxpayer ID (ITIN) No(s) /Complete EIN

All other names used by the Debtor(s) in the last 8 years Attorney for Debtor(s) (name and address)-
(include trade names)

Telephone number Telephone number

Meeting of Creditors Change "foreign creditor"

to:

Date: Time: ( ) A. M. Location:
P. M. "Creditor with a Foreign

Address"

Deadline to File a Proof of Claim in all versions of Form 9.

Proof of Claim must be received by the bankruptcy clerk's offic the following deadline:

Notice of deadline will be sent a later time.

Foreign Creditors
A creditor to whom this notice is sent at a foreign address should read the information under "Claims" on the reverse side.

Deadline to File a Complaint to Determine Dischargeability of Certain Debts:

Creditors May Not Take Certain Actions:
In most instances, the filing of the bankruptcy case automatically stays certain collection and other actions against the debtor and the
property. Under certain circumstances, the stay may be limited to 30 days or not exist at all, although the debtor can request the coul
impose a stay. If you attempt to collect a debt or take other action in violation of the Bankruptcy Code, you may be penalized. Con
determine your rights in this case.

Address of the Bankruptcy Clerk's Office: For the Court:

Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court

Telephone number:

Hours Open: Date:

160



EXPLANATIONS Official Form 9F (12/08)
Filing of Chapter 11 A bankruptcy case under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code (title 11, United States Code) has been
Bankruptcy Case filed in this court by or against the debtor(s) listed on the front side, and an order for relief has been

entered. Chapter I I allows a debtor to reorganize or liquidate pursuant to a plan. A plan is not
effective unless confirmed by the court. You may be sent a copy of the plan and a disclosure
statement telling you about the plan, and you might have the opportunity to vote on the plan. You will
be sent notice of the date of the confirmation hearing, and you may object to confirmation of the plan
and attend the confirmation hearing. Unless a trustee is serving, the debtor will remain in possession
of the debtor's property and may continue to operate any business.

Legal Advice The staff of the bankruptcy clerk's office cannot give legal advice. Consult a lawyer to determine
your rights in this case.

Creditors Generally Prohibited collection actions are listed in Bankruptcy Code § 362. Common examples of prohibited
May Not Take Certain actions include contacting the debtor by telephone, mail, or otherwise to demand repayment; taking
Actions actions to collect money or obtain property from the debtor; repossessing the debtor's property; and

starting or continuing lawsuits or foreclosures. Under certain circumstances, the stay may be limited
to 30 days or not exist at all, although the debtor can request the court to extend or impose a stay.

Meeting of Creditors A meeting of creditors is scheduled for the date, time, and location listed on the front side. The
debtor's representative must be present at the meeting to be questioned under oath by the trustee and
by creditors. Creditors are welcome to attend, but are not required to do so. The meeting may be
continued and concluded at a later date without further notice. The court, after notice and a hearing,
may order that the United States trustee not convene the meeting if the debtor has filed a plan for
which the debtor solicited acceptances before filing the case. Replace with:.

Claims A Proof of Claim is a signed statement describing a creditor's
included with this notice, you can obtain one at any bankruptc Filing Deadline for a Creditor with a Foreign
schedules that have been or will be filed at the bankruptcy clei Address: The deadline for filing ciairs:%wil be
and is not listed as disputed, contingent, or unliquidated, it wil set in alater court orderdand will apply to al
unless you filed a Proof of Claim or you are sent further notic( creditors uniess the orderprovides otherwise.
claim is scheduled, you are permitted to file a Proof Claim If notice of the order setting the deadlineis,
your claim is listed as disputed, contingent, or unliq dated, t sent toh a creditor.at a freign addres.s, the

might not be paid any money on your claim and ma be unabl creditor may file a .-tion rquesting the cour
yet set a deadline to file a Proof of Claim. If a dea ne is set, t ee adlu ne• i "
secured creditor retains rights in its collateral regarlless of wh ON LY in 9E a 9F
Filing a Proof of Claim submits the creditor to the jurisdiction ONin-9E an , ..
consequences a lawyer can explain. For exampl, secured creditor who files a Proof of Claim may
surrender important nonmonetary rights, including the right to ajury trial. Filing Deadline for a
Foreign Creditor: The deadlines for! filing .laims set frt.h on the front of this notice apply to all

crdi -s.I this notice has been mfa-iledd4I to a Rdiratafe address, the creditor may file-a
.tion requesting the .ourt to ext.e.d t.h.e.. .. . deadline.

Discharge of Debts Confirmationo o 1 1 -1- suit in a discharge of debts, which may include all or part of
your debt. Set ChainIge to d). A discharge means that you may never try to collect the

debt from the C Foreign n the plan. If you believe that a debt owed to you is not

d isca a "'C'reditor with 141 (drigdischa ae 141) (6) (A), you must start a lawsuit by filing a
colaint in t by the "Deadline to File a Complaint to Determine

schargeabil in all versions of Form 9. on the front side. The bankruptcy clerk's office must receive
the complaint 1y that deadline.

Bankruptcy Clerk's Any paper that you me in tins naniruptcy case should be filed at the bankruptcy clerk's office at the
Office/ address listed on the front side. You may inspect all papers filed, including the list of the debtor's

property and debts and the list of the property claimed as exempt, at the bankruptcy clerk's office.
,e,,eign -,,editer. Consult a lawyer familiar with United States bankruptcy law if you have any questions regarding your

rights in this case.
Refer To Other Side For Important Deadlines and Notices

161



MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: RECOMMENDATIONS ON COMMENTS RELATING TO APPEALS

DATE: FEBRUARY 23, 2007 / revised 2/28/07 (JHW)

We received only five comments on the rules relating to appeals. This includes

comments on the Interim Rules and on the rules published for comment in August 2006. One of

the comments actually addresses Rules that were not among the Interim Rules or the Published

Rules, and it is essentially a suggestion that the Committee consider amending other rules

governing appeals. Three other comments have already been addressed, and the final comment is

one that I do not believe requires action by the Subcommittee.

We received a comment on Interim Rule 8001(f)(2) from Mark Diamond, Esq., the

operations manager for the bankruptcy court for the Southern District of New York. In

Comment 05-BR-017, he recommended that the rule be revised to apply specifically to "final

orders" rather than "interlocutory orders". The Committee responded to this comment and

has revised Rule 8001(0(2) to designate when a matter is no longer pending in a

bankruptcy court by reference to the docketing of an appeal or the granting of leave to

appeal under 28 U.S.C. § 158(a)(1), (2) or (3). Thus, no further action is required on this

comment.

The Commercial Law League of American submitted Comment 05-BR-038 which

included several comments on Interim Rule 8001(f). The first comment is that there should be

an Official Form for certifications when they are sought either by a majority of the parties or by

fewer than a majority. Those requests for certification, however, are made to the court where the

162



matter is pending as compared to a certification by all of the appellants and appellees. That is a

certification directly to the court of appeals, so I do not believe that an Official Form for

requests for certification is necessary. The second comment was that Interim Rule

8001 (f)(3)(B) should be amended to provide that in addition to serving all of the parties required

to be served under Rule 8004, the rule should require that service be made on "the party

requesting certification." Service under Rule 8004 is made by the clerk on "counsel of record of

each party other than the appellant", and the concern is that the plain meaning of Rule 8004

would require the clerk to serve the party requesting the certification because they are not the

appellant until the court of appeals grants leave to appeal. I do not believe that the clerk will not

mistakenly serve the person who has filed the request for certification with notice of that request.

Therefore, I do not believe that there is any need to amend Proposed Rule 8001 or 8004 to

remedy this perceived problem. Finally, the Commercial Law League suggests that Proposed

Rule 8004(f)(4)(B) be deleted as unnecessary. Their argument is that the court's certification

must contain the information set out in Proposed Rule 8001(f)(3)(C), so the supplementary

statement is unnecessary. However, Proposed Rule 8004(f)(4)(B) is analogous to subdivision

(f)(3)(D) and is intended to allow the parties to supplement the statement that the court provides,

just as the parties can submit a statement to support or oppose a request for certification. I

believe that we should retain subdivision (f)(4)(B) and recommend that the

recommendations of the Commercial Law League not be adopted.

The Subcommittee accepted the Reporter's recommendations (1) not to create an Official

Form for Requests for Certification; (2) not to amend Rules 8001 or 8004 to exclude the

party requesting certification; and (3) not to delete proposed Rule 8004(09(4)(B).

163



We have received three comments on appeals issues in the published rules. Comment

06-BK-007, submitted by Henry Sommer, a former member of the Committee, noted a problem

with Official Form 24. That is the form for the certification to the court of appeals by all parties.

Mr. Sommer noted that the form needed to be revised to include a signature line for the appellees

as well as for the appellants. The Forms Subcommittee has already made that correction, so

no further action is required by this Subcommittee.

The American Bankruptcy Institute's Task Force on Bankruptcy Rules submitted

Comment 06-BK-056. The Task Force compiled comments on a number of Rules, including

Proposed Rule 8001 (f)(2)(B). The Task Force report states that the respondents to their survey

were confused by that Rule which, they state, could be misinterpreted as requiring all of the

appellants and appellees to certify the question rather than just a majority of the appellants and

appellees. In fact, Rule 8001(f)(2)(B) does require all of the appellants and appellees to join in

the certification under that subdivision of the rule. A certification by a majority of those parties

is governed by Rule 8001(f)(3). Given the apparent confusion, it might be appropriate to

revise the second paragraph of the Committee Note. A suggested revision that sets out the

specific subdivisions under which each form of certification is pursued follows.

Subdivision (f) is added to the rule to implement the 2005
amendments to 28 U.S.C. § 158(d). That section authorizes
appeals directly to the court of appeals, with that court's consent,
upon certification that a ground for the appeal exists under
§ 158(d)(2)(A)(i)-(iii). Certification can be made by the court on
its own initiative under subdivision (f)(4) or in response to a
request of a party or a majority of the appellants and appellees (if
any) under subdivision (f)(3). Certification also can be made by all
of the appellants and appellees under subdivision (f)(2)(B). Under
subdivision (f)(1), certification is effective only when a timely
appeal is commenced under subdivision (a) or (b), and a notice of
appeal has been timely filed under Rule 8002. These actions will
provide sufficient notice of the appeal to the circuit clerk, so the

164



rule dispenses with the uncodified temporary procedural
requirements set out in § 1233 (b)(4) of the Bankruptcy Abuse
Prevention and Consumer Protection Act of 2005, Pub. L. No. 109-
8.

The Subcommittee vote on revising the Committee Note was a tie.

We have also received Comment 06-BK-016 from Bankruptcy Judge Colleen A.

Brown of the District of Vermont. Judge Brown's comment addressed several of the

Published Rules, and in the course of her comments she also included a suggestion for a

revision of Rules 8003(b) and 8005. Rule 8005 was not amended, so her suggestion on

amending the two rules to improve the procedure governing the appeals of interlocutory

orders does not have to be addressed at this time. Instead, I would recommend that it

be considered by the Subcommittee after the March meeting for consideration at

the September meeting.

4

165



MEMORANDUM

TO: BANKRUPTCY RULES ADVISORY GROUP

FROM: JEFF MORRIS / FORMS SUBCOMMITTEE

RE: PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE OFFICIAL FORMS

DATE: JANUARY 26, 2007; revised February 27, 2007 (SSM)

In response to comments and suggestions received since the Interim Rules and Forms

were published in October 2005 and republished in August 2006, the Forms Subcommittee

recommends a number of changes to the Official Forms. (Ministerial changes to certain dollar

amounts in five Official Forms and changes to the Director's Forms are addressed in separate

memos).

The Subcommittee anticipates that many of its recommended changes (or recommended

no action items) will be noncontroversial and will not require discussion. Accordingly, the memo

below is organized into three parts.

The first four items are the only items the Subcommittee anticipates will require

discussion at Marco Island. These "Discussion Calendar" items are grouped together under

section 1 and consist of: 1 (a), a proposal to create a reaffirmation coversheet as an Official

Form; 1 (b), a recommended revision of Official Form 8 (Individual Debtor Statement of

Intention); 1 (c), a proposed change to the landlord notification box on the second page of

Official Form 1; and 1 (d), changes to the instructions on Official Forms 4, 6, and 7 with respect

to minor children. The Subcommittee proposes that these items be discussed at Marco Island.

The next five items are grouped at section 2 as technical or noncontroversial

recommendations: 2(a), Official Form 1 - Voluntary Petition (update asset/liability ranges); 2(b),

Official Form 6 - Schedules (multiple changes); 2(c) Official Form 22 (all versions) (change

instruction at lines 4/3 to accommodate reporting income for more than one business, profession

or farm); 2(d), Official Form 24 - Certification to Court of Appeals; and 2(e), Official Form 25A

Small Business Plan of Reorganization. The Subcommittee recommends that these items not be

discussed at Marco Island unless a request is made.

166



The final four items are grouped at section 3 as "No Action" recommendations

concerning proposed change to the following forms: 3(a), Official Form 5 Involuntary Petition

(proposed change to citation referenced in form); 3(b), Official Form 6 - Statistical Summaries

(proposed checkbox for corporations ; 3(c), Official Form 16A Caption (proposal to add "aka"

and "dba" ; and 3(d); Official Form 23 - Certification Of Completion of Financial Management

Course (proposal to separate incapacity/disability waiver options). The Subcommittee

recommends that these items not be discussed at Marco Island unless a request is made.

1. DISCUSSION ITEMS

1(a). REAFFIRMATION AGREEMENT - Should it be an Official Form?

The Consumer Subcommittee has recommended that Director's Form B240, the

Reaffirmation Agreement, be made an Official Form. We have also received comments from

creditor groups seeking the same result. The Advisory Committee, however, has discussed and

rejected this redesignation at previous meeting.

The Consumer Subcommittee concluded that the court's need for access to financial

information about the debtor and the reaffirmed debt justifies the adoption of an Official Form.

In that way, the court can readily identify the most significant information essential to

determining whether the presumption of undue hardship has arisen under § 524(m) of the Code.

Having the same form in use for all reaffirmation agreements would ensure that the courts could

easily find the necessary information.

In discussing the idea of an Official Form, Judge Klein and I came upon the possibility of

a reaffirmation agreement cover sheet as an Official Form rather than adopting the reaffirmation

agreement itself as the Official Form. We came to this conclusion for a couple of reasons. First,

there is still some disagreement in the courts as to the role of the court in approving or

disapproving reaffirmation agreements. Adopting a particular reaffirmation agreement as an

167

2



Official Form might result in tacitly adopting some courts methodology and rejecting the views

of other courts on substantive matters. Second, adopting the entire form as an Official Form

limits the ability to change the form thereafter either to reflect legislative or case law

developments, especially as compared to the more expeditious means of amending a Director's

Form. Finally, because much of the discussion in the Consumer Subcommittee regarding the

need for an Official Form for reaffirmations centered on the court's need to focus on specific

financial information, a uniform cover sheet seemed to best address the problem. A proposed

Official Form Reaffirmation Agreement cover sheet is attached. The Subcommittee

recommends that it be published for comment in August 2007.

1(b). OFFICIAL FORM 8, CHAPTER 7 INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR'S
STATEMENT OF INTENTION

Judge Elizabeth Penris submitted Comment 06-BK-002 suggesting that Official Form 8

be amended to provide more effective guidance to debtors. The form requires individual debtors

to state whether they intend to retain possession of property that is subject to liens, and was

revised in response to BAPCPA to provide a new option covering personal property subject to an

unexpired lease.

Judge Perris indicated that many debtors do not complete the form and instead simply

indicate that they intend to claim the property as exempt, even though such action may not be

sufficient to allow the debtor to retain the property. Additionally, § 521 (a)(6) of the Code

requires debtors to take specific action as set out on the form not later than 45 days after the

§ 341 meeting of creditors. The Consumer Subcommittee considered the matter and concluded

that the form should be revised, but it left the specifics of the revision to the Forms

Subcommittee.

168

3



The Forms Subcommittee concluded that the form should be substantially revised

from the published version. A proposed revised version of Form 8 is attached. It is

intended to take the debtor through each step of the process in determining whether to retain the

property while ensuring that the debtor will check all of the applicable boxes regarding retention

of the property. It also would leave open the opportunity for the debtor to claim that § 521(a)(6)

is not applicable in the particular circumstances. Because of the extensive revisions to the

form, the Subcommittee recommends that the proposed amendment of Form 8 be

published in August 2007, with a scheduled effective date of December 1, 2008.

1(c). OFFICIAL FORM 1, Voluntary Petition - Landlord Notification and
§ 362(l)

The voluntary petition, Official Form 1, includes a box at the bottom of page 2 in which

the debtor is directed to note whether a landlord has a judgment against the debtor for possession

of the debtor residence. Under § 362(p) of the Code, the debtor can retain possession of the

residential property if applicable nonbankruptcy law allows the debtor to cure the entire

monetary default, and the debtor deposits the necessary funds with the court at the time of the

filing of the voluntary petition. Judge S. Martin Teel (Bankr. D.D.C.) submitted Comment 05-

BR-035 in which he noted that the Code not only requires the debtor to deposit the necessary

funds with the court, but the debtor also must serve he lessor a certification under penalty of

perjury that the debtor has the right to cure and has deposited the required funds. Judge Teel

suggests that Official Form 1 be amended to include a certificate of service for the debtor that

operates to inform the debtor of the need to serve the landlord with the certification and informs

the court that the service has been made. The Subcommittee agrees with Judge Teel and

recommends revising the landlord notification box in two respects: (1), the title of the box

169

4



should be changed from "Statement by a Debtor Who Resides as a Tenant of Residential

Property" to "Vertification by a Debtor who Resides as a Tenant of Residential Property"

and (2), a fourth checkbox should be added stating:

El Debtor certifies that he/she has served the Landlord with this certification.

(11 U.S.C. § 362(1)).

1(d). OFFICIAL FORMS 4,6, and 7, IDENTIFICATION OF MINOR CHILD

Section 112 of the Code, added by BAPCPA in 2005, provides generally that the debtor

may not be required to disclose the name of a minor child in documents filed in the public

records of the bankruptcy case. The rules had already taken such a position with the proposal of

Rule 9037 which has been approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States and is

awaiting final action by the Supreme Court. In a related matter, Rule 1007(m) was added to the

rules in 2001, and it requires the debtor to include the name, address, and legal relationship of

any person upon whom process would be served in an adversary proceeding against the infant.

In Comment 05-BR-008, Mr. Thomas Yerbich suggested that Official Form 6 be

amended slightly to clarify the way in which a minor child should be identified on the schedules

of creditors. The form currently refers to § 112 and instructs the debtor not to include a minor

child's name on Schedules D through H, and the instructions also refer the debtor to Rule

1007(m) and remind the debtor to include the name, address and legal relationship to the minor

of the guardian or representative. Mr. Yerbich suggests that the form could be improved by

adding an example to the instructions that would be especially helpful for pro se debtors. Mr.

Yerbich also points out that merely identifying a minor child as "a minor child" (as currently

170

5



required by the instructions to Official Form 4 and Official Form 7) could be insufficient to

provide effective notice. The Subcommittee recommends amending the instructions on

Form 4, Form 6 (Schedules D-H) and Form 7 with respect to identification of minor

children as follows (slight contextual variations are shown in the attachments):

If a minor child is a creditor, state the child's initials and the name and address of the

child's parent or guardian, such as "A.B., a minor child, by John Doe, guardian." Do not

disclose the child's name. See, 11 U.S.C. § 112 and Fed. R. Bankr.P. 1007(m).

2.TECHNICAL OR NONCONTROVERSIAL RECOMMENDATIONS

There are several changes that need to be made but that present but either present no real

issue or are noncontroversial and do not require discussion unless there is a specific request.

2(a). OFFICIAL FORM 1, Voluntary Petition (update asset/liability ranges).

The staff suggests that the dollar ranges for assets and liabilities are inconsistent and

additional ranges should be added. AO statisticians and CM/ECF staff endorse. The

Subcommittee recommends the change.

2(b). OFFICIAL FORM 6, Schedules.

This form includes all of the schedules. Several suggestions have been submitted for

amendments to the form. The suggestions and the Subcommittee's recommendations are set out

below.

Schedule E - Unsecured Priority Claims, and Schedule F - Unsecured Nonpriority

Claims, currently require only individual chapter 7 consumer debtors to carry the total over to

171

6



the Form 6, Statistical Summary. Schedule D - Secured Claims, requires all individual consumer

debtors to carry the total to the Statistical Summary. The Statistical Summary and 28 U.S.C.

§ 159(a) require the information from individual consumer debtors in chapters 7, 11, and 13.

The instructions on Schedules E and F should be conformed to the instructions for Schedule D,

the Statistical Summary, and section 159(a) by striking the references to chapter 7 in the

instructions for schedules E and F. The Subcommittee recommends removing the references

to chapter 7 cases in the instructions on Schedules E and F.

Schedule 61 - Current Income of Individual Debtor(s). Revise instructions for line 16 to

require the total of the income figures on line 15 for the debtor and the debtor's spouse. This

would make Schedule I consistent with Schedule J, which includes monthly expenses for the

debtor and the debtor's family. The instruction for line 16 on Schedule I was changed in 2005

for statistical reporting pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 159. The instruction has led to confusion and

some software companies ignore it. Literal compliance would result in reporting individual

income and family expenses. Statisticians at the AO and the CM/ECF staff have endorsed the

change in Schedule I (which would automatically carryover to the Form 6, Statistical Summary).

The Subcommittee recommends revising line 16 on Schedule I to state: "COMBINED

AVERAGE MONTHLY INCOME: (Combine column totals from line 15)."

Form 6 - Official Declaration. Clarify the following statement on the declaration form:

"I declare under penalty of perjury that I have read the foregoing summary and schedules,

consisting of sheets (total shown on summary page plus 2), and that they are true and

correct to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief." The number of pages would be

different for amended schedules and for corporations, which do not file the statistical summary.

Amended schedules probably require a statement more precise than the template on the form.

172

7



The Subcommittee recommends revising the statement by removing the parenthetical as

follows:

"I declare under penalty of perjury that I have read the foregoing summary and

schedules, consisting of _ sheets, and that they are true and correct to the best of

my knowledge, information, and belief."

2(c). OFFICIAL FORM 22 (all versions) - CALCULATION OF BUSINESS,

PROFESSION OR FARM INCOME IF MORE THAN ONE

Seville Drewfs of the "Legal-PRO Systems" software company suggested that space

should be provided for separate calculations on line 4 of Official Forms 22A (line 3 of 22B, and

22C) for the debtor and the debtor's spouse to calculate income from the operation of a business,

profession, or farm. In addition, the forms do not accommodate displaying the calculations if the

debtor receives income from more than one business, profession or farm.

The Subcommittee recommends revising the instruction in line 4/3 of Official Forms

22A, 22B, and 22C as follows:

"If more than one business, profession or farm, enter aggregate numbers and

provide details on an attachment."

2(d). OFFICIAL FORM 24, Certification to Court of Appeals.

Rather than having two signature lines for the appellant's attorney (or a pro se appellant),

the second signature line should be for the appellee's attorney (or a pro se appellee). The

Subcommittee recommends fixing the typo and making the second signature line for the

appellee's attorney or a pro se appellee.

173



2(e). OFFICIAL FORM 25A, Small Business Plan of Reorganization.

a. The model plan should be consistent by using either (1) "equity security holders" and

"equity securities of the debtor" or (2) "equity interest holders" and "equity interests in the

debtor." Section 101 (17) of the Code defines an equity security holder as the holder of an equity

security of the debtor. Section 101(16) defines an equity security as including stocks, interests,

and warrants or rights to purchase. The Subcommittee recommends using "equity security

holders" and "equity securities of the debtor" throughout the form plan because the

phrasing is more consistent with statutory usage.

b. The title of Section 2.04 of the form plan is confusing. It now reads. "Class 4.

"Equity interests in the Debtor. [If the Debtor is an individual - The interests of the individual

Debtor in property of the estate. "

It is intended as an instruction to revise the title for plans filed by individual debtors. Section

III.C.4., of the form disclosure statement for small business chapter 11 cases explains, "Finally,

with respect to an individual who is a debtor, the Debtor is the equity interest holder." The

Subcommittee recommends revising the title to read: Class 4. Equity securities of the

Debtor. [If the Debtor is an individual, change this heading to "The interests of the

individual Debtor in property of the estate."

3.NO ACTION RECOMMENDATIONS

The Subcommittee considered the following suggestions and/or comments but

recommends no change.

3(a). OFFICIAL FORM 5, Involuntary Petition.

a. In Comment 06-BK-0 12, Ms. Robin Hunt of Colorado suggested a change to

Proposed Official Form 5, the Involuntary Petition form. She suggests changing the statutory

174

9



reference in the filing fee box which refers to the waiver of certain fees for child support

creditors, The form refers to § 304(g) of the Bankruptcy Reform Act of 1994, and Ms. Hunt

suggests that the reference should be to § 303(g) of the Code.

The form is correct. I believe that Ms. Hunt's confusion stems from the fact that § 303 of

the Code governs involuntary cases. The § 304(g) on the form is an uncodified provision and

was included in Pub. L. No. 103-394. Although the form could refer to that Public Law in

addition to the Bankruptcy Reform Act of 1994, the subcommittee did not believe this would

avoid confusion. The Subcommittee recommends the change.

b, Add a tax-exempt checkbox to Form 5 (to conform with Form 1). Tax-exempt

organizations may be ineligible for involuntary relief under 11 U.S.C. § 303(a) as corporations

that are not moneyed, business, or commercial corporations. In any event, the category is likely

to be statistically insignificant. The Subcommittee recommends no change.

3(b). OFFICIAL FORM 6, Statistical Summaries

Include a "Not Applicable" checkbox for corporations similar to the checkbox for

individual debtors whose debts are not primarily consumer debts. The suggestion is

unnecessary, if the debtor is a corporation, the case caption should make that clear. The

Subcommittee recommends no change.

3(c). OFFICIAL FORM 16A, Caption

The suggestion is to change the form caption to include "dba" and "aka" for clarity. The

suggestion is unnecessary, the form caption already states: "[Set forth here all names including

married, maiden, and trade names used by debtor within last 8 years.]" The Subcommittee

recommends no change.

175

10



3(d). OFFICIAL FORM 23, CERTIFICATION OF COMPLETION OF FINANCIAL

MANAGEMENT COURSE.

In Comment 06-BK-004, Mark Diamond, Operations Manager for the US Bankruptcy

Court, SDNY, notes that Form 23 currently includes a single checkbox for indicating that the

debtor is incapacitated or has a disability that justifies an excuse for not completing the financial

management course. He suggests that the form would be improved by splitting the options in

two and by more explicitly setting forth the statutory requirements. He also suggests adding an

instruction that directs the debtor to check the EOUST website before asserting a waiver based

on lack of EOUST approved agencies in the district.

Mr. Diamond suggestions are summarized as follows:

INSERT IN LIEU OF THE LAST THREE CHECK BOXES ON OFFICIAL FORM 23:

I am incapacitated by mental illness or mental deficiency such that I am/we are incapable of

making rational decisions with respect to my/our financial responsibilities.

I am so physically impaired that I am/we are unable, after reasonable effort, to participate in an

in person, telephone, or Internet briefing required under 11 U.S.C. 7 109(h)(1).

I am on active military duty in a military combat zone.

I reside a district in which the United States trustee (or bankruptcy administrator) has

determined that the approved instructional courses are not adequate at this time to serve the

additional individuals who would otherwise be required to complete such courses.

ADD TO INSTRUCTIONS FOR FORM:

If you believe that completion of a personal financial management course is not necessary
because the United States trustee has determined that adequate courses are not available in your
location, please verify that information through the website of the United States trustee,
<www.usdoj. gov/ust/>.

176

11



The Subcommittee discussed the proposed changes and concluded that they were

unnecessary. For the vast majority of users, the purpose of the form is simply to evidence that

an approved course in personal financial management has been completed. Adding additional

detail about the waiver situations would not aid such users and would unnecessarily add

complexity to the form. And the Subcommittee believes the current version of the form is both

accurate and adequate for the minority of debtors that use it to seek a waiver of the personal

financial management course. The Subcommittee recommends no change.

177

12



Substitute the following for the asset and liability ranges
currently on Form 1:

Estimated Assets

0 []0 0 01 El E
$0 to $50,001 to $100,001 $500,001 $1,000,001 $10,000,001 $50,000,001 $100,000,00 $500,000,001 More than
$50,000 $100,000 to to $1 to $10 to $50 to $100 1 to $500 to$I billion $1 billion

$500,000 million million million million million

Estimated Liabilities

0 10 0 E 0 0 0 0 0 0
$0 to $50,001 to $100,001 $500,001 $1,000,001 $10,000,001 $50,000,001 $100,000,00 $500,000,001 More than
$50,000 $100,000 to to $1 to $10 to $50 to $100 I to $500 to $1 billion $1 billion

$500,000 million million million million million

178





(Official Form 1) (12/08) Form BI, Page 2
Voluntary Petition Name of Debtor(s)
(This page must be completed and filed in every case.) I

All Prior Bankruptcy Cases Filed Within Last 8 Years (If more than two, attach additional sheet )
Location J Case Number- Date Filed
Where Filed
Location Case Number: Date Filed:
Where Filed- I

Pending Bankruptcy Case Filed by any Spouse, Partner, or Affiliate of this Debtor (If more than one, attach additional sheet.)
Name of Debtor: Case Number Date Filed:

District Relationship. Judge-

Exhibit A Exhibit B
(To be completed if debtor is an individual

(To be completed if debtor is required to file periodic reports (e.g., forms 10K and whose debts are primarily consumer debts)
10Q) with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and is requesting relief under chapter 11.) 1, the attorney for the petitioner named in the foregoing petition, declare that I

have informed the petitioner that [he or she] may proceed under chapter 7, 11,
12, or 13 of title It, United States Code, and have explained the relief
available under each such chapter. I further certify that I have delivered to the
debtor the notice required by 11 U.S.C. § 342(b).

El Exhibit A is attached and made a part of this petition. X
-Signature of Attorney for Debtor(s) (Date)

Exhibit C

Does the debtor own or have possession of any property that poses or is alleged to pose a threat of imminent and identifiable harm to public health or safety?

0l Yes, and Exhibit C is attached and made a part of this petition

E] No.

Exhibit D

(To be completed by every individual debtor If a joint petition is filed, each spouse must complete and attach a separate Exhibit D.)

El Exhibit D completed and signed by the debtor is attached and made a part of this petition

If this is a joint petition-

El Exhibit D also completed and signed by the joint debtor is attached and made a part of this petition

Information Regarding the Debtor - Venue
(Check any applicable box.) \o,

El Debtor has been domiciled or has had a residence, principal place of business, or principal assets in th
preceding the date of this petition or for a longer part of such 180 days than in any other District. \ V ?t,

El There is a bankruptcy case conceming debtor's affiliate, general partner, or partnership pending in this Di •x , Vk -

El Debtor is a debtor in a foreign proceeding and has its principal place of business or principal assets in e
has no principal place of business or assets in the United States but is a defendant in an action or proceeding A1 n
this District, or the interests of the parties will be served in regard to the relief sought in this District.

Certification by a Debtor Who Resides as a Tenant of Residential Property
(Check all applicable boxes )

El Landlord has a judgment against the debtor for possession of debtor's residence. (If box checked, complete the following.)

(Name of landlord that obtained judgment)

(Address of landlord)

E] Debtor claims that under applicable nonbankruptcy law, there are circumstances under which the debtor would be permitted to cure the
entire monetary default that gave rise to the judgment for possession, after the judgment for possession was entered, and

El Debtor has included with this petition the deposit with the court of any rent that would become due during the 30-day period after the
filing of the petition.

179

El Debtor certifies that he/she has served the Landlord with this certification. (II U.S.C. & 362(1)).





Official Form 4 (12/08)

United States Bankruptcy Court
District Of

In re Case No.
Debtor

Chapter

LIST OF CREDITORS HOLDING 20 LARGEST UNSECURED CLAIMS

Following is the list of the debtor's creditors holding the 20 largest unsecured claims. The list is
prepared in accordance with Fed. R. Bankr. P. 1007(d) for filing in this chapter II [or chapter 9] case.
The list does not include (1) persons who come within the definition of "insider" set forth in II U.S.C.
§ 101, or (2) secured creditors unless the value of the collateral is such that the unsecured deficiency
places the creditor among the holders of the 20 largest unsecured claims. If a minor child is one of the
creditors holding the 20 largest unsecured claims, indi.at. that by .ta.ing "a min. . .hild" and do notA;•m~~~~~~o•,•.•~~__ -t, . . • • •O ; ;. . :IA,, is stated, also inelt.e the.. ame.................. nam......... .. . .. . .. . § 1.... ý . ... .. .... ... . . ......

(1) (2) (3) \(4) (5)

Name of creditor Name, telephone number and Nature of laim
and complete complete mailing address, (tade deb bank state the child's initials and the name and address of the
mailing address, including zip code, of loan, government W is parent or guardian such as"A B, a minor child by
including zip employee, agent, or department contract, et John, Doe, guardian.' Do not disclose the child's name.
code ofcreditorfamihar with See, 11 U. S.C. §112 and Fed. R. Bankr. P. 1067(m).

claim who may be contacted

Date

Debtor

[Declaration as in Form 2]

180





Official Form 6, Schedule D (12/08)

In re Case No.
Debtor (If known)

SCHEDULE D - CREDITORS HOLDING SECURED CLAIMS

State the name, mailing address, including zip code, and last four digits of any account number of all entities holding claims secured by
property of the debtor as of the date of filing of the petition. The complete account number of any account the debtor has with the creditor is useful
to the trustee and the creditor and may be provided if the debtor chooses to do so. List creditors holding all types of secured interests such as
judgment liens, garnishments, statutory liens, mortgages, deeds of trust, and other security interests.

List creditors in alphabetical order to the extent practicable. Ifa minor childi a creditr, indicate that by stating "a minor child" -d dc

ehild of a pcfsen deesribed in Fcd. R. B .nkr. P. 1007(•m). If all secured creditors will not fit on this page, use the continuation sheet provided.
If any entity other than a spouse in a joint case may be jointly liable on a claim, place an "X" in the column labeled "Codebtor," include the

entity on the appropriate schedule of creditors, and complete Schedule - Codebtors. If ajoint petition is filed, state whether the husband, wife,
both of them, or the marital community may be liable on each claim by placing an "H," "W," "J," or "C" in the column labeled "Husband, Wife,
Joint, or Community."

If the claim is contingent, place an "X" in the column labele "Contingent." If the claim is unliquidated, place an "X" in the column
labeled "Unliquidated." If the claim is disputed, place an "X" in the c lumn labeled "Disputed." (You may need to place an "X" in more than one of
these three columns.)

Total the columns labeled "Amount of Claim Without Dedu ting Value of Collateral" and "Unsecured Portion, if Any" in the boxes
labeled "Total(s)" on the last sheet of the completed schedule. Report the total from the column labeled "Amount of Claim Without Deducting Value
of Collateral" also on the Summary of Schedules and, if the debtor is 'individual with primarily consumer debts, report the total from the column
labeled "Unsecured Portion, if Any" on the Statistical Summary of C am Liabilities and Related Data.

EL Check this box if debtor has no creditors holding ecured claims to report on this Schedule D.

CREDITOR'S NAME AND DATE CLA M WAS , AMOUNT OF CLAIM UNSECURED
MAILING ADDRESS INCU ED, 2 I • WITHOUT PORTION, IF

INCLUDING ZIP CODE AND 4 Z NATURE 0 LIEN, [., DEDUCTING VALUE ANY
AN ACCOUNT NUMBER = = AN Z OF COLLATERAL

(See Instructions Above.) DESCRI TION
SANDVA UE OF 0 '

PROP RTY
SUBJECT 0 LIEN

ACCOUNT NO.

If a minor child is the creditor, state'the child's, initals and the
niamne and address of the child's p or guardianich a&"A.s B.,
a mino'r'childc : by John Deguria not disclose th• 6 • hild!'
name. See, 1j.S,1 12n,•[ d e R. Bankr. P. 1007(m),.

VA-LUES

ACCOUNT NO. VLE

VALUE $
ACCOUNT NO.

VALUE $
continuation sheets Subtotal • $$
attached (Total of this page)

Total • $ $
(Use only on last page)

(Report also on Summary of (If applicable, report
Schedules ) also on Statistical

Summary of Certain
Liabilities and Related
Data)

181





Official Form 6E (12/08)

In re _ Case No.
Debtor (if known)

SCHEDULE E - CREDITORS HOLDING UNSECURED PRIORITY CLAIMS

A complete list of claims entitled to priority, listed separately by type of priority, is to be set forth on the sheets provided. Only holders of
unsecured claims entitled to priority should be listed in this schedule. In the boxes provided on the attached sheets, state the name, mailing address,
including zip code, and last four digits of the account number, if any, of all entities holding priority claims against the debtor or the property of the
debtor, as of the date of the filing of the petition. Use a separate continuation sheet for each type of priority and label each with the type of priority.

The complete account number of any account the debtor has with the creditor is useful to the trustee and the creditor and may be provided if the
debtor chooses to do so. If a minor child is a creditor, d itta .. g "a minor .hild" and do not disl. the .hild'. name. See 1. U.S.C.. .m1. i a m i o h l " isntt d lor c i l ud t h e namcedi o , . . . . . . ., . . . . . . . ;. . . .- - t o : . , t h e Ari . --- - p eronl- . d e s e tieA , i ni" . . •

Fed. R. Bar.kr. P. 1007(m).

If any entity other than a spouse in a joint case may be joint liable on a claim, place an "X" in the column labeled "Codebtor," include the
entity on the appropriate schedule of creditors, and complete Sch dule H-Codebtors. If a joint petition is filed, state whether the husband, wife,

le 
e 

•ni

both of them, or the marital community may be liable on each clai by placing an "H," "W," "J," or "C" in the column labeled "Husband, Wife,
Joint, or Community." If the claim is contingent, place an "X" the column Ia d' ssstate the child's initials and the name-and address of thethe column labeled "Unliquidated." If the claim is disputed, place an "X" in the col sthanone f thse tree olums.)child's' parent or guarihan, such as '•A.'B.,`a minor child', by-than one of these three columns.) d guardian." Do not disclose the child's name. See,

Report the total of claims listed on each sheet in the box labeled "Su otals" on 1i U;S,C. §112 and Fed.R R; Bankr:'P. 1007(m).
E in the box labeled "Total" on the last sheet of the completed schedule.I

Report the total of amounts entitled to priority listed on each sheet in the box Ia
entitled to priority listed on this Schedule E in the box labeled "Totals" on the lasts s
primarily consumer debts who file a case under chapter 7 or 13 report this total also
Data. L_____________________________

Report the total of amounts not entitled to priority listed on each sheet in the box labeled "Subtotals" on each sheet. Report the total of all
amounts not entitled to priority listed on this Schedule E in the box labeled "Totals" on the last sheet of the completed schedule. Individual debtors
with primarily consumer debts who file a ease "mderr chapter 7 report this total also on the Statistical Summary of Certain Liabilities and Related
Data.

Check this box if debtor has no creditors h ]ding unse this Schedule E.

TYPES OF PRIORITY CLAIMS (Check thea ropnate ar category are listed on the attached sheets)

D Domestic Support Obligations

Claims for domestic support that are owed to or recoverable by a spouse, former spouse, or child of the debtor, or the parent, legal guardian, or
responsible relative of such a child, or a governmental unit to whom such a domestic support claim has been assigned to the extent provided in
II U.S.C. § 507(a)(1).

F1 Extensions of credit in an involuntary case

Claims arising in the ordinary course of the debtor's business or financial affairs after the commencement of the case but before the earlier of the
appointment of a trustee or the order for relief. 11 U.S.C. § 507(a)(3).

[] Wages, salaries, and commissions

Wages, salaries, and commissions, including vacation, severance, and sick leave pay owing to employees and commissions owing to qualifying
independent sales representatives up to $10,000* per person earned within 180 days immediately preceding the filing of the original petition, or the
cessation of business, whichever occurred first, to the extent provided in I I U.S.C. § 507(a)(4).
LI Contributions to employee benefit plans

Money owed to employee benefit plans for services rendered within 180 days immediately preceding the filing of the original petition, or the
cessation of business, whichever occurred first, to the extent provided in II U.S.C. § 507(a)(5).

182





Official Form 6F (12/08)

In re , Case No.
Debtor (if known)

SCHEDULE F - CREDITORS HOLDING UNSECURED NONPRIORITY CLAIMS

State the name, mailing address, including zip code, and last four digits ofany account number, of all entities holding unsecured claims without priority against
the debtor or the property of the debtor, as of the date of filing of the petition. The complete account number of any account the debtor has with the creditor is
useful to the trustee and the creditor and may be provided if the debtor chooses to do so. If a minor child is a creditor, indicate that by stating "a miner child"
and do not diselose the ehild's name. See 11 U.S.C. § 112. lf"a miner ehild" is s~tatd, also inelude the namce, address, and legal relationship to the mninor ehild
of a pefren dese•ibed in Fed. R. Banr• . P. 1007(m). Do not include claims listed in Schedules D and E. If all creditors will not fit on this page, use the
continuation sheet provided

If any entity other th a spouse in ajoint case may be jointly liable on a claim, place an "X" in the column labeled "Codebtor," include the entity on the
appropriate schedule of c ditors, and complete Schedule H - Codebtors. If ajoint petition is filed, state whether the husband, wife, both of them, or the marital
community may be liabl on each claim by placing an "H," "W," "J," or "C" in the column labeled "Husband, Wife, Joint, or Community."

If the claim is con gent, place an "X" in the column labeled "Contingent." If the claim is unliquidated, place an "X" in the column labeled "Unliquidated."
If the claim is disput place an "X" in the column labeled "Disputed." (You may need to place an "X" in more than one of these three columns.)

Report the tot of all claims listed on this schedule in the box labeled "Total" on the last sheet of the completed schedule. Report this total also on the
Summary of Sch ules and, if the debtor is an individual with primarily consumer debts filing a case under chapter 7, report this total also on the Statistical
Summary of Ce am Liabilities and Related Data..

l this box if debtor has no creditors holdin unsecured claims to report on this Schedul F.

DAECAMW Sre'move reference

C state-the child's initials and the o D . -• 0 ,. OF

I LInamreandaddress of the child's- INCURRED AND
NLLIparent orguardian such'as A. - CONSIDERATION FOR • "

AD AD B., a minor Jhild, by John Doe, CLAIM.
(See guardian:' Do not disdose the"' 0 IF CLAIM IS SUBJECT TO C Y'

IcChild's rifnen. See 11 . C. SETOFF, SO STATE. 0 .
§112 and F•d. R Bankr P. +10071

ACCOUNT I~ );~

ACCOUNT NO

ACCOUNT NO

ACCOUNT NO

Subtotal), $

-continuation sheets attached Total) $
(Use only on last page of the completed Schedule F )

(Report also on Summary of Schedules and, if applicable, on the Statistical
Summary of Certain Liabilities and Related Data)

183





Official Form 6G (12/08)

In re , Case No._ __ __ __
Debtor (if known)

SCHEDULE G - EXECUTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES

Describe all executory contracts of any nature and all unexpired leases of real or personal property. Include any timesha/
interests. State nature of debtor's interest in contract, i.e., "Purchaser," "Agent," etc. State whether debtor is the lessor or
lessee of a lease. Provide the names and complete mailing addresses of all other parties to each lease or contract described. If
a minor child is a party to one of the leases or contracts, indicate that by stating "a minor child" and do n•ot disclose the child's
nafc. Scee ! U.S.C. § 112. if,"a m .in .r ,hild" is stated, alo, incluc the name, addrsa , and legal relationship to the min• r
ehild of a person describcd in Fed. R. Baftlr. P. 1007(n).

El Check this box if debtor has no executory contracts or unexpirleases.

NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS, ESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT OR LEASE AND
INCLUDINGTURE OF DEBTOR'S INTEREST. STATE

OF OTHER PARTIES TO LEASE OR CONTRACT. ETHER LEASE IS FOR NONRESIDENTIAL
OF~~~~~~~~ 

ITEEATE 
OLES RCNRC.AL 

PROPERTY. STATE CONTRACT
N BR OF ANY GOVERNMENT CONTRACT.

state the child's initials and the name and
address of the child's parent or guardian,
such fs 'A.B., a minor child, by Johr D e; e,
guardi•n.' Do not disclose the child'sia name.
See, 11.U.S.C. §112 and Fed. R. BankrP R
1007(m).1

184





Official Form 6H (12/08)

In re Case No.
Debtor (if known)

SCHEDULE H - CODEBTORS

Provide the information requested concerning any person or entity, other than a spouse in a joint case, that is also liable on any debts listed by the
debtor in the schedules of creditors. Include all guarantors and co-signers. If the debtor resides or resided in a community property state,
commonwealth, or territory (including Alaska, Arizona, California, Idaho, Louisiana, Nevada, New Mexico, Puerto Rico, Texas, Washington, or
Wisconsin) within the eight-year period immediately preceding the commencement of the case, identify the name of the debtor's spouse and of any
former spouse who resides or resided with the debtor in the community property state, commonwealth, or territory. Include all names used by the
nondebtor spouse during the eight years immediately preceding the commencement of this case. If a minor child is a codebtor or a creditor, indieate
that by stating "a .ni..r. .hild" and do not disel.. the .hild's name. See 11 U.S.C. § 112. if."a .ine. .hild" is stated, also in.lud. thc namc, address,
and legal relationship to the fniner child of a person dcgcribcd in Fed. R. Bankr. P. 1007(m).,

El Check this box if debtor has no codebtors.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CODEBTOR iAME AND ADDRESS OF CREDITOR

state thechil'sinitials and the name and
addressof the child' S parentor guardian, s`6chb
as'"A a minorcild, byJohn Doeguardiany,
Do not disclose the child's name. See, 11 U.S.

C §112 and Fed. R. nkrP. 1007(m),

185





Official Form 61 (12/08)

In re Case No.

Debtor (if known)

SCHEDULE I - CURRENT INCOME OF INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR(S)

The column labeled "Spouse" must be completed in all cases filed by joint debtors and by every married debtor, whether or not ajoint petition is
filed, unless the spouses are separated and a joint petition is not filed. Do not state the name of any minor child.

Debtor's Marital DEPENDENTS OF DEBTOR AND SPOUSE
Status:

RELATIONSHIP(S): AGE(S):

Employment: DEBTOR SPOUSE
Occupation
Name of Employer
How long employed
Address of Employer

INCOME: (Estimate of average or projected monthly income at time DEBTOR SPOUSE
case filed)

$__ __ _ $_ _ _

I. Monthly gross wages, salary, and commissions
(Prorate if not paid monthly) $ $

2. Estimate monthly overtime

3. SUBTOTAL $ $

4. LESS PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS
a. Payroll taxes and social security $ $
b. Insurance $ $
c. Union dues $ $
d. Other (Specify): $ $

5. SUBTOTAL OF PAYROLL. DEDUCTIONS $_ _

6 TOTAL NET MONTHLY TAKE HOME PAY $ $

7 Regular income from operation of business or profession or farm $_$
(Attach detailed statement)

8. Income from real property $ $
9. Interest and dividends $_$
10. Alimony, maintenance or support payments payable to the debtor for

the debtor's use or that of dependents listed above
11. Social security or government assistance

(Specify): $ $
12. Pension or retirement income
13. Other monthly income

(Specify):_$_$

14. SUBTOTAL OF LINES 7 THROUGH 13 I _ _ $

15 AVERAGE MONTHLY INCOME (Add amounts shown on lines 6 and 14) ___

16. COMBINED AVERAGE MONTHLY INCOME: (Combine column totals

from line 15, .f : is only one tbta• r.epeal.total tecl,.- c. .h, 15) (Report also on Sum m ary of Schedules and, if applicable,

"7 on Statistical Summary of Certain Liabilities and Related Data)

17. Describe any increase or decrease in income raso ly anticipated to occur within the year following the filing of this document:

parenthetical should state only:
"Combine column totals from line 15"

186





Official Form 6 - Declaration (12/08)

In re Case No.

Debtor (if known)

DECLARATION CONCERNING DEBTOR'S SCHEDULES

DECLARATION UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY BY INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR

I declare under penalty of perjury that I have read the foregoing summary and schedules, consisting of __ sheets (tota! .sheii'it en st,,ay page phis 2), and that

they are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief

Date Signature _ [Delete parenthetical

Debtor

Date _______ ___________Signature_____________________
(Joint Debtor, ifany)

[lfjoint case, both spouses must sign.]

.......................................................................................................................................

DECLARATION AND SIGNATURE OF NON-ATTORNEY BANKRUPTCY PETITION PREPARER (See II U.S.C. § 110)

I declare under penalty of perjury that (1) 1 am a bankruptcy petition preparer as defined in 11 USC § 110. (2) 1 prepared this document for compensation and have provided
the debtor with a copy of this document and the notices and inforiiation required under I I U S C §§ 110(b), 110(h) and 342(b), and, (3) if rules or guidelines have been

promulgated pursuant to I I U S C. § 110(h) setting a maximum fee for services chargeable by bankruptcy petition preparers, I have given the debtor notice of the maximum
amount before preparing any document for filing for a debtor or accepting any fee from the debtor, as required by that section

Pnnled or Typed Name and Title, if any, Social Security No
of Bankruptcy Petition Preparer (Required by I I / S C. § 110.)

If the bankruptcy petition preparer is not an individual, state the name, title (if any), addreis, and social security number of the officer, principal, responsible person, orpartner
who signv thits document

Address

X
Signature of Bankruptcy Petition Preparer Date

Names and Social Security numbers of all other individuals who prepared or assisted in preparing this document, unless the bankruptcy petition preparer is not an individual

If more than one person prepared this document, attach additional signed vheets conforming to the appropriate Official Formfor each person

A bankrupicy petition preparer'vfailure to comply with the prorrsions of ttle I / and the Federal Rules of bankruptcy Procedure may result infines or imprisonment or both I I US 10.
18 US(C § 156

DECLARATION UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY ON BEHALF OF A CORPORATION OR PARTNERSHIP

1, the [the president or other officer or an authorized agent of the corporation or a member or an authorized agent of the

partnership ] of the [corporation or partnership] named as debtor in this case, declare under penalty of perjury that I have
read the foregoing summary and schedules, consisting of _ sheets (Total shown on summary page plus 1), and that they are true and correct to the best of my
knowledge, information, and belief

Date

Signature

[Print or type name of individual signing on behalf of debtor ]

[An individual signing on behalf of a partnership or corporation must indicate position or relattonshtp to debtor]

Penalty for making afalse statement or concealing property Fine of up to $500,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years or both 18 U S C §§ 152 and 3571

187





Official Form 7 (12/08)

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT

DISTRICT OF

In re:__ Case No.
Debtor (ifknown)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

This statement is to be completed by every debtor. Spouses filing ajoint petition may file a single statement on which
the information for both spouses is combined. If the case is filed under chapter 12 or chapter 13, a married debtor must furnish
information for both spouses whether or not a joint petition is filed, unless the spouses are separated and a joint petition is not
filed. An individual debtor engaged in business as a sole proprietor, partner, family farmer, or self-employed professional,
should provide the information requested on this statement concerning all such activities as well as the individual's personal
affairs. Do not include the name or address of a minor child in this statement. indieat. payf.nt., twmraacr and the like .. mino,
ehildrest-by-statin~g "a minor- ehild." See 11 U.S.C. § 112. if "a minor child" is stated, inelude the namec, address, and-legal

FAh ATo indicate payments, transfers and the like to minor

Questions I - 18 are to be completed by all debtors. Debto that ar children, state the child's initials and the name and
must complete Questions 19 - 25. If the answer to an applicable qu stion' address of the child's parent or guardian, such as "A..,
additional space is needed for the answer to any question, use and att ch a sea child by John Doe, guardiani Do not disclose
case number (if known), and the number of the question. the child's name. See, 11 U.S.C. §112 and Fed. R.'

Bankr. P. 1007(m).

DEFINITIONS

"In business." A debtor is "in business" for the purpose of this forn
individual debtor is "in business" for the purpose of this form if the debtor is ___
the filing of this bankruptcy case, any of the following: an officer, director, managing executive, or owner of 5 percent or more
of the voting or equity securities of a corporation; a partner, other than a limited partner, of a partnership; a sole proprietor or
self-employed full-time or part-time. An individual debtor also may be "in business" for the purpose of this form if the debtor
engages in a trade, business, or other activity, other than as an employee, to supplement income from the debtor's primary
employment.

"Insider." The term "insider" includes but is not limited to: relatives of the debtor; general partners of the debtor and
their relatives; corporations of which the debtor is an officer, director, or person in control; officers, directors, and any owner of
5 percent or more of the voting or equity securities of a corporate debtor and their relatives; affiliates of the debtor and insiders
of such affiliates; any managing agent of the debtor. II U.S.C. § 101.

1. Income from employment or operation of business

None State the gross amount of income the debtor has received from employment, trade, or profession, or from operation of
El the debtor's business, including part-time activities either as an employee or in independent trade or business, from the

beginning of this calendar year to the date this case was commenced. State also the gross amounts received during the
two years immediately preceding this calendar year. (A debtor that maintains, or has maintained, financial records on
the basis of a fiscal rather than a calendar year may report fiscal year income. Identify the beginning and ending dates
of the debtor's fiscal year.) If ajoint petition is filed, state income for each spouse separately. (Married debtors filing
under chapter 12 or chapter 13 must state income of both spouses whether or not a joint petition is filed, unless the
spouses are separated and a joint petition is not filed.)

AMOUNT SOURCE

188





Form 8 (12/09)

United States Bankruptcy Court
District Of

In re
Debtor Case No.

Chapter 7

CHAPTER 7 INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR'S STATEMENT OF INTENTION

PART A - Debts secured by property of the estate (attach additional pages if necessary)

o1 I have filed a schedule of assets and liabilities which includes debts secured by property of the estate.
o I intend to do the following with respect to the property of the estate which secures those debts:

Description of Property will be If Property is to be If Property is to be Retained, indicate all

Property which (indicate one): Retained, indicate one: applicable actions:

Secures Debt: Surrendered __ Property will be __ Property will be Redeeemed

Retained claimed as Exempt _ Debt will be Reaffirmed

_- Property will not be __ Lien will be Avoided pursuant to § 522(0

Creditor's Name: claimed as Exempt - Property is not subject to § 521(a)(6)
because

Description of Property will be If Property is to be If Property is to be Retained, indicate all

Property which (indicate one): Retained, indicate applicable actions:
Secures Debt: Surrendered one: __ Property will be Redeeemed

Retained __ Property will be __ Debt will be Reaffirmed

claimed as Exempt __ Lien will be Avoided pursuant to § 522(0

Creditor's Name: __ Property will not be __ Property is not subject to § 521(a)(6)
claimed as Exempt because

Description of Property will be If Property is to be If Property is to be Retained, indicate all
Property which (indicate one): Retained, indicate applicable actions:

Secures Debt: Surrendered one: __ Property will be Redeeemed

Retained - Property will be __ Debt will be Reaffirmed

claimed as Exempt __ Lien will be Avoided pursuant to § 522(0

Creditor's Name: __ Property will not be __ Property is not subject to § 521(a)(6)
claimed as Exempt because

All four columns of Part A (including both parts of column one) must be completed for each debt which is secured by
property of the estate. Complete the four columns separately for each debt. If more boxes are needed to describe all debts

secured by property of the estate, complete and number additional copies of Page 1 of Form 8 as needed.

In the second column, by checking "Surrendered," the debtor indicates that the debtor intends to relinquish possession and

control of the property. By checking "Retained," the debtor indicates that the debtor intends to retain possession and control of
the property.

In the fourth column, if the debtor intends to retain the property, the debtor must state what actions the debtor intends to take
with respect to the property and the debt. This may require checking more than one line. For example:

- The debtor may intend to exempt the property pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 522 and avoid the lien or security interest under
11 U.S.C. § 522(1).
- The debtor may intend to redeem the property under 11 U.S.C. § 722 by paying the holder of the lien or security
interest the amount of the allowed secured claim in full at the time of redemption.
* The debtor may intend to enter into an agreement with the creditor under 11 U.S.C. § 524(c) to reaffirm the debt.
* The debtor may assert that personal property is not subject to the deadline in 11 U.S.C. § 521(a)(6) for reaffirmation or
redemption. If so, the debtor must explain the basis of the assertion. Section 521(a)(6) provides that the debtor may not 1 89

retain possession of personal property which secures an allowed claim for the purchase of the property unless the debt is
reaffirmed or the property is redeemed within 45 days after the meeting of creditors under 11 U.S.C. § 34 1(a).



Official Form 8 (12/09) - Cont.

PART B - Personal property subject to unexpired leases (attach additional pages if necessary)

E I have filed a schedule of executory contracts and unexpired leases which includes personal property subject to an

unexpired lease.

El I intend to do the following with respect to the personal property which is subject to an unexpired lease:

Description of Leased Property: Lessor's Name: Lease will be Assumed pursuant
to 11 U.S.C. § 365(p)(2):

YES NO

Description of Leased Property: Lessor's Name: Lease will be Assumed pursuant
to 11 U.S.C. § 365(p)(2):

YES NO

Description of Leased Property: Lessor's Name: Lease will be Assumed pursuant
to 11 U.S.C. § 365(p)(2):

YES NO

All three columns of Part B must be completed for each unexpired lease. Complete the three columns separately for

each debt. If more boxes are needed to describe all unexpired leases, complete and number additional copies of Page 2 of

Form 8 as needed

Date:
Signature of Debtor

.............................................................---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------.
DECLARATION OF NON-ATTORNEY BANKRUPTCY PETITION PREPARER (See 11 U.S.C. § 110)

I declare under penalty of perjury that: (1) I am a bankruptcy petition preparer as defined in 11 U.S.C. § 110; (2) 1 prepared this

document for compensation and have provided the debtor with a copy of this document and the notices and information required under
11 U.S.C. §§ 110(b), 110(h), and 342(b); and, (3) if rules or guidelines have been promulgated pursuant to 1I U.S.C. § 110(h) setting

a maximum fee for services chargeable by bankruptcy petition preparers, I have given the debtor notice of the maximum amount before

preparing any document for filing for a debtor or accepting any fee from the debtor, as required in that section.

Printed or Typed Name, and Title, if any, of Bankruptcy Petition Preparer Social Security No. (Required under 11 U.S.C. § 110.)

If the bankruptcy petition preparer is not an individual, state the name, title (if any), address, and social security number of the
officer, principal, responsible person or partner who signs this document.

Address

X
Signature of Bankruptcy Petition Preparer Date

Names and Social Security Numbers of all other individuals who prepared or assisted in preparing this document unless the bankruptcy
petition preparer is not an individual:

If more than one person prepared this document, attach additional signed sheets conforming to the appropriate Official Form for each
person.

A bankruptcy petition preparer'sfailure to comply with the provisions of title 11 and the Federal Rules Qf Bankruptcy Procedure may 1 90
result in fines or imprisonment or both. 11 U.S.C. § 110; 18 U.S.C § 156



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08)
In re According to the calculations required by this statement:

Debtor(s) [I1 The presumption arises.

Case Number: -_(Ifknown) _[J The presumption does not arise.
(Check the box as directed in Parts I, III, and VI of this statement.)

CHAPTER 7 STATEMENT OF CURRENT MONTHLY INCOME
AND MEANS-TEST CALCULATION

In addition to Schedules I and J, this statement must be completed by every individual Chapter 7 debtor, whether or not filing
jointly, whose debts are primarily consumer debts, Joint debtors may complete one statement only.

Part I. EXCLUSION FOR DISABLED VETERANS

If you are a disabled veteran described in the Veteran's Declaration in this Part I, (1) check the box at the beginning of the
Veteran's Declaration, (2) check the box for "The presumption does not arise" at the top of this statement, and (3) complete
the verification in Part VIII. Do not complete any of the remaining parts of this statement.

[I Veteran's Declaration. By checking this box, I declare under penalty of perjury that I am a disabled veteran (as de-
fined in 38 U.S.C. § 3741(1)) whose indebtedness occurred primarily during a period in which I was on active duty (as de-
fined in 10 U.S.C. § 101(d)(1)) or while I was performing a homeland defense activity (as defined in 32 U.S.C. §901(1)).

Part Il CALCULATION OF MONTHLY INCOME FOR § 707(b)(7) EXCLUSION

Marital/filing status. Check the box that applies and complete the balance of this part of this statement as directed.

a. El Unmarried. Complete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 3-11.
b. El Married, not filing jointly, with declaration of separate households. By checking this box, debtor declares under pen-

alty of perjury: "My spouse and I are legally separated under applicable non-bankruptcy law or my spouse and I are liv-

2 ing apart other than for the purpose of evading the requirements of § 707(b)(2)(A) of the Bankruptcy Code." Com-
plete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 3-11.

c. El Married, not filing jointly, without the declaration of separate households set out in Line 2.b above. Complete both
Column A ("Debtor's Income") and Column B (Spouse's Income) for Lines 3-11.

d. 0l Married, filing jointly. Complete both Column A ("Debtor's Income") and Column B ("Spouse's Income") for
Lines 3-11.

All figures must reflect average monthly income received from all sources, derived during the Column A Column B
six calendar months prior to filing the bankruptcy case, ending on the last day of the month Debtor's Spouse's
before the filing. If the amount of monthly income varied during the six months, you must Income Income
divide the six-month total by six, and enter the result on the appropriate line.

3 Gross wages, salary, tips, bonuses, overtime, commissions. $ $

Income from the operation of a business, profession or farm. Subtract Line b from Line
a and enter the difference in the appropriate column(s) of Line 4. Do not enter a number less
than zero. Do not include any part of the business expense ntered Line b as a de-
duction in Part V.

a. Gross receipts $ If more than oqe business, profession
b. Ordinary and necessary business expenses $ oc arm, enter aggregate numbers

and provide details on an attachment.
c. Business income Subtract Line b from Liný,

Rent and other real property income. Subtract Line b from Line a and enter the differen
in the appropriate column(s) of Line 5. Do not enter a number less than zero. Do not inclu
any part of the operating expenses entered on Line b as a deduction in Part V.

5 a. Gross receipts $

b. Ordinary and necessary operating expenses $

c. Rent and other real property income Subtract Line b from Line a $$

6 Interest, dividends and royalties. $

7 Pension and retirement income. $ $

Any amounts paid by another person or entity, on a regular basis, for the household
8 expenses of the debtor or the debtor's dependents, including child or spousal sup-

port. Do not include amounts paid by the debtor's spouse if Column B is completed. $ $

191





Official Form 22B (Chapter 11) (12/08)
In re

Debtor(s)

Case Number:
(If known)

CHAPTER 11 STATEMENT OF CURRENT MONTHLY INCOME
In addition to Schedules I and 3, this statement must be completed by every individual Chapter 11 debtor, whether or not filing
jointly. Joint debtors may complete one statement only.

Part I. CALCULATION OF CURRENT MONTHLY INCOME

Marital/filing status. Check the box that applies and complete the balance of this part of this statement as directed.

a. El Unmarried. Complete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 2-10.
b. I Married, not filing jointly. Complete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 2-10.

c. E] Married, filing jointly. Complete both Column A ("Debtor's Income") and Column B ("Spouse's Income") for
Lines 2-10.

All figures must reflect average monthly income received from all sources, derived during the Column A Column B
six calendar months prior to filing the bankruptcy case, ending on the last day of the month Debtor's Spouse's
before the filing. If the amount of monthly income varied during the six months, you must Income Income
divide the six-month total by six, and enter the result on the appropriate line.

2 Gross wages, salary, tips, bonuses, overtime, commissions. $

Net income from the operation of a business, profession, or farm. Subtract Line b If more than one '
from Line a and enter the difference in the appropriate column(s) of Line 3. Do not enter a business, profession or
number less than zero. . farm, enter ag'grieate

3 a. Gross receipts $ numbers and provide
____ __details on an

b. Ordinary and necessary business expenses $ attachment.

c. Business income Subtract Line b from Line a

Net rental and other real property income. Subtract Line b from Line a and enter the
difference in the appropriate column(s) of Line 4. Do not enter a number less than zero.

4 a. Gross receipts $

b. Ordinary and necessary operating expenses $

c. Rent and other real property income Subtract Line b from Line a $ $

5 Interest, dividends, and royalties. $

6 Pension and retirement income. $ $

Any amounts paid by another person or entity, on a regular basis, for the household
7 expenses of the debtor or the debtor's dependents, including child or spousal

support. Do not include contributions from the debtor's spouse if Column B is completed. $ $

Unemployment compensation. Enter the amount in the appropriate column(s) of Line 8.
However, if you contend that unemployment compensation received by you or your spouse
was a benefit under the Social Security Act, do not list the amount of such compensation in

8 Column A or B, but instead state the amount in the space below:

Unemployment compensation claimed to
be a benefit under the Social Security Act Debtor $ __ Spouse $ $$

Income from all other sources. If necessary, list additional sources on a separate page.
Do not include any benefits received under the Social Security Act or payments received as
a victim of a war crime, crime against humanity, or as a victim of international or domestic
terrorism. Specify source and amount.

a. $

b. $

Total and enter on Line 9 $

10 Subtotal of current monthly income. Add Lines 2 thru 9 in Column A, and, if Column
B is completed, add Lines 2 through 9 in Column B. Enter the total(s). $ $

Total current monthly income. If Column B has been completed, add Line 10, Column
11 A to Line 10, Column B, and enter the total. If Column B has not been completed, enter the

amount from Line 10, Column A. $
192





Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (12/08) According to the calculations required by this statement:

[]The applicable commitment period is 3 years.
In re [:]The applicable commitment period is 5 years.

Debtor(s) D Disposable income is determined under § 1325(b)(3).

Case Number: E] Disposable income is not determined under § 1325(b)(3).
(If known) (Check the boxes as directed in Lines 17 and 23 of this statement.)

CHAPTER 13 STATEMENT OF CURRENT MONTHLY INCOME
AND CALCULATION OF COMMITMENT PERIOD AND DISPOSABLE INCOME

In addition to Schedules I and _, this statement must be completed by every individual Chapter 13 debtor, whether or not filing
jointly. Joint debtors may complete one statement only.

Part I. REPORT OF INCOME

Marital/filing status. Check the box that applies and complete the balance of this part of this statement as directed.
1 a. El Unmarried. Complete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 2-10.

b. El Married. Complete both Column A ("Debtor's Income") and Column B ("Spouse's Income") for Lines 2-10.

All figures must reflect average monthly income received from all sources, derived during the Column A Column B
six calendar months prior to filing the bankruptcy case, ending on the last day of the month Debtor's Spouse's
before the filing. If the amount of monthly income varied during the six months, you must Income Income
divide the six-month total by six, and enter the result on the appropriate line.

2 Gross wages, salary, tips, bonuses, overtime, commissions. $

Income from the operation of a business, profession, or farm. Subtract Line b from
Line a and enter the difference in the appropriate column(s) of Line 3. Do not enter a number
less than zero. Do not include any part of the business expenses tred on Line bIf more tha-_one
a deduction in Part IV.Ieupens'srIlred lfneresthan oe3 b I Profession or

a. Gross receipts $ farm, enter aggfegate'
b. Ordinary and necessary business expenses $ numbers and provide

____ _______________________________ -details on an
C. Business income Subtract Line b from Line a attachment.

Rent and other real property income. Subtract Line b from Line a and enter the differe
in the appropriate column(s) of Line 4. Do not enter a number less than zero. Do not in-
clude any part of the operating expenses entered on Line b as a deduction in Part ______..__

4 a. Gross receipts $

b. Ordinary and necessary operating expenses $

c. Rent and other real property income Subtract Line b from Line a $

5 Interest, dividends, and royalties. $

6 Pension and retirement income. $

Any amounts paid by another person or entity, on a regular basis, for the household
7 expenses of the debtor or the debtor's dependents, including child or spousal sup-

port. Do not include amounts paid by the debtor's spouse. $

Unemployment compensation. Enter the amount in the appropriate column(s) of Line 8.
However, if you contend that unemployment compensation received by you or your spouse
was a benefit under the Social Security Act, do not list the amount of such compensation in

8 Column A or B, but instead state the amount in the space below:

Unemployment compensation claimed to
be a benefit under the Social Security ActI Debtor $ __ Spouse $ $

Income from all other sources. Specify source and amount. If necessary, list additional
sources on a separate page. Total and enter on Line 9. Do not include any benefits received
under the Social Security Act or payments received as a victim of a war crime, crime against

9 humanity, or as a victim of international or domestic terrorism.

Ia. Is
b. $ $ $

10 Subtotal. Add Lines 2 thru 9 in Column A, and, if Column B is completed, add Lines 2
through 9 in Column B. Enter the total(s). $ $
STotal. If Column B has been completed, add Line 10, Column A to Line 10, Column B, and l

11 enter the total. If Column B has not been completed, enter the amount from Line 10, Col-
umn A. 

$193





Official Form 24 (12/08) - Cont. Page 2

[The parties may include or attach the information specified in Rule 80016()(3) (C).]

Signed: [If there are more than two signatories, all must sign and provide the information
requested below. Attach additional signed sheets if needed.]

Attorney for Appellant (or Appellant, Attorney for Appella (or Appellant
if not represented by an attorney) if not represented by an attorney)

.4

Printed Name of Signer Printed N e of Signer

Address Addres•

Telephone No. Telenone No.

Date

Replace "Appellant" with "Appellee-,

194





Official Form 25A (12/08)

United States Bankruptcy Court
District of

In re Case No.
Debtor

Small Business Case under Chapter 11

[NAME OF PROPONENTI'S PLAN OF REORGANIZATION, DATED [INSERT DATE]

ARTICLE I
SUMMARY

This Plan of Reorganization (the "Plan") under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code (the
"Code") proposes to pay creditors of [insert the name of the debtor] (the "Debtor") from
[specify sources of payment, such as an infusion of capital, loan proceeds, sale of assets, cash
flow from operations, or future income].

This Plan provides for classes of secured claims; __ classes of unsecured
claims; and __ classes of equity security holders. Unsecured creditors holding allowed
claims will receive distributions, which the proponent of this Plan has valued at approximately

cents on the dollar. This Plan also provides for the payment of administrative and priority
claims [if payment is not in full on the effective date of this Plan with respect to any such claim
(to the extent permitted by the Code or the claimant's agreement), identify such claim and briefly
summarize the proposed treatment.]

All creditors and equity security holders should refer to Articles III through VI of this
Plan for information regarding the precise treatment of their claim. A disclosure statement that
provides more detailed information regarding this Plan and the rights of creditors and equity
security holders has been circulated with this Plan. Your rights may be affected. You should
read these papers carefully and discuss them with your attorney, if you have one. (If you do
not have an attorney, you may wish to consult one.)

ARTICLE II
CLASSIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS

2.01 Class 1. All allowed claims entitled to priority under § 507 of the Code
(except administrative expense claims under § 507(a)(2), ["gap"
period claims in an involuntary case under § 507(a)(3),] and
priority tax claims under § 507(a)(8)).

2.02 Class 2. The claim of , to the extent allowed
as a secured claim under § 506 of the Code.

195



Official Form 25A (12/08) - Cont. 2

[Add other classes of secured creditors, if any. Note: Section
S1129(a)(9)(D) of the Code provides that a secured tax claim which

would otherwise meet the description of a priority tax claim under
§ 507(a)(8) of the Code is to be paid in the same manner and over
the same period as prescribed in § 507(a)(8).]

2.03 Class 3. All unsecured claims allowed under § 502 of the Code.

[Add other classes of unsecured claims, if any.]

2.04 Class 4. Equity interests in the Debtor. [Ifthe Debtor is an individual-
"The i.t.est. of the in.dividual Debtor in pr.. pert of the estate."d

ARTICLE III Equity Interests ofthe Debtor. [If the-

TREATMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXP SE CLAI Debtor is an individdual, change this
U.S. TRUSTEES FEES, AND PRIORITY TA CLAIM heading to "Th6 interests of -the:

individual Debtor in property 9f theestate. ] :..]. ••'] ' "
3.01 Unclassified Claims. Under section §1 123(a)(1), administrati e .

["gap" period claims in an involuntary case allowed under § 502(f) of the Co,
claims are not in classes.

3.02 Administrative Expense Claims. Each holder of an administrative expense claim
allowed under § 503 of the Code [, and a "gap" claim in an involuntary case allowed under
§ 502(t) of the Code,] will be paid in full on the effective date of this Plan (as defined in Article
VII), in cash, or upon such other terms as may be agreed upon by the holder of the claim and the
Debtor.

3.03 Priority Tax Claims. Each holder of a priority tax claim will be paid [specify
terms of treatment consistent with § 1 129(a)(9)(C) of the Code].

3.04 United States Trustee Fees. All fees required to be paid by 28 U.S.C. §1930(a)(6)
(U.S. Trustee Fees) will accrue and be timely paid until the case is closed, dismissed, or

converted to another chapter of the Code. Any U.S. Trustee Fees owed on or before the effective
date of this Plan will be paid on the effective date.

ARTICLE IV
TREATMENT OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS UNDER THE PLAN

4.01 Claims and interests shall be treated as follows under this Plan:

196



Official Form 25A (12/08) - Cont. 3

Class Impairment Treatment

Class 1 - Priority [State whether [Insert treatment of priority claims in this Class,
Claims impaired or including the form, amount and timing of

unimpaired.] distribution, if any. For example: "Class I is
unimpaired by this Plan, and each holder of a
Class I Priority Claim will be paid in full, in
cash, upon the later of the effective date of this
Plan as defined in Article VII, or the date on
which such claim is allowed by a final non-
appealable order. Except: _."]

Class 2 - Secured [State whether [Insert treatment of secured claim in this Class,
Claim of [Insert impaired or including the form, amount and timing of
name of secured unimpaired.] distribution, if any.]
creditor.] [Add class[es] of secured claims if applicable]

Class 3 - General [State whether [Insert treatment of unsecured creditors in this
Unsecured impaired or Class, including the form, amount and timing of
Creditors unimpaired.] distribution, if any.]

[Add administrative conienience class if
applicable]

Class 4 - Equity [State whether [Insert treatment of equity security holders in
Security Holders impaired or this Class, including the form, amount and
of the Debtor unimpaired.] timing of distribution, if any.]

ARTICLE V
ALLOWANCE AND DISALLOWANCE OF CLAIMS

5.01 Disputed Claim. A disputed claim is a claim that has not been allowed or
disallowed [by a final non-appealable order], and as to which either: (i) a proof of claim has been
filed or deemed filed, and the Debtor or another party in interest has filed an objection; or (ii) no
proof of claim has been filed, and the Debtor has scheduled such claim as disputed, contingent,
or unliquidated.

5.02 Delay of Distribution on a Disputed Claim. No distribution will be made on
account of a disputed claim unless such claim is allowed [by a final non-appealable order].

5.03 Settlement of Disputed Claims. The Debtor will have the power and authority to
settle and compromise a disputed claim with court approval and compliance with Rule 9019 of
the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure.

197



Official Form 25A (12/08) - Cont. 4

ARTICLE VI
PROVISIONS FOR EXECUTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES

6.01 Assumed Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases.

(a) The Debtor assumes the following executory contracts and/or unexpired
leases effective upon the [Insert "effective date of this Plan as provided in Article VII," "the date
of the entry of the order confirming this Plan," or other applicable date]:

[List assumed executory contracts and/or unexpired leases.]

(b) The Debtor will be conclusively deemed to have rejected all executory
contracts and/or unexpired leases not expressly assumed under section 6.01 (a) above, or before
the date of the order confirming this Plan, upon the [Insert "effective date of this Plan," "the date
of the entry of the order confirming this Plan," or other applicable date]. A proof of a claim
arising from the rejection of an executory contract or unexpired lease under this section must be
filed no later than ( Q days after the date of the order confirming this Plan.

ARTICLE VII
GENERAL PROVISIONS

7.01 Definitions and Rules of Construction. The definitions and rules of construction
set forth in §§ 101 and 102 of the Code shall apply when terms defined or construed in the Code
are used in this Plan, and they are supplemented by the following definitions: [Insert additional
definitions if necessary].

7.02 Effective Date of Plan. The effective date of this Plan is the eleventh business day
following the date of the entry of the order of confirmation. But if a stay of the confirmation
order is in effect on that date, the effective date will be the first business day after that date on
which no stay of the confirmation order is in effect, provided that the confirmation order has not
been vacated.

7.03 Severability. If any provision in this Plan is determined to be unenforceable, the
determination will in no way limit or affect the enforceability and operative effect of any other
provision of this Plan.

7.04 Binding Effect. The rights and obligations of any entity named or referred to in
this Plan will be binding upon, and will inure to the benefit of the successors or assigns of such
entity.

198



Official Form 25A (12/08) - Cont. 5
7.05 Captions. The headings contained in this Plan are for convenience of reference

only and do not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Plan.

[7.06 Controlling Effect. Unless a rule of law or procedure is supplied by federal law
(including the Code or the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure), the laws of the State of

govern this Plan and any agreements, documents, and instruments executed in
connection with this Plan, except as otherwise provided in this Plan.]

[7.07 Corporate Governance. [If the Debtor is a corporation include provisions
required by § 1 123(a)(6) of the Code.]]

ARTICLE VIII
DISCHARGE

[If the Debtor is not entitled to discharge under 11 U.S.C. § 1141(d)(3) change this heading to
"NO DISCHARGE OF DEBTOR."]

8.01. [Option 1 - If Debtor is an individual and § 1141(d)(3) is not applicable]
Discharge. Confirmation of this Plan does not discharge any debt provided for in this

Plan until the court grants a discharge on completion of all payments under this Plan, or as
otherwise provided in § 1141(d)(5) of the Code. The Debtor will not be discharged from any
debt excepted from discharge under § 523 of the Code, except as provided in Rule 4007(c) of the
Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure.

[Option 2 -- If the Debtor is a partnership and section 1141(d)(3) of the Code
is not applicable]

Discharge. On the confirmation date of this Plan, the debtor will be discharged from any
debt that arose before confirmation of this Plan, subject to the occurrence of the effective date, to
the extent specified in § 1141(d)(1)(A) of the Code. The Debtor will not be discharged from any
debt imposed by this Plan.

[Option 3 -- If the Debtor is a corporation and § 1141(d)(3) is not applicable]
Discharge. On the confirmation date of this Plan, the debtor will be discharged from any

debt that arose before confirmation of this Plan, subject to the occurrence of the effective date, to
the extent specified in § 1141(d)(1)(A) of the Code, except that the Debtor will not be discharged
of any debt: (i) imposed by this Plan; (ii) of a kind specified in § 1141(d)(6)(A) if a timely
complaint was filed in accordance with Rule 4007(c) of the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy
Procedure; or (iii) of a kind specified in § 1141(d)(6)(B).

[Option 4- If§ 1141(d)(3) is applicable]

199



Official Form 25A (12/08) - Cont. 6
No Discharge. In accordance with § 1141(d)(3) of the Code, the Debtor will not receive

any discharge of debt in this bankruptcy case.

ARTICLE IX
OTHER PROVISIONS

[Insert other provisions, as applicable.]

Respectfully submitted,

By:
The Plan Proponent

By:
Attorney for the Plan Proponent

200



Form 25A, Instructions (12/08)

Instructions for Small Business Plan of Reorganization Form

BACKGROUND AND GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

I. This small business chapter 11 plan of reorganization form is promulgated
pursuant to § 433 of the Bankruptcy Abuse Prevention and Consumer
Protection Act of 2005. It may be used in cases where the debtor (whether an
individual or an artificial entity) is a small business debtor under § 101(51 D)
of the Code. This form is intended to be used in conjunction with the small
business chapter 11 disclosure statement form (Official Form 25B). Because
the type of debtor and the details of the proposed plan will vary from case to
case, this form is intended to provide an illustrative format, rather than a
specific prescription for the language or content of a plan in any particular
case.

2. Some language in this form appears in brackets. The bracketed language
sometimes instructs the plan's proponent to provide certain information and
sometimes provides optional or alternative language that should be used when
and where appropriate. Proponents should make the necessary insertions
and/or delete inapplicable language.

SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS

SUMMARY

3. The first article should provide a summary of the debtor's proposed plan. It
should describe the manner in which the plan will be consummated and the
source of funds for payments to be made under the plan. These sources might
include an infusion of capital, loan proceeds, sale of assets, cash flow from
operations, or future income. The summary should also describe the treatment
of the various classes of claimants under the plan.

CLASSIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS

4. The second article describes each class of claimants that will receive a
distribution under the plan. The first class consists of claimants entitled to
priority pursuant to § 507 of the Code other than those entitled to priority
under § 507(a)(2), (3), or (8). The next class or group of classes consists of
creditor(s) with allowed secured claims. Secured creditors are usually
classified individually, with each secured creditor being placed in its own
separate class. Classes of secured creditors should be added as necessary.
Next, unsecured claimants, not entitled to priority, should be classified. The
proponent may, to the extent allowed by law, create additional classes of
unsecured claims, including an administrative convenience class pursuant to §

201



Form 25A Inst. (12/08) - Cont. 2

1122(b) of the Code. The last class comprises the holders ef equity inter., t,
in--the-debte."

TREATMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE CLA , U.S. TRU of equity security holders of

FEES, AND PRIORITY TAX CLAIMS the debtor

5. The treatment of certain claims, such as administrative expense claim.,
allowed under § 503 of the Code, and priority tax claims, allowed under
§507(a)(8) of the Code, is statutorily specified. These claims are not,
therefore, placed into classes. Their treatment is described in the third Article.

TREATMENT OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS UNDER THE PLAN

6. The fourth article specifies the treatment accorded the various classes of
claims and interests provided for under the plan.

7. Priority claimants other than those allowed under §§ 503 and 507(a)(8) must
be classified and paid in full under the plan unless the claimant agrees
otherwise.

8. Each secured creditor is generally placed in its own class, with a particular
treatment specified for that class. Section 1 129(a)(9)(D) of the Code provides
that a secured tax claim which would otherwise meet the description of a
priority tax claim under § 507(a)(8) of the Code is to be paid in the same
manner and over the same period as prescribed in § 507(a)(8).

9. The plan should describe the treatment of the general unsecured claims. An
administrative convenience class may be created pursuant to § 1122(b) of the
Code, and other classes of unsecured claims may be created to the extent
permitted by applicable law. securities.

10. Finally, the plan should describe the treatment of equity .

ALLOWANCE AND DISALLOWANCE OF CLAIMS

11. The fifth article addresses the treatment of disputed claims. A "disputed
claim" is a claim that has not been allowed or disallowed. No distribution will
be made on account of a disputed claim unless such claim is allowed. The
debtor will have the power and authority to settle and compromise a disputed
claim with court approval and compliance with Rule 9019.

PROVISIONS FOR EXECUTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES

12. The sixth article deals with executory contracts and unexpired leases. The
plan proponent should list all executory contracts and unexpired leases that it
has already assumed, or which it intends to assume under the plan. All other
executory contracts will be deemed rejected.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

2 202



Form 25A Inst. (12/08)- Cont. 3

13. The seventh article provides certain general provisions. Definitions from the
Code are incorporated by reference, and any other definitions required by the
plan should be listed in section 7.01 of the plan. If a governing law clause is
desired, it should be included here, and if the debtor is a corporation,
provisions required by §1 123(a)(6) of the Code should be included.

DISCHARGE

14. The eighth article describes the effect of discharge under the plan. When and
whether the debtor is entitled to a discharge will depend, among other things,
upon whether the debtor is an individual, partnership, or corporation, and
whether the debtor is continuing in business after consummation of the plan.
The proponent should choose the appropriate language from the options
provided.

OTHER PROVISIONS

15. To the extent that other provisions, not provided in the plan, are desired, they
should be placed in the ninth article.

3 203



Form 25A

COMMITTEE NOTE

This form is new. It implements § 433 of the Bankruptcy Abuse
Prevention and Consumer Protection Act of 2005, Pub. L. No. 109-8, 119 Stat. 23
(April 20, 2005). This form for a small business chapter 11 plan of reorganization
may be used in cases where the debtor (whether an individual or an artificial
entity) is a small business debtor under § 101(51D) of the Code. The form is
intended to be used in conjunction with the small business chapter 11 disclosure
statement form (Official Form 25B).

Because the type of debtor and the details of the proposed plan of
reorganization may vary, the form is intended to provide an illustrative format,
rather than a specific prescription for the language or content of a plan in any
particular case. The form includes instructions and examples of the types of
information needed to complete it.

204



Form 27 (12/09)

United States Bankruptcy Court
District Of

In re

Debtor Case No.

Chapter

REAFFIRMATION AGREEMENT
COVER SHEET

This form must be completed in its entirety and filed within the time set under Rule 4008. It may
be filed by any party to the reaffirmation agreement. The filer also must attach a copy of the
reaffirmation agreement to this cover sheet.

Debtor's Name and Address

Creditor's Name and Address

Amount of Debt as of Commencement: of the Case

Amount of Debt being Reaffirmed:

Repayment Term of Reaffirmation: months.

Monthly Payment under Reaffirmation:

Annual Percentage Rate under Reaffirmation

Debtor's Monthly Income at Reaffirmation:

Debtor's Monthly Expenses at Reaffirmation:

Income From Schedule I, Line 16:

Current Expenditures from Schedule J, Line 18:

I [print name] hereby certify that the attached agreement is a true and

correct copy of the reaffirmation agreement between the parties identified on this Reaffirmation
Agreement Cover Sheet. The Debtor __ was __ was not [check one] represented by counsel in
negotiating the reaffirmation agreement.

Signature
205



COMMITTEE NOTE

This form requires the disclosure of financial information necessary for the court to make
its determination under § 524(m) of the Code as to whether the reaffirmation agreement creates a
presumption of undue hardship.

206



MEMORANDU M

DATE: March 4, 2007

FROM: James H4. Wannamaker

SUBJECT: Automatic Adjustment of Certain Dollar Amounts in the Bankruptcy Code and in
Official Forms 6-C, 6-E, 7, 10, 22A, and 22C Pursuant to § 104(b) of the Code

TO: Advisory Committee on Bankruptcy Rules

Section 104(b), which was added to the Bankruptcy Code by the Bankruptcy Reform Act

of 1994, provides for the automatic adjustment of certain dollar amounts in the Code every three

years according to a formula specified in the provision. The date on which the dollar amounts

were first adjusted was April 1, 1995, and another adjustment is scheduled to take effect April 1,

2007.

Several of the dollar amounts that are adjusted under § 104(b) appear in the Official

Bankruptcy Forms, Form 6C, the schedule of Property Claimed as Exempt, Form 6E, the

schedule of Creditors Holding Claims Entitled to Priority; Form 7, the Statement of Financial

Affairs; Form 10, the Proof of Claim; Form 22A, the Statement of Current Monthly Income and

Means Test Calculation; and Form 22C, the Statement of Current Monthly Income and

Calculation of Commitment Period and Disposable Income.

The dollar amount adjustments reflect the change in the Consumer Price Index for All

Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of Labor for the three-year period

ending December 31, 2006, and rounded to the nearest $25. Application of this formula to the

dollars amounts in the specified provisions of the Bankruptcy Code is purely ministerial.

Accordingly, the Judicial Conference in 1995 authorized the adjustments to be made and

published in the Federal Register every three years without fuirther action by the Conference.

Amendment of the official forms to conform to the automatic adjustments made to the Code also

is ministerial, and the Conference likewise authorized the amendments to be made every three

years without further action by the Conference.



Prior to the enactment of the Bankruptcy Abuse Prevention Act and Consumer Protection

Act of 2005 (BAPCPA), five sections of the Bankruptcy Code and two official bankruptcy forms

were adjusted every three years. As amended by BAPCPA, section 104(b) provides for the

adjustment of the dollar amounts in 20 sections of the Code and one section of title 28. The six

official forms which incorporate those dollar amounts are adjusted at the same time.

A chart showing the adjustments to be made and excerpts of the five official forms as

they will appear on April 1, 2007, are attached.

Attachments



Fonn B6C
(10105)

In re Case No.
Debtor (If known)

SCHEDULE C - PROPERTY CLAIMED AS EXEMPT

Debtor claims the exemptions to which debtor is entitled under: LI Check if debtor claims a homestead exemption that exceeds
(Check one box)

1I t1 U.S.C. § 522(b)(2) $
LI 11 U.S.C. § 522(b)(3) $136,875

CURRENT
SPECIFY LAW VALUE OF VALUE OF PROPERTY

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY PROVIDING EACH CLAIMED WITHOUT DEDUCTING
EXEMPTION EXEMPTION EXEMPTION





Official Form 6E (10/06)

In re 
Case No.

Debtor (if known)

SCHEDULE E - CREDITORS HOLDING UNSECURED PRIORITY CLAIMS

A complete list of claims entitled to priority, listed separately by type of priority, is to be set forth on the sheets provided. Only holders ofunsecured claims entitled to priority should be listed in this schedule. In the boxes provided on the attached sheets, state the name, mailing address,including zip code, and last four digits of the account number, if any, of all entities holding priority claims against the debtor or the property of thedebtor, as of the date of the filing of the petition. Use a separate continuation sheet for each type of priority and label each with the type of priority.

The complete account number of any account the debtor has with the creditor is useful to the trustee and the creditor and may be provided if thedebtor chooses to do so. If a minor child is a creditor, indicate that by stating "a minor child" and do not disclose the child's name. See 11 U.S.C. §112. If"a minor child" is stated, also include the name, address, and legal relationship to the minor child of a person described in
Fed. R. Bankr. P. 1007(m).

If any entity other than a spouse in a joint case may be jointly liable on a claim, place an "X" in the column labeled "Codebtor," include theentity on the appropriate schedule of creditors, and complete Schedule H-Codebtors. Ifa joint petition is filed, state whether the husband, wife, bothof them, or the marital community may be liable on each claim by placing an "H," "W," "J," or "C" in the column labeled "Husband, Wife, Joint, orCommunity." If the claim is contingent, place an "X" in the column labeled "Contingent." If the claim is unliquidated, place an "X" in the columnlabeled "Unliquidated." If the claim is disputed, place an "X" in the column labeled "Disputed." (You may need to place an "X" in more than one of
these three columns.)

Report the total of claims listed on each sheet in the box labeled "Subtotals" on each sheet. Report the total of all claims listed on this ScheduleE in the box labeled "Total" on the last sheet of the completed schedule. Report this total also on the Summary of Schedules.

Report the total of amounts entitled to priority listed on each sheet in the box labeled "Subtotals" on each sheet. Report the total of all amountsentitled to priority listed on this Schedule E in the box labeled "Totals" on the last sheet of the completed schedule. Individual debtors withprimarily consumer debts who file a case under chapter 7 or 13 report this total also on the Statistical Summary of Certain Liabilities and Related
Data.

Report the total of amounts not entitled to priority listed on each sheet in the box labeled "Subtotals" on each sheet. Report the total of allamounts not entitled to priority listed on this Schedule E in the box labeled "Totals" on the last sheet of the completed schedule. Individual debtorswith primarily consumer debts who file a case under chapter 7 report this total also on the Statistical Summary of Certain Liabilities and Related
Data.

[] Check this box if debtor has no creditors holding unsecured priority claims to report on this Schedule E.

TYPES OF PRIORITY CLAIMS (Check the appropriate box(es) below if claims in that category are listed on the attached sheets)

F1 Domestic Support Obligations

Claims for domestic support that are owed to or recoverable by a spouse, former spouse, or child of the debtor, or the parent, legal guardian, orresponsible relative of such a child, or a governmental unit to whom such a domestic support claim has been assigned to the extent provided in
II U.S.C. § 507(a)(1).

r5 Extensions of credit in an involuntary case

Claims arising in the ordinary course of the debtor's business or financial affairs after the commencement of the case but before the earlier of the
appointment of a trustee or the order for relief. 11 U.S.C. § 5 07(a)(3).

S Wages, salaries, and commissions

Wages, salaries, and commissions, including vaStionj ick leave pay owing to employees and commissions owing to qualifyingindependent sales representatives up to S.l.000"* r person earned within 180 days immediately preceding the filing of the original petition, or thecessation of business, whichever occurred first, to the extent provided in 11 U.S.C. § 507(a)(4).

El Contributions to employee benefit plans

Money owed to employee benefit plans for services rendered within 180 days immediately preceding the filing of the original petition, or the
cessation of business, whichever occurred first, to the extent provided in 11 U.S.C. § 507(a)(5).

209



Official Form 6E (10/06) - Cont.

In re 
Case No.

Debtor (if known)

[-'] Certain farmers and fishermen $5,400

Claims of certain farmers and fishermen, up to $, er farmer or fisherman, against the debtor, as provided in 11 U.S.C. § 507(a)(6).

EO Deposits by individuals

Claims of individuals up to S rrdeposits for the purchase, lease, or rental of property or services for personal, family, or household use,that were not delivered or provided. I I U.S.C. § 507(a)(7).

El Taxes and Certain Other Debts Owed to Governmental Units

Taxes, customs duties, and penalties owing to federal, state, and local governmental units as set forth in II U.S.C. § 507(a)(8).

El Commitments to Maintain the Capital of an Insured Depository Institution

Claims based on commitments to the FDIC, RTC, Director of the Office of Thrift Supervision, Comptroller of the Currency, or Board ofGovernors of the Federal Reserve System, or their predecessors or successors, to maintain the capital of an insured depository institution. II U.S.C.§ 507 (a)(9).

El Claims for Death or Personal Injury While Debtor Was Intoxicated

Claims for death or personal injury resulting from the operation of a motor vehicle or vessel while the debtor was intoxicated from using alcohol, adrug, or another substance. I I U.S.C. § 507(a)(l0).

Amounts are subject to adjustment on April 1, , and every three years thereafter with respect to cases commenced on or after the date of
adjustment.

__ continuation sheets attached

210



2
2. Income other than from employment or operation of business

None State the amount of income received by the debtor other than from employment, trade, profession, operation of theEl debtor's business during the two years immediately preceding the commencement of this case. Give particulars. If ajoint petition is filed, state income for each spouse separately. (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13must state income for each spouse whether or not a joint petition is filed, unless the spouses are separated and a joint
petition is not filed.)

AMOUNT 
SOURCE

3. Payments to creditors

Complete a. or b., as appropriate, and c.
NoneEl a. Individual or joint debtor(s) with primarily consumer debts: List all payments on loans, installment purchases ofgoods or services, and other debts to any creditor made within 90 days immediately preceding the commencement ofthis case if the aggregate value of all property that constitutes or is affected by such transfer is not less than $600.Indicate with an asterisk (*) any payments that were made to a creditor on account of a domestic support obligation oras part of an alternative repayment schedule under a plan by an approved nonprofit budgeting and creditor counselingagency. (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13 must include payments by either or both spouseswhether or not a joint petition is filed, unless the spouses are separated and a joint petition is not filed.)

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CREDITOR DATES OF AMOUNT AMOUNT
PAYMENTS PAID STILL OWING

None

LI b. Debtor whose debts are not primarily consumer debts: List each payment or other transfer to any creditor madewithin 90 days immediately preceding the commencement of the case if the aggregate value of all property thatconstitutes or is affected by such transfer is not less than . (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter13 must include payments and other transfers by either or bot p s whether or not a joint petition is filed, unless
the spouses are separated and a joint petition is not filed.)

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CREDITOR DATES OF

PAYMENTS! PA
TRANSFERS

TRT

None

LI c. All debtors: List all payments made within one year immediately preceding the commencement of this caseto or for the benefit of creditors who are or were insiders. (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13 mustinclude payments by either or both spouses whether or not a joint petition is filed, unless the spouses are separated and
a joint petition is not filed.)

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CREDITOR DATE OF AMOUNT AMOUNT
AND RELATIONSHIP TO DEBTOR PAYMENT PAID STILL OWING

4. Suits and administrative proceedings, executions, garnishments and attachments

211





FORM 10 Official Form 10 10/05

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT DISTRICT OF PROOF OF CLAIM

Name of Debtor Case Number

NOTE: This form should not be used to make a claim for an administrative expense arising after the commencement of the case.A "request" for payment of an administrative expense may be filed pursuant to II U.S.C. § 503.
Name of Creditor (The person or other entity to o Check box if you are aware that anyone else has filed a proof of claim
whom the debtor owes money or property): relating to your claim. Attach copy of statement giving particulars.

o Check box if you have never received any notices from the bankruptcyName and address where notices should be sent: court in this case.

o Check box if the address differs from the address on the envelope sent
:to you by the court. THIS SPACE IS FOR COURT USETelephone number: .ONLY

Last four digits of account or other number by Check here o replaceswhich creditor identifies debtor: if this claim o amends a previously filed claim, dated:

1. Basis for Claim u Retiree benefits as defined in II U.S. C. § 1114(a)" Goods sold o Wages, salaries, and compensation (fill out below)o Services performed Last four digits of your SS #:" Money loaned Unpaid compensation for services performed
" Personal injury/wrongful death
E Taxes 

from -toc Other (date) (date)

2. Date debt was incurred: 3. If court judgment, date obtained:

4. Classification of Claim. Check the appropriate box or boxes that best describe your claim and state the amount of the claim at the time the case was filed.
See reverse side for important explanations.

Secured Claim
Unsecured Nonpriority Claim $ SeudCli

u Check this box if your claim is secured by collateral (including a right of[] Check this box if: a) there is no collateral or lien securing your claim, or setoff)b) your claim exceeds the value of the property securing it, or c) none orI

only part of your claim is entitled to priority. Brief Descrption of Collateral.

Unsecured Priority Claim $1050i Real Estai o Motor Vehicle ti Other______

Value of Collateral: $
Check this box ifyou have an unsecured clai all or part of which is entitled to

priority. S aAmount of arrearage and other charges at time case filed included in secured
ti clclaim, if(any: $Amount entitled to priority $• $242

Specify the priority of the claim: o [ UpO o$-,25 *of deposits toward purchase, lease, or rental of property
or services for personal, family, or household use - I11 U.S.C. § 507(a)(7).

" o e t i u p o t o l i a i n s u dr. . . . . § 5 0 7 a ) 1(_o ( ) 1 ( ) o T a x e s o r p e n a l t i e s o w e d t o g o v e r n m e n t a l u n it s - I1 1 U .S .C . § 5 0 7 ( a ) ( )" Wages, salaies, or commissions (up to $-1O•, earned within 180 days before n u 5 s b UC 2 7
filing of the bankruptcy petition or cessation of the debtor's business, whichever c Other - Specify applicable paragraph of I I U.S.C. § 507(a)(2.is earlier - I I U S.C . § 507(a)(4).

• Amounts are subject to adjustment on-04Mý_and every 3 years thereafter"] Contributions to an employee benefit plan - I11 U.S.C. § 507(a)(5). with resp~ect to cases commenced on or after theM~a¢e of adjustment
5. Total Amount of Claim at Time Case Filed: $

(un_.secured) (secured) (pirt)(total) 411110u] Check this box if claim includes interest or other charges in addition to the principal amount of the claim. Attach itemized sttmnto l
interest or additional charges

6. Credits: The amount of all payments on this claim has been credited and deducted for the purpose of THIS SPACE IS FOR COURT USE ONLY
making this proof of claim.

7. Supporting Documents: Attach copies of supporting documents, such as promissory notes, purchase
orders, invoices, itemized statements of running accounts, contracts, court judgments, mortgages, security
agreements, and evidence of perfection of lien. DO NOT SEND ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS. If thedocuments are not available, explain. If the documents are voluminous, attach a summary.

8. Date-Stamped Copy: To receive an acknowledgment of the filing of your claim, enclose a stamped,
self-addressed envelope and copy of this proof of claim.

Date Sign and print the name and title, if any, of the creditor or other person authorized to file
this claim (attach copy of power of attoruey, if any):

Penalty for presenting fraudulent claim: Fine of up to $500,000 or imprl~isonment fruto5 years, or both. 18 U.S.C. §§ 152 and 3571.

212





Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (10/06) - Cont. 4
Other Necessary Expenses: life insurance. Enter average monthly premiums that you actually27 pay for term life insurance for yourself. Do not include premiums for insurance on your dependents,
for whole life or for any other form of insurance. $
Other Necessary Expenses: court-ordered payments. Enter the total monthly amount that you28 are required to pay pursuant to court order, such as spousal or child support payments. Do not includepayments on past due support obligations included in Line 44. $
Other Necessary Expenses: education for employment or for a physically or mentally

29 challenged child. Enter the total monthly amount that you actually expend for education that is a con-dition of employment and for education that is required for a physically or mentally challenged dependentchild for whom no public education providing similar services is available. $
Other Necessary Expenses: childcare. Enter the average monthly amount that you actually expend30 on childcare-such as baby-sitting, day care, nursery and preschool. Do not include other educationalpayments. 

$
Other Necessary Expenses: health care. Enter the average monthly amount that you actually31 expend on health care expenses that are not reimbursed by insurance or paid by a health savings account.Do not include payments for health insurance or health savings accounts listed in Line 34. $
Other Necessary Expenses: telecommunication services. Enter the average monthly amountthat you actually pay for telecommunication services other than your basic home telephone service-such32 as cell phones, pagers, call waiting, caller id, special long distance, or internet service-to the extent neces-sary for your health and welfare or that of your dependents. Do not include any amount previously de-ducted. 

$
,,,33 Total Expenses Allowed under IRS Standards. Enter the total of Lines 19 through 32. $

Health Insurance, Disability Insurance, and Health Savings Account Expenses. List andtotal the average monthly amounts that you actually pay for yourself, your spouse, or your dependents in
the following categories.

a. Health Insurance $34
b. Disability Insurance $

c. Health Savings Account $
Total: Add Lines a, b and c $

Continued contributions to the care of household or family members. Enter the actual35 monthly expenses that you will continue to pay for the reasonable and necessary care and support of anelderly, chronically ill, or disabled member of your household or member of your immediate family who is
unable to pay for such expenses. $

•: Protection against family violence. Enter any average monthly expenses that you actually incurred
36 to maintain the safety of your family under the Family Violence Prevention and Services Act or other appli-• cable federal law. The nature of these expenses is required to be kept confidential by the court. $

.••,Home energy Costs. Enter the average monthly amount, in excess of thee aallowancee specified by IRS $1l.5
,3•7 Local Standards for Housing and Utilities, that you actually expend for home energy costs. You muvide your case trustee with documentation demonstrating that thee additional aa med

... reasonable and necessary. 
lo c$ e b R

38 tion for your dependent children less than 18 years of age. You must provide your case trustee with
• documentation demonstrating that the amount claimed is reasonable and necessary and not al-
",• ready accounted for in the IRS Standards.

EAdditional food and clothing expense. Enter the average monthly amount by which your food and
clothing expenses exceed the combined allowances for food and apparel in the IRS National Standards, not

39 to exceed five percent of those combined allowances. (This information is available at www.usdoi.o~ov/ust/or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.) You must provide your case trustee with documentation
d m, demonstrating that the additional amount claimed is reasonable and necessary. $

iContinued charitable contributions. Enter the amount that you will continue to contribute in the
form of cash or financial instruments to a charitable organization as defined in 26 U.S.C. § 170(c)(1)-(2). $

,41 Total Additional Expense Deductions under § 707(b). Enter the total of Lines 34 through 40 $

213



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (10/06) - Cont.
Initial presumption determination. Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.

Li The amount on Line 51 is less than t-h u L Check the box for "The presption does not

ars"a h o fpage 1 of this statement, and complet e the veriication in Part VIII. D cmlt h eaýru N i

52 El The amount set forth on Line 51 is more than -th aLeck the box for "The presumption arises" at the
sstop of page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII. You may also compete Part VII. Do not
complete the remainder of PartV.El The amount on Line 5 sIi at least $6,-909, but not more than $1 9. Complete the remainder of Part
VI (Lines 53 through 55 . 1i

• 5'3 Enter the amount, yvour total n~oný-,l $1..............

Ex ensehol Descriultipyteaon n Moth Amountyth umer0
th re ul. 

$

Secondary presumption determination. Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.E] The amount on Line 51 is less than the amount on Line 54. Check the box for "The presumption does not
I decarise" at the top of page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII.El[ The amount on Line 51 is equal to or greater than the amount on Line 54. Check the box for "The pre-

sumption arises" at the top of page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII. You may also com-

bo plete Part VII.

DOther Expenses List and describe any monthly expenses, not otherwise stated in this form, that are required for the•: health and welfare of you and your family and that you contend should be an additional deduction from your current:" monthly income under § 707(b)(2)(A)(ii)(I). If necessary, list additional sources on a separate page. All figures should re-

flect your average monthly expense for each item. Total the expenses.
S6 Expense Description Monthly Amount

a. $

Total: Add Lines a, b and c $

Ideclare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this statement is true andl correct. (If this is a joint case,:! both debtors must sign.)

57; Date: 
Signature:

•#•..•;(Debtor)
• ,Date: Signature:

(Joint Debtor. if any)

214



Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (10/06) - Cont. 4

Other Necessary Expenses: life insurance. Enter average monthly premiums that you actually32 pay for term life insurance for yourself. Do not include premiums for insurance on your depend-ents, for whole life or for any other form of insurance. $
Other Necessary Expenses: court-ordered payments. Enter the total monthly amount that33 you are required to pay pursuant to court order, such as spousal or child support payments. Do not in-clude payments on past due support obligations included in Line 49. $
Other Necessary Expenses: education for employment or for a physically or mentally

34 challenged child. Enter the total monthly amount that you actually expend for education that is acondition of employment and for education that is required for a physically or mentally challenged depend-
ent child for whom no public education providing similar services is available.
Other Necessary Expenses: childcare. Enter the average monthly amount that you actually ex-35 pend on childcare-such as baby-sitting, day care, nursery and preschool. Do not include other educa-
tional payments. $
Other Necessary Expenses: health care. Enter the average monthly amount that you actually36 expend on health care expenses that are not reimbursed by insurance or paid by a health savings account.
Do not include payments for health insurance or health savings accounts listed in Line 39. $
Other Necessary Expenses: telecommunication services. Enter the average monthly amount
that you actually pay for telecommunication services other than your basic home telephone service-such37 as cell phones, pagers, call waiting, caller id, special long distance, or internet service-to the extent nec-essary for your health and welfare or that of your dependents. Do not include any amount previouslydeducted. $

38 Total Expenses Allowed under IRS Standards. Enter the total of Lines 24 through 37. J$

Health Insurance, Disability Insurance, and Health Savings Account Expenses. List andtotal the average monthly amounts that you actually pay for yourself, your spouse, or your dependents in
the following categories.

a. Health Insurance $
b. Disability Insurance $
C. Health Savings Account $

Total: Add Lines a, b, and c $
Continued contributions to the care of household or family members. Enter the actualAO' monthly expenses that you will continue to pay for the reasonable and necessary care and support of an40 elderly, chronically ill, or disabled member of your household or member of your immediate family who isunable to pay for such expenses. Do not include payments listed in Line 34. $
Protection against family violence. Enter any average monthly expenses that you actually in-41 curred to maintain the safety of your family under the Family Violence Prevention and Services Act orother applicable federal law. The nature of these expenses is required to be kept confidential by the court.$

Home energy costs. Enter the average monthly amount, in excess of the allowance specified by IRS
42 Local Standards for Housing and Utilities, that you actually expend for home energy costs. You must pro-vide your case trustee with documentation demonstrating that the additional amountlipi -

reasonable and necessary.$175

Education expenses for dependen child . Enter the average monthl
that you actually incur, not to exceed W er child, in providing elementary and secondary education for43 your dependent children less than 18 years of age. You must provide your case trustee with docu-mentation demonstrating that the amount claimed is reasonable and necessary and not alreadyaccounted for in the IRS Standards. $
Additional food and clothing expense. Enter the average monthly amount by which your food andclothing expenses exceed the combined allowances for food and apparel in the IRS National Standards, not44 to exceed five percent of those combined allowances. (This information is available at www.usdoi.qov/ust/
or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.) You must provide your case trustee with documentation

_ demonstrating that the additional amount claimed is reasonable and necessary. $
s Continued charitable contributions. Enter the amount that you will continue to contribute in theform of cash or financial instruments to a charitable organization as defined in 26 U.S.C. § 170(c)(1)-(2). $

'46 Total Additional Expense Deductions under § 707(b). Enter the total of Lines 39 through 45. $

215





MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: REPORT BY FORMS SUBCOMMITTEE:
AMENDMENTS TO DIRECTOR'S PROCEDURAL FORMS

DATE: JANUARY 26, 2007; Revised February 27, 2007 (SSM)

DIRECTOR FORMS

Most of the proposed changes to Director Forms are relatively minor. As noted below,

some of the changes have already been put into effect. The Subcommittee reviewed and

approved the changes described below and as annotated in the attachments.

The Subcommittee also approved in principle a suggestion by Judge William L.

Stocks of the AO Bankruptcy Judges Advisory Group (BJAG) to include the statement

required by Rule 4008 in Part D of Form 240A (described below). However, because the

BJAG was not scheduled to meet until after this memo was prepared, the Subcommittee has not

reviewed an annotated version of the proposed change. The BJAG proposal will be distributed

separately.

Director's Forms 13S, 15S, 132, 204, 205, 206, 207, 231A, 231B, 253, and 270

Staff has recommended changing the caption to require last 4 digits of social security

number or Individual Taxpayer Identification Number (ITIN) as was done in the published

amendment to Official Form 16A in order to comply with proposed Rule 9037; incorporating the

footnote on each form into the caption as is done on Official Form 16A; and updating the

footnote text to require all names used by debtor in last 8 years, in conformity with § 727(a)(8)

216



of the Bankruptcy Code as amended by the Bankruptcy Abuse Prevention and Consumer

Protection Act of 2005, Pub. L. No. 109-8. The Subcommittee approved all the changes.

Director's Form 13S, Order Conditionally Approving Disclosure Statement

Staff has recommended deleting the reference to an election to be considered a small

business chapter 11 case since that election was deleted by BAPCPA. The Subcommittee

approved the deletion.

Director's Form 104, Adversary Proceeding Cover Sheet

Nature of suit code 71 is labeled "Injunctive relief- Reinstatement of stay." Bankruptcy

Judge A. Jay Cristol suggested that it be revised to specify "Injunctive relief- Imposition of

stay." The current label came from the Bankruptcy Judges Advisory Group, which requested

data on litigation following relief from the automatic stay. The Subcommittee approved

revising the label to state "Injunctive relief- Imposition of stay."

Director's Forms 130A and 130B, Bankruptcy Case and Adversary Proceeding Index Cards

Staff has recommended abrogating these forms because the index cards are no longer

used. The Bankruptcy Court Administration Division at the AO supports the changes. The

Subcommittee approved abrogating the forms as outdated.

217



Director's Form 202, Statement of Military Service

Rick Pontalion of the "ezfiling" software company noted that form does not specify

whether it should be signed by the debtor, by both joint debtors, or by the debtor attorney. The

Subcommittee concluded that there was no reason to limit who could file the form. Indeed, the

form use is not necessarily limited only to debtors, but could be used by any defendant (a

preference defendant, for example) in the military who is sued in a bankruptcy case. The

Subcommittee also approved adding a "print name" line under the signature line.

Mr. Pontalion also asked whether joint debtors (both of whom are in the military) file

separate statements? The Subcommittee concluded that they should file separate statements

because the statement requires individual information about the servicemember. To clarify this

requirement, the Subcommittee approved changing the following phrase in the first

paragraph, "parties to a bankruptcy case" to "each party in a bankruptcy case".

Director's Form 204, Notice of Need to File Proof of Claim Due to Recovery of Assets

Eva B. Roeber, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court in the District of Nebraska,

pointed out that following statement on the form is inaccurate under § 726(a)(3): "Creditors who

do not file a proof of claim on or before this date will not share in any distribution from the

debtor estate." The Subcommittee agreed and approved revising the form to state:

"Creditors who do not file a proof of claim on or before this date might not share in any

distribution from the debtor's estate."

Staff suggested revising Form 204 instructions for receiving proof of receipt to conform

to the proposed revision of Official Form 10. The Subcommittee approved.

218

3



Director's Form 240, Reaffirmation Agreement

Deputy clerks from the bankruptcy courts in the Southern District of New York and the

Eastern District of Kentucky suggested making the motion for approval of the reaffirmation a

separate form. This would make the directions on page 1 easier to understand and would

simplify docketing in CM/ECF. Form 240 was recently split into two forms: Form 240A

(consisting of 4 subparts) and Form 240B (the Proposed Order). The Subcommittee

recommended updating the form as Forms 240A, 240B, and 240C when additional changes

are made in the form.

Chief Bankruptcy Judge William L. Stocks of the Bankruptcy Judges Advisory Group

(BJAG) suggested including the statement required by Rule 4008 in Part D of Form 240A. The

advisory group is scheduled to discuss how to implement this suggestion at its meeting March

8 - 9. The BJAG proposal will be distributed separately at or before the meeting.

Director Forms 254, 255, and 256, bankruptcy subpoenas

The Administrative Office revised Director Forms 254, 255, and 256, the subpoenas for

use in Rule 2004 examinations, adversary proceedings, and bankruptcy cases to incorporate the

amendment of Civil Rule 45 and AO Form 088, the civil subpoena, on December 1, 2006. The

Subcommittee reviewed the changes.

219

4



Form B 13S
12/94

United States Bankruptcy Court
District Of

In re

Case No

Debtor*
Address: Chapter II
Soc;al Scaurity No(s).: (Small Business)
Emplycr's T.ax .d.ntifiat. . .. N (s). [if a. .:,

ORDER CONDI NALLY APPROVING DISCLOSURE STATEMENT, FIXING
TJAIE FOR FILING CCEPTANCES OR REJECTIONS OF PLAN, AND FIXING
THE TIME FOR FILI OBJECTIONS TO THE DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND
TO THE CONFIRMATIO OF THE PLAN, COMBINED WITH NOTICE THEREOFANDF 

THE 
TH ERN

AND OF THE HEARING 0 INAL APPROVAL OF THE DISCLOSURE
STATEMENT AND THE HEAR G ON CONFIRMA' pW ...... ..... .. FOREXAMPLE SSN AND ITIN CHANGES FOR

FORMS 13S, 15S, 132, 204,,205, 206, 207,

A disclosure statement under chapter I I of the Ban ptcy Code having231A,231B,253,AND270.

_Ton _____with Caption will require last 4 digits of Social
Security Number (SSN) or'Individual

Code filed by .... on Taxpayer Identification Number (ITIN) as

elected to be considered, a small business: was done in the published amendment to
Form 16A (ATTACHED).

In addition, footnote text will be moved to the
IT IS ORDERED, and notice is hereby given, that: caption and changed from 6 years to 8 years

(phrasing as in Form 16A-- ATTACHED).:
A. The disclosure statement filed by is con_ _ally aprv_.

B. is fixed as the last day for filing written 7cceptances or rejections of
the plan referred to above.

C. Within - days after the entry of this order, the plan, the disclosure tatement and a ballot
conforming to Official Form 14 shall be mailed to creditors, equity security holders, an other parties in interest, and shall
be transmitted to the United States trustee.

D. ________is fixed for the hearing
on final approval of the disclosure statement (ifa written objection has been timel filed) and for the hearing on
confirmation of the plan.

E. is fixed as the last da for filing and serving written objections to
the disclosure statement and confirmation of the plan.

Dated:

BY THE COURT

United States Bankruptcy Judge

both sceial s .:;,ay :omb &.c

219





Official Form 16A (12/08)

Form 16A. CAPTION (FULL)

United States Bankruptcy Court
District Of

In re ,_)
[Set forth here all names including married, )
maiden, and trade names used by debtor within )
last 8 years.] )

Debtor ) Case No.
)

Address )
)
) Chapter
)

Last four digits of Social Security or Individual Tax-
payer Identification (ITIN) No(s).,(if any): )
Employer's Tax Identification (EIN) No(s).(if any): )

[Designation of Character of Paper]

220





Form B 13S
12/94

United States Bankruptcy Court
District Of

In re

Case No.
Debtor*
Address: Chapter II
Social Security No(s).: (-&m•1l-usiness
Employer's Tax Identification No(s). [if any]:

ORDER CONDITIONALLY APPROVING DISCLOSURE TATEMENT, FIXING
TIME FOR FILING ACCEPTANCES OR REJECTIONS 0 PLAN, AND FIXING
THE TIME FOR FILING OBJECTIONS TO THE DISCL SURE STATEMENT AND
TO THE CONFIRMATION OF THE PLAN, COMBINED ITH NOTICE THEREOF
AND OF THE HEARING ON FINAL APPROVAL OF TH DISCLOSURE
STATEMENT AND THE HEARING ON CONFIRMATI OF THE PLAN

A disclosure statement under chapter II of the Bankruptcy Code having be n filed by

, on __ - with re pect to a plan under chapter 11 of the
Code filed by _ on _ _n " , ard-having

ete4 ee ie -- sal ness: DELETE REFERENCES TO SMALL
•~ ~BUSINESS ELECTION • .

IT IS ORDERED, and notice is hereby given, that:

A. The disclosure statement filed by is conditionally approved.

B. _ is fixed as the last day for filing written acceptances or rejections of
the plan referred to above.

C. Within days after the entry of this order, the plan, the disclosure statement and a ballot
conforming to Official Form 14 shall be mailed to creditors, equity security holders, and other parties in interest, and shall
be transmitted to the United States trustee.

D. is fixed for the hearing
on final approval of the disclosure statement (ifa written objection has been timely filed) and for the hearing on
confirmation of the plan.

E. is fixed as the last day for filing and serving written objections to
the disclosure statement and confirmation of the plan.

Dated:

BY THE COURT

United States Bankruptcy Judge

*Set forth all names, including trade names, used by the debtor within the last 6 yeart (Fed R Bankr P 1005) Forjoint debtors, set forth
both social security numbers

221





B 204

7/99

United States Bankruptcy Court
District Of

In re
Case No.

Debtor* Chapter
Social Security No.:
Employer's Tax ID No. [if any]:

NOTICE OF NEED TO FILE PROOF OF CLAIM
DUE TO RECOVERY OF ASSETS

NOTICE IS GIVEN THAT:

The initial notice in this case instructed creditors that it was not necessary to file a proof of claim. Since that notice was
sent, assets have been recovered by the trustee.

Creditors who wish to share in any distribution of funds must file a proof of claim with the clerk of the bankruptcy
court at the address below on or before

Date:

Creditors who do not file a proof of claim on or before this date will not share in any distribution from the debtor's estate.

The proof of claim form is attached to this notice. It may be ed by regular mail. If you wish to receive proof of its
receipt by the bankruptcy court, enclose a photocopy of the proof of cla together with a stamped, self-addressed envelope.

There is no fee for filing the proof of claim.

Any creditor who has filed a proof of claim already need not file a ther proof of claim.

change "will" to "might"

Address of the Bankruptcy Court Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court

By:
Deputy Clerk

*Set forth all names, including trade names, used by the debtor within the last 6 years (Fed. R. Bankr. P. 1005) For joint debtors set forth both

security numbers.

222





Form 202 (08/06)

United States Bankruptcy Court
District of

In re Case Number
Chapter

STATEMENT OF MILITARY SERVICE

The Servicemembers' Civil Relief Act of 2003, Pub. L. No. 108-189, provides for the temporary suspension
of certain judicial proceedings or transactions that may adversely affect military servicemembers, their dependents,
and others. Parties to a bankruptcy case who might be eligible for relief under the act should complete this form and
file it with the Ban ptcy Court.

IDENTIFICATION 0 SERVICEMEMBER
QI Self (Debtor, Code or, Creditor, Other)
Q Non-Filing Spouse o ebtor (name)
Ll Other (Name of service ember)__

(Relationship of file o servicemember)
(Type of liability) - change "Parties" to

TYPE OF MILITARY SERVICE "
U.S. Armed Forces (Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine Corps, or Coast Guard) or commissioned officer
of the Public Health Service or the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (specify type

of service)
LI Active Service since __ (date)
LI Inductee - ordered to report on (date)
L3 Retired / Discharged (date)

U.S. Military Reserves and National Guard
L Active Service since -(date)
L Impending Active Service -orders postmarked _ (date)

Ordered to report on - (date)
L Retired /Discharged (date)

U.S. Citizen Serving with U.S. ally in war or military action (specify ally and war or action)

LI Active Service since - -(date)
LI Retired/Discharged .(date)

DEPLOYMENT
LI Servicemember deployed overseas on .(date)

Anticipated completion of overseas tour-of-duty -(date)

SIGNATURE

Date

This stat I is for information use only Filing this statement with the Bankruptcy Court does not constitute an application for
or invoke the efits and relief avail, .'.. .... I C . . I -.. . . - ,1 •, -,

add "print name" line under signature line as in:

(print name) 223





Form 254 - Subpoena for Rule 2004 Examination (12/06)

PROOF OF SERVICE

DATE PLACE

SERVED

SERVED ON (PRINT NAME) MANNER OF SERVICE

SERVED BY (PRINT NAME) TITLE

DECLARATION OF SERVER

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the foregoing information contained in the Proof
of Service is true and correct. Bankruptcy subpoena forms 254,255, and

256 wefe updated with" eikt from revised
Executed on FRCP 45(c), (d) and (e) effective _ _ _ _ _

DATE December 1, 2006.
(as shown below)',-

ADDRESS OF SERVER

Rule 45, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Subdivisions (c), (d), and (e), as amended on December 1,2006, made applicable in cases under the Bankruptcy Code by Rule 9016,
Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure-

(c) PKOEION OF PERSONS SUBJECT TO SUBPOENA.S.. to or affected by theq-pbpoenaa, quash or modify the subpoena or, if the party in whose behalf the(1) A party or.an attorney responsible for the issuance and service ofa .subpoena shall take subpoena is issued showsa substantial need fothiie testimony or material that cannot be otherwise metreasonable steps to avoid imposing undue burden or exp nase oaperson subject to that subpoena. The without utdue hardship and'asswres that the person to whom the subpoena is addressed will be
ourt on bhalfwhich the subpoena wasissued shall enforce this-dutyandimp uPnthepartyor •reasonably compensated, ,e' court may order appearance or production'only upon specified

attorney in breach of this duty an appropriate sanction, which may include, but is not limited to, lost conditons,
earnings and a reasonable attorney's fee,1 . (2) (A) A person commanded to produce and permit mspection.copying, testing&, orsampling (d) DEITiES N RESPONDING TO SUBPOENA.
of designated electronically sored information, books, papers, documents or tangible things, or (1) (A) A person responding to a subpoena to producedocuments shall produce them as they
inspection of premises need hot appear in person at the place of produetion or'inspection unless are kept in the usual course of.business 6r'shalt organize and label them to correspond with thecommanded to appear for deposition, hearing or trial categories in the denand, . a lb t(B) Subject to paragraph (d)(2) of this rule, a person eommanded to produce and ermit .)1faSUb dnaoes got specify the form or forms for producing electronically storedimspection, .yi testing, or sampling may, within 14 days after serviceaofthe subpoena orbefore tion, ap .oi respotding to a subpoen be ast produce the information in a forn or fom in
ie time spec!i td lor compliance ifsuch time is less than 14 days after service, servej the party or which theiers r• dly maintains ito•r int fori or forms that are reasonably usable.fittorheydesignated in the subpoenawitten objection toproducing kay orýll of th desiiaiged materials A M). person respondc•ng to a subppenaiteed not produce the same etectromcally stored

or pection ofthepreDises Aortoproducing electronically store iafinaioit idmaot provide discovery of electronic'allyrequnested .lojectt.n`isMnade, the•party serving the subpoena s-•Iniot be en titled ispect copy,test sored )inron epo• di tat the pa identifies as not reosniadsly accessiblebecause of
orisamplelthe materials or inspect the premises except pursuant to ansorder ofthe count by,*qch the u b id n o.n motioe tov r the person fro whom dsov
subpoena wan issued. Ifobjection has been made, the party setviig the smbpoena may, upon notice to ondueb ihosth infotion too hlis ot r uasha a se becs e ofunduecburd
the person commanded to produce, move at any time for an orde-r tt compel the prqtluction, inspection, issought mus t showi nf in hmae the i outi ro neght hixsnt r eadonably acceossble because ofundue burden
copying, testing, or sampling, Such an order to compel shall prot•ct an persunto is not a parfroor requestingtat shinmgoi che ugt m imitatos ofRu le frb2m such sources ifthe
ain officer ofa party from significantexpenseresulting from the inspection; copying~testingor nmp og sp1ecify e g tg l i T ccommanded. ) asubpoena is withheld on a claim that itis privileed(3) (A) On timely motionthe court by which a subpoena Wasissuea shall quash or modify the rb, to proetinoas s terals, the clasr h an 'shallbesubpena f itor su Ueclt o protection a trial-prepamitio n materials, the cl aim shall be made expressly and shallbe,

(j),fails to all~ow reasonabl~e time for" Poriapliance- sup.,

i) requires a person who is not a party or an officer ofapwrit tetravel to a place that is s tonablethedmandiarsdsis Amadl fifnainatdcdi~eponse to a subpoena that is subject to a clainm ofmore than 100 miles from the place where that person resd I Iployed or regularlytransacts g partyto contest the clam.
business in person, except that, subject to the provisions of clause (cX3XB)(sii) of thisrule,'sucha privilegeor ofprotection as-6int--preparation material, the person making the claim may notify anyperson may m order to attend trial be commanded to travel from soysuch place.witn the statiiuwhich ofeeclaimandthebasisfont Afterbeingnotified, a party must
the trial is held; (iii) ruiedicouefpiiedorohrpoetdatradnexpior pomly retumrt sequ ester, or destroythe &Ipecified information and any copies itbas and maynot usew r h; (iii)requiresdisclosureofprivilegedoortother protectedrffeoad no exteptionior r eti. ' LA receiving party may promptly present the
waiver applies; or (vformation to the court utiereseal- foradteteminnation of the claim. If the receiving party disclosed

. .(iv) subjects a person to undue burden. theinformnationbefore bing notified, it mustiake ieasonable steps t retrieve it. The person who(B) Ifa subpoena produced the information ntst preseve theinformattoit ntil declaim is resolved
(i) requires disclosureofa trade secret or otherconfidential research, development,

or commercial inform.ition, or ... .o (e) CObtEini t a'. lure'ainie y person without adequate excuse ito obey a subpoena served upon that(ii) requires disclosure of an unretained expert'sopinon or infonmatiot, not person may berdeeied aonteint of the courtfrom which the subpoena issued. An adequate cause
describing specific events or occurrences in dispute and resulting from the expert's study made notat for failure to obey e" isty ibme a subpena • rts to require a nonparty to attend or produce at a
the request of any party or h (c)(3)(A)(iiil requires a person who is not a party or an officer of a party to incur substantial place not within the limits provided by clause (ii) of subparagrapexpense to travel more than 100 miles to attend trial, the court may, to protect a person Subject

224





MEMORANDUM

TO: AD HOC COMMITTEE ON TIME COMPUTATION RULE

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

DATE: FEBRUARY 2, 2007

The Ad Hoc Committee met by teleconference on December 13, 2006, to discuss the

need to amend the Bankruptcy Rules in a manner consistent with the recommendations of the

Standing Committee's Time Computation Committee. Specifically, that Committee has

recommended that time periods in the rules that equal or exceed 30 days should remain

unchanged, and that time periods less than 30 days be changed to multiples of 7. This is in

connection with the Time Computation Template that also would amend Rule 9006 to delete the

part of the rule that excludes weekends and holidays that occur during periods of less than 8 days

(or periods less than 11 days under the Civil Rules). The effect of the change is to count all of

the days in the time period and to exclude a weekend or holiday only if the last day of a period

falls on such a day.

The Time Computation Committee's recommendation that the Advisory Committees

review their rules to consider making the shorter time periods multiples of 7 is to reduce

(although not eliminate) the likelihood that the last day of a period will be a weekend or holiday.

In conducting such a review, the Ad Hoc Committee looked at each period in the current

Bankruptcy Rules that is less than 30 days. The bulk of these time periods were 10, 15, 20, or 35

days. Another group of time periods were 7 days or less. The Ad Hoc Committee determined

that, as a general rule, 10 and 15 day periods should be changed to 14 days, 20 day periods

1

225



should become 21 day periods, and 25 day periods would become 28 day periods. The Ad Hoc

Committee concluded that 5 day periods should become 7 day periods.

The Ad Hoc Committee focused more specifically on a group of 10 day periods included

in the rules. There are the time periods set for the appeal of an order or judgment, and similar

periods that set the effective date of court rulings. After considerable discussion, the Ad Hoc

Committee concluded that these time periods should not be changed to multiples of 7. Instead,

they should remain as 10 day periods under the Rules. The reason for retaining these time

periods is that the these periods reflect a careful balance between providing sufficient time to

appeal or otherwise react to a court ruling and the need for many matters in bankruptcy cases to

be resolved expeditiously. Longer delays could jeopardize financing arrangements, sales of

assets, actions taken in connection with the confirmation of plans, and many other matters. This

time period, 10 days, has been in the Bankruptcy Rules since their inception, and that time limit

was also included in the Bankruptcy Act prior to the advent of the rules. This need is generally

much less prevalent in the resolution of civil matters, and the 10 day appeal time actually is

consistent with the time period for a defendant to appeal a conviction under Appellate Rule

4(b)(1)(A).1 Furthermore, to the extent that there is a "bankruptcy specific" reason to deviate

from the template and the suggestion that the deadlines of less than 30 days be stated in multiples

of 7, the Time Computation Committee expects the Advisory Committees to recommend those

"nonconforming" time periods with an explanation of the need for those deadlines. The Ad Hoc

I do not know whether the Appellate Rules Committee is proposing to change this
deadline. However, since intervening weekends and holidays are excluded in periods of less than
11 days under Appellate Rule 26(a)(2), it seems likely that they would recommend that it become
a 14 day period. That would result in effectively no change in the deadline under the current
Appellate Rules.

2

226



Committee concluded that these kinds of deadlines should remain at 10 days to continue the

treatment of these matters consistent with their treatment under the Bankruptcy Rules and

practice. The Ad Hoc Committee rejected the solution that the deadline be changed to 14 on the

basis that this would extend the period too much given the need for the expeditious resolution of

many of these matters. The Ad Hoc Committee also concluded that changing these deadlines to

7 days would be too short, especially since intervening weekends and holidays would not be

excluded from the calculation. This could result in a person having only three or fours days in

which to file a notice of appeal, and that assumes that the person receives notice of the order

being appealed on the day that it is entered. Consequently, the Ad Hoc Committee concluded

that the 10 day periods should be retained for these deadlines.

STATUTORY DEADLINES

The Ad Hoc Committee did not discuss the application of the Time Computation

Template to statutory deadlines. The Time Computation Committee is still addressing the

matter, and I have spoken with Prof. Struve, the Reporter for the Project, and informed her that

Rule 9006 has long provided the counting mechanism for time periods set out in the Bankruptcy

Code as well as in many state statutes. A review of the Bankruptcy Code and the provisions of

titles 11 and 28 of the U.S. Code reveals approximately 15 or so sections that include time

periods of less than 30 days. Time periods in excess of 30 days would not be affected by any of

the proposed changes to Rule 9006. These sections and the time periods contained therein are set

out below. Two of the time periods, those set out in §§ 527(a)(2) and 528(a)(1) are described in

the statutes as "business days," so the time computation rule would not apply to those provisions.

3
227



If the remaining statutory provisions are not changed, then they will effectively be shortened by

the Time Computation Template provision that counts all time periods the same. The five day

periods could be as short as five days under the new system, while they were always at least

seven days under current Rule 9006. It is unrealistic to think that Congress would enact

amendments to each of these sections to add days to the time periods. Instead, the Ad Hoc

Committee might want to consider an amendment to Rule 9006 that would retain the current time

computation process for statutory deadlines but would impose the new system for deadlines in

the Rules. This would have the benefit of continuing the time periods that it would seem that

Congress anticipated for these periods when they were enacted under the computation system set

out in current Rule 9006. This would require a separate subdivision for the rule that would apply

only to the computation of time periods established under any statute, state or federal.

Title 11 Deadlines of Less Than 8 Days:

11 USC § 109(h)(3)(A) 5 days

11 USC § 322(a) 5 days

11 USC § 332(a) 5 days

11 USC § 342(e)(2) 5 days

11 USC § 521(e)(2)(A)(i) 7 days

11 USC § 521(e)(3)(B) 5 days

11 USC § 521(i)(2) 5 days

11 USC § 527(a)(2) 3 business days

11 USC § 528(a)(1) 5 business days

11 USC § 704(b)(1)(B) 5 days

4
228



11 USC § 764(b) 5 days

1 USC § 1113(d)(1) 7 days

11 USC § 1114(k)(1) 7 days

I IUSC § 1116(l) 7 days

Delayed Implementation

The Ad Hoc Committee also discussed the possibility of delaying the implementation of

the Time Computation Template publication. The Committee was concerned that the number of

changes to the Rules and the Interim Rules could be confusing to the bench, the bar, and the

public. If changes were recommended for publication in August of 2007, the changes would

have to be set out in the existing rules which are already in the process of being amended.

Delaying the changes to Rule 9006 and the adjustments throughout the Bankruptcy Rules as to

deadlines of less than 30 days would be much less confusing and would allow the bench and bar

to "digest" all of the more significant changes in the rules that are currently out for publication.

The publication of new deadlines could be limited to just that issue, and the focus of the bench

and bar on just that issue would enhance their ability and opportunity to consider the proposals

and offer comments. The Time Computation Committee is aware of the suggestion that the

publication process be delayed to avoid the overlapping publication of significant amendments to

the Bankruptcy Rules, and the issue of delayed publication will probably be considered by the

Standing Committee at its January meeting. In the meantime, the Ad Hoc Committee

recommended that the amendments to the rules necessary to adjust the deadlines of less than 30

days be prepared and presented to the Advisory Committee for its consideration at the March

meeting.

5
229



ACTION BY THE STANDING COMMITTEE AT ITS JANUARY 11-12, 2007 MEETING

At the Standing Committee meeting in Phoenix, the Time Computation Committee

presented its proposal for amendments to the time computation rule. Among the most significant

matters for consideration by the Standing Committee was whether Rule 9006 should be included

with the civil, criminal, and appellate rules for publication in August 2007. The problem with

going forward with the proposal at this time is that there would be approximately 60 rules

deadlines that would be changed, and these changes would be following on the currently pending

amendments to 40 rules. Thus, it could be that the time computation amendments would be

made to the pending proposed rules amendments and would be published before those rules were

even accepted by the Judicial Conference, not to mention the Supreme Court and Congress.

Moreover, the proposed amendments arguably would be to the existing rules rather than the

currently pending proposals, so one might even argue that there would need to be parallel

versions of the proposed deadline changes for the consideration of the bench, the bar, and the

public. This could be confusing to the readers of the published amendments. Consequently, the

Standing Committee concluded that the project could go forward without Rule 9006 if the

Advisory Committee on Bankruptcy Rules reaches that conclusion at the March meeting. The

Standing Committee's action was not to delay the publication of the time computation and

deadline amendments to the Bankruptcy Rules, but only to put that issue first to the Advisory

Committee for its consideration. The Time Computation Committee and the Standing

Committee each indicated that they would accept whatever recommendation that the Advisory

Committee might make.

Impact of Amendments to Civil Rule 6 on Time Computation in Adversary Proceedings

6

230



The change in the computation method under Civil Rule 6 will not affect the computation

of time periods under the Part VII Bankruptcy Rules even if Civil Rule 6 is amended as a part of

the Time Computation Rule effort. Since 1991, Rule 9006(a) has provided that it, and not Civil

Rule 6(a), establishes the method of calculating time periods even for periods set out in the Civil

Rules. Thus, the exclusion of weekends and holidays for periods of less than eight days would

continue in adversary proceedings even if Civil Rule 6(a) would not exclude those days.

Nevertheless, if the specific deadlines set out in the Civil Rules change as a part of the Time

Computation process, those new deadlines will apply to the extent that the specific Civil Rule is

incorporated into the Part VII Bankruptcy Rules.

COMPUTATION OF STATUTORY DEADLINES

Another issue that has not received significant attention is the lack of supercession

authority in the bankruptcy rules enabling act, 28 U.S.C. § 2075. Under the civil rules enabling

act, "[a]ll laws in conflict with such rules shall be of no further force or effect after such rules

have taken effect". 28 U.S.C. § 2072(b). The absence of a similar grant of authority to the

bankruptcy rules means that statutory provisions that set procedural deadlines override any

deadlines set by the Bankruptcy Rules. Nevertheless, Rule 9006(a) governs the computation of

time periods under statutes as well as under the rules and court orders. Many courts have applied

the rule to a variety of statutory time periods. See, e.g., Nelson Co. v. Counsel for the Official

Committee of Unsecured Creditors (In re Nelson Co.), 959 F.2d 1260, 1265 (3d Cir. 1992);

Harbor Natvl Bank v. Sid Kumins, Inc., 696 F.2d 9, 10 & n. 1 (1st Cir. 1982); Prior v. Farm

Bureau Oil Co. (In re Prior), 176 B.R. 485, 496 n. 9 (Bankr. S.D.Ill. 1995); Levinson v. Security

7
231



Sav. Bank, SLA (In re Levinson), 128 B.R. 365, 368 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1991); Pineo v. Charley

Bros. Co. (In re J.A.S. Markets, Inc.), 113 B.R. 193, 197-98 (Bankr. W.D.Pa. 1990);

Wilmington Nursery Co., Inc. v. Burkert (In re Wilmington Nursery Co.), 36 B.R. 813 (Bankr.

E.D.N.C. 1984); Meister v. State Nat'l Bank (In re Mailbag Int'l, Inc.), 28 B.R. 905, 909 (Bankr.

D. Conn. 1983) (applying Bankruptcy Rule 906(a), precursor to Rule 9006(a), to the preference

period); Grimaldi v. John A. Ruell, Inc. (In re Grimaldi ), 3 B.R. 533, 535 (Bankr. D.Conn.

1980) (same). In a different context, the Sixth Circuit reversed its prior position that time

computation rules could not operate to add a day to the end of a statutory period and instead

concluded that the rules could be applied without violating the Rules Enabling Act. In Bartlik v.

United States Dept. of Labor, 62 F.3d 165 (6th Cir. 1995), the en banc court reversed prior

decisions, including bankruptcy decisions, and held that

the application of Appellate Rule 26(a), and likewise its counterpart
Civil Rule 6(a), to calculate a limitations period does not "expand" or
"enlarge" our jurisdiction. [FN 1] Both of these rules do nothing more
than provide the court and the parties with a means of determining the
beginning and end of a statute of limitations prescribed elsewhere in law.
Accordingly, a petition for review of an agency decision that is due on a

Saturday, Sunday, federal holiday, or a day on which the court clerk's
office is closed will be timely if filed on the next day the courthouse, or
other designated place for filing, is open for business.

The Ninth Circuit has taken the opposite position in In re Greene, 223 F.3d 1064 ( 9 th Cir.

2000). There, the court held that the computation provisions of Rule 9006 could not be applied

to determine the 90 day preference period set out in § 547(b)(4) of the Code. The court stated

that applying the rule to compute the 90 day period would extend the deadline as a part of the

substantive right of the trustee to recover preferential transfers. The court also noted that the

time period under the statute is just that, a time period, and it does not require some act nor does

8
232



it create a need to determine when some act must occur. Therefore, Rule 9006(a) arguably did

not apply. At best, there is a split of authority as to the application of Rule 9006(a) to statutory

periods. The same is true for the application of Civil Rule 6(a), although as regards statutes of

limitations that are silent as to the manner of computing time, the majority of courts have used

the rule to compute the periods. Daniel Coquillette, et. al., Moore's Federal Practice, ¶ 6.03[2] at

6-15 n.10 (3d Ed. 2006).

The Time Computation Committee, as well as the other Advisory Committees, are

generally of the view that attorneys do not believe that the procedural rules such as Civil Rule 6

govern the computation of time periods in statutes notwithstanding that specific directive in the

rule. It has been my personal experience, and I believe it is generally the case, that bankruptcy

attorneys have long applied the time computation provision of Rule 9006 (and its predecessor

rule, Rule 906) to compute statutory time periods. That this is so is also reflected in the

experience of the Bankruptcy Rules Committee from 1987 to 1989. In 1987, the various rules

were amended to change the computation of short time periods with respect to intervening

weekends and holidays. Prior to 1987, intervening weekends and holidays were excluded when

computing time periods of less than 8 days. In 1987, the rules were amended to provide that

those weekends and holidays were excluded for periods of less than 11 days. Almost

immediately after that amendment to Rule 9006 became effective, there was a call for a repeal of

the amendment and the reinstatement of the "less than 8 day" provision that Rule 9006 had

included up to 1987. The impact of the change was particularly noticeable in two areas:

preference litigation and bankruptcy appeals.

In 1987, § 547 (e)(2)(A) and (C) provided that transfers were deemed to be made at the

9
233



time they took effect between the parties if they were perfected on or within 10 days of that time.

The 1987 amendment to Rule 9006 effectively extended that 10 day period to 14 days because of

the rules exclusion of the intervening weekends. This became immediately apparent, and it

rendered may more transactions subject to preference attack than would have been vulnerable

under the "8 day" rule that Rule 9006(a) provided up to 1987. Similarly, 10 days is the time set

for the filing of a notice of appeal under Rule 8002(a). While this is obviously not a statutory

deadline2, the impact of the change in Rule 9006(a) from a "less than 8 day" world to a "less than

11 day" world on appeals was significant. Consequently, Rule 9006(a) was amended in 1989 to

return to its former computation rule. The repeal seems to have occurred about as quickly as it

possibly could have under the rules enabling act process. The change was made in the interest of

uniformity among the various sets of federal rules; however, its adverse impact on the application

of the preference provisions of the Bankruptcy Code and the time to appeal provided a sufficient

justification for the nonuniform time computation provision. Significantly, one of those

deadlines is statutory (§ 547(e)(2)), and no objection appears to have been raised that the rules

enabling act prevented the promulgation of the rule as regards statutory time periods.

BAPCPA has introduced another wrinkle into the interaction of Rule 9006(a) and the

Bankruptcy Code and the question of whether the rule violates the rules enabling act admonition

2 The ten day deadline for filing a notice of appeal was a statutory provision in the
Bankruptcy Act for many years. Even though it was included in Title 11, it was also included in
the Bankruptcy Rules. The deadline for filing a notice of appeal was included in a number of the
bills that were introduced in Congress from 1971 until the very latest stages of the consideration
of bankruptcy reform legislation in 1978. I have not been able to determine why the 10 day
deadline was removed from the bills toward the end of the process, but it is certainly plausible
that Congress viewed the statutory deadline as unnecessary given that the Bankruptcy Rules
already included that deadline.

10

234



that the rules may not abridge or modify substantive rights. Moreover, the bankruptcy rules

enabling act, as compared to the civil rules enabling act, does not include a supercession

provision. Under 28 U.S.C. § 2072, all laws in conflict with a rule of civil procedure are

superceded by the rule. Thus, if a statute were to provide that intervening weekends and holidays

were excluded for any period less than 30 days, Civil Rule 6(a) would render that statutory

provision ineffective as to periods of more than 10 days. The absence of a comparable provision

in 28 U.S.C. § 2075 creates the potential for an argument that Rule 9006(a) already violates

§ 2075. Previously, it could be argued that the rule simply sets out a counting mechanism where

Congress has failed to provide one. By enacting a Bankruptcy Code that referred throughout

only to "days" with no reference to any particular computation system, it seems likely that

Congress relied on the existence of Rule 9006 and its predecessor when it enacted time periods in

title 11. In the 2005 amendments to the Bankruptcy Code, however, Congress introduced for the

first time the notion of "business days" into the Bankruptcy Code. Sections 527 and 528, each of

which apply to "debt relief agencies," and govern the time within which these agencies must

provide notices to assisted persons or must execute written contracts with the assisted person.

The inclusion of "business days" in these two new sections of the Code arguably could be viewed

as meaning that Congress specifically means all days, including weekends and holidays that

would be excluded under Rule 9006(a), when it enacts deadlines that are not set out as "business

days." While this is a colorable argument, I believe that a contrary argument is more persuasive.

Congress has included approximately 233 deadlines in the Bankruptcy Code. They range from 2

days to many years. It is inconceivable that Congress would want all of these deadlines to fall

only on the specific day that a computation based only on a calendar would provide. If that were

11
235



so, a 10 day court filing deadline that falls on Monday, January 15, 2007, would require a person

to file a paper on Friday, January 12, 2007, because the clerk's office would be closed on

Saturday, Sunday, and Monday. The so-called 10 day deadline running from Friday, January 5,

would effectively expire in seven days. There is no indication in the legislation that Congress

intended such a result. Thus, it seems clear that Congress anticipates that Rule 9006 would

provide the counting mechanism for determining the last day of the statutory deadline. If the rule

is being used in that manner, the rest of its counting directives should apply as well. The

inclusion of "business days" in §§ 527 and 528 are better viewed as a drafting oversight in two

instances as compared to the more than 230 other statutory deadlines that Congress included in

the Code. I have reviewed a number of the Congressional reports that were created during the

period in which the bankruptcy reform legislation was pending, and I have not found any specific

reference to the choice of "business days" in the sections governing debt relief agencies. The

reports note that debt relief agencies have three or five business days to provide notices or

execute contracts, but they do not indicate any specific reason why "business days" were the

timing mechanism selected for those two provisions.

12

236



MEMORANDUM

DATE: March 6, 2007

TO: Time-Computation Subcommittee
Committee Reporters

FROM: Judge Mark R. Kravitz

CC: Judge David F. Levi
John K. Rabiej

RE: Newly revised template draft for use in connection with Advisory Committee
meetings

Thank you for your input on the template drafts we circulated on January 24 and February
6. Attached are both clean and redlined copies of the draft, showing the changes we have made
(since February 6) in response to your feedback. We ask that you use the attached version of the
template for the purpose of your spring Advisory Committee meetings.

The major change to the text of the Rule (since the February 6 draft) is that we have
moved former subdivision (a)(6) - concerning inaccessibility - earlier in the Rule; it now is
subdivision (a)(3). We have also made some minor changes to the Rule's wording and we have
made some alterations in the Note.

We welcome your further reactions to these revisions. Thank you.

Encls.

-1-

236



1 Rule 6. Computing and Extending Time

2 (a) Computing Time. The following rules apply in computing any time period specified in

3 these rules or in any statute, local rule, or court order.

4 (1) Period Stated in Days or a Longer Unit When the period is stated in days or a

5 longer unit of time:

6 (A) exclude the day of the event that triggers the period;

7 (B) count every day, including intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal

8 holidays; and

9 (C) include the last day of the period, but if the last day is a Saturday, Sunday,

10 or legal holiday, the period continues to run until the end of the next day

11 that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday.

12 (2) Period Stated in Hours. When the period is stated in hours:

13 (A) begin counting immediately on the occurrence of the event that triggers the

14 period;

15 (B) count every hour, including hours during intermediate Saturdays, Sundays,

16 and legal holidays; and

17 (C) if the period would end on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, then

18 continue the period until the same time on the next day that is not a

19 Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday.

20 (3) Inaccessibility of Clerk's Office. Unless the court orders otherwise, if the clerk's

21 office is inaccessible:

-2-

237



1 (A) on the last day of a filing period computed under Rule 6(a)(1), then the

2 time for filing is extended to the first day when the clerk's office is

3 accessible that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday; or

4 (B) during the last hour of a filing period computed under Rule 6(a)(2), then

5 the time for filing is extended to the same time on the first day when the

6 clerk's office is accessible that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday.

7 (4) "Last Day" Defined. Unless a different time is set by a statute, local rule, or

8 orderin the case, the last day ends:

9 (A) for electronic filing, at midnight in the court's time zone; and

10 (B) for filing by other means, when the clerk's office is scheduled to close.

11 (5) "Next Day" Defined. The "next day" is determined by continuing to count

12 forward when the period is measured after an event and backward when measured

13 before an event.

14 (6) "Legal Holiday" Defined. "Legal holiday" means:

15 (A) the day set aside by statute for observing New Year's Day, Martin Luther

16 King Jr.'s Birthday, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, Independence

17 Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, or

18 Christmas Day; and

19 (B) any other day declared a holiday by the President, Congress, or the state

20 where the district court is located.

21

-3-
238



1 Committee Note
2
3 Subdivision (a). Subdivision (a) has been amended to simplify and clarify the provisions
4 that describe how deadlines are computed. Subdivision (a) governs the computation of any time
5 period found in a Federal Rule of Civil Procedure, a statute, a local rule, or a court order. In
6 accordance with Rule 83(a)(1), a local rule may not direct that a deadline be computed in a
7 manner inconsistent with subdivision (a).
8
9 The time-computation provisions of subdivision (a) apply only when a time period must

10 be computed. They do not apply when a fixed time to act is set. The amendments thus carry
11 forward the approach taken in Violette v. P.A. Days, Inc., 427 F.3d 1015, 1016 (6th Cir. 2005)
12 (holding that Civil Rule 6(a) "does not apply to situations where the court has established a
13 specific calendar day as a deadline"), and reject the contrary holding of In re American
14 Healthcare Management, Inc., 900 F.2d 827, 832 (5th Cir. 1990) (holding that Bankruptcy Rule
15 9006(a) governs treatment of date-certain deadline set by court order). If, for example, the date
16 for filing is "no later than November 1, 2007," subdivision (a) does not govern. But if a filing is
17 required to be made "within 10 days" or "within 72 hours," subdivision (a) describes how that
18 deadline is computed.
19
20 Subdivision (a)(1). New subdivision (a)(1) addresses the computation of time periods
21 that are stated in days. It also applies to time periods that are stated in weeks, months, or years.
22 See, e.g., Rule 60(b).
23
24 Under former Rule 6(a), a period of 11 days or more was computed differently than a
25 period of less than 11 days. Intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays were included
26 in computing the longer periods, but excluded in computing the shorter periods. Former Rule
27 6(a) thus made computing deadlines unnecessarily complicated and led to counterintuitive
28 results. For example, a 10-day period and a 14-day period that started on the same day usually
29 ended on the same day - and, not infrequently, the 10-day period actually ended later than the
30 14-day period. See Miltimore Sales, Inc. v. Int l Rectifier, Inc., 412 F.3d 685, 686 (6th Cir.
31 2005).
32
33 Under new subdivision (a)(1), all deadlines stated in days (no matter the length) are
34 computed in the same way. The day of the event that triggers the deadline is not counted. All
35 other days - including intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays - are counted, with
36 only one exception: If the period ends on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, then the deadline
37 falls on the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. An illustration is provided
38 below, in the discussion of subdivision (a)(5). Subdivision (a)(3) addresses filing deadlines that
39 expire on a day when the clerk's office is inaccessible.
40
41 Where subdivision (a) formerly referred to the "act, event, or default" that triggers the
42 deadline, new subdivision (a) refers simply to the "event" that triggers the deadline; this change
43 in terminology is adopted for brevity and simplicity, and is not intended to change meaning.

-4-
239



1 Periods previously expressed as less than 11 days will be shortened as a practical matter
2 by the decision to count intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays in computing all
3 periods. Many of those periods have been lengthened to compensate for the change. See, e.g.,
4 [CITE].
5
6 Subdivision (a)(2). New subdivision (a)(2) addresses the computation of time periods
7 that are stated in hours. No such deadline currently appears in the Federal Rules of Civil
8 Procedure. But some statutes contain deadlines stated in hours, as do some court orders issued in
9 expedited proceedings.

10
11 Under new subdivision (a)(2), a deadline stated in hours starts to run immediately on the
12 occurrence of the event that triggers the deadline. The deadline generally ends when the time
13 expires. If, however, the time period expires at a specific time (say, 2:17 p.m.) on a Saturday,
14 Sunday, or legal holiday, then the deadline is extended to the same time (2:17 p.m.) on the next
15 day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. Periods stated in hours are not to be
16 "rounded up" to the next whole hour. Subdivision (a)(3) addresses situations when the clerk's
17 office is inaccessible during the last hour before a filing deadline expires.
18
19 Subdivision (a)(2)(B) directs that every hour be counted. Thus, for example, a 72-hour
20 period that commences at 10:23 a.m. on Friday, November 2, 2007, will run until 9:23 a.m. on
21 Monday, November 5; the discrepancy in start and end times in this example results from the
22 intervening shift from daylight saving time to standard time.
23
24 Subdivision (a)(3). When determining the last day of a filing period stated in days or a
25 longer unit of time, a day on which the clerk's office is not accessible because of the weather or
26 another reason is treated like a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. When determining the end of
27 a filing period stated in hours, if the clerk's office is inaccessible during the last hour of the filing
28 period computed under subdivision (a)(2) then the period is extended to the same time on the
29 next day that is not a weekend, holiday or day when the clerk's office is inaccessible.
30
31 Subdivision (a)(3)'s extensions apply "[u]nless the court orders otherwise." In some
32 circumstances, the court might not wish a period of inaccessibility to trigger a full 24-hour
33 extension; in those instances, the court can specify a briefer extension.
34
35 The text of the rule no longer refers to "weather or other conditions" as the reason for the
36 inaccessibility of the clerk's office. The reference to "weather" was deleted from the text to
37 underscore that inaccessibility can occur for reasons unrelated to weather, such as an outage of
38 the electronic filing system. Weather can still be a reason for inaccessibility of the clerk's office.
39 The rule does not attempt to define inaccessibility; the concept of inaccessibility will continue to
40 develop through caselaw, see, e.g., William G. Phelps, When Is Office of Clerk of Court
41 Inaccessible Due to Weather or Other Conditions for Purpose of Computing Time Period for
42 Filing Papers under Rule 6(a) ofFederal Rules of Civil Procedure, 135 A.L.R. Fed. 259 (1996)
43 (collecting cases), while many local provisions address inaccessibility for purposes of electronic

-5-
240



1 filing, see, e.g., D. Kan. Rule 5.4.11 ("A Filing User whose filing is made untimely as the result
2 of a technical failure may seek appropriate relief from the court.").
3
4 Subdivision (a)(4). New subdivision (a)(4) defines the end of the last day of a period for
5 purposes of subdivision (a)(1). Subdivision (a)(4) does not apply to the computation of periods
6 stated in hours under subdivision (a)(2). Subdivision (a)(4)'s definition does not apply if a
7 different time is set by a statute, local rule, or order in the case. A local rule may provide, for
8 example, that papers filed in a drop box after the normal hours of the clerk's office are filed as of
9 the day that is date-stamped on the papers by a device in the drop box.

10
11 28 U.S.C. § 452 provides that "[a]ll courts of the United States shall be deemed always
12 open for the purpose of filing proper papers, issuing and returning process, and making motions
13 and orders." A corresponding provision exists in Rule 77(a). Some courts have held that these
14 provisions permit an after-hours filing by handing the papers to an appropriate official. See, e.g.,
15 Casalduc v. Diaz, 117 F.2d 915, 917 (1 st Cir. 1941). Subdivision (a)(4) does not address the
16 court's authority to permit such a filing under the statute; instead, the rule is designed to deal
17 with the ordinary course of events.
18
19 Subdivision (a)(5). New subdivision (a)(5) defines the "next" day for purposes of
20 subdivisions (a)(1)(C) and (a)(2)(C). The Federal Rules of Civil Procedure contain both
21 forward-looking time periods and backward-looking time periods. A forward-looking time
22 period requires something to be done within a period of time after an event. See, e.g., Rule 59(b)
23 (motion for new trial "shall be filed no later than 10 days after entry of the judgment"). A
24 backward-looking time period requires something to be done within a period of time before an
25 event. See, e.g., Rule 26(f) (parties must hold Rule 26(f) conference "as soon as practicable and
26 in any event at least 21 days before a scheduling conference is held or a scheduling order is due
27 under Rule 16(b)"). In determining what is the "next" day for purposes of subdivisions (a)(1)(C)
28 and (a)(2)(C), one should continue counting in the same direction - that is, forward when
29 computing a forward-looking period and backward when computing a backward-looking period.
30 If, for example, a filing is due within 10 days after an event, and the tenth day falls on Saturday,
31 September 1, 2007, then the filing is due on Tuesday, September 4, 2007 (Monday, September 3,
32 is Labor Day). But if a filing is due 10 days before an event, and the tenth day falls on Saturday,
33 September 1, then the filing is due on Friday, August 31.
34
35 Subdivision (a)(6). New subdivision (a)(6) defines "legal holiday" for purposes of the
36 Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, including the time-computation provisions of subdivisions
37 (a)(1) and (a)(2).

-6-

241



1 Rule 6. Computing and Extending Time

2 (a) Computing Time. The following rules apply in computing any time period specified in

3 these rules or in any statute, local rule, or court order.

4 (1) Period Stated in Days or a Longer Unit. When the period is stated in days or a

5 longer unit of time:

6 (A) exclude the day of the event that triggers the period;

7 (B) count every day, including intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal

8 holidays; and

9 (C) include the last day of the period, but if the last day is a Saturday, Sunday,

10 or legal holiday, the period continues to run until the end of the next day

11 that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday.

12 (2) Period Stated in Hours. When the period is stated in hours:

13 (A) begin counting immediately on the occurrence of the event that triggers the

14 period;

15 (B) count every hour, including hours during intermediate Saturdays, Sundays,

16 and legal holidays; and

17 (C) if the period would end on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, then

18 continue the period until the same time on the next day that is not a

19 Saturday, Sunday, orlegal holiday.

20 3_ Inaccessibility of Clerk's Office. Unless the court orders otherwise, if the clerk's

21 office is inaccessible:

-7-

242



1 LAI_ on the last day of a filing period computed under Rule 6(a)(1), then the

2 time for filing is extended to the first day when the clerk's office is

3 accessible that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday; or

4

5 V1 xi \, ,,,, I t

6 (B) during the last hour of a filing period computed under Rule 6(a)(2), then

7 the time for filing is extended to the same time on the first day when the

8 clerk's office is accessible that is not a Saturday, Sundays or legal holiday.

9 F : ]

10 (34) "Last Day" Defined. Unless a different time is set by a statute, local rule, or

11 order in the case, the last day ends:

12 (A) for electronic filing, at midnight in the court's time zone; and

13 (B) for filing by other means, when the clerk's office is scheduled to close.

14 (4-5) "Next Day" Defined. The "next day" is determined by continuing to count

15 forward when the period is measured after an event and backward when measured

16 before an event.

17 (56) "Legal Holiday" Defined. "Legal holiday" means:

18 (A) the day set aside by statute for observing New Year's Day, Martin Luther

19 King Jr.'s Birthday, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, Independence

20 Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day, or

21 Christmas Day; and

-8-
243



1 (B) any other day declared a holiday by the President, Congress, or the state

2 where the district court is located.

3 (6) IuLLIIsi.bif Lty of k'r Is 1ffire. Unless the otirut othmlIi or d1e, if.the ck.lk'l s
4 office is inpceesible-

5 (A) on the last day of a filing period comptfttJ tuider (a)(!), the~n tl1 e tinle foi
6 filing is extended to tl1 e first day when the eJerk's office is aecesible that
7 isnot a Satuiday, Sunday orleal holiday.
8
9

10 Committee Note
11
12 Subdivision (a). Subdivision (a) has been amended to simplify and clarify the provisions
13 that describe how deadlines are computed. Subdivision (a) governs the computation of any time
14 period found in a Federal Rule of Civil Procedure, a statute, a local rule, or a court order. In
15 accordance with Rule 83(a)(1), a local rule may not direct that a deadline be computed in a
16 manner inconsistent with subdivision (a).
17
18 The time-computation provisions of subdivision (a) apply only when a time period must
19 be computed. They do not apply when a fixed time to act is set. The amendments thus carry
20 forward the approach taken in Violette v. P.A. Days, Inc., 427 F.3d 1015, 1016 (6th Cir. 2005)
21 (holding that Civil Rule 6(a) "does not apply to situations where the court has established a
22 specific calendar day as a deadline"), and reject the contrary holding of In re American
23 Healthcare Management, Inc., 900 F.2d 827, 832 (5th Cir. 1990) (holding that Bankruptcy Rule
24 9006(a) governs treatment of date-certain deadline set by court order). If, for example, athe date
25 for filing is requird to be mad "no later than November 1, 2007," subdivision (a) does not
26 govern. But if a filing is required to be made "within 10 days" or "within 72 hours," subdivision
27 (a) describes how that deadline is computed.
28
29 Subdivision (a)(1). New subdivision (a)(1) addresses the computation of time periods
30 that are stated in days. It also applies to time periods that are stated in weeks, months, or years.
31 See, e.g., Rule 60(b).
32
33 Under former Rule 6(a), a period of 11 days or more was computed differently than a
34 period of less than 11 days. Intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays were included
35 in computing the longer periods, but excluded in computing the shorter periods. Former Rule
36 6(a) thus made computing deadlines unnecessarily complicated and led to counterintuitive
37 results. For example, a 10-day period and a 14-day period that started on the same day usually
38 ended on the same day - and, not infrequently, the 10-day period actually ended later than the
39 14-day period. See Miltimore Sales, Inc. v. Int'l Rectifier, Inc., 412 F.3d 685, 686 (6th Cir.
40 2005).
41

-9-
244



1 Under new subdivision (a)(1), all deadlines stated in days (no matter the length) are
2 computed in the same way. The day of the event that triggers the deadline is not counted. All
3 other days - including intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays - are counted, with
4 only one exception: If the period ends on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, then the deadline
5 falls on the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. An illustration is provided
6 below, in the discussion of subdivision (a)(45). Subdivision (a)(3) addresses filing deadlines that
7 expire on a day when the clerk's office is inaccessible.
8
9 Where subdivision (a) formerly referred to the "act, event, or default" that triggers the

10 deadline, new subdivision (a) refers simply to the "event" that triggers the deadline; this change
11 in terminology is adopted for brevity and simplicity, and is not intended to change meaning.
12
13 Periods previously expressed as less than 11 days will be shortened as a practical matter
14 by the decision to count intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays in computing all
15 periods. Many of those periods have been lengthened to compensate for the change. See, e.g.,
16 [CITE].
17
18 S ubdivisjio (a)(6) addresse fifing deadlines that exir on a day wilen tile clek's offi~
19
20
21 Subdivision (a)(2). New subdivision (a)(2) addresses the computation of time periods
22 that are stated in hours. No such deadline currently appears in the Federal Rules of Civil
23 Procedure. But some statutes contain deadlines stated in hours, as do some court orders issued in
24 expedited proceedings.
25
26 Under new subdivision (a)(2), a deadline stated in hours starts to run immediately on the
27 occurrence of the event that triggers the deadline. The deadline generally ends when the time
28 expires. If, however, the time period expires at a specific time (say, 2:17 p.m.) on a Saturday,
29 Sunday, or legal holiday, then the deadline is extended to the same time (2:17 p.m.) on the next
30 day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. Periods stated in hours are not to be
31 "rounded up" to the next whole hour. Subdivision (a)(63) addresses situations when the clerk's
32 office is inaccessible during the last hour before a filing deadline expires.
33
34 Subdivision (a)(2)(B) directs that every hour be counted. Thus, for example, a 72-hour
35 period that coanmences at 10:23 a.m. on Friday, November 2, 2007, will run until 9:23 a.m. on
36 Monday, November 5; the discrepancy in start and end times in this example results from the
37 intervening shift from Ddaylight -saving Ttime to standard time.
38
39 Subdivision1 (a)(3). Ne subdivision (a)(3) define~s the~ end of the1 last day of a period for
40 purplsueo uf sauduv v n(a)(,). Subdio•isio (a)(3) duoe not apply tu the uom1putation uof priuds
41 stated in hours undet subdivision (a)(2). Subdivision (a)(3)'s definition does not apply-if-a
42 different time~ is set by a statuke, local muk, or otder in the cae
43

-10-

245



1 28 U.s.C. § 452 prvie that "[a]11 cort ofthe U 1 AkJe States shall be dce 111ed always
2 open f.. the puirpose of filhing pui papes, pp.uiiing and returning process, amid making m.tion.
3 and orders." A cg provision ests in Rul 7 7 (a). Soume cotiut have held that tlhes
4 pi.i un permit an after-hours~ filing to be made by locating an approptiate official and hianding
5 the papers to that official. Se, r Cu,,•,,uL v. Div,, 1"17 ,.2d 915, 9i7 ("t ... . 1941).
6 Subdivision (a)( 3 ) doe not address the1 court's authorlity to permiit suc a fil~ 6i~nguder the1 statutze,
7 intead, the. mle is designed to deal with the~ ordinary course ofeens
8
9

10 k

11
12 Subdivsio (a)(5). New subdivision (a)(5) d•fins "legal huliday" fbu pnuryu of the
13 Fedeia aRl o i f U ivil Pr1 o cdr, nl, uding the tllllc-eorputatioi pi U V of 1ubdi
14 (a)(f) and•(a)W.
15
16 Subdivision (a)(63). When comatngdetennining the last day of a filing period stated in
17 days or a longer unit of time, a day on which the clerk's office is not accessible because of the
18 weather or another reason is treated like a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. When
19 comptingdetennining the end of a filing period stated in hours, if the clerk's office is
20 inaccessible during the last hour of the filing period computed under subdivision (a)(2) then the
21 period is extended to the same time on the next day that is not a weekend, holiday or day when
22 the clerk's office is inaccessible.
23
24 Subdivision (a)(63)'s extensions apply "[u]nless the court orders otherwise-orders." In
25 some circumstances, the court might not wish a period of inaccessibility to trigger a full 24-hour
26 extension; in those instances, the court can specify a briefer extension.
27
28 The text of the rule no longer refers to "weather or other conditions" as the reason for the
29 inaccessibility of the clerk's office. The reference to "weather" was deleted from the text to
30 underscore that inaccessibility can occur for reasons unrelated to weather, such as an outage of
31 the electronic filing system. Weather can still be a reason for inaccessibility of the clerk's office.
32 The rule does not attempt to define inaccessibility, the concept of inaccessibility will continue to
33 develop through caselaw,. see, e.g., William G. Phelps, When Is Qffice of Clerk of Court
34 Inaccessible Due to Weather or Other Conditions for Purpose of Cromputing Time Period fbr
35 Filing Papers under Rule 6(a) of Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, 135 A.L.R. Fed. 259 (1996)
36 (collecting cases), while many local provisions address inaccessibility for purposes of electronic
37 filing, see, e.g., D. Kan. Rule 5.4.11 ("A Filing User whose filing is made untimely as the result
38 of a technical failure may seek appropriate relief from the court.").
39
40 Subdivision (a)(4). New subdivision (a)(4) defines the end of the last day of a period for
41 purposes of subdivision (a)(1). Subdivision (a)(4) does not apply to the computation of periods
42 stated in hours under subdivision (a)(2). Subdivision (a)(4)'s definition does not apply if a
43 different time is set by a statute, local rule, or order in the case. A local rule may provide, for

-11-
246



I example, that papers filed in a drop box after the normal hours of the clerk's office are filed as of
2 the day that is date-stamped on the papers by a device in the drop box.
3
4 28 U.S.C. § 452 provides that "[aill courts of the United States shall be deemed always
5 open for the purpose of filing proper papers, issuing and returning process, and making motions
6 and orders." A corresponding provision exists in Rule 77(a). Some courts have held that these
7 provisions permit an after-hours filing by handing the papers to an appropriate official. See, e.g.,
8 Casalduc v. Diaz, 117 F.2d 915, 917 (1 st Cir. 1941). Subdivision (a)(4) does not address the
9 court's authority to permit such a filing under the statute; instead, the rule is desig ned to deal

10 with the ordinary course of events.
11

12
13
14 Subdivision (a)(45). New subdivision (a)(45) defines the "next" day for purposes of
15 subdivisions (a)(1)(C) and (a)(2)(C). The Federal Rules of Civil Procedure contain both
16 forward-looking time periods and backward-looking time periods. A forward-looking time
17 period requires something to be done within a period of time after an event. See, e.g., Rule 59(b)
18 (motion for new trial "shall be filed no later than 10 days after entry of the judgment"). A
19 backward-looking time period requires something to be done within a period of time before an
20 event. See, e.g., Rule 5626(cf) (surnmayjudgmentmt-o" "shal, b set-vedparties must hold
21 Rule 26(f) conference "as soon as practicable and in any event at least +021 days before the-time
22 fixed f,, the hearing"a scheduling conference is held or a scheduling order is due under Rule
23 16(b)"). In determining what is the "next" day for purposes of subdivisions (a)(1)(C) and
24 (a)(2)(C), one should continue counting in the same direction - that is, forward when computing
25 a forward-looking period and backward when computing a backward-looking period. If, for
26 example, a filing is due within 10 days after an event, and the tenth day falls on Saturday,
27 September 1, 2007, then the filing is due on Tuesday, September 4, 2007 (Monday, September 3,
28 is Labor Day). But if a filing is due 10 days before an event, and the tenth day falls on Saturday,
29 September 1, then the filing is due on Friday, August 31.
30 1ý,ý ýý
31 ,=d
32 Subdivision (a)(6). New subdivision (a)(6) defines "legal holiday" for purposes of the
33 deletin- froiFederal Rules of Civil Procedure, including the txt is" not mean. to sugge
34 otheirwise.time-computation provisions of subdivisions (a)(1) and (a)(2).

-12-

247





MEMORANDUM

DATE: March 13, 2007

TO: Time Computation Subcommittee
Committee Reporters

FROM: Judge Mark R. Kravitz
Catherine T. Struve

CC: Judge David F. Levi
John K. Rabiej

RE: Two additional template issues

Since circulating the template draft last week, we have become aware of two issues that
we would like to bring to your attention in advance of the Advisory Committee meetings this
spring. At least one of those issues will require a change to the language of the proposed time-
counting Rule.

The first issue concerns the template's effect on statutory provisions that both set a time
period for use in litigation and provide explicit instructions on how the period should be
computed. The second issue relates to the application of the "legal holidays" definition to
litigation that takes place in the Territories, the District of Columbia or Puerto Rico. These
issues are addressed in parts I and II below.

I. Statutory periods expressed in "business days" or similar language

Our subcommittee's master list of short statutory time periods omits periods that
explicitly instruct that weekends and holidays not be counted. Those periods were omitted based
on the assumption that since the statute specifies the manner of counting, no court would apply a
contrary time-counting Rule. But it occurred to us recently that this assumption might have been
hasty.

-1-



Most statutes that set time periods relating to litigation fail to specify how the periods
should be counted. Some other statutes set periods in "calendar days";' those provisions are
omitted from our master list on the assumption that they will continue to be counted the same
way under the Rules' new days-are-days approach. And - of greatest relevance to this memo - a
few statutes specify a time-counting method that is different from the one that will apply under
the proposed template's approach; those provisions (13 statutes and one regulation) are listed in
the enclosed spreadsheet.

As you know, the template states that its "rules apply in computing any time period
specified in ... any statute ....." And subdivision (a)(1) instructs that "[w]hen the period is stated in
days or a longer unit of time" one must "count every day, including intermediate Saturdays,
Sundays, and legal holidays." For all sets of Rules other than the Bankruptcy Rules, the
supersession authority granted to the rulemakers means that once the template is adopted as part
of the Rules, all statutory provisions to the contrary will be of no force and effect. So the
question is whether any court would interpret the Rules' days-are-days time-counting directive to
supersede an explicit statutory directive to use a non-days-are-days approach. As a policy matter,
we believe it would be undesirable for the Rules to trump such directives. Those directives may
have arisen, for example, from a legislative desire to set a short period but to avoid imposing
hardship in the event that the period includes a weekend or holiday.

It is informative to consider the rationales that courts have used when applying existing or
prior versions of the time-counting Rules to compute statutory periods. Some courts have
applied those Rules as gap-filling measures in the absence of any contrary indication from
Congress. 2 In some instances, courts have applied a time-counting Rule "by analogy," or as a
reasonable estimation of congressional intent in enacting the relevant statutory scheme, rather

See, e.g., 12 U.S.C. § 3410(b) ("All such proceedings shall be completed and the
motion or application decided within seven calendar days of the filing of the Government's
response.").

2 For example, the Third Circuit reasoned as follows in a Federal Tort Claims Act case:

"Section 2401(b) does not contain a time computation rule. It does not say whether the day of the
liability causing event is included or excluded. It says nothing about weekends or holidays at the
end of the two year period. Both with its beginning and with its end interpretation is required.
Aside from the government's rule of interpretation that the claimant ought always to lose, no
more satisfactory rule has been called to our attention than that, approved by Congress, and
announced in Rule 6(a)." Frey v. Woodard, 748 F.2d 173, 175 (3d Cir. 1984). See also United
Mine Workers of America, Intern. Union v. Dole, 870 F.2d 662, 665 (D.C. Cir. 1989) ("The
[Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977] ... makes no separate provision for the computation of
time and was enacted subsequent to the adoption of Rule 26(a); we conclude therefore that
Congress intended its time periods to be computed in accordance with the federal rule.").

-2-



than indicating that the Rule controls of its own force.3 In other cases, courts have applied a
time-counting Rule to compute a statutory period without giving much or any explanation for
that application. But courts confronted with a specific statutory counting method have refused to
apply a contrary directive in the relevant time-counting Rule.4

Clearly, courts applying a time-counting Rule as a gap-filling measure will not apply the
Rule when the statute specifies a contrary time-counting method, for in that event there is no gap
to be filled. Likewise, courts that look to congressional intent would infer from the statute's
specification of a time-counting method that Congress did not intend them to use the time-
counting Rule's contrary method. And courts that already reject the time-counting Rule when
faced with a statutorily-specified time-counting method would continue to do so.

Nonetheless, a technical argument could be made that says that, as to statutes that predate
the adoption of the template in the time-counting Rules, the later-adopted Rule trumps the
previously-adopted statutory time-counting provision.5 It would arguably rise to the level of
absurdity to apply a days-are-days time-counting Rule to calculate a period explicitly set in

3 See, e.g., Tribue v. U.S., 826 F.2d 633, 635 (7th Cir. 1987) (reasoning in Federal Torts
Claims Act case that "if we found § 2401(b) ambiguous regarding whether to exclude the mailing
date, we would exclude the mailing date by analogy to Rule 6(a)"); Pearson v. Furnco Const.
Co., 563 F.2d 815, 819 (7th Cir. 1977) (holding "that in the light of the purposes intended to be
served by Title VII, it is a sound interpretation of congressional intent" to apply Civil Rule 6(a)'s
approach to the computation of the limitations period). Likewise, in an early decision
interpreting the time limit for petitions for certiorari under 28 U.S.C. § 2101, the Supreme Court
drew upon the approach stated in Civil Rule 6(a): "Since [Rule 6(a)] had the concurrence of
Congress, and since no contrary policy is expressed in the statute governing this review, we think
that the considerations of liberality and leniency which find expression in Rule 6(a) are equally
applicable to 28 U.S.C. s 2101(c)." Union Nat. Bank of Wichita, Kan. v. Lamb, 337 U.S. 38, 41
(1949).

4 See F.D.I.C. v. Enventure V, 77 F.3d 123, 126 (5th Cir. 1996) ("In § 1821(d)(14)(A),
Congress provided that the limitations period began 'on the date the claim accrues.' The use of
the word 'on' is clear and creates a more specific rule which overrides the application of Rule
6(a)."); Slinger Drainage, Inc. v. E.P.A., 237 F.3d 681, 683 (D.C. Cir. 2001) (refusing to apply
Rule 26(a) to determine the period's start date because "the statute currently before us clearly
establishes a separate provision for the computation of time: a person may obtain review by filing
'within the 30-day period beginning on the date the civil penalty issued.' 33 U.S.C. §
1319(g)(8)(B) (emphasis added)").

' This argument assumes that the time-counting Rules' application to the relevant time
period is valid under the Rules Enabling Act's scope limitation. That assumption may not
always hold true. For example, 18 U.S.C. § 3142(d)'s time limit on detention may implicate
substantive rights.

-3-



"business days" or "working days." If such applications are absurd, it seems a small step to
conclude that it would likewise be absurd to apply the time-counting Rules' days-are-days
approach when the statute explicitly directs one to exclude weekends and holidays. But even if
this line of reasoning ultimately leads courts to reject the notion that the new time-counting Rules
supersede explicit statutory directives concerning the method of computation, it would be best if
we could draft the Rules to preempt litigation on this point.

We therefore suggest amending the first sentence in the template Rule as follows:

The following rules apply in computing any time period specified in these rules,_in
any local rule or court order, or in any statute[, local . u ... utn t . that does not
specify a time-computation method.

We also favor adding a sentence to the Note to observe that state-court interpretations of state
statutes count as specifying a statutory method.

II. Legal holidays in the Territories, the District of Columbia or Puerto Rico

As you know, the Rules apply not only to district court proceedings held within states, but
also to district court proceedings held within the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico.
Moreover, the Rules apply in proceedings in various territorial courts.6 The template rule defines
"legal holiday" to include the listed holidays plus "any other day declared a holiday by the
President, Congress, or the state where the district court is located." This provision may require
amendment in order to ensure that the "legal holiday" definition functions appropriately in
proceedings within the Territories, the District of Columbia, or Puerto Rico.7

The background definitional principles vary. Civil Rule 81 (e) provides that "When the
word 'state' is used, it includes, if appropriate, the District of Columbia." Our understanding is
that the Civil Rules Committee may be considering whether this definition should be expanded

6 See, e.g., Criminal Rule l(a)(1) (subject to certain exceptions, Criminal Rules govern
criminal proceedings in district courts in Guam, Northern Mariana Islands, and Virgin Islands);
Am. Jur. Federal Courts § 2585 ("[W]hile the District Courts of Guam, the Northern Mariana
Islands, and the Virgin Islands are constituted by the respective Organic Acts for such territories,
rather than by Chapter 5 of the Judicial Code, it is expressly provided in such acts that the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure apply in such courts.").

' Admittedly, courts may decide to interpret the existing language to include more than
just states. Cf. Reyes-Cardona v. J. C. Penney Co., Inc., 690 F.2d 1, 1 (1st Cir. 1982) ("But that
day was a legal holiday in Puerto Rico honoring Eugenio Maria de Hostos. See 1 L.P.R.A. s 75.
As such it is not counted in the computation of time. Rule 6(a) F.R.Civ.P ....."). But it seems
advisable to clarify the matter in rule text.

-4-



to include more than the District of Columbia. Criminal Rule I (b)(9) could provide a model for
such expansion; that Rule provides that "'State' includes the District of Columbia, and any
commonwealth, territory, or possession of the United States." The Appellate Rules contain no
such definitional provision, and the Bankruptcy Rules appear to contain no relevant definition
either.

We therefore would ask the Advisory Committees (other than the Criminal Rules
Committee)8 to consider whether they wish to adopt a general definition such as that in Criminal
Rule I (b)(9). If each set of Rules is amended to contain such a definition, then no change to the
template's definition of "legal holiday" would be required. If such a definition is not adopted,
however, then seems advisable to add the following at the end of the template's subdivision
(a)(6)(B):

The word 'state,' as used in this Rule, includes the Territories, the District of
Columbia and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

We regret that these changes did not surface before we circulated the official version of
the template last week for use in the Advisory Committee meetings this spring. Generally, our
plan is to hold any smaller suggestions for change (such as small changes to Note wording) until
later, so that the Advisory Committees and Reporters do not have to work with a moving target
for purposes of their spring meetings. But these two changes seemed to us to warrant an
exception to that policy, and we wanted to place these issues before the Advisory Committees for
discussion at the spring meetings.

Thank you for your work on this project.

Encl.

8 Obviously, this request is relevant to the Evidence Rules Committee only if it decides

to recommend adopting a time-computation provision in the Evidence Rules.

-5-







,- 
-0 W

 C
 

,2; 
0 

,, 
-y E -

>
' W

., Co 
U

) 04
D
 

._ 
0_ 

C 
.- 

a),.0-m
 

-- .W

v 0 
_. 

a)) 
0
 

-
-

0 
---

(D
 

C
"V

" 
0 

0 
0 

04 
0l

-,-,--0 
0) 

w
0 

co 
Z

o w
 

--
o 

.----

C
.- 

a)0. 
D

 
a

C
U

 
: 

_ 
E 

0 
-0 

U
 

0
U

0
~

 
C

 
U

 
o
o
E

 
E

 
~

 
E

 
a~) 

O
_
 

0
- 

a)

E
E

 
O

f 
a) 

C
 

c 
c-

0 
0

) 
00 

c 
3L

o,
0 

Q
 

'0~ 
cO 

00CLa)r
a)oc0L

 
0m

> 
>

 
0 

0c 
c
o
o
Q

. -

; 
C

 
Z

E
, 

... 
5 

.-
o

 
C

U
 0

a' 
c 

'-
a)0,--,x 

m
 

0) 
._ 

0- 
0,

" 
0
 

>
 

D
>", 

'--

)>
, 

-- 
-0: w

 
D

75 
C

[U
 

a 
4-- 

-
)c) 

0 a)C
)c)0 

c 
°

a))
-6U

)-

c.- 
> 

•

,E

to 
_
 _

_
 

o____ 
,,, 

___,, 
_ 

._
._

_
>

_
_

_
,-,_

_
_
- 

_

a)2Z

0)_ 
0

0
 

0 
0

-
w

)

-
0-) 

a)

-o 
.. 

• 
-

m
 .- 

o 
-

0 .• 
o 

• 
,,,-u

"-ccc._ 
.

"-..

a)U
) 

C
o 

C
C

 
C

( 
-

i

iz 
o Q

,,-- 
)• 

o ,

0 
._ 

0 
00

S(1 
" 

"r-

a) 
c 

-
CO

0 
c 

c

0u 
r0 

-c 
_
D

c
0

0)U
 

0oa 
~

 
~

 
u 

i0 _rZ
 

-u 
-r- (D

~

m
U

 
(D

 
o

~
 

aL
0

0 
w

- .- 
C

: 
-0 

~ ~ 
1

!0

E
 

( 
c 

-
7

:E
 

o)>
 0
a
 0

?:U
 

U
)- 

U
 %

;-- 
3 

)(

oU
)c 

o( 
04

0 C
O

 
= 

)oa) 
X

( 
0
 

0
 

-

C
D

 
Co- 

Co 
)o 

0 
-

C
lo _

 
_
 

_
E

o
_
_
 

_
 

_
 

_
 

_
"_

_
 

_
 

_
 

_
 

_
 

_
 

_
 

_
 

_
 

_
 

_
 

_
 

_

-N
 

a)
C

U
)oc00_20w

-w
-E

 
ocl 

-
H

ý 
"

_
_
 

_
_
_
 

_
_
_
 

_
0
_
_
_
 

_
(D

_
_
C

_
_



c
r
)

(1)
0)

C
a-

-c 
00

E
E

E
 

E
)

_0 
U

) 
_
0
 

-0 
c

00

0
 

0- 
c
 
w
 

ce 
U
)
 

L
 

)
 

E
u

 
) 

a
 

D
U

 
D

C

2 
C

U
 

W
 

a) 
(D

 
a)

E
 

0 
_
0
 

( 
:

coC
 

_F 
U

)
0
O

0 
o

 
~ 

0
)
 

>
 

0
 

a) 
0 

C
0 

-6
. 

00C

(D
 -0

 
C

 
o 

> 
) 

)C
L

>
 

0- 
D
 

J
 

C
-
)
 

0
 

0
_0 

a)~ 
~ 

-
C

o 
E
v
 
)
 

)
 

U
)
 

o

C
0
-
 

0C
 

a
)
 

)
 

C
m
 

V
 

cu
 

4:- 
(n

(D
 

-
-0 

c 
U

) 
C

 
-C

 
C

 
C

;) 
) 

m
a) cC

C
 

U
)
 

-- 
-

U
)M

V
O

D
 

:0 
C

D
 

a
C

L
~Ž

 
-0 

0 
U

-C
D

0
o

- 
a) 

-
C

U
a) 0

 
(D

 
-0 

4
 

-
o 

a 
T

~ 
a
)

(a 
1
6
- 

0
 

U
)
 

o
0
 

:3
 

_
9
 

U
)
 

0
)
 

-7
E
 

0
 

M
~
 

D
T
 

0
 

M
)
 

0
 

_
0
 

0
 

0
 

c
u

-
)
 

U
)
 

n0 
C

:O
 

)U
.2) 

U
)
0
 

0 
c 

J-
U
)
c

a) 
C

:= 
-
M
 

C
L

M
C

U
0.



C
'C

4

C
l) 

cl)

U
)
0
)

0t) 
>

C:C

=3 
C

a 
C

-

0C
C

 
o 

-1 
._

C
L

 
0~) 

~

"--E
 

> 
(D

- 
0 

-- 
co

0
a
0
)
~
C
a
o
 

.
0
-
 

-
0
~
 

C
U

C
 

,C
 

* 
o>00) C

l) 
• 

'-0) 
._ 

c
0
)
0
0
)
 

o 
Cc o 

-
v 

o 
~

-
.

' 
C

: 
0C

)

0
0

U
 

0
)
 

0
0
~

_
-0

 
o,_ 

0
 

C
U
 

-)• 
cu 

-0c
)
 

0

C
- o 

Q
- 

>
o
 

> 
-

0---0o-••00) 
o

 
=3- 

O
"%

:--a 
0 

U
c 

a 
u

 
-0 

cuc 
•

t 
U

 
C

D
 

c- 
C

 
)

:
t
:
 

-_ O 
o
 w
 
m
o
 

.... 
o
 w
 o
 

_
u
 

ý

:ZC
•'> 

X
 

C
V

 
V

 
• 

• 
C

-C
c., 

.
0 

/<
 

D
 

0 
-

0

c 
c .m

0 
t 

0 
'3: 

-

C
 

C
 

-- 
0
, 

w
 

= 
U

' 
C

4) 
0)4---0 

0 
-).

c-, : , 
0 

o
.
-
 
w
-
 

0 
-

-- 
0

, 
, 

0
 

0 
0 

00 
00 

(D
 

-

c- 
a)• 

00 a.-)C
L

(D
 

,..U
 

-
_

_
 

-.
2 

-
" 

C
-- 

0 
C

-
,r 

-
E

.•- 
0 

_ 
(D

 • 
,

E
• 

-
02 

a)c M
 U

) 
o 

o, 
m

• 
-2

' 
; -.- " 

X

C
 

)_-C
 

= 
c
C
u
0

a' -" 
=3 

" 
3 

0- 
C

L
* 

..o 
~ 

0 
0 

• 
0 

0
+
 

C
 

U
) 

c
-
 

c 
L

) 
4
-

, 
a) 

-
0 

" 
O

 
0 

"- 
o 

C
t 

.- 
U

)•n

C
o 

= 
co 

0 
0 

C
L

 
>1 

0 
a) 

c
u

 
cu

M
 
W
 

- 0
 

D
 

-
D

 
__ 

=3 
C

 
C

 
C

 
0

_
0
 tn 

C
:0
 
 

C
IL

 
0
 
)
 

C
a~C

 
0
s
 

D
 

"
C
I
 

=3 
0
1
 

_
O
 

---- 
<

 
a

:F] 
,._ 
,, 

-"I " 
E

0 
=

 
o 

o- -2 
0- : C

/ 
,- 

U
) 

a) 
o 

.o
.

.
..

~ 
~ 

C
 

o 
-" 

-
--oroc• 

• 
oo-o•-

a
C
U
.
a
)
o
E
 

a
U
C
C
0
n
 

0
)

* 
C
-
"
 ;o 0 

0 
-

0
 
W
 

.
D

 
4 

(
D
C
 

-
C

C
U

 
-

(u 
a
 

C
 

0 -
C
L
o
 

0
 
)
-

E
 

.C
 

" 
C

 
0
) 

0
cu

 
U

)E

C
 

C
 

0 
C

 
_-C 

oC
,.- 
c 

_ 
t 

.--
_ >

 
-

-
-- 

Z
o M

 
0)

0
 
0
 
a
 

-
o
~
 

a) 
0
)
 

U
) 

(D
 

E
o
 

o
 

0D
:-- 

a 
1 

C
U
C
 a)

C
L

 
C
U
a

E
 

-o 
E

-c_ 
-
=

•-- 
o
.._

 
• 

0 
C

U
o,_-C

 
uo 

-
o)

C
U

 
-0 

6) 
a) 

0 
(D

 
E

 
C

:_ Z
3 

o0 
>,

Q
)~

~
~

~
~

 
a)E

- 
) 

1C
C

-)~~~ 
C

U
--a)F

 
C

L
 

ct 
U

-. 
cu 

E
.
 
E
 

', 
U

C
U

q

(n 
r- 

cr 
-

0 
r- 

(D
 

-
E

 
(D

 
0M

a)Q
 

0
 

0
a
)0

 
( 

0 
-c 

M
C

0 
3L

 
:0 

C
 

, 
r 

:a 
)o 

-
)ý 

r

a
 

U
 

n
w
 

0
 

U
0
=
 

0
 

N
.L

n
 

a) 
D

 
c:(n 

C
 

.- 
cn 

a)

E
 

--- E
 

0 
~~C

U
 

L
E

 
)



C6 
a, 

a, 
C

-

c0j 
co

0 
V

 
0u

• "o 
ao 

-V
 

-,
C

U
 C

" 
0) 

a)

0 
-

-
4-

r_ ._ M 
0=

.') 
0
)0

)

a),/

a) 
C

V
0 
W
 

C
 

0 
0

S
-
 

: 
=

 
=

C
)

L
O

clico

.C

co
 

CU•_

C
: 

a)

C
.):

"C
 

a) 
0 

o
E

 
E

 
>

0 
0 

-- 
C

C
•. 

, 
C

.n 
C

-0V
0 

0-- 
0"-

a) 
(n

C
 

u.C
 

_-) 
C: 

-U
-- 

C
 U

0 
C

 
0C

 
"- 

0 
----

00 O 
-0. 

a, 
C

- 
0-C

D
~ 

_
7
 

)5;(

U
)• 

0 
, 

O_ 
D
,
 

-0 
cu. 

L
: 

0 
m

 
(D

• m
7 

cu 
0 

Q
x- ;--a

0
ý
 

-
W
 
-
o
 

c
F
 

c
3
 
-
•
O
n
l
-
 

M
 
"

,_ 
a_, 

.. 
._ 

o 
'

-0• 
_ (D c 

.' 
:-" 

E
• 

: 
D

 c- 
,' 

.o 
to 

0 -"a
O

 = CU
 

° 
' 

a 
-' 

0) 
_" 

,_

,> 
,- 

-
-C

, 
_ 

a 
:

O
, 

-W
>

,, 
o
 

c 
.C

o o- 
M

 
-o -

C
• -

c 
0 

0) 
C
3

o 
o 

g 
c: 

-0 
0)

a
,
 

n 
0- 

.-
n 

0 
0, 

-0 
a) 

) 
3 

C
 

C
 

0

Z
C

~>
 

C
D

 
V
E
0
1
-
 

§ 
C

0

r- 
C

) 
a, 

V
l 

-
0.- 

D
 

: 
E

 : 
a) 

-
7,

Z
* 

(nC
 

>
n 

C
o

4
- 

.
a>-

C
 

D
 

a, 
C

a) 
E

 
a, 

x 
V

 (D 
a, 

*C 
a, 

a, 
-a,)

(,'- 
a, 

a, 
" 

a, 
c0 

a, 
;ý

 
a, 

<
o 

o 
a) 

C
U

(D
a 

Z
 

:>C
 

a,- 
0 

a) 
_Q

C
: 

c: 
-

-0
C

0
 

C
 

C
: ~~C

~~~~~; 
=3~a a, 

a 
C

o
 

w
 

, 
aC

nC
 

, 
)

(D
V

C
 

a 
a),2 

B
 

:3 
(D

 
C

o M
ca 

>N
~ m

 
V

 
0 

_0 
-(D

 
0

a)~- 
o
 

E
 

0~D
~

Q
 

<
C

o)E
 

a, 
a) 

C
u 

_0 
a 

E
D

 
3n 

C
: 

_
 

a,
C

' 
-0 

a,, 
a, 

0 
a,)

E
0C

I07(D
 

nE
 

a, 
y ~- 

(D
 0 

V

C
U

 
V

) 
a,>-_ 

-
-:

a) 
L) 

-
) 

0 
( 

) 
Q

 
n 

(D
 

( 
(

=3 
cD

o 
0
0
0



oC
 

co

-- 
C

>cV
 

C
) 

._
_
_
u

 
_
a
) 

_
_
_
_
_
_
 

_
_
_
 

0_ 
x 

D
C

i)

C
'..

0 
0>0

-
~ 

00C
D

 
C

D
 

0) 
0a)C

•- 
oo-•

) 
-- -

r•- 
(D

 
a)_ 

=
 

-) 
-• 

a 
o

0 
-, 

0 
C

~C
),, 

0 
oa 

C
 

) 
(,a

C
14 

-0C

a) 
6 

"0-C
 

U
)C

o
 

a) 
.C

 
" 

~
 

-E
- M

 -C
--(

0
 

0 
.- , 

"• 
.

c 
c. 

4-f 
0 j 

a 
E

: 
-

:F
: ) 

0-0U
 

C
o 

) 
= 

0

:;= 
".• 

0 
-L

- 
o.) • 

• 
a) 

_ 
"- 

.- 
"

.
uF

- 
-0 

E
 

?U
0-)--- 

0
c0

.
-

' 
0 

C
D

c 
oE

• 
-

-E
 

0
C

.
a) 

c 
o 

-) 
(D

-L
a0 

.O
 c- 

-0 
x
 
m

C
. C

 
rC

 
.) 

o
, 
0
 

0 
00 _ 

m

a, 
, 

0 
0 

C
 

C
 

U
0•ai0 

a"

0) 
C

o. 
o 

C: 
?: 

o. 
E

) 
=

, 
n

S
 

,.- 
• 

0cC
U

_ 
-C

 
, >

 
M

•.o -r

o 
U

 
0 

,
2

~
 

) 
.

• .
,, 

0 
C

 
')-,-* 

". 
.- 

:.• 
( 

C
 '

_ 
M
 

C
 

C
U

 
* o

(t ) a
 ) --

) 
-

.
-

.
__

_
 

C
-l0o

 
o 

a) 
C

D
 

~a) :C
C

"- 
a) 

0 
a

) ) 
"

-
2

3 
-

>0 
0 

0 
a

 
) 

0 
r 

-
C

 
U

.- 
0-- 

-
0• 

O
 

=
3
 

C
 

• 
oC

 
U

=
_ 

~
~

~
 t 

C
 

C
i 

m
 

-
--

?. 
C

 
0-0- 

c 
" 

"u 
-

•-- 
C

 
-

!• " 
Z

 
.

-
M
 

_ 
-

-0 
" 

-E
 

-
o• 

C
•
 

o--.- 
". 

.
-

-

0I 
U

 
C

)-
0 

( 
E

 !E
 

) 
D

 
0 

0
m
 

0 
C

U
 

j; 
0- 

_
ý
 

j 
(

oC
 C 

-o
 

>
, 

.0 
o 

o 
C

--, 
(D

 
-

-o
 

C
 

C
U

V
0- c 

a 
C

0 
:;z 

-
) 

M
 

C: 
O

 
C

o 
-F

u 
)

C
 

D
.0 

C
 

O
C

U
 

0) 
.- 

a)0 
0U

C
4~

U
 

C
 

a)=
 

-~
C

 
0

0 
-

a

C
N

 
eC

N

a) 
0 

U
)cnC

C
 

a

-F
 .

-
_

a)J 
0 

3 
n>1C

 
D

 
oJ) 

a



C
U

) 
m

)
U

l) 
C

/)
l0) 

0,)

V
)

-0 
-0

00
4

-- 
• 

.--

U
) 

c
 
0
 

o
.- 

0 
0- 

U
 

) 
=- .c 

.- 
-

=-
_
0
 

0) 
C

: 
0 

= 
c Co 

0
C

U
 

C
t 

_
 

D
 

0 
0

C
: 

U
 

)C
 

0

C
C

 -
o 

0 
0 

D
L

 
-- 

o

C
, ý5 

-
-a -

m
 0
 

C
- 

• 
o
 

--o 
m

o•' 
in 

-0 
, 

oO
 

-0• 
• 

°-C
 

0° 
-' 

•-

_ 
m

 
D

 
-

, 
C

L
-0

 
-

_ 
0
.
0
 

• 
o) 

,-0 -) 
o)_- 

0 
-
.

C
o 

0 4-- 
00 

a-) 
a) 

C
U

 
-

E
 

"

O
L

 
L

- 
(1 4- 

0 
>

 
° 

E

0,0 
) 

C
00 

C
) 

4-. 
0bC

~ 
U

 
)- 

U
 

C
 

V
C

C
-0 

0) 
-0o 

-6 
° 

4
-  

--- 
..

o 
-0

.
.0 

" 
L

) 
(-, 

0 
o
 

'-a 
J 

C
U

 
C

L

.
0  

D
 

" 
•_-- 

U
)"-" 

o)-o.E
 

C
 

U
o 

• 
.,_

C
L

 
E

 
L

E
tE

c
: 

-6 
c 

O
 

E
 

cO
 

E
U

 o 
C
3
 0
 

C
 

-U) 
U

)

og 
a)E

a) 
0 

C
o 

-
.

C
-: 

--
D

 
0o 

-0
E

n
 -

0 
_ 

.- 
o 

h 
0.•a 

)  
m

o -
a) 

_
 

a 
,- 

0
 

4- 
o

a
)
~

O
0

 
U

 
)20n 

E
 

-
D

 
I

(D
- 

E
 

D
 

C
r- 

0 
a) 

c-0)_ 
0 

-m
U

"C
- 

0 
O

M
 

0 
0
m
c
m
C
 

C
L 

-0 
C

 
0) 

U
o)(n 

,T
 

)
4
- 

C
: u 

00 
n 

C
U

 
U

)U
 

0 
0

~
 cu0 o 

-0 
0 

y
)-0

E
 

cu
0 ) 

0 
-

C
L

 
E
 

0
4
-
 

m
0
 

V
U

-

C
U

 C
 

C
 

0
 

0
) 

0):U
 

-(~ 
U

U
 

0rZ
0 

0) 
-

C
D

C
 

E
0-0 

= 
C

D
 

C
: 

0
U

 
0 

:3 
C

: 
C

o 
0) 

.- 
n 

D
 

0) 
U

) 
c- 

0 
a)'- 

a) 
-~ 

a
)~ 

W
 

0
 

m
 

E
 

C

, 
E

 
-

o 
D

 
m

 
-.

U
--U

)C

Z
o .U

=) C
L

a) 
ý, 

) 
o 

C
3 

L
a

0' 
(n

 
aC

o"Jm
 

c
 

0c



C
) 

C
14

M
 

c 
U

00 
U

O
 

a

C
 

C
-

-, 
>, 

o
) 

"-) 
2

C
) 

E
0 

m
 

-o 
.

L
L

E
c 

0

>- 
E

00

W
o

o 0E
U

 
" 

a

-- 
o) 

C
D

 
U

 
a) 

-6 -
E

a u) 
U

) 
0 

00
U

) 
a) 

a)

_cn 
0 

U
) 

0 
-

C
u 

V
) 

-9 
ID

- a) 
) 

cn 
o
C

U

C
L

 
0) c 

o 
-•U

" 
-

C
-'

n- 
0 -

0oo'o O
 

= c 
C

 
-1:-K

- 
×-

-u 
cua)U

- 
cu 

C
u

=
 

o 
o -o -) 

O
 

"6 .
o- 

, 
"

-
a) 

.C
 

C
), 

-
o 

-
_ 

C
,.-: CL 

" a) 
.- 

"0 
o) 

-
a) 

-)-" 
a) u-. E 

E 
E < 

o 
-x

E
 

0 
_
 

E 
o 

-o

F
U

 
=3.a 

-: 
m 

c
 

0
 oa)•

-- 
M

 
-

_0 
-

0 
c 

C
) 

0
 

c 
-

-0 
-C

- U
C

:- 
U

) 
C

: 
>, 

D
(D

.a)0 
0 

(D
cu

 
a)U

 
U

)C
 

> 0 c- 
ca 

cu
 

(n 
0

C
U

), 
C

:a
C

, 
D

 
0) 

:: 
)(D

C
-a 

U
)
 

( 
(D

 
C

O
 

0 .. 
U

 cuX

U
)
 

C
 

a 
U
-
-

-a 
0 

-0 
_0 

0) 
a) 

~~Lo 
O

 
U

 
0

4-C
 

E
U

 
4
- 

>
 

)

0 
(D

 
(D

 
.;Z

rC
 

M
 

LL
oo 

*-* 
a)~ ) 

-
0

)  
a) 

C
: 

a) 
c)C

:

> 
C

: 
U

) 
0C

L
 

C
:c 

C
) 

C
)

U
)( 

a 
n 

3 
c U

);-- 
M

 
a
)U

)c
 

N
 

o3C
U

) 
o 

_.C
 

0
)*

 
0 

,- 
F 

n
_

C
D
 

C
 

C
:
 

I 
ca 

a) 
a
0
 ) 

C
0

4
 

-00 
-0L

O
-

-- 
*C

)~ 
a

)*
 

0
0
 

) 
0 

)
cn 

-co 
U

) 
m
 

E
 

0 
0
a
 

0 
o

 
) 

E
 

-

a) 
L

. 
) 

a)C
L 

(
D
 

C

C
 

D
 

>
, 

-0 
C
0
 

0
 

-0 
Q

O
~ 

C
 

U
). 

-0/
a) 

c 
) 

M
 

M
0)U

( 
H

2 
a) 

L
)a

a
U
 

)
 

)
>
C
 

-0~ 
E 

cm
 

-
0  

a
 

) 
LL 
0
 

C
D

~
c
 U

) 
-0 

O
 

C
O

D
 

o
 

w
D
 

-0 
3 

--
0= 

-0 
C

U
) 0O

-C
 

cO
D

.a) 
cn 

(D
 
D
.
-
 r
C
 C
O
U
)
 

-
0
 

8
0
 

e
 

L
- 

U
))C

C
: 

4
 

) 
n 

L 
D

 
-

a 
n 

C

L)) 
C

D
 

a)



U
) 

U
)

aC
, 

a
,1

C
..

(D

0 
E

0- 
0:

0--0--

a,:, 
0"a

F
- cu~ 

0) 
c

U
)U

)>
E

U
)

0 
cc 

>
. 

0
C

 
C

 
0
2
5
-C

 
=

c
0

a 
_

£°E 
,_ 

ca 
M

 
="0 

a)
-
0
_
 

-o_• 
0
 -, 

-•. 
= 

E
.'•'=

 
,0•" 

••= .
a) 

> 
coa 

cs 
o 

-
C

C
g
• 

.
._' 
o 

• 
E

.-aU
 

._,,, 
V

, 
,•_..

ou- 
o0 

o
a
m
0

> 
E

• 
"- 

-c) 
-: 

) 
L

--
a- 

i 
(D

, 
,_o.

2 
O

 
O

 
a 

a,

a, 
" 

(a,
.o .(U

C
 -

a, 
a 

°= 
a
U

- 
,- 

o' 
)

-
m

 
0 

o 
C

C
t-- 

-
o•a•-0,a 

'

M
 

o 
a 

, 
-

ca 
.-0 

.
-.

o.-

E
 

cu a)a, 
05 

a)C
0

~'~

)C
~ 

U
)C

C
 

) 
-C

 
a),

C
: 

E
ý
 

(n 
C

D
 

4E 
Y

) -~
C

 E
 (D

D
 

C
0
 

16 
aS a, 

a
) 

p
 

D
 

E
 

0
Ž

 
In

a
a
) 

a
)

.D
 

a, 
4-0 

a, 
M

g 
-U

 
.-

0 
O

C
D

0 
a,-0*-C

D

w
0
 

o
0
- 

C
 

M
0
a

0) 
(D

o0) 
a 

0C
E

(D
 

) 
(0 

-_

0
N

 
co

E
c 

E
 

(D

o 
ca 

-

C
: 

C
: 

c 
-

a)

cn 
cnC

 
-

-
C

 
o 

-4
-C

 
D

 
(



MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: AMENDMENTS REQUIRED BY THE CIVIL RULES RESTYLING PROJECT

DATE: FEBRUARY 16, 2007 / revised 2/26/07 (JHW)

As you may recall, the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure underwent a cover to cover

restyling with the changes to become effective on December 1, 2007. The restyled rules have

been approved by the Judicial Conference and are now pending before the Supreme Court which

is expected to promulgate the rules in April. We have previously submitted comments (attached)

on the restyled rules, and the purpose of this memorandum is to recommend conforming

amendments to the Bankruptcy Rules made necessary by the reconfiguration of several of the

Civil Rules to which references are made in the Bankruptcy Rules. For example, the Civil Rule

23.1 was restyled to introduce subdivisions in the rule where no had existed previously. The title

of the rule is also changed. The amendment that introduced the subdivisions requires no action

by us, but we do need to change the title of our Rule 7023.1. Civil Rule 22 governing

interpleaders was amended such that Rule 22(1) is now Rule 22(a). Our Rule 7022 would need

to be amended to reflect this change. The technical amendments necessary to conform the

Bankruptcy Rules to the restyled Civil Rules are set out below. Because these amendments are

entirely technical in nature and merely conform the rules to reflect the changes in cross

references within the Civil Rules, I do not believe that it is necessary to publish these changes for

comment. Instead, I recommend that we propose the following changes to the Standing

Committee for its adoption and recommendation thereafter to the Judicial Conference for its

1

248



approval and transmission to the Supreme Court without publication or comment. There are only

four rules that require amendment.

Rule 7012. Defenses and Objections--When and How
Presented--By Pleading or Motion--Motion for Judgment on
the Pleadings

2 (b) Applicability of Rule 12(b)-(h) (i) F.R.Civ.P.

3 Rule 12(b)-(h) 0(1 F.R.Civ.P. applies in adversary proceedings. A

4 responsive pleading shall admit or deny an allegation that the

5 proceeding is core or non- core. If the response is that the

6 proceeding is non-core, it shall include a statement that the party

7 does or does not consent to entry of final orders or judgment by

8 the bankruptcy judge. In non-core proceedings- final orders and

9 judgments shall not be entered on the bankruptcy judge's order

10 except with the express consent of the parties.

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to conform to the changes made to the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure through the restyling of those
rules effective on December 1, 2007.

Rule 7022. Interpleader

1 Rule 22 (-1-) (a) F.R.Civ.P. applies in adversary proceedings.

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to conform to the changes made to the

2

249



Federal Rules of Civil Procedure through the restyling of those
rules effective on December 1, 2007.

Rule 7023.1. Derivative Ptio eedmigs by Shat -,1 oldet s Actions

1 Rule 23.1 F.R.Civ.P. applies in adversary proceedings.

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to conform to the changes made to
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure through the restyling of those
rules effective on December 1, 2007.

Rule 9024. Relief from Judgment or Order
1 Rule 60 F.R.Civ.P. applies in cases under the Code except that

2 (1) a motion to reopen a case under the Code or for the

3 reconsideration of an order allowing or disallowing a claim

4 against the estate entered without a contest is not subject to the

5 one year limitation prescribed in Rule 60 (-b) (C_, (2) a complaint

6 to revoke a discharge in a chapter 7 liquidation case may be filed

7 only within the time allowed by § 727(e) of the Code, and (3) a

8 complaint to revoke an order confirming a plan may be filed only

within the time allowed by § 1144, § 1230, or § 1330.

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to conform to the changes made to the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure through the restyling of those
rules effective on December 1, 2007.

RESTYLED RULES NOT REQUIRING AMENDMENTS

The restyled Civil Rule 12(d) is essentially the last sentence of existing Civil Rule 12(b).

Former subdivision 12(d) becomes 12(i) in the restyled rules. Notwithstanding these

3

250



amendments, I do not believe that we need to amend Bankruptcy Rule 1011 (c) which refers to

Civil Rule 12(b). The portion of Rule 12(b) that is moved to subdivision (d) simply provides that

a Rule 12(b)(6) motion that includes matters outside of the pleadings is treated as a summary

judgment motion. The text of Rule 101 (c) and the portion of Rule 7012 that refers to Civil Rule

12(b) are not affected by this change in Civil Rule 12.

Existing Civil Rules 43(d), (e), and (f) are renumbered as restyled Rules 43(b), (c), and (d).

This has the potential of causing confusion since the Advisory Committee Note to the 2002

amendment to Bankruptcy Rule 9014 contains a statement that Civil Rule 43(a), rather than Rule

43(e), governs the evidentiary hearing on disputed material factual issues. The cross reference is

not a problem, however, because Bankruptcy Rule 9017 incorporates Civil Rule 43 in its entirety

and Rule 43(a) continues to apply to taking the testimony of witnesses.

4

251



MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON CIVIL RULES 05-CV.. OI1(
FROM: THOMAS S. ZILLY, CHAIR

ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

RE: RESTYLED CIVIL RULES

DATE: DECEMBER 15, 2005

The Advisory Committee on Bankruptcy Rules conducted a review of the restyled Federal

Rules of Civil Procedure. Six subgroups of the Committee studied Rules 1-16, 17-25, 26-37, 38-

53, 54-63, and 64-82, respectively. The primary purpose of the review was to determine whether

the restyling of the Civil Rules, once effective, will require any amendments to the Bankruptcy

Rules to conform to the changes made to the Civil Rules. The review also was intended to

determine whether any of the stylistic changes might have any substantive impact on the

Bankruptcy Rules either in Part VII of those Rules or otherwise.

The Advisory Committee on Bankruptcy Rules congratulates the Advisory Committee on

Civil Rules and its consultants for the exceptional effort in the restyling project. The restyling

significantly improves the Civil Rules both as to their clarity and readability. We thank the Civil

Rules Committee for its contribution to the fair and efficient administration of justice in civil and

bankruptcy cases.

Our initial review of the restyled Civil Rules suggests that approximately ten Bankruptcy

Rules may need to be amended to conform to the changes in the Civil Rules, and we will be

proposing those amendments to the Standing Committee in due course. As to the Civil Rules,

our Committee offers the following comments and suggestions for your consideration. In no

252



instance did we find any change in the language of the rules that created specific problems for the

application of these rules in bankruptcy cases and proceedings. We did, however, make several

observations about the rules and offer them to you for your consideration.

Civil Rule 12

The restyling of this rule includes reconfiguring former subdivision (c) into subdivisions

(c) and (d) with former subdivision (d) becoming new subdivision (i). This does the least

damage to the structure of the subdivisions, but it still creates a problem for persons who are

conducting research under this rule and Bankruptcy Rule 7012. We will be proposing a

conforming amendment to Rule 7012, and in the Committee Note to that rule amendment we

will refer specifically to the changed configuration of Civil Rule 12. We think that the

Committee Note to restyled Civil Rule 12 should include a specific statement that subdivision (c)

is being split into subdivisions (c) and (d) and that restyled subdivision (i) is former subdivision

(d). The side by side form of the published restyled rules makes these changes abundantly clear,

but in the future, only the final version of the rules will published. Those rules generally include

the dated Committee Notes, and if the Note were to include a description that warns the reader of

the changes in the subdivision numbering it may avoid confusion in the future.

Civil Rule 40

The proposed style amendment to Civil Rule 40 deletes from the options the court has for

scheduling trials the alternative of "such other manner as the courts deem expedient." The two

options that would be left appear to permit either (i) the court to set trial on its own, or (ii) a party

to request a trial date "with notice to the other parties." This potentially might interfere with "self

calendaring" systems, in which a party can select an available date, without prior notice to other

2

253



parties. The separate Style-Substance Track amendment to Civil Rule 40, however, may be

intended to resolve the matter by deleting the language about parties making requests and

providing notice. We bring this to the attention of the Advisory Committee only to make sure

that the Committee intends the change to permit a court to operate self calendaring systems, if the

court believes that such systems are desirable.

Civil Rule 43

The proposed restyling of Civil Rule 43 would, among other things, renumber existing

Rules 43(d), (e), and (f) as (b), (c), and (d), respectively. This has the potential of creating

confusion, particularly since the Advisory Committee Notes to Civil Rule 43 and Bankruptcy

Rule 9014 would contain outdated references (for example, the 2002 Committee Note to Rule

9014 refers to Civil Rule 43(e), which would be changed to Rule 43(c)). Some of the confusion

would be alleviated if the proposed Committee Note to Civil Rule 43 made express reference to

the renumbering of the sections. A sentence to that effect could be added to the proposed

Committee Note in a manner comparable to that suggested for restyled Civil Rule 12.

Civil Rule 45

The last sentence of restyled Civil Rule 45(b)(1) would require some prior notice to other

parties "before [a subpoena] is served." We have two concerns about this proposed amendment.

First, the requirement of service of notice of the subpoena on other parties "before" the subpoena

is served on the person from whom documents are requested without any further guidance, may

lead to confusion and potential litigation. For example, would service 30 seconds "before"

suffice, or would service have to be sufficiently "before" so that opposing parties would have an

opportunity to act before the subject of the subpoena is served? The consensus of our Committee

3

254



was that service on other parties should be "with" or "contemporaneously with" service on the

subpoenaed party.

Second, our Committee was concerned that this amendment was more than merely

"stylistic." Indeed, the proposed Committee Note suggests that its purpose is to resolve

conflicting interpretations of the current rule. We have not conducted a review of the case law in

the area. We simply note that the Committee Note seems to suggest that the style change is

intended to resolve at least some degree of conflict among the courts.

Civil Rule 59

The Committee may wish to consider revising the title of the rule to "New Trial; Altering

or Amending a Judgment" in order to reflect the full subject matter of the rule. Rule 59(e)

includes both altering and amending judgments, and adding that reference in the title of the rule

would make it consistent with the text of the subsection.

Civil Rule 64

Rule 64(a) refers to remedies that provide "for seizing a person or property to satisfy a

potential judgment." We would suggest that this portion of the rule be revised slightly to state

that every remedy is available that "provides for seizing a person or property to secure

satisfaction of the potential judgment." The change would make clear that the seizure of the

person is not to satisfy the potential judgment, but rather to secure the satisfaction of the

judgment.

The Committee questioned whether it is necessary for Rule 64(e) to include the

descriptions of subject matter of 28 U.S.C. § 2361 and 28 U.S.C. § 2284. Since these provisions

contain nothing beyond the matters included in the Rule's description, a simple reference to the

4

255



particular sections seems sufficient.

Civil Rule 68

The second sentence of subdivision (c) of the rule begins with "It must be served ... "

The use of "it" refers to the offer of judgment, but the preceding sentence in the subdivision

includes other matters. The second sentence could avoid any ambiguity by stating that "The offer

must be served ... "

Civil Rule 69

The restyled rule changes the word "directs" in subdivision (a)(1) to "orders". In the

bankruptcy rules, we use "directs" as a broader term that covers standing orders and local rules,

so that stylistic choice may be significant if applied to our rules. The Global Drafting Issues

table indicates that the Advisory Committee prefers the use of "orders" rather than "directs", but

we have some concern that it may leave open some question about the application of local rules

or other directives by courts when the rule refers only to orders as compared to the language in

the existing version of Rule 69(a)(1).

5

256





Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket (By Rule Number) 3/2/07

Active Items

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 1004.2 05-BK-B 3/06 - Referred to Subcommittee
(new) Judge Samuel Bufford on Technology and Cross Border
Designation of 1/20/06 Insolvency
center of main 5/06 - Subcommittee discussed
interest in 6/06 - Subcommittee approved
chapter 15 case revised amendments

9/06 - Committee approved for
publication

Rule 1005 Committee proposal and 3/05 - Committee considered, 12/1/08
Include all names Bankruptcy Abuse referred to Subcommittee on
used by debtor Prevention and Consumer Privacy, Public Access &
for 8 years in Protection Act of 2005 Appeals
caption; redact an (BAPCPA) 9/05 - Referred to Forms
individual's Subcomt.
taxpayer ID 3/06 - Committee approved for
number publication

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

257



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 2

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 1006 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Installment implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
payments, waiver 3/06 - Committee approved for
of filing fee publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 1006 Judge Geraldine Mund 9/06 - Referred to Subcommittee
Payments to 8/14/06 on Consumer Matters
petition preparers 12/06 - Subcommittee

considered
3/07 - Committee to consider

Rule Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
1007(a),(b),(c) implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
Required 9/05 - Amended by Committee
documents 3/06 - Committee approved for

publication with changes as
national rule
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule Judge Christopher Klein 9/06 - Referred to Subcommittee
1007(b)(7),(c) 8/8/06 on Consumer Matters
Extension of 12/06 - Subcommittee
time to file considered
statement on 3/07 - Committee to consider
completion of
financial
management
course

258



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 3

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 1009(b) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Amended implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
Statement of 3/06 - Committee approved for
Intention publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 1010 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Service of implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
petition for 3/06 - Committee approved for
recognition of publication as national rule
foreign nonmain 6/06 - Standing Committee
proceeding approved for publication

8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 1010 05-BK-B 3/06 - Referred to Subcommittee
Service of Judge Samuel Bufford on Technology and Cross Border
petition for 1/20/06 Insolvency
recognition of 5/06 - Subcommittee discussed
all foreign 6/06 - Subcommittee approved
proceedings revised amendments

9/06 - Committee approved for
publication

259



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 4

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rules 1010(b) Committee proposal 9/04 - Committee considered, 12/1/08
Rule 7007.1 referred to Reporter
applied in 3/05 - Committee considered,
involuntary cases tabled to 9/05

9/05 - Referred to Business

Subcommittee
3/06 - Committee approved for
publication
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 1011(a) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Who may contest implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
petition for 3/06 - Committee approved for
recognition of a publication as national rule
foreign 6/06 - Standing Committee
proceeding. approved for publication

8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

260



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 5

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 1011(f) Committee proposal 9/04 - Committee considered, 12/1/08
Rule 7007.1 referred to Reporter
applied to 3/05 - Committee considered,
responses to tabled to 9/05
involuntary and 9/05 - Referred to Business
chapter 15 cases Subcommittee

3/06 - Committee approved for
publication
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 1014 Joint Subcommittee on 8/04 - Approved by Joint 12/1/07
Clarifies that Venue and Chapter 11 Subcommittee
court may act sua Matters 9/04 - Committee approved for
sponte to dismiss publication
or transfer a case 1/05 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/05 - Published for public
comment
3/06 - Committee approved
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved
9/06 - Judicial Conference
approved

Rule 1015(b) Committee proposal 3/06 - Committee approved for 12/1/08
Cross reference (technical amendment) to publication
to § 522(b) implement BAPCPA 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment

3/07 - Committee to review
comments

261



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 6

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 1017(e) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Dismissal or implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
conversion for 3/06 - Committee approved for
abuse publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rules 1019(2) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
New filing implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
periods in 3/06 - Committee approved for
converted case publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 1020 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Small business implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
chapter 11 case 3/06 - Committee approved for

publication as national rule
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

262



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 7

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 1021 (new) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Health care implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
business case 3/06 - Committee approved for

publication as national rule
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
2002(a),(b),(c), implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
(f),(g),(p),(q) 9/05 - Amended by Committee
Additional notice 3/06 - Committee approved for
requirements publication with changes as

national rule
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 2 002(g)(5) National Bankruptcy 3/06 - Committee approved for 12/1/08
Notice under Conference to implement publication
§ 342(g)(1) BAPCPA 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review

comments

263



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 8

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 2002(k) Committee proposal to 3/06 - Committee approved for 12/1/08
Notice to U.S. implement BAPCPA publication
trustee of petition 6/06 - Standing Committee
for recognition approved for publication

8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 2002 05-BK-B 3/06 - Referred to Subcommittee
Determination of Judge Samuel Bufford on Technology and Cross Border
mailing address 1/20/06 Insolvency
of a foreign 5/06 - Subcommittee discussed
creditor 6/06 - Subcommittee approved

revised amendments
9/06 - Committee approved for
publication

Rule 2003(a) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Meeting of implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
creditors not 3/06 - Committee approved for
convened publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Conmmittee to review
comments

Rule 2007.1 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Election of implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
trustee in chapter 3/06 - Committee approved for
11 case publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

264



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 9

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 2007.2 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
(new) implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
Appointment of 3/06 - Committee approved for
patient care publication as national rule
ombudsman 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 2015 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Notice by foreign implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
representative 3/06 - Committee approved for

publication as national rule
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 2015(a)(6) Business Subcommittee 8/05 - Approved in principle by 12/1/08
Periodic financial to implement BAPCPA Committee as national rule
reports by small 3/06 - Committee approved for
business debtor publication

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

265



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 10

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 2015.1 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
(new) implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
Patient care 3/06 - Committee approved for
ombudsman publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 2015.2 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
(new) implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
Patient transfer in 3/06 - Committee approved for
health care publication as national rule
business case 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 2015.3 Business Subcommittee 8/05 - Approved in principle by 12/1/08
(new) to implement BAPCPA Committee as national rule
Periodic reports 3/06 - Committee approved for
on related entities publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

266



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 11

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 3002(c)(5) 04-BK-E 3/05 - Committee considered, 12/1/08
Timing issues for Judge Dana L. Rasure for referred to Privacy
notice of newly Bankruptcy Judges Subcommittee
discovered assets Advisory Group 9/05 - Deferred pending further

11/15/04 study of time periods
3/06 - Committee approved for
publication
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 3002(c) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Time for implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
governmental 3/06 - Committee approved for
unit and creditor publication as national rule
with foreign 6/06 - Standing Committee
address to file approved for publication
proof of claim 8/06 - Published for public

comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 3003(c) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Time for creditor implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
with foreign 3/06 - Committee approved for
address to file publication as national rule
proof of claim 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

267



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 12

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 3007(b) Committee proposal 9/04 - Committee approved for 12/1/07
Procedure for publication
objection to 1/05 - Standing Committee
claim - no approved for publication
affirmative relief 8/05 - Published for public
at same time comment

3/06 - Committee approved
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved
9/06 - Judicial Conference
approved

Rule 3007(c)-(f) Joint Subcommittee on 8/04 - Considered by Joint 12/1/07
Omnibus Venue and Chapter 11 Subcommittee
objections to Matters 9/04 - Approved in principle by
claims Committee

1/05 - Revised by Joint
Subcommittee.
3/05 - Committee approved for
publication
6/05 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/05 - Published for public
comment
3/06 - Committee approved with
changes
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved
9/06 - Judicial Conference
approved

268



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 13

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 3016(b) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Combined plan implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
and disclosure 3/06 - Committee approved for
statement publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 3016(d) Business Subcommittee 8/05 - Approved in principle by 12/1/08
Forms for plan to implement BAPCPA Committee as national rule
and disclosure 3/06 - Committee approved for
statement publication

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 3017.1 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Conditional implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
approval of form 3/06 - Committee approved for
disclosure publication as national rule
statement 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

269



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 14

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 3019 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Modification of implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
confirmed plan 3/06 - Committee approved for

publication as national rule
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment

3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 4001 Joint Subcommittee on 8/04 - Discussed by Joint 12/1/07
Requirements for Venue and Chapter 11 Subcommittee.
cash collateral Matters 9/04 - Discussed by Committee
motions, 1/05 - Approved by Joint
obtaining credit, Subcommittee
and approval of 3/05 - Committee approved for
certain publication
agreements 6/05 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/05 - Published for public
comment
3/06 - Committee approved with
changes
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved
9/06 - Judicial Conference

_approved

270



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 15

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 4002 03-BK-D 8/03 - Sent to chair and reporter 12/1/08
Debtor's Lawrence A. Friedman 9/03 - Committee considered,
obligation to 8/1/03 referred to Consumer Subcomt.
provide tax 1/04 - Consumer Subcommittee
returns, personal Interim Rule to considered at focus group
identification, implement BAPCPA meeting
and other 3/04 - Committee approved for
documents publication

6/04 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/04 - Published for public
comment

3/05 - Committee approved (as
modified)
4/05 - Committee deferred
action
8/05 - Included in Interim Rules
3/06 - Committee approved for
publication as national rule
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

271



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 16

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 4003(b) 04-BK-B 3/04 - Sent to chair and reporter 12/1/08
Changes Judge Eugene R. Wedoff 9/04 - Committee considered,
deadlines for 2/17/04 referred to Consumer Subcomt.
objections to 11/04 - Approved by
exemptions. Subcommittee

3/05 - Committee approved in
part, referred to Consumer
Subcomt. for further study
9/05 - Committee approved for
publication
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 4003(b) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Objection to implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
exemption based 3/06 - Committee approved for
on § 522(q) publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

272



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 17

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 4003(d) 04-BK-B 9/04 - Committee considered 12/1/08
Lien holder's Judge Eugene R. Wedoff along with Rule 4003(b)
objection to 2/17/04 amendment, referred to
avoidance Consumer Subcommittee
notwithstanding 3/05 - Committee considered,
the 30-day limit referred to Consumer Subcomt.

9/05 - Committee approved for
publication
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 4004(c) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Requirements for implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
discharge 9/05 - Amended by Committee

3/06 - Committee approved for
publication with changes as
national rule
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review

comments

Rule 4004(a) Committee proposal 9/06 - Referred to Subcommittee
Application of 8/22/06 on Consumer Matters
section 1328(f) 12/06 - Subcommittee discussed

3/07 - Committee to consider

273



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 18

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 4006 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Notice that case implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
closed without 3/06 - Committee approved for
discharge publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 4007 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Time to file implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
dischargeability 3/06 - Committee approved for
action publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

274



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 19

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 4008 01-BK-E 1/02 - Referred to chair and 12/1/08
Filing deadline Bankruptcy Judges reporter
for reaffirmation Advisory Group 3/02 - Committee considered,
agreement 11/30/01 referred to subcommittee.

10/02 - Committee approved for
publication
1/03 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/03 - Published for public
comment
3/04 - Committee approved
6/04 - Standing Committee
approved
9/04 - Judicial Conference
approved
4/05 -Withdrawn from Supreme
Court at request of Committee
and Executive Committee due to
conflicting BAPCPA provisions
3/06 - Committee approved
revised draft for publication
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 4008 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Debtor's § 524(k) implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
statement in 3/06 - Committee approved for
support of publication as national rule
reaffirmation 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

275



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 20

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 5001(b) Committee Proposal 9/03 - Committee approved in 12/1/08
Holding court principle; further action deferred
outside the 9/05 - Committee approved for
district in an publication
emergency 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 5003 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Mailing implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
addresses of 3/06 - Committee approved for
certain tax publication as national rule
authorities 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 5008 (new) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Notice regarding implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
presumption of 3/06 - Committee approved for
abuse publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

276



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 21

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 5009 05-BK-B 3/06 - Referred to Subcommittee
Closing chapter Judge Samuel Bufford on Technology and Cross Border
15 cases 1/20/06 Insolvency

5/06 - Subcommittee discussed
6/06 - Subcommittee approved
revised amendments
9/06 - Committee approved for
publication

Rule 5012 (new) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Communications implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
with foreign 3/06 - Committee approved for
courts publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 5012 (new) 05-BK-B 3/06 - Referred to Subcommittee
Agreements Judge Samuel Bufford on Technology and Cross Border
concerning 1/20/06 Insolvency
coordination of 5/06 - Subcommittee discussed
chapter 15 cases 6/06 - Subcommittee approved
and foreign revised amendments
proceedings 9/06 - Committee approved for

publication as revision of
amendment published 08/06

277



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 22

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 6003 (new) Joint Subcommittee on 8/04 - Discussed by Joint 12/1/07
First day orders Venue and Chapter 11 Subcommittee

Matters 9/04 - Discussed by Committee
1/05 - Approved by Joint
Subcommittee
3/05 - Committee approved for
publication
6/05 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/05 - Published for public
comment
3/06 - Committee approved with
changes
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved
9/06 - Judicial Conference
approved

Rule 6004(g) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Sale of implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
personally 3/06 - Committee approved for
identifiable publication as national rule
information 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review

comments

278



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 23

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 6006 Joint Subcommittee on 8/04 - Considered by Joint 12/1/07
Omnibus Venue and Chapter 11 Subcommittee
motions for Matters 9/04 - Approved in principle by
assumption, Committee
rejection, or 1/05 - Approved by Joint
assignment Subcommittee

3/05 - Committee approved for
publication
6/05 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/05 - Published for public
comment
3/06 - Committee approved with
changes
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved
9/06 - Judicial Conference
approved

Rule 6011 (new) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Disposal of implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
patient records 3/06 - Committee approved for

publication as national rule
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

279



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 24

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 7007.1 Committee proposal 9/04 - Committee approved as 12/1/07
Corporate technical amendment without
ownership publication
statement with 1/05 - Standing Committee
initial filing approved publication

8/05 - Published for public
comment
3/06 - Committee approved
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved
9/06 - Judicial Conference
approved

Rules 7012, Committee proposal in 2/05 - Restyled Civil Rules
7022, 7023.1, response to restyling of published for comment
and 9024 Civil Rules 9/05 - Committee discussed
Conforming impact on Bankruptcy Rules
amendments 12/05 - Committee submitted

comment on restyled Civil Rules
9/06 - Restyled Civil Rules
approved by Judicial Conference
9/06 - Committee discussed
need to amend Bankruptcy Rules
2/07 - Reporter drafted
conforming amendments
3/07 - Committee to consider

Rule 7052 Committee proposal 9/06 - Committee approved for
Reference to publication
entry of
judgment under
Civil Rule 58
deemed reference
to entry under
Rule 5003 (a)

280



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 25

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 7058 (new) Committee proposal 7/06 - Subcommittee on Privacy,
Entry of Public Access and Appeals
judgment in Subcommittee approved
adversary 9/06 - Committee approved for
proceeding publication

Rule 8001 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Direct appeals implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule

9/05 - Amended by Committee
3/06 - Committee approved for
publication with changes as
national rule
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 8003(d) Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Authorization of implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
direct appeal as 3/06 - Committee approved for
leave to appeal publication as national rule

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 9001 Committee proposal 9/06 - Committee approved for
Add § 1502 publication

281



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 26

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 9005.1 03-BK-F 10/03 - Referred to reporter and 12/1/07
(new) Judge Geraldine Mund chair
Proposed 10/14/03 3/04 - Committee considered
Civil Rule 5.1 and approved
incorporated in 4/04 - Civil Rules Committee
the bankruptcy tabled proposed Rule 5.1
rules. 1/05 - Standing Committee

approved proposed Rule 5.1
3/05 - Committee approved for
publication
6/05 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/05 - Published for public
comment
3/06 - Committee approved
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved
9/06 - Judicial Conference

approved

Rule 9006 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
Enlargement and implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
reduction of time 3/06 - Committee approved for

publication with changes as
national rule
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

282



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 27

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 9006 Standing Committee's 9/06 - Committee discussed time
Template rule for special subcommittee on computation project and agreed
time computation time computation to review bankruptcy rules;

small groups will review and
report on time computations and
deadlines in bankruptcy rules
12/06 - Considered by ad hoc
group of Committee members
1/07 - Discussed by Standing
Committee
3/07 - Committee to consider

Rule 9009 Business Subcommittee 3/06 - Committee approved for 12/1/08
Use of form plan to implement BAPCPA publication as national rule
and disclosure 6/06 - Standing Committee
statement not approved for publication
mandatory 8/06 - Published for public

comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Rule 9011 05-BK-01, 05-BR-33 3/06 - Referred to Attorney
Attorney conduct Senators Charles E. Conduct and Health Care

Grassley and Jeff Subcommittee
Sessions 6/06 - Subcommittee discussed
8/18/05, 3/13/06 alternative approaches

9/06 - Committee approved
alternative approaches, referred
to subcommittee to recommend
a single approach
12/06 - Subcommittee approved
amendment
3/07 - Committee to consider

283



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 28

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 9021 04-BK- 8/04 - Referred to Committee
Separate Judge David Adams 9/04 - Committee considered,
Document referred to Privacy, Public
Requirement Access and Appeals

Subcommittee
12/04 - Subcommittee discussed

alternative approaches
3/05 - Committee approved in
principle for contested matters,
referred to Privacy, Public
Access and Appeals
Subcommittee
9/05 - Referred to Privacy,
Public Access and Appeals
Subcommittee
3/06 - Referred to Privacy,
Public Access and Appeals
Subcommittee
7/06 - Subcommittee approved

alternative amendments
9/06 - Committee approved
revised amendment for
publication

284



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 29

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 9037 (new) E-Government Act 9/04 - Committee considered 12/1/07
Template privacy § 205(c)(3) and referred to Reporter, Judge
rule Swain

3/05 - Committee approved for
publication
6/05 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/05 - Published for public
comment
3/06 - Committee approved with
changes
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved with changes
9/06 - Judicial Conference
approved

New Rule Donald Walton 3/06 - Sent to chair and reporter
Require for EOUST 6/06 - Discussed by chair,
electronic filers reporter, Forms Subcommittee
to use data- chair, and Mr. Walton
enabled forms 9/06 - Committee endorsed the

concept and recommended
treating as a technical standard
under Rule 5005(a)(2)
10/07 - Considered by
Automation Subcommittee of
Bankruptcy Administration
Committee
12/07 - Considered by Judicial
Conference IT Committee
1/07 - Considered by Bankruptcy
Administration Committee

New Rule 06-BK-E 9/06 - Referred to Subcommittee
Investment of Baker & Hostetler LLP on Business Matters
estate funds 8/25/06 12/06 - Revised B&H proposal

1/06 - Subcommittee discussed
3/07 - Committee to consider

285



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 30

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

New Rule 06-BK-F 9/05 - Referred to Subcommittee
Authority of American Bar on Attorney Conduct and Health
bankruptcy Association Care
courts to 8/24/06 3/06 - Committee took no action
discipline 12/06 - Subcommittee
attorneys considered

3/07 - Committee to consider

Official Forms Forms Subcommittee to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 12/1/08
1, 1-Exh. D, 3A, implement BAPCPA 8/05 - Approved by Standing
3B, 4, 5, 6- Committee and Executive
Summary, 6A-J, Committee as Official Forms
6-Declaration, 7, 9/05 - Official Forms 1, 22A,
8, 9A-I, 10, 16A, and 22C amended by Committee
18, 19A, 19B, 10/05 - Amended Official Forms
22A, 22B, 22C, approved by Standing
23, 24 Committee and Executive
Implement Committee
BAPCPA 3/06 - Committee approved for

publication with changes as
permanent forms
5/06 - Committee approved (by
email) publication of new Exh.
D to Official Form 1
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Official Form 1 Committee proposal to 9/06 - Committee approved for
Add implement BAPCPA publication
§ 707(b)(4)(D) 12/06 - Attorney Conduct and
warning for Health Care Subcommittee
debtor's attorney discussed revised amendment

3/07 - Committee to consider

286



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 31

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative

Date Action Effective
Date

Official Forms 11 U.S.C. § 104(b) 1/07 - Reviewed by Forms 4/1/07

6E, 7, 10, 22A, Subcommittee
and 22C 2/07 - Administrative Office
Adjust $$ amts. issued $$ amounts for 4/1/07
Every 3 years 3/07 - Committee to review

Official Form 8 Judge Elizabeth L. Perris 9/06 - Referred to Subcommittee
Clarify that 8/3/06 on Consumer Affairs
debtor must 12/06 - Subcommittee
complete entire considered revision
form 1/07 - Forms Subcommittee

made further revisions
3/07 - Committee to consider

Official Form 10 04-BK-A 3/04 - Referred to reporter, chair 12/1/08
Revised to clarify Glen K. Palman and Forms Subcommittee
requirements for 2/19/04 9/04 - Discussed by Committee,
attachments referred to Forms Subcommittee

12/05 - Approved by
Subcommittee
3/05 - Committee approved for
publication
6/05 - Committee deferred
action
9/05 - Referred to Forms

Subcomt.
3/06 - Committee approved for
publication
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

287



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 32

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Official Form 10 Committee proposal 8/06- Referred to Forms
Revise in light of Subcommittee
11 U.S.C. § 1325 8/06 - Subcommittee discussed

9/06 - Committee took no action
12/06 - Consumer Subcommittee
considered
3/07 - Committee to consider

Official Form Debbie Lewis, deputy 8/06 - Referred to Forms
19A clerk FL-S bankruptcy Subcommittee
Form 19A not court 8/06 - Subcommittee discussed
needed if petition 4/06 9/06 - Committee approved new
preparers must combined form for publication
use Form 19B

Official Form 21 Forms Subcommittee 3/06 - Committee approved for 12/1/08
Implement publication
privacy rule 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Official Forms Business Subcommittee 9/05 - Model plan approved in 12/1/08
25A, 25B (new) to implement BAPCPA principle
Form plan and 9/05 - Model plan and disclosure
disclosure statement referred to Business
statement Subcommittee

3/06 - Committee approved for
publication
6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
1/07 - Forms Subcommittee
approved technical amendments
3/07 - Committee to review
comments and amendments

288



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 33

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Official Form Business Subcommittee 9/05 - Referred to Business 12/1/08
25C (new) to implement BAPCPA Subcommittee
Periodic financial 3/06 - Committee approved for
report by small publication
business debtor 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Official Form 26 Business Subcommittee 9/05 - Referred to Business 12/1/08
(new) to implement BAPCPA Subcommittee
Periodic report 3/06 - Committee approved for
on related entities publication

6/06 - Standing Committee
approved for publication
8/06 - Published for public
comment
3/07 - Committee to review
comments

Official Form 27 Committee proposal 3/06 - Designation as Official
(new) Form referred to Forms
Cover sheet for Subcommittee
reaffirmation or 8/06 - Subcommittee discussed
Form 240 as 9/06 - Committee tabled for 1
Official Form year

1/07 - Forms Subcommittee
proposed cover sheet
3/07 - Committee to consider

Official Forms Judge James D. Walker, 9/06 - Committee will
Alternatives to Jr. coordinate a study with the
paper-based 5/24/06 Administrative Office
format for forms

289



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 34

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Official Forms, Chief Deputy Clerk 6/06 - Fillable forms approved 1/06
Director's Douglas Young, ALM by Bankruptcy Admin. Comt.
Forms 07-BK-B 3/06 - Fillable forms approved
Forms should be by this Committee
distributed as 2/07 - AO begins converting
fillable PDFs bankruptcy forms

3/07 - Fillable Form 10 posted

Director's Judiciary Privacy Policy 1/07 - Approved by Forms 5/1/07
Forms 13S, 15S, and proposed Rule 9037 Subcommittee
132, 204, 205, 3/07 - Committee to review
206, 207, 231 A,
231 B, 253, and
270
Revised caption
requires only last
4 digits of
debtor's social
security number

Director's Comments on the forms 1/07 - Approved by Forms 5/1/07
Forms 13S, 104, Subcommittee
130A, 130B, 3/07 - Committee to review
202, 204, and
240
Technical
amendments

Director's Form Bankruptcy 9/06 - Committee reviewed 5/1/07
104 Administration 10/06 - Issued by Director of
Adversary Committee statistics Administrative Office
Proceeding initiative 1/07 - Forms Subcommittee
Cover Sheet approved technical amendment

3/07 - Committee to review

290



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 35

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Director's Form Committee proposal to 3/04 - Committee reviewed 5/1/07
202 implement Pub. L. 8/06 - Issued by Director of
Statement of 108-189 Administrative Office
Military Service 2/17/04 1/07 - Forms Subcommittee

approved amendment
3/07 - Committee to review

Director's Form Forms Subcommittee to 9/05 - Referred to Forms
240 implement BAPCPA Subcommittee
Reaffirmation 10/05 - Amended form issued
agreement 06-BK-B by Director of Administrative

Kelly Sweeney, CDC, Office
CO bankruptcy court 8/06 - Issued by Director of
5/5/06 Administrative Office

8/06 - Subcommittee approved
further revision
9/06 - Committee approved
revised form

12/06 - Issued by Director of
Administrative Office
1/07 - Forms Subcommittee

approved amendments

Director's AO proposal in response 12/06 - Civil Rule 45 amended 12/1/06
Forms 254, 255, to Rule 45 amendment 12/06 - Revised forms issued by
and 256 Director of Administrative
Conforming Office
amendments 1/07 - Forms Subcommittee

reviewed
3/07 - Committee to review

Archive - Inactive Items

291



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 36

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule Interim Rule to 3/06 - Committee approved 10/1/06
1007(b)(7),(c) implement BAPCPA changes in Interim Rule for
Required adoption in 2006
documents 6/06 - Standing Committee

approved as amendment
to Suggested Interim Rule
9/06 - Judicial Conference
approved amended Interim Rule

Rule 1009 4/04 - Committee approved for 12/1/06
Social security publication
number - 6/04 - Standing Committee
amended approved for publication
statement 8/04 - Published for public

comment
3/05 - Committee approved
6/05 - Standing Committee
approved
9/05 - Judicial Conference

approved
4/06 - Supreme Court approved
12/06 - Effective date, no
Congressional action

Rule 3007 Judge Christopher M. 9/05 - Referred to Business
Service of Klein Subcommittee
objections to 3/06 - Committee took no action
claims

Rule 3019 06-BK-C 6/06 - Sent to Chair & Reporter
Confirmation of Judge Wesley Steen 9/06 - Committee took no action
modified plan 6/26/06

292



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 37

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 5005(a)(2) 04-BK-D 8/04 - Referred to reporter and 12/1/06
Court may permit Judge John W. chair
or require Lungstrum 9/04 - Committee approved for
electronic filing 8/2/04 publication

11/04 - Publication on "Fast
Track" (3 month comment
period)
3/05 - Committee approved (as
modified)
6/05 - Standing Committee

approved
9/05 - Judicial Conference
approved
4/06 - Supreme Court approved
12/06 - Effective date; no
Congressional action

Rule 5005(c) 03-BK-B 7/03 - Referred to chair and 12/1/06
Add Clerk of the Judge Robert J. Kressel reporter
Bankruptcy 7/2/03 9/03 - Committee approved for
Appellate Panel publication
and District 1/04 - Standing Committee
Judge to entities approved for publication
already listed 8/04 - Published for public

comment
3/05 - Committee approved
6/05 - Standing Committee
approved

9/05 - Judicial Conference
approved
4/06 - Supreme Court approved
12/06 - Effective date; no
Congressional action

293



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 38

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Rule 7004(b)(9), Committee proposal 3/04 - Committee approved for 12/1/06
(g) publication
Service of 6/04 - Standing Committee
summons and approved for publication
complaint on 8/04 - Published for public
attorney for comment
debtor 3/05 - Committee approved (as

modified)
6/05 - Standing Committee
approved
9/05 - Judicial Conference
approved
4/06 - Supreme Court approved
12/06 - Effective date; no
Congressional action

Rules 8006, 06-BK-D 9/06 - Referred to Subcommittee
8007 Dana C. McWay on on Privacy, Public Access, and
Transmission of behalf of Bankruptcy Appeals
record on appeal CM/ECF Working Group 11/06 - AO and Working Group

8/18/06 refer proposal to selected clerks

Rule 9009 Interim Rule to 8/05 - Approved by Committee 10/17/05
References to implement BAPCPA as Suggested Interim Rule
Interim Rules in 12/08 - Expires when Interim
Official Forms Rules become national rules

New Rule 06-BK-A (see also 05- 7/06 - Referred to Subcommittee
Representation of BK-A, 00-BK-D, 98-BK- on Attorney Conduct and Health
corporations A) Care
when less than Judge Paul Mannes 6/06 - Subcommittee discussed
$5,000 at issue 3/16/06 9/06 - Committee took no action

294



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 39

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative

Date Action Effective
Date

Official Forms Forms Subcommittee to 3/06 - Committee approved 10/1/06

1, 1-Exh. D, 5, implement BAPCPA "immediate" changes in several

6-Summary, 6D, 10/05 forms
6E, 6F, 61, 6J, 5/06 - Committee approved (by
6-Declaration, email) new Exh. D as
9G, 9H, 91, 22A, "immediate change" to Official
22C, 23 Form 1
Statistics, 6/06 - Standing Committee

practice under approved
BAPCPA 9/06 - Judicial Conference

approved
10/06 - Effective date

Director's Forms Subcommittee to 9/05 - Reviewed by Committee 10/17/05
Forms 18J, implement BAPCPA 10/05 - Issued by Director of
18JO, 18F, Administrative Office
18FH, 18W,
18WH, 200, 201,
240, 280
Conforming
amendments

Director's Form CM/ECF Working Group 3/04 - Committee discussed, 10/17/06
210 referred to Forms Subcommittee
Notice of 9/04 - Committee reviewed
Transfer of revised form
Claim Other 12/04 - Issued by Director of
Than for Security Administrative Office

1/05 - CM/ECF project
requested revised form
3/05 - Committee reviewed
revised form
3/06 - CM/ECF project
requested deferral to 10/06
10/06 - Issued by Director of

Administrative Office

295



Bankruptcy Rules Tracking Docket 40

Suggestion Docket No., Source & Status Pending Further Tentative
Date Action Effective

Date

Director's Form Committee proposal 9/04 - Committee reviewed 8/1/06
271 8/06 - Issued by Director of
Final Decree Administrative Office

Director's Form Committee proposal to 8/06 - Amended form issued by 8/1/06
281 implement privacy policy Director of Administrative
Appearance of Office
Child Support 9/06 - Committee reviewed
Creditor

296



Proposed chapter 15 amendments to Rules 1004.2, 1010, 2 002(p), 5009, 5012, and
9001 and the proposed combination of Official Forms 19A and 19B are in the

"bull pen" awaiting transmission to the Standing Committee.

297





RULE 1004.2. Petition in Ancillary or Other Cross-Border
Cases'

1 (a) CENTER OF MAIN INTEREST DESIGNATION.

2 A petition commencing a case under chapter 15 of the Code

3 shall state whether the case pending in another country is a foreign

4 main proceeding or a foreign nonmain proceeding. The petition

5 also shall state the country where the debtor has the center of its

6 main interests.

7 (b) MOTION. The United States trustee or a party in

8 interest may file a motion for a determination that the debtor's

9 center of main interests is other than as stated in the petition

10 commencing the chapter 15 case. The motion shall be filed not

11 later than 60 days after notice of the petition for recognition has

12 been given to the movant under Rule 2002(g)(1). The motion shall

13 be transmitted to the United States trustee and served on the

14 debtor, all persons or bodies authorized to administer foreign

15 proceedings of the debtor, all entities against whom provisional

16 relief is being sought under § 1519 of the Code, all parties to

17 litigation pending in the United States in which the debtor is a

'In addition to the adoption of Rule 1004.2, Official Form 1 would be amended to include
a line on the form where the foreign representative indicates the county of the debtor's center of
main interests. This would be set out either immediately under or next to the check boxes
identifying whether the case is a foreign main case or a foreign nonmain case.

1

298



18 party at the time of the filing of the petition, each entity requesting

19 special notice2, and such other entities as the court may direct.

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule is new. Subdivision (a) directs any entity that
files a petition for recognition of a foreign proceeding under
chapter 15 of the Code to state on the petition whether the case for
which recognition is sought is a foreign main proceeding or a
foreign nonmain proceeding. The petition must also identify the
country of the center of the debtor's main interests.

Subdivision (b) sets a deadline for filing a motion to
challenge the statement in the petition as to the country in which
the debtor's center of main interest is located. The movant has 60
days from the time that notice is given to the creditor of the
petition for recognition. The deadline provides an opportunity for
parties in interest to challenge the statement in the petition, and it
also provides repose for the court, the debtor, and parties in interest
once the deadline passes that a fundamental aspect of the case is
settled.

RULE 5012. Agreements Concerning Coordination of
Proceedings in Chapter 15 Cases

A party in interest seeking approval of the form of an

2 Although it was not raised at the meeting in connection with this rule, I have inserted
among the entities entitled to notice those entities that "requested special notice." I borrowed
that phrase from Local Bankruptcy Rule 9013-1 (c)(2) of the Bankruptcy Court for the Western
District of Washington. The local rule actually provides that notice must be given to "any
persons requesting special notice under Rule 2002(i), Fed.R.Bankr.P." Rule 2002(i), however,
does not seem to apply. This phrase is also inserted into Rules 5012 and 5009 which follow. I
could not find anything in the National Rules that approximates this language. Rather, the
National Rules regularly provide that notices must be given to "such other entities as the court
may direct." That phrase was already included in the proposed rule.

2.

2
299



2 agreement concerning the coordination of proceedings under §

3 1525-1527 of the Code shall seek such approval by motion. The

4 movant shall attach to the motion a copy of the proposed protocol

5 and, unless the court directs otherwise, give at least 30 days notice

6 of any hearing on the motion by transmitting the motion to the

7 United States trustee, and serving it on the debtor, all persons or

8 bodies authorized to administer foreign proceedings of the debtor,

9 all entities against whom provisional relief is being sought under §

10 1519 of the Code, all parties to litigation pending in the United

11 States in which the debtor is a party at the time of the filing of the

12 petition, each entity requesting special notice, and such other

13 entities as the court may direct.

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule is new. In chapter 15 cases, parties in interest
may seek approval of an agreement, frequently referred to as a
protocol, that will assist the court, foreign courts, and all parties in
interest with the conduct of the case. The needs of the courts and
the parties may vary greatly from case to case, so the rule does not
attempt to limit the form or scope of a protocol. Rather, the rule
simply requires any party in interest that wants the court to approve
a particular protocol to give notice of the hearing on approval of
the proposed protocol. These guidelines, or protocols drafted
entirely by parties in interest in the case, can provide valuable
assistance to the courts in the management of the case.

RULE 5009. Closing Chapter 7 Liquidation, Chapter 12
Family Farmer's Debt Adjustment, and Chapter 13
Individual's Debt Adjustment, and Chapter 15 Ancillary and
Cross-Border Cases

3

300



1 Ua CASES UNDER CHAPTERS 7, 12, AND 13. If in

2 a chapter 7, chapter 12, or chapter 13 case the trustee has filed a

3 final report and final account and has certified that the estate has

4 been fully administered, and if within 30 days no objection has

5 been filed by the United States trustee or a party in interest, there

6 shall be a presumption that the estate has been fully administered.

7 (b) CASES UNDER CHAPTER 15. A foreign

8 representative who has been recognized under § 1517 of the Code

9 shall file a final report when the purpose of the representative's

10 appearance in the court is completed. The report shall describe the

11 nature and results of the representative's activities in the United

12 States court. The foreign representative shall transmit the report to

13 the United States trustee, and serve it on the debtor, all persons or

14 bodies authorized to administer foreign proceedings of the debtor,

15 all parties to litigation pending in the United States in which the

16 debtor is a party at the time of the filing of the petition, each entity

17 requesting special notice, and such other entities as the court may

18 direct. If within 30 days no objection has been filed by the United

19 States trustee or a party in interest, there shall be a presumption

20 that the case has been fully administered.

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to redesignate the former rule as

4
301



subdivision (a) and adding a new subdivision (b) to the rule.
Subdivision (b) requires a foreign representative in a chapter 15
case to file with the court a final report setting out the foreign
representative's actions and results obtained in the United States
case. It also requires the foreign representative to serve the report
and provides interested parties with 30 days to object to the report.
In the absence of a timely objection, a presumption arises that the
case is fully administered, and the case can be closed under § 350.

Rule 1010. Service of Involuntary Petition and Summons;
Service of Petition for Recognition of Foreign Proceeding and
Summons CuIaunii ngiit AiiitLai. y Cast

1 (a) SERVICE OF PETITION AND SUMMONS. On the

2 filing of an involuntary petition or a petition for recognition of a

3 foreign proceeding c miiiiii ngiiii i a c.as an Maray tu a feig•i,

4 proeeeding, the clerk shall forthwith issue a summons for service.

5 When an involuntary petition is filed, service shall be made on the

6 debtor. When a petition for recognition of a foreign proceeding is

7 fiM1 i aana nillay case is fleU, service shall be made

8 on the debtor, all persons or bodies authorized to administer

9 foreign proceedings of the debtor, prties agains*t wh•,, ,•-li.

10 sought pu-,ut to § 304(b) of t1""- Cod-_ and on any other parties

11 entities as the court may direct. The summons shall be served with

12 a copy of the petition in the manner provided for service of a

13 summons and complaint by Rule 7004(a) or (b). If service cannot

14 be so made, the court may order that the summons and petition be

15 served by mailing copies to the party's last known address, and by

5
302



16 at least one publication in a manner and form directed by the court.

17 The summons and petition may be served on the party anywhere.

18 Rule 7004(e) and Rule 4(/) F.R.Civ.P. apply when service is made

19 or attempted under this rule.

20 bl) CORPORATE OWNERSHIP STATEMENT. Each

21 petitioner that is a corporation shall file with the involuntary

22 petition a corporate ownership statement containing the

23 information described in Rule 7007.1.

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to require service of a summons and
the petition in all chapter 15 cases, whether they be a foreign
nonmain proceeding or a foreign main proceeding. Service must
be made on the debtor and any other entity that the court directs.
General notice of the petition for recognition of the foreign
proceeding is given to creditors under Rule 2002(q).

RULE 9001. General Definitions

I The definitions of words and phrases in § 101, § 902, and §

2 1101, and § 1502 and the rules of construction in § 102 of the Code

3 govern their use in these rules. I addition, the following words and

4 phrases used in these rules have the meanings indicated:

5

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to add § 1502 of the Code to the list of
definitional provisions in the Code that are applicable to the Rules.
That section was added to the Code in 2005.

6

303



RULE 2002. Notices to Creditors, Equity Security Holders,
Administrators in Foreign Proceedings, Persons Against
Whom Provisional Relief is Sought in Ancillary and Other
Cross-Border Cases, United States, and United States Trustee

1

2 (p) NOTICE TO A FOREIGN CREDITOR

3

4 (3) Unless the court for cause orders otherwise, the

5 mailing address of a foreign creditor shall be determined under

6 Rule 2002(g).

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended by adding subparagraph (3) to
subdivision (p). The new subparagraph provides that the court
may, for cause, override a creditor's designation of a foreign
address under Rule 2002(g). For example, if a party in interest
believes that a creditor has wrongfully designated a foreign address
to obtain additional time when it has a significant presence in the
United States, the party can ask the court to order that notices to
that creditor be sent to an address other than the one designated by
the foreign creditor.

7

304





The next meeting of the Committee will take place

September 6-7, 2007,

at the Teton Mountain Lodge, Jackson Hole, WY

305





Posting Instructions for Additional materials

Agenda dated 3/26/07. Replaces draft agendas dated 3/23/07 and 3/14/07.

Memo dated 3/23/07 on the published rules which were unchanged, either because there were no
comments on the rule or because the appropriate subcommittee recommended that there be no
change in the published rule. Insert behind tab 3.

Letter from Representatives John Conyers, Jr., and Linda T. Sanchez concerning Official Form
22, Rule 1017(e)(1), Rule 4002(b)(2), and Rule 9011. Insert behind tab 3.

Memo of 3/22/07 on creditor attorneys under Rule 9011. Insert behind tab 4A.

Proposed attomey certification amendment to page 3 of Official Form 1. Insert behind tab 4A.

Memo dated 3/23/07 on the Consumer Subcommittee's recommendations on the means test and
copies of mark-ups of forms 22A, 22B, and 22C. The copies of Forms 22A, 22B, and 22C
replace the copies of Forms 22A and 22C in the binder. Insert behind tab 5A.

Memo dated 3/23/07 as revised 3/26/07 on the Consumer Subcommittee's other
recommendations. Insert behind tab 5B.

Addendum dated 3/23/07 to the Business Subcommittee report. Insert behind tab 6A.

Memo of 3/15/07 on business forms. Insert behind tab 6A.

Addendum dated 3/23/07 to the Cross Border Subcommittee report. Insert behind tab 7.

Memo of 3/4/07 as revised 3/23/07 on dollar adjustments in seven Official Forms, list of the
dollar amounts adjusted, and excerpt from Official Form 1. Replaces materials behind tab 9B.

Memo of 12/8/06 as revised 3/23/07 on time computation, list of deadlines in the bankruptcy
rules, list of deadlines in proposed amendments. Insert behind tab 10.

Revised combination of Official Forms 19A and 19B and proposed Committee Note. Replaces
the copy of proposed Form 19 transmitted on 3/23/07. Insert in the "Bull Pen" behind tab
13.





ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES
Meeting of March 29-30, 2007

Marco Island, Florida

Agenda (3/26/07)

Introductory Items

I. Approval of minutes of Seattle meeting of September 14-15, 2006 (Judge Zilly)

2. Oral reports on meetings of other Rules Committees:

(A) January 2007 meeting of the Committee on Rules of Practice and Procedure, (Judge
Zilly and Professor Morris).

Possible revision of proposed amendments to Rules 7052 and 9021, and new Rule
7058.
Draft minutes of the Standing Committee meeting will be distributed separately.

(B) November 2006 meeting of the Advisory Committee on Appellate Rules Committee.
(Judge Zilly)
(C) January 2007 meeting of the Committee on the Administration of the Bankruptcy
System. (Judge Klein)
(D) September 2006 meeting of Advisory Committee on Civil Rules. (Judge Walker)
(E) November 2006 meeting of Advisory Committee on Evidence. (Judge Klein)
(F) Bankruptcy CM/ECF Working Group (Judge McFeeley)

Action Items

3. Report on comments to proposed amendments to the Bankruptcy Rules and Official
forms published in August 2006. Memo of 2/28/07 concerning comments submitted
prior to January 10, 2007; memo of 2/28/07 concerning comments submitted after
January 10. Lists of the 2005 comments on the Interim Rules and Forms and 2006/2007
comments on the published Rules and Forms. (Professor Morris).

(A) No comments were submitted on the following published rules:

Bankruptcy Rules 1005, 1009, 1015, 2007.1, 2015, 3003, 3017.1, 3019, 5001,
9006, and 9009, and new Bankruptcy Rule 2015.2.

(B) No comments were submitted on the following published Official Forms:

Official Forms 3A, 3B, 10, 16A, 19A, 19B.

Page -1-



(C) Comments were submitted on the following rules but the subcommittee to which each
comment was assigned recommends that no change be made in the published rule:

Bankruptcy Rules 1006, 1010, 1011, 1017, 1020, 2003, 3016, 3017.1, 4006, 4007,
4008, and 8001; and new Bankruptcy Rules 1021, 2007.2, 2015.1, and 5008.

Comments in which changes in the published rule or Committee Note are recommended
are set out below by subcommittee. Comments on the Interim Rules and Forms are
included with the discussion of the comments on the published rules and forms.

(D) Comments or suggested changes to the following existing rules (not published for
comment in August 2006) have been received and are recommended for referral to the
following subcommittees for study. See comments after 1/10/07 memo of 2/28/07 at
pp.7, 24, cross border memo of 2/16/07 as revised 2/27/07 p.4; appeals memo of 2/23/07
as revised 2/28/07 p.4 .

Rule 2003 Subcommittee on Business Issues
Rule 5009 Subcommittee on Consumer Issues
Rule 7065 Subcommittee on Technology and Cross Border Insolvency
Rule 8003(b) Subcommittee on Privacy, Public Access, and Appeals
Rule 8005 Subcommittee on Privacy, Public Access, and Appeals.

(E) Letter from Representatives John Conyers, Jr., and Linda T. Sanchez concerning
Official Form 22, Rule 1017(e)(1), Rule 4002(b)(2), and Rule 9011.

4. Report by the Subcommittee on Attorney Conduct and Health Care. (Judge Schell and
Professor Morris)

(A) Comments on the attorney conduct rules and proposed amendments. Memo of
1/10/07 as revised 2/27/07, memo of 3/22/07.

Existing Rule 9011 p.4 (2/27/07 memo) (Will require publication)
p. 1 (3/22/07 memo) (Will require publication)

Official Form 1 p. 4 (2/27/07 memo) (May require republication)

(B) Comments on the proposed health care rules and possible amendment. Memo of
2/23/07.

Rule 6011 (b) p.4

5. Report by the Subcommittee on Consumer Issues. (Judge Wedoff and Professor Morris)

(A) Comments on the means test and forms. Proposed amendments; memo of 3/23//07;

Page -2-



Judge Wedoff's analysis of 3/5/07; annotated copies of the forms including proposed
changes.

Official Forms 22A, 22B, and 22C

(B) Additional comments on the consumer rules and proposed amendments. Memo of
3/23/07.

Rule 1007(b)(4) p. 1 (May require republication)
Rule 1007(b)(7),(c) p. 1 (May require publication)
Rule 1007(b)(8) p. 1 (May require republication)
Committee Note to Rule 1007 p.x
New Rule 1017.1 p. 10 (Will require publication)
Committee Note to Rule 1019 p. 12

Rule 4002(b)(2) p.9 of business memo of 2/26/07 as revised 3/3/07
(No recommendation) (May require republication)

Rule 4002(b)(4) p.13
(No recommendation) (May require republication)

Rule 4003(b)(2) p.17 (May require republication)
Rule 4003(b)(3) p.17 (May require republication)
Committee Rule to Rule 4003 p.17
Rule 4004(a) p.20 (Will require publication)
Rule 4004(c)(l),(c)(4),(c)(5) p.20 (Will require republication)
Existing Rule 7001 p.2 0  (Will require publication)
Exhibit D to Official Form 1 p.2 6  (May require republication)
Official Forms 61 and 6J p.28 (May require republication)
Official Form 23 p.2 9

Procedure to implement "automatic dismissal" under § 521
p.29 (Will require publication)

(C) Additional comments on consumer amendments, no changes recommended.

Rule 1007(b)(1)(F) p. 1I of comments after 1/ 10/07 memo of 2/28/07
Others

6. Report by the Subcommittee on Business Issues. (Judge Swain and Professor Morris)

(A) (1) Comments on the business rules and proposed amendments. Memo of 2/26/07
as revised 3/3/07. Addendum dated 3/23/07.

Rule 2 002(g)(2) p.6
Rule 2015.3(e) p. 16 of comments after 1/10/07 memo of 2/28/07

(No subcommittee recommendation)

Page -3-



Rule 3002(c)(1) p.7 (May require republication)
Existing Rule 3007(a) p. 13 (Will require publication)
Rule 5003(e) p. 10

Rule 6004(g)(3) p.3 (May require republication)
Committee Note to Rule 2002 p.3
Committee Note to Rule 4002 p.9

(2) Comments on business forms. Memo of 3/15/07.

Official Forms 25A and 25B p.2
Official Forms 25C and 26 p.6

(4) Other comments on proposed business rules and forms - no changes
recommended.

(B) The revised Baker & Hostetler proposal on investing estate funds has been
withdrawn.

7. Report by the Subcommittee on Technology and Cross Border Insolvency. (Judge
McFeeley and Professor Morris)

Comments on the proposed cross border rules and proposed amendments. Memo of
2/16/07 as revised 2/27/07. Addendum dated 3/23/07.

Rule 1007(a)(1) p. 1  (May require republication)
Rule 1007(a)(4) p.2
Existing Rules 1010, 1011 p.4 (Will require publication)
Rule 2 002(p) p.7
Rule 2 0 02(q) p.2
Committee Note for new Rule 5012 p.5 (also see Rule 5012 in the Bull Pen)
Official Forms 9E - F p.6
Official Forms 9A - I p.7

8. Report of Subcommittee on Privacy, Public Access, and Appeals. (Professor Morris and
Judge Pauley)

No proposed rules amendments as a result of the comments on the proposed appeals
rules. Possible change in one Committee Note. Memo of 2/23/07 as revised 2/28/07.

Committee Note for Rule 8001(f)(3) p.3

9. Report of Subcommittee on Forms. (Judge Klein, Professor Morris)

Page -4-



(A) Comments on the Official Forms. Memo of 1/26/07 as revised 2/27/07 with copies
of proposed changes. (Judge Klein, Professor Morris)

Discussion items:
New Official Form 27 p.2  (Will require publication)
Official Form 8 p.3  (Will require republication)
Official Form 1 p.4  (May require publication)
Official Forms 4, 6, and 7 p.5

Technical or noncontroversial recommendations:
Official Form 1 p.6
Official Form 6E and 6F p.6
Official Form 61 p.7
Official Form 6 - Declaration p.7
Official Forms 22A, 22B, and 22C p.8
Official Form 24 p. 8

Official Form 25A p.9

No action recommendations. p.9

(B) Automatic, statutory adjustments to certain dollar amounts on Official Forms 1, 6C,
6E, 7, 10, 22A, and 22C on April 1, 2007. Memo of 3/4/07 as revised 3/23/07, list of the
dollar amounts adjusted, and excerpts from the revised Official Forms. (Mr.
Wannamaker)

(C) Proposed amendments to Director's Procedural Forms. Memo of 1/26/07 as revised
2/27/07. Mr. Wannamaker.

Privacy amendments to the captions of Forms 13S, 15S, 132, 204, 205, 206, 207,
231A, 231B, 253, and 270 p.1

Revision of bankruptcy subpoena forms 254, 255, and 256 p.4
Abrogation of Forms 130A and 130B p.2
Additional amendments to Forms 13S, 104, 202, 204, and 240 p.2 ,3

Discussion Items

10. Report of the ad hoc group on time computation and the discussion of time computation
at the Standing Committee meeting. Reporter's memos of 2/2/07 and 12/8/06. Memos
from Judge Mark R. Kravitz, chair of the Standing Committee's Time Computation
Committee, and Professor Catherine T. Struve, reporter for the Appellate Rules
Committee, and copies of the revised draft template rules are attached. (Judge Zilly and
Professor Morris)

Page -5-



(A) Proposed amendments to template rule.
(B) Timing and procedure for Bankruptcy Rules.

11. Proposed amendments to the Bankruptcy Rules as a result of the restyling of the Civil
Rules. Memo of 2/16/07 as revised 2/26/07; draft amendments to Rules 7012, 7022,
7023.1, and 9024. A copy of the Advisory Committee's December 15, 2005, comment to
the Civil Committee on the restyled rules is attached. (Professor Morris)

Information Items

12. Rules Docket.

13. Bull Pen: Proposed chapter 15 amendments to Rules 1004.2, 1010, 2002(p), 5009, 5012,
and 9001 and the proposed combination of Official Forms 19A and 19B are in the "bull
pen" awaiting transmission to the Standing Committee. Text of the proposed rules
amendments; proposed Official Form 19 and Committee Note.

14. Next meeting reminder: September 6-7, 2007, at the Teton Mountain Lodge, Jackson
Hole, WY.

Page -6-



MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON THE BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: RULES RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION WITHOUT CHANGE

DATE: MARCH 23, 2007

This memo first lists those rules on which we received no comments during the August
2006 to February 15, 2007 comment period. The memo then sets out the text of those rules as
they were published. The Advisory Committee is asked to approve those rules as published. The
memo then lists the rules on which some comments were received, but for which the appropriate
Subcommittee recommends that no change be made to the rules and that they be approved as
published.

I. NO COMMENTS WERE SUBMITTED ON THE FOLLOWING PUBLISHED
RULES:

Bankruptcy Rules 1005, 1009, 1015, 2007.1, 2015, 3003, 3017.1, 3019, 5001,
9006, and 9009, and new Bankruptcy Rule 2015.2.

These rules are recommended for presentation to the Standing Committee for its approval and
further recommendation for adoption by the Judicial Conference.

Rule 1005. Caption of Petition

I The caption of a petition commencing a case under the Code

2 shall contain the name of the court, the title of the case, and the

3 docket number. The title of the case shall include the following

4 information about the debtor: name, employer identification

5 number, last four digits of the social-security number or individual

6 debtor's taxpayer-identification number, any other federal tax

7 taxpayer-identification number, and all names used within six eight



8 years before filing the petition. If the petition is not filed by the

9 debtor, it shall include all names used by the debtor which are

10 known to the petitioners.

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to require the disclosure of all names used
by the debtor in the past eight years. Section 727(a)(8) was
amended in 2005 to extend the time between chapter 7 discharges
from six to eight years, and the rule is amended to implement that
change. The rule also is amended to require the disclosure of the
last four digits of an individual debtor's taxpayer-identification
number. This truncation of the number applies only to individual
debtors. This is consistent with the requirements of Rule 9037.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

This Rule was not included in the Interim Rules.

Rule 1009. Amendments of Voluntary Petitions, Lists,
Schedules and Statements

2 (b) STATEMENT OF INTENTION. The statement of

3 intention may be amended by the debtor at any time before the

4 expiration of the period provided in § 521(a) 521(2)(B) of the

5 Code. The debtor shall give notice of the amendment to the trustee

6 and to any entity affected thereby.

7

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (b) is amended to conform to the 2005
amendments to § 521 of the Code.

2



INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

No change from the Interim Rule.

Rule 1015. Consolidation or Joint Administration of Cases
Pending in Same Court

2 (b) CASES INVOLVING TWO OR MORE RELATED

3 DEBTORS. If a joint petition or two or more petitions are pending

4 in the same court by or against (1) a husband and wife, or (2) a

5 partnership and one or more of its general partners, or (3) two or

6 more general partners, or (4) a debtor and an affiliate, the court

7 may order the joint administration of the estates. Prior to entering

8 an order the court shall give consideration to protecting creditors of

9 different estates against potential conflicts of interest. An order

10 directing joint administration of individual cases of a husband and

11 wife shall, if one spouse has elected the exemptions under § 522(b)

12 (-1-) (2) of the Code and the other has elected the exemptions under

13 § 522 (b)(2) (3), fix a reasonable time within which either may

14 amend the election so that both shall have elected the same

15 exemptions. The order shall notify the debtors that unless they

16 elect the same exemptions within the time fixed by the court, they

17 will be deemed to have elected the exemptions provided by §

3



18 522(b)(-1-2).

19

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to conform to the change in the numbering
of§ 522(b) of the Code that was made as a part of the 2005
amendments. Former subsections (b)(1) and (b)(2) of § 522 were
renumbered as subsections (b)(2) and (b)(3), respectively. The rule
is amended to make to the parallel change.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

No change from the Interim Rule.

Rule 2007.1. Appointment of Trustee or Examiner in a
Chapter 11 Reorganization Case

2 (b) ELECTION OF TRUSTEE.

3

4 (3) Report of Election and Resolution of Disputes.

5 (A) Report of Undisputed Election. If no dispute arises

6 out of the election is-not-disptite, the United States trustee shall

7 promptly file a report of certifying the election, including the name

8 and address of the person elected and a statement that the election is

9 undisputed. The report shall be accompanied by a verified statement

10 of the person elected setting forth that person's connections with the

11 debtor, creditors, any other party in interest, their respective attorneys

12 and accountants, the United States trustee, or any person employed in

4



13 the office of the United States trustee. The United States trustee shall

14 file with the report an appic.ation for approval of the appointment in

15 accordance with subdivisioni (e) of this rult. The report constitutes

16 appouintment of te elected per•Sn to s.iev as tri ustee, subject to ert

17 apiuval, as of the date uof enty of the uidei appioving the.U,

18 appointment.

19 (B) Dispute Arising Out of an Dispute Election. If a

20 dispute arises out of an the election is-disputed, the United States

21 trustee shall promptly file a report stating that the election is disputed,

22 informing the court of the nature of the dispute, and listing the name

23 and address of any candidate elected under any alternative presented

24 by the dispute. The report shall be accompanied by a verified

25 statement by each candidate elected under each alternative presented

26 by the dispute, setting forth the person's connections with the debtor,

27 creditors, any other party in interest, their respective attorneys and

28 accountants, the United States trustee, -ad or any person employed in

29 the office of the United States trustee. Not later than the date on

30 which the report of the disputed election is filed, the United States

31 trustee shall mail a copy of the report and each verified statement to

32 any party in interest that has made a request to convene a meeting

33 under § 1104(b) or to receive a copy of the report, and to any

34 committee appointed under § 1102 of the Code. Unle.s a iluotin for

5



35 the resou 1 tion o the dispt"... is fild not later t1.-an f10 days after-. tlC.

36 Unitkd State truste files the repOr•, i Jy p-i-un a inted by theI

37 United States trustee U-uder § f1104(d) and approved in aouiOdOaI

38 witli subivision (e) uf this rleI shall v• as trust. if a miUtion foU

39 the resolutioni ofthe dipt is timely fikcd, and the court determines~

40 the restilt of the elcto and approves the pcison electd, the repor

41 will constAitute appointmen~it of flie electd person as of the date ut

42 etruy of the• order •lapprovig the ap.pointment:n.

43 (c) APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT. An order approving the

44 appointment of a trustee -eeted unde1 r1  § 1104(b) or appointed tinder

45 W-1-1 -04(d)-, or th. app•intmient o an examiner under § 1104(d) of the

46 Code, shall be made on application of the United States trustee. The

47 application shall state the name of the person appointed and, to the

48 best of the applicant's knowledge, all the person's connections with

49 the debtor, creditors, any other parties in interest, their respective

50 attorneys and accountants, the United States trustee, and or persons

51 employed in the office of the United States trustee. Unless the persoii

52 has been elected under § 11,04(b), The application shall state the

53 names of the parties in interest with whom the United States trustee

54 consulted regarding the appointment. The application shall be

55 accompanied by a verified statement of the person appointed setting

56 forth the person's connections with the debtor, creditors, any other

6



57 party in interest, their respective attorneys and accountants, the

58 United States trustee, and or any person employed in the office of the

59 United States trustee.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Under § 1104(b)(2) of the Code, as amended in 2005, if an
eligible, disinterested person is elected to serve as trustee in a chapter
11 case, the United States trustee is directed to file a report certifying
the election. The person elected does not have to be appointed to the
position. Rather, the filing of the report certifying the election itself
constitutes the appointment. The section further provides that in the
event of a dispute in the election of a trustee, the court must resolve
the matter. The rule is amended to be consistent with § 11 04(b)(2).

When the United States trustee files a report certifying the
election of a trustee, the person elected must provide a verified
statement, similar to the statement required of professional persons
under Rule 2014, disclosing connections with parties in interest and
certain other persons connected with the case. Although court
approval of the person elected is not required, the disclosure of the
person's connections will enable parties in interest to determine
whether the person is disinterested.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

No change from the Interim Rule.

Rule 2015. Duty to Keep Records, Make Reports, and Give
Notice of Case or Change of Status

1 (a) TRUSTEE OR DEBTOR IN POSSESSION. A trustee or

2 debtor in possession shall:

3 (1) in a chapter 7 liquidation case and, if the court directs, in a

4 chapter II reorganization case file and transmit to the United States

5 trustee a complete inventory of the property of the debtor within 30

7



6 days after qualifying as a trustee or debtor in possession, unless such

7 an inventory has already been filed;

8 (2) keep a record of receipts and the disposition of money and

9 property received;

10 (3) file the reports and summaries required by § 704(8) of the

11 Code which shall include a statement, if payments are made to

12 employees, of the amounts of deductions for all taxes required to be

13 withheld or paid for and in behalf of employees and the place where

14 these amounts are deposited;

15 (4) as soon as possible after the commencement of the case, give

16 notice of the case to every entity known to be holding money or

17 property subject to withdrawal or order of the debtor, including every

18 bank, savings or building and loan association, public utility

19 company, and landlord with whom the debtor has a deposit, and to

20 every insurance company which has issued a policy having a cash

21 surrender value payable to the debtor, except that a notice need not be

22 given to any entity who has knowledge or has previously been

23 notified of the case;

24 (5) in a chapter 11 reorganization case, on or before the last day

25 of the month after each calendar quarter during which there is a duty

26 to pay fees under 28 U.S.C. § 1930(a)(6), file and transmit to the

27 United States trustee a statement of any disbursements made during

8



28 that quarter and of any fees payable under 28 U.S.C. § 1930 (a)(6) for

29 that quarter; and

30 (6) in a chapter 11 small business case, unless the court, for cause,

31 sets another reporting interval, file and transmit to the United States

32 trustee for each calendar month after the order for relief, on the

33 appropriate Official Form, the report required by § 308. If the order

34 for relief is within the first 15 days of a calendar month, a report shall

35 be filed for the portion of the month that follows the order for relief.

36 If the order for relief is after the 15" day of a calendar month, the

37 period for the remainder of the month shall be included in the report

38 for the next calendar month. Each report shall be filed no later than

39 20 days after the last day of the calendar month following the month

40 covered by the report. The obligation to file reports under this

41 subparagraph terminates on the effective date of the plan, or

42 conversion or dismissal of the case.

45*

44 (d) FOREIGN REPRESENTATIVE. In a case in which the court

45 has granted recognition of a foreign proceeding under chapter 15, the

46 foreign representative shall file any notice required under § 1518 of

47 the Code within 15 days after the date when the representative

48 becomes aware of the subsequent information.

49 0) Le) TRANSMISSION OF REPORTS. In a chapter 11 case the

9



50 court may direct that copies or summaries of annual reports and

51 copies or summaries of other reports shall be mailed to the creditors,

52 equity security holders, and indenture trustees. The court may also

53 direct the publication of summaries of any such reports. A copy of

54 every report or summary mailed or published pursuant to this

55 subdivision shall be transmitted to the United States trustee.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subparagraph (a)(6) implements § 308 of the Code, added by
the 2005 amendments. That section requires small business chapter
11 debtors to file periodic financial and operating reports, and the rule
sets the time for filing those reports and requires the use of an Official
Form for the report. The obligation to file reports under this rule does
not relieve the trustee or debtor of any other obligations to provide
information or documents to the United States trustee.

The rule also is amended to fix the time for the filing of notices
under § 1519, added to the Code in 2005. Former subdivision (d) is
renumbered as subdivision (e).

Other changes are stylistic.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

Subparagraph (a)(6) was not included in the Interim Rules. It is
added to implement a provision of the 2005 Act, but that provision
explicitly directed that it would not become effective until the proper
rules and form were adopted under the Rules Enabling Act process.
Therefore, this subdivision was not included in the Interim Rules.
The remainder of the Rule is unchanged from the Interim Rules.

Rule 2015.2. Transfer of Patient in Health Care Business Case

1 Unless the court orders otherwise, if the debtor is a health care

2 business, the trustee may not transfer a patient to another health care

10



3 business under ' 704(a)(12) of the Code unless the trustee gives at

4 least 10 days' notice of the transfer to the patient care ombudsman, if

5 any, the patient, and any family member or other contact person

6 whose name and address has been given to the trustee or the debtor

7 for the purpose of providing information regarding the patient's

8 health care. The notice is subject to applicable nonbankruptcy law

9 relating to patient privacy.

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule is new. Section 704(a)(12), added to the Code by
the 2005 amendments, authorizes the trustee to relocate patients when
a health care business debtor's facility is in the process of being
closed. The Code permits the trustee to take this action without the
need for any court order, but the notice required by this rule will
enable a patient care ombudsman appointed under § 333, or a patient
who contends that the trustee's actions violate § 704(a)(12), to have
those issues resolved before the patient is transferred.

This rule also permits the court to enter an order dispensing
with or altering the notice requirement in proper circumstances. For
example, a facility could be closed immediately, or very quickly, such
that 10 days' notice would not be possible in some instances. In that
event, the court may shorten the time required for notice.

Notices given under this rule are subject to the provisions of
applicable federal and state law that relate to the protection of
patients' privacy, such as the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104-191 (HIPAA).

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

The Rule is rewritten in lines 5-7 to clarify the identities of
persons to whom notices must be sent.

II



Rule 3003. Filing Proof of Claim or Equity Security Interest in
Chapter 9 Municipality or Chapter 11 Reorganization Cases

2 (c) FILING PROOF OF CLAIM.

3 (1) Who May File. Any creditor or indenture trustee may file

4 a proof of claim within the time prescribed by subdivision (c)(3) of

5 this rule.

6 (2) Who Must File. Any creditor or equity security holder

7 whose claim or interest is not scheduled or scheduled as disputed,

8 contingent, or unliquidated shall file a proof of claim or interest

9 within the time prescribed by subdivision (c)(3) of this rule; any

10 creditor who fails to do so shall not be treated as a creditor with

11 respect to such claim for the purposes of voting and distribution.

12 (3) Time for Filing. The court shall fix and for cause shown

13 may extend the time within which proofs of claim or interest may be

14 filed. Notwithstanding the expiration of such time, a proof of claim

15 may be filed to the extent and under the conditions stated in Rule

16 3002(c)(2), (c)(3), and (c)(4), and (c)(6).

17 (4) Effect of Filing Claim or Interest. A proof of claim or

18 interest executed and filed in accordance with this subdivision shall

19 supersede any scheduling of that claim or interest pursuant to §

20 521La)(1) of the Code.

12



21 (5) Filing by Indenture Trustee. An indenture trustee may

22 file a claim on behalf of all known or unknown holders of securities

23 issued pursuant to the trust instrument under which it is trustee.

24

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (c)(3) is amended to implement § 1514(d) of the
Code, which was added by the 2005 amendments. It makes the new
Rule 3002(c)(6) applicable in chapter 9 and chapter 11 cases. This
change was necessary so that creditors with foreign addresses be
provided such additional time as is reasonable under the
circumstances to file proofs of claims.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

No change from the Interim Rule.

Rule 3017.1. Court Consideration of Disclosure Statement in a
Small Business Case

1 (a) CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF DISCLOSURE

2 STATEMENT. ffthe debtoris In a small business case id ,has made

3 atimely efection to be consdered a snall bnins in a capter i f

4 case, the court may, on application of the plan proponent or on its

5 own initiative., conditionally approve a disclosure statement filed in

6 accordance with Rule 3016(hb). On or before conditional approval of

7 the disclosure statement, the court shall:

8 (1) fix a time within which the holders of claims and interests

9 may accept or reject the plan;

13



10 (2) fix a time for filing objections to the disclosure statement;

11 (3) fix a date for the hearing on final approval of the

12 disclosure statement to be held if a timely objection is filed; and

13 (4) fix a date for the hearing on confirmation.

14 ****

COMMITTEE NOTE

Section 101 of the Code, as amended in 2005, defines a "small
business case" and "small business debtor,"and eliminates any
need to elect that status. Therefore, the reference in the rule to an
election is deleted.

As provided in the amendment to Rule 3016(b), a plan intended
to provide adequate information in a small business case under
§ 1 125(f)(1) may be conditionally approved and is otherwise
treated as a disclosure statement under this rule.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

No change from the Interim Rule.

Rule 3019. Modification of Accepted Plan Before or
After Confirmation in a Chapter 9 Municipality or
Chapter 11 Reorganization Case

I (a) MODIFICATION OF PLAN BEFORE

2 CONFIRMATION. In a chapter 9 or chapter II case, after

3 a plan has been accepted and before its confirmation, the

4 proponent may file a modification of the plan. If the court

5 finds after hearing on notice to the trustee, any committee

6 appointed under the Code, and any other entity designated

14



7 by the court that the proposed modification does not

8 adversely change the treatment of the claim of any creditor

9 or the interest of any equity security holder who has not

10 accepted in writing the modification, it shall be deemed

11 accepted by all creditors and equity security holders who

12 have previously accepted the plan.

13 (b) MODIFICATION OF PLAN AFTER

14 CONFIRMATION IN INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR CASE. If

15 the debtor is an individual, a request to modify the plan

16 under § 1127(e) of the Code shall identify the proponent

17 and shall be filed together with the proposed modification.

18 The clerk, or some other person as the court may direct,

19 shall give the debtor, the trustee, and all creditors not less

20 than 20 days' notice by mail of the time fixed to file

21 objections and, if an objection is filed, the hearing to

22 consider the proposed modification, unless the court orders

23 otherwise with respect to creditors who are not affected by

24 the proposed modification. A copy of the notice shall be

25 transmitted to the United States trustee, together with a

26 copy of the proposed modification. Any objection to the

27 proposed modification shall be filed and served on the

28 debtor, thg'proponent of the modification, the trustee, and

15



29 any other entity designated by the court, and shall be

30 transmitted to the United States trustee. An objection to a

31 proposed modification is governed by Rule 9014.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Section 1127 of the Code, amended by the 2005 amendments,
provides for modification of a confirmed plan in a chapter 11 case
of an individual debtor. The rule is amended to establish the
procedure for filing and objecting to a proposed modification of a
confirmed plan.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

Headings were inserted for the subdivisions of the Rule, and no
other changes were made from the Interim Rule.

Rule 5001. Courts and Clerks' Offices

I

2 (b) TRIALS AND HEARINGS; ORDERS IN CHAMBERS.

3 All trials and hearings shall be conducted in open court and so far

4 as convenient in a regular court room. Except as otherwise

5 provided in 28 U.S.C. § 152(c), all All other acts or proceedings

6 may be done or conducted by a judge in chambers and at any place

7 either within or without the district; but no hearing, other than one

8 ex parte, shall be conducted outside the district without the consent

9 of all parties affected thereby.

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to permit bankruptcy judges to hold

16



hearings outside of the district in which the case is pending to the
extent that the circumstances lead to the authorization of the court
to take such action under the 2005 amendment to 28 U.S.C. §
152(c). Under that provision, bankruptcy judges may hold court
outside of their districts in emergency situations and when the
business of the court otherwise so requires. This amendment to the
rule is intended to implement the legislation.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

This Rule was not included in the Interim Rules.

Rule 9006. Time

2 (b) ENLARGEMENT.

3 (1) In General. Except as provided in paragraphs (2) and

4 (3) of this subdivision, when an act is required or allowed to be

5 done at or within a specified period by these rules or by a notice

6 given thereunder or by order of court, the court for cause shown

7 may at any time in its discretion (1) with or without motion or

8 notice order the period enlarged if the request therefor is made

9 before the expiration of the period originally prescribed or as

10 extended by a previous order or (2) on motion made after the

11 expiration of the specified period permit the act to be done where

12 the failure to act was the result of excusable neglect.

13 (2) Enlargement Not Permitted. The court may not enlarge

14 the time for taking action under Rules 1007(d), 2003(a) and (d),

17



15 7052, 9023, and 9024.

16 (3) Enlargement Limited. The court may enlarge the time

17 for taking action under Rules 1006(b)(2), 1007(c) with respect to

18 the time to file schedules and statements in a small business case,

19 1017(e), 3002(c), 4003(b), 4004(a), 4007(c), 4008(a), 8002 and

20 9033, only to the extent and under the conditions stated in those

21 rules.

22 (c) REDUCTION.

23

24 (2) Reduction Not Permitted. The court may not reduce the

25 time for taking action under pursuant to Rules 2002(a)(7), 2003(a),

26 3002(c), 3014, 3015, 4001(b)(2, (c)(2), 4003(a), 4004(a), 4007(c),

27 4008(a), 8002, and 9033(b).

28

COMMITTEE NOTE

Section 1116(3) of the Code, as amended by the 2005
amendments, places specific limits on the time for filing schedules
and a statement of affairs in small business cases. The rule is
amended to recognize that extensions of time for filing these
documents are governed by Rule 1007(c), which is amended to
recognize restrictions on expanding the time to file these
documents in small business cases.

Subdivisions (b)(3) and (c)(2) are also amended to provide that
enlargement or reduction of the time to file a reaffirmation
agreement is governed by Rule 4008(a).

18



Other amendments are stylistic.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

Rule 4008(a) is added to the list of subdivisions for which
enlargement or reduction of time is limited under subdivisions
(b)(3) and (c)(2) of this Rule.

Rule 9009. Forms

1 Except as otherwise provided in Rule 3016(d), the The Official

2 Forms prescribed by the Judicial Conference of the United States

3 shall be observed and used with alterations as may be appropriate.

4 Forms may be combined, and their contents rearranged to permit

5 economies in their use. The Director of the Administrative Office

6 of the United States Courts may issue additional forms for use

7 under the Code. The forms shall be construed as consistent with

8 these Rules and the Code.

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to provide that a plan proponent in a small
business chapter 11 case need not use an Official Form of a plan of
reorganization and disclosure statement. The use of those forms is
optional, and under Rule 3016(d) the proponent may submit a plan
and disclosure statement in those cases that does not conform to
the Official Forms.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

There are two changes from the Interim Rule. First, the last
sentence of the Interim Rule is deleted because the Interim Rules
will no longer be effective when these Rules are finally
promulgated and effective. Second, an exception is added to the
Rule to prevent the promulgation of a form plan and disclosure

19



statement in small business chapter 11 cases from prohibiting the
use of other plans and disclosure statements in those cases as
contemplated by the 2005 Act.

II. RULES FOR WHICH COMMENTS WERE RECEIVED BUT WHICH THE
APPROPRIATE SUBCOMMITTEE RECOMMENDS FOR APPROVAL WITHOUT
CHANGE FROM THE PUBLISHED VERSION

We received comments or suggestions for changes to the following published rules, but after
considering the comments and suggestions, the appropriate Subcommittee recommends that
these rules be approved without change and be forwarded to the Standing Committee for it
approval and further recommendation for adoption by the Judicial Conference:

Bankruptcy Rules 1006, 1010, 1011, 1017, 1020, 2003, 3016, 3017.1, 4006, 4007, 4008, and
8001; and new Bankruptcy Rules 1021, 2007.2, 2015.1, and 5008.

Comment 06-BK-001 (Bankruptcy Judge Geraldine Mund) (See Page 1 of memo behind Tab
3 titled Comments Submitted Prior to January 10, 2007 on Proposed Rules and Forms) Judge
Mund commented that the Proposed Rule results in cases being processed for which the court
receives no fees, but a petition preparer may have been paid in full. The Consumer
Subcommittee concluded that the rule should not be changed because the debtor should not be
precluded from obtaining bankruptcy relief simply because the debtor has previously paid a
petition preparer for services rendered in connection with the case.

Rule 1006. Filing Fee

1 (a) GENERAL REQUIREMENT. Every petition shall be

2 accompanied by the filing fee except as provided in subdivisions

3 (b) and (c) of this rule. For the purpose of this rule, "filing fee"

4 means the filing fee prescribed by 28 U.S.C. § 1930(a)(l)-(a)(5)

5 and any other fee prescribed by the Judicial Conference of the

6 United States under 28 U.S.C. § 1930(b) that is payable to the clerk

7 upon the commencement of a case under the Code.

8 (b) PAYMENT OF FILING FEE IN INSTALLMENTS.

20



9 (1) Application foi Pei mission to Pay Filing Fee in

10 Installments. A voluntary petition by an individual shall be

11 accepted for filing if accompanied by the debtor's signed

12 application, prepared as prescribed by the appropriate Official

13 Form, stating that the debtor is unable to pay the filing fee except

14 in installments. The. application~ shall state the proposed tenns1 of

15 the is..... 1... paynt. an.d that the applic.ant has ne1 ther -- d

16 any n eOniy noi trainJfiiud any piropity to an attuiirny for -v-iC

17 tio ... ..... th case '" " .. .

18

19 (3) Postponement of Attorney's Fees. The filing-fee All

20 installments of the filing fee must be paid in full before the debtor

21 or chapter 13 trustee may make further payments pay-an to an

22 attorney or any other person who renders services to the debtor in

23 connection with the case.

24 (c) WAIVER OF FILING FEE. A voluntary chapter 7 petition

25 filed by an individual shall be accepted for filing if accompanied

26 by the debtor's application requesting a waiver under 28 U.S.C. §

27 1930(f), prepared as prescribed by the appropriate Official Form.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (a) is amended to include a reference to new
subdivision (c), which deals with fee waivers under 28 U.S.C.

21



§ 1930(f), which was added in 2005.

Subdivision (b)(1) is amended to delete the sentence
requiring a disclosure that the debtor has not paid an attorney or
other person in connection with the case. Inability to pay the filing
fee in installments is one of the requirements for a fee waiver under
the 2005 revisions to 28 U.S.C. § 1930(f). If the attorney payment
prohibition were retained, payment of an attorney's fee would
render many debtors ineligible for installment payments and thus
enhance their eligibility for the fee waiver. The deletion of this
prohibition from the rule, which was not statutorily required,
ensures that debtors who have the financial ability to pay the fee in
installments will do so rather than request a waiver.

Subdivision (b)(3) is amended in conformance with the
changes to subdivision (b)(1) to reflect the 2005 amendments. The
change is meant to clarify that subdivision (b)(3) refers to
payments made after the debtor has filed the bankruptcy case and
after the debtor has received permission to pay the fee in
installments. Otherwise, the subdivision may conflict with the
intent and effect of the amendments to subdivision (b)(1).

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

Comment 05-BR-038 (Commercial Law League of America) (See page 4 of the memo behind
Tab 7 titled Recommendations on Comments Relating to Cross Border Insolvency) The CLLA
recommended that Rules 1010 and 1011 be amended to include "all persons or bodies authorized
to administer foreign proceedings" among the entities being served with an involuntary petition
against a debtor under Rule 1010, and that Rule 1011 be amended to include those persons
among the entities that can file a responsive pleading to an involuntary petition. These
amendments may not be necessary because the court can direct service on other parties if
appropriate under Rule 1010, and Rule 1011 permits any party in interest to contest the petition.

Rule 1010. Service of Involuntary Petition and Summons;
Petition Coiiiienciniug Aucill- y Case For Recognition of a
Foreign Nonmain Proceeding

I (a) SERVICE OF INVOLUNTARY PETITION AND

2 SUMMONS; SERVICE OF PETITION FOR RECOGNITION OF

22



3 FOREIGN NONMAIN PROCEEDING. On the filing of an

4 involuntary petition or a petition c ei a cas. a,,,illary to

5 for recognition of a foreign nonmain proceeding, the clerk shall

6 forthwith issue a summons for service. When an involuntary

7 petition is filed, service shall be made on the debtor. When a

8 petition con-en ingn aiicillaiy case for recognition of a foreign

9 nonmain proceeding is filed, service shall be made on the parties

10 , relef i. s sought pursuant tou § 30E)b) debtor, any

S1I entity against whom provisional relief is sought under § 1519 of

12 the Code. and on any other parties pýy as the court may direct.

13 The summons shall be served with a copy of the petition in the

14 manner provided for service of a summons and complaint by Rule

15 7004(a) or (b). If service cannot be so made, the court may order

16 that the summons and petition be served by mailing copies to the

17 party's last known address, and by at least one publication in a

18 manner and form directed by the court. The summons and petition

19 may be served on the party anywhere. Rule 7004(e) and Rule 4(l)

20 F.R.Civ.P. apply when service is made or attempted under this

21 rule.

22 ki) CORPORATE OWNERSHIP STATEMENT. Each

23 petitioner that is a corporation shall file with the involuntary

24 petition a corporate ownership statement containing the

23



25 information described in Rule 7007.1.

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule is amended to implement the 2005 amendments to
the Code, which repealed § 304 and replaced it with chapter 15
governing ancillary and other cross-border cases. Under chapter
15, a foreign representative commences a case by filing a petition
for recognition of a pending foreign nonmain proceeding. The
amendment requires service of the summons and petition on the
debtor and any entity against whom the representative is seeking
provisional relief. Until the court enters a recognition order under
§ 1517, no stay is in effect unless the court enters some form of
provisional relief under § 1519. Thus, only those entities against
whom specific provisional relief is sought need to be served. The
court may, however, direct that service be made on additional
entities as appropriate.

This rule does not apply to a petition for recognition of a
foreign main proceeding.

The rule is also amended by renumbering the prior rule as
subdivision (a) and adding a new subdivision (b) requiring any
corporate creditor that files or joins an involuntary petition to file a
corporate ownership statement.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

Rule 1011. Responsive Pleading or Motion in Involuntary and
Ancillary Cross-Border Cases

(a) WHO MAY CONTEST PETITION. The debtor named in

2 an involuntary petition. or a party in interest to a petition

3 'coni1iiiei a - ase uiillary tu a for recognition of a foreign

4 proceeding, may contest the petition. In the case of a petition

5 against a partnership under Rule 1004, a nonpetitioning general

6 partner, or a person who is alleged to be a general partner but

24



7 denies the allegation, may contest the petition.

8

9 (f) CORPORATE OWNERSHIP STATEMENT. If the entity

10 responding to the involuntary petition or the petition for

11 recognition of a foreign proceeding is a corporation, the entity shall

12 file with its first appearance, pleading, motion, response, or other

13 request addressed to the court a corporate ownership statement

14 containing the information described in Rule 7007.1.

COMMITTEE NOTE

The rule is amended to reflect the 2005 amendments to the
Code, which repealed § 304 and added chapter 15. Section 304
covered cases ancillary to foreign proceedings, while chapter 15
governs ancillary and other cross-border cases and introduces the
concept of a petition for recognition of a foreign proceeding.

The rule is also amended in tandem with the amendment to
Rule 1010 to require the parties responding to an involuntary
petition and a petition for recognition of a foreign proceeding to
file corporate ownership statements to assist the court in
determining whether recusal is necessary.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

The Interim Rule 1011 (a) was not changed. Subdivision (f) is
new. It requires the filing of a corporate ownership statement with
the first paper filed in response to an involuntary petition. This
change is not required by the 2005 Act.

Comments 06-BK-051 (Financial Services Roundtable), 06-BK-055 (American Bankers
Association, et. al.), 05-BR-001 (Senator Chuck Grassley, 05-BR-032 (Financial Services
Roundtable, 05-BR-033 (Senators Chuck Grassley and Jeff Sessions) 05-BR-034 (American
Bankers Association, et. al.) (See page 18 of memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted
After January 10, 2007 on Proposed Rules and Forms) These comments each suggest that

25



creditors should not be required to plead with specificity the circumstances that are alleged to
constitute an abuse under § 707(b)(1) or (3). The Committee has considered these comments and
concluded that there is a need for greater specificity in these motions to provide the debtor with
some indication of the nature of the creditor's position. The statute permits dismissal under the
totality of the circumstances, and the Committee concluded that debtors need to know what those
circumstances are in order to properly respond to the motion.

Rule 1017. Dismissal or Conversion of Case; Suspension

2 (e) DISMISSAL OF AN INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR'S

3 CHAPTER 7 CASE, OR CONVERSION TO A CASE UNDER

4 CHAPTER 11 or 13, FOR SUBSTANTIAL ABUSE. The court

5 may dismiss or, with the debtor's consent, convert an individual

6 debtor's case for sttbstantial abuse under § 707(b) only on motion

7 by th. United States trust.ee or on the. .. urt'. own .. .tioi. and after

8 a hearing on notice to the debtor, the trustee, the United States

9 trustee, and any other entities entity as the court directs.

10 (1) Except as otherwise provided in § 704(b)(2), a

11 motion to dismiss a case for substantial abuse under § 707(b) or (c)

12 may be filed by the Unte.d Stats h ust only within 60 days after

13 the first date set for the meeting of creditors under § 341(a), unless,

14 on request filed by t-,e U1,,t,- Statj er.st. . before the time has

15 expired, the court for cause extends the time for filing the motion

16 to dismiss. The United State triustee party filing the motion shall

17 set forth in the motion all matters to be considered submitted t -thi

26



18 court for its ,oniderato! at the hearing. In addition, a motion to

19 dismiss under § 707(b)(1) and (3) shall state with particularity the

20 circumstances alleged to constitute abuse.

21

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (e) is amended to implement the 2005
amendments to § 707 of the Code. These statutory amendments
permit conversion of a chapter 7 case to a case under chapter 11 or
13, change the basis for dismissal or conversion from "substantial
abuse" to "abuse," authorize parties other than the United States
trustee to bring motions under § 707(b) under certain
circumstances, and add § 707(c) to create an explicit ground for
dismissal based on the request of a victim of a crime of violence or
drug trafficking. The conforming amendments to subdivision (e)
preserve the time limits already in place for § 707(b) motions,
except to the extent that § 704(b)(2) sets the deadline for the
United States trustee to act. In contrast to the grounds for a motion
to dismiss under § 707(b)(2), which are quite specific, the grounds
under § 707(b)(1) and (3) are very general. Therefore, to enable
the debtor to respond, subdivision (e) requires that motions to
dismiss under § 707(b)(1) and (3) state with particularity the
circumstances alleged to constitute abuse.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

No change from the Interim Rules.

Comments 06-BK-055 and 05-BR-034 (American Bankers Association, et. al.) (See page 20
of memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted After January 10, 2007 on Proposed Rules
and Forms) These comments each asserted that Rule 1020 should allow parties in interest 60
days to object to the debtor's designation under subdivision (b) of the rule rather than the 30 days
provided. The Business Subcommittee concluded that 30 days was sufficient, and that extending
the objection period to 60 days may also have negative consequences on the debtor and the case
given the time limits for certain actions by a small business debtor that are included in the Code.

Rule 1020. E"leio. n to be en. ... .1 .d a Smal Bushiess in a
,hapt,, 1 Reoi-ganiLzatkione Small Business Chapter 11

27



Reorganization Case

I hia chaptia 1f i••rLIIgLnztio case, ga debtor that isa •11af

2 buine1 ss may lcke.t to be co • sidered a small buins by fing I a

3 written statemenit of electioni not later than 60 days~ afe the date o

4 the•r der f 1 relief.

5 (a) SMALL BUSINESS DEBTOR DESIGNATION. In a

6 voluntary chapter 11 case, the debtor shall state in the petition

7 whether the debtor is a small business debtor. In an involuntary

8 chapter 11 case, the debtor shall file within 15 days after entry of

9 the order for relief a statement as to whether the debtor is a small

10 business debtor. Except as provided in subdivision (c), the status

11 of the case as a small business case shall be in accordance with the

12 debtor's statement under this subdivision, unless and until the court

13 enters an order finding that the debtor's statement is incorrect.

14 (b) OBJECTING TO DESIGNATION. Except as provided in

15 subdivision (c), the United States trustee or a party in interest may

16 file an objection to the debtor's statement under subdivision (a) no

17 later than 30 days after the conclusion of the meeting of creditors

18 held under § 341(a) of the Code, or within 30 days after any

19 amendment to the statement, whichever is later.

20 (c) APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEE OF UNSECURED

21 CREDITORS. If a committee of unsecured creditors has been

28



22 appointed under § 11 02(a)( 1), the case shall proceed as a small

23 business case only if, and from the time when, the court enters an

24 order determining that the committee has not been sufficiently

25 active and representative to provide effective oversight of the

26 debtor and that the debtor satisfies all the other requirements for

27 being a small business. A request for a determination under this

28 subdivision may be filed by the United States trustee or a party in

29 interest only within a reasonable time after the failure of the

30 committee to be sufficiently active and representative. The debtor

31 may file a request for a determination at any time as to whether the

32 committee has been sufficiently active and representative.

33 (d) PROCEDURE FOR OBJECTION OR

34 DETERMINATION. Any objection or request for a determination

35 under this rule shall be governed by Rule 9014 and served on: the

36 debtor; the debtor's attorney; the United States trustee; the trustee;

37 any committee appointed under § 1102 or its authorized agent, or,

38 if no committee of unsecured creditors has been appointed under §

39 1102, on the creditors included on the list filed under Rule

40 1007(d); and on any other entity as the court directs.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Under the Code, as amended in 2005, there are no longer
any provisions permitting or requiring a small business debtor to
elect to be treated as a small business. Therefore, the election

29



provisions in the rule are eliminated.

The 2005 amendments to the Code include several
provisions relating to small business cases under chapter 11.
Section 101 includes definitions of "small business debtor" and
"small business case." The purpose of the new language in this
rule is to provide a procedure for informing the parties, the United
States trustee, and the court of whether the debtor is a small
business debtor, and to provide procedures for resolving disputes
regarding the proper characterization of the debtor. Because it is
important to resolve such disputes early in the case, a time limit for
objecting to the debtor's self-designation is imposed. Rule
9006(b)(1), which governs enlargement of time, is applicable to the
time limits set forth in this rule.

An important factor in determining whether the debtor is a
small business debtor is whether the United States trustee has
appointed a committee of unsecured creditors under § 1102, and
whether such a committee is sufficiently active and representative.
Subdivision (c), relating to the appointment and activity of a
committee of unsecured creditors, is designed to be consistent with
the Code's definition of "small business debtor."

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

Several stylistic changes were made to the Rule. Since only the
United States trustee can appoint a committee of unsecured
creditors under § 1102, the reference to the United States trustee in
subdivision (a) was deleted. The commas that set off the list of
entities on whom service must be made under subdivision (d) was
changed to a colon followed by semicolons to separate the entities.

Comment 06-BK-010 (Jack E. Horsley) (See Page 3 of memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments
Submitted Prior to January 10, 2007 on Proposed Rules and Forms) Mr. Horsley noted the
desirability of rules governing health care businesses given the longevity of the population. The
National Bankruptcy Conference submitted Comment 06-BK-018) (See Page 8-9 of memo
behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted After January 10, 2007 on Proposed Rules and Forms)
which included a comment that Rule 1021 should be amended to require that whenever a petition
is filed in which the debtor or the petitioning creditors in an involuntary case identify the debtor
as a health care business, that notice of that status be sent to the persons listed in Proposed Rule
1021 (b). Parties in interest would know that a patient care ombudsman had been appointed, and
they could act under Proposed Rule 2007.2 to move to terminate the appointment if they wished

30



to do so. The lack of notice would not seem likely to create a problem in the cases. Finally, the
ABI survey (Comment 06-BK-056) (Page 3 of memo behind Tab 4B) included responses that
supported the insertion of deadlines in the rule for the designation of the business. The
Committee had considered that issue at the time of its initial adoption and determined that there
should be no specific deadline for such motions. The survey offered no reasons why the
deadlines should be inserted, so it is not possible to determine if the respondents reached their
decisions on the basis of arguments not already considered by the Advisory Committee.

Rule 1021. Health Care Business Case

1 (a) HEALTH CARE BUSINESS DESIGNATION. Unless the

2 court orders otherwise, if a petition in a case under chapter 7,

3 chapter 9, or chapter 11 states that the debtor is a health care

4 business, the case shall proceed as a case in which the debtor is a

5 health care business.

6 (b) MOTION. The United States trustee or a party in interest

7 may file a motion to determine whether the debtor is a health care

8 business. The motion shall be transmitted to the United States

9 trustee and served on: the debtor: the trustee: any committee

10 elected under § 705 or appointed under § 1102 of the Code or its

11 authorized agent, or, if the case is a chapter 9 municipality case or

12 a chapter 11 reorganization case and no committee of unsecured

13 creditors has been appointed under § 1102, on the creditors

14 included on the list filed under Rule 1007(d); and any other entity

15 as the court directs. The motion shall be governed by Rule 9014.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Section 101(27A) of the Code, added by the 2005

31



amendments, defines a health care business. This rule provides
procedures for designating the debtor as a health care business. The
debtor in a voluntary case, or petitioning creditors in an involuntary
case, make that designation by checking the appropriate box on the
petition. The rule also provides procedures for resolving disputes
regarding the status of the debtor as a health care business.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

The commas that set off the list of entities on whom service
must be made under subdivision (b) was changed to a colon
followed by semicolons to separate the entities.

Mr. Jack Horsley submitted Comment 06-BK-010. (Page 3 of memo behind Tab 3 titled
Comments Submitted Prior to January 10, 2007 on Proposed Rules and Forms) He suggests that
a portion of Rule 2003 that was not recommended for change be altered by clarifying that
locations other than courtrooms might be appropriate to include in the rule. The rule concerns
the location of meetings of creditors, and it already includes locations other than courtrooms, so
there is no need to adopt this recommendation.

Rule 2003. Meeting of Creditors or Equity Security Holders

I (a) DATE AND PLACE. Except as otherwise provided in §

2 341(e) of the Code, in in a chapter 7 liquidation or a chapter 11

3 reorganization case, the United States trustee shall call a meeting

4 of creditors to be held no fewer than 20 and no more than 40 days

5 after the order for relief. In a chapter 12 family farmer debt

6 adjustment case, the United States trustee shall call a meeting of

7 creditors to be held no fewer than 20 and no more than 35 days

8 after the order for relief. In a chapter 13 individual's debt

9 adjustment case, the United States trustee shall call a meeting of

10 creditors to be held no fewer than 20 and no more than 50 days

32



11 after the order for relief If there is an appeal from or a motion to

12 vacate the order for relief, or if there is a motion to dismiss the

13 case, the United States trustee may set a later date for the meeting.

14 The meeting may be held at a regular place for holding court or at

15 any other place designated by the United States trustee within the

16 district convenient for the parties in interest. If the United States

17 trustee designates a place for the meeting which is not regularly

18 staffed by the United States trustee or an assistant who may preside

19 at the meeting, the meeting may be held not more than 60 days

20 after the order for relief.

21

COMMITTEE NOTE

If the debtor has solicited acceptances to a plan before
commencement of the case, § 341(e), which was added to the Code
by the 2005 amendments, authorizes the court, on request of a
party in interest and after notice and a hearing, to order that a
meeting of creditors not be convened. The rule is amended to
recognize that a meeting of creditors might not be held in those
cases.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

No change from the Interim Rule.

Comment 05-BK-014 (William Redden, the Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern
District of Virginia). (See page 1 of memo behind Tab 4B.) Mr. Redden correctly noted that
Interim Rules 2007.2 and 2015.1 should refer to a "patient care ombudsman" rather than a
"health care ombudsman." That change has been made, so no further action is necessary
regarding that comment. Comment 05-BK-037, was submitted by the Insolvency Law
Committee of the Business Law Section of the California State Bar. (See page 1-2 of memo

33



behind Tab 4B.) The comment suggests that Interim Rule 2007.2 should include a reference to
the interests of patients as well as the quality of health care. The State Bar Committee states that
§ 333 of the Code provides that the ombudsman has the responsibility to consider the interests of
patients. While that is true, the statute also provides that the determination of whether the
appointment of an ombudsman is not necessary is based only on whether the appointment is "not
necessary for the protection of patients under the specific circumstances of the case." Thus, the
rule adopts the direct language of the statute, and the Insolvency Law Committee's reference to
another portion of the statute is not relevant to the specific action governed by Rule 2007.2.

Rule 2007.2. Appointment of Patient Care Ombudsman in a
Health Care Business Case

1 (a) ORDER TO APPOINT PATIENT CARE OMBUDSMAN.

2 In a chapter 7, chapter 9, or chapter 11 case in which the debtor is a

3 health care business, the court shall order the appointment of a

4 patient care ombudsman under § 333 of the Code, unless the court,

5 on motion of the United States trustee or a party in interest filed no

6 later than 20 days after the commencement of the case or within

7 another time fixed by the court, finds that the appointment of a

8 patient care ombudsman is not necessary under the specific

9 circumstances of the case for the protection of patients.

10 (b) MOTION FOR ORDER TO APPOINT OMBUDSMAN. If

11 the court has found that the appointment of an ombudsman is not

12 necessary, or has terminated the appointment, the court, on motion

13 of the United States trustee or a party in interest, may order the

14 appointment at a later time if it finds that the appointment has

15 become necessary to protect patients.

34



16 (c) NOTICE OF APPOINTMENT. If a patient care

17 ombudsman is appointed under § 333, the United States trustee

18 shall promptly file a notice of the appointment, including the name

19 and address of the person appointed. Unless the person appointed

20 is a State Long-Term Care Ombudsman, the notice shall be

21 accompanied by a verified statement of the person appointed

22 setting forth the person's connections with the debtor, creditors,

23 patients, any other party in interest, their respective attorneys and

24 accountants, the United States trustee, and any person employed in

25 the office of the United States trustee.

26 (d) TERMINATION OF APPOINTMENT. On motion of the

27 United States trustee or a party in interest, the court may terminate

28 the appointment of a patient care ombudsman if the court finds that

29 the appointment is not necessary to protect patients.

30 (e) MOTION. A motion under this rule shall be governed by

31 Rule 9014. The motion shall be transmitted to the United States

32 trustee and served on: the debtor; the trustee; any committee

33 elected under § 705 or appointed under § 1102 of the Code or its

34 authorized agent, or, if the case is a chapter 9 municipality case or

35 a chapter 11 reorganization case and no committee of unsecured

36 creditors has been appointed under § 1102, on the creditors

37 included on the list filed under Rule 1007(d): and such other

35



38 entities as the court may direct.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Section 333 of the Code, added by the 2005 amendments,
requires the court to order the appointment of a health care
ombudsman within the first 30 days of a health care business case,
unless the court finds that the appointment is not necessary for the
protection of patients. The rule recognizes this requirement and
provides a procedure by which a party may obtain a court order
finding that the appointment of a patient care ombudsman is
unnecessary. In the absence of a timely motion under subdivision
(a) of this rule, the court will enter an order directing the United
States trustee to appoint the ombudsman.

Subdivision (b) recognizes that, despite a previous order
finding that a patient care ombudsman is not necessary,
circumstances of the case may change or newly discovered
evidence may demonstrate the necessity of an ombudsman to
protect the interests of patients. In that event, a party may move the
court for an order directing the appointment of an ombudsman.

When the appointment of a patient care ombudsman is
ordered, the United States trustee is required to appoint a
disinterested person to serve in that capacity. Court approval of the
appointment is not required, but subdivision (c) requires the person
appointed, if not a State Long-Term Care Ombudsman, to file a
verified statement similar to the statement filed by professional
persons under Rule 2014 so that parties in interest will have
information relevant to disinterestedness. If a party believes that
the person appointed is not disinterested, it may file a motion
asking the court to find that the person is not eligible to serve.

Subdivision (d) permits parties in interest to move for the
termination of the appointment of a patient care ombudsman. If
the movant can show that there no longer is any need for the
ombudsman, the court may order the termination of the
appointment.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

A stylistic change was made in subdivision (a) by reordering
the words in lines 9-10. Subdivision (c) was renamed "NOTICE

36



OF APPOINTMENT" as compared to "APPOINTMENT OF
OMBUDSMAN." Subdivision (d) changed "not necessary for the
protection of patients" to "not necessary to protect patients" on
lines 16-17. The list in subdivision (e) is now set out by a colon
and semicolons as compared to the separation of the listed items by
commas in the Interim Rules.

Comment 05-BK-014 (William Redden, the Clerk of the Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern
District of Virginia). (See page 1 of memo behind Tab 4B.) Mr. Redden correctly noted that
Interim Rules 2007.2 and 2015.1 should refer to a "patient care ombudsman" rather than a
"health care ombudsman." That change has been made, so no further action is necessary
regarding that comment. Comment 06-BK-018 submitted by the National Bankruptcy
Conference proposes that Rule 2015.1 be amended to provide that the court should be allowed to
restrict notice to patients when that would be in the best interests of the patient. While the
sentence in the rule that identifies the recipients of the notice does not specifically authorize the
court to order that the notice not be given to the patients, Rule 2015.1(a) begins with a
recognition that the court can order otherwise as to the required notice. Therefore, it is not
necessary to amend the rule to accomplish the purpose suggested by the comment.

Rule 2015.1. Patient Care Ombudsman

I (a) REPORTS. Unless the court orders otherwise, a patient

2 care ombudsman, at least 10 days before making a report under §

3 333(b)(2) of the Code, shall give notice that the report will be

4 made to the court. The notice shall be transmitted to the United

5 States trustee, posted conspicuously at the health care facility that

6 is the subject of the report, and served on: the debtor, the trustee:

7 all patients: and any committee elected under § 705 or appointed

8 under § 1102 of the Code or its authorized agent, or, if the case is a

9 chapter 9 municipality case or a chapter 11 reorganization case and

10 no committee of unsecured creditors has been appointed under

11 1102, on the creditors included on the list filed under Rule

37



12 1007(d): and such other entities as the court may direct. The notice

13 shall state the date and time when the report will be made, the

14 manner in which the report will be made, and, if the report is in

15 writing, the name, address, telephone number, email address, and

16 website, if any, of the person from whom a copy of the report may

17 be obtained at the debtor's expense.

18 (b) AUTHORIZATION TO REVIEW CONFIDENTIAL

19 PATIENT RECORDS. A motion by a health care ombudsman

20 under § 333(c) to review confidential patient records shall be

21 governed by Rule 9014, served on the patient and any family

22 member or other contact person whose name and address has been

23 given to the trustee or the debtor for the purpose of providing

24 information regarding the patient's health care, and transmitted to

25 the United States trustee subject to applicable nonbankruptcy law

26 relating to patient privacy. Unless the court orders otherwise, a

27 hearing on the motion may not be commenced earlier than 15 days

28 after service of the motion.

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule is new and implements § 333 of the Code, added by
the 2005 amendments. Subdivision (a) is designed to give parties
in interest, including patients or their representatives, sufficient
notice so that they will be able to review written reports or attend
hearings at which reports are made. The rule permits a notice to
relate to a single report or to periodic reports to be given during the
case. For example, the ombudsman may give notice that reports

38



will be made at specified intervals or dates during the case.

Subdivision (a) of the rule also requires that the notice be
posted conspicuously at the health care facility in a place where it
will be seen by patients and their families or others visiting the
patients. This may require posting in common areas and patient
rooms within the facility. Because health care facilities and the
patients they serve can vary greatly, the locations of the posted
notice should be tailored to the specific facility that is the subject
of the report.

Subdivision (b) requires the ombudsman to notify the patient
and the United States trustee that the ombudsman is seeking access
to confidential patient records so that they will be able to appear
and be heard on the matter. This procedure should assist the court
in reaching its decision both as to access to the records and
appropriate restrictions on that access to ensure continued
confidentiality. Notices given under this rule are subject to the
provisions of applicable federal and state law that relate to the
protection of patients' privacy, such as the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104-191
(HIPAA).

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

There are minor stylistic changes to this Rule. In subdivision
(a), the list of entities to be served is set off by a colon and
semicolons rather than commas as in the Interim Rule. The last
sentence of subdivision (b) is rewritten to clarify the limitation on
the commencement of a hearing.

Comment 05-BR-034 submitted by the American Bankers Association, et. al., expressed support
for Rule 3016 and notes that the rule makes adequate recognition of new Code § 1125(f)(1).

Rule 3016. Filing of Plan and Disclosure Statement in a
Chapter 9 Municipality or Chapter 11 Reorganization Case

(b) DISCLOSURE STATEMENT. In a chapter 9 or 11 case, a

2 disclosure statement under § 1125 of the Code or evidence

39



3 showing compliance with § 1126(b) of-the-Code shall be filed with

4 the plan or within a time fixed by the court, unless the plan is

5 intended to provide adequate information under § 1125(f)(1). If

6 the plan is intended to provide adequate information under §

7 1125(f)(1), it shall be so designated and Rule 3017.1 shall apply as

8 if the plan is a disclosure statement.

9

10 (d) STANDARD FORM SMALL BUSINESS DISCLOSURE

11 STATEMENT AND PLAN. In a small business case, the court

12 may approve a disclosure statement and may confirm a plan that

13 conform substantially to the appropriate Official Forms or other

14 standard forms approved by the court.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (b) is amended to recognize that, in 2005,
§ 1 125(f)(1) was added to the Code to provide that the plan
proponent in a small business case need not file a disclosure
statement if the plan itself includes adequate information and the
court finds that a separate disclosure statement is unnecessary. If
the plan is intended to provide adequate information in a small
business case, it may be conditionally approved as a disclosure
statement under Rule 3017.1 and is subject to all other rules
applicable to disclosure statements in small business cases.

Subdivision (d) is added to the rule to implement § 433 of the
Bankruptcy Abuse Prevention and Consumer Protection Act of
2005 which requires the promulgation of Official Forms for plans
and disclosure statements in small business cases. Section
11 25(f)(2) of the Code provides that the court may approve a
disclosure statement submitted on the appropriate Official Form or
on a standard form approved by the court. The rule takes no

40



position on whether a court may require a local standard form
disclosure statement or plan of reorganization in lieu of the Official
Forms.

Other amendments are stylistic.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

There is no change in subdivision (b) from the Interim Rules.
Subdivision (d) is new. It implements a provision of the 2005 Act
that does not become effective until the applicable rules and
Official Forms become effective under the Rules Enabling Act.

Comment 05-BR-034 submitted by the American Bankers Association, et. al., suggested that the
Rule 3017.1 be revised to state that the deadlines for the actions set out in subdivision (1)(a) be
"a reasonable time that fully protects the substantive and procedural rights of all holders of
claims and interests." The courts will take such matters into their consideration when setting
these deadlines, so there is no need to amend the rule to state such a requirement in the text of the
rule.

Rule 3017.1. Court Consideration of Disclosure Statement in a
Small Business Case

1 (a) CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF DISCLOSURE

2 STATEMENT. If the-debtor-TS In a small business case mad-has

3 mIade a time1 ly electionU tU be c •n•iderd a small business• in -a

4 chapter-f-l--ea e, the court may, on application of the plan

5 proponent or on its own initiative, conditionally approve a

6 disclosure statement filed in accordance with Rule 3016(b). On or

7 before conditional approval of the disclosure statement, the court

8 shall:

9 (1) fix a time within which the holders of claims and

10 interests may accept or reject the plan;

41



11 (2) fix a time for filing objections to the disclosure

12 statement;

13 (3) fix a date for the hearing on final approval of the

14 disclosure statement to be held if a timely objection is filed; and

15 (4) fix a date for the hearing on confirmation.

16

COMMITTEE NOTE

Section 101 of the Code, as amended in 2005, defines a "small
business case" and "small business debtor,"and eliminates any
need to elect that status. Therefore, the reference in the rule to an
election is deleted.

As provided in the amendment to Rule 3016(b), a plan intended
to provide adequate information in a small business case under
§ 1 125(f)(1) may be conditionally approved and is otherwise
treated as a disclosure statement under this rule.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

No change from the Interim Rule.

Comment 06-BK-051 submitted by the Financial Services Roundtable suggests that Rule 4006
should be amended to require debtors to file a certificate or provide other proof of completion of
the postpetition personal financial management course. Comment 05-BR-001 submitted by
Senator Grassley also asserted that the rule should require debtors to file a certificate. The
Committee considered this position and concluded that the language of Code distinguishes
between prepetition credit counseling for which the debtor is required to file a certificate, and the
postpetition personal financial management course for which the Code contains no requirement
of the filing of a certificate.

Rule 4006. Notice of No Discharge

If an order is entered- denying a discharge; or revoking a

42



2 discharge; or if approving a waiver of discharge; isiled or, in the

3 case of an individual debtor, closing the case without the entry of a

4 discharge, the clerk, aftr the order becom.e fin.al or the waiver "i

5 fied shall promptly give .noutice thereo0f to notify all creditors

6 parties in interest in the manner provided in by Rule 2002.

COMMITTEE NOTE

This amendment was necessary because the 2005 amendments
to the Code require that individual debtors in a chapter 7 or 13 case
complete a course in personal financial management as a condition
to the entry of a discharge. If the debtor fails to complete the
course, the case may be closed and no discharge will be entered.
Reopening the case is governed by § 350 and Rule 5010. The rule
is amended to provide notice to parties in interest, including the
debtor, that no discharge was entered.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

Several minor stylistic changes were made from the Interim
Rule. The initial list in the Rule is revised slightly to make it
consistent, and "give notice thereof' is changed to "notify" on lines
6-7.

Comment 06-BK-055 (American Bankruptcy Institute). The survey conducted by the ABI
included a strong response where 85 of 90 responders suggest that the rule include a specific
deadline for objections to the dischargeability of a debt under § 1328(a)(4). The Consumer
Subcommittee has not considered this suggestion.

Rule 4007. Determination of Dischargeability of a Debt

I

2 (c) TIME FOR FILING COMPLAINT UNDER § 523(c) IN A

3 CHAPTER 7 LIQUIDATION, CHAPTER 11

4 REORGANIZATION, OR CHAPTER 12 FAMILY FARMER'S

43



5 DEBT ADJUSTMENT CASE, OR CHAPTER 13

6 INDIVIDUAL'S DEBT ADJUSTMENT CASE; NOTICE OF

7 TIME FIXED. Except as otherwise provided in subdivision (d), a

8 A complaint to determine the dischargeability of a debt under §

9 523(c) shall be filed no later than 60 days after the first date set for

10 the meeting of creditors under § 341(a). The court shall give all

11 creditors no less than 30 days' notice of the time so fixed in the

12 manner provided in Rule 2002. On motion of a party in interest,

13 after hearing on notice, the court may for cause extend the time

14 fixed under this subdivision. The motion shall be filed before the

15 time has expired.

16 (d) TIME FOR FILING COMPLAINT UNDER §-523(-)

17 523(a)(6) IN CHAPTER 13 INDIVIDUAL'S DEBT

18 ADJUSTMENT CASE; NOTICE OF TIME FIXED. On motion

19 by a debtor for a discharge under § 1328(b), the court shall enter an

20 order fixing the time to file a complaint to determine the

21 dischargeability of any debt under § 523(e) 523(a)(6) and shall give

22 no less than 30 days' notice of the time fixed to all creditors in the

23 manner provided in Rule 2002. On motion of any party in interest

24 after hearing on notice the court may for cause extend the time

25 fixed under this subdivision. The motion shall be filed before the

26 time has expired.

44



COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (c) is amended because of the 2005 amendments to
§ 1328(a) of the Code. This revision expands the exceptions to
discharge upon completion of a chapter 13 plan. Subdivision (c)
extends to chapter 13 the same time limits applicable to other
chapters of the Code with respect to the two exceptions to
discharge that have been added to § 1328(a) and that are within
§ 523(c).

The amendment to subdivision (d) reflects the 2005
amendments to § 1328(a) that expands the exceptions to discharge
upon completion of a chapter 13 plan, including two out of three of
the provisions that fall within § 523(c). However, the 2005
revisions to § 1328(a) do not include a reference to § 523(a)(6),
which is the third provision to which § 523(c) refers. Thus,
subdivision (d) is now limited to that provision.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

No change from the Interim Rule.

Comments 06-BK-055 and 05-BR-034 (American Bankers Association, et. al.) each suggest
that reaffirmation agreements be uniform and that the rule require the use of a standard form that
implements the 2005 statutory changes. The National Bankruptcy Conference submitted
Comment 06-BK-018) (see page 7 of memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted After
January 10, 2007 on Proposed Rules and Forms) and it also suggests that an Official Form for
reaffirmation agreements be adopted. These suggestions each address a forms issue rather than a
rules issue, so no change is required in the rule as it was published. The Forms Subcommittee
has recommended an Official Form for reaffirmation agreements.

Rule 4008. Dischar ge and Rffi,, -atiuun Ieaii ing Filing of
Reaffirmation Agreement; Statement in Support of
Reaffirmation Agreement

(a) FILING OF REAFFIRMATION AGREEMENT. A

2 reaffirmation agreement shall be filed no later than 60 days after

45



3 the first date set for the meeting of creditors under § 341 (a) of the

4 Code. The court may, at any time and in its discretion, enlarge the

5 time to file a reaffirmation agreement. Not miore thani 30 days

6 fbilowing tle enitry ofaii order granting~ or deniying a discharge.,,o

7 iUnfinuiin a plani ni a ciaplte i 1 iIf Ui c..• se l.c,,on , rinI

8 ani individual debtor and on not les than 1 0 days notice to-the

9 debtor and the tmuste, the eourt may hold a h~aii as voided in

10 § 524(d) -f the -•-. A m.otion by the 1.. 1 bor ... ap oval • f a

1 I"reaffirmatioii a{gl.•e•menit shall be filed beIfo or at the lie i _

12 (b) STATEMENT IN SUPPORT OF REAFFIRMATION

13 AGREEMENT. The debtor's statement required under §

14 524(k)(6)(A) shall be accompanied by a statement of the total

15 income and expenses stated on schedules I and J. If there is a

16 difference between the total income and expenses stated on those

17 schedules and the statement required under § 524(k)(6)(A), the

18 statement required by this subdivision shall include an explanation

19 of the difference.

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule is amended to establish a deadline for filing
reaffirmation agreements. The Code sets out a number of
prerequisites to the enforceability of reaffirmation agreements.
Among those requirements, § 524(k)(6)(A) provides that each
reaffirmation agreement must be accompanied by a statement
indicating the debtor's ability to make the payments called for by
the agreement. In the event that this statement reflects an

46



insufficient income to allow payment of the reaffirmed debt,
§ 524(m) provides that a presumption of undue hardship arises,
allowing the court to disapprove the reaffirmation agreement, but
only after a hearing conducted prior to the entry of discharge. Rule
4004(c)(1)(K) accommodates this provision by delaying the entry
of discharge where a presumption of undue hardship arises.
However, in order for that rule to be effective, the reaffirmation
agreement itself must be filed before the entry of discharge. Under
Rule 4004(c)(1) discharge is to be entered promptly after the
expiration of the time for filing a complaint objecting to discharge,
which, under Rule 4004(a), is 60 days after the first date set for the
meeting of creditors under § 341(a). Accordingly, that date is set
as the deadline for filing a reaffirmation agreement.

Any party may file the agreement with the court. Thus,
whichever party has a greater incentive to enforce the agreement
usually will file it. In the event that the parties are unable to file a
reaffirmation agreement in a timely fashion, the rule grants the
court broad discretion to permit a late filing. A corresponding
change to Rule 4004(c)(1)(J) accommodates such an extension by
providing for a delay in the entry of discharge during the pendency
of a motion to extend the time for filing a reaffirmation agreement.

Rule 4008 is also amended by deleting provisions regarding the
timing of any reaffirmation and discharge hearing. As noted
above, § 524(m) itself requires that hearings on undue hardship be
conducted prior to the entry of discharge. In other respects,
including hearings to approve reaffirmation agreements of
unrepresented debtors under § 524(c)(6), the rule leaves discretion
to the court to set the hearing at a time appropriate for the
particular circumstances presented in the case and consistent with
the scheduling needs of the parties.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

This Rule is rewritten to change the deadline for filing a
reaffirmation agreement from "30 days following the entry of a
discharge" to "60 days after the first date set for the § 341 meeting
of creditors." The earlier deadline is necessary to permit the court
to hold a timely hearing on the enforceability of reaffirmation
agreements when the debtor's income appears insufficient to meet
the reaffirmation obligation.

47



Comment 06-BK-052 submitted by the Federal Courts Committee of the California State Bar
(see page 15 of memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted After January 10, 2007 on
Proposed Rules and Forms) suggests that the debtor and not the court send the notice of a
presumption of abuse if the notice is required by the debtor's late submission of the necessary
documents. The Consumer Subcommittee concluded that no change in the rule was necessary
both because there are relatively few situations in which the issue arises so that the expense is not
significant. Furthermore, notice from the court as opposed to being from the debtor (who may
oftentimes be unrepresented) will be more reliable.

Rule 5008. Notice Regarding Presumption of Abuse in
Chapter 7 Cases of Individual Debtors

1 If a presumption of abuse has arisen under § 707(b) in a chapter

2 7 case of an individual with primarily consumer debts, the clerk

3 shall within 10 days after the date of the filing of the petition notify

4 creditors of the presumption of abuse in accordance with Rule

5 2002. If the debtor has not filed a statement indicating whether a

6 presumption of abuse has arisen, the clerk shall within 10 days

7 after the date of the filing of the petition notify creditors that the

8 debtor has not filed the statement and that further notice will be

9 given if a later filed statement indicates that a presumption of

10 abuse has arisen. If a debtor later files a statement indicating that a

11 presumption of abuse has arisen, the clerk shall notify creditors of

12 the presumption of abuse as promptly as practicable.

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule is new. The 2005 amendments to § 342 of the Code
require that clerks give written notice to all creditors not later than
10 days after the date of the filing of the petition that a
presumption of abuse has arisen under § 707(b). A statement filed
by the debtor will be the source of the clerk's information about the

48



presumption of abuse. This rule enables the clerk to meet its
obligation to send the notice within the statutory time period set
forth in § 342. In the event that the court receives the debtor's
statement after the clerk has sent the first notice, and the debtor's
statement indicates a presumption of abuse, the rule requires that
the clerk send a second notice.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

The order of the wording in the first sentence of the Rule is
changed to emphasize that the subdivision applies when a specific
presumption arises. In lines 14-15, the words "shall notify" are
substituted for "shall give notice to."

Comment 06-BK-057 (Ms. Margaret Grammar Gay, Chief Deputy Clerk of the
Bankruptcy Court for the District of New Mexico) (see pages 23-24 of memo
behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted After January 10, 2007 on Proposed
Rules and Forms). Ms. Grammar Gay asserts that the change in the rule to
establish the docketing of the case as the triggering date for determining the court
to which a certification request should be made may not establish a bright line.
She notes that there is some confusion as to when the appeal is docketed because
the clerk of the district court in New Mexico apparently "dockets" the matter
when it receives the certificate of service of the notice of appeal rather than when
the clerk of the bankruptcy court transmits a copy of the complete record in the
case. This does seem to create some uncertainty, but it would appear that the
uncertainty is a consequence of the clerk of the district court moving more quickly
than Rule 8007(b) anticipates in the docketing of appeals. In Comment 05-BK-
017, Mr. Mark Diamond asserted that the language of subdivision (f)(1) of the
Interim Rule be revised, and that language was changed such that the ambiguity
concerning interlocutory and final orders is resolved. Thus, no further changes
were made.

Rule 8001. Manner of Taking Appeal; Voluntary Dismissal,
Certification to Court of Appeals

1

2 (e) ELECTION TO HAVE APPEAL HEARD BY DISTRICT

3 COURT INSTEAD OF BANKRUPTCY APPELLATE PANEL,

4 WITHDRAWAL OF ELECTION.

49



5 (1) Separate Writing for Election. An election to have an

6 appeal heard by the district court under 28 U.S.C. § 158(c)(1) may

7 be made only by a statement of election contained in a separate

8 writing filed within the time prescribed by 28 U.S.C. § 158(c)(1).

9 (2) Withdrawal of Election. A request to withdraw the

10 election may be filed only by written stipulation of all the parties to

11 the appeal or their attorneys of record. Upon such a stipulation, the

12 district court may either transfer the appeal to the bankruptcy

13 appellate panel or retain the appeal in the district court.

14 (f) CERTIFICATION FOR DIRECT APPEAL TO COURT OF

15 APPEALS.

16 (1) Timely Appeal Required. A certification of a judgment,

17 order, or decree of a bankruptcy court to a court of appeals under

18 28 U.S.C. § 158(d)(2) shall not be effective until a timely appeal

19 has been taken in the manner required by subdivisions (a) or (b) of

20 this rule and the notice of appeal has become effective under Rule

21 8002.

22 (2) Court Where Certification Made and Filed. A

23 certification that a circumstance specified in 28 U.S.C. §

24 158(d)(2)(A)(i)-(iii) exists shall be filed in the court in which a

25 matter is pending for purposes of 28 U.S.C. § 158(d)(2) and this

26 rule. A matter is pending in a bankruptcy court until the docketing,

50



27 in accordance with Rule 8007(b), of an appeal taken under 28

28 U.S.C. § 158(a)(1) or (2), or the grant of leave to appeal under 28

29 U.S.C. § 158(a)(3). A matter is pending in a district court or

30 bankruptcy appellate panel after the docketing, in accordance with

31 Rule 8007(b), of an appeal taken under 28 U.S.C. § 158(a)(L) or

32 (2), or the grant of leave to appeal under 28 U.S.C. § 158(a)(3).

33 (A) Certification by Court on Request or Court's Own

34 Initiative.

35 (i) Before Docketing or Grant of Leave to Appeal.

36 Only a bankruptcy court may make a certification on request or on

37 its own initiative while the matter is pending in the bankruptcy

38 court.

39 (ii) After Docketing or Grant of Leave to Appeal.

40 Only the district court or bankruptcy appellate panel involved may

41 make a certification on request of the parties or on its own

42 initiative while the matter is pending in the district court or

43 bankruptcy appellate panel.

44 (B) Certification by All Appellants and Appellees

45 Acting Jointly. A certification by all the appellants and appellees,

46 if any, acting jointly may be made by filing the appropriate Official

47 Form with the clerk of the court in which the matter is pending.

48 The certification may be accompanied by a short statement of the

51



49 basis for the certification, which may include the information listed

50 in subdivision (f)(3)(C) of this rule.

51 (3) Request for Certification: Filing.; Service' Contents.

52 (A) A request for certification shall be filed, within the

53 time specified by 28 U.S.C. § 158(d)(2), with the clerk of the court

54 in which the matter is pending.

55 (B) Notice of the filing of a request for certification

56 shall be served in the manner required for service of a notice of

57 appeal under Rule 8004.

58 (C) A request for certification shall include the

59 following:

60 (i) the facts necessary to understand the question

61 presented:

62 (ii) the question itself:

63 (iii) the relief sought:

64 (iv) the reasons why the appeal should be allowed

65 and is authorized by statute or rule, including why a circumstance

66 specified in 28 U.S.C. § 158(d)(2)(A)(i)-(iii) exists; and

67 (v) an attached copy of the judgment, order, or

68 decree complained of and any related opinion or memorandum.

69 (D) A party may file a response to a request for

70 certification or a cross request within 10 days after the notice of the

52



71 request is served, or another time fixed by the court.

72 (E) Rule 9014 does not govern a request, cross request,

73 or any response. The matter shall be submitted without oral

74 argument unless the court otherwise directs.

75 (F) A certification of an appeal under 28 U.S.C. §

76 158(d)(2) shall be made in a separate document served on the

77 parties.

78 (4) Certification on Court's Own Initiative.

79 (A) A certification of an appeal on the court's own

80 initiative under 28 U.S.C. § 158(d)(2) shall be made in a separate

81 document served on the parties in the manner required for service

82 of a notice of appeal under Rule 8004. The certification shall be

83 accompanied by an opinion or memorandum that contains the

84 information required by subdivision (f)(3)(C)(i)-(iv) of this rule.

85 (B) A party may file a supplementary short statement

86 of the basis for certification within 10 days after the certification.

87 5Q Duties of Parties After Certification. A petition for

88 permission to appeal in accordance with F. R. App. P. 5 shall be

89 filed no later than 30 days after a certification has become effective

90 as provided in subdivision (f)(1).

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (e) is amended by redesignating the subdivision as

53



(e)(1) and adding new subdivision (e)(2). Subdivision (e)(2)
explicitly recognizes the district court's authority to transfer an
appeal to the bankruptcy appellate panel on two conditions: first,
all of the parties to the appeal must have agreed to request the
withdrawal of the election to have the district court hear the appeal;
and, second, the district court must decide whether to grant the
request for withdrawal. The district court has discretion either to
keep the case or transfer it to the bankruptcy appellate panel, which
will prevent strategic behavior by parties and avoid the wasting of
judicial resources.

Subdivision (f) is added to the rule to implement the 2005
amendments to 28 U.S.C. § 158(d). That section authorizes
appeals directly to the court of appeals, with that court's consent,
upon certification that a ground for the appeal exists under
§ 158(d)(2)(A)(i)-(iii). Certification can be made by the court on
its own initiative or in response to a request of a party.
Certification also can be made by all of the appellants and
appellees. Under subdivision (f)(1), certification is effective only
when a timely appeal is commenced under subdivision (a) or (b),
and a notice of appeal has been timely filed under Rule 8002.
These actions will provide sufficient notice of the appeal to the
circuit clerk, so the rule dispenses with the uncodified temporary
procedural requirements set out in § 1233 (b)(4) of the Bankruptcy
Abuse Prevention and Consumer Protection Act of 2005, Pub. L.
No. 109-8.

The rule adopts a bright-line test for identifying the court in
which a matter is pending. Under subdivision (f)(2), the bright-line
chosen is the "docketing" under Rule 8007(b) of an appeal of an
interlocutory order or decree under 28 U.S.C. § 158(a)(2) or a final
judgment, order or decree under 28 U.S.C. § 158(a)(1), or the
granting of leave to appeal any other interlocutory judgment, order
or decree under 28 U.S.C. § 158(a)(3), whichever is earlier.

To ensure that parties are aware of a certification, the rule
requires either that it be made on the Official Form (if being made
by all of the parties to the appeal) or on a separate document
(whether the certification is made on the court's own initiative or
in response to a request by a party). This is particularly important
because the rule adopts the bankruptcy practice established by Rule
8001(a) and (b) of requiring a notice of appeal in every instance,
including interlocutory orders, of appeals from bankruptcy court

54



orders, judgments, and decrees. Because this requirement is
satisfied by filing the notice of appeal that takes the appeal to the
district court or bankruptcy appellate panel in the first instance, the
rule does not require a separate notice of appeal if a certification
occurs after a district court or bankruptcy appellate panel decision.

A certification under subdivision (f)(1) does not place the
appeal in the circuit court. Rather, the court of appeals must first
authorize the direct appeal. Subdivision (f)(5) therefore provides
that any party intending to pursue the appeal in the court of appeals
must seek that permission under Rule 5 of the Federal Rules of
Appellate Procedure. Subdivision (f)(5) requires that the petition
for permission to appeal be filed within 30 days after an effective
certification.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

55





'MAR-23-2007 
11:48 

JUDICIARY 
COMMITTEE

J ,yv , COtW4,1M Jk MM202 

22S 3746 P .02

~4. iou~e f *Aere.tontatibe.i
COMnuttuE on tt oubtiiarp

Maoftgon, ;a;205L-62iO

March 22, 2007

The Honorable Thomas S. Zilly
Chairman
Advisory Committee On Bankruptcy RulesJudicial Conference of the United StatesWashington, DC 20544

Dear Judge Zilly:
We write because of two reasons. First, we want to commend the Committee for its hard

work and dedication to proposing interim amendments to the Federal Bankruptcy Rules in
response to the enactment of the Bankruptcy Abuse Prevention and Consumer Protection Act of2005, Pub. L. No. 109-8, 119 Star. 23 (2005) ("Act'). These interim rules have enabled our
nation's bankruptcy system to make major adjustments while Continuing to serve the needs of
debtors and creditors. We know that Committee expended many hours to strike the tight balance
in interpreting the myriad revisions to the law and Practice effected by the Act.Second, we want to share with you our continuing concern about the implementation of
the AcL As you may know, we worked tirelessly to temper the harshness and one-sided aspect of
many of the bill's provisions over the course of the four Congresses when the legislation was
debated. We are sure you and the members of the Committee realize that it is no less critical to
ensure that any implementing rules be scrutinized by the Rules Committee, the Judicial
Conference, and the Supreme Court so that the historic balance struck between creditor and
debtor rights be maintained in the fulfillment of Bankruptcy Rule lO01's admonition that the
rules "be construed to secure the just, speedy, and inexpensive determination of every case andproceeding."

Especially in light of the Committee's current deliberations and because of previous
Congressional input the Committee received from Senators Grassley and Sessions pursuant to
their letter of March 13, 2006, there are several issues that we want to bring to your attention.
With respect to Official Form 22, Statement of Current Monthly Income, we must respetfuhly
disagree with the Senators. The Form, as currently drafted faithfully carries out the Act's
mandates. Section 707(b)(7) of the Bankruptcy Code, as amended by the Act. explicitly provides
an reqioroe tde Actr s mheartest for debtors with incomes below the stated thresholds.
TO ruire debtors who are not subject to the means test to complete many pages of irrelevantand time-.consumingcalculations would directly contravene section 7 m7(b)(7) and Rule 1v01.



t1AR-23-2007 11:48 JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 202 225 3746 P.03

The Honorable Thomas S. Zilly
March 22, 2007
Page Two

We also disagree with the Senators' suggestion that creditors should be able to

allege abuse without specifically pleading what abuse is being alleged. They apparently

oppose Interim Rule 1017(c)(1), which provides that a motion under section 707(b)(1) or

(3) "shall state with particularity the circumstances alleged to constitute abuse," The

requirements of Rule 1017(c)(1) merely implement Rule 1001's mandate that the rules

secure the "just, speedy, and inexpensive determination" of proceedings. Rule

1017(e)(1) ensures that debtors are provided an adequate explanation of the grounds for

the motion and assists the court in identifying the issues to be determined.

As we already noted, many of us in Congress fought hard to reduce the

burdensome documentation requirements of the Act, For example, we were able to

modify the original provision that would have required the debtor to file tax returns for

the three-year period before the filing of the bankruptcy case. Instead, section

521(e)(2)(A), as amended by the Act, permits the debtor, at his or her election, to

provide either a copy of the tax return for the preceding year or a transcript.
Accordingly, we are particularly concerned about Proposed Rule 4002(b)(2), which

would require debtors to provide certain types of financial information. Not only would

this Rule impose additional and burdensome document production requirements on

debtors, but the Rule appears to exceed what is required by the Act. Clearly, a trustee

may request such documentation based on the circumstances of a particular case.

Accordingly, there is no need to impose these new burdens on all debtors in all cases.

We also want to call your attention to those who advocate that differential

burdens be placed on attorneys who represent debtors as opposed to those who represent
creditors or business interests, That is an unwise distinction for any court to consider -
especially a court with equitable juriqdiction - and certainly no rule of procedure should

suggest such a distinction. Our judicial system is predicated on the even-handed
treatment of all parties before the bar, and that certainly extends to their legal

representatives. Having a more onerous standard, or any different standard, for the

proper certification and filing of documents by debtors' attorneys establishes a bad

judicial precedent more reflective of the ideological disputes of past Congressional
debates than the pursuit of justice before the law.



MAR-23-2007 11:48 JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 202 225 3746 P.04

We appreciate your Committee's attention to these concerns and, again, commend the

Committee for its leadership on ensuring that the procedural commands of the Act are

implemented equitably.

Sincerely,

C.incaT. Sknhelz

Chairwoman, Subcommittee on Commercial and
Administrative Law

cc: The Honorable Lamar S. Smith
The Honorable Chris Cannon

TOTAL P.04





MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON THE BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: SUBCOMMITTEE ON ATTORNEY CONDUCT

RE: RULE 9011 AND ATTORNEYS FOR CREDITORS

DATE: MARCH 22, 2007

In response to § 319 of BAPCPA and § 707(b)(4)(D) of the Code, the Subcommittee has

considered several amendments to Rule 9011 as well as to Official Form 1, the Voluntary

Petition. The Subcommittee concluded that the obligations of attorneys under § 707(b)(4)(D)

should not be limited to chapter 7 cases because the attorney may not know the chapter under

which a case may proceed at the time the attorney is conducting a review of the debtor's financial

status. Moreover, establishing an appropriate minimum level of scrutiny by the debtor's attorney

is proper whichever chapter under which the case might proceed. In the discussion of these

issues, the Subcommittee also briefly considered whether Rule 9011 should be amended to

include new standards applicable to all parties and attorneys participating in bankruptcy cases.

Concerns were expressed that applying different standards of behavior for attorneys based on the

identity of the client could create an imbalance in the adjudicative process. The Subcommittee

also noted that if certain standards were established for debtors' attorneys, then such standards

would be presumptively appropriate and should apply across the board to all counsel in a case.

The discussion noted that problems have arisen in two primary areas. First, some creditors and

their attorneys seem to be neglecting their responsibilities to submit accurate information both in

the proof of claim and in supporting documents that set out the creditor's claim. Second,

litigation over the automatic stay has included the submission of false information in situations in



which the courts are likely to rely on the information in granting relief.

The Subcommittee has decided to recommend to the Advisory Committee that Rule 9011

be amended to provide that a consumer debtor's attorney "has no knowledge after an inquiry that

the information in the schedule or amended schedule is incorrect." This standard for a debtor's

attorney's conduct is in addition to the more general standards that apply to all attorneys under

existing Rule 9011. It is a more stringent standard than the requirement under current Rule

9011 (b)(3) which provides that "allegations and other factual contentions have evidentiary

support of, if specifically so identified, are likely to have evidentiary support after a reasonable

opportunity for further investigation or discovery."

The issue raised briefly in the Subcommittee's previous discussion is whether Rule 9011

should be amended in some manner to address concerns about some practices of counsel for

consumer creditors in connection with the submission of proofs of claims. The Subcommittee

noted that problems have arisen in some parts of the country over the sufficiency and accuracy of

claims submitted in cases leading to extensive claims objection litigation. The courts have not

resolved the issue of the failure of creditors to attach supporting documentation to a proof of

claim form, compare In re Heath, 331 B.R. 424 (9th Cir. BAP 2006) (lack of documentation

attached to proof of claim filed by credit card issuer does not constitute a ground for denying a

claim under § 502 of the Code) with In re Kirkland, 2007 B.R. 118197 (Bankr. D.N.M., January

9, 2007) (when the claim objection is brought by the trustee, the absence of any documentation to

support a claim results in the disallowance of the claim because the creditor has not met its

burden of going forward due to the lack of the presumption of the validity of the claim that arises

under Rule 3001(f)). While persons filing a proof of claim are subject to punishment under Title

2



18 of the United States Code, the likelihood of a criminal prosecution is minimal, especially for

the filing of a single false claim. Nonetheless, that false claim has an impact on the case in which

it is filed, so it may be proper to consider additional restrictions on the behavior of creditors and

their counsel.

Another area in which the courts have noted problems with the submission of documents

or other evidentiary statements is in contested matters for relief from the automatic stay. Every

bankruptcy court faces hundreds of stay relief motions on a regular basis. The sheer volume of

these matters creates a need for efficiency in the resolution of these requests for relief.' The

process for resolving the matters has evolved into a very summary one in many courts. As one

court described its process,

In this Court it has not been the practice to require affidavits based upon
personal knowledge in routine motion practice. Thus, in motions by
secured creditors for relief from the automatic stay in cases under
Chapter 7 or Chapter 13, the facts are customarily presented in the form
of an affidavit, affirmation or other pleading signed by an attorney for
the secured creditor. Institutional creditors with computerized data
systems and trained staff and their counsel generally do not make
mistakes in the relatively simply task of accounting for a debtor's
payments, and the facts concerning the debtor's default are rarely
contested. Where the debtor and the creditor do disagree as to amounts
due, the differences will almost always be reconciled by both sides
sitting down and going over their respective records and accounts. Thus,

The court in In re Porcheddu, 338 B.R. 729, 734 (Bankr. S.D. Tex. 2006), noted that
"In 2005, there were 18,355 motions for relief from the automatic stay filed in chapter 7 or
chapter 13 cases in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Texas."
There are six bankruptcy judges in that district, so each judge faces an average of over 3,100 such
motions annually. In the case, the court found that an attorney had falsely testified regarding the
firm's time records that were submitted to the court in support of a motion for the payment of
those fees in connection with an action for relief from the stay.

3



in most routine lift stay motions in Chapter 7 and 13 cases the practice of
using attorney submissions to present "client facts" is more expeditious
and cost effective than requiring a client affidavit and generally does not
jeopardize fundamental rights or notions of fairness.

In re Gorshtein, 285 B.R. 118, 121 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 2002). After describing this process, the

court noted that it "relies, as it must, on the secured creditor's written submission in granting

relief." Id. This reliance is problematic if the information being provided to the court in the

form of attorney affidavits or certifications is inaccurate. During the Subcommittee's previous

discussion, reference was made to situations in which the information asserted to being supplied

by a particular person employed by a creditor in fact was not being supplied by that person at all.

Instead, the creditor's counsel used "pre-signed" certifications which were then attached to the

attorney's affidavits regarding the status of a debtor's account. In that case, In re Rivera, 342

B.R. 435 (Bankr. D.N.J. 2006), the court found that

It is now clear that the respondent law firm, Shapiro & Diaz, LLP ("S &
D"), had for an extended period engaged in the practice of preparing
certifications in support of bankruptcy stay relief motions and
applications, knowingly attaching presigned statements of certification.
The actual signatories to the "on-file" forms were in many instances not
the client-providers of the information contained in the certifications as
submitted, nor did those signatories (whether or not the information
providers) actually review the final form of the certifications before the
documents were filed with this court. In fact, in the immediate matter
which sparked the court's interest, the "signatory" (one "Amirah
Shahied") had not been in the employ of anyone related to the client-
secured party for over a year before the certification was filed.
Moreover, in that period when no relevant client relationship existed
with Amirah Shahied, her warehoused statement of certification was
appended to the tail end of accountings of default in mortgage payments
and filed with this court by S & D approximately 250 times.

Id. at 438-39. In the face of this practice, the court fined the law firm in the amount of $125,000

4



for its repeated violations of Rule 9011. The submission of a pre-signed certification violated

Rule 9011 (b)(1) and (3). It was submitted for an improper purpose (to make the court believe

that the information had been properly obtained and reviewed) and contained factual contentions

that were unsupported by any facts (such as that a specific person had signed the certification of

the status of the debtor's mortgage account). The court had no difficulty in finding violations of

Rule 9011.

Mr. Rao also noted that there is a pending class action in the Bankruptcy Court for the

Southern District of Alabama which includes allegations that are substantially similar to the

allegations that supported the imposition of sanctions in the Gorshtein case. In Thigpen v.

Matrix Financial Services, (Adversary No. 04-01035, May 25, 2004), the court denied the

defendant's motion to dismiss a class action against the financial company. The court relied

principally on § 105 of the Code and did not rely on Rule 9011 because the action was against

the creditor and not the attorney. Since 9011 (b) applies to "an attorney or unrepresented party,"

the Rule does not apply directly to the client who is represented by an attorney in the matter.

Nonetheless, the case demonstrates that there seems to be at least some problem with the system

which may not sufficiently deter such actions.

To address this problem, it might be appropriate to amend Rule 9011 to include a specific

directive to attorneys representing creditors in cases in which the debtor's debts are primarily

consumer debts. The debtor must make a declaration to that effect on the petition, so that

information is available to the creditor's attorney. The Subcommittee previously concluded that

the provisions of Rule 9011 should be expanded to increase the obligations of consumer debtors'

attorneys to ensure the accuracy of the information on which the bankruptcy system must operate.

5



It accomplished this by adopting an expanded application of § 707(b)(4)(D) which requires

attorneys representing consumer debtors in all chapters, not just chapter 7, to certify after an

inquiry that they have no knowledge that the information is incorrect. If the Subcommittee

believes that the need for accuracy of information supplied by creditors either in a proof of claim

or in documents filed in an action for relief from the stay requires a similar obligation for their

attorneys, then Rule 9011 could be amended to add such a requirement. This requirement would

apply only to documents submitted by attorneys in stay relief actions and to a proof of claim filed

by an attorney on behalf of a client. This would be accomplished by adding a new subparagraph

(2)(B) to the end of the Proposed Rule 9011 that the Subcommittee previously considered.

The rule does not make this obligation applicable to all areas of practice in bankruptcy

cases. For example, attorneys for the debtor and the creditor are each governed by Proposed Rule

9011 (b)(1) in actions to determine the dischargeability of a debt or to object to the debtor's

discharge. An argument exists that these actions are similar to the stay relief matters, and that

there is an opportunity for wrongdoing by creditors and their attorneys in those matters that is

comparable to the stay litigation. There does not seem to be as much evidence of impropriety in

those actions as in the area of stay relief, so the need for change seems less urgent.

The following version of Rule 9011 is taken from the memo that was attached to the

notice of the teleconference to be held on March 16.

Rule 9011. Signing of Papers; Representations to the Court;

Sanctions; Verification and Copies of Papers

(a) SIGNING OF PAPERS. Every petition, pleading, written

2 motion, and other paper, except a list, schedule, or statement, or

6



3 amendments thereto, shall be signed by at least one attorney of

4 record in the attorney's individual name. A party who is not

5 represented by an attorney shall sign all papers. Each paper shall

6 state the signer's address and telephone number, if any. An

7 unsigned paper shall be stricken unless omission of the signature is

8 corrected promptly after being called to the attention of the

9 attorney or party.

10 (b) REPRESENTATIONS TO THE COURT

11 (1) REPRESENTATIONS BY ALL PARTIES AND

12 THEIR ATTORNEYS. By presenting to the court, whether by

13 signing, submitting, or later advocating a petition, pleading, written

14 motion, or other paper, an attorney or unrepresented party is

15 certifying that to the best of the person's knowledge, information,

16 and belief, formed after an inquiry reasonable under the

17 circumstances, -

18 (-t-) (A) it is not being presented for any improper purpose, such

19 as to harass or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in

20 the cost of litigation;

21 (2) (B) the claims, defenses, and other legal contentions therein

22 are warranted by existing law or by a nonfrivolous argument for

23 the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law or the

24 establishment of new law;

7



25 (3-) (CŽ the allegations and other factual contentions have

26 evidentiary support or, if specifically so identified, are likely to

27 have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further

28 investigation or discovery; or

29 (4) M(D) the denials of factual contentions are warranted on the

30 evidence or, if specifically so identified, are reasonably based on a

31 lack of information or belief.

32 (2) REPRESENTATIONS IN CASES IN WHICH THE

33 DEBTOR HAS PRIMARILY CONSUMER DEBTS. In a case in

34 which the debtor is an individual whose debts are primarily

35 consumer debts,

36 (A) any schedule or amended schedule shall be

37 accompanied by a certification by the debtor's attorney that the

38 attorney has no knowledge after an inquiry that the information in

39 the schedule or amended schedule is incorrect; and

40 (B) any proof of claim or motion seeking relief from the

41 automatic stay shall be accompanied by a certification by the filing

42 attorney that the attorney has no knowledge after an inquiry that the

43 information in the filing is incorrect.

44

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (b) of the rule is amended by adding a new

8



subparagraph that establishes obligations on counsel for debtors
whose debts are primarily consumer debts. The former provisions
of subdivision (b) are renumbered as subparagraphs (b)(1)(A)
through (D), and a new subparagraph (2) is added to the
subdivision. Subparagraph (b)(1) continues to apply to all
attorneys and unrepresented parties. Subparagraph (b)(2)(A)
makes the standards of § 707(b)(4)(D) applicable to all cases under
all chapters as long as the debtor has primarily consumer debts.
Thus, counsel for consumer debtors in chapter 7, 11 and chapter 13
cases each have the same standard of conduct in submitting the
petition regarding the information contained in the schedules
submitted with the petition.

Subparagraph (b)(2)(B) is also added to the subdivision. It sets
the same standard for a creditor's attorney conduct in the filing of a
proof of claim and in any allegations or factual contentions made
by the attorney in an action for relief from the stay. This standard
applies only in cases in which the debtor has primarily consumer
debts. This obligation is in addition to the obligations set out in
subdivision (b)(1) which apply to all attorneys and unrepresented
parties throughout the case.

9





(Official Form 1) (12/08) 
Form B1, Page 3

Voluntary Petition Name of Debtor(s)
(This page must be completed andfiled in every case.) I

Signatures
Signature(s) of Debtor(s) (Individual/Joint) Signature of a Foreign Representative

I declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this petition is true I declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this petition is trueand correct and correct, that I am the foreign representative of a debtor in a foreign proceeding,[If petitioner is an individual whose debts are primarily consumer debts and has and that I am authorized to file this petition.
chosen to file under chapter 7] 1 am aware that I may proceed under chapter 7, 11, 12
or 13 of title 11, United States Code, understand the relief available under each such (Check only one box)
chapter, and choose to proceed under chapter 7. (1 I request relief in accordance with chapter 15 of title 11, United States Code.[If no attorney represents me and no bankruptcy petition preparer signs the petition] I Certified copies of the documents required by II UoSC. § 1515 are attached.
have obtained and read the notice required by 11 U.S.C. § 342(b).

[] Pursuant to 11 U.S.C § 1511, 1 request relief in accordance with theI request relief in accordance with the chapter of title 11, United States Code, chapter of title 11 specified in this petition. A certified copy of thespecified in this petition. order granting recognition of the foreign main proceeding is attached.

X 
XSignature of Debtor (Signature of Foreign Representative)

X
Signature of Joint Debtor (Printed Name of Foreign Representative)

Telephone Number (if not represented by attorney)

Date
Date

Signature of Attorney Signature of Non-Attorney Bankruptcy Petition Preparer

III a in § 7ts ja I declare under penalty of perjury that" (1) 1 am a bankruptcy petition preparer as
tadefined in II U.S.C § 110; (2) 1 prepared this document for compensation and haveprovided the debtor with a copy of this document and the notices and information

required under II U.S.C. §§ 10(b), 10(h), and 342(b); and, (3) if rules orX ____guidelines have been promulgated pursuant to II U.S C. § 110(h) setting a maximumSignature of Attorney for Debtor(s) fee for services chargeable by bankruptcy petition preparers, I have given the debtor
notice of the maximum amount before preparing any document for filing for a debtorPnnted Name of Attorney for Debtor(s) or accepting any fee from the debtor, as required in that section. Official Form 19B
is attached

Firm Name

Address Pnnted Name and title, if any, of Bankruptcy Petition Preparer

Social Security number (If the bankruptcy petition preparer is not an individual,
Telephone Number state the Social Security number of the officer, pnncipal, responsible person or

partner of the bankruptcy petition preparer.) (Required by 11 U.S.C. § 110.)
Date

Address

X
Signature of Debtor (Corporation/Partnership)

I declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this petition is true Date
and correct, and that I have been authorized to file this petition on behalf of thedebtor Signature of bankruptcy petition preparer or officer, principal, responsible person, or

The debtor requests the relief in accordance with the chapter of title 11, United States partner whose Social Security number is provided above.
Code, specified in this petition. Names and Social Security numbers of all other individuals who prepared or assisted
X in preparing this document unless the bankruptcy petition preparer is not anSignature of Authorized Individual individual

Pnnted Name of Authorized Individual If more than one person prepared this document, attach additional sheets conforming
to the appropriate official form for each person.

Title of Authorized Individual
A bankruptcy petition preparer 's failure to comply with the provisions of title 11 andDate the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure may result in fines or imprisonment orboth. II U.SC. C 110; 18 U.SC. C 156.



MEMORANDUM

TO: Advisory Committee On Bankruptcy Rules

FROM: Subcommittee on Consumer Issues

RE: Means Test Issues for Presentation at the Advisory Committee Meeting

DATE: March 23, 2007

This memorandum sets out the issues that will be presented for discussion at the meeting
of the Advisory Committee on Marco Island. These issues include all of the changes recom-
mended by the consumer subcommittee to the current monthly income/means test forms (Forms
22A, 22B, and 22C), as well as three suggested changes as to which the subcommittee has not
made a recommendation for action.' The subcommittee's recommendations are the product of
more than seven hours of telephone conferences, conducted on February 8, February 22, and
March 13. During these conferences the subcommittee considered each of the discrete sugges-
tions made in comments submitted to Advisory Committee in 2006, as set out in an analysis
prepared by Judge Wedoff (the "Comment Analysis"), included at Tab 5 of the meeting binder.
The subcommittee's recommendations resulting from the submitted comments are reflected in
highlighted copies of Forms 22A, 22B and 22C that accompany this memorandum. In discuss-
ing the subcommittee's recommendations, this memorandum uses the issue numbers from the
Comment Analysis, which can be consulted for a fuller explanation.

Several suggestions discussed in the Comment Analysis were determined by the sub-
committee, unanimously, not to provide a basis for action. These suggestions will not be pre-
sented for discussion at the Advisory Committee meeting unless a committee member requests
discussion. See Judge Zilly's emailed status report of March 22. The unanimous no-action rec-
ommendations fall into two categories:

In the first category is a group of suggestions that the subcommittee either (1) found to
be inconsistent with applicable statutory or administrative provisions or (2) determined to have
been previously considered and disapproved by the full Advisory Committee. The suggestions
in this category are Comment Analysis Issue Nos. 3 (calculation of spousal current monthly in-
come), 4 (treatment of business and rental expenses), 6 (references to the website of the U.S.
Trustee program), 11 (IRS deduction for life insurance), 13 (IRS deduction for education), 17
(omitted categories of "other necessary expenses"), 20 (deduction for card of household or fam-
ily members), 28 (expanded deduction for Chapter 13 administrative expenses), 34 (limitation
of deductions to actual expense), and 39 (unemployment compensation, completion of forms by
all debtors, computation of housing deduction, and express limitation of deduction for Chapter
13 administrative expenses).

In the second category are several suggestions that, although found by the subcommittee
not inconsistent with the applicable provisions, made no substantial improvement in the forms.

I The only changes to the forms not proposed to be discussed are changes in monetary
amounts required to be implemented under § 104 and a change in the format of Form 22A, Line
10 to make it consistent with the format of the corresponding lines of Forms 22B and 22C.



The suggestions in this category are Comment Analysis Issue Nos. 2 (deductions from current
monthly income in Chapter 11), 16 (IRS deduction for telephone and internet service), 26 (de-
ductions for other payments on secured claims), 35 (additional detail for "other income"), 37
(length of applicable commitment period), and 38 (removal of subtotal lines).

The comments as to which the subcommittee does suggest action are set out below in the
order in which they will be discussed at the Advisory Committee meeting: first, suggested
changes in Form 22C (and, where applicable, corresponding changes in Forms 22A and 22B)
and second, a change suggested only for Form 22A.

The subcommittee's recommendations are followed by three additional suggestions as to
which the subcommittee has not made a recommendation: (1) a suggestion for additional in-
come information proposed by the Administrative Office of the United States Courts, (2) a sug-
gestion for additional income information proposed by the Executive Office for United States
Trustees (neither of which suggestions have been considered by the consumer subcommittee),
and finally, (3) a suggestion for a new deduction from disposable income in Chapter 13, as to
which a majority of the subcommittee has recommended no action, but without consensus.

For each item, references are to the issue and page numbers of the Comment Analysis
set out at Tab 5 of the meeting binder.

A. Recommended changes in Form 22C
(with corresponding changes in Forms 22A and 22B)

1. Form 22C, Lines 7 and 9 (Form 22A, Lines 8 and 10; Form 22B, Lines 7 and 9)
Issue No.5, pp. 6-8: household expenses paid by persons other than the debtor, com-

ments 06-BK-009 and 06-BK-019.

The issue addressed is the proper treatment of alimony and support payments. The current ver-
sion of the forms treats alimony as current monthly income only when it is "regularly paid."
However, § 101(1 OA)(A) of the Code counts as "currently monthly income" all "income" re-
ceived by the debtor, whether or not it is regularly paid. Section 101(1 OA)(B) defines an addi-
tional element of current monthly income: payments of household expenses of the debtor or the
debtor's dependents made on a regular basis. Because alimony and marital support are "in-
come" to the recipient regardless of the regularity of the payments, the subcommittee recom-
mends (1) that the instruction dealing with amounts paid on a regular basis be amended to
delete the words "or spousal" and to instruct debtors not to include spousal support and
(2) that the instruction for income from other sources be amended specifically to include
spousal support payments.

2. Headings for Form 22C, Part IV (Form 22A, Part V)

Issue No. 18, p. 18: comment 06-BK-009: accuracy of headings.

The problem addressed here is that the existing headings are inaccurate in limiting to
"§ 707(b)(2)" the deductions from current monthly income included in the sections that they
introduce. One of the included deductions-the one for charitable contributions-is not set out
in § 707(b)(2) but rather is found in §1325(b)(3) (for Form 22C) and § 707(b)(1) (for Form

2



22A). To avoid this inaccuracy, the subcommittee recommends that the headings be
changed as follows: the heading for Part V of Form 22A and Part IV of Form 22C should be
"CALCULATION OF DEDUCTIONS FROM INCOME," the heading for Subpart B should be
"Additional Living Expense Deductions," and the heading for Subpart D should be "Total De-
ductions from Income."

3. Form 22, Lines 24 and 44 (Form 22A, Lines 19 and 39)
Issue No. 7, p. 9: references to the content of the National Standards for living expenses.

In order to conform more closely to the language used in the Internal Revenue Manual, the sub-
committee recommends changing the "clothing" reference in the instruction for applying
the National Standards to "apparel and services," changing the "household supplies" ref-
erence to "housekeeping supplies," and the "food and apparel" reference to "food and
clothing (apparel and services)."

4. Form 22C, Lines 24, 25A, and 25B (Form 22A, Lines 19, 20A, and 20B)

Issue No.8, pp. 9-10: use of the debtor's "household" instead of "family" size in instruc-
tions for determining applicable deductions.

In order to determine the proper National and Local Standard deductions for living expenses, a
debtor must specify the number of persons for whom the deductions are applicable. The current
forms refer to this number as the debtor's "family size," apparently because there are references
to "family" in the Internal Revenue Manual and because § 707(b)(6) and (7) compare the
debtor's income to the "median family income" reported by the Census Bureau. However, in
making this comparison, § 707(b)(6) and (7) themselves use the number of persons in the
debtor's "household," and the Bureau of Labor Statistics, which provides the basis for the IRS's
National and Local Standard living expense deductions, measures expenses by household size.
Accordingly, the subcommittee recommends that "family size" be changed to "household
size" in the lines for National and Local Standard deductions.

5. Form 22C, Line 24 (Form 22A, Line 19)
Issue No.8, pp. 9-11: determination of "gross monthly income" in the application of the

IRS national standards, comments 06-BK-009 and 06-BK-019.
The comments suggested that the means test form should instruct debtor how to determine the
"gross monthly income" used to determine the proper National Standard deduction or to require
debtors to disclose the gross monthly income that they actually used. Because there is no clear
indication in the Code as to how gross monthly income should be determined, the subcommittee
recommends against a definition and also recommends against a required disclosure of the
amount of current monthly income, because of concerns that this would confuse debtors. How-
ever, the subcommittee concluded that the source used by the debtor to determine gross
monthly income should be disclosed, through a check list setting out the most likely
sources.

3



6. Form 22C, Line 31 (Form 22A, Line 26)

Issue No. 10, pp. 12-13: IRS "other necessary expense" for employment expenses,
comments 06-BK-009 and 06-BK-019.

The comments suggest changing the language of the form to correspond more closely to the
language contained in the Internal Revenue Manual. The subcommittee agreed that the rec-
ommended changes should be made, with the phrase "payroll deductions" changed to
"deductions for employment", and "mandatory" changed to "involuntary."

7. Form 22C, Lines 32, 34-37, 40-44 (Form 222A, Line 27, 29-32, 35-39)

Issue No. 15, p. 16: consistent use of the word "total average" on the means test forms,
comment 06-BK-009:

The comment points out that the forms are inconsistent in the use of the words "total average" to
describe debtors' expenses. Wherever there may be multiple expenditures within a given ex-
pense category, the subcommittee determined that the instruction should direct debtors to total
these expenditures. Wherever the amount of the expenditure may vary from month to month,
the subcommittee determined that the instruction should direct debtors to average the monthly
expenditures. Accordingly, the subcommittee recommends that the words "total" or "aver-
age" be added to several of the instructions for expense deductions.

8. Form 22C, Line 33 (Form 22A, Line 28)

Issue No. 12, pp. 13-14: IRS "other necessary expense" for court ordered payments,
comments 06-BK-009 and 06-BK-019.

The comments note that the category of court-ordered payments, as defined in the Internal
Revenue Manual, encompasses payments ordered by an administrative agency as well as a
court. The subcommittee agreed, and recommends that the instructions be expanded to
include agency-ordered payments.

9. Form 22C, Line 36 (Form 22A, Line 31)

Issue No. 14, pp. 15-16 (and Appendix, p. 8): IRS "other necessary expense" for health
care, comments 06-BK-009 and 06-BK-0 19.

Comment 06-BK-0 19 notes that the Internal Revenue Manual limits health care expenses to
those "required for the health and welfare of the family," but that the current instruction for Line
36 fails to include this limitation. The subcommittee recommends that the instructions be
amended to include the limitation to "required" expenses.

10. Form 22C, Line 39 (Form 22A. Line 34)

Issue No. 19, pp. 18-19: statutory deduction for health insurance, disability insurance,
and health savings account expenses, comments 06-BK-009 and 06-BK-01 9.

4



The comments note that the forms' instructions currently limit the debtor's deduction for
health insurance, disability insurance, and health savings account expenses to amounts actually
expended, but that § 707(b)(2)(A)(ii)(I), which provides for the deduction, does not contain this
limitation. The subcommittee recommends that the instructions be amended to allow the
debtor, consistent with § 707(b)(2)(A)(ii)(I), to deduct "reasonably necessary" expendi-
tures, without limitation to amounts actually expended. However, the subcommittee also
recommends that the debtor be required to state actual expenditures when these differ
from the amounts claimed as reasonably necessary. The subcommittee directed that the form
of the instructions avoid confusion about the number to be entered in the computational column.
The subcommittee has not reviewed the implementation of its directive contained in the forms
accompanying this memorandum.

11. Form 22C, Line 41 (Form 22A, Line 36)

Issue No. 36, p. 29: expense deduction for protection against family violence, comment
06-BK-019.

The present instruction for the expense deduction for protection against family violence, pro-
vided for in §707(b)(2)(A)(ii)(I)), does not include the statutory limitation to "reasonably neces-
sary expenses." The subcommittee recommends that the instruction be amended to refer to.
"reasonably necessary expenses" that the debtor incurs for protection against family vio-
lence.

12. Form 22C, Line 42 (Form 22A, Line 37)
Issue No. 21, p. 20: home energy costs, comments 06-BK-009 and 06-BK-019.

Consistent with the comments and the language of § 707(b)(2)(A)(ii)(V), the subcommittee rec-
ommends that the instructions be changed to require debtors to provide documentation
only of the amount of their actual expenses and to permit debtors to "demonstrate" rather
than "document" the reasonable and necessary character of those expenses.

13. Form 22C, Line 43 (Form 22A, Line 38)

Issue No. 22, p. 21: educational expenses for dependent children, comments 06-BK-009
and 06-BK-0 19.

The comments make two suggestions for this item, both of which the subcommittee recom-
mends as being more consistent with the language of § 707(b)(2)(A)(ii)(IV). First, the sub-
committee recommends that the instruction be changed to refer to expenses "for atten-
dance at... school" rather than the costs of "providing education" Second, the
subcommittee recommends that the instructions require the debtor only to "demonstrate"
that additional expenses are reasonable and necessary rather than provide "documenta-
tion" of reasonableness and necessity.



14. Form 22C, Line 44 (Form 22A, Line 39)

Issue No. 23, p. 22: additional food and clothing expense, comments 06-BK-009 and 06-
BK-0 19.

Consistent with the language of § 707(b)(2)(A)(ii)(I), the subcommittee recommends that the
instruction require the debtor only to "demonstrate" that additional expenses are reason-
able and necessary rather than provide "documentation" of reasonableness and necessity.

15. Form 22C, Line 45 (no change in Form 22A)

Issue No. 24, pp. 22-23: charitable contributions, comments 06-BK-009 and 06-BK-019.

The Religious Liberty and Charitable Donation Clarification Act of 2006 amended § 1325(b) to
allow above-median income debtors the same charitable donation deduction that had previously
been accorded only to below-median income debtors (capped at 15% of gross income). To ac-
commodate this change in the law, the subcommittee recommends that the instruction for
deducting charitable contributions in Chapter 13 read as follows:

Enter the amount reasonably necessary for you to expend on charitable contribu-
tions in the form of cash or financial instruments to a charitable organization as
defined in 26 U.S.C. § 170(c)(1)-(2). Do not include any amount in excess of
15% of your gross monthly income.

16. Form 22C, Line 47 (Form 22A, Line 42)

Issue Nos. 9, 25, pp. 11-12, 23-24: future payments on secured claims, comments 06-
BK-009 and 06-BK-01 9.

The comments suggest two distinct issues that are addressed by the subcommittee's recommen-
dation. First, in order to be consistent with the language of § 707(b)(2)(A)(iii)(1), the sub-
committee recommends that instruction refer to amounts "scheduled as" contractually
due. Second, to avoid duplication of deductions already allowed under the Local Standard
for housing, the subcommittee recommends that escrow payments for taxes and insurance
be excluded from the deduction for payments on secured claims, by limiting the deduction
to payments of principal and interest. The second recommendation was not unanimous.

17. Form 22C, Line 49 (Form 22A, Line 45)

Issue No. 1, expense of Chapter 13 attorney fees, pp. 1-3: comments 06-BK-009 and 06-
BE-019.

The subcommittee rejected comments suggesting the anticipated attorney fees for Chapter 13
representation could be deducted as priority claims. To avoid confusion on this issue, the sub-
committee recommends an addition to the instructions for priority claim deductions, stat-
ing expressly that these should include only past due obligations.

6



18. Form 22C, Line 54 (no corresponding change in Form 22A)
Issue No. 30, p. 26: exclusion of support income from disposable income, comment 06-

BK-009.

Pursuant to § 1325(b)(3), certain child support payments, foster care payments, and disability
payments for a dependent child are not to be included in calculating the disposable income re-
quired to be paid to unsecured creditors. Such payments would properly be included in Line 7 of
Form 22C, and the instruction for excluding these items in Line 54 now makes reference to
payments "included in Line 7." However, it is possible that a debtor might include such pay-
ments in another line of Part I of the form. To deal with that possibility, the subcommittee
recommends that the instruction be amended to state that the debtor should exclude sup-
port income "reported in Part I" rather than "included in Line 7."

19. Form 22C, Line 55 (no corresponding change in Form 22A)

Issue No. 31, pp. 26-27: qualified retirement deductions, comments 06-BK-009 and 06-
BK-019.

Section 541 (b)(7) provides a deduction from disposable income in Chapter 13 for certain re-
tirement plan deductions. To track the statutory language more closely, the subcommittee rec-
ommends that the instruction for this deduction be amended to read as follows: "Enter the
monthly total of (a) all amounts withheld by your employer as wages or received by your
employer as contributions for qualified retirement plans, as specified in § 541(b)(7) and (b)
all required repayments of loans from retirement plans, as specified in § 362(b)(19)."

20. Form 22C, New Line 57 (no corresponding change in Form 22A)
Issue No. 29, pp. 25-26: deduction for expenses arising from special circumstances,

comments 06-BK-009, 06-BK-018, and 06-BK-0 19.

In providing for use of the means test in calculating disposable income for above-median in-
come debtors, § 1325(b)(3) provides for the use not only of § 707(b)(2)(A), the means test de-
ductions, but also § 707(b)(2)(B), the provision allowing a debtor to rebut a presumption of
abuse by showing, among other things, expenses arising from special circumstances. Form 22C
currently has no provision allowing a debtor to deduct such expenses from disposable income.
To address this issue, the subcommittee recommends that Form 22C be amended to add a
new Line 57 allowing the debtor to include any expenses arising from special circum-
stances as described in § 707(b)(2)(B). The later line numbers would be adjusted accordingly.
This amendment removes the need for the "Additional Expense Claims" line in Part VII of the
current form, which does not allow a deduction from income, and so the subcommittee also
recommends that current Part VII be eliminated.



B. Recommended change in Form 22A only

21. Form 22A, Line 1

Issue No. 33, pp. 27-28: non-consumer debtors, comment 06-BK-014.

The subcommittee concluded that two changes should be made to address the issue of debtors
who claim that their debts are not primarily consumer debts, and so are not subject to any of the
"abuse" provisions of § 707(b). First, the subcommittee recommends that Rule 1007(b)(4)
be amended by deleting the words "with primarily consumer debts." This change would
require all individual debtors to complete at least the first part of a means test form. Second,
the subcommittee recommends that Part I of Form 22A be amended with an expanded ti-
tle-"Exclusions for Disabled Veterans and Non-Consumer Debtors," that the existing ex-
clusion for veterans be renumbered as Line 1A, and that a new Line 1B be added with a
check box allowing debtors to declare that their debts are not primarily consumer debts.
As with covered veterans, this declaration would result in the debtor not being required to com-
plete the remainder of the form.

The subcommittee recommended these changes in response to concerns that a failure to
file Form 22A could lead to automatic dismissal of a case filed by debtors who incorrectly as-
serted that they did not have primarily consumer debts. Section 707(b)(2)(C) provides that
debtors subject to § 707(b) (individuals with primarily consumer debts) must file a statement of
current monthly income and calculations that determine whether a presumption of abuse has
arisen, "[a]s part of the schedule of current income and expenditures required under section
521 ." The statement of current income and expenditures is required by § 521(a)(1)(B)(2), and
failure to file a document required under any provision of § 521 (a)(1) results in automatic dis-
missal 45 days after the bankruptcy filing, pursuant to § 521 (i)(1), unless on motion filed within
that period the court extends the deadline for no more than an additional 45 days. Requiring
Form 22A in all individual Chapter 7 cases is intended to eliminate this potential for dismissal,
with the understanding that the debtor will have filed the required statement, even though it
would have to be amended substantially in the event that the debtor was later determined to
have primarily consumer debts.

C. Items without subcommittee recommendation

22. Form 22A, Line 4; Form 22B, Line 3; Form 22C, Line 3.

Income from self-employment; not addressed in the Comment Analysis or formal com-
ments.

The Administrative Office of the United States Courts has suggested an addition to the instruc-
tions for reporting income from the operation of a business, profession, or farm, to deal with
situations in which debtors operate more than one such entity. The addition states: "If more
than one business, profession or farm, enter aggregate numbers and provide details on an at-
tachment." The Forms Subcommittee has approved this addition. However, to maintain consis-
tency with other instructions, the addition might be rephrased to state .... If you operate more
than one business, profession or farm, enter aggregate numbers and provide details on an at-
tachment." The attached forms reflect the original language proposed by the AO.

8



23. Form 22A, Line 17; Form 22C, Lines 13 and 19.
Marital adjustment; not addressed in the Comment Analysis or formal comments.

The Executive Office for United States Trustees has suggested additions to the instructions deal-
ing with the situation of married debtors filing separately from their spouses. In these situations,
the Code (and hence the forms) require that for some purposes, all of the income of the non-
filing spouse be counted, but that for other purposes, only part of the income of the non-filing
spouse-the income regularly used to pay household expenses of the debtor or the debtor's de-
pendents ("debtor expenses")-be counted. The forms deal with this situation by requiring a
disclosure of all of the non-filing spouse's income (allowing use of that information where re-
quired), but then providing for an adjustment-deducting the income not used to pay debtor ex-
penses (resulting in the lower income otherwise required). The UST amendment would direct
the debtor to specify the uses to which the non-filing spouse put any income not used to pay
debtor expenses. To accomplish this, the UST proposes the following content for Form 22A,
Line 17:

Marital adjustment. If you checked the box at Line 2.c, enter on Line 17 the total of any income listed
in Line 11, Column B that was NOT paid on a regular basis for the household expenses of the debtor or the
debtor's dependents. Specify in the lines below each use to which your spouse put the excluded Column B

w. income (such as payment of the spouse's tax liability or the spouse's support of persons other than the
debtor or the debtor's dependents) and the amount of income devoted to each use. If necessary, list addi-
tional uses on a separate page. If you did not check box at Line 2.c, enter zero.

i . a. $
b. $
c. $
Total and enter on Line 17.

Similar changes would be made in Form 22C, Lines 13 and 19, but since Line 13 pre-
sents an optional adjustment (used only if the debtor contends that the full income of a non-
filing spouse should not be used for calculating the applicable commitment period), the instruc-
tion would be somewhat more complex:

If you are married, but are not filing jointly with your spouse, AND if you con-
tend that calculation of the commitment period under § 1325(b)(4) does not re-
quire inclusion of the income of your spouse, enter the amount of the income
listed in Line 10, Column B that was NOT paid on a regular basis for the house-
hold expenses of you or your dependents and specify, in the lines below, each use
to which your spouse put the excluded Column B income (such as payment of the
spouse's tax liability or the spouse's support of persons other than the debtor or
the debtor's dependents) and the amount of income devoted to each use. If neces-
sary, list additional uses on a separate page. If the conditions for entering a mari-
tal adjustment do not apply, enter zero.

24. Form 22C, New Line (no corresponding change in Form 22A)

Issue No. 32, p. 27: disposable income "received by" the debtor, comment 06-BK-009:

9



The subcommittee had a lengthy discussion of the best way to deal with the provision of §
1325(b)(2) stating that "the term 'disposable income' means current monthly income received
by the debtor." Judge Lundin has suggested that this language is a limitation on a debtor's dis-
posable income, requiring a deduction of current monthly income that the debtor does not per-
sonally "receive." Two examples were offered to test the analysis. The first was the payment of
tuition directly by a grandparent to a school for the education of the debtor's children. The sec-
ond example was of the payment of the mortgage on the debtor's home by the debtor's non-
filing spouse directly to the mortgage holder. As regards the first payment, a number of sub-
committee members believed that this payment perhaps should be excluded, but there was also
general agreement that the payment to the mortgage company should not be excluded from dis-
posable income. The subcommittee was split in the end, with a majority concluding that all
payments should be included in the debtor's disposable income and thus no change should be
made to the form.

If the proposed deduction were adopted, the new deduction line would be included in
Part V of the form. No specific instruction has been suggested to implement the new deduction.
It would probably not be possible to define in an instruction what is meant by "receipt" of cur-
rent monthly income. Thus, a provision for deduction of current monthly income not received
by the debtor would likely require that the debtor specify the items of non-received income and
the basis for asserting non-receipt, perhaps as follows:

Income not received. If you contend that any of the income you reported in Part I should not be in-
cluded in determining your disposable income because it was not "received" by you within the meaning of
§ 1325(b)(2), specify in the lines below each item of non-received income and the basis for asserting that
you did not receive it. If necessary, list additional income items on a separate page..

158- Income item Basis for asserting non-receipt

b.
c. $
Total and enter on Line 58.

10



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08)
In re According to the calculations required by this statement:

Debtor(s) El The presumption arises.

Case Number: El The presumption does not arise.
(If known) (Check the box as directed in Parts I, III, and VI of this statement.)

CHAPTER 7 STATEMENT OF CURRENT MONTHLY INCOME
AND MEANS-TEST CALCULATION

In addition to Schedules I and J, this statement must be completed by every individual Chapter 7 debtor, whether or not filing
jointly, whose debts are primarily consumer debts. Joint debtors may complete one statement only.

Part I. EXCLUSION FOR DISBE VTRAN -N N,",-, ,,UER DEBTORS

If you are a disabled veteran described in the Veteran's Declaration in this Part I, (1) check the box at the beginning of the
Veteran's Declaration, (2) check the box for "The presumption does not arise" at the top of this statement, and (3) complete
the verification in Part VIII. Do not complete any of the remaining parts of this statement.

IA
[E Veteran's Declaration. By checking this box, I declare under penalty of perjury that I am a disabled veteran (as de-
fined in 38 U.S.C. § 3741(1)) whose indebtedness occurred primarily during a period in which I was on active duty (as de-
fined in !0 d)l)or while I was, perorminga homelanddefense activity (as defined in 32 U.S.C. 590101)).

If YO~ det r itpriajycnsmrdbs hc h .) eo n opeeteVeiaion inPrVI.Do lt o
lB et an ftermiig pat ofti taeet

Marital/filing status. Check the box that applies and complete the balance of this part of this statement as directed.
a. [E Unmarried. Complete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 3-11.
b. [E Married, not filing jointly, with declaration of separate households. By checking this box, debtor declares under pen-

alty of perjury: "My spouse and I are legally separated under applicable non-bankruptcy law or my spouse and I are liv-
2 ing apart other than for the purpose of evading the requirements of § 707(b)(2)(A) of the Bankruptcy Code." Com-

plete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 3-11.
c. [F Married, not filing jointly, without the declaration of separate households set out in Line 2.b above. Complete both

Column A ("Debtor's Income") and Column B (Spouse's Income) for Lines 3-11.
d. [E Married, filing jointly. Complete both Column A ("Debtor's Income") and Column B ("Spouse's Income") for

Lines 3-11.
All figures must reflect average monthly income received from all sources, derived during the Column A Column B
six calendar months prior to filing the bankruptcy case, ending on the last day of the month Debtor's Spouse's
before the filing. If the amount of monthly income varied during the six months, you must Income Income
divide the six-month total by six, and enter the result on the appropriate line.

3 Gross wages, salary, tips, bonuses, overtime, commissions.

Income from the operation of a business, profession or farm. Subtract Line b from Line
a and enter the difference in the appropriate column(s) of Line 4. Ifo~re than one buslnoss.
profeso• e numjbers a 6vtde deta. ah n, Do not
enter a number less than zero. Do not include any part of the business expenses en-
tered on Line b as a deduction in Part V.

a. Gross receipts $

b. Ordinary and necessary business expenses $

c. Business income Subtract Line b from Line a

Rent and other real property income. Subtract Line b from Line a and enter the difference
in the appropriate column(s) of Line 5. Do not enter a number less than zero. Do not include
any part of the operating expenses entered on Line b as a deduction in Part V.

a. Gross receipts $

b. Ordinary and necessary operating expenses $

c. Rent and other real property income Subtract Line b from Line a

6 Interest, dividends and royalties. $

7 Pension and retirement income.



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08) 2
Any amounts paid by another person or entity, on a regular basis, for the household
expenses of the debtor or the debtor's dependents, including child support. D2

Column B is completed. $
Unemployment compensation. Enter the amount in the appropriate column(s) of Line 9.
However, if you contend that unemployment compensation received by you or your spouse was
a benefit under the Social Security Act, do not list the amount of such compensation in Column

9 A or B, but instead state the amount in the space below:

Unemployment compensation claimed to
be a benefit under the Social Security Act Debtor $ Spouse $ $$

Income from all other sources. Specify source and amount. If necessary, list additional
sources on a separate page. Total and enter on Line 10. I pcs
s ,•ep tpn .a• Do not include any benefits received under the Social Security Act
or payments received as a victim of a war crime, crime against humanity, or as a victim of

10 international or domestic terrorism.

a. $

b. $ $

Subtotal of Current Monthly Income for § 707(b)(7). Add Lines 3 thru 10 in
11 Column A, and, if Column B is completed, add Lines 3 through 10 in Column B. Enter the

_ _ total(s).

Total Current Monthly Income for § 707(b)(7). If Column B has been completed,

12, add Line 11, Column A to Line 11, Column B, and enter the total. If Column B has not been
completed, enter the amount from Line 11, Column A. $

13 Annualized Current Monthly Income for § 707(b)(7). Multiply the amount from Line 12 by
the number 12 and enter the result. $

Applicable median family income. Enter the median family income for the applicable state and
household size. (This information is available by family size at www.usdoj.qov/ust/ or from the clerk ofthe bankruptcy court.)

a. Enter debtor's state of residence: b. Enter debtor's household size: $

Application of Section 707(b)(7). Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.

ElI The amount on Line 13 is less than or equal to the amount on Line 14. Check the box for "The pre-
.-15 sumption does not arise" at the top of page 1 of this statement, and complete Part VIII; do not complete Parts IV, V, VI

or VII.

El The amount on Line 13 is more than the amount on Line 14. Complete the remaining parts of this state-
ment.

Complete Parts IV, V, VI, and VII of this statement only if required. (See Line 15.)

PrIV. CLULATION OFCURENTMOTL I~NCOEFO,§77()()
16 Enter the amount from Line 12. $

41- Marital adjustment. If you checked the box at Line 2.c, enter the amount of the income listed in Line
17 11, Column B that was NOT paid on a regular basis for the household expenses of the debtor or the

debtor's dependents. If you did not check box at Line 2.c, enter zero. $

18 -Current monthly income for § 707(b)(2). Subtract Line 17 from Line 16 and enter the result. $



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08) 3

'SbprtA:Deuction une tnarso h Itra evene Service ý(tkS)
National Standards: food, a rl d vi ,o keeping-suppies, personal care,
and miscellaneous. rnthp b w yor•QM: gmI and eU odtue eth ode-
termYtpe it. T•,en enter in Line 19 the "Total" amount from IRS National Standards for Allowable Living Ex-
penses for the applicable ho~sepld size and income level. (This information is available at

19 www.usdoi.qov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.)

Gross mo nthlyJ 'm -i c~termine usfing El Li 'eni [:] Lin" 14 E] Schedule I
C Othor~speofry) - --:>~ -- - $

Local Standards: housing and utilities; non-mortgage expenses. Enter the amount of the
20A IRS Housing and Utilities Standards; non-mortgage expenses for the applicable county and h0ouseh d size.

(This information is available at www.usdoi.qov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court). $

Local Standards: housing and utilities; mortgage/rent expense. Enter, in Line a below, the
amount of the IRS Housing and Utilities Standards; mortgage/rent expense for your county and hW~elfoild
size (this information is available at www.usdoi.qov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court); enter
on Line b the total of the Average Monthly Payments for any debts secured by your home, as stated in Line
42; subtract Line b from Line a and enter the result in Line 20B. Do not enter an amount less than
zero.

a. IRS Housing and Utilities Standards; mortgage/rental expense $

b. Average Monthly Payment for any debts secured by your
home, if any, as stated in Line 42 $

C. Net mortgage/rental expense Subtract Line b from Line a. $

Local Standards: housing and utilities; adjustment. if you contend that the process set out in
Lines 20A and 20B does not accurately compute the allowance to which you are entitled under the IRS
Housing and Utilities Standards, enter any additional amount to which you contend you are entitled, and

21 state the basis for your contention in the space below:

$

Local Standards: transportation; vehicle operation/public transportation expense. You
are entitled to an expense allowance in this category regardless of whether you pay the expenses of operat-
ing a vehicle and regardless of whether you use public transportation.

Check the number of vehicles for which you pay the operating expenses or for which the operating ex-
22 penses are included as a contribution to your household expenses in Line 8.

I-0]0lo -I1 []l 2 or more.
Enter the amount from IRS Transportation Standards, Operating Costs & Public Transportation Costs for the
applicable number of vehicles in the applicable Metropolitan Statistical Area or Census Region. (This infor-
mation is available at www.usdoi.gov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.) $

Local Standards: transportation ownership/lease expense; Vehicle 1. Check the number
of vehicles for which you claim an ownership/lease expense. (You may not claim an ownership/lease ex-
pense for more than two vehicles.)
El I -1 2 or more.
Enter, in Line a below, the amount of the IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, First Car (avail-
able at www.usdoi.gov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court); enter in Line b the total of the Aver-

23 age Monthly Payments for any debts secured by Vehicle 1, as stated in Line 42; subtract Line b from Line a
and enter the result in Line 23. Do not enter an amount less than zero.

a. IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, First Car $

b. Average Monthly Payment for any debts secured by Vehicle 1,
as stated in Line 42 $

C. Net ownership/lease expense for Vehicle 1 Subtract Line b from Line a. $



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08) 4

Local Standards: transportation ownership/lease expense; Vehicle 2. Complete this Line
only if you checked the "2 or more" Box in Line 23.

Enter, in Line a below, the amount of the IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, Second Car
(available at www.usdol.-ov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court); enter in Line b the total of the
Average Monthly Payments for any debts secured by Vehicle 2, as stated in Line 42; subtract Line b from
Line a and enter the result in Line 24. Do not enter an amount less than zero.

24
a. IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, Second Car $

b. Average Monthly Payment for any debts secured by Vehicle 2,
as stated in Line 42 $

c. Net ownership/lease expense for Vehicle 2 Subtract Line b from Line a. $

Other Necessary Expenses: taxes. Enter the total average monthly expense that you actually incur
25 for all federal, state and local taxes, other than real estate and sales taxes, such as income taxes, self em-

ployment taxes, social security taxes, and Medicare taxes. Do not include real estate or sales taxes.

Other Necessary Expenses: i t d!qf p •vI• Enter the total aver-
26 age monthly payroll deductions that are required for your employment, such as mandatory retirement con-

tributions, union dues, and uniform costs. Do not include discretionary amounts, such as non-
mandatory 401(k) contributions. $

Other Necessary Expenses: life insurance. Enter ta average monthly premiums that you actu-
27 ally pay for term life insurance for yourself. Do not include premiums for insurance on your depend-

ents, for whole life or for any other form of insurance. $

Other Necessary Expenses: court-ordered payments. Enter the total monthly amount that you
28 are required to pay pursuant to [he such asý,' such as spousal or child sup-

port payments. Do not include payments on past due obligations included in Line 44. $

Other Necessary Expenses: education for employment or for a physically or mentally

29 challenged child. Enter the total monthly amount that you actually expend for education that is a con-
dition of employment and for education that is required for a physically or mentally challenged dependent
child for whom no public education providing similar services is available. $

Other Necessary Expenses: childcare. Enter the tpta( average monthly amount that you actually
30 expend on childcare-such as baby-sitting, day care, nursery and preschool. Do not include other edu-

cational payments. $

Other Necessary Expenses: health care. Enter the total average monthly amount that you actu-
31 ally expend on health care tof yois Wecessary for the Wlfarr'yqr rsdq f,• ey o • ,•,o that is not

reimbursed by insurance or paid by a health savings account. Do not include payments for health in-
surance or health savings accounts listed in Line 34. $

Other Necessary Expenses: telecommunication services. Enter the t average monthly
amount that you actually pay for telecommunication services other than your basic home telephone ser-

32 vice-such as cell phones, pagers, call waiting, caller id, special long distance, or internet service-to the
extent necessary for your health and welfare or that of your dependents. Do not include any amount
previously deducted. $

33 Total Expenses Allowed under IRS Standards. Enter the total of Lines 19 through 32. $

Health Insurance, Disability Insurance, and Health Savings Account Expenses. Li
monthly expenses l•in the catgoie st utin :linesl a-cbelowllil tha arerezont) ncesar fr yurel,

you-, $ A•pouse, oord sL ,.

39 Health Insurance $

b. Disability Insurance $

c. Health Savings Account $

Total and enter on Line 39 $

IfUyooxdnot actukily expend this -total u
in the space below:

Continued contributions to the care of household or family members. Enter the actual
35 monthly expenses that you will continue to pay for the reasonable and necessary care and support of an

elderly, chronically ill, or disabled member of your household or member of your immediate family who is
unable to pay for such expenses. $



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08)

Protection against family violence. Enter the averag pepiI sor g,,qgtaly monthly expenses

36 that you actually incurred to maintain the safety of your family under the Family Violence Prevention and
Services Act or other applicable federal law. The nature of these expenses is required to be kept confidential
by the court. $

Home energy costs. Enter the t average monthly amount, in excess of the allowance specified by
IRS Local Standards for Housing and Utilities, that you actually expend for home energy costs. V m

as u exI~~ ,ari~ddeM~nostrate that the
aci4dftieal~aioujt claime~d israoal adncsay $

Education expenses for dependent children less than 18. t tihtota average monthly
expenses that yu actually incurnot to ece $117.1 prlhidl4 fo tenac at a private or public,

38 elementary school byw yu ependenU chlre less thn1 er of ae. You must provide your case
trustee with docue ntatio ofyourxpa the aemount clai medis rea-
sonablqli and flpcS~ar. andiii not 41r ft4 r&

Additional food and clothing expense. Enter the totol average monthly amount by which your food
and clothing expenses exceed the combined allowances for food and 6bOthlingj0 pare[ servics ) in the

39 IRS National Standards, not to exceed five percent of those combined allowances. (This information is
available at www.usdoqov/ust/or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.) Y ,fit
the ad04itional "iJtai lied $

40 Continued charitable contributions. Enter the amount that you will continue to contribute in the
form of cash or financial instruments to a charitable organization as defined in 26 U.S.C. § 170(c)(1)-(2). $

41 Total Additional Expense Deductions under § 707(b). Enter the total of Lines 34 through 40 $

Future payments on secured claims. For each of your debts that is secured by an interest in prop-
erty that you own, list the name of the creditor, identify the property securing the debt, and state the Av-
erage Monthly Payment. The Average Monthly Payment is the total of all amounts sc ' contractu-
ally due to each Secured Creditor in the 60 months following the filing of the bankruptcy case, divided by
60. oga t payments of princiol' a. interest If necessary, list additional
entries on a separate page.

42 Name of Creditor Property Securing the Debt 60-month Average Payment

a. $

b. $

c. $

Total: Add Lines a, b and c. $

Other payments on secured claims. If any of debts listed in Line 42 are secured by your primary
residence, a motor vehicle, or other property necessary for your support or the support of your depend-
ents, you may include in your deduction 1/60th of any amount (the "cure amount") that you must pay the
creditor in addition to the payments listed in Line 42, in order to maintain possession of the property. The
cure amount would include any sums in default that must be paid in order to avoid repossession or fore-
closure. List and total any such amounts in the following chart. If necessary, list additional entries on a
separate page.

43 Name of Creditor Property Securing the Debt 1/60th of the Cure Amount

a. $

b. $

c. $

Total: Add Lines a, b and c $

Payments on priority claims. Enter the total amount, divided by 60, of all priority claims, such as
44 priority tax, child support and alimony claims, i(tcludig qnlyt. st dd.--obligatio.n - iio Ot in'ludecu-

rent obligations set out jijj Line 13, $



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08) 6
Chapter 13 administrative expenses. If you are eligible to file a case under Chapter 13, complete
the following chart, multiply the amount in line a by the amount in line b, and enter the resulting adminis-
trative expense.

a. Projected average monthly Chapter 13 plan payment. $
45 b. Current multiplier for your district as determined under schedules is-

sued by the Executive Office for United States Trustees. (This informa-
tion is available at www.usdoi.qov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bank-
ruptcy court.) x

C. Average monthly administrative expense of Chapter 13 case Total: Multiply Lines

_I_ I a and b $
- 46 1 Total Deductions for Debt Payment. Enter the total of Lines 42 through 45. $

•~

Subart D: Totlpd uctions frm ncm

47 Total of all deductions allowed under § 707(b)(2). Enter the total of Lines 33, 41, and 46. $

,-48 Enter the amount from Line 18 (Current monthly income for § 707(b)(2)) $

49 Enter the amount from Line 47 (Total of all deductions allowed under § 707(b)(2)) $

So,', Monthly disposable income under § 707(b)(2). Subtract Line 49 from Line 48 and enter the
result $

51 60-month disposable income under § 707(b)(2). Multiply the amount in Line 50 by the num-
ber 60 and enter the result. $
Initial presumption determination. Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.

n The amount on Line 51 is less than $6,575 Check the box for "The presumption does not arise" at the top of
page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII. Do not complete the remainder of Part VI.

52 D] The amount set forth on Line 51 is more than $1Oi,9S. Check the box for "The presumption arises" at the
top of page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII. You may also complete Part VII. Do not
complete the remainder of Part VI.

El The amount on Line 51 is at least $6W575, but not more than $10,R,4Q. Complete the remainder of Part
VI (Lines 53 through 55).

53 Enter the amount of your total non-priority unsecured debt $

54 Threshold debt payment amount. Multiply the amount in Line 53 by the number 0.25 and enter
the result. $

Secondary presumption determination. Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.

EL The amount on Line 51 is less than the amount on Line 54. Check the box for"The presumption does not
55 arise" at the top of page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII.

Ln The amount on Line 51 is equal to or greater than the amount on Line 54. Check the box for "The pre-
sumption arises" at the top of page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII. You may also com-
plete Part VII.

Part ~~ ~ ~ ~4 VI:ADTOA EPNECAM

Other Expenses. List and describe any monthly expenses, not otherwise stated in this form, that are required for the
health and welfare of you and your family and that you contend should be an additional deduction from your current
monthly income under § 707(b)(2)(A)(ii)(I). If necessary, list additional sources on a separate page. All figures should re-
flect your average monthly expense for each item. Total the expenses.

56
Expense Description Monthly Amount

a. $
b. $
c. $

Total: Add Lines a, b and c $



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (12/08) 7

I declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this statement is true and correct. (If this Is a joint case,
both debtors must sign.)

':57

Date: Signature:
(Debtor)

Date: Signature:
......... (Joint Debtor, if any)





Form B22B (Chapter 11) (12/08)
In re

Debtor(s)

Case Number:
(If known)

CHAPTER 11 STATEMENT OF CURRENT MONTHLY INCOME
In addition to Schedules I and 1, this statement must be completed by every individual Chapter 11 debtor, whether or not filing
jointly. Joint debtors may complete one statement only.

Par~t ti'AILC(LATINOIcF CURRN MONTHLY INCOME`
Marital/filing status. Check the box that applies and complete the balance of this part of this statement as directed.
a. [I Unmarried. Complete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 2-10.
b. El married, not filing jointly. Complete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 2-10.
c. [I Married, filing jointly. Complete both Column A ("Debtor's Income") and Column B ("Spouse's Income") for

Lines 2-10.

All figures must reflect average monthly income received from all sources, derived during the Column A Column B
six calendar months prior to filing the bankruptcy case, ending on the last day of the month Debtor's Spouse's
before the filing. If the amount of monthly income varied during the six months, you must Income Income
divide the six-month total by six, and enter the result on the appropriate line.

2 Gross wages, salary, tips, bonuses, overtime, commissions.

Net income from the operation of a business, profession, or farm. Subtract Line b
from Line a and enter the difference in the appropriate column(s) of Line 3. Io

Do not enter a number less than zero.
2• 3,3 a. Gross receipts 

$

b. Ordinary and necessary business expenses $

c. Business income Subtract Line b from Line a.

Net rental and other real property income. Subtract Line b from Line a and enter the
difference in the appropriate column(s) of Line 4. Do not enter a number less than zero.

a. Gross receipts $

b. Ordinary and necessary operating expenses $

c. Rent and other real property income Subtract Line b from Line a. $ $

5 Interest, dividends, and royalties. $ $

6 Pension and retirement income. •

Any amounts paid by another person or entity, on a regular basis, for the household
expenses of the debtor or the debtor's dependents, including child or spousal
support. Dod [not~ e i alhm o r separate mainnec py nsr a4moulnt paid Oy the
d r's•,souse.if Column B is completed.

Unemployment compensation. Enter the amount in the appropriate column(s) of Line 8.
However, if you contend that unemployment compensation received by you or your spouse
was a benefit under the Social Security Act, do not list the amount of such compensation in

8 Column A or B, but instead state the amount in the space below:

Unemployment compensation claimed to
be a benefit under the Social Security Act Debtor $ Spouse $ $ $

Income from all other sources. s and4amout. If necessar, list additional
sources on a separate page. Tolied. e o L 9

SrR, lratenmeaWtna-ei Do not include any benefits received under the Social Security
9 Act or payments received as a victim of a war crime, crime against humanity, or as a victim

of international or domestic terrorism.

a. 1 $
b. $$ $ $

10 Subtotal of current monthly income. Add Lines 2 thru 9 in Column A, and, if Column
B is completed, add Lines 2 through 9 in Column B. Enter the total(s). $ $

Total current monthly income. If Column B has been completed, add Line 10, Column
A to Line 10, Column B, and enter the total. If Column B has not been completed, enter the



Forn! B22B (Chapter 11) (2/06) 2
amount from Line 10, Column A.

'j < I declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this statement is true and correct. (If this a joint case,
.,<J both debtors must sign.)

12 Date: Signature:

(Debtor)

Date: Signature:
(Joint Debtor, if any)



Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (12/08) According to the calculations required by this statemnent:

D] The applicable commitment period is 3 years.
In re E] The applicable commitment period is 5 years.Debtor(s) R Disposable income is determined under § 1325(b)(3).
Case Number: E] Disposable income is not determined under § 1325(b)(3).

(If known) (Check the boxes as directed in Lines 17 and 23 of this statement.)

CHAPTER 13 STATEMENT OF CURRENT MONTHLY INCOME
AND CALCULATION OF COMMITMENT PERIOD AND DISPOSABLE INCOME

In addition to Schedules I and J, this statement must be completed by every individual Chapter 13 debtor, whether or not filing
jointly. Joint debtors may complete one statement only.

~01Part .li and cO INCOEo
Marital/tiling status. Check the box that applies and complete the balance of this part of this statement as directed.
a. 0 Unmarried. Complete only Column A ("Debtor's Income") for Lines 2-10.
b. [L Married. Complete both Column A ("Debtor's Income") and Column B ("Spouse's Income") for Lines 2-10.
All figures must reflect average monthly income received from all sources, derived during the Column A Column Bsix calendar months prior to filing the bankruptcy case, ending on the last day of the month Debtor's Spouse'sbefore the filing. If the amount of monthly income varied during the six months, you must Income Income
divide the six-month total by six, and enter the result on the appropriate line.
Gross wages, salary, tips, bonuses, overtime, commissions. $
Income from the operation of a business, profession, or farm. Subtract Line b from
Line a and enter the difference in the appropriate column(s) of Line 3. I
not enter a number less than zero. Do not include any part of the business expenses
entered on Line b as a deduction in Part IV.

a. Gross receipts $

b. Ordinary and necessary business expenses $
c. Business income Subtract Line b from Line a

Rent and other real property income. Subtract Line b from Line a and enter the difference
in the appropriate column(s) of Line 4. Do not enter a number less than zero. Do not in-
clude any part of the operating expenses entered on Line b as a deduction in Part IV.

4 a. Gross receipts $

b. Ordinary and necessary operating expenses $
c. Rent and other real property income Subtract Line b from Line a $

S Interest, dividends, and royalties. $ $

'.6 Pension and retirement income.

Any amounts paid by another person or entity, on a regular basis, for the household
7 expenses of the debtor or the debtor's dependents, including child support. Don6t

Unemployment compensation. Enter the amount in the appropriate column(s) of Line 8.
However, if you contend that unemployment compensation received by you or your spouse
was a benefit under the Social Security Act, do not list the amount of such compensation in

8 Column A or B, but instead state the amount in the space below:

F Unemployment compensation claimed to
be a benefit under the Social Security Act Debtor $ _ Spouse $ $

Income from all other sources. Specify source and amount. If necessary, list additional
sources on a separate page. Total and enter on Line 9. indud eall payments of, ,aiionV p,•rseparat•,- tenince. Do not include any benefits received under the Social Security Act
or payments received as a victim of a war crime, crime against humanity, or as a victim ofinternational or domestic terrorism.

a. $
b. $

10 Subtotal. Add Lines 2 thru 9 in Column A, and, if Column B is completed, add Lines 2through 9 in Column B. Enter the total(s). $ $



Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (12/08) 2
Total. If Column B has been completed, add Line 10, Column A to Line 10, Column 3, and

11 enter the total. If Column B has not been completed, enter the amount from Line 10, Col-
umn A. $

Part II ,CALCULATIONi OF 1325(b)I( 4 C4IITMENT PERIOD0
12 Enter the amount from Line 11.

Marital adjustment. If you are married, but are not filing jointly with your spouse, AND if you contend
13 that calculation of the commitment period under § 1325(b)(4) does not require inclusion of the income of

your spouse, enter the amount of the income listed in Line 10, Column B that was NOT paid on a regular
basis for the household expenses of you or your dependents. Otherwise, enter zero.

14 Subtract Line 13 from Line 12 and enter the result.

15 Annualized current monthly income for § 1325(b)(4). Multiply the amount from Line 14 by

the number 12 and enter the result. $

Applicable median family income. Enter the median family income for applicable state and house-
16 hold size. (This information is available by family size at www.usdoi.qov/ust/ or from the clerk of the

bankruptcy court.)
a. Enter debtor's state of residence: b. Enter debtor's household size: $

Application of § 1325(b)(4). Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.

17 LI The amount on Line 15 is less than the amount on Line 16. Check the box for "The applicable commit-
ment period is 3 years" at the top of page 1 of this statement and continue with this statement.

LI The amount on Line 15 is not less than the amount on Line 16. Check the box for "The applicable com-
mitment period is 5 years" at the top of page 1 of this statement and continue with this statement.

Part , A ICATI", OF § 1325• b)(3) FOR DETRMNING DISPOSA8•L•• "" INCO
18 Enter the amount from Line 11. $

Marital adjustment. If you are married, but are not filing jointly with your spouse, enter the amount
19 of the income listed in Line 10, Column B that was NOT paid on a regular basis for the household expenses

of you or your dependents. If you are unmarried or married and filing jointly with your spouse, enter zero. $

20 Current monthly income for § 1325(b)(3). Subtract Line 19 from Line 18 and enter the result.

21 Annualized current monthly income for § 1325(b)(3). Multiply the amount from Line 20 by
the number 12 and enter the result. $

22 Applicable median family income. Enter the amount from Line 16. $

Application of § 1325(b)(3). Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.

El The amount on Line 21 is more than the amount on Line 22. Check the box for "Disposable income is de-
23 termined under § 1325(b)(3)" at the top of page 1 of this statement and complete the remaining parts of this state-

ment.
L3 The amount on Line 21 is not more than the amount on Line 22. Check the box for "Disposable income

is not determined under § 1325(b)(3)" at the top of page 1 of this statement and complete Part VII of this statement.
Do not complete Parts IV, V, or VI.

Pa§rt~ IV. C*ALCULATINO'E UT R MIC M
SýuPairt A! Deductions une Stnards ofthe ntrnalR evenue Service (IRS)

National Standards: food, aparla s c h e in$i!les personal
care, and miscellaneous. Enter in Line 24 the "Total" amount from IRS National Standards for Allow-
able Living Expenses for the applicable hous|eiid size and level of gross monthly income. (This informa-
tion is available at www.usdoj.gov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.) In the spac]e bow,

24 check the approppriate bot,10idcate how yo dterie you monthiy, income
Gross monthly income determined using: n2 Line Ii L• Line 14 0rISchedule I

EL Other (specify) , . ..... $

Local Standards: housing and utilities; non-mortgage expenses. Enter the amount of the
25A IRS Housing and Utilities Standards; non-mortgage expenses for the applicable county and household size.

(This information is available at www.usdoi.qov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court). $



Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (12/08) 3

Local Standards: housing and utilities; mortgage/rent expense. Enter, in Line a below, theamount of the IRS Housing and Utilities Standards; mortgage/rent expense for your county and 6oeh
size (this information is available at www.usdoi.gov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court); enter
on Line b the total of the Average Monthly Payments for any debts secured by your home, as stated in Line
47; subtract Line b from Line a and enter the result in Line 25B. Do not enter an amount less than

25B zero.
a. IRS Housing and Utilities Standards; mortgage/rent expense $
b. Average Monthly Payment for any debts secured by your

home, if any, as stated in Line 47 $
c. Net mortgage/rental expense Subtract Line b from Line a.

Local Standards: housing and utilities; adjustment. if you contend that the process set out in
Lines 25A and 25B does not accurately compute the allowance to which you are entitled under the IRSHousing and Utilities Standards, enter any additional amount to which you contend you are entitled, and

26 state the basis for your contention in the space below:

Local Standards: transportation; vehicle operation/public transportation expense.
You are entitled to an expense allowance in this category regardless of whether you pay the expenses of
operating a vehicle and regardless of whether you use public transportation.

Z7 Check the number of vehicles for which you pay the operating expenses or for which the operating ex-
penses are included as a contribution to your household expenses in Line 7. 0l 0 El 1 El 2 or more.
Enter the amount from IRS Transportation Standards, Operating Costs & Public Transportation Costs for
the applicable number of vehicles in the applicable Metropolitan Statistical Area or Census Region. (This
information is available at www.usdoi.aov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.)
Local Standards: transportation ownership/lease expense; Vehicle 1. Check the number
of vehicles for which you claim an ownership/lease expense. (You may not claim an ownership/lease ex-
pense for more than two vehicles.) [] 1 El 2 or more.
Enter, in Line a below, the amount of the IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, First Car (avail-able at www.usdoi.gov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court); enter in Line b the total of the Av-erage Monthly Payments for any debts secured by Vehicle 1, as stated in Line 47; subtract Line b from

28 Line a and enter the result in Line 28. Do not enter an amount less than zero.
a. IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, First Car $
b. Average Monthly Payment for any debts secured by Vehicle 1,

as stated in Line 47 $
c. Net ownership/lease expense for Vehicle 1 Subtract Line b from Line a. $

Local Standards: transportation ownership/lease expense; Vehicle 2. Complete this Line
only if you checked the "2 or more" Box in Line 28.
Enter, in Line a below, the amount of the IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, Second Car
(available at www.usdoi.gov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court); enter in Line b the total of
the Average Monthly Payments for any debts secured by Vehicle 2, as stated in Line 47; subtract Line b

29 from Line a and enter the result in Line 29. Do not enter an amount less than zero.
a. IRS Transportation Standards, Ownership Costs, Second Car $
b. Average Monthly Payment for any debts secured by Vehicle 2,

as stated in Line 47 $
c. Net ownership/lease expense for Vehicle 2 Subtract Line b from Line a.

Other Necessary Expenses: taxes. Enter the total average monthly expense that you actually incur
30 for all federal, state, and local taxes, other than real estate and sales taxes, such as income taxes, selfemployment taxes, social security taxes, and Medicare taxes. Do not include real estate or sales

taxes.
Other Necessary Expenses: .. uhtr ULtjQ :f% p|i~t! Enter the total aver-

31 age monthly deductions that are required for your employment, such as mandatory retirement contribu-tions, union dues, and uniform costs. Do not include discretionary amounts, such as non-mandatory
401(k) contributions. $



Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (12/08) 4

Other Necessary Expenses: life insurance. Enter It average monthly premiums that you ac-32 tually pay for term life insurance for yourself. Do not include premiums for insurance on your de-
pendents, for whole life or for any other form of insurance. $
Other Necessary Expenses: court-ordered payments. Enter the total monthly amount that

33 you are required to pay pursuant to the rd of, a court"ciro Inieo6efgehcy, such as spousal or child
support payments. Do not include payments on past due obligations included in Line 49. $
Other Necessary Expenses: education for employment or for a physically or mentally

34 challenged child. Enter the total average monthly amount that you actually expend for education thatis a condition of employment and for education that is required for a physically or mentally challenged de-
pendent child for whom no public education providing similar services is available.
Other Necessary Expenses: childcare. Enter the 6j average monthly amount that you actually

35 expend on childcare-such as baby-sitting, day care, nursery and preschool. Do not include other edu-
cational payments. $
Other Necessary Expenses: health care. Enter the otal average monthly amount that you actu-

36 ally expend on health care thatJ', reqii t 1 f ar,,o p nts ,rd that is notreimbursed by insurance or paid by a health savings account. Do not include payments for health in-
surance or health savings accounts listed in Line 39. $
Other Necessary Expenses: telecommunication services. Enter the 6 average monthly*amount that you actually pay for telecommunication services other than your basic home telephone ser-37 vice-such as cell phones, pagers, call waiting, caller id, special long distance, or internet service-to the
extent necessary for your health and welfare or that of your dependents. Do not include any amount
previously deducted. $

38 Total Expenses Allowed under IRS Standards. Enter the total of Lines 24 through 37 $

SHealth Insurance,° Disability insurance, and Health Savings Account Expenses. Litte
monthly expeanses in ategories set out in l~ i• ••••iine a-'blw(a rra ý.j eesr o oref

your spouse, or your delrenents.
39 - Health Insurance $

b. Disability Insurance $
c. Health Savings Account $

Total and enter on Line 39
If 'you d6 not actuatlly) expn " b~ r tdh§otat smu t; 6i tat~~he~dtie
in the space below:

Continued contributions to the care of household or family members. Enter the actual
A 4 monthly expenses that you will continue to pay for the reasonable and necessary care and support of an0 elderly, chronically ill, or disabled member of your household or member of your immediate family who is

unable to pay for such expenses. Do not include payments listed in Line 34.
Protection against family violence. Enter the i6 a-1!aver~ge as !y, y monthly ex-

41 penses that you actually incur to maintain the safety of your family under the Family Violence Preventionand Services Act or other applicable federal law. The nature of these expenses is required to be kept confi-
dential by the court. $
Home energy costs. Enter the t average monthly amount, in excess of the allowance specified by

42 IRS Local Standards for Housing and Utilities, that you actually expend for home energy costs. 'fo must
thecadditional amountcaimed is r n ad
Education expenses for dependent children under 18. th
penses that-you "actually incur, no to exceed $13.5 per pchid fo tednea riaeo ulc43 mentary sch.ol by' yourdepei•dentidren less t:•an1•years f ag Yo ase
trust~eewith ýdocumentatfo o yu actul xpne an ~ expli h th amun cla - ireasonable and necessayand § aj a cu forin I
Additional food and clothing expense. Enter the total average monthly amount by which your
food and clothing expenses exceed the combined allowances for food and i44 in the IRS National Standards, not to exceed five percent of those combined allowances. (This information
is available at www.usdoj.qov/ust/ or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.) You- mus!deaonstrate
that the additional amount claimndie reasonable and ncessary., $



Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (12/08) 5
Charitable contributions. n you o eounnbta b lesbic

46 Total Additional Expense Deductions under § 707(b). Enter the total of Lines 39 through 45. Js
I Subpart, Odd euctionigfor Debt Paymeant,~

Future payments on secured claims. For each of your debts that is secured by an interest in prop-
erty that you own, list the name of the creditor, identify the property securing the debt , and state the Av-
erage Monthly Payment. The Average Monthly Payment is the total of all amounts sch¢ed•ledas contractu-
ally due to each Secured Creditor in the 60 months following the filing of the bankruptcy case, divided by60. 0 g,•o s mited-toý ymets of prInIIpal ed II •t!ese*,if necessary, list additional

entries on a separate page.
47

Name of Creditor Property Securing the Debt 60-month Average Payment
a. $
b. I
c. $

Total: Add Lines a, b, and c $

Other payments on secured claims. If any of debts listed in Line 47 are secured by your primary
residence, a motor vehicle, or other property necessary for your support or the support of your depend-
ents, you may include in your deduction 1/60th of any amount (the "cure amount") that you must pay the
creditor in addition to the payments listed in Line 47, in order to maintain possession of the property. The
cure amount would include any sums in default that must be paid in order to avoid repossession or fore-
closure. List and total any such amounts in the following chart. If necessary, list additional entries on a

48 separate page.

Name of Creditor Property Securing the Debt 1/60th of the Cure Amount
a. $

b. $
c. $

Total: Add Lines a, b, and c $

Payments on priority claims. Enter the total amount, divided by 60, of all priority claims, such as
49 priority tax, child support and alimony claims, including only pastl due pbligation le 4• cur-

rent tobi~g*ajon.06*4q-t tain Lilnie 33. $
Chapter 13 administrative expenses. Multiply the amount in Line a by the amount in Line b, and
enter the resulting administrative expense.

a. Projected average monthly Chapter 13 plan payment. $

b. Current multiplier for your district as determined under sched-ules issued by the Executive Office for United States Trustees.

(This information is available at www.usdoi.qov/ust/ or from the
clerk of the bankruptcy court.) x

c. Average monthly administrative expense of Chapter 13 case
I Total: Multiply Lines a and b $

51 Total Deductions for Debt Payment. Enter the total of Lines 47 through 50. $

SubpartD: Total Df

52 Total of all deductions from income. Enter the total of Lines 38, 46, and 51. $





MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON THE BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: PUBLISHED RULES RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL
AS REVISED BY THE CONSUMER SUBCOMMITTEE

DATE: MARCH 23, 2007, as revised 3/26/07 (JHW)

The Consumer Subcommittee has reviewed the comments and suggestions received on
the following published rules, and the Subcommittee recommends that the rules be
approved by the Advisory Committee as revised, and that the rules be recommended to
the Standing Committee for its approval and recommendation for approval by the Judicial
Conference, or for the approval of the Standing Committee for the publication of the new
or amended rule in August, 2007.

The Subcommittee's recommendations on Exhibit D to Official Form 1, Schedules I and
J to Official Form 6, Official Form 23, and "automatic" dismissal under section 521 of
the Code are set out at the conclusion of this memorandum.

The proposed changes to the means test and the means test forms are set out in a separate
memorandum.

Bankruptcy Rules 1007(b)(4); 1007(b)(7) and (c); 1007(b)(8); New Rule 1017.1;
Committee Note to Rule 1019; Rule 4002(b)(2),(4), Rules 4003(b)(2); 4003(b)(3);
Committee Note to Rule 4003; Rules 4004(a); 4004(c)(1), (c)(4), and (c)(5); and 7001
(not published in August 2006)

The changes in these Rules and Committee Notes are set out below. The changes
are identified by strikeouts and underlining, and the only changes shown are the changes
from the published version of the rule to the version of the rule being proposed for
adoption.

Rule 1007 has several changes. Subdivision (b)(4) is amended in response to
Comment 06-BK-014 submitted by Bankruptcy Judges Isgur and Steen (see pages 2-3 of
memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted After January 10, 2007 on Proposed
Rules and Forms). The rule as proposed required only debtors whose debts were
primarily consumer debts to complete the means test form. As revise, the rule would
require all individual chapter 7 debtors to complete the means test form, but the form is



also amended to permit debtors whose debts are not primarily consumer debts to check a
box to that effect on the form. If they check that box, they are not required to complete
the rest of the form. Subdivisions (b)(7) and (c) are amended to include individual chapter
11 debtors among those who must file the form regarding the completion of the personal
financial management course, and to allow the court greater time to permit the debtor to
file the form. The National Bankruptcy Conference submitted Comment 06-BK-018
(see page 8-9 of memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted After January 10, 2007
on Proposed Rules and Forms) recommending that the rules provide more leeway for
debtors to comply with the requirement to file the personal financial management
completion form, and the Consumer Subcommittee concluded that this was the best
solution to the problem. The Consumer Subcommittee concluded that there was no need
to amend subdivision (b)(8) to include a reference to a limitation on the chapter 7
discharge along with the discharge in chapters 11, 12, and 13 because Rule 4004(c)(1)(I)
already includes a provision for the delay of the entry of a chapter 7 discharge if there is a
pending motion under § 727(a)(12). Judge Teel had made such a suggestion in
Comment 05-BR-029.

Rule 1007. Lists, Schedules, Statements, and Other
Documents; Time Limits

I (a) CORPORATE OWNERSHIP STATEMENT, LIST OF

2 CREDITORS AND EQUITY SECURITY HOLDERS, AND

3 OTHER LISTS.

4

5 (4) Chapter 15 Case. Unless the court orders

6 otherwise, a foreign representative filing a petition for recognition

7 under chapter 15 shall file with the petition a list containing the

8 name and address of all administrators in foreign proceedings of

9 the debtor, all parties to litigation pending in the United States in

10 which the debtor is a party at the time of the filing of the petition,

11 and all entities against whom provisional relief is being sought

12 under § 1519 of the Code.

2



13 (5) Extension of Time. Any extension of time for

14 the filing of lists required by this subdivision may be granted only

15 on motion for cause shown and on notice to the United States

16 trustee and to any trustee, committee elected under § 705 or

17 appointed under § 1102 of the Code, or other party as the court

18 may direct.

19 (b) SCHEDULES, STATEMENTS, AND OTHER

20 DOCUMENTS REQUIRED.

21 (1) Except in a chapter 9 municipality case, the

22 debtor, unless the court orders otherwise, shall file the following

23 schedules, statements, and other documents, prepared as prescribed

24 by the appropriate Official Forms, if any:

25 (A) schedules of assets and liabilities;;

26 (B) a schedule of current income and

27 expenditures;;

28 (C) a schedule of executory contracts and

29 unexpired leases;

30 (D) a statement of financial affairs;

31 (E) copies of all payment advices or other

32 evidence of payment, if any, received by the debtor from an

33 employer within 60 days before the filing of the petition, with

34 redaction of all but the last four digits of the debtor's social-

3



35 security number or individual taxpayer-identification number; and

36 (F) a record of any interest that the debtor

37 has in an account or program of the type specified in § 521 (c) of

38 the Code.

39 (2) An individual debtor in a chapter 7 case shall

40 file a statement of intention as required by § 521(a) of the Code,

41 prepared as prescribed by the appropriate Official Form. A copy of

42 the statement of intention shall be served on the trustee and the

43 creditors named in the statement on or before the filing of the

44 statement.

45 (3) Unless the United States trustee has determined

46 that the credit counseling requirement of § 109(h) does not apply in

47 the district, an individual debtor must file a statement of

48 compliance with the credit counseling requirement, prepared as

49 prescribed by the appropriate Official Form which must include

50 one of the following:

51 (A) an attached certificate and debt

52 repayment plan, if any, required by § 521 (b);

53 (B) a statement that the debtor has received

54 the credit counseling briefing required by § 109(h)(1) but does not

55 have the certificate required by § 521 (b);

56 (C) a certification under § 109(h)(3); or

4



57 (D) a request for a determination by the

58 court under § 109(h)(4).

59 (4) Unless § 707(b)(2)(D) applies, an individual

60 debtor in a chapter 7 case with1 pinia•iy •,osumer d•b•, shall file

61 a statement of current monthly income prepared as prescribed by

62 the appropriate Official Form, and, if the current monthly income

63 exceeds the median family income for the applicable state and

64 household size, the information, including calculations, required by

65 § 707(b), prepared as prescribed by the appropriate Official Form.

66 (5) An individual debtor in a chapter 11 case shall

67 file a statement of current monthly income, prepared as prescribed

68 by the appropriate Official Form.

69 (6) A debtor in a chapter 13 case shall file a

70 statement of current monthly income, prepared as prescribed by the

71 appropriate Official Form, and, if the current monthly income

72 exceeds the median family income for the applicable state and

73 household size, a calculation of disposable income made in

74 accordance with § 1325(b)(3), prepared as prescribed by the

75 appropriate Official Form.

76 (7) An individual debtor in a chapter 7, a chapter 11 in

77 which § 1141(d)(3) applies, or a chapter 13 case shall file a

78 statement of completion of a course concerning personal

5



79 financial management, prepared as prescribed by the

80 appropriate Official Form.

81 (8) If an individual debtor in a chapter 11, 12, or 13

82 case has claimed an exemption under § 522(b)(3)(A) in property

83 of the kind described in § 522(p)(1) with a value in excess of the

84 amount set out in § 522(q)(1), the debtor shall file a statement as to

85 whether there is any proceeding pending in which the debtor may

86 be found guilty of a felony of a kind described in § 522(q)(1)(A) or

87 found liable for a debt of the kind described in § 522(q)(1)(B).

88 (c) TIME LIMITS. In a voluntary case, the schedules,

89 statements, and other documents required by subdivision (b)(1),

90 (4), (5), and (6) shall be filed with the petition; or within 15 days

91 thereafter, except as otherwise provided in subdivisions (d), (e), (f),

92 and (h) of this rule. In an involuntary case, the list in subdivision

93 (a)(2), and the schedules, statements, and other documents required

94 by subdivision (b)(1) shall be filed by the debtor within 15 days of

95 the entry of the order for relief. In a voluntary case, the documents

96 required by paragraphs (A), (C), and (D) of subdivision (b)(3) shall

97 be filed with the petition. Unless the court orders otherwise, a

98 debtor who has filed a statement under subdivision (b)(3)(B), shall

99 file the documents required by subdivision (b)(3)(A) within 15

100 days of the order for relief. Unless the court, at any time and in its

6



101 discretion, extends the time, in fn a chapter 7 case, the debtor shall

102 file the statement required by subdivision (b)(7) within 45 days

103 after the first date set for the meeting of creditors under § 341 of

104 the Code, and in a chapter 13 case no later than the date when the

105 last payment was made by the debtor as required by the plan or the

106 filing of a motion for a discharge under § 1328(b). The debtor

107 shall file the statement required by subdivision (b)(8) no earlier

108 than the date of the last payment made under the plan or the date of

109 the filing of a motion for a discharge under § § 1141(d)(5)(B),

110 1228(b), or 1328(b) of the Code. Lists, schedules, statements, and

111 other documents filed prior to the conversion of a case to another

112 chapter shall be deemed filed in the converted case unless the court

113 directs otherwise. Except as provided in § 1116(3), any extension

114 of time for the filing of the schedules, statements, and other

115 documents required under this rule may be granted only on motion

116 for cause shown and on notice to the United States trustee, any

117 committee elected under § 705 or appointed under § 1102 of the

118 Code, trustee, examiner, or other party as the court may direct.

119 Notice of an extension shall be given to the United States trustee

120 and to any committee, trustee, or other party as the court may

121 direct.

122

7



COMMITTEE NOTE

The title of this rule is expanded to refer to "documents" in
conformity with the 2005 amendments to § 521 and related
provisions of the Bankruptcy Code that include a wider range of
documentary requirements.

Subdivision (a) is amended to require that any foreign
representative filing a petition for recognition to commence a case
under chapter 15, which was added to the Code in 2005, file a list
of entities with whom the debtor is engaged in litigation in the
United States. The foreign representative filing the petition for
recognition must also list any entities against whom provisional
relief is being sought as well as all administrators in foreign
proceedings of the debtor. This should ensure that entities most
interested in the case, or their representatives, will receive notice of
the petition under Rule 2002(q).

Subdivision (b)(1) addresses schedules, statements, and
other documents that the debtor must file unless the court orders
otherwise and other than in a case under chapter 9. This
subdivision is amended to include documentary requirements
added by the 2005 amendments to § 521 that apply to the same
group of debtors and have the same time limits as the existing
requirements of (b)(1). Consistent with the E-Government Act of
2002, Pub. L. No. 107-347, the payment advices should be
redacted before they are filed.

Subdivision (b)(2) is amended to conform to the
renumbering of the subsections of § 521.

Subdivisions (b)(3) through (b)(7) are new and implement
the 2005 amendments to the Code. Subdivision (b)(3) provides for
the filing of a document relating to the credit counseling
requirement provided by the 2005 amendments to § 109 in the
context of an Official Form that warns the debtor of the
consequences of failing to comply with the credit counseling
requirement.

Subdivision (b)(4) addresses the filing of information about
current monthly income, as defined in § 101, for certain chapter 7
debtors and, if required, additional calculations of expenses
required by the 2005 amendments to § 707(b).

8



Subdivision (b)(5) addresses the filing of information about
current monthly income, as defined in § 101, for individual chapter
11 debtors. The 2005 amendments to § 11 29(a)(15) condition plan
confirmation for individual debtors on the commitment of
disposable income, as defined in § 1325(b)(2), which is based on
current monthly income.

Subdivision (b)(6) addresses the filing of information about
current monthly income, as defined in § 101, for chapter 13 debtors
and, if required, additional calculations of expenses. These
changes are necessary because the 2005 amendments to § 1325
require that the determination of disposable income begin with
current monthly income.

Subdivision (b)(7) reflects the 2005 amendments to §§ 727
and 1328 of the Code that condition the receipt of a discharge on
the completion of a personal financial management course, with
certain exceptions. To evidence compliance with that requirement,
the subdivision requires the debtor to file the appropriate Official
Form certifying that the debtor has completed the personal
financial management course.

Subdivision (b)(8) is amended to require an individual
debtor in a case under chapter 11, 12, and 13 to file a statement that
there are no reasonable grounds to believe that the restrictions on a
homestead exemption as set out in § 522(q) of the Code are
applicable. Sections 1141(d)(5)(C), 1228(f), and 1328(h) each
provide that the court shall not enter a discharge order unless it
finds that there is no reasonable cause to believe that § 522(q)
applies. Requiring the debtor to submit a statement to that effect in
cases under chapters 11, 12, and 13 in which an exemption is
claimed in excess of the amount allowed under § 522(q)(1)
provides the court with a basis to conclude, in the absence of any
contrary information, that § 522(q) does not apply. Creditors
receive notice under Rule 2002(f)(l 1) of the time to request
postponement of the entry of the discharge to permit an
opportunity to challenge the debtor's assertions in the Rule
1007(b)(8) statement in appropriate cases.

Subdivision (c) is amended to include time limits for the
filing requirements added to subdivision (b) due to the 2005
amendments to the Code, and to make conforming amendments.
Separate time limits are provided for the documentation of credit

9



counseling and for the statement of the completion of the financial
management course. While most documents relating to credit
counseling must be filed with the voluntary petition, the credit
counseling certificate and debt repayment plan can be filed within
15 days of the filing of a voluntary petition if the debtor files a
statement under subdivision (b)(3)(B) with the petition. The court
is given broad discretion to extend the deadline for a debtor to file
a statement of the completion of a personal financial management
course. Sections 727(a)( 1) and 1328(g) of the Code require
individual debtors to complete these courses prior to the entry of a
discharge. The amendment allows the court to extend the deadline
for the debtor to file Official Form 23 thus allowing the debtor to
receive a discharge. No party is harmed by the extension of the
deadline, so no specific restriction is placed on the court's
discretion to extend the deadline, even after its initial expiration.

Subdivision (c) of the rule is also amended to recognize the
limitation on the extension of time to file schedules and statements
when the debtor is a small business debtor. Section 1116(3), added
to the Code in 2005, establishes a specific standard for courts to
apply in the event that the debtor in possession or the trustee seeks
an extension for filing these forms for a period beyond 30 days
after the order for relief.

New Rule 1017.1 was recommended by the National Bankruptcy Conference in its
Comment 06-BK-018. The Consumer Subcommittee recommends that the Advisory
Committee present the rule to the Standing Committee for its approval for the publication
of the rule in August 2007. The rule governs the process of determining whether to allow
the postponement of the prepetition credit counseling requirement.

(TWO VERSIONS - Subcommittee version is Version 1, and Judge
Swain's recommendation is Version 2)

VERSION 1

Rule 1017.1. Determination of Sufficiency of Debtor's
Certification of Exigent Circumstances

A certification of exigent circumstances filed by an individual

2 debtor under § 1 09(h)(3) may be determined to be insufficient only

10



3 upon order of the court entered within twenty-one days after the

4 filing of the certification. The court may enter such an order,

5 accompanied by a specification of the reasons for finding the

6 certification insufficient, with such notice to the debtor as the court

7 finds appropriate, or without notice. A party in interest may seek

8 entry of such an order by motion, with notice to the debtor, filed so

9 as to allow determination by the court within twenty-one days after

10 the filing of the certification.

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule is new. It establishes a deadline for a court to rule on
the sufficiency of a debtor's certification that exigent
circumstances make it appropriate to allow the debtor to complete
the required credit counseling after the commencement of the case
rather than prior to the filing of a voluntary petition. Under §
109(h)(3) of the Code, the debtor may complete the credit
counseling after the commencement of the case if the court finds
that the exigent circumstances asserted by the debtor justify the
postponement of the deadline for that counseling. Under that
provision, however, even if the court grants the debtor's request for
more time to obtain the counseling, the counseling still must be
completed no later than thirty days after the commencement of the
case. On a showing of cause, the court may allow the debtor an
additional fifteen days, but the deadlines are relatively short.
Therefore, the rule requires the court to act in time to allow the
debtor an opportunity to meet the counseling obligation in the
event that the court grants the relief.

VERSION 2

Rule 1017.1. Exemption from Pre-Petition Credit Counseling
Requirement

A certification filed by an individual debtor under § 109(h)(3)

1I



2 shall be deemed satisfactory to the court unless the court, on its

3 own motion or on a motion served on the debtor and filed by a

4 party in interest within 14 days after the filing of the certification,

5 enters an order finding the certification unsatisfactory. Any such

6 order shall be entered no later than twenty-one days after the filing

7 of the certification, and shall specify the reason for the finding that

the certification is unsatisfactory.

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule is new. It provides that a debtor's certification under
§ 109(h)(3) concerning exemption from the pre-petition credit
counseling requirement will be deemed satisfactory (thus
permitting the debtor to obtain the counseling within thirty days
after filing the petition) unless the court enters an order finding the
certification unsatisfactory within twenty-one days after the
certification is filed. The deadline for court action allows the
debtor time to complete the counseling, or request a further
extension pursuant to § 109(h)(3)(B), within the thirty-day
exemption period. The rule requires that any motion for an order
rejecting the certification must be made within fourteen days after
the certification is filed, in order to give the court sufficient time to
act on the motion within the twenty-one day period.

COMMITTEE NOTE to Rule 1019. This rule was amended to establish a deadline for
filing motions under § 707(b) and (c) when a case is converted to chapter 7. Bankruptcy
Judge Williamson in Comment 05-BR-024 suggested that such a motion would be
improper under the language of the Code. The Consumer Subcommittee believes that
this is an unresolved matter, and did not intend by establishing a deadline to suggest
whether such motions can be brought in converted cases. The amendment to the
Committee Note is intended to convey that view.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (2) is amended to include a new filing period
for motions under § 707(b) and (c) of the Code when a case is

12



converted to chapter 7. The establishment of a deadline for filing
such motions is not intended to mean that such motions are
appropriate or are not appropriate under the Code.

Rule 4002 governs the debtor's duty to produce certain documents. Comment 05-BR-
022 submitted by Mr. Barry Barash suggests that the rule be amended to provide that
creditors must absorb the costs incurred by debtors when the creditor requests a copy of
the debtor's tax return or transcript. The Consumer Subcommittee concluded that such
an amendment to the rule would be inconsistent with the language of the Code, so no
change was made to this portion of the rule. The Internal Revenue Service submitted
Comment 06-BK-015 (see pages 9-10 of the memo behind Tab 6A) which included a
recommendation that the Committee Note to the rule be revised to make it clear that the
debtor has an obligation to obtain and provide the tax return or transcript. This is a
greater duty than the duty to provide other documents which the debtor need not obtain.
For those documents, the debtor can simply state that he or she does not have the
documents. We have also just received correspondence from Congressman Conyers and
Congresswoman Sanchez in which they suggest that Proposed Rule 4002(b)(2) may be
too burdensome for debtors who are required to supply financial information to trustees.
This is presumably a reference to Rule 4002(b)(2)(B) which provides that the trustee or
United States trustee can instruct the debtor that they need not provide that information to
the trustee or bring it to the § 341 meeting. Bracketed language is set out at the end of the
second paragraph of the Committee Note to highlight this potential reduction in the
burden on debtors.

Rule 4002. Duties of Debtor

1 (a) IN GENERAL. In addition to performing other duties

2 prescribed by the Code and rules, the debtor shall:

3 (1) attend and submit to an examination at the times

4 ordered by the court;

5 (2) attend the hearing on a complaint objecting to

6 discharge and testify, if called as a witness;

7 (3) inform the trustee immediately in writing as to the

8 location of real property in which the debtor has an interest and the

13



9 name and address of every person holding money or property

10 subject to the debtor's withdrawal or order if a schedule of property

11 has not yet been filed pursuant to Rule 1007;

12 (4) cooperate with the trustee in the preparation of an

13 inventory, the examination of proofs of claim, and the

14 administration of the estate; and

15 (5) file a statement of any change of the debtor's address.

16 (b) INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE

17 DOCUMENTATION.

18 (1) Personal Identification. Every individual debtor shall

19 bring to the meeting of creditors under § 341:

20 (A) a picture identification issued by a governmental

21 unit, or other personal identifying information that establishes the

22 debtor's identity; and

23 (B) evidence of social-security number(s), or a written

24 statement that such documentation does not exist.

25 (2) Financial Information. Every individual debtor shall

26 bring to the meeting of creditors under § 341, and make available

27 to the trustee, the following documents or copies of them, or

28 provide a written statement that the documentation does not exist

29 or is not in the debtor's possession:

30 (A) evidence of current income such as the most recent

14



31 payment advice;

32 (B) unless the trustee or the United States trustee

33 instructs otherwise, statements for each of the debtor's depository

34 and investment accounts, including checking, savings, and money

35 market accounts, mutual funds and brokerage accounts for the time

36 period that includes the date of the filing of the petition; and

37 (C) documentation of monthly expenses claimed by the

38 debtor if required by § 707(b)(2)(A) or (B).

39 (3) Tax Return. At least 7 days before the first date set for

40 the meeting of creditors under § 341, the debtor shall provide to the

41 trustee a copy of the debtor's federal income tax return for the most

42 recent tax year ending immediately before the commencement of

43 the case and for which a return was filed, including any

44 attachments, or a transcript of the tax return, or provide a written

45 statement that the documentation does not exist.

46 (4) Tax Returns Provided to Creditors. If a creditor, at

47 least 15 days before the first date set for the meeting of creditors

48 under § 341, requests a copy of the debtor's tax return that is to be

49 provided to the trustee under subdivision (b)(3), the debtor, at least

50 7 days before the first date set for the meeting of creditors under §

51 341, shall provide to the requesting creditor a copy of the return,

52 including any attachments, or a transcript of the tax return, or

15



53 provide a written statement that the documentation does not exist.

54 (5) Confidentiality of Tax Information. The debtor's

55 obligation to provide tax returns under Rule 4002(b)(3) and (b)(4)

56 is subject to procedures for safeguarding the confidentiality of tax

57 information established by the Director of the Administrative

58 Office of the United States Courts.

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule is amended to implement § 521 (a) (1)(B)(iv) and (e)(2),
added to the Code by the 2005 amendments. These Code
amendments expressly require the debtor to file with the court, or
provide to the trustee, specific documents. The amendments to the
rule implement these obligations and establish a time frame for
creditors to make requests for a copy of the debtor's Federal income
tax return. The rule also requires the debtor to provide
documentation in support of claimed expenses under § 707(b)(2)(A)
and (B).

Subdivision (b) is also amended to require the debtor to cooperate
with the trustee by providing materials and documents necessary to
assist the trustee in the performance of the trustee's duties. Nothing
in the rule, however, is intended to limit or restrict the debtor's duties
under § 521, or to limit the access of the Attorney General to any
information provided by the debtor in the case. Subdivision (b)(2) of
the The rule does not require that the debtor create documents or
obtain documents from third parties; rather, the debtor's obligation is
to bring to the § 341 meeting of creditors the documents which the
debtor possesses. Under subdivision (b)(3), the debtor must obtain
copies of tax returns or tax transcripts and provide them to the
appropriate person(s), unless no such documents exist. Any written
statement that the debtor provides indicating either that documents do
not exist or are not in the debtor's possession must be verified or
contain an unsworn declaration as required under Rule 1008. [Under
subdivision (b)(2)(B), the trustee or United States trustee can instruct
the debtor that there is no reason to provide the documents described
in that subdivision.]

16



Because the amendment implements the debtor's duty to
cooperate with the trustee, the materials provided to the trustee would
not be made available to any other party in interest at the § 341
meeting of creditors other than the Attorney General. Some of the
documents may contain otherwise private information that should not
be disseminated. For example, pay stubs and financial account
statements might include the social-security numbers of the debtor
and the debtor's spouse and dependents, as well as the names of the
debtor's children. The debtor should redact all but the last four digits
of all social-security numbers and the names of any minors when they
appear in these documents. This type of information would not
usually be needed by creditors and others who may be attending the
meeting. If a creditor perceives a need to review specific documents
or other evidence, the creditor may proceed under Rule 2004.

Tax information produced under this rule is subject to procedures
for safeguarding confidentiality established by the Director of the
Administrative Office of the United States Courts.

Rule 4003 governs exemptions, and the National Bankruptcy Conference in Comment 06-
BK-018 (see page 7-8 of memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted After January 10,
2007 on Proposed Rules and Forms), and the National Association of Consumer Bankruptcy
Attorneys in Comment 06-BK-020 (see page 10-11 of memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments
Submitted After January 10, 2007 on Proposed Rules and Forms) each opposed the
expansion of the deadline for objecting to exemptions, but the Consumer Subcommittee did
not accept those suggestions. The Subcommittee did, however, agree that the rule should be
amended to include a provision for the providing of notice of the objection to the debtor and
to any person who may have filed the exemption in the case. Also, the Committee Note was
amended to respond to Comment 06-BK-052 (see page 15 of memo behind Tab 3 titled
Comments Submitted After January 10, 2007 on Proposed Rules and Forms) submitted by
the Federal Courts Committee of the California State Bar which expressed concern that the
deadlines set in Rule 4003(b)(2) should apply as well to exemption objections made under
(b)(3). The Consumer Subcommittee recommends that the Committee Note be amended to
recognize that these deadlines are applicable, but the Subcommittee does not believe that any
change needs to be made to the text of the rule to address the issue.

Rule 4003. Exemptions

(b) OBJECTING TO A CLAIM OF EXEMPTIONS.

17



2 (1) A party in interest may file an objection to the list of

3 property claimed as exempt only within 60 days after the meeting of

4 creditors held under § 341 (a) is concluded or within 30 days after any

5 amendment to the list or supplemental schedules is filed, whichever

6 is later. The court may, for cause, extend the time for filing

7 objections if, before the time to object expires, a party in interest files

8 a request for an extension.

9 (2) Notwithstanding the time limits set forth in subdivision

10 (b)(1), the trustee may file an objection to a claim of exemption at

11 any time prior to one year after the closing of the case if the debtor

12 fraudulently asserted the claim of exemption. The trustee shall

13 deliver or mail the objection to the debtor and the debtor's attorney,

14 and to any person filing the list of exempt property and to that

15 person's attorney person filing the list and the peson's attorne.y.

16

17 (3) A copy of any objection shall be delivered or mailed to

18 the trustee, the debtor and the debtor's attorney, and the person filing

19 the list, and the attorney for that person.

20

21 (d) AVOIDANCE BY DEBTOR OF TRANSFERS OF

22 EXEMPT PROPERTY. A proceeding by the debtor to avoid a lien

23 or other transfer of property exempt under § 522(f) of the Code shall

18



24 be by motion in accordance with Rule 9014. Notwithstanding the

25 provisions of subdivision (b), a creditor may object to a motion filed

26 under § 522(f) by challenging the validity of the exemption asserted

27 to be impaired by the lien.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (b) is rewritten to include four subparagraphs.

Subdivision (b)(1) is amended to extend the deadline for
objections to exemptions from 30 days to 60 days after the
conclusion of the meeting of creditors held under § 341(a). The
deadline for objecting to exemptions is short, and the Supreme Court
has held that the deadline is relatively inelastic. Taylor v. Freeland
& Kronz, 503 U.S. 638 (1992). As a result of the amendment to §
522(a)(3) of the Code in 2005, the trustee and creditors may need
more time to evaluate the exemptions claimed by the debtor and, in
particular, whether the debtor's claimed exemption is based on the
law of the appropriate jurisdiction.

Subdivision (b)(2) is added to the rule to permit the trustee to
object to an exemption at any time up to one year after the closing of
the case if the debtor fraudulently claimed the exemption. Extending
the deadline for trustees to object to an exemption when the
exemption claim has been fraudulently made will permit the court to
review and, in proper circumstances, deny improperly claimed
exemptions, thereby protecting the legitimate interests of creditors
and the bankruptcy estate. However, similar to the deadline set in
§727(e) for revoking a discharge which was fraudulently obtained,
an objection to an exemption that was fraudulently claimed must be
filed within one year after the closing of the case. Subdivision (b)(2)
extends the objection deadline only for trustees.

Subdivision (b)(3) is added to the rule to reflect the addition of
subsection (q) to § 522 of the Code by the 2005 Act. Section 522(q)
imposes a $125,000 limit on a state homestead exemption if the
debtor has been convicted of a felony or owes a debt arising from
certain causes of action. Other revised provisions of the Code, such
as § 727(a)(12) and § 1328(h), suggest that the court may consider
issues relating to § 522 late in the case, and the 60-day period for

19



objections would not be appropriate for this provision. Under
existing subdivision (b)(1), a party in interest also may object to an
exemption that is first claimed by an amendment to the schedules at
any time up to 60 days after the amendment or a supplemental
schedule is filed

Subdivision (d) is amended to clarify that a creditor with a lien
on property that the debtor is attempting to avoid on the grounds that
the lien impairs an exemption may raise in defense to the lien
avoidance action any objection to the debtor's claimed exemption.
The right to object is limited to an objection to the exemption of the
property subject to the lien and for purposes of the lien avoidance
action only. The creditor may not object to other exemption claims
made by the debtor. Those objections, if any, are governed by Rule
4003(b).

Other changes are stylistic.

Rule 4004(a) and (c), and Rule 7001 were revised by the Consumer Subcommittee in
response to an informal comment from Bankruptcy Judge Olack regarding the procedure for
objecting to a debtor's discharge based on the insufficient lapse of time between cases in
which a discharge was first obtained and the commencement of the subsequent case. The
rules are amended to clarify that discharge objections based on § § 727(a)(8) or (9), or 1328(f)
need not be commenced by a complaint. Instead, they can be brought by motion. This is
accomplished by the amendment to Rule 7001(a)(4) and the addition of new subdivision (b)
in that Rule. Rule 4004 is amended to reflect that these actions may be commenced by
motion, not just by complaint, including in a chapter 13 case because of the addition of §
1328(f) to the Code. Rule 4004(c)(1 )(M) is added to direct the clerk not to issue a discharge
if a chapter 7 debtor is not eligible to receive a discharge under § 727 (a)(8) or (9).

Rule 7001. Scope of Rules of Part VII

(a) An adversary proceeding is governed by the rules of this Part VII.

2 The following are adversary proceedings:

3 (1) to recover money or property, except a proceeding to compel

4 the debtor to deliver property to the trustee, or a proceeding under §

5 554(b) or § 725 of the Code, Rule 2017, or Rule 6002,

20



6 (2) to determine the validity, priority, or extent of a lien or other

7 interest in property, other than a proceeding under Rule 4003(d),

8 (3) to obtain approval pursuant to § 3 63(h) for the sale of both the

9 interest of the estate and of a co-owner in property,

10 (4) except as provided in subdivision (b), to object to or revoke a

11 discharge,

12 (5) to revoke an order of confirmation of a chapter 11, chapter 12,

13 or chapter 13 plan,

14 (6) to determine the dischargeability of a debt,

15 (7) to obtain an injunction or other equitable relief,

16 (8) to subordinate any allowed claim or interest, except when

17 subordination is provided in a chapter 9, 11, 12, or 13 plan,

18 (9) to obtain a declaratory judgment relating to any of the

19 foregoing, or

20 (10) to determine a claim or cause of action removed pursuant to

21 28 U.S.C. § 1452.

22 (b) An objection to discharge under H 727(a)(8), (a)(9), or

23 1328(f), is commenced by motion and is governed by Rule 9014.

COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (b) is added to the rule, and the text of the existing
rule is redesignated as subdivision (a). Subdivision (b) and the
amendment to subdivision (a)(4) direct that objections to discharge
under § 727(a)(8) and (a)(9) and § 1328(f) be commenced by
motion rather than by complaint as is the case for other objections

21



to discharge. Objections to discharge on these grounds typically
present issues more easily resolved than other objections to
discharge, so there is less need for the more extensive procedures
applicable to adversary proceedings. In appropriate cases, the court
can order that all of the provisions of Part VII of the rules apply to
these matters under Rule 904(c).

Rule 4004. Grant or Denial of Discharge

1 (a) In a chapter 7 liquidatio, case a complaint or motion

2 objecting to the debtor's discharge under § 727(a) shall be filed no

3 later than 60 days after the first date set for the meeting of creditors

4 under § 341(a). In a chapter 1 lreorganization case, the complaint

5 shall be filed no later than the first date set for the hearing on

6 confirmation. In a chapter 13 case, a motion objecting to a

7 debtor's discharge under § 1328(f) shall be filed no later than 60

8 days after the first date set for the meeting of creditors under §

9 341(a). At least 25 days, notice of the time so fixed shall be given

10 to the United States trustee and all creditors as provided in Rule

11 2002(f) and (k), and to the trustee and the trustee's attorney.

12

13 (c) GRANT OF DISCHARGE.

14 (1) In a chapter 7 case, on expiration of the time fixed for

15 filing a complaint objecting to discharge and the time fixed for

16 filing a motion to dismiss the case under Rule 1017(e), the court

17 shall forthwith grant the discharge unless:

22



18 (A) the debtor is not an individual;

19 (B) a complaint objecting to the discharge has been filed;

20 (C) the debtor has filed a waiver under § 707(a)(l0);

21 (D) a motion to dismiss the case under § 707 is pending;

22 (E) a motion to extend the time for filing a complaint

23 objecting to the discharge is pending;

24 (F) a motion to extend the time for filing a motion to

25 dismiss the case under Rule 1017(e) is pending;

26 (G) the debtor has not paid in full the filing fee

27 prescribed by 28 U.S.C. § 1930(a) and any other fee prescribed by

28 the Judicial Conference of the United States under 28 U.S.C. §

29 1930(b) that is payable to the clerk upon the commencement of a

30 case under the Code, unless the court has waived the fees under 28

31 U.S.C. § 1930(f);

32 (H) the debtor has not filed with the court a statement of

33 completion of a course concerning personal financial management

34 as required by Rule 1007(b)(7);

35 (I) a motion to delay or postpone discharge under §

36 727(a)(12) is pending;

37 (J) a motion to enlarge the time to file a reaffirmation

38 agreement under Rule 4008(a) is pending;

39 (K) a presumption has arisen under § 524(m) that a

23



40 reaffirmation agreement is an undue hardship; or

41 (L) a motion is pending to delay discharge because the

42 debtor has not filed with the court all tax documents required to be

43 filed under § 521 (f), or

44 (M) the debtor is not eligible to receive a discharge under

45 • 727(a)(8) or (a)(9).

46

47 (3) If the debtor is required to file a statement under Rule

48 1007(b)(8), the court shall not grant a discharge earlier than 30

49 days after the statement is filed.

50 (4) In a chapter 13 case, the court shall not grant a

51 discharge if the debtor has not filed with the court a statement of

52 completion of a course concerning personal financial management

53 as required by Rule 1007(b)(7), or if the debtor is not eligible for a

54 discharge under § 1328(f).

55 (5) In a chapter 11 case in which the debtor is an individual, the

56 court shall not grant a discharge if the debtor is required to but has

57 not filed with the court a statement of completion of a course

58 concerning personal financial management as required by Rule

59 1007(b)(7).

60

24



COMMITTEE NOTE

Subdivision (a) is amended to include a new deadline for the
filing of motions to object to a debtor's discharge under §§
727(a)(8), (a)(9), and 1328(f). These sections establish time limits
on the issuance of discharges in successive bankruptcy cases by the
same debtor. In connection with this amendment, Rule 7001 is
amended to include aprovision directing the use of motions rather
than complaints to initiate objections to discharge based on these
statutory grounds.

Subdivision (c)(1)(G) is amended to reflect the fee waiver
provision in 28 U.S.C. § 1930, added by the 2005 amendments.

Subdivision (c)(1)(H) is new. It reflects the 2005 addition to
the Code of §§ 727(a)(11) and 1328(g), which require that
individual debtors complete a course in personal financial
management as a condition to the entry of a discharge. Including
this requirement in the rule helps prevent the inadvertent entry of a
discharge when the debtor has not complied with this requirement.
If a debtor fails to file the required statement regarding a personal
financial management course, the clerk will close the bankruptcy
case without the entry of a discharge.

Subdivision (c)(1)(I) is new. It reflects the 2005 addition to the
Code of § 727(a)(12). This provision is linked to § 522(q).
Section 522(q) limits the availability of the homestead exemption
for individuals who have been convicted of a felony or who owe a
debt arising from certain causes of action within a particular time
frame. The existence of reasonable cause to believe that § 522(q)
may be applicable to the debtor constitutes grounds for
withholding the discharge.

Subdivision (c)(1)(J) is new. It accommodates the deadline for
filing a reaffirmation agreement established by Rule 4008(a).

Subdivision (c)(1)(K) is new. It reflects the 2005 revisions to §
524 of the Code that alter the requirements for approval of
reaffirmation agreements. Section 524(m) sets forth circumstances
under which a reaffirmation agreement is presumed to be an undue
hardship. This triggers an obligation to review the presumption
and may require notice and a hearing. Subdivision (c)(1)(J) has
been added to prevent the discharge from being entered until the

25



court approves or disapproves the reaffirmation agreement in
accordance with § 524(m).

Subdivision (c)(1)(L) is new. It implements § 1228(a) of
Public Law Number 109-8, an uncodified provision of the
Bankruptcy Abuse Prevention and Consumer Protection Act of
2005, which prohibits entry of a discharge unless required tax
documents have been provided to the court.

Subdivision (c)(1)(M) is new. It directs the court to withhold
the entry of the discharge if the debtor is ineligible to receive a
discharge under § 727(a)(8) or (a)(9).

Subdivision (c)(3) is new. It postpones the entry of the
discharge of an individual debtor in a case under chapter 11, 12, or
13 if there is a question as to the applicability of § 522(q) of the
Code. The postponement provides an opportunity for a creditor to
file a motion to limit the debtor's exemption under that provision.

Subdivision (c)(4) is new. It directs the court to withhold the
entry of the discharge if the debtor is ineligible to receive a
discharge under § 1328(f).

Other changes are stylistic.

Exhibit D to Official Form 1 - Voluntary Petition

The National Bankruptcy Conference submitted Comment 06-BK-018 (see page 5-6
of memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted After January 10, 2007, on Proposed
Rules and Forms) in which it recommended that Exhibit D to Official Form 1 be revised
to delete the reference to the requirement that the debtor file a motion in addition to
setting out the alleged exigent circumstances that justify the postponement of the
obligation to obtain prepetition credit counseling. Ms. Margaret Grammar Gay made a
similar suggestion in Comment 06-BK-057. She suggested that if the debtor must file a
motion for approval of the postponement, then there is no reason to require the debtor to
also set out the allegedly exigent circumstances for the postponement on Exhibit D. I
believe that if the requirement of a motion were removed, Ms. Grammar Gay would
support the idea of requiring the debtor to set those circumstances out on Exhibit D. The
Consumer Subcommittee concluded that paragraph 3 of Exhibit D should be amended to
delete the requirement that the debtor file a separate motion. Instead, the completion of
paragraph 3 of the Exhibit will be sufficient to raise the matter for the court to consider
whether to permit the debtor to complete the credit counseling requirement after the filing

26



of the petition. Paragraph 3 of Exhibit D to Official Form I would be amended as set out
below.

El 3. I certify that I requested credit counseling services from an
approved agency but was unable to obtain the services during the
five days from the time I made my request, and the following
exigent circumstances merit a temporary waiver of the credit
counseling requirement so I can file my bankruptcy case now.
[Must be accompanied by a motion for determination by the court.]
[Summarize exigent circumstances here.]

If the court is satisfied with the reasomns exigent
circumstances you have stated in-yonu-mioti, it will send you
an order approving your request for a temporary waiver of the
credit counseling requirement. You must still obtain the credit
counseling briefing within the first 30 days after you file your
bankruptcy case and promptly file a certificate from the agency
tat provided the briefing, together with a copy of any debt
management plan developed through the agency. Any
extension of the 30-day deadline can be granted only for cause
and is limited to a maximum of 15 days. A motion for
extension must be filed within the 30-day period. Failure to
fulfill these requirements may result in dismissal of your case.
If the court is not satisfied with your reasons for filing your
bankruptcy case without first receiving a credit counseling
briefing, your case may be dismissed.

COMMITTEE NOTE

BAPCPA also added a new § 109(h) to the Code. To
implement this provision, a section labeled "Exhibit D" is inserted
on page 2 of the form, and a separate Exhibit D is added. These
additions will enable individual debtors to certify that they have
received budget and credit counseling prior to filing, as required by
§ 109(h), or request a temporary waiver of, or exemption from, the
requirement, if they meet the statutory requirements for such relief.
Exhibit D includes directions to attach required documentation or,

27



if the debtor requests a teiipria•y waiver o an exemption, a motion
for determination by the court. Exhibit D also states the
requirement that all debtors must obtain a briefing from an
approved credit counseling agency before filing a bankruptcy case,
unless one of the very limited exceptions applies, and further states
the consequences that may be faced by any debtor who fails to
comply.

Schedules I (Current Income of Individual Debtor(s)) and Schedule J (Current
Expenditures of Individual Debtor(s)) to Official Form 6

Bankruptcy Judge Keith M. Lundin submitted Comment 06-BK-009 which included
a lengthy set of comments on the means test forms. Those comments are addressed
elsewhere. Judge Lundin also had several suggestions regarding Schedule I. The first
issue was whether the instructions on Schedule I should be amended to avoid confusion
by debtors over the calculation of current monthly income and the income information set
out on Schedule I. The Subcommittee concluded that the initial instruction at the
beginning of Schedule I should be amended by adding a sentence at the end as
follows:

The average monthly income calculated on this form may differ from current
monthly income calculated on Form 22A, 22B, or 22C.

The same amendment could also be made to the initial instruction at the
beginning of Schedule J, Current Expenditures of Individual Debtor(s). It would
state:

The average monthly expenses calculated on this form may differ from the total
deductions from income allowed on Form 22A, 22B, or 22C.

The next issue raised by Judge Lundin in his comment was that Schedule I and the
means test forms should be meshed together. The Subcommittee discussed this
possibility and concluded that Schedule I and the means test forms should remain
separate. This determination rendered several other suggestions presented by Judge
Lundin moot. They addressed issues regarding the proper listing of information on a form
that would include both the debtor's actual income and expenses and the debtor's income
and expenses applicable under the means test. Consequently, the Subcommittee
concluded that Judge Lundin's suggested changes to lines 13 and 16 should not be
made.

28



Official Form 23 - Debtor's Certification of Completion of Instructional Course
Concerning Personal Financial Management

Ms. Margaret Grammar Gay submitted Comment 06-BK-057 (see page 22-23 of
memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted After January 10, 2007 on Proposed
Rules and Forms). The Consumer Subcommittee agreed with her suggestion that the title
of Official Form 23 should be amended. The new title for the official form should be
"Debtor's Certification of Completion of Postpetition Instructional Course
Concerning Personal Financial Management." Inserting "Postpetition" into the title of
the Form will clarify for debtors that Official Form 23 applies to the postpetition course
taken by the debtor as compared to the prepetition credit counseling course that debtors
must take.

"Automatic" Dismissal Under § 521 of the Code

The National Association of Consumer Bankruptcy Attorneys (Comment 06-BK-
020) (see page 11-12 of memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted After January
10, 2007, on Proposed Rules and Forms) suggested that the Subcommittee propose a rules
based solution to the problem of automatic dismissals under § 521 of the Code. This is a
matter that is currently of significant interest in the courts, and a variety of solutions are
being offered to the problem. The Subcommittee concluded that it would be
premature to act on this problem immediately, but believes that the matter should
be monitored to determine whether a consensus develops among the courts as to
how such a process should be conducted. If such a consensus arises, the
Subcommittee should reconsider the issue to determine if a rule should be adopted
to implement the process.

29





MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: ADDENDUM TO REPORT ON BUSINESS ISSUES

DATE: MARCH 23, 2007

Comment 06-BK-050 (American Institute of Certified Public Accountants "AICPA") This
comment addresses two new forms adopted as a response to the 2005 amendments to the
Bankruptcy Code. Proposed Form 26 sets out the Value, Operations, and Profitability of entities
in which the debtor owns a substantial or controlling interest. The AICPA notes that the
positions taken in the forms may not comport with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
and that the trigger point for the presumption of a substantial or controlling interest (20%
ownership in Proposed Rule 2015.3) differs from similar rules followed by the accounting
profession. The comment points out that Form 26 is not what an accountant would adopt if
writing on a clean slate. However, the forms are intended for a different audience and are likely
to be completed by the debtor rather than a professional accountant. Therefore, no change is
recommended to the rule. In Comment 06-BK-052 (see page 16 of memo behind Tab 3 titled
Comments Submitted After January 10, 2007 on Proposed Rules and Forms), the California State
Bar's Insolvency Law Committee also suggests that Proposed Rule 2 015.3(e) may be
inconsistent with Rule 2003(a). Under Rule 2003(a), the initial report must be filed at least 5days before the meeting of creditors and the meeting can be held between 20 and 40 days after
the commencement of the case. Under Proposed Rule 2 015.3(e), the debtor must provide at least
20 days notice to the entity about which the debtor intends to file a financial report that such a
report is to be filed. This is intended to give that entity an opportunity to seek a protective order
under § 107 of the Code. The Insolvency Law Committee rightly notes that it is almost
impossible to provide 20 days notice, unless the notice is given onl the same day as the filing of
the petition. While this is possible, it would seem better to reduce the notice time to 10 days
which should be a sufficient period to determine whether to seek a protective order. I
recommend that we amend Proposed Rule 2015.3 to reduce the notice period from 20 days
to a shorter period, and I think 10 days would be sufficient.

Rule 2015.3 Reports of Financial Information on Entities in
Which a Chapter 11 Estate Holds a Controlling or Substantial
Interest.

(a) REPORTING REQUIREMENT. In a chapter 11

2 case, the trustee or debtor in possession shall file periodic



3 financial reports of the value, operations, and profitability

4 of each entity that is not a publicly traded corporation or a

5 debtor in a case under title 11, and in which the estate holds

6 a substantial or controlling interest. The reports shall be

7 prepared as prescribed by the appropriate Official Form.

8 and shall be based upon the most recent information

9 reasonably available to the trustee or debtor in possession.

10 (b) TIME FOR FILING: SERVICE. The first report

11 required by this rule shall be filed no later than five days

12 before the first date set for the meeting of creditors under §

13 341 of the Code. Subsequent reports shall be filed no less

14 frequently than every six months thereafter, until the

15 effective date of a plan or the case is dismissed or

16 converted. Copies of the report shall be served on the

17 United States trustee, any committee appointed under §

18 1102 of the Code, and any other party in interest that has

19 filed a request therefor.

20 (c) PRESUMPTION OF SUBSTANTIAL OR

21 CONTROLLING INTEREST; JUDICIAL

22 DETERMINATION. For purposes of this rule, an entity of

23 which the estate controls or owns at least a 20 percent

24 interest, shall be presumed to be an entity in which the

25 estate has a substantial or controlling interest. An entity in



26 which the estate controls or owns less than a 20 percent

27 interest shall be presumed not to be an entity in which the

28 estate has a substantial or controlling interest. Upon

29 motion, the entity, any holder of an interest therein, the

30 United States trustee, or any other party in interest may

31 seek to rebut either presumption, and the court shall, after

32 notice and a hearing, determine whether the estate's interest

33 in the entity is substantial or controlling.

34 (d) MODIFICATION OF REPORTING

35 REQUIREMENT. The court may, after notice and a

36 hearing, vary the reporting requirement established by

37 subdivision (a) of this rule for cause, including that the

38 trustee or debtor in possession is not able, after a good faith

39 effort, to comply with those reporting requirements, or that

40 the information required by subdivision (a) is publicly

41 available.

42 (e) NOTICE AND PROTECTIVE ORDERS. No later

43 than 20 days before filing the first report required by this

44 rule, the trustee or debtor in possession shall send notice to

45 the entity in which the estate has a substantial or controlling

46 interest, and to all holders - known to the trustee or debtor

47 in possession - of an interest in that entity, that the trustee

48 or debtor in possession expects to file and serve financial



'I

49 information relating to the entity in accordance with this

50 rule. The entity in which the estate has a substantial or

51 controlling interest, or a person holding an interest in that

52 entity, may request protection of the information under §

53 107 of the Code.

54 (f) EFFECT OF REQUEST. Unless the court orders

55 otherwise, the pendency of a request under subdivisions

56 (c),(d), or (e) of this rule shall not alter or stay the

requirements of subdivision (a).

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule implements § 419 of the Bankruptcy
Abuse Prevention and Consumer Protection Act of 2005
("BAPCPA"). Reports are to be made on the appropriate
Official Form. While § 419 of BAPCPA places the
obligation to report upon the "debtor," this rule extends the
obligation to include cases in which a trustee has been
appointed. The court can order that the reports not be filed
in appropriate circumstances, such as when the information
that would be included in these reports is already available
to interested parties.

INTERIM RULES COMPARISON:

This Rule is new and was not included in the Interim Rules.
It is added to implement a provision of the 2005 Act, but
that provision explicitly directed that it would not become
effective until the proper rules and form were adopted
under the Rules Enabling Act process. Therefore, this
subdivision was not included in the Interim Rules.



MEMORANDUM

TO: BUSINESS SUBCOMMITTEE

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: COMMENTS ON AND PROPOSED REVISIONS TO FORMS 25A and 25B
(Small Business Plan and Disclosure Statement), FORM 25C (Small Business
Monthly Operating Report), and FORM 26 (Periodic Report Regarding Value,
Operations and Profitability of Entities in Which the Estate Holds a Substantial or
Controlling Interest)

DATE: MARCH 15, 2007

Most of the comments submitted on the proposed rules and forms related to consumer

bankruptcy issues. Two comments, however, were addressed to the three new forms that apply

in small business cases under chapter 11. Comment 06-BK-049 was submitted by the

Commercial Law League (CLLA or the League), and Comment 06-BK-050 was submitted by the

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). The CLLA comment proposed

changes to the plan and disclosure statement (Forms 25A and 25B), while the AICPA comment

addresses Forms 25C and 26.

Comment 06-BK-49 Commercial Law League of America (CLLA or the League)

The comment of the CLLA is addressed entirely to the form plan and disclosure statement

in small business chapter 11 cases. These are Proposed Official Forms 25A and 25B,

respectively. The first recommendation is that the plan and disclosure statement be amended to

more specifically provide for the retention and prosecution of avoidance actions by the debtor.

The recommendation is that Article fX of the plan be amended to insert a provision that

explicitly provides that the reorganized debtor is retaining the right to pursue avoidance actions

under §§ 542-551 of the Code with a corresponding insertion to Part VI of the disclosure



statement that describes the plan provision. Currently, Part II(F) of the disclosure statement sets

out the debtor's expected actions regarding the recovery of transfers through the use of the

avoiding powers. The discussion of the debtor's actions regarding the avoiding powers in the

disclosure statement is intended to provide creditors with notice prior to the casting of their

ballots as to whether the debtor intends to pursue avoiding power actions. The form plan does

not include a provision expressly addressing the matter. Instead, the matter is left for possible

inclusion in Article IX of the plan. The Business Subcommittee in preparing the form plan and

disclosure statement intended to leave open the possibility of additional provisions, including a

provision governing the post-confirmation prosecution of avoiding powers actions. The plan

proponent can certainly include such a provision. Including some provisions and not others that

might be included in Article IX of the plan could be misleading to debtors, so no examples of

additional provision are given either in the instructions or the Committee Notes for the plan and

disclosure statement. Here again, providing examples of possible provisions creates the risk of

excluding some provisions that are also worthy of inclusion. Consequently, I do not believe

that the form plan or disclosure statement should be revised as suggested by the

Commercial Law League as to the inclusion of a provision for the prosecution of avoidance

actions.

The League next suggests that the form plan and disclosure statement should include a

section that describes in detail the means by which the debtor intends to implement the plan.

Section 1123(a)(5) requires that the plan include adequate means for its implementation, and the

plan as proposed seems more than adequate with respect to the treatment of claims and interests,

but there is little besides the references to executory contracts and unexpired leases in Article VI

2



of the plan that sets out what the debtor intends to do to generate the funds necessary to make the

payments called for under the plan. Inserting a section in the plan and disclosure statement

directing the plan proponent to complete such a section would be helpful to the court and

creditors. Therefore, I believe the form plan and disclosure statement should be amended

to include such a section as suggested by the Commercial Law League. I recommend that

the plan be revised to insert a new Article VII with currently proposed Articles VII

through IX being redesignated as Articles VIII through X. My recommendation for the

new Article VII of Form 25A is as follows.

ARTICLE VII

Means for Implementation of the Plan

[Insert here provisions regarding how the plan will be implemented as
required under § 1125(a)(5) of the Code. For example, provisions may
include those that set out how the plan will be funded, as well as who will
be serving as directors, officers or voting trustees of the reorganized
debtor.]

The instructions for the Form will also be changed by inserting the following after

paragraph 12 of the Instructions and renumbering paragraphs 13-15 as paragraphs 14-16.

MEANS FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PLAN

13. The seventh article describes how the plan will be implemented. It
should indicate the source of any funds that will be used to pay claims and
interests under the plan, and it should also list the persons who will be
serving as the management of the debtor after the plan is confirmed.

Alternatively, this insertion could be viewed as unnecessary if you believe that the first

paragraph of Article I of the plan that sets out a summary of the plan is sufficient. That

paragraph directs the plan proponent to "specify sources of payment, such as an infusion of

3



capital, loan proceeds, sale of assets, cash flow from operations, or future income." This

language is bracketed in the form signifying that the drafter is supposed to provide the

information. The question for the Committee is whether this direction is sufficient, especially

given the requirement that the plan must include provisions for its implementation. Nonetheless,

the language does direct the plan proponent to provide this information, and that may be

sufficient. Furthermore, Part III (D) of the disclosure statement (Form 25B) also includes a

section for the discussion of the means of implementing the plan.

A third alternative is to leave the plan as it is, but to expand the discussion of that

paragraph of the plan in the instructions that follow. Paragraph 3 of the instructions tells the plan

proponent to summarize the plan. The instructions could be expanded slightly and added

emphasis could be placed on the need for the summary paragraph to include sufficient detail that

the court can determine how the plan will be implemented as required for confirmation under §

I 123(a)(5). The following is a revised Paragraph 3 to the instructions for Form 25A. Changes

from the published instructions are noted by strikeouts and underlines.

3. The first article should provide a summary of the debtor'
proposed plan. It should describe the manner in which the plan will
be eonstmnmated implemented, as required by § I 1I25(a)(5), and the
source of the funds for payments to be made under the plan. These
sources might include an infusion of capital, loan proceeds, sale of
assets, cash flow from operations, or future income. The summary
should also identify the persons who will be serving as directors,
officers or voting trustees of the reorganized debtor, and describe
the treatment of the various classes of claimants under the plan.

Thus, the issue for the Conunittee is whether to

1. amend Form 25A to insert a new Article VII in the plan regarding the

implementation of the plan,

4



2. leave Form 25A unchanged because the first paragraph of the plan is

sufficient, or

3. leave the text of the Form unchanged, but expand paragraph 3 of the

instructions to the Form to refer more directly to the obligation under § 1123(a)(5) to

provide adequate means for the implementation of the plan.

I do not believe that we would need to amend the Disclosure Statement, Form 25B,

because that Form already includes such a section. Part III. D. of the Disclosure Statement (see

page 11) requires the plan proponent to describe the items that I have included in the bracketed

portion of the proposed Article VII of the plan. The instructions to the disclosure statement also

include a discussion of the issue in Paragraph 10 of the Instructions. The issue for the

Subcommittee is whether the inclusion of this information in the Disclosure Statement is

sufficient, or whether it should be included in the plan as well. Since the means for

implementation of the plan is a required plan provision according to § 1123(a)(5), and since the

disclosure of post-confirmation management is required for confirmation of the plan under §

I 129(a)(5)', I believe it would be appropriate for these provisions to be set out in the plan.

The CLLA also suggests that the Section 5.03 of the proposed plan be amended to

Section 1123(a) sets out the provisions that must be in a plan, so the justification for
including the implementation is direct. Section 1129(a) sets out the requirements for
confirmation of the plan, and many of those requirements cannot be met simply by including
them in a plan. For example, a plan that states that it has been proposed in good faith and not by
any means forbidden by law does not thereby meet the requirement of § 1 129(a)(3). However, a
plan that includes a provision that discloses the identities and affiliations of the post-confirmation
management may meet that statutory requirement, and it certainly would assist the court in
reaching its decision as to whether it should confirm the plan. That information would be in the
disclosure statement, but setting it out in the plan would make review of the plan at confirmation
slightly easier for the court.

5



authorize the settlement of disputed claims without court approval if they are below a certain

amount or if the settlement is at or below a maximum discount of the claim. While such

provisions may be sensible, and the League asserts that they may be particularly appropriate in

small cases, I think that such a provision is best left to addition by plan proponents who have a

specific need for the provision. I would not recommend making the settlement without court

approval provision a part of the form plan.

Finally, the CLLA suggests that Section 6.01 of the plan be amended by inserting a new

subsection (b) into the section and redesignating existing subsection (b) as a new subsection (c).

The new subsection (b) would set out the dates by which the necessary payments would be made

to cure any defaults under the contracts. The league points out that § 365(b) of the Code requires

that any defaults be cured at the time of assumption (or at least be promptly cured), and it

suggests that the cure payments be set out in the plan. Under § 1123(b)(2), the assumption,

rejection, or assignment of executory contracts and unexpired leases is subject to § 365, so I do

not believe it would be necessary for the plan to set out the specific payment dates for the debtor

to effect a cure of defaults under executory contracts and unexpired leases. Creditors and lessors

could raise the issue if they are sufficiently concerned about the timing and amount of payments.

Therefore, I would not recommend that this section of the form plan be amended as

suggested by the League.

Comment 06-BK-050 (American Institute of Certified Public Accountants "AICPA")

This comment addresses two new forms adopted as a response to the 2005 amendments

to the Bankruptcy Code. The first form is Proposed Official Form 25C, the Small Business

6



Monthly Operating Report. The AICPA suggests that the form be expanded to provide

substantially more information about the status of the debtor's tax filings including explanations

for any delinquencies and the information that may be forthcoming, expanded lists of payables

and receivables, accrued and unpaid expenses, and more elaborate disclosures about the debtor's

inventory including aging and different values. The second form is Proposed Form 26 which sets

out the Value, Operations, and Profitability of entities in which the debtor owns a substantial or

controlling interest.

As to each comment, the AICPA notes that the positions taken in the forms may not

comport with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. For example, the trigger point for the

presumption of a substantial or controlling interest (20% ownership in Proposed Rule 2015.3)

differs from similar rules followed by the accounting profession (Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles usually require a majority voting interest, so the AICPA suggests a 50% ownership as

the triggering amount). This suggestion arguably ignores that Congress directed in § 419 of

BAPCPA that these reports be provided whenever the debtor has a "substantial or controlling"

interest in the other entity. The AICPA's comments point out that Form 26 is not what an

accountant would adopt if writing on a clean slate. However, the forms are intended for a

different audience and are likely to be completed by the debtor rather than a professional

accountant. The Business Subcommittee worked with the United States Trustee Program to

prepare the Form such that it would be accessible to the small business debtor. I believe that the

Forms strike the proper balance in collecting the necessary information while still being

sufficiently user friendly that the debtor will be able to complete them in a timely, efficient, and

cost effective manner. Therefore, I recommend that the Committee not adopt the changes

7



proposed by the AICPA.

8



MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: ADDENDUM TO REPORT ON CROSS BORDER INSOLVENCY

DATE: MARCH 23, 2007

Comment 06-BK-017 submitted by the National Conference of Bankruptcy Judges urges the
Advisory Committee to consider the 11-ALI Guidelines for Court-to-Court Communications in
Cross Border Cases when establishing the rules governing cross border cases. (see page 4-5 of
memo behind Tab 3 titled Comments Submitted After January 10, 2007 on Proposed Rules and
Forms). The Cross Border Subcommittee recommends no change to the text of the rule, but
proposes a change to the Committee Note that mentions these guidelines specifically. That
addition is made at the end of the Committee Note.

Rule 5012. Communication and Cooperation With Foreign
Courts and Foreign Representatives

I Except for a communication concerning scheduling or

2 administration, the court in a case commenced by a foreign

3 representative shall give at least 20 days' notice of its intent to

4 communicate with a foreign court or a foreign representative. The

5 notice shall identify the subject of the anticipated communication

6 and shall be given in the manner provided by Rule 2002(q). Any

7 entity that wishes to participate in the communication shall notify

8 the court of its intention no later than 5 days before the scheduled

9 communication.

COMMITTEE NOTE

This rule is new. It implements § 1525 which was
added to the Code by the 2005 amendments. The rule provides an
opportunity for parties in the case to take appropriate action prior



to the communication between courts, or between the court and a
foreign representative, to establish procedures for the manner of
the communication and the right to participate in the
communication. Participation in the communication includes both
active and passive participation. Parties wishing to participate
must notify the court at least 5 days before the hearing so that
ample time exists to make arrangements necessary to permit the
participation. The rule does not attempt to establish specific
guidelines or protocols for these communications. Rather, this is
left to case by case development by the courts who also have
access to recommended guidelines for these communications
prepared jointly by the International Insolvency Institute and the
American Law Institute.



MEMORANDUM

TO: ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON BANKRUPTCY RULES

FROM: JAMES H. WANNAMAKER

RE: AUTOMATIC ADJUSTMENT OF DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN BANKRUPTCY
CODE AND OFFICIAL FORMS 1, 6C, 6E, 7, 10, 22A, AND 22C

DATE: MARCH 4, 2007, as Revised 3/23/07

Section 104(b), which was added to the Bankruptcy Code by the Bankruptcy Reform Act
of 1994, provides for the automatic adjustment of certain dollar amounts in the Code every three
years according to a formula specified in the provision. The date on which the dollar amounts
were first adjusted was April 1, 1995, and another adjustment is scheduled to take effect April 1,

2007.

Several of the dollar amounts that are adjusted under § 104(b) appear in the Official
Bankruptcy Forms, Form 1, the Voluntary Petition; Form 6C, the schedule of Property Claimed
as Exempt; Form 6E, the schedule of Creditors Holding Claims Entitled to Priority; Form 7, the
Statement of Financial Affairs; Form 10, the Proof of Claim; Form 22A, the Statement of
Current Monthly Income and Means Test Calculation; and Form 22C, the Statement of Current
Monthly Income and Calculation of Commitment Period and Disposable Income.

The dollar amount adjustments reflect the change in the Consumer Price Index for All
Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of Labor for the three-year period
ending December 31, 2006, and rounded to the nearest $25. Application of this formula to the
dollars amounts in the specified provisions of the Bankruptcy Code is purely ministerial.
Accordingly, the Judicial Conference in 1995 authorized the adjustments to be made and
published in the Federal Register every three years without further action by the Conference.
Amendment of the official forms to conform to the automatic adjustments made to the Code also
is ministerial, and the Conference likewise authorized the amendments to be made every three

years without further action by the Conference.



Prior to the enactment of the Bankruptcy Abuse Prevention Act and Consumer Protection

Act of 2005 (BAPCPA), five sections of the Bankruptcy Code and two official bankruptcy forms

were adjusted every three years. As amended by BAPCPA, section 104(b) provides for the

adjustment of the dollar amounts in 20 sections of the Code and one section of title 28. The

seven Official Forms which incorporate those dollar amounts are adjusted at the same time.

A chart showing the adjustments to be made and excerpts of the seven Official Forms are

attached.

Attachments



Title 28, U.S.C. Dollar Amount to New (Adjusted)
be Adjusted Dollar Amount

1409(b) - a trustee may commence a proceeding
arising in or related to a case to recover

(1) - money judgment of or property
worth less than $1,000 $1,100

(2) - a consumer debt less than $15,000 $16,425

(3) - a non consumer debt against a non
insider less than $10,000 $10,950

Title 11, U.S.C.

Section 101(3) - definition of assisted person $150,000 $164,250

Section 101 (18) - definition of family farmer $3,237,000 (each $3,544,525 (each
time it appears) time it appears)

101(19A) - definition of family fisherman $1,500,000 (each $1,642,500 (each
time it appears) time it appears)

101(51D) - definition of small business debtor $2,000,000 (each $2,190,000(each
time it appears) time it appears)

Section 109(e) - allowable debt limits for $307,675 (each time $336,900 (each
individual filing bankruptcy under chapter 13 it appears) time it appears)

$922,975 (each time $1,010,650 (each
it appears) time it appears)

Section 303(b) - minimum aggregate claims
needed for the commencement of involuntary
chapter 7 or chapter 11 bankruptcy

(1) - in paragraph (1) $12,300 $13,475

(2) - in paragraph (2) $12,300 $13,475



Title 11, U.S.C. 1 Dollar Amount to [New (Adjusted)
___ ___ ___ __be Adjusted 7Dollair Amount

Section 507(a) - priority expenses and claims

(1) - in paragraph (4) $10,000 $10,950

(2) - in paragraph (5) $10,000 $10,950

(3) - in paragraph (6) $4,925 $5,400

(4) - in paragraph (7) $2,225 $2,425

Section 522(d) - value of property exemptions
allowed to the debtor

(1) - in paragraph (1) $18,450 $20,200

(2) - in paragraph (2) $2,950 $3,225

(3) - in paragraph (3) $475 $525
$9,850 $10,775

(4) - in paragraph (4) $1,225 $1,350

(5) - in paragraph (5) $975 $1,075
$9,250 $10,125

(6) - in paragraph (6) $1,850 $2,025

(7) - in paragraph (8) $9,850 $10,775

(8) - in paragraph (1 1)(D) $18,450 $20,200

522(f)(3) - exception to lien avoidance under $5,000 $5,475
certain state laws

522(f)(4)- items excluded from definition of $500 (each time it $550 (each time it
household goods for lien avoidance purposes appears) appears)

522(n) - maximum aggregate value of assets in $1,000,000 $1,095,000
individual retirement accounts exempted

522(p) - qualified homestead exemption $125,000 $136,875



Title 11, U.S.C. Dollar Amount to [ New (Adjusted)
be Adjusted Dollar Amount

522(q) - state homestead exemption $125,000 $136,875

523(a)(2)(C) - exceptions to discharge

in subclause (i)(I) - consumer debts,
incurred < 90 days before filing owed to $500 $550
a single creditor in the aggregate

in subclause (i)(II) - cash advances
incurred < 70 days before filing in the $750 $825
aggregate

541(b)- property of the estate exclusions

(1) - in paragraph (5)(C) - education
IRA funds in the aggregate $5,000 $5,475

(2) - in paragraph (6)(C) - pre-purchased
tuition credits in the aggregate $5,000 $5,475

547(c)(9) - preferences, trustee may not avoid a
transfer if, in a case filed by a debtor whose
debts are not primarily consumer debts, the $5,000 $5,475
aggregate value of property is less than



Title 11, U.S.C. Dollar Amount to 1 New (Adjusted)
be Adjustedj Dollar Amount

707(b) - dismissal of a case or conversion to a
case under chapter 11 or 13 (means test)

(1) - in paragraph (2)(A)(i)(I) $6,000 $6,575

(2) - in paragraph (2)(A)(i)(II) $10,000 $10,950

(3)- in paragraph (2)(A)(ii)(IV) $1,500 $1,650

(4) - in paragraph (2)(B)(iv)(I) $6,000 $6,575

(5) - in paragraph (2)(B)(iv)(II) $10,000 $10,950

(6) - in paragraph (5)(B) $1,000 $1,100

(8) - in paragraph 6(C) $525 $575

(6) - in paragraph 7(A) $525 $575

1322(d) - contents of chapter 13 plan, monthly $525 (each time it $575 (each time it
income appears) appears)

1325(b) - chapter 13 confirmation of plan, $525 (each time it $575 (each time it
disposable income appears) appears)

1326(b)(3) - payments to former chapter 7 $25 $25
trustee



Official Form 1 (10/06)

United States Bankruptcy Court
DISTRICT OF

Name o f Debtor dual, enter Lastret, Cit, Middle): Name of J oint Debtor Su (Nouasnd SrLst, Cit, Middle)

AI Other Names used by the Debtor in the last 8 years All Other Names used by the Jomt Debtor m the last 8 years
(include mroaied, maiden, and trade names) (include mroamed, maiden, and trade names).

Last four digits of Soc Sec /Complete FIN or other Tax I D No. (if more than one, Last four digits of Soe Seec/Complete EIN or other Tax I D No (if more than
stateall)one, state all):

Street Address of Debtor (No and Street, City, and State) Street Address of Joint Debtor (No and Street, City, and State)

I JP C ODE I Il=7OD
County of Residence or of the Principal Place of Business: County of Residence or of the Principal Place of Business'
Mailing Address of Debtor (if different from street address)- Mailing Address of Joint Debtor (if different from street address).

IZMP CDE 
IP CODELocation of Principal Assets of Business Debtor (if different from street address above)'

EZIP COE
Type of Debtor Nature of Business Chapter of Bankruptcy Code Under Which(Form of Organization) (Check one box.) the Petition is Filed (Check one box.)

(Check one box.)
0l Health Care Business [I Chapter 7 El Chapter 15 Petition for

El Individual (includes Joint Debtors) LI Single Asset Real Estate as defined in E] Chapter 9 Recognition ofa ForeignSee Exhibit D on page 2 ofthisform II U.S.C. § 101(51 B) El Chapter II Main ProceedingEl Corporation (includes LLC and LLP) El Railroad E] Chapter 12 El Chapter 15 Petition for[E Partnership Dl Stockbroker El Chapter 13 Recognition of a ForeignEl Other (If debtor is not one of the above entities, E3 Commodity Broker 
Nonmain Proceedingcheck this box and state type of entity below) El Clearing Bank

E] Other 
Nature of Debts

Tax-Exempt Entity I 2, 90Q , o.
(Check box, ifapplicable) El D s are plure prmarily

ddeb defin d7 aebtsailEl Debtor is a tax-exempt organization §0 8) as 'incurred by anunder Title 26 of the United States indivi al primarily for a

Filing Fee (Check one box.) • -apter 11 Debtors

Check one box:El Full Filing Fee attached El Debtor is a small busiess deb ras defined i II USC § 10l(51D)

SFiling Fee to be paid in installments (applicable to individuals only). Mustattach E] Debtor is not a small business deb ras defined in II USC § 101(51D)signed application for the court's consideration certifying that the debtor isunable to pay fee except in installments Rule 1006(b) See Official Form 3A Check if:
El Debtor's aggregate noncontingent iqu ted debts (excluding debts owed tol Filing Fee waiver requested (applicable to chapter 7 individuals only). Must insiders or affiliates) are less thanattach signed application for the court's consideration. See Official Form 3B -----------------------------------

Check all applicable boxes:
El A plan is being filed with this petitionEl Acceptances of the plan were solicited prepetition from one or more classes

of creditors, in accordance with I U.S.C. ' 1126(b).Statistical/Administrative Information THIS SPACE IS FOR COURT USE ONLY
El Debtor estimates that funds will be available for distribution to unsecured creditors.El Debtor estimates that, after any exempt property is excluded and administrativeexpenses aid, there will be no funds available for distrtbution to unsecured creditors.

Estimated Number of Creditors
1- 50- 100- 200- 1,000- 5,001- 10,001- 25,001- 50,001 Over49 99 199 999 5,000 10,000 25,000 50,000 100,000 100,000

El E 0 El E E E E
Estimated AssetsEl$0 to D$s 10,000 to ls 100,000 to ElsI million to ElMore than $100 million$10,000 $100,000 $1 million $100 million
Estimated LiabilitiesEl$0 to 0l$50,000 to El $100,000 to El$1 million to E]More than $100 million$50,000 $100,000 $I million $100 million



Fo-in B6C
(I0/05)

In re 
Case No.

Debtor (If known)

SCHEDULE C - PROPERTY CLAIMED AS EXEMPT

Debtor claims the exemptions to which debtor is entitled under: El Check if debtor claims a homestead exemption that exceeds
(Check one box)
E 1 1 U .S .C . § 5 2 2 (b )(2 ) $ 1 3 6 ,8 7 5El II U.S.C. § 522(b)(3)

CURRENTSPECIFY LAW VALUE OF VALUE OF PROPERTYDESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY PROVIDING EACH CLAIMED WITHOUT DEDUCTING
EXEMPTION EXEMPTION EXEMPTION



Official Form 6E (10/06)

In re 
Case No.

Debtor (if known)

SCHEDULE E - CREDITORS HOLDING UNSECURED PRIORITY CLAIMS

A complete list of claims entitled to priority, listed separately by type of priority, is to be set forth on the sheets provided Only holders ofunsecured claims entitled to priority should be listed in this schedule. In the boxes provided on the attached sheets, state the name, mailing address,including zip code, and last four digits of the account number, if any, of all entities holding priority claims against the debtor or the property of thedebtor, as of the date of the filing of the petition. Use a separate continuation sheet for each type of priority and label each with the type of priority

The complete account number of any account the debtor has with the creditor is useful to the trustee and the creditor and may be provided if thedebtor chooses to do so. If a minor child is a creditor, indicate that by stating "a minor child" and do not disclose the child's name See 11 U.S C. §112 If"a minor child" is stated, also include the name, address, and legal relationship to the minor child of a person described in
Fed R. Bankr P. 1007(m).

Ifany entity other than a spouse in a joint case may be jointly liable on a claim, place an "X" in the column labeled "Codebtor," include theentity on the appropriate schedule of creditors, and complete Schedule H-Codebtors. Ifajoint petition is filed, state whether the husband, wife, bothof them, or the marital community may be liable on each claim by placing an "H," "W," "J," or "C" in the column labeled "Husband, Wife, Joint, orCommunity " If the claim is contingent, place an "X" in the column labeled "Contingent." If the claim is unliquidated, place an "X" in the columnlabeled "Unliquidated." If the claim is disputed, place an "X" in the column labeled "Disputed." (You may need to place an "X" in more than one of
these three columns.)

Report the total of claims listed on each sheet in the box labeled "Subtotals" on each sheet Report the total of all claims listed on this ScheduleE in the box labeled "Total" on the last sheet of the completed schedule. Report this total also on the Summary of Schedules
Report the total of amounts entitled to priority listed on each sheet in the box labeled "Subtotals" on each sheet. Report the total of all amounts

entitled to priority listed on this Schedule E in the box labeled "Totals" on the last sheet of the completed schedule. Individual debtors withprimarily consumer debts who file a case under chapter 7 or 13 report this total also on the Statistical Summary of Certain Liabilities and Related
Data

Report the total of amounts not entitled to priority listed on each sheet in the box labeled "Subtotals" on each sheet Report the total of allamounts not entitled to priority listed on this Schedule E in the box labeled "Totals" on the last sheet of the completed schedule Individual debtorswith primarily consumer debts who file a case under chapter 7 report this total also on the Statistical Summary of Certain Liabilities and Related
Data

ED Check this box if debtor has no creditors holding unsecured priority claims to report on this Schedule E.

TYPES OF PRIORITY CLAIMS (Check the appropriate box(es) below if claims in that category are listed on the attached sheets)

LI Domestic Support Obligations

Claims for domestic support that are owed to or recoverable by a spouse, former spouse, or child of the debtor, or the parent, legal guardian, orresponsible relative of such a child, or a governmental unit to whom such a domestic support claim has been assigned to the extent provided in
II U S.C § 507(a)(1)

[3 Extensions of credit in an involuntary case

Claims arising in the ordinary course of the debtor's business or financial affairs after the commencement of the case but before the earlier of theappointment of a trustee or the order for relief. II U.S.C § 507(a)(3).

LI Wages, salaries, and commissions

Wages, salaries, and commissions, including va tion 'sick leave pay owing to employees and commissions owing to qualifying
independent sales representatives up to 4$,00* r person earned within 180 days immediately preceding the filing of the original petition, or thecessation of business, whichever occurred first, to the extent provided in Il U.S C. § 5 0 7(a)(4).

El Contributions to employee benefit plans

Money owed to employee benefit plans for services rendered within 180 days immediately preceding the filing of the original petition, or thecessation of business, whichever occurred first, to the extent provided in 11 U.S.C. § 507(a)(5).



Official Form 6E (10/06) - Cont.

In re Case No.
Debtor (if known)

El Certain farmers and fishermen ,-$-- 400

Claims of certain farmers and fishermen, up to 4, er far•merr fisherman, against the debtor, as provided in 11 U.S.C. § 507(a)(6)

El Deposits by individuals

Claims of individuals up to $2, r deposits for the purchase, lease, or rental of property or services for personal, family, or household use,
that were not delivered or provided II U.S.C. § 507(a)(7).

LI Taxes and Certain Other Debts Owed to Governmental Units

Taxes, customs duties, and penalties owing to federal, state, and local governmental units as set forth in 11 U.S.C. § 507(a)(8).

DI Commitments to Maintain the Capital of an Insured Depository Institution

Claims based on commitments to the FDIC, RTC, Director of the Office of Thrift Supervision, Comptroller of the Currency, or Board ofGovernors of the Federal Reserve System, or their predecessors or successors, to maintain the capital of an insured depository institution. II U S.C.
§ 507 (a)(9).

1i Claims for Death or Personal Injury While Debtor Was Intoxicated

Claims for death or personal injury resulting from the operation of a motor vehicle or vessel while the debtor was intoxicated from using alcohol, a
drug, or another substance. II U.S C. § 507(a)(l0).

21710
Amounts are subject to adjustment on April 1, 2-47, and every three years thereafter with respect to cases commenced on or after the date of

adjustment.

__ continuation sheets attached



2
2. Income other than from employment or operation of business

None State the amount of income received by the debtor other than from employment, trade, profession, operation of theDl debtor's business dunng the two years immediately preceding the commencement of this case. Give particulars If ajoint petition is filed, state income for each spouse separately. (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13must state income for each spouse whether or not a joint petition is filed, unless the spouses are separated and a joint
petition is not filed )

AMOUNT 
SOURCE

3. Payments to creditors

Complete a. or b., as appropriate, and c.
NoneEl a. Individual orjoint debtor(s) with primarily consumer debts: List all payments on loans, installment purchases ofgoods or services, and other debts to any creditor made within 90 days immediately preceding the commencement ofthis case if the aggregate value of all property that constitutes or is affected by such transfer is not less than $600Indicate with an asterisk (*) any payments that were made to a creditor on account of a domestic support obligation oras part of an altemative repayment schedule under a plan by an approved nonprofit budgeting and creditor counselingagency (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13 must include payments by either or both spouseswhether or not a joint petition is filed, unless the spouses are separated and a joint petition is not filed.)

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CREDITOR DATES OF AMOUNT AMOUNT
PAYMENTS PAID STILL OWING

b. Debtor whose debts are not primarily consumer debts: List each payment or other transfer to any creditor madewithin 90 days immediately preceding the commencement of the case if the aggregate value of all property thatconstitutes or is affected by such transfer is not less than ,; . (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter13 must include payments and other transfers by either b spouses whether or not a joint petition is filed, unless
the spouses are separated and a joint petition is not filed.)

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CREDITOR DATES OF AMOUNT AMOUNT
PAYMENTS! PAID OR STILL
TRANSFERS VALUE OF OWING

NTRANSFERS

El c All debtors List all payments made within one year immediately preceding the commencement of this caseto or for the benefit of creditors who are or were insiders. (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13 mustinclude payments by either or both spouses whether or not a joint petition is filed, unless the spouses are separated and
a joint petition is not filed )

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CREDITOR DATE OF AMOUNT AMOUNT
AND RELATIONSHIP TO DEBTOR PAYMENT PAID STILL OWING

4. Suits and administrative proceedings, executions, garnishments and attachments



FORM 10 (Official Form 10) (10/05)

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT DISTRICT OF PROOF OF CLAIM

Name of Debtor Case Number

NOTE This form should not be used to make a claim for an admtnistrattve expense ansing after the commencement of the case.
A "request" for payment of an administrative expense may be filed pursuant to 11 U.S.C § 503.
Name of Credttor (The person or other entity to o Check box if you are aware that anyone else has filed a proof of claim
whom the debtor owes money or property): relating to your clatm Attach copy of statement giving particulars.

o Check box if you have never received any notices from the bankruptcyName and address where notices should be sent: court in this case

D Check box if the address differs from the address on the envelope sent

rto you by the court. THIS SPACE IS FOR COURT USETelephone number to y ONLY
Last four digits of account or other number by Check here o replaces
which creditor identifies debtor if this claim o amends a previously filed claim, dated:

I. Basis for Claim o Retiree benefits as defined in I I U.S C § 1114(a)
E) Goods sold n Wages, salaries, and compensation (fill out below)
" Services performed Last four digits of your SS #'_
" Money loaned Unpaid compensation for services performed
" Personal injury/wrongful death
o Taxes from to
lo Other (date) (date)

2. Date debt was incurred: 3. If court judgment, date obtained:

4. Classification of Claim. Check the appropriate box or boxes that best describe your claim and state the amount of the claim at the time the case was filed.
See reverse side for important explanations.

Secured ClaimUnsecured Nonpriority Claim $_SecuredClaim

o Check this box if your claim is secured by collateral (including a right ofo Check this box if: a) there is no collateral or lien securing your claim, or setoff)
b) your claim exceeds the value of the property securing it, or c) none or
only part of your claim is entitled to pnority. Brief Descrption of Collateral:

Unsecured Priority Claim E Real Estate o Motor Vehicle o Other

Value of Collateral- $[ Check this box if you have an unsecured claim all or part of which is entitled toprionty Amount of arrearage and other charges at time case filed included in secured
claim, ifany $

Amount entitled to priority $

Specify the priority of the claim, - ofdeposits toward purchase, lease, or rental of property
or services for personal, family, or household use - II U.S.C § 507(a)(7).o Domestic support obligations under II U.S § 507(a)(1)(A) or (a)(l)(B)

o Taxes or penalties owed to governmental units - I I U S.C § 507(a)(8)[] Wages, salaries, or commissions (up to $4 * earned within 180 davs beforefiling of the bankruptcy petition or cessation of the debtor's business, whichever o Other - Specify applicable paragraph of I I U.S.C. § 507(a)_9
is earlier - I I U S.C § 507(a)(4).

*Amounts are subject to adjustment on-.4AtO nd every 3 years thereafter
. Contributions to an employee benefit plano- tIn U.S.C § 507(a)(5). wpth respect to cases commenced on or after MAI* oadjustment
5. Total Amount of Claim at Time Case Filed: $ ..unsecured)ured)-- •- (total) 4'-/1/10 :•,•

ag Checkthisbox camicludesinterestorotherchargesinadditiontotheprncipalamount ftheclam Attach itemezed statement ofallDONO EN OIINLOUMNT fh
interest or additlnal charges. Ih o e a lu u tca m

6. Credits: The amount of all payments onf thee purpose of THIS SPACE IS FOR COURT USE ONLYmaking this proof of claim

Supporting Documents: Attach cops ofsupportming documents, such as promissory notes, purchaseorders, invoices, itemized statements of running accounts, contracts, court judgments, mortgages, security
agreements, and evidence of perfection of lien. DO NOT SEND ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS If the
documents are not available, explain If the documents are voluminous, attach a summary

8. Date-Stamped Copy: To receive an acknowledgment of the filing of your claim, enclose a stamped,
self-addressed envelope and copy of this proof of clamm

Date [Sign and print the name and title, if any, of the creditor or other person authorized to file

Ithis claim (attach copy of power of attorney, if any)

Penalt)'fiorpreventingfraudulent claim Fine of up to $500,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both 18 U SC. §§152 and3571



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (10/06) - Cont. 4
Other Necessary Expenses: life insurance. Enter average monthly premiums that you actually27 pay for term life insurance for yourself. Do not include premiums for insurance on your dependents,
for whole life or for any other form of insurance. $
Other Necessary Expenses: court-ordered payments. Enter the total monthly amount that you28 are required to pay pursuant to court order, such as spousal or child support payments. Do not includepayments on past due support obligations included in Line 44. $
Other Necessary Expenses: education for employment or for a physically or mentally

29 challenged child. Enter the total monthly amount that you actually expend for education that is a con-dition of employment and for education that is required for a physically or mentally challenged dependentchild for whom no public education providing similar services is available. $
Other Necessary Expenses: childcare. Enter the average monthly amount that you actually expend30 on childcare-such as baby-sitting, day care, nursery and preschool. Do not include other educationalpayments. 

$
Other Necessary Expenses: health care. Enter the average monthly amount that you actually31 expend on health care expenses that are not reimbursed by insurance or paid by a health savings account.Do not include payments for health insurance or health savings accounts listed in Line 34. $
Other Necessary Expenses: telecommunication services. Enter the average monthly amountthat you actually pay for telecommunication services other than your basic home telephone service-such32 as cell phones, pagers, call waiting, caller id, special long distance, or internet service-to the extent neces-sary for your health and welfare or that of your dependents. Do not include any amount previously de-d ucted.$

33 Total Expenses Allowed under IRS Standards. Enter the total of Lines 19 through 32. $

Health Insurance, Disability Insurance, and Health Savings Account Expenses. List and

total the average monthly amounts that you actually pay for yourself, your spouse, or your dependents in

34 a. Health Insurance $
b. Disability Insurance $
C. Health Savings Account $

Total: Add Lines a, b and c
Continued contributions to the care of household or family members. Enter the actual35 monthly expenses that you will continue to pay for the reasonable and necessary care and support of anelderly, chronically ill, or disabled member of your household or member of your immediate family who isunable to pay for such expenses. $

Protection against family violence. Enter any average monthly expenses that you actually incurred36 to maintain the safety of your family under the Family Violence Prevention and Services Act or other appli-cable federal law. The nature of these expenses is required to be kept confidential by the court. $
Home energy costs. Enter the average monthly amount, in excess of the allowance specified by IRS37 Local Standards for Housing and Utilities, that you actually expend for home energy costs. You must pro-tt7•f !

vide your case trustee with documentation demonstrating that the additional amoSC nt I-(2). "
41 Totreasonable and necessary.enb ee t 40 $

?•, Education expenses for dependent child 8 nter the average monthly ex-

38penses that you actually incur, not to exceed '•-•per child, in providing elementary and secondary educa-

' t,8 on for your dependent children less than 18 years of age. You must provide your case trustee with

documentation demonstrating that the amount claimed is reasonable and necessary and not al-

ready accounted for in the IRS Standards. 
$

Additional food and clothing expense. Enter the average monthly amount by which your food and

clothing expenses exceed the combined allowances for food and apparel in the IRS National Standards, not

39 to exceed five percent of those combined allowances. (This information is available at www.usdoi.qov/ust/

or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.) You must provide your case trustee with documentation

demonstrating that the additional amount claimed is reasonable and necessary. $

40 Continued charitable contributions. Enter the amount that you will continue to contribute in the

..... form of cashh or financial instruments to a charitable organization as defined in 26 U.S.C. § 170(c)(1)-(2). $

41 TtalAdditional Expense Deductions under § 707(b). Enter the total of Lines 34 through 40 $



Official Form 22A (Chapter 7) (10/06) - Cont.Initial presumption determination. Check the applicable box and proceed airected,

[]The amount on Line 51 is less than Check the box for " e presumption does not arise" at the ttop oofJpage 1 of this statement, and complete the> r iation in Part VII o not complete the remainder of Part V1.
52 ED The amount set forth on Line 5 s more than - . Check the box for "The presumption arises" at thetop of page 1 of this statement, an :lomplete the verification in Part VIII. You may also complete Part VIL Do not

complete the remaindler oPartV
[]The amount on Line 5 !ts at least $6_-Ot0G, but not more than •r•etComplete the remainder of Part

53 Enter the amoun your total non-priorit 117F.

54 Threshold dellMul$61 Multiply the amount in Line 53 by the number 0.25 and enterthe result. $
Secondary presumption determination. Check the applicable box and proceed as directed.
ElI The amount on Line 51 is less than the amount on Line 54. Check the box for "The presumption does notarise" at the top of page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII.
El The amount on Line 51 is equal to or greater than the amount on Line 54. Check the box for "The pre-sumption arises" at the top of page 1 of this statement, and complete the verification in Part VIII. You may also com-

plete Part VII.

Other Expenses. List and describe any monthly expenses, not otherwise stated in this form, that are required for the)' health and welfare of you and your family and that you contend should be an additional deduction from your currentmonthly income under § 707(b)(2)(A)(ii)(I). If necessary, list additional sources on a separate page. All figures should re-- flect your average monthly expense for each item. Total the expenses.

Expense Description Monthly Amount
a. $
b. $
C.$

Total: Add Lines a, b and c $

PatVII VERIFICATIO
I declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this statement is true and correct. (If this is a joint case,
both debtors must sign.)

Date: 
Signature:

(Debtor)
Date: Signature:

(Joint Debtorz if any



Official Form 22C (Chapter 13) (10/06) - Cont.

Other Necessary Expenses: life insurance. Enter average monthly premiums that you actually32 pay for term life insurance for yourself. Do not include premiums for insurance on your depend-ents, for whole life or for any other form of insurance. $
Other Necessary Expenses: court-ordered payments. Enter the total monthly amount that33 you are required to pay pursuant to court order, such as spousal or child support payments. Do not in-clude payments on past due support obligations included in Line 49. $
Other Necessary Expenses: education for employment or for a physically or mentally34 challenged child. Enter the total monthly amount that you actually expend for education that is acondition of employment and for education that is required for a physically or mentally challenged depend-ent child for whom no public education providing similar services is available.
Other Necessary Expenses: childcare. Enter the average monthly amount that you actually ex-35 pend on childcare-such as baby-sitting, day care, nursery and preschool. Do not include other educa-tional payments. 

$
Other Necessary Expenses: health care. Enter the average monthly amount that you actually36 expend on health care expenses that are not reimbursed by insurance or paid by a health savings account.Do not include payments for health insurance or health savings accounts listed in Line 39. $
Other Necessary Expenses: telecommunication services. Enter the average monthly amountthat you actually pay for telecommunication services other than your basic home telephone service-such37 as cell phones, pagers, call waiting, caller id, special long distance, or internet service-to the extent nec-,, essary for your health and welfare or that of your dependents. Do not include any amount previously

deducted. $
383:_Total Expenses Allowed under IRS Standards. Enter the total of Lines 24 through 37. $

Health Insurance, Disability Insurance, and Health Savings Account Expenses. List andtotal the average monthly amounts that you actually pay for yourself, your spouse, or your dependents in
the following categories.

39 a. Health Insurance $
b. Disability Insurance/ $

rc.tHealth Savings Account $

Total: Add Lines a, b, and c $
Continued contributions to the care of household or family members. Enter the actual

40 monthly expenses that you will continue to pay for the reasonable and necessary care and support of anelderly, chronically ill, or disabled member of your household or member of your immediate family who isunable to pay for such expenses. Do not include payments listed in Line 34. $
Protection against family violence. Enter any average monthly expenses that you actually in-41 curred to maintain the safety of your family under the Family Violence Prevention and Services Act or
other applicable federal law. The nature of these expenses is required to be kept confidential by the court. $
Home energy costs, Enter the average monthly amount, in excess of the allowance specified by IRS

42 Local Standards for Houssg and Utilities, that you actually expend for home energy costs. You must pro-vide your case trustee with documentation demonstrating that the additional amour a not alreasonable and necessary. dso•. 7 '5

Education expenses for dependens Enter the average monthl amount bynwhly expenses andthat you actually incur, not toexceed alwaer child, in providing elementary and secondary education for43 your dependent children less than 18 years of age. You must provide your case trustee with docu-mentation demonstrating that the amount claimed is reasonable and necessary and not alreadyaccounted for in the IRS Standards.$

Additional food and clothing expense. Enter the average monthly amount by which your food andclothing expenses exceed the combined allowances for food and apparel in the IRS National Standards, not44 to exceed five percent of those combined allowances. (This information is available at www.usdoi.qov/ust/
or from the clerk of the bankruptcy court.) You must provide your case trustee with documentationSdemonstrating that the additional amount claimed is reasonable and necessary. Is

45 Continued charitable contributions. Enter the amount that you will continue to contribute in the
form of cash or financial instruments to a charitable organization as defined in 26 U.S.C. § 170(c)(1)-(2). $

46 Total Additional Expense Deductions under § 707(b). Enter the total of Lines 39 through 45. $





MEMORANDUM

TO: AD HOC SUBCOMMITTEE ON TIME COMPUTATION

FROM: JEFF MORRIS, REPORTER

RE: RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ACTION

DATE: DECEMBER 8, 2006, as revised 3/23/07 (JHW)

Judge Zilly suggested that I provide a brief listing (one page!) of issues for discussion on

the conference call for next Wednesday, and this is it.

ISSUE I Should we recommend to the Standing Committee that the Bankruptcy Rules not
be amended as a part of the time computation changes being made to the Civil,
Criminal, and Appellate Rules? The substantial number of changes to the
Bankruptcy Rules over the past two years (and continuing with the approximately
350 pages of amendments currently out for publication) may well confuse the bar
if we follow that up with 50 or 60 amendments that change deadlines in rules that
are still in the process of being amended.

ISSUE 2 If we should proceed with making changes in the deadlines contained in the rules,
what global changes should be made?

Reporter's Recommendations for global changes in the deadlines:

• 2 day periods would remain unchanged
• 5 day periods would become 7 day periods
• 10 day periods would become 14 day periods*
• 15 day periods would become 14 day periods
• 20 day periods would become 21 day periods
• 25 day periods would become 28 day periods
• Periods of 30 days or more would remain unchanged

* There are several 10 day deadlines that are either deadlines for filing a notice of appeal or serve
a very similar purpose. These are identified as in need of discussion in the "comment" column of
the spreadsheet previously distributed to you. These would not be among the 10 day periods that
I recommend to become 14 day periods.



.
L
1
 

-.
 

A
.-

.

-v
 

0

I 
i3

.

P
1
 

0
 

0
-
0
 

,
 

-

'
A
 

4
,

a
s
 

4
3
 8
 

g 
3 ~
0
0
 

0
G
)
 

0
 

0
 

0
4
0
4
 

3
4
b
(
 

a
6
,
0
,
 

'r
 

4

n
 

0
0
0
 

m
 

0
0
0
8
8
¶

~
 

<
 

&
8¶

~
S

 
~~~

J
s
¶
 

o
O
 

I 
¶
'
 

~- 
-0

0
0
 

o

o
~

 
0
8
o
 

,
 

o
.
 

_
 

0

-
o
 

0
o
~
 

¶
~
 

0
0
I

>
,
 

a
 

,
O
 

C
4
 

0
~

0
 

o 
0
- 

~ 
4
fl

 
~ 

0
*
--

a



>
>

 
0
-o

o 
23

-
-
 

0
 

)o
 a

 
0
0
,
 

a
0
0
~
 

R
. 6

6
,

I
 

2
 

-
=
 

o
o
 

s
 

u
 

o
 

S
o

~
~

5
0
, 

8
-0

 
-~

~
~

o
~

5
 

.
*
 

~
o

0
>

0
 

S0
 

o 
0

9'
8ý

 
o
 
0
 
,
-
 

0
 
a
 

8
~

 
2
5
a
o
8
 

.
8
 

1 
8
 o
 

.-
 

§

O
-o

~
2

o
 

a 
o
k
 

o 
o
q
,
2
 

C
., 

0

.2
 

0
e
!

o 
~ 

3
5
 

S
 

8
 

5
>
o
 

-
0
0
 

0

a
f
 

2
,
0
 

.
K

 
o
0
,
 
2
 

-
F

. 
.

2
 

5
0
-
 

ý
0
,
~
 

~~
~~

~~
 

C
c
'
 

o 
2
~
,
2
0
 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

8
 

~ 
-

o
~
 

3
0
,
 

;
0
*
 

0
0
 

o
2
-
 

~ 
0
~

5
 

-
o
 

=
 

-
.

-
a
 

ic
 

2
-
r
 

a
 

E
F

 
~8

 
2
E
r
 

>
 

8
 

g
 
~ 

g

0
 

I
)
5
 

.
s
 , 

5
 

>
 

0
 

5
 

0
 

2
 

>
>
5
 

'
t
 

9
8
 

.
a
3
 

o 
*
 
o
~

-
0
0
 E
r 

o
2
 

L
0
 

o
0
 

-
1
o
 

4
j
2
-

03
~

~
~

~
~

~
~

~
 

'
3
)
 

K
0
o
~
0
=
s
0
>
 

8
2
 

o
 

~ 
o
 

~
5
 

0
~
>
 

0
_

8
 

E
-
v
F

s
 

2
 
5
 

8
 
-

>
 

8
 

~ 
0
 
0
,
-
 

~ 
2
~
 
C
 

a
 
,
 
a
 

0
,
 

.
8
 

2
 

>
2
 

5
 
8

5
-
 S

8
 

5
 

6
2
-
8
 

2
8
2
-
 

~ 
8
>
.
c
0
 

2
o
-
 

~ 
a

9
t
o
 

~ 
~ 

o
 

2
 

8
~
8
-
 

2
 

0
 

2
8
 

8
 

0
o
.
 

)
 

.
-

'
0
0
~
~
 

~ m8
 

0
0
 

0
>
 

o
.
 

a
 

=
 

o
0
 

0
 

S
5
O
0
,

>
 

' 
E
-
 

~ 
8
 

8
i
 

3 
.
0
 

m
 .
0
 

~ 
9
-
 

0
 

S 
.

2
 >
.
a
 

i
4
 z

 
o
o

<
2
 
 

R
C
 

~
-
 

w
 

5
 

8
 
 

o
 

5
 

-

0
0
 

'
8
o
 

2
o 

o
 

I
s
~
-
a
 

~ 
2
-
 

,
,
o
,

<
5
 

o
>
ý
~
O
.
 

~ 
=
~
 

~ 
*
 

~ 
~ 

o

m
2
y
 

-
'
5
 

_
1
 

o
 

0
,

o,
 

3
8
~
 

c
3
 

8
 

0
 
2
 
>
 

5
 

2
 

'

-
o
 

o
>
 c
o
2
 

0
o
>
0
 

8
5
 

m
5
0

0
0
,
 

0
,
 

~ 
~ 

8
 

0
8
>
0
0
 

>
0
0
 

5
-
 

-
0
.
=
 

~ 
8
0
~
2
'
 

>

o
0
 

o
o
 

87
 

.
2
5
 

8
 

o
8
 

0
-

0
0
 

>
2

a
 

2
2
 

2
 

5
 

0
0
2
 

0

S
 

o
8
 
0
0
s

~
.
 

2
 

s
 

s
 

~ 
o
 

a
 

s
o
s
 

o
o
~
~
 

o
 

8
 

~ 
-

~ 
0
 

0
,

0
~
 

~ 
io

, 
2
 

~ 
~ 

>
5
2
 

o
 

O



m
m

 
g>

E
a-

a 
E

- 
5
-a

 o
~ a

s 
ID

 w
,
~
a
 

a
o

-
-

'
 

oU
 1

> 
0
1
 

H
-
8
 

* 
95

a
C
1
 Ji

m
 

I 
,
 

3
 
-e

 
H
-
-
 

o 
D
a
a
0

-
a
 

5
 

,U
ý.

5
 

1
 

,
 

1 
C

D
a
C
a
,
 

r 
0
C
 

a 
a 

~ 
, 

-
a
 
'

0
 

-
a
 

H
 

,
 
a
,
0
-
 

~ 
a
~

(
0
 

a
,
 

.
" 

U
 

O

a
~

l 
M
~
,
 

-
"

~5
 U

 
~ 

~ 
H
 

~ 
~ 

a
 

U
 
-
U
 
'
 

'
 a
 
~ 

2
 
~ 

g
 

~ 
a
 

~ 
a
, 

'q
 

,
-

-~
 

a,
~ 

~ 
~ 

z
~
s
~
 

H
 
=
 
H
a
,
 

H
"
 

-
c
.
s
a

o 
"
 

a
r
 

, 
g 

o "
g
g
 

g
R
,
 

m
3~

'5
aa

2 3~
,"

 
T
H
;
-
g
 

's
'~

 2'
~

a 
a
 

~
,
 

o
2~

" 
H

 
a,

~
H

 
, 

H
 

-~
~ 

H
 

a~
a 

-,
 

-
a
,
 

-
,E

0 
~ 

H
 ~

~H
o

a,
 

[ 
'a

a,
 

H
 a

-H
 

H
 

-~
,,

 
, 

H
 

'
~~

~~
~~

~~
~~

 
L
o
a
 

&
 

2
 

~ 
~ 

,
-
 

a
 

'
 
,
 

a 
a

<-
 

,
 

C
 

S
a
,
 

a,
 

-
H
~
 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 
g
 

g
~

~
~

~
 

H
 
L
 

.
H
 

,
 

C
 -

'
 
o
1
 

~
 ~

 
-

~
E
O
'
 

H
 

o
;
~
 

K
a 

,
H
 
C
 
.

C
 

-
S

 
a
~

 
a
 

a
~

 a
, 

a
,0

 
a 

H
 

~ 
O
 

~ 
U
 

a
-.

 
s-

3 
o
,
~
 

V
 

a
 

-H
 

~ 
a
~
 

a

a
,~

 ~
 

R
H
 

s
i
'
 

a
,
 

-:
 

;
-
 

a
 

,
H
 

; 
Z

. 
H

 
o-

aH
 

R
 

'
 
~ -

~ 
H

R
,. 

o 
cU

 c~
x 

3
H
 

t
ý
a
 

3 
o'

~2
. 

o
a
'
~
 

a
,.

 
' 

'
~ 

0
-
 
'
*
 

'
 

O
 

~ 
,
 

a
 
'
 

a
 

~ a
C
 

H
,
 
~ 

H
 
o
 
H
 
~ 

0
 

H
 

-
a
 
U
 

a
,
 

HH
 
.
a
o

-[
 

~ 
C
 

-
a
H
-
~
 

~ 
~ 

~ 
0
 

H
-
H
 

H
 
o
 
s
-

-
.3

 
-

o,
'a

~ Ha
a
D
 

a
a

-
'
 

.
a
 

-
?
- 

-
-I

c
-
 

a,
. 

H
g
 

.-.

3 
o 

H
H

 
-H

 
H

 
I
H
 

.~
 

1
,

0
 

H
 

a 
' 

H
, 

H
 

H
 

2.
 

2
.
 

H
 
,
 
,
 

=
8
 

1
' 

W
. 

5
5
 

-
-

-
s
a
,

I
a
 

a,
 

*
3
 

.H
 

1
a
 

s1
a 

a'
 1

 
H

. 
a 

a,
 

0
 

,
 

-
't
 

T

-
~ " 

2 
 

H
&

, 
a
~
 

"
"
 

"
~
 

H
a
 

a
a

o

~~
~a

,~
~~

~ 
o-

H
 

o~
-,

 
~ 

-U
 

~ 
-,

 
C

a
 

~ 
H

 
a
H
 

'
 

~ 
'

g~
~

~
~

~
~

~
~

~
~

~
~

~
 

o
a
 

2
 

,~
 

'
 

a
 

'
 

H
 

" 
H
 

2
 

5
U

 
H

~
 

, 
C
 

H
 

~ 
2
~

 
2

H
' 

5 
a-

 
~'

a 
-,

 
, 

a
, 

H
 

35
 

5
5
 

U
 
~ 

8



a'

L
o
 

a
 

a
y
R

5
zC

 
S
~

C
D

 
C
 

S
 

D
aD

..C
~S

 
0

a'
0

7 
0 

 
a8

 
2 

~ 
a
 

g
 

' 
'o

 
' 

z 
~
=
 

o
 

0
 
a
 

' 
5
 

'
~~

~~
 

@
5
~
 

3
'
D
 

C

C
~

~
~

~
a'

~
~

i 
g~

 
~~

a 
*C

 
S 

5
o
0
 

F
D
 

1
5
D
0
 

oý
 

1.
5 

;a
 

5 
;

o'
a'

~ 
n 

.a
 

I 
.

W
' 

.3
 

E
3o

~ a
~~

-E
 

o
o
.S

 
E

F
0
~

 
2
t
C
D
 

C
D
 

,~
o
~

 
~ 

a
 

a
 

S
a
 

,
 

~ 
C
 

~ 
'

~C
O

'o
a 

0
a
'
a
a
'
 

D
 

'
x
C
S
 

0
~
a
'
 

~ 
O

is
 

;.
 

4
3
 

R
!
'
C
'
"
 

a
 

-o
~

 
¶
5
a
 

5
 

~ 
~ 

a
'
 

~ 
a 

a 
, 

' 
0
 

o
C
D
0
~
 

~a
 

~ 
'' 

" 
S

 
~ 

~ 
*
0
~
g
 

~ 
-
.
 

*
.
 

a
O
C
 

O
O
O
O
~
a
 

C
C
C
a
o

C
D
a
s
 

a'
' 

H
~a

 
oD

 
o

-,
' 

, 
o 

0
 

C
 

C

5
,~

~
~

~
~

~
~

~
 

2
0
 

-2
 

lo
-.

 
'a

 
'0 

_
 

~ 
~ 

C
0
.
ý
 

0
 

C
,
C
 

!5
 

0
 

.
,
 

s
 

C
C

D
~

~
~

~
~

 
~~

 
o
C
 

' 
~ 

a 
"
~
D
D
 

~ 
C
a
 

"-
 

a
 

'a
~

C
D
 

0
 

~ 
~ 

s 
~ 

C
D
~
'
 

D
~
'

2

.
o
 

a
-
C
 

D
 

0
 

0
0

lo
 

0w
 

5
.
'
D
 

o
 

a
D
 

~ 
C
~
 

"
 

a
 

'
D
0
 

0
 

a 
a

0

0
3
 

o:
* 

g 
-

a

05
~~

 
a
 

a 
-

o 
a
 

, 
I
D
 

C
D

 
C

' 
m

D
.C

~
E

 
C
D
 

C
 

3
D
a
 

D
O
.
~

O
aB

 
~

 
a 

0
 

'
 

-
0
 

' 
O
D
 

a
 

D
 

_ 
0
 

s 
-

C
 

o
a

C
 

o

a'
 

S 
o 

3.
 5

 
~ 

a
 

o
 

a
 

~ 
'

S
 

a
 

S
 

-
C

D
 

~ 
w

 
a 

C
 

D
t 

3
.
a
 

C
D

0
Q

a

o
D

--
 

o
o
..
- 

0
i
 

o
 

x

-
~~

E
 

o
- 

C
D
-
 

'
 

'

o 
0
0

Ix
- 

X
 

0
 
0
 

X
-a

' 
.-



0
 

[ 
0
 

,<
•o

0 
(
0
 

I
' 

o-
o(

2
1
0
0
 

O
R

0
 

--
- 

'2 
3

o2
2 I

s 
-. 

a

m
a 

l 
61

 
o
 

9
1
o
~

 -o
•.

1
 

• 

3
 

-
oo

t. 
l. 

=
 

j 
• 

• 
.>

m
(0

(0
0
0

82
0 ~

 
~

 
~

 
' 

ft
 

R
 

'
2
 

3 
J7

~T
 

(o
- 

5
0
 

(2

o 
o

o.
o%

+.
,,,

50
05

 
H

 
--

0
,-

0
0
 

5
o

 ~ 
55

5 
0
 

~ 
"
(
~
,
,
 

0
_
_
 

o

3
.-

 

0
(
0

,o
 

21
 ,:

 
5

-1
 

2-
-1

2 
0
 

'2
0

 
~ 

0

2-
 

J~
 ~

 l 
52

5 
I 

: 
.

.
..

• 
.

.
_ 

0
 

2 
+

 
-i

5(
o

-

+
 

-

5.
5 

0
+
 

..8
. .

...
0
5
( 

0 
7,

T
IH

-
(
0
 

o
o

2-
o

o
 

o 
o 

_
ao

2 
a 
~

 0 
 

o
~
 

~ 
, 

o
o
 

• 
§
 

-
-- 

~
-

-
_
 

r
+
+

-
.
.
s
 
2
 

-
.
 

.
+

 ..
 

.
0
0
.

~ 
'
2

, 
I 

00
0 

(0
0,



IF
I

3 
E

i 
0
 

5
2
 

6
-

6.
,C

 
~ 

D
 

8
a

8
 

.

a
-
3

o
 

o
~~

5o
~~

o 
A

.-
 

E
80

.8
 

5

--
o
C

E
P

 
94

q
,

o
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C

3 
ýi

0
0
5
.-

C
x
 

x
&

o



VT)
cu,

Sl 
:o 

0 
0 

)

m
 

L
 

U
) 

f)

.2 
c

20, 
C

c) 
0~ 

0 
N

)

t5
 

.2 
E

~- 
-

V
 

a

L
n 

E 
T , 

'n 
a

0 
)

(n 
(2) 

cV
 

c: 
-o

a,- 
C

-- 
0-0 

~ 
~E

-0 
-~0 

0- 
-N)C

 
0 

U
fC

v- 
E

ta 
U

0 
-

=1 
E

) 
"M

 
0Q

: 
ao

. 
~E

 
E

aC
 

) 
M

 
.0

 
-u

a
)

C
a) 

.0) 
0 

~
0

'.
a) 

a) 
E

-6
 

-0 
-

-
: 

-
9 

s 
0

E
~

~
 

~ 
2 

5a 
o 

c 
-

0 
a-0 

a) C
u 

~
%

 ~ 
~ 

> 
~ 

, 
00) 

al 
a,

4
- 

_
 

-4
5
i

m
l 

-oC
 

-b 
0- 

t,~

m
) 

Z
 

E
~ 

r--

-
-5. 

a)~0 
C

). 
a,

-r- 
-

U
).2a) 

-
1

a, 
-c 

-
o

-. 
2 

, 
V

-r-

0C
 

1
0

 
-) 

E
-a

V
5 

-C
 cz, 

g
-

Q
U

)_ 
1%

 
0 

C
 

0
m

0 
-

,. 
_0 

-.
Q

0121 
~

 
~

 
~

 
~

 
ooo 

t 
>

''U
(D

J
 

:0

o 
co 

-
( 

) c
-0 

0 .E
0 

c*

c 
o 

0 ) 
:0 ,

L) 
(

0 
0 

0 
N

N
Z

_ 
> 

0 
)N

N
0 

N
N

 
a) 

c0
o 0- 

) 
c 

N



V
) 

U
)~

 
U

) 
(n .0

, 
•
l 

•/U
 

U
 

0 
)• •>

 
C

U
' 

C
O

'- 
, 

" 
o 

>
 

: 
e 

•o'

0: 
Q

~' 
)0 

Ž
 

M
 

-D
C

14 
1
 

0 
0)

0 
0 

0, 
o 

o 
0 

o
- 

c 
o

I E
 

0) 
0) 

0) 
00 

.
-0)

o 
o 

0 
C

 
1 

0 
00)

10 
U

 
C

U
 

M
 00)30Q

 
m

 
C

U
0

.0 
.0 

.0. 
2U

 
-C

 
0) 

L
)

0 
L

M

I 
=-- 

-. 
I 

0) 
-

C
' 

L
o) 

C
 

C
) 

L
O

 
) 

C
04 

N
 

C
N

 
'1)

0) 
~ 

U
 

U

.
C

 
0C

 
U

 
6 

a) 
' 

-
a)~ 

E
 

o 
0
)_

_
_
: 

-) 
1. 

0s 
0M

 
,

E 
2
2
 

0
 

C
U

 
0~ 

:)E
5 m

-C
 

U
. 

2..
CL 

O
U

 
0. 

D
 

aU
 

) 
a)0. 

0
, 

-
.o a 

o 
2 

V
 a) ° 

0 
-

a) 
• 

o
C

 a) 
: 

C
 U 

E
 

0 
-

-0 
-

O
 

-
-T

 
-

0

-o 
2
- 

o 
7
6
 

:F
 

U
) 

-
' 

--
ca 
-

-
-r 

(D
C

'= 
"S 
•--

• 
~ 

E
 

, 
-- 

.
_E

- ° 
I 

)0 
.E

E
~

~
 

~ E0J J 
F

- 
m

. 
'C

~
0~

 
.-

~ 
C

 
~ 

-
-
U

 
0

0 
m

l-0 
2 

E
 a)-,) 

0 
-

-- 
*...O

 
C

- 
• 

.-
0 

/3 
..-, 

-
0 

o,,, 
" 

nn° 
¢

 
o 

-
C) 

-'•t 
,--d 0

0
 

o 
_

'j 
r 

0 
:3 

00 
.2 

c 
U

)-C
 

c 
0)

u~- 
C

U
 

2-(.0F

a) 2 
o42 

o 
-0 

t5 
• 

.-
" 

.2
 

,
C

L
 

E
 

) 
a)E

 
V

5 
0 

0 
~ 

U

0,. 
I 

r- 
.

U
") 

-
0T

- 
" 

-

a) 
a 

) 
• 

o I- 
o 

,- 
, 

(• 
I-.• 

, 
.E

 
5
 

o
-,°

 
j' 

-0
 

F
' 

•

.Z 
2c 

C
U

 
0
 

• 
C

U
U

 
• 

:3 
-- 

0 
L

 
-

0 
) 

C
 )

:s 
0 

-0c
-C

:m
 

0 
O

Q
) I 

aC
 

U
- 

0
 

0
 

m

'- 
-

0 
a) 

cZ
 

0
 

D
 

-

~ 
~ 

0 
o 

0
 

~ 
C

U
U

 
~ 

0
 

F
 

)~
~

 
) 

0
0h. 

U
) 

-: 
" 

0

" 
0: 

V
 

m
 

C
 

0
 

(n 
A

-
• 

.. 
" 

-
C

U
. 

C
U

 E 
(• 

' 
.

-
"- 

-
(/) 
0 

V
 

k,!I• 
1 

o 
/ 

l 
~ 

o 
,/• 

• 
o 

/ 
-

o 
•,, 

0
0

' 
U

)V
=

 
0

a) ~ 
~ 

w
U

I 
E

o~ 
E

va 
'0 

-5
 

o).:

U
) 

L
.V

 
0 

U
. 

a) 
, 

-r 
C

, 
C

D
 

c 
) 

-
0 

a__)0
..

3
-- 

U
0  

-
0 

-C
U

1-0 
0 

-u 
V

 
E

 
• 

C
 

-5
00 

0 
00 

0 
2r 

-
m

 
m

0 
"

0 
O

 
.

0L
0 

C
L

 46 
C

 
N

 
O

L
I) 

) 
E

U
 

0 
)-C

U
 

M
 

00

cJ O
- 

>
- 

0
0
0
 

0=ID
 

:a
) 

L
izL

 
) 

-r 
-

L
 

>< 
0
 

0 
) 

.

0o 
c0* 
0-.0 

E
 

0 
C

 
~ 

U
. 

O
 

o 
.0 

.C
) 

c: 
.0 

0
0 

U
 

(

C
U

 ~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 
L

 
16

0 
a)O

 
V

-) 
.

0-0)O
0 

-
0 

E
0 

01 
c: 

c 
0 

-2 
i; 

-.
Z

0cS 
C

-C
 

-=

00 
0
 

U
 

c: 
u 

0 
a)C

 
E

U
E 0

a)
a)/U

 C
 

2 
=

I 
, 

-
-a) 

m
 

0!

''.

00 
0 

a) 
= 

ou
-0 

£
 

.w
'E

 
0 

_
 

o
. 

O
 

aO
'. 

V
 

0 
a, 

in 
m

 
E

 
E

D
 

D
 

'a)

, 
9D

 
C

 
U

) 
a
)IU

C
U

 
0 

0. 
0)

4
1
C

)0
C

 
0'

0  
a)0~ 

e 
~ 

N
2 

U
 

oC
~ 

a) 
a

0V
 

o 
%

 
~ 

.
m

 
_
 

E
0

C
) 

0
0
 

0
 

r-j 
0 

0
'0~E

C
 

C
U

t 
O

 
II')- 

(1) 
U

 
£C

(N
 

-0
 

a)C
 

) 
a0)4 

2
4
 

,'

E
 

(N
 

a) 
-r 

, 
a

2. 
h-' 

0)a
10, 

1
0

 
-T

 1 
) 

E
L

0 
10

a)zb 
a 

c 
a,- 

m
 

0,0

0 
o 

I
z-a)



o 
*~0

00 
.

U
, 

"0 
"0 

_=

-
0 

0 
0
 

0
 

_

m
 

U
 

)- 
rU

 
) 

(V
 

V
 

a
, 

=
 • 

.
.,,,- 

a) 
• 

° 
"

E
 

0) 
0) 

-C5 
0a 

C
1

,o 
•-oI 

•0 
C' 

C
 

0
•

, 
,- 

..C
 

a 
"0 

~. 
C

 
) 

0
C

) V
>

 
0C

 
0 

0 
C

.

C
a0) 

o
i-

I_ 
cr 

-
(_

E
 

_
a
 

a) 
;U

) 
U 

-0

(V
 

-C
 

C
 

-
" 

a)
=C

 
0 

oC
, 

r 
,0

[1
 

I 
Io 

) 
D

 
0a0 

C
c
l 

I 
-

) 
a)

0• 
J 

• 
.- 

0• 
0

E
~

 
C

 
a
)C

 
O

 
0 

C
 

.,

0) 
~ 

C
C

~ 
~ 

C
 

03 )

I 
a•. 

co0 
0- 

,

' 
C

Ž
" 

C
 

U
)C 

a 
C

 
E 

V
t"C

 
(la

0) 
-V

 
-+

'=
 

I• 
' 

-- 
Lea) 

a)-

!--- 
V

 
( 

•C
 

.-

-
--

r0- 
7a

, 
I°aol 

-
_ 

C
0 

** 
0, 

+ 
+

. 
V

C
C

 
0 

C
D

 
Y

) 
o 

.
, 

o

a)0 na 
:a 

co 
-2

 
8V

p 
C

 
C

 
'

U
)C

: 
.0

- 
-

(V
• 

(V
 

:1V
 

1 
0

-
n 

--.- 
a

I 
.

oE
 

0: 
C

E
 

E
. 

: 
0 

0
C

 
C

•l 
a) 

C
 

a 
a)

-- 
.0 

L
 

[ 
0= 

' 
,u

,_E
 

-
•' 

E 
• 

*.o9 
C

N
U

,' 
0

~~O 
(D

 
')) 

C
T

V
 

C
m

 
-

a) 
0~2~

1 
0 

; 
a)

(V
 

C
 

0 
0
1

C
 

I 
U

) 
a) 

E
 

5 
-- 

O
C

I

a) 
'm

a~ 
0 

E
 

0)2
~ 

0 
C

 
: 

0) 
C

 
C

: 
Q

, 
au)

c C
c0 

-C
a) 

a
a)~a 

C
a) 

nl 
.

-s 
-

u
-

0 
,. 

a) 
2
a
)

1
: 

C
.0 

.. 
C

4 
.-

U
)~C

(n 
30 

a'~
0

0
~

 (nU
C

U
 

0 
co, a)a)

'- 
.C

 
i 

i 
I.

~
a) 
ff 

0 
ac 

>
 

l 
0(V

 
t 

C
V

 
-

C

E
D

 
D

E
 

C
5
 

C
0

a 
Th

a
) 

a

a) 
0 

1 
qD

 
ca 

_0* 
0

Q
) 

co-

Z
 

0 
0 

0 
0

a) 
E

 
E

co 
U

) 
>O

C



I



Official Form 19 (12/08)

United States Bankruptcy Court
District Of

In re Case No.
Debtor

Chapter

DECLARATION AND SIGNATURE OF NON-ATTORNEY
BANKRUPTCY PETITION PREPARER (See 11 U.S.C. § 110)

I declare under penalty of perjury that: (1) 1 am a bankruptcy petition preparer as defined
in II U.S.C. § 110; (2) 1 prepared the accompanying document(s) listed below for compensation
and have provided the debtor with a copy of the document(s) and the attached notice as required
by 11 U.S.C. §§ 110(b), 110(h), and 342(b); and (3) if rules or guidelines have been promulgated
pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 110(h) setting a maximum fee for services chargeable by bankruptcy
petition preparers, I have given the debtor notice of the maximum amount before preparing any
document for filing for a debtor or accepting any fee from the debtor, as required by that section.

Accompanying documents: Printed or Typed Name and Title, if any, of
Bankruptcy Petition Preparer:

Social-Security No. of Bankruptcy Petition
Preparer (Required by 11 U.S.C. § 110):

If the bankruptcy petition preparer is not an individual, state the name, title (if any), address,
and social-security number of the officer, principal, responsible person, or partner who signs
this document.

AUddress

Signature of B ankruptcy Petition Preparer DiTe-
Names and social-security numbers of all other individuals who prepared or assisted in preparing
this document, unless the bankruptcy petition preparer is not an individual:

If more than one person prepared this document, attach additional signed sheets conforming to the
appropriate Official Form for each person

A bankruptcy petition preparer's failure to comply with the provisions of title 11 and the Federal
Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure may result in fines or imprisonment or both. 11 U.S.C. § 110; 18
U.S.C. § 156.



Official Form 19 (12/08) - Cont. 2

NOTICE TO DEBTOR BY NON-ATTORNEY BANKRUPTCY PETITION PREPARER
[Must be filed with any document(s) prepared by a bankruptcy petition preparer.]

I am a bankruptcy petition preparer. I am not an attorney and may not practice law or give
legal advice. Before preparing any document for filing as defined in § 11 0(a)(2) of the Bankruptcy
Code or accepting any fees, I am required by law to provide you with this notice concerning
bankruptcy petition preparers. Under the law, § 110 of the Bankruptcy Code (11 U.S.C. § 110), 1 am
forbidden to offer you any legal advice, including advice about any of the following:

* whether to file a petition under the Bankruptcy Code (11 U.S.C. § 101 et seq.);
* whether commencing a case under chapter 7, 11, 12, or 13 is appropriate;
* whether your debts will be eliminated or discharged in a case under the Bankruptcy Code;
* whether you will be able to retain your home, car, or other property after commencing a case

under the Bankruptcy Code;
* the tax consequences of a case brought under the Bankruptcy Code;
* the dischargeability of tax claims;
* whether you may or should promise to repay debts to a creditor or enter into a reaffirmation

agreement with a creditor to reaffirm a debt;
* how to characterize the nature of your interests in property or your debts; or
* bankruptcy procedures and rights.

[The notice may provide additional examples of legal advice that a bankruptcy petition preparer is
not authorized to give.]

In addition, under 11 U.S.C. § 110(h), the Supreme Court or the Judicial Conference of the
United States may promulgate rules or guidelines setting a maximum allowable fee chargeable by a
bankruptcy petition preparer. As required by law, I have notified you of this maximum allowable
fee, if any, before preparing any document for filing or accepting any fee from you.

Signature of Debtor Date Joint Debtor (if any) Date

[In a joint case, both spouses must sign.]



Form 19

COMMITTEE NOTE

This form is new. It is derived from form 19B and replaces forms 19A
and 19B (which forms are abrogated). The form contains the notice a bankruptcy
petition preparer is required to give to a debtor under § 110 of the Code as
amended by the Bankruptcy Abuse Prevention and Consumer Protection Act of
2005, Pub. L. No. 109-8, 119 Stat. 23 (April 20, 2005), and the bankruptcy
petition preparer's signed declaration (also required by § 110 of the Code) that the
notice was given to the debtor.

The notice states, in language mandated in the 2005 Act, that the bankruptcy
petition preparer is not an attorney and must not give legal advice. The notice also
includes examples of advice a bankruptcy petition preparer may not give that are taken
from § I I 0(e)(2) of the Code.

Although space is provided in the declaration to list multiple documents prepared
for a single filing, a new form 19 must be completed and accompany subsequent filings.
For example, one form 19 listing all forms prepared by the bankruptcy petition preparer
would be filed with the debtor's petition package. Another form 19 would be required if
the debtor files amended schedules later in the case that were prepared by the bankruptcy
petition preparer.

The form must be signed by the debtor and the bankruptcy petition preparer where
indicated, and must be filed with each document for filing prepared by the bankruptcy
petition preparer.



[ ________


	Approval of Minutes
	Reports of Other Meetings
	Report on Comments
	Report by Atty Conduct Subc
	Report by Health Care Subc
	Report by Consumer Subc
	Report by Business Subc
	Report by Cross Border Subc
	Report by Appeals Subc
	Report by Forms Subc
	Time-Computation Rules
	Amendments by CV Style
	Rules Docket
	"Bull Pen"



